
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular and Joint City Council / Folsom 
Redevelopment Successor Agency / Folsom Public 
Financing Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority 
/ South of 50 Parking Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
July 12, 2022 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular and Joint City Council / Folsom Redevelopment Successor 
Agency / Folsom Public Financing Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority / 

South of 50 Parking Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, July 12, 2022 6:30 PM 
 

Kerri Howell, Mayor 

 

Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino, Councilmember 
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Effective July 7, 2022, the City of Folsom is returning to all in-person City Council, Commission, 
and Committee meetings.  Remote participation for the public will no longer be offered.  

Everyone is invited and encouraged to attend and participate in City meetings in person. 
 
NOTE: Councilmember YK Chalamcherla will be participating in this 

meeting via teleconference from the following location: 
 

1755 Abbeyfeale Court 
Folsom, CA  95630 

 
Pursuant to Section 54953 et al. of the California Government Code,  

members of the public shall be provided an opportunity to directly address the legislative 
body at the teleconference location. 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Howell 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


3 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Presentation from HART of Folsom (Homeless Assistance Resource Team) Regarding the 
Winter Shelter 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

2. Approval of June 28, 2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

3. Appointment of Representatives to the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (SCGA) 
Governing Board 

4. Appointment of At-Large Member to the Folsom Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory 
Committee to Represent the Willow Springs District 

5. Resolution No. 10883 - A Resolution Electing the Population and Inflation Factors and 
Establishing the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Appropriations Limit 

6. Resolution No. 10886 - A Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 10860 - A Resolution 
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with Cooper Oates Air 
Conditioning for the Folsom City Hall Boiler and HVAC Replacement Design-Build Project 

7. Resolution No. 10888 - A Resolution Acknowledging Receipt of Completed Annual State 
Mandated Fire Inspections  

PUBLIC HEARING: 

8. Resolution No. 10887 - A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer’s Report for the following 
Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 American River Canyon North, 
American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, 
Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, 
Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge II/Reflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, 
Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie 
Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, 
Steeplechase, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at American River 
Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates 
South, and Willow Springs 

CONVENE JOINT MEETING 

JOINT CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

City Council Regular and Joint City Council / Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency / Folsom 
Public Financing Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority / South of 50 Parking Meeting 

ROLL CALL: Council / Board Members:   Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Howell 

  

Page 3



4 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

9. Approval of the April 12, 2022 Joint City Council and Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Meeting 
Minutes 

10. Approval of the May 24, 2022 Joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor Agency / Public 
Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority 
Meeting Minutes 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

11. Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom 
Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 

i.  Resolution No. 10884 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Authorizing the 
Issuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) 
Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022, the Execution of an Indenture 
Providing therefor, Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, and 
Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of Other Documents in Connection therewith 

ii.  Resolution No. 009-Folsom Ranch FA - A Resolution of the Governing Board of the Folsom 
Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Not to Exceed 
$12,000,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 
(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022; Approving 
the Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing Modifications thereof and Execution 
and Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official Statement, Authorizing Changes 
thereto and Execution and Delivery thereof and of an Official Statement to be Derived therefrom; 
Approving a Local Obligation Purchase Contract and a Bond Purchase Contract and Execution 
and Delivery of Each; and Authorizing Related Actions Necessary to Implement the Proposed 
Financing 

ADJOURNMENT 

RECONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

NEW BUSINESS: 

12. General Municipal Election – November 8, 2022 

1. A. Resolution No. 10889 - A Resolution Authorizing the Submission of a Ballot Measure to the 
Qualified Voters of the City to Add a Transactions and Use Tax at the Rate of One-Half Percent 
(0.5%), Authorizing the Filing of Written Arguments Regarding the City’s Revenue Measure, and 
Directing the City Attorney to Prepare an Impartial Analysis for Said Measure; or    

B. Resolution No. 10890 - A Resolution Authorizing the Submission of a Ballot Measure to the 
Qualified Voters of the City to Add a Transactions and Use Tax at the Rate of One Percent (1%), 
Authorizing the Filing of Written Arguments Regarding the City’s Revenue Measure, and 
Directing the City Attorney to Prepare an Impartial Analysis for Said Measure  

2. A. Ordinance No. 1328 - An Ordinance of the People of the City of Folsom Imposing a One-
Half Percent (0.5%) Transactions and Use Tax by Adding Chapter 3.140, “Folsom Essential City 
Services Maintenance and Investment Measure”, to the Folsom Municipal Code to be 
Administered by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration (Approve 
Submission to Voters); or  

  

Page 4



5 

B. Ordinance No. 1329 - An Ordinance of the People of the City of Folsom Imposing a One 
Percent (1%) Transactions and Use Tax by Adding Chapter 3.140, “Folsom Essential City 
Services Maintenance and Investment Measure”, to the Folsom Municipal Code to be 
Administered by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration (Approve 
Submission to Voters) 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

 

Page 5

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank. 

 

Page 6



[H
-il,;'{}r,F-4{t-*'tr
a &ttrGt,4a rt 

"lY$.ia

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

CITY COUNCII, ACTION

Representatives from HART of Folsom will make a presentation regarding their winter
shelter.

Respectfu lly submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

I

MEETING DATE: 7/1212022

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Presentation from HART of Folsom (Homeless Assistance
Resource Team) regarding the Winter Shelter

FROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 7

07/12/2022 Item No.1.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 8

07/12/2022 Item No.1.



Book 76 Page 265
Folsom City Council

June28,2022

Gity Council Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, June 28,2022 6:00 PM

CALL T ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm with Mayor Kerri Howell
presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present: Rosario Rodriguez, Vice MaYor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent

Participating Staff:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
Assistant City Attorney Sari Dierking
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
lnterim Human Resources Director John Spittler
Human Resources Manager Allison Garcia

ApJOURNMENT TO qLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

1. Conference with Labor Negotiator - Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957.6. Agency Negotiator: lnterim Human Resources Director John Spittler. Employee

Organization: Various Bargaining Groups

Motion by Gouncilmember Sarah Aquino second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez to
adjourn to Glosed Session for the above referenced item. Motion carried with the
following roll call vote:

AyES: Gouncilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council' Page 9

07/12/2022 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 266
Folsom City Council

June28,2022

RECONVENE

Assistant City Attorney Sari Dierking announced that no final action was taken during Closed

Session.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 6:36 p.m

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Kerri Howell, Mayor

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the City Council' Page 10

07/12/2022 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page267
Folsom City Council

June28,2022

City Council Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, June 28,2022 6:30 PM

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:36 pm with Mayor Kerri Howell
presiding.

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor'
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Council mem bers Absent: None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni
Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione
Landscaping and Lighting Manager Zach Perras

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Clerk Christa Freemantle announced that there were no agenda updates.

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

The following speakers addressed the City Council via teleconference:
o Scott Rafferty regarding by-district elections
. Jason Davis regarding the Folsom Navigator and Animal Control

DRAFT - Not oficial until approaed b1t the Ciry Council. Page 11

07/12/2022 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 268
Folsom City Council

June28,2022

SCHEDULED P SENTATIONS:

1. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming July 2022 as "Parks Make
Life Better" Month

Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez presented the proclamation to Parks and Recreation
Commissioner Samantha Davidson, Management Analyst Cindy Spradlin and Parks and

Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione.

2. Presentation of City Survey Results and Direction to Staff

Mayor Kerri Howell invited the following speaker to address the City Council:

r Loretta Hettinger

City Manager Elaine Andersen introduced the item and Brian Godbe from Godbe Research
made a presentation and responded to questions from the City Council.

Bonnie Moss from Clifford Moss Consulting made a presentation and responded to questions

from the City Council.

City Manager Elaine Andersen asked the City Councilto provide any comments and direction to
staff for the next steps in the process.

The City Council agreed that an agenda item should be scheduled for the July 12 City Council
meeting for the City Council to discuss if a sales tax measure should be placed on the
November ballot.

CONSENT CALENDAR:

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one
motion. City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion.

3. Approval of June 14,2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

4. pulled for comment

5. Resolution No. 10874 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. 5 to the Memorandum of Agreement (Contract No. 174-21 18-087)
Regarding Sharing of Costs for Legislative Advocacy Services Between San Juan Water
District and the City of Folsom

6. pulled for comment

7 . Resolution No. 10876 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. 1 to the Communications Site License Agreement with New Cingular
Wireless PCS, LLC, at BT Collins Park

8. Resolution No. 10877 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Communications Site License Agreement with T-Mobile US, LLC, at BT Collins Park

DRAFT - Not oficial until approued fut the Ciry Council. Page 12

07/12/2022 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 269
Folsom City Council

June28,2022

g. Resolution No. 10878 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Communications Site License Agreement with T-Mobile West LLC, at Cummings Family
Park

10. Resolution No. 10879 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No. 173-21 20-032) with HydroScience
Engineers, lnc. for Design Services for the Ashland Water Rehabilitation Project No. 2

1 1 . Resolution No. 10880 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with HydroScience Engineers, lnc. for Construction Management Services for
the Ashland Water Rehabilitation Project No. 2

12. Resolution No. 10881 -A Resolution Authorizing the City Managerto Execute an

Agreement with Caggiano General Engineering, lnc. for the Construction of the Ashland
Water Rehabilitation Project No. 2 and Appropriation of Funds

13. Resolution No. 10882 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Construction Agreement with Pavement Coatings Co. for the Pavement Resurfacing
Fiscal Year 2021-22 Prqect No. 8017

Motion by Gouncilmember Mike Kozlowski second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez' to
approve Gonsent Galendar items 3, 5 and 7-13.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

CONSENT LENDAR IT PULLED COMMENT:EM

4. Resolution No. '10873 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with BrightView Landscape Services for Landscaping and Lighting Districts,
Community Facilities Districts, and Folsom Plan Area Landscapes for the City of Folsom
and Appropriation of Funds

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla pulled this item for clarification and requested that the Parks
and Recreation Department consider hiring a volunteer coordinator who could find volunteers to
use for landscaping and other department needs. Councilmember Sarah Aquino asked if the
Landscaping and Lighting District Citizens'Advisory Committee should consider this item before
the City Council approves the contract. Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione and
Landscaping and Lighting Manager ZachPerras responded to Councilmember questions.

Assistant City Attorney Sari Dierking provided clarification in response to questions.

Gouncilmember YK Chalamcherla made a motion to approve Resolution No. 10873 with
amendments to have volunteers help with maintenance, have Parks and Recreation
Commission be involved, and approve the agreement for one-year increments.

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued fui the Ciry Council. Page 13

07/12/2022 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page270
Folsom City Council

June28,2022

Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione explained the infeasibility of depending upon

volunteers for highly skilled work and the complications of limiting the contract to one year.

Assistant City Attorney Sari Dierking and Landscaping and Lighting Manager Zach Perras
provided additional clarification.

Councilmember YK Ghalamcherla withdrew his motion.

Councilmember Sarah Aquino commented she would like this item to go to the Landscaping

and Lighting District Citizens'Advisory Committee, so they are informed. She also concurred

with using volunteers to help when appropriate, such as volunteer efforts that are part of
Community Service Day Projects.

Motion by Gouncilmember Sarah Aquino second by Councilmember Mike Kozlowski, to
approve Resolution No. 10873.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

6. Resolution No. 10875 - A Resolution Accepting Donated Furniture ltems for City Use

Mayor Kerri Howell explained that she pulled this item to thank former Mayor Steve Miklos for
donating furniture.

Motion by Mayor Kerri Howell second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, to approve
Resolution No. 10875.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

GITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen made announcements regarding the new food waste recycling
program, the annual national night out, the new session of the Police Department's citizens

academy and illegal fireworks penalties.

DRAFT - Not ofidal until approued fut the Ciry Council' Page 14

07/12/2022 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page271
Folsom City Council

June28,2022

GITY COUNCIL COMMENTS:

Councilmember Sarah Aquino commented regarding roundabouts for traffic calming. She
mentioned difficulties with technology at public meetings and suggested phasing out
teleconferencing at the meetings.

Councilmember Mike Kozlowski said he is looking forward to hearing the results of the parking
pilot program in the Historic District. He commented about the success of the Folsom
Hometown Parade and invited everyone to attend the upcoming Folsom Pro Rodeo.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla concurred with the success of the parade and expressed his
support of roundabouts for traffic calming. He mentioned he will be attending the Cal Cities
conference, and he thanked the City for having cooling station locations.

Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez also praised the Folsom Hometown Parade and invited everyone
to the Folsom Pro Rodeo.

Mayor Kerri Howell spoke about a recent car accident and encouraged everyone to drive safely
and to be careful with fireworks over the holiday weekend.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Kerri Howell

adjourned the meeting at 8:21 pm.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST

Kerri Howell, Mayor

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued bit the Ciry Council. Page 15

07/12/2022 Item No.2.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 16

07/12/2022 Item No.2.



Folsom City Council
Staff R ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COIINCII, ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council appoint Environmental and Water Resources Development
Director Marcus Yasutake as the City of Folsom's primary representative, with Mayor Kerri Howell
and Utilities Section Manager Todd Eising serving as the altemate representatives to the Sacramento
Central Groundwater Authority (SCGA) Governing Board for four-year terms.

BACKGROUND / ISST]E

The City of Folsom was involved as a stakeholder in the Sacramento Area Water Forum and the
subsequent Water Forum Successor Effort. City staff participated in the development of the Central
Sacramento Groundwater Management Plan and recommendations as to how the basin would be
managed. In2006, the City Council authorized a newly updated Joint Powers Agreement between
the Cities of Elk Grove, Folsom, Sacramento and Rancho Cordova and the County of Sacramento
creating the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority. The SCGA's purpose is to implement
groundwater management policies embodied in the Groundwater Management Element and to
maintain the sustainable yield of the North Area Basin.

POLICY / RTJLE

Pursuant to the 2006 Joint Powers Agreement, the City of Folsom's representative on the SCGA's
Governing Board shall be appointed by the City Council and shall serve a four-year term.

1

MEETING DATE: 0711212022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Appointment of Representatives to the Sacramento Central
Groundwater Authority (SCGA) Governing Board

F'ROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 17

07/12/2022 Item No.3.



ANALYSIS

Continued participation on the SCGA Goveming Board will help ensure that the City of Folsom
remains an active participant in the groundwater planning efforts in the region. Environmental and

Water Resources Development Director Marcus Yasutake has served as the City of Folsom's primary
representative, with Mayor Kerri Howell and Utilities Section Manager Todd Eising serving as the
alternate representatives to the SCGA Governing Board.

Submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

2
Page 18

07/12/2022 Item No.3.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff requests that the Mayor appoint Ajit Natu (with approval from the City Council) to the

Folsom Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee to represent the Willow Springs

District for the term ending in December 2024.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 16.56 establishes the Landscaping and Lighting District
Advisory Committee (L&L Committee) and defines the Committee's purpose as helping to
enhance the line of communication between city staff and elected/appointed city bodies. The

citizens' committee may also make recommendations to the Landscaping and Lighting District
Manager, the Community Development Director and the Public Works Director concerning the

maintenance and associated costs to maintain and improve landscaping and lighting districts.

The Committee is comprised of one person from each landscaping and lighting district. The

members shall be registered voters and residents or owners within their respective landscaping

and lighting district and serve for a period of four years.

POLICY/ RULE

Folsom Municipal Code Section 16.56.030(8) states that the mayor shall appoint each of the

members, subject to the approval of the City Council.

1

MEETING DATE: 71t212022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Appointment of At-Large Member to the Folsom Landscaping
and Lighting District Advisory Committee to Represent the
Willow Springs District

FROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 19

07/12/2022 Item No.4.



ANALYSIS

The L&L Committee continues to have vacancies for certain districts, and staff maintains an

open recruitment for these vacancies. One application has recently been received for the Willow
Springs District vacant seat:

Staff has confirmed that the applicant's address is within the Willow Springs District and that the

applicant is a registered voter and they are therefore eligible to be appointed.

ATTACHMENT

Application from Aj it Natu

Respectfully submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

2 Page 20

07/12/2022 Item No.4.



. : ' '1",:'. i . :i -i ,1- i.1:1.11,

i .l:,tai.f ar r,ltr Pa

Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

Thankyou foryour interest in serving on a Folsom commission or committee.

BeforeYouBegin:
. Please read this form and instructions carefully.
. Complete all pages and sign the application.
. Applications remain active for six months after submittal.

Return completed applications to:
City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, CA gS6go

Applicant Information: (All information is required)

Name: Ajit Natu

Residence Address: Folsom, CA, 95630

Email: ajitnatu@gmail.com

Phone:

Employer and Occupation: lBM, Service

Currently Serving on a Commission/Committee? If yes, please specifr:

No

Folsom Residency / Registered Voter Verification: Commission and Committee members must be
residents and registered voters of Folsom.

Registered to vote? Indicate Yes / No Yes

Financial Disclosure / Ethics Training:

I understand that commission and committee members must file statements disclosing
financial information.

I understand that commission and committee members must complete ethics and
harassment training.

Indicate Yes / No:

Yes

Indicate Yes / No:

Yes

Truth and Accuracy: I certiff that the information contained on this form is true and accurate:

Signature Ajit D Natu Digitally signed by Ajit D Natu
Dale: 2O22.06.23 1 0: 1 9:36 -07'00' Date: 0612312022

Important Public Records fnformation: The city may receive requests from the public to review documents such as
this form and the city is obligated to release these public records, including all information contained on the form.

Updated January 2022
Page 1 of4

Page 21

07/12/2022 Item No.4.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Ajit Natu

Choice of Commissionor Committee:
(If you are interested in multiple commissions, please rank them numerically according to your preference)

Arts and Culture Commission

Historic District Commission"

Please identiff which seat you qualiff for:

representative who is actively involved with historic preservation
representative who is a resident of the Historic District
representativewho owns a business within the Sutter Street Subarea
Planning Commissioners
representative from a Historic District business outside the Sutter Street Subarea
architect, landscape architect, or other design professional with expertise in historic preservation

x Landscaping and Lighting DistrictAdvisory Committee"

Please advise which L&L District you live in:

Districtof Residence' Willow Springs Neighborhood

LibraryCommission

Parks and Recreation Commission

Planning Commission

Traffi c Safety Committee*

Please identifr which seat you qualifu for:

representative representing a wide cross section of interests
representative who has demonstrated an interest in or a concern for pedestrian and bicycle safety

Utility Commission

Other:

*Application Supplement Required:
Supplemental information is required for the Historic District Commission, Landscape and Lighting District Advisory
Committee, and the Traffic Safety Committee. These boards have special qualification requirements for certain seats.

Continueto nextpage

Page2 of 4

Page 22

07/12/2022 Item No.4.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Ajit Natu

fnformational Questions: (you must answer all four questions, for all commissions or committees you are applying
for):

r. Why do you want to serve on this commission or committee:

I am a Folsom Residence for last 15 years and I love Folsom. My goal is to help my city to be clean,
beautiful, and improve the living of its residence and also importantly be mindful about the cost
saving, unnecessary waste of energy and overall decor and functioning of the city, roads, road
lighting that help traffic. Optimum lighting of the roads reduces risk of accidents.
At the same time, the City and neighborhoods should be clean where residents look fonrvard to be on
the road, feel pleasant while driving and walking, especially when children are accompanied. We
teach children through our own action - and cleanliness, tidiness of roads is an indirect teaching.

z. What do you think is(are) the top issue(s) facing this commission or committee:

1. Optimum Road Lighting - When I go for a walk, agreed that City has taken lot of efforts to have
roads lighted but still we encounter sudden portion of a longer road section that is dark which could
be a risk to residents. lt may due to light bulb worn out, damaged or not in place. Sometimes, I do
observe that.
2. Adequate lighting and proper signals and stop signs, speed breakers help the traffic flow but more
importantly the safety of residents and reducing the accidents. I understand the analysis must be
done to evaluate if a STOP sign is needed or signal is needed or a speed breaker is needed but
depending on the traffic, location, it proves to be a safety and a good investment because even one
life saved is worth the expenses.
3. Landscaping is very important though not many people realize it. A broken sprinkler can waste lot
of water and can cause annoyance to the people who walk by. City workers may not be able to cover
every small area for such observation and this is where the Activist or volunteers help as they can
report such occurrences more easily and promptly. ln today's day and age where water is scarce and
fear of drought is around. such local help is advisable and it is a great initiative by City to name such
volunteers. Some residents have sprinklers every day, multiple times and over watering is done
which also can be reported back.

Continueto nextpage

Page 3 of4

Page 23

07/12/2022 Item No.4.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Ajit Natu

3. Briefly describe how your experiences qualifu you to serve on the commission or committee:

I am very active in social life; I have been involved in the local lndian Association of Sacramento (lAS)
for last 17 years and was its President and currently the Chairman, board of trustee. We serve the
local community, invite local civil leadership to our events and I have attended several city meetings
to see how the working is. Why I am saying this? To show that I am a concerned US citizen, a proud
Folsom resident who have been doing work in social arena and want to improve the living standards
of the locality. From time to time, I observe few items that I described above (such as lights not
adequate or sprinkler issues etc), and I always wanted to do something about it. With this position, I

will be able to be the medium to take the local issues to the city, I will be the 'can-do-it'for the local
neighborhood residents if they want to report any issues. I want to help them and the city. My
experience in social arena and also my mindset, character to help entities where we live will come in
handy and it does qualify me for this position.

4. Which commission or committee meetings have you attended?

I have attended several City consul meetings at the City Hall. I was/am impressed how Folsom city
consul works, very systematic, with all due diligence and mainly I enjoyed the question by citizens (l

think each Tuesday). One of the meeting had one issue discussed about the need for Signals on
Empire Ranch road. City had done such a thorough analysis, data-driven, accident records, money
required and so on due to which the city leaders were able to judge the issue not just qualitatively but
also quantitatively and take the decision based on real data. Today, when I drive on that road, I see
why it was important to have signals (people used to drive at crazy speeds before). Though this is one
example that has stuck in my mind but I enjoyed several such meetings. I attended such meetings out
of self interest and to be a responsible Folsomite!

END OFAPPLICATIONFORM

Return completed applications to:
City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 9563o

Page 4 of 4

Page 24

07/12/2022 Item No.4.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 10883 - A Resolution Electing
the Population and Inflation Factors and Establishing the FY 2022-23 Appropriations Limit.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Gann Spending Limitation Initiative (Article XIII B of the State Constitution) adopted as

Proposition 4 in June 1979 (and subsequently modified by Proposition 111 in June 1990),
requires the City to annually adopt a resolution setting an appropriations limit for the upcoming
fiscal year. The Gann Spending Limitation was intended to provide citizen control of
government spending and taxation.

The City Manager's Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operuting Budget and Capital Improvement Plan
(CP) was adopted by the City Council on June 14,2022.

POLICY / RULE

California Government Code. Section 7910 (a) "each year the governing body of each local
jurisdiction shall, by resolution, establish its appropriations limit and make other necessary
determinations for the following fiscal year pursuant to Article XIII B of the California
Constitution at aregularly scheduled meeting or noticed special meeting...."

1

MEETING DATE: 71t212022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10883 - A Resolution Electing the Population
and Inflation Factors and Establishing the Fiscal Year 2022-23
Appropriations Limit

FROM: Finance Department

Page 25

07/12/2022 Item No.5.



(-olifnmi a (-nncfifrrfinn A*1nlo XIIIB Qan 1 "The total annual appropriations subject to
limitation of the State and of each local government shall not exceed the appropriations limit
of the entity of government for the prior year adjusted for the change in the cost of living and
the change in population, except as otherwise provided in this article.

Folsom Municipal Code, Section 3.02.030. Budeet
"An Annual Budget shall be prepared by the City Manager, with the assistance of the Finance
Director. . . . (G) The City Council shall adopt the annual budget by Resolution by fund and
program by affirmative vote of at least three members, on or before the last working day of the
last month of the current fiscal year. If the City Council fails to adopt the budget by the last
working day of the current fiscal year, the budget as presented by the City Manager shall be

deemed adopted."

ANALYSIS

Information from the California Department of Finance regarding population and per capita
personal income has now been received and the calculation for the Gann Spending Limitation
is attached. The establishment of the 2022-23 Appropriations Limit ("Gann Limit") is
necessary to comply with Article XIIIB of the State Constitution. The Gann Limit limits the
amount of revenue classified as proceeds of taxes that can be appropriated in any fiscal year
by a government entity. Certain exclusions are allowed including transfers, capital outlay and
payments for debt service. The maximum allowable appropriation of revenues subject to
limitations for Fiscal Year 2022-23 is $123,204,502, and the FY 2022-23 Budget with the
exclusions, referenced above, is within this limit. This maximum amount increases or
decreases each year depending on the percentage change in the per capita personal income
(7.55%) and the percentage change in population (1.33%). The California Department of
Finance has estimated the total population for the City of Folsom as of January 1, 2022 .as

84,592, and after deducting prison population the estimated populationis79,758. The formula
for calculating the limits was based on the Fiscal Year 1978-79 "base year" revenues. For
Fiscal Year 2022-23 the budgeted revenues subject to limitation total $78,987,577, which is
$44,216,925 less than the maximum allowed.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10883 - A Resolution Electing the Population and Inflation Factors and
Establishing the FY 2022-23 Appropriations Limit

2. Gann Appropriations Limit for FY 2022-23

Submitted,

2

Tamagni, Finance Director/CFO

Page 26

07/12/2022 Item No.5.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 27

07/12/2022 Item No.5.



RESOLUTION NO. 10883

A RESOLUTION ELECTING THE POPULATION AND INFLATION FACTORS AND
ESTABLISHING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022.23 APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

WHEREAS, Section 3.02.030 of the Folsom Municipal Code states "An Annual Budget shall be

prepared by the City Manager, with the assistance of the Finance Director . . ."; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is required by Government code 7910 to establish its appropriations

limit by resolution and approve the appropriate inflation and population factors used in the calculation of
the limit; and

WIIERDAS, oh the l4th day of June 2022, the City Council approved the City Manager's Fiscal
Year 2022-23 Operating Budget and Capital Improvement Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Budget sets forth the "Proposition 4 Appropriations Limitation Schedule",

computed using the City population growth factor of 1.33%o and the California Per Capita personal income

change factor of 7 .55% as determined by the State of California, Department of Finance, for the Fiscal Year
2022-23 of the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, the documentation used in the determination of the appropriations limit has been

available to the public in the City Clerk's Office for fifteen days prior to the meeting; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom's appropriations limit for the fiscal year 2022-23 shall be

$123,204,502.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom that the

Gann Appropriations Limit is approved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of July 2022,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN
ABSENT:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10883

Page I of I
Page 28

07/12/2022 Item No.5.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 29

07/12/2022 Item No.5.



RESOURGES

PROCEEDS OF TA)GS
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Special Taxes
State Subrcntions
Franchise Taxes
Business Licenses

$ 36,050,672
27,900,289
4,200,000
9,116,898

722,OOO

801,850

APPROPRIATIONS

SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS:

$ 78,791,709

195,868

NOT SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS:

TOTAL PROCEEDS OF TA)GS

lnterest lncome

TOTAL SUBJECTTO LIMITATIONS $ 78,987,577 $ 78,987,577

$ 78,791,7O9

195,868

NON-PROCEEDS OF TA)GS

$ 2,982,587

13,724,606
29,048,244
52,475,276
21,680,299
18,514,259

TOTAL NON.PROCEEDS OF ALL
TA)GS 138,425,271 138,425,271

$217,412,848TOTAL ALL RESOURCES g 217, 412,U8

Maximum allowable appropriation subject to limitations 2022-2023 fiscal year

Less: Total appropriation subject to limitation lor 2022-2O23 fiscal year

BALANCE UNDER ARTICLE XIIB LIMlr

General Fund not financed
with proceeds of taxes
Special Rerenue Funds
Capital Project Funds
Enterprise Funds
lnternal Service Funds
Trust Funds
Miscellaneous General Funds

$123,204,502
(78,987,577\

44,216,925$

Page 30

07/12/2022 Item No.5.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Staff recommends that the City Council approve Resolution No. 10886 - A Resolution
Rescinding Resolution No. 10860 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a
Construction Agreement with Cooper Oates Air Conditioning for the Folsom City Hall
Boiler and HVAC Replacement Design-Build Project.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
On May 24,2022, the City Council approved Resolution No. 10860, which authorized the
City Manager to execute a construction agreement with Cooper Oats Air Conditioning
(COAC) for the Folsom City Hall Boiler and HVAC Replacement Design-Build Project.
Due to a discrepancy, the bidders were not specifically notified that the contract was being
considered for award by the City Council at its meeting on May 24,2022.

POLICY / RULE
In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code, City Council approval is
required for contracts in excess of $66,141.

In accordance with Section 2.18 of the City of Folsom's Standard Construction
Specifications and as stated in the Request for Proposals on this project, all bidders must be
provided with notice of the date and time of the City Council meeting at which the award of
the contract for the project will be considered. All bidders must be provided with an

I

MEETING DATE: 7n212022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10886 - A Resolution Rescinding Resolution
No. 10860 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute a Construction Agreement with Cooper Oates Air
Conditioning for the Folsom City Hall Boiler and HVAC
Replacement Design-Build Proj ect

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 31

07/12/2022 Item No.6.



opportunity to bring to the City Council's attention disputes and/or protests regarding the

bidding process.

ANALYSIS
In order to address the discrepancy in notiffing all bidders about the date and time of the City
Council meeting at which the award of the contract for this project was considered, it is
necessary to rescind Resolution No. 10860 at this time. Staff will bring this item back to

the City Council at its regular meeting on July 26,2022, for consideration of the award of
the contract for this project after providing proper notice of that meeting to all bidders.

On June 20,2022, COAC was notified in writing that the City suspended the award of the

contract pending further action by the City Council.

Also on June 20, 2022, all bidders were notified that the Council will consider award of the

contract on July 26,2022.

On June 27,2022, a bid protest was received on this project. Any protesting bidder will be

given the opportunity to bring its disputes and protests to the City Council for consideration

on July 26,2022.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
There is no financial impact on the general fund.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
This action by the City Council is exempt from environmental review pursuant to Section

15061(b)(3) (Review for Exemption) of the California Environmental Quality Act.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution No. 10886 - A Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 10860 - A Resolution

Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with Cooper Oates

Air Conditioning for the Folsom City Hall Boiler and HVAC Replacement Design-Build
Project

2. Resolution No. 10860 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Contract with Cooper Oates Air Conditioning, Inc. for the Folsom City Hall Boiler and

HVAC Replacement Design-Build Proj ect

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione, Director
Parks & Recreation Department

2 Page 32

07/12/2022 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 33

07/12/2022 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. 10886

A RESOLUTION RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 108600 A RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION

AGREEMENT WITH COOPER OATES AIR CONDITIONING FOR THE F'OLSOM
CITY HALL BOILER AND HVAC REPLACEMENT DESIGN.BUILD PROJECT

WHEREAS, on May 24, 2022, the City Council approved Resolution No 10860 - A
Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with Cooper Oates

Air Conditioning for the Folsom City Hall Boiler and HVAC Replacement Design-Build Project;

and

WHEREAS, due to a discrepmcy, the bidders were not specifically notified that the

contract was being considered for award by the City Council at its meeting on May 24,2022; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2.18 of the City of Folsom's Standard

Construction Specifications and the Request for Proposals on this project, all bidders must be

provided an opportunity to bring to the City Council's attention disputes and/or protests regarding

the bidding process.

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

that Resolution No. 10860 is hereby rescinded in its entirety.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of July 2022, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10886
Page I of I Page 34

07/12/2022 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 35

07/12/2022 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. TOE6O

A RESOLUTION AUTIIORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONTRACT WITH COOPER OATES AIR CONDITIONING, INC. FOR THE FOLSOM

CITY HALL BOILER AND HVAC REPLACEMENT DESIGN-BUILD PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has validated the need to replace the existing HVAC,

Boiler, and HVAC control systems that have reached the end of their useful life; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom HVAC and Boiler Replacement Project will not add any

new or significant adverse rmpacts and is therefore exempt under Article 19 Section 1500.1 of
the Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and

WHEREAS' this project was publicly advertised on April 14, 2022, and the bids were

received on May 3,2022,withCooper Oates Air Conditioning,Inc. being the lowest responsive

and responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, funds were budgeted in Fiscal Year 2021-22, withfunds received from the

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) for this project and are currently available; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RXSOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes:
1. The City Manager to execute a contract in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, in

the amount of $947,825 with Cooper Oates Air Conditioning, Inc. for the City Hall

HVAC and Boiler Replacement Project.

2. The City Manager, or designee, to approve project change orders not-to-exceed

$142,173 for work associated with unanticipated HVAC infrastructure or structural

conditions. The total project budget will be for a not to exceed amount of $1,089,998.;

pASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of May 2022,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Chalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Howell

None

None

None

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Resolution No, 10860
Page I of I

Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Page 36

07/12/2022 Item No.6.



Folsom Clty Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Fire Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10888

- A Resolution Acknowledging Receipt of Completed Annual State Mandated Fire Inspections.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Existing law (CA Health & Safety Code $ 13146.3) requires the Chief of Folsom Fire

Department and/or their authorized representatives to inspect every building used as a public

or private school within the City of Folsom not less than once each year, for the purpose of
enforcing Califomia fire code building standards.

Existing law (CA Health & Safety Code $ 13146.2) requires the City of Folsom Fire

Department to annually inspect certain structures, including hotels, motels, lodging houses,

and apartment houses, for compliance with fire code building standards.

Senate Bill 1205 requires that the mandated annual inspections be reported to the

"administering authority" (City of Folsom City Council).

POLICY / RULE

Section 13146.4 has been added to the California Health & Safety Code requiring the City of
Folsom Fire Department to report its compliance with Sections 13146.2 and 13146.3 annually

to the City Council.

I

MEETING DATE: 711212022

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10888 - A Resolution Acknowledging Receipt of
Completed Annual State Mandated Fire Inspections

FROM: Fire Department

ANALYSIS

Page 37

07/12/2022 Item No.7.



Fire Department prevention Division has completed all initial inspections pursuant to Sections

Bl46.t and 13146.3 of the California Health and Safety Code as outlined in Auachment2.

Those occupancies found to be in violation of the Folsom Fire Code have either made the

necessary corrections or are in the process of correcting applicable Fire Code violations; re-

inspections will continue until all Fire Code violations are corrected.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is nominal fiscal impact as fire prevention staff are required, through state mandates, to

inspect the specified buildings as described.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is not considered a project under Section 15061(b)(3) of the California

Environmental Quality Act Guidelines, and as such is exempt from environmental review.

ATTACHMENTS

l. ResolutionNo. 10888 - A Resolution Acknowledging Receipt of Completed Annual State

Mandated Fire Inspections

2. Completed State Mandated Inspections List

Submitted,

Ken Cusano, Fire Chief

2 Page 38

07/12/2022 Item No.7.



Attachment I

Resolution No. 10888 - A Resolution Acknowledging Receipt of Completed Annual State

Mandated Fire InsPections

Page 39

07/12/2022 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10888

A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF COMPLETED ANNUAL STATE
MANDATED FIRE INSPECTIONS

WHEREAS, CA Health & Safety Code $ 13146.3 requires the Chief of Folsom Fire

Department and/or their authorized representatives to inspect every building used as a public or

private school within the City of Folsom not less than once each year, for the purpose of enforcing

California fire code building standards; and

WHEREAS, CA Health & Safety Code $ 13146.2 requires the City of Folsom Fire

Department to annually inspect certain structures, including hotels, motels, lodging houses, and

apartment houses, for compliance with fire code building standards; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Senate Bill 1205, Section 13146.4 of the Health & Safety Code

requires the City of Folsom Fire Department to report its compliance with Sections 13146'2 and

13146.3 annually to the City Council; and

WHEREAS, City of Folsom Fire Department Prevention Division completed all State

mandated fire inspections including hotels, motels, lodging houses, apartment houses, and public

or private schools; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom Fire Department annual report of compliance with
inspection requirements is submitted to City Council,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council acknowledges receipt

of this report from the Fire Chief.

pASSED AND ADOPTED this 12ft day of July 2022,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Kerri M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10888
Page I ofl Page 40

07/12/2022 Item No.7.



Attachment 2

Completed State Mandated Inspections List

Page 41

07/12/2022 Item No.7.



FOLSOM FIRE
DEPARTMENT

535 Glenn Drive.Folsom, CA 95630
Office (gt6) +6t-6goo Fax (g16) 984-7o8r CITY OF

rtr()rLsc)N4t

Completed State Mandated Inspections List:

RESIDENTIAL FACILITIES :

Business Name: Address

Lake Natoma Inn 7oz Gold Lake Dr.
Hilton Garden Inn 221Iron Point Rd.

CourWardby Marriott z575hon Point Rd.

Staybridge Suites rz4s Cavitt Dr
Larkspur Landing tzr Iron Point Rd.

Hampton Inn and Suites rss Placerville Rd.

Folsom Hotel 7o3 Sutter St.

Fairfield Inn and Suites rzss Cavitt Dr.
Residence Inn 2555 Iron Point Rd.

Folsom Care Center sro Mill St.

Empire Ranch Alzheimer's S Care rSor E Natoma St.

Oakmont of Folsom 1574 Creekside Dr.
Prairie City Landing 6+s Willard Dr.
Brookdale Folsom 7Bo Harrington Wy.
Park Folsom zss Wales Dr
Creekside Oaks r7r5 Creekside Dr.
Falls at Willow Creek rBTo Creekside Dr
Folsom Ranch Apartments looo Folsom Ranch Rd.

Forestwood Apartments g48S Greenback Ln
Regan Trust Apartments 27o Montrose Dr.
Iron Point at Prairie Oaks Apartments tsso Iron Point Rd.

Dabkoski Apartments z6z Montrose Dr.
Montrose Apartments 264 Montrose Dr
Montrose Apartments 268 Montrose Dr.
Montrose Apartments 266 Montrose Dr.
Garrett Apartments 272Montrose Dr.
Overlook at Blue Ravine 12oo Creekside Dr
Preserve at Blue Ravine roo5 Blue Ravine Rd.

Talisman Apartment Building zoo Talisman Dr
Talisman B zoz Talisman Dr.
Talisman Apartment Building zo4 Talisman Dr.
Talisman Apartment Building zo5 Talismian Dr.

Page 42

07/12/2022 Item No.7.



FOLSOM FIRE
DEPARTMENT

bg5 Glenn Drive.Folsom, CA 95630
Office (gt6) 46t-6goo Fax (916) 984-7o8t CITY OF

rtrOrLs(0N4I

Talisman Apartment Building zo3 Talisman Dr.
Talisman Apartment Building zor Talisman Dr
Talisman Apartment Building zo7 Talisman Dr.
Talisman Apartment Building zo9 Talisman Dr.
Talisman Apartment Building zrr Talisman Dr.
Sherwood Apartments 23oo Iron Point Rd.

Willow Springs Apartments z5o McAdoo Dr.
Legends at Willow Creek r8o S. Lexington Dr.
Canyon Terrace Apartments 16oo Canyon Terrace Ln.
The Park on RileyApartments gg Cable Cir
Waterford Place 24o Natoma Station Dr.
Fairmont Apartments 2oo S. Lexington Dr.
rzrz Bidwell Apartments rzrz Bidwell St.

Bidwell Apartments 7o5 Bidwell St.

Bidwell Apartments zoz Bidwell St.

Bidwell Apartments 7o9 Bidwell St.

Court Yard Apartments 4rz Figueroa St.

Folsom Garden Apartments 7g Stafford St.

Folsom Oaks Apartments Bog Bidwell St.

Garrett Apartments Building 272Montrose Dr.
Gas Light Apartments Sr Dean Way
Marshal Apartments 6rz Stafford St.

Mercy Villaee Apartments 1110 DuchowWay
Mercy Village Apartments rr3o DuchowWay
Mercy Village Apartments 116o DuchowWay
Lake Point Apartments 7550 FolsomAuburn Rd.

Natoma Arms Apartments ror Natoma St
Raintree Apartments looo Sibley St.

Montecito Commons 67oo OakAve.
Hub Apartments szs Willard Dr.
Bidwell Point Apartments rz5 E. Bidwell St.

Talavera Ridge Apartments 1S5o Broadstone Pkvry.

Pique at Iron Point lol Pique Loop.
Granite CiWApartments rrso Sibley Street
Creekview Manor rTzo Creekside Drive
Vintage Willow Creek rTor Creekside Drive

Page 43

07/12/2022 Item No.7.



FOLSOM FIRE
DEPARTMENT

S3b Glenn Drive.Folsom, CA 95630
Office (g16) +6r-6goo Fax (916) 984-7o8t

]F0)]LS(0N4T
ctlY or

DISTINCTIVE AY NATURE

SCHOOLS:

School Name: Address

HOSPITALS:

Hospital Name:

Mercy Folsom Hospital r6so Creekside Dr.
Vibra 3oo Montrose Dr.

Address:

DETENTION FACILITIES:

Detention Facility Name: Address:

Blanche Sprentz z4g Flower Dr
Carl Sundahl ggs2lnwood Rd.

Empire Oaks r83o Bonhill Dr.
Folsom Hills ro6 Manseau Dr
Gold Ridee 735 Halidon Way
Natoma Station Soo Turn Pike

Oak Chan lol Prewett Dr.
Russell Ranch g7lDry Creek Rd

Sandra J Gallardo zzs Russi Rd.

Theodore Judah 1o1 Dean Way
Folsom Middle Soo Blue Ravine Way

Sutter Middle 7r5 Riley St.

Folsom High 1655 Iron Point Rd.

Vista del Lago rg7oBroadstone Pk *y.
St. John Notre Dame 3o9 Montrose Dr.

46 Natoma St.Folsom Police

Page 44

07/12/2022 Item No.7.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 7n212022

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10887 - A Resolution Approving the Final
Engineer's Report for the following Landscaping and Lighting
Districts for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 American River Canyon North,
American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon
North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs
Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3,

Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge IllReflections II, Folsom
Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma
Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks
Ranch, Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates,

Silverbrook, Steeplechase, The Residences at American River
Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon II, Willow
Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates EastNo. 2, Willow Creek
Estates South, and Willow Springs.

F'ROM: Parks and Recreation Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council adopt Resolution No. 10887 - A Resolution Approving the
Final Engineer's Report for the following Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year
2022-2023 American River Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2, American
River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch,
Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge
IllReflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma
Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks Ranch
No. 2, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, The Residences at American
River Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow
Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Page 45

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



On May 10,2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 10844 - Resolution No. 10844 - A
Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer's Report for the following Landscaping and

Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 and Setting Public Hearing for American River
Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue
Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone
Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge IllReflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights
No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley,
Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook,
Steeplechase, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at American River
Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates

South, and Willow Springs. The Engineer's Report for the City of Folsom Landscaping and

Lighting (L&L) Districts addresses the annual assessment for each of the City's 30 existing
Landscaping and Lighting Districts.

As was the case in Fiscal Year 2021-2022, Natoma Station-Union Square L&L will not be

assessed for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 since the Homeowners' Association has elected to cover
maintenance costs at this time. In addition, Silverbrook L&L is receiving a credit as was the case

last year due to available funds in the fund balance.

POLICY / RULE

Pursuant to Streets and Highways Code Section 22586, an annual Engineer's Report shall be

filed with the City Clerk. The City Council is also required to adopt a resolution confirming the
diagram and assessment pursuant to Section 22631of the Streets and Highway Code.

ANALYSIS

The Preliminary Engineer's Report approved by Resolution No. 10844 described the
maintenance and servicing to be performed in the City's 30 Landscaping and Lighting Districts
for Fiscal Year 2022-2023. The establishment of annual assessments for each of the L&L
Districts requires a resolution confirming the diagram and assessment. The Engineer's Report is
in compliance with the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972; including but not limited to
Sections 22565 et seq (preparing a report that complies with the article); and Sections22660 and
22662 (regarding annual installments procedures/process). Budgetary adjustments were made

between the Preliminary and Final Engineers Report as a result of increased scheduled landscape

maintenance costs stemming from negotiations of a new landscape maintenance contract.

Assessment to Properties

Assessments to properties within each district are the same as FY 202I-22, with the exception of
two districts; Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, and Broadstone 4, both of which had CPI's
incorporated into the district when they were formed. Willow Creek Estates East No. 2has 3

zones, zones A & B have an increase of $3.98 from $99.53 last year to $103.51 this year. Zone C
has an increase of $3 .66 over last year bringing their rate from $91 .49 last year to $95. 1 5 this
year. Broadstone 4 has 4 zones, zone A has an increase of $1.17 this year from $38.81 last year
to $39.98 this year. ZoneB has an increase of $1.10 over last years rate and increased from 36.96
last year to 38.06 this year. Zone C has an increase of $1.10 over last years rate and increased
from $36.42 to $37 .52. Zone D had an increase of $1.06 this year and increased from $35.74 last
year to $36.80 this year. There are another ten districts that have escalators and are eligible for
CPI increases that will not be utilized this year as they have an ample fund balance and do not
need to capture the CPI. Those districts are American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine

Page 46

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Oaks No. 2, Broadstone 3, Cobble Ridge, Folsom Heights No.2, Natoma Valley, Prospect Ridge,

The Residences, The Residences II, and Sierra Estates.

Installment Summarv

The installment summaries describe short-term installments collected pursuant to Section 22660

of the Streets and Highways Code to meet the districts' future repair and replacement needs

anticipated to occur within an approximate five-year time frame, as well as long-term
installments collected to meet those future needs anticipated to occur within 5 to 3O-year time
frames.

Comparison to Last Year

District budgets for this upcoming year will continue focusing on improvements and restorations

that enhance each district's commitment to water conservation, prolonging assets life, drought
tolerant landscaping improvements, fire safety, and tree stewardship. As such, some districts will
be retrofitting and centralizing inigation controllers, inventorying street trees, changing out plant
materials to water wise varietals, and converting over to LED Streetlights. Many of the City's
districts are over 20 years old and do not have escalators built into their rates to track with cost-

of-living increases and economic changes. As such, districts being monitored for future outreach
regarding a new assessment overlay district are Briggs Ranch (31 years old), Hannaford Cross

(31 years old), and Cobble Ridge II / Reflections II (28 years old). Lastly the City started the first
stages of outreach for an increase in Natoma Station in the 202I-22 Fiscal Year, and will
continue in the 2022-2023 Fiscal Years.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

Each Landscaping and Lighting District levies and collects funds to cover operating and

maintenance costs. There is no fiscal impact to the City of Folsom General Fund. Below is a

sunmary of the proposed assessments for FY 2022-23. There are twenty-eight (28) districts in
which the assessments remain the same, two (2) districts with increased assessments, and two (2)

districts that are being removed from the tax roll (Union Square because it has an HOA that
manages the landscape areas and Silverbrook because there is capacity in the fund balance).

District
Annual

Assessment
per unit

Credit
or increase*

Annual
Net

Assessment

American River Canyon North s102.94 0 $r02.94
$77.70

$269.86

$2r8.60
13.26

8122.28
164.99

$28.07

$39.98
$38.06

American fuver Canyon North
No.2

$77.70 0

American River Canyon North
No.3

$269.86 0

Blue Ravine Oaks $218.60 0

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2 $213.26 0

Briess Ranch $122.28 0

Broadstone $164.99 0

Broadstone Unit No. 3 $28.07 0

Broadstone No. 4
o Zone A
o ZoneB

$3 8.81

$36.96
$1.17*
$ 1.10*

Page 47

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



. Zone C

. ZoneD
$36.42
$3s.74

$ l.l0*
$ 1.06*

$37.s2
$36.80

Cobble Ridee $139.64 0 s139.64
Cobble Hills Ridge
IllReflections II

$113.14 0 $113.14

Folsom Heiehts $70.88 0 $70.88

Folsom Heights No. 2*
o California Hills
o Folsom Heights No. 2

(Enclave)

$196.42

$208.38

0

0

9196.42

s208.38

Hannaford Cross $195.78 0 $19s.78
Lake Natoma Shores $ 183.s 8 0 $183.58

Los Cerros $ 12 r.18 0 $12r.18
Natoma Station

o Natoma Station
o Union Square

$91.71
$228.88

0
(taking off tax roll)

$91.71
$0.00

Natoma Valley $8s6.37 0 $8s6.37
Prairie Oaks Ranch $2t3.61 0 $213.6r
Prosnect Ridee $1,173.86 0 s 1.173.86

The Residences at ARC
r The Residences at ARC
r The Residences at ARC

II

$s36.67

$1,169.97

0

0

ss36.67

$1,169.97

Sierra Estates $363.68 0 $363.68
Silverbrook $138.32 (takins off tax roll) 0.00

Steeplechase $157.68 0 $157.68
Willow Creek Estates East $80.40 0 $80.40

Willow Creek Estates East No. 2
o ZoneA
o ZoneB
o ZoneC

$99.53
$99.53
$91.49

s3.98*
$3.98*
$3.66*

$ 103.s r
$103.s 1

$95.1 s

Willow Creek Estates South s109.88 0 $r09.88
Willow Sorines $28. l4 0 s28. l4

PursuanttotheapprovedResolutionNo. 10873-4ResolutionAuthorizingtheCityManagerto
Execute an Agreement with BrightView Landscape Services for Landscaping and Lighting
Districts, Community Facilities Districts and Folsom Plan Area Landscapes for the City of
Folsom and Appropriation of Funds, this Final Engineer's Report is re-allocating funds within 21

districts/CFD's as noted in the table below. The assessments shown above do not change. The
funds were derived from fund balances in the district or from other budgeted areas within that
district with the capacity to fund the additional maintenance costs as showr below. The
following district's scheduled maintenance line items will be adjusted by the amounts shown
below. This adjustment is also included within each district's budget as shown in the attached

Final Engineer's Report.

Page 48

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



District Fund Number (s)
New Schedlued

Maintenance Budget

Estimated Scheduled
Maintenance Budsets

New Allocation
Prior Total District

Budget

New Total District
Budset

ARC North #2 267 s 105,094.58 s s6,500.00 S 48.s94.s8 s 48,s94.58

Blue Ravine Oaks 278 s 22,080.06 s 17.500.00 s 4,s80.06 S 19,397.00 s 23,977.06

Broadstone #3 266 S 390,ss5.61 s 22s,000.00 s 16s,555.61 S L,244,24o.0o s 1.409.795.61

Broadstone 1,2 270 s 29L.404.LO s 180,000.00 S 111.404.10 s 255.161.00 s 366,s5s.10

Cobble Hills Ridee ll 2t4 s 25,2t8.38 s 20.000.00 s s.218.38 S 54.046.00 S 59.264.38

Natoma Station 207 s L9t,443.36 s 9s,000.00 S 6.443.36 s 24t,174.OO S 247,6L7.36

Willow Creek Estates South 252 s 76.442.54 s 2s,000.00 S sL,442.s4 s 255.790.00 s 318.232.54

Willow Sprinss 262 s 89,488.L7 s 58.0s0.00 s 21.438.t7 S 177.750.00 S 199.188.17

Brisss Ranch 205 s 66,042.95 s 4s.000.00 S 2r.042.9s S Lo2,6L2.oo S 123,654.9s

Cobble Ridee 234 s 8.186.67 s 7,s00.00 5 oao.oz S 17,s92.00 s 18.278.67

Folsom Plan Area- (CFD 18) 288 s 304.082.rL s 300,000.00 S 4.082.11 s 901.369.00 s 905.451.11

Hannaford Cross 2L2 s t6,96L.76 s 11.500.00 S s.461.76 S 28.438.00 s 33,899.76

[ake Natoma Shores/Preserve 2t3 s t7,637.84 s 7,000.00 S 10,637.84 S 23,173.00 s 33.810.84

Los Cerros 204 s 27,64r.70 s 26,500.00 S r.r4r.7o s 91.632.00 s 92.773.70

Natoma Vallev/The Knolls 232 s 39,8s5.36 s 39,000.00 S 8s6.36 s 57.500.00 S 58,3s6.36

Prosoect Ridse 285 s 14,669.94 s 8.000.00 S 6.669.94 s 27,769.00 S 34,438.94

Sierra Estates 23r s L532.70 s 4,s00.00 S 4.o32.7o S 17.44s.00 s 21.477.70

Silverbrook 237 s 6,380.44 s 3,1s5,00 S ?.22s.44 s 10.770.00 s 13.995.44

Steeplechase 25L s 14300.28 s 14.000.00 s 300.28 S 46.366.00 s 46.666.28

The Residences at ARC/ ARC 2 27L s 14,905.05 s 14.000.00 S 9os.o6 S 31,866.00 S 32,77r.06

Willow Creek Estates East 284 s 55.830.68 s ss,000.00 S sso.ss s 28.481.00 s 29.311.58

Total: S 474.sso.28 s 3.643.571.00 S 4.LL8.t2t.28

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to activities that will not
result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment (CEQA
Guidelines $15061(bX3). The Ferguson Group's contract work scope does not include the
potential for a significant environmental effect, and therefore is not subject to CEQA.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10887 - A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer's Report for the

following Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 American River
Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon North No.
3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, BroadstoneNo.
4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge IllReflections II, Folsom

Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros,

Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2, Prospect

Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, The Residences at American River
Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow
Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs

2. Final Engineer's Report - The City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts, June

2022

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione, Parks & Recreation Director

Page 49

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. I 0887{'. {"'*

Page 50

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10887

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL ENGINEER'S REPORT FOR THE
FOLLOWING LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICTS FOR FISCAL YEAR
2022.2023 AMERICAN RIVER CANYON NORTH, AMERICAN RIVER CANYON

NORTH NO.2, AMERICAN RIVER CANYON NORTH NO. 3, BLUE RAVINE OAKS,
BLUE RAVINE OAKS NO.2, BRTGGS RANCH' BROADSTONE' BROADSTONE NO.

4, BROADSTONE UNIT NO.3, COBBLE RIDGEO COBBLE HILLS RIDGE
IIIREFLECTIONS IIo FOLSOM HETGHTS, FOLSOM HEIGHTS NO. 2, HANNAFORD
cRosso LAKE NATOMA SHORES, LOS CERROS, NATOMA STATION' NATOMA

VALLEY, PRAIRIE OAKS RANCH, PRAIRIE OAKS RANCH NO. 2, PROSPECT
RIDGE, SIERRA ESTATES, SILVERBROOK, STEEPLECHASE, THE RESIDENCES

AT AMERICAN RIVER CANYONO THE RESIDENCES AT AMERICAN RIVER
CANYON II, WILLOW CREEK ESTATES EAST, WILLOW CREEK ESTATES EAST

NO.2, WILLOW CREEK ESTATES SOUTH, AND WILLOW SPRTNGS

WHEREAS, On May 10, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 10844 - Resolution
No. 10844 - A Resolution Approving the Preliminary Engineer's Report for the following
Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 and Setting Public Hearing for
American River Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon
North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone

No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge lllReflections II, Folsom
Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma
Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks RanchNo. 2, Prospect Ridge, Siena
Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences

at American River Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2,

Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs; and

WHEREAS, on June 28,2022, City Council approved Resolution No. 10873-4 Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Brightview Landscape Services for
Landscaping and Lighting Districts, Community Facilities Districts, and Folsom Plan Area
Landscapes for the City of Folsom and Appropriation of Funds. This Resolution appropriated
funds to twenty-one (21) districts to reflect contract costs for scheduled maintenance received in
the new bid process that occurred subsequent to the approval of the Preliminary Engineer's
Report on May 10,2022. The assessments will not change as a result of this appropriation. The

adjusted amounts are included in this staff report and this Final Engineer's Report; and

WHEREAS, July 12,2022 at 6:30 p.m. is the day and time set for hearing objections to the
levying of said assessments as identified in Exhibit A attached to this resolution; and

WHEREAS, the Final Engineer's Report for the Assessment Districts has been made, filed with
the City Clerk and considered by the City Council and is deemed sufficient and approved. The
Final Engineer's Report shall stand as the Engineer's Report for all subsequent proceedings

Resolution No. 10887
Page I of4

Page 51

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



under and pursuant to this resolution, Section 22500, et. seq,, of the California Streets and

Highways Code and Article XIIID of the California Constitution.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

The City Council finds that the Final Engineer's Report for the Landscaping and Lighting Districts
is in full compliance with the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 and, based on said Report,

adopts and approves the following actions:

1. Approve as submitted, the Final Engineer's Report filed with this City Clerk for the

City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2022-2023.

Confirm and approve the diagrams and assessments as set forth in the City of Folsom

Landscaping and Lighting Districts Final Engineer's Report for Fiscal Y ear 2022-2023 .

Continue to order the levy of assessments as set forth in the City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts Final Engineer' s Report for Fiscal Y ear 2022-2023 .

Order the maintenance and servicing of improvements as set forth in the City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts Final Engineer's Report for Fiscal Year 2022-2023.

Declare that the assessments set forth in the Final Engineer's Report now constitute
liens upon the lots or parcels of land described in said report.

Direct the City Clerk to file a certified copy of said diagrams and assessments with the

Auditor of Sacramento County no later than the third Monday in August2022.

Request that the Auditor of Sacramento County enter on the Sacramento County
Assessment Roll the assessment for each lot or parcel of land in the amount indicated

in the Final Engineer's Report.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12ft day of July 2022by the following vote:

AYES: Councilmembers:

NOES: Councilmembers:

ABSENT: Councilmembers:

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:

Resolution No. 10887
Page 2 of 4

2

-f

4

5

6

7

Page 52

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Kerri M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10887
Page 3 of4

Page 53

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Exhibit A
oF RESOLUTION No. 'sr(t(,t*10887

CITY OF FOLSOM
LANDSCPAING AND LIGHTING DISTRICTS

F'ISCAL YEAR 2022.2023

Annual
Assessment
per unit

Annual
District Credit

or increase*
Net

Assessment

American River Canyon North $102.94 0 $r02.94
American River Canyon North
No.2

s77.70 0 $77.70

American River Canyon North
No.3

$269.86 0 $269.86

Blue Ravine Oaks s2r8.60 0 $218.60

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2 92t3.26 0 $213.26

Briess Ranch st22.28 0 $122.28

Broadstone $164.99 0 $164.99

Broadstone Unit No. 3 s28.07 0 $28.07

Broadstone No. 4
o Zone A
o ZoneB
o Zone C
c ZoneD

$3 8.81

$36.96
$36.42
$3s.74

$ 1.17*
$ l. l0x
$ 1. l0x
$1.06*

$39.98
$38.06
$37.s2
$36.80

Cobble Ridee s139.64 0 $139.64

Cobble Hills Ridge
IllReflections II

sr r3.14 0 $l 13.14

Folsom Heiehts $70.88 0 $70.88

Folsom Heights No. 2*
o California Hills
o Folsom Heights No. 2

(Enclave)

$196.42

$208.38

0

0

$196.42

$208.38

Hannaford Cross $19s.78 0 $19s.78

Lake Natoma Shores s183.s8 0 $ 183.58

Los Cerros $121. r 8 0 $121.18

Natoma Station
o Natoma Station
r Union Square

$91.71
$228.88

0
(taking off tax roll)

$91.71
$0.00

Natoma Valley $8s6.37 0 $856.37

Prairie Oaks Ranch $213.61 0 s2r3.6t
Prospect Ridge s1.173.86 0 $1,r73.86
The Residences at ARC

o The Residences at ARC
o The Residences at ARC

II

$536.67

$1,169.97

0

0

ss36.6',7

$1,169.97

Sierra Estates $363.68 0 $363.68

Silverbrook $r38.32 (takine off tax roll) 0.00

Steeplechase $1s7.68 0 $1s7.68

Willow Creek Estates East $80.40 0 $80.40

Resolution No. 10887
Page 4 of 4

Page 54

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Willow Creek Estates East No. 2
o Zone A
c ZoneB
o ZoneC

$99.s3
$99.53
$91.49

s3.98*
$3.98*
$3.66*

$r03.s1
$r03.sl
$9s. ls

Willow Creek Estates South s109.88 0 $109.88

Willow Sprinss $28.14 0 $28.14

ResolutionNo. 10887
Page 5 of4

Page 55

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 2

Final Engineeros Report

Page 56

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



FY 2422-23 EIUGINEER's RTPoRT

City of Folsom

La ndsca ping a nd Lighting Assessment Districts

July 2022
Fina I Report

Engineer of Work

SClConsultingGroup
Public Financ€ Consulting Services

47 4l: Ma n gels Bculeva rd

Farrf ield, California 94534
707.430.4300

wwr,v,sci-cg.con1
Page 57

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



(This Page lntentionally Left Blank)

Page 58

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page i

City of Folsom

City Council
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor

Sarah Aquino, Member

YK Chalamcherla, Member

Mike Koslowski, Member

City Manager
Elaine Andersen, City Manager

City Attorney
Steve Wang, City Attorney

Folsom Parks & Recreation Director
Lorraine Poggione

Municipal Landscape Services Manager
Tachary Perras

Engineer of Work
SCI Consulting Group

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 59

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page ii

Table of Contents

Overview........

Legal Analysis.

Plans & Specification.......

Estimate of Cost and Budget

Description of lmprovements....

Budgets....

Method of Apportionment.......

Discussion of Benefit

General versus Special Benefit

Method of Assessment...............

Assessment Apportionment.......

Assessment .........,......

Assessment Diagram

Appendix A - Budgets.......

Category Descriptions

lmprovement Costs

Current Year lmprovement Projects

Appendix B - Assessment Roll, FY 2022-2?

1

t
3

7

8

8

3

..........47

50

51

.........,....51

.............. 51

.............. 52

. tL4

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 60

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 1

lntrod uction

Overview

The City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts (the "Districts") provides funding for the

installation, maintenance and servicing of landscaping, sidewalks, fences, walls, parks, open

space, signage, soundwalls, street lighting, and other public improvements in the City of Folsom.

Thirty such districts exist as follows:

American River Canyon North

American River Canyon North No. 2

American River Canyon North No. 3

Blue Ravine Oaks

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2

Briggs Ranch

Broadstone

Broadstone Unit No.3

Broadstone No.4

Cobble Ridge

Cobble Hills Ridge lllReflections ll

Folsom Heights

Folsom Heights No. 2

Hannaford Cross

Lake Natoma Shores

Los Cerros

Natoma Station (lncluding Union Square Annexation)

Natoma Valley (Formerly Lakeridge Estates)

Prairie Oaks Ranch

Prairie Oaks Ranch No, 2

Prospect Ridge

Sierra Estates

Silverbrook

The Residences at American River Canyon

The Residences at American River Canyon ll

Steeplechase

Willow Creek Estates East

Willow Creek Estates East No. 2

Willow Creek Estates South

Willow Springs

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 61

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 2

These assessments were established in previous fiscal years. ln each subsequent year for which

the assessments will be continued, the City Council ("Council") must direct the preparation of an

Engineer's Report, budgets and proposed assessments for the upcoming fiscal year. The

Engineer's Report also identifies future planned projects. After the Engineer's Report is

completed, the Council may preliminarily approve the Engineer's Report and proposed

assessments and establish the date for a public hearing on the continuation of the assessments.

This Engineer's Report ("Report") was prepared pursuant to the direction of the Council.

This Report was prepared to establish the budget for the improvements that would be funded by

the proposed 2022-23 assessments and to define the benefits received from the improvements

by property within the Districts and the method of assessment apportionment to lots and parcels.

This Report and the proposed assessments have been made pursuant to the Landscaping and

Lighting Act of L972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the California Streets and Highways Code (the "Act")

and Article XlllD of the California Constitution (the "Article").

lf the Council approves this Engineer's Report and the proposed assessments by resolution, a

notice of the proposed assessment levies must be published in a local paper at least 1"0 days prior

to the date of the public hearing. The resolution preliminarily approving the Engineer's Report

and establishing the date for a public hearing typically directs that this notice be published.

Following the minimum L0-day time period after publishing the notice, a public hearing is held for

the purpose of allowing public testimony about the proposed continuation of the assessments.

This hearing is currently scheduled for July t2,2022. At this hearing, the Council would consider

approval of a resolution confirming the assessments for fiscal year 2022-23. lf so confirmed and

approved, the assessments would be submitted to the County Auditor/Controller for inclusion on

the property tax rolls for Fiscal Year 2022-23.

lncluded is a separate but integral tool: the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting District

lmprovement Plan ("lmprovement Plan"). lt is a separate planning document that identifies the

type of upcoming improvement (e.g. re-landscaping a corridor or painting a wall); the estimated

cosq any installments required for short-term (less than five years) and/or long term (not greater

than 30 years) improvements, and the approximate schedule for completion of the improvement.

The City intends to continually update and revise the lmprovement Plan throughout each year to

reflect the current status of improvement projects, budget updates and/or changes in priorities.

The concept of the lmprovement Plan arose from the City's commitment to comply with the

requirements of the Act as well as produce a valuable instrument that enables the City to

schedule, prioritize, and plan for needed maintenance and servicing improvements in the districts.

It also serves as a user-friendly means for members of the public to review and understand the

use of the assessment revenues generated from each district.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 62

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 3

Legal Analysis

Silicon Valley Taxpayers Association, lnc. v Santa Clara County Open Space

Auth ority

ln July of 2008, the California Supreme Court issued its ruling on the Silicon Valley Taxpayers

Association, lnc. v. Santa Clara County Open Space Authority ("SVTA vs. SCCOSA"). This ruling is

the most significant court case in further legally clarifying the substantive assessment

requirements of Proposition 21-8 which was approved by California voters in 1996. Several of the

most important elements of the ruling included further emphasis that:

r Benefit assessments are for special, not general, benefit
r The services and/or improvements funded by assessments must be clearly defined
. Special benefits are directly received by and provide a direct advantage to property in

each district

This Engineer's Report is consistent with the SVTA vs. SCCOSA decision and with the requirements

of Article XlllC and XlllD of the California Constitution based on the following factors:

1. Most of the Districts were formed prior to the passage of Proposition 21"8 and/or with

unanimous approval of property owners. Although these assessments are consistent with

Proposition 218, the California judiciary has generally referred to pre-Proposition 2L8

assessments as "grandfathered assessments" and held them to a different standard than

post Proposition 218 assessments.

2. The Districts are narrowly drawn to only include the specially benefiting parcels, and the

assessment revenue derived from real property in each District is expended only on

specifically identified improvements and/or maintenance and servicing of those

improvements in that District that confer special benefits to property in that District.

3. The use of unique and narrowly drawn Districts ensures that the improvements

constructed and maintained with assessment proceeds are located in close proximity to

the real property subject to the assessment, and that such improvements provide direct

and special benefit to the property in that District.

4. Due to their proximity to the assessed parcels, the improvements and maintenance

thereof financed with assessment revenues in the District provide a direct advantage to
properties in that District, and the benefits conferred on such property in each District

are more extensive and direct than a general increase in property values.

5. The assessments paid in each District are proportional to the special benefit that.each

parcel within that District receives from such improvements and the maintenance thereof

because:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2A22-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 63

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 4

The specific improvements and maintenance and utility costs thereof in each

District and their respective costs are specified in this Engineer's Report; and

b. Such improvement and maintenance costs in each District are allocated among

different types of property located within each District, and equally among those

properties which have similar characteristics and receive similar special benefits.

Therefore, given the factors highlighted above, this Engineer's Report is consistent with the SVTA

vs. SCCOSA decision and with the requirements of Article Xlllc & XlllD of the California

Constitution.

Dahms v. Downtown Pomona Property

On June 8,2009, the 4th District Court of Appeal upheld a benefit assessment for property in the

downtown area of the City of Pomona. On July 22,2OO9, the California Supreme Court denied

review. ln Dahms the court upheld an assessment that was L00% special benefit (i.e.0% general

benefit) on the rationale that the services and improvements funded by the assessments were

directly provided to property in the assessment district. The Court also upheld discounts and

exemptions from the assessment for certain properties.

Bonander v, Town of Tiburon

On Decembe r 31.,2009, the 1't District Court of Appeal overturned a benefit assessment approved

by property owners to pay for placing overhead utility lines underground in an area of the Town

of Tiburon. The Court invalidated the assessments on the grounds that the assessments had been

apportioned to assessed property based in part on relative costs within sub-areas of the

assessment district instead of proportional special benefits.

Beutz v. County of Riverside

On May 26,2OLO the 4th District Court of Appeals issued a decision on the Steven Beutz v. County

of Riverside ("Beutz") appeal. This decision overturned an assessment for park maintenance in

Wildomar, California, primarily because the general benefit associated with improvements and

services were not explicitly calculated and quantified and separated from the special benefits.

a

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 64

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 5

Golden Hill Neighborhood Association v. City of San Diego

On September22,2O77, the Court of Appeal issued a decision on the Golden Hill Neighborhood

Association V. City of San Diego appeal. This decision overturned an assessment for street and

landscaping maintenance in the Greater Golden Hill neighborhood of San Diego, California. The

court described two primary reasons for its decision. First, like in Beutz, the court found the

general benefits associated with services were not explicitly calculated, quantified and separated

from the special benefits. Second, the court found that the City had failed to record the basis for

the assessment on its own parcels.

Compliance with Current Law

This Engineer's Report is consistent with the requirements of Article XlllC and XlllD of the

California Constitution and with the SVIA decision because the lmprovements to be funded are

clearly defined; the lmprovements are directly available to and will directly benefit property in

the Assessment Districts; and the lmprovements provide a direct advantage to property in each

of the Assessment Districts that would not be received in absence of the Assessments.

This Engineer's Report is consistent with Beutz, Dohms and Greater Golden Hil/ because the

lmprovements will directly benefit property in each of the Assessment Districts and the general

benefits have been explicitly calculated and quantified and excluded from the Assessments. The

Engineer's Report is consistent with Bononder because the Assessments have been apportioned

based on the overall cost of the lmprovements and proportional special benefit to each property.

lmpact of Recent Proposition 218 Decisions

This Engineer's Report is consistent with the SVTA vs. SCCOSA, Dahms, Bonander - Beutz and

Greater Golden Hill decisions and with the requirements of Article XlllC and XlllD of the California

Constitution based on the following factors:

1,. The assessment revenue derived from real property in each assessment District within

the City of Folsom is extended only on specific landscaping and other improvements

and/or maintenance and servicing of those improvements in that assessment district

2. The use of various assessment districts ensures that the landscaping and other

improvements constructed and maintained with assessment proceeds are located in

close proximity to the real property subject to the assessment, and that such

improvements provide a direct advantage to the property in the assessment district.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 65

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 5

3. Due to their proximity to the assessed parcels, the improvements and maintenance

thereof financed with assessment revenues in each assessment district benefits the
properties in that assessment district in a manner different in kind from the benefit that
other parcels of real property in the City of Folsom derive from such improvements, and

the benefits conferred on such property in each assessment district are more extensive

and direct than a general increase in property values.

4. The assessments paid in each assessment district are proportional to the special benefit

that each parcel within that assessment district receives from such improvements and the

maintenance thereof because:

The specific landscaping and other improvements and maintenance and utility

costs thereof in each assessment district and the costs thereof are specified in

this Engineer's Report; and

b. Such improvement and maintenance costs in each assessment district are

allocated among different types of property located within each assessment

district, and equally among those properties which have similar characteristics

and receive similar special benefits.

There have been a number of clarifications made to the analysis, findings and supporting text in

this Report to ensure that this consistency is well communicated.

a

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 66

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 7

Plans & Specification

The work and improvements proposed to be undertaken by the City of Folsom Landscaping and

Lighting Districts (the "Districts") and the cost thereof paid from the continuation of the annual

assessment provide special benefit to parcels within the Districts defined in the Method of

Assessment herein. Consistent with the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, (lhe "Act") the

work and improvements (the "lmprovements") are generally described as follows:

Within these districts, the existing and proposed improvements are generally described as the

installation, maintenance and servicing of turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems,

drainage systems, street lighting, fencing, soundwalls, sidewalks, monuments, statuary,

fountains, water quality ponds, park facilities, open space, bike trails, walkways, drainage swales

and other ornamental structures and facilities, entry signage, street pavers, art work, and

monuments and all necessary appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities and

equipment, as applicable, for property owned or maintained by the City of Folsom. Any plans and

specifications for these improvements have been filed with the City of Folsom and are

incorporated herein by reference.

"Maintain" or "mointenonce" means the furnishing of services and moteriols for the

ordinary and usual mointenance, operotion, ond servicing of any improvement, including:
(o) Repair, removol, or replacement of all or any part of any impravement.
(b) Providing for the life, growth, health, ond beouty of landscaping, including

cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying, fertilizing, or treating for disease or iniury.
(c) The removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris, and other solid waste.

(d) The cleaning, sandblasting, and painting of walls and ather improvements to remove

ar cover groffiti.
"Service" or "servicing" means the furnishing of:

(a) Electric current or energy, gas, or other illuminating agent for any public lighting

facilities or for the lighting or operation of any other improvements'
(b) Water for the irrigotion of any landscaping, the operatian of ony fountains, or the

maintenance of any other improvements.

The assessment proceeds from each District will be exclusively used for lmprovements within that

District plus lncidental expenses. Reference is made to the Estimate of Cost and Budget, Appendix

A and to the additional plans and specifications, including specific expenditure and improvement

plans by District, which are on file with the City.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 67

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 8

Estimate of Cost and Budget

Description of fmprovements

Following are descriptions of improvements for the various City of Folsom Landscaping and

Lighting Districts.

American River Canyon North

. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians, corridors, and open spaces

. Purchase of irrigation water from San Juan Suburban Water District.

. Maintenance of lrrigation system, entry fountain, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights.
r Purchase of electric power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2O22-23

No planned projects.

Future lmprovement Projects

Water fall pump, autofill, filters, chlorination systems.

Waterfall pond liner.

t

American River Canyon North No. 2

r Purchase of electric power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2O22-23:

' No planned projects.

Future lmprovement Projects:

. Paint and replace streetlight poles.

American River Canyon North No. 3

I Purchase of electric power.
. Purchase of irrigation water from San Juan Suburban Water District.
r Maintenance of landscaping, open space, lighting, signs, sidewalk and walls, waterfalls,

including turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems, drainage systems,

street lighting, walls, signs.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 68

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 9

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

Centralized irrigation controller upgrade

Signage replacement.

Mystic Hills replace missing landscape.

Future lmprovement Projects:

Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements).

ARC Drive/Canyon Falls (Cascade Perimeter) landscape remove/replace trees, mow

band replacement.

Main Walking Trail - landscaping, irrigation, stairs and clean up.

Baldwin Dam path repair.

Waterfall rock repair.

Blue Ravine Oaks

r Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.
r Purchase of irrigation water from City of Folsom.

r Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, sidewalks, fences, walls and streetlights.
. Purchase of electric power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

r No planned projects.

Future lmprovement Projects:

. Blue ravine wall repair.

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2

r Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.
r Purchase of irrigation water from City of Folsom.

r Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, sidewalks, fences, walls and streetlights
r Purchase of electric power.
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

I Tree removal/replacement.

Future lmprovement Projects

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 69

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page L0

Riley Street Fence Replacement

Tree remova l/replacement.

Signage replacement.

Briggs Ranch

. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.
r Purchase of irrigation water from City of Folsom.

. Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, sidewalks, trails, walls, fences, open space

area, signage and streetlights.
r Purchase of electric power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

Shrub and tree upgrades (Blue Ravine/E. Natoma)

Fence/Wall repa ir/replacem ent.

Fence repair/replacement (E. Natoma Partial).

Pet station repair/replacement.

Future lmprovement Projects

' Bollardrepair/replacement.
r Fence repair/replacement (Blue Ravine/E Natoma)
r Fence repair/replacement (E. Natoma Partial).
r Entry sign replacement (brass lettering)
r lrrigation upgrades/replacement (3 controllers).
. Landscape lighting upgrades or replacement.
r Tree and Landscape lmprovements (partial collection)

I

I

Broa dston e

. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.
r Purchase of irrigation water from City of Folsom.

r Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, sidewalks,trails, sound walls, water quality

ponds and streetlights.
. Purchase of electric power.
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

Tree and Landscape lmprovements (partial fund collection).

Bollard repair/replacement.

Light pole/fixture replacement of KW.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 70

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 1L

Future I mprovement Projects:

Repair irrigation/replace shrubs - lron Point median.

Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements).

Shrub replacement throughout (some irrigation repair) 28 acres

Landscape light replacement.

Pet station replacement (7).

Signage repair/replacement.

Turf removal/irrigation retrofit.

lrrigation upgrades and flow (15 controllers).

Broadstone Unit No, 3

r Purchase of electric power.
r Maintenance of street light fixtures

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2O22-23:

r No planned projects.

Future I mprovement Projects:

r Paint streetlight poles (350 poles)

Broadstone No.4

Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.

Purchase of irrigation water from City of Folsom.

Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, sidewalks, trails, sound walls, water quality

ponds and streetlights.

Purchase of electric power.

Maintenance of street lishting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23:

. Repair irrigation, replant shrubs: Rathbone, Knofler, other interior areas

r Landscape light repair/replacement (60 lights).

Future lmprovement Projects

r No planned projects.

I

Cobble Hills Ridge lllReflections ll

r Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.
r Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 71

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 12

Maintenance of lrrigation system, plantings, sidewalks, soundwalls, signage, parks, park

facilities, open space and streetlights.

Purchase of Electric Power from SMUD.

Maintenance of public lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23:
r Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements).
r Mini Park and path to Lembi turf and shrub repair/replacement.

Future lmprovement Projects:

r Fence repair/replacement (225 feet)
r Wall repairs and painting.
I Signageimprovement/replacement.
r Tree and Landscape lmprovements (or replacements).
. Shrub replacement - Sibley/Corner, Glenn/oxburough

Cobble Ridge

r Maintenance of shrubs and trees within landscape medians and corridors.
r Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.

r Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, open space areas, soundwalls, sidewalks

and streetlights.
r Purchase of electric power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

r Fence repair and paiting.
r Tree pruning.

Future lmprovement Projects

r No planned projects,

Folsom Heights

r Maintenance of shrubs and trees within landscape medians and corridors, corridors,

bike trails, walkways, and open space areas.

r Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.

r Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, fences, walls, sidewalks and streetlights
r Purchase of Electric Power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 72

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page L3

r Ladder fuel work.

Future I mprovement Projects

I No planned projects.

Folsom Heights No. 2

r Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors, corridors, bike

trails, walkways, and open space areas.

. Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.

. Maintenance of irrigation system, plantings, fences, walls, sidewalks and streetlights.
r Purchase of Electric Power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2O22-23

r Tree care in open space.

r Tree pruning.

Future lmprovement Projects (if funded with new District)

No planned projects

Hannaford Cross

r Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.
. Purchase of irrigation water and electric power for the two mini parks in a 7O%/30%:

City/District contribution. (based on maintenance assignments)
. Maintenance of lrrigation system, bike trails, walkways, fences, walls, guard shack,

drainage swale, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights.
r Purchase of electric power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

Lakeside fence repair.

Repairs at guard shack.

Tree pruning.

Future I mprovement Projects

No planned projects.I

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 73

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 14

Lake Natoma Shores

r Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.

r Maintenance of lrrigation system, soundwalls, signage, street pavers, plantings,

sidewalks and streetlights.
r Purchase of lrrigation water from the City of Folsom'

. Purchase of electric Power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2O22-23:

LED conversion

Tree pruning.

Future lmprovement Projects

r No planned projects.

Los Cerros

. Maintenance of landscape medians and corridors.
r Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.

. Maintenance of lrrigation system, walls, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights
r Purchase of electric power.
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23:

Ladder fuel work.

Tree replacement.

Tree pruning

Paint street light poles.

Future I mprovement Projects:

lnstall flow package and master valve.

Upgrade irrigation controllers

Natoma Station

r Maintenance of lrrigation system, walls, signage, art work, open space areas, parks,

plantings and streetlights.
r Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.

r Purchase of electric power.
. Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 74

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 15

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

. Ladder fuel work

' Light pole replacement
r Shrub & tree replacement & concrete work on turnpike
r lron Point Rd shrub & tree replacement
r Bigfoot mini park tree replacement
r Tree replacement / wall damage on back diamond
I Shrub / tree replacement on Blue Ravine

r Tree pruning.

Future lmprovement Projects:

Tree & Landscape lmprovements ( or replacements)

Wetland area improvements

Wall repair and painting (7800 linear feet)

Mini park replanting / bark ( 2 parks @ .5 acre)

Road paver replacement

Signage repair / replacement

Sidewalk repair

lrrigation upgrades

Art repair

Natoma Station-Union Square

Note: Union Square which is a Benefit zone of Natoma Station will be providing its own

landscaping and lighting maintenance via an existing homeowner's association and servicing for
2022-23.

Natoma Valley

. lnstallation, maintenance and servicing of turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation

systems, drainage systems, street lighting, soundwalls, retaining walls, fencing and all

necessary appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities and equipment

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23:

r lnteriorlandscapeimprovements.
r Tree pruning.

Future I mprovement Projects:

r No planned projects.

I

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 75

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 16

Prairie Oaks Ranch

r Maintenance and servicing of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.

. Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom'

r Maintenance of lrrigation system, walls, signage, fences, open space areas, trellises, and

streetlights along Grover Road, Russi Road, Willard Drive, Stewart Street and the interior

public roadways within the subdivisions'

r Purchase of electric power.

r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

No planned projects

Future lmprovement Projects:

No planned projects

Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2

r Maintenance and servicing of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.

' Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom'

r Maintenance of lrrigation system, walls, signage, fences, open space areas, trellises, and

streetlights along Grover'Road, Russi Road, Willard Drive, Stewart Street and the interior

public roadways within the subdivisions.

. Purchase of electric power.

r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

r Grover entry at lron Point.

Future lmprovement Projects

. Landscape replacement on Blue Ravine

. Landscape Replacement on Riley

. Landscape Replacement on Prairie City

r Landscape replacement on lron Point

r Fence replacement
r Post and cable replacement
. Repair damaged wall

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 76

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page L7

Prospect Ridge

r Maintenance of lrrigation system, walls, signage, open space areas, parks, plantings and

streetlights.
. Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.

r Purchase of electric power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.
r Maintenance of landscape corridors.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

Tree pruning.

Future lmprovement Projects:

I Plant replacement.

Sierra Estates

Maintenance of landscaping, lighting and soundwalls along Rowland Court, Dolan Court

and Riley Street including turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems,

drainage systems, street lighting, fencing, soundwalls, monuments, statuary, fountains,

and other ornamental structures and facilities, entry monuments and all necessary

appurtenances

Purchase of water from the City of Folsom

Purchase of electric power.

Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23:

Tree replacement

Future lmprovement Projects:

No planned projects

I

Silverbrook

Note: Silverbrook will not be levied for fiscal year 2022-23, due to a surplus in revenue

Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape median,

Purchase of irrigation water from City of Folsom.

Maintenance of lrrigation system, entry median, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights.

Purchase of electric power.

Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 77

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 18

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

r Tree replacement.

Future I mprovement Projects:

r No planned projects.

Steeplechase

r Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.
r Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.

r Maintenance of lrrigation system, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights.
r Purchase of electric power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

. Fence replacement near park

r Tree pruning.

Future lmprovement Projects:

No planned projects

The Residences at American River Canyon

r Maintenance landscaping, lighting and soundwalls along American River Canyon Drive

and Oak Avenue including turf, ground cover, shrubs and trees, irrigation systems,

drainage systems, street lighting, sound-walls, and all necessary appurtenances.
. Purchase of water from San Juan Water District.
r Purchase of electric power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23

Landscape replacement.

Futu re lmprovement Projects

No planned projects.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 78

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 19

The Residences at American River Canyon ll

r lnstallation, maintenance and servicing of turf, ground cover, shrubs, and trees,

irrigation systems, drainage systems, street lighting, walls, signage and all necessary

appurtenances, and labor, materials, supplies, utilities, and equipment

Planned lmprovement Projects tor 2022-23:

r Landscapereplacement.

Future lmprovement Projects:

r No planned projects.

Willow Creek Estates East

. Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.
r Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.
r Maintenance of irrigation system, walls, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights, as well as

weed abatement.
r Purchase of electric power.
r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2022-23:

r No planned projects.

Future lmprovement Projects: (if funding available)

r No planned projects.

Willow Creek Estates East No. 2

Maintenance of irrigation system, walls, plantings, sidewalks and streetlights, as well as

weed abatement.

Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.

Purchase of electric power.

Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Maintenance of lawns and trees within landscape medians and corridors.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2O22-23

2 flow packages & Master Valve lnstall

Light pole replacement (3)

Tree pruning

Oleander replacement on Blue Ravine frontage.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 79

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 20

Future lmprovement Projects

. Landscape replacement on Oak Avenue.

. Landscape replacement on Blue Ravine.

r lrrigation controller upgrade (4 controllers).
r Tree and landscape improvement / replacement

Willow Creek Estates South

Purchase of irrigation water from the City of Folsom.

Maintenance of lrrigation system, walls, entry signage, drainage way, parks, sidewalks

and streetlights, as well as weed abatement.

Purchase of electric power.

Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2O22-23

r Tree pruning.

r New planting around replaced signs

. lnterior sign replacement.

Future lmprovement Projects

No planned projects

Willow Springs

. Purchase of electric power.

r Maintenance of street lighting fixtures.

Planned lmprovement Projects for 2O22-23:

r LED retrofits..

Future I mprovement Projects:

r Paint/repair Lamp Posts.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts

Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 80

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 2L

Budgets

Below is a summary of the Budgets for the various districts. Refer to Appendix A - Budgets, for detailed

budgets for each district.

lmprovement
Gosts

lncidental
Costs

Total

lmprovernent CostsDistrict

River Canyon North

River Canyon North 2

River Canyon North 3

Blue Ravine Oaks

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2

Briggs Ranch

Broadstone
Broadstone Unit No.3

Broadstone No.4
Cobble Hills ll/Reflections ll
Cobble Ridge

Folsom Heights

Folsom Heights No, 2

Hannaford Gross

Lake Natoma Shores
Natoma Valley (formerly) Lakerid ge

Los Cenos
Natoma Station
Prospect Ridge

Prairie Oaks Ranch

Prairie Oaks Ranch No.2

The Residences at ARC

e Residences at ARC I I

Estates

llow Creek East

llowGreek East Estates No 2

illow Creek South

illow Springs

TOTALS

$146,500.00

$56,000.00

$373,600.00

$17,700.00

$53,380,06

$105,542.95

$303,904.00

$24,500 00

$347,500.00

$46,568.38

$14,586.67

$42,150.00

$63,275,00

$26,361 76

$36,087.84

$47,481.36

$85,541.70

$206,943.36

$26,944.94

$80,000.00

$275,000.00

$25,855.06

$25,855.06

$17,807.70

$12,738.61

$39,500.28

$26,000.00

$125,830.68

$208,330.68

$14,000.00

$6,309.54

$1,475.40

$542.54

$2,343,35

$5,917.35

$16,831.41

$66,632,70

$2,885.00

$15,210.38

$12,078.51

$2,259.82

$1,754.72

$6,952.00

$5,329.77

$4,619.67

$9,919.61

$6,943.83

$40,371.37

$6,208.65

$67,593.99

$5,950.00

$5,312.03

$0.00

$2,127.75

$2,508 17

$6,493.00

$3,190.00

$15,950.00

$12,517.57

$1,530.03

$152,809,54

$57,475.40

$374,142.54

$20,043.35

$59,297.41

$122,374.36

$370,536.70

$27,385.00

$362,710.38

$58,646.89

$16,846.49

$43,904.72

$70,227.00

$31,691.53

$40,707.51

$57,400.97

$92,485.53

$247,314.73

$33, I 53.59

$147,593.99

$280,950.00

$31,167.09

$25,855.06

$19,935.45

$15,246.77

$45,993.28

$29,190.00

$141 ,780.68

9220,848.25

$15,530.03

$2,875,486.09 $337,758,1 5 $3,213,244.24

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 81

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 22

Gurent
Projects

Benefit Units
(SFEs)

Rate Total Assessment

District

rorAts

$65,000.00

$25,000.00

$250,000.00

$0.00

$15,000.00

$0,00

$0.00

$10,000.00

$75,000.00

$0.00

$500.00

$28,000.00

$37,000.00

$0.00

$8,000.00

$0.00

$35,500.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$2,000.00

$2,000.00

$6,000.00

$0.00

$10,000.00

$0.00

$35,000.00

$35,000.00

$0.00

$77.70

$269.86 
.

$218.60

$213.26 .

$122.28

$164.99

$28.07 .

$39.98 
-

$113,14

$139.64.
$70.88

$208.38 .

$195.78

$183 58

$856.37 .

$121.18

$91.70

$ 1 ,1 73.86

$213.61

$313.91 .

$536.67 
.

$1 ,169.97 
.

$363.68 .

$0.00

$157 68

$80.40

$103.51 
.

$109.88

$28.14

$105,204.68

$12,432.00

$275,796.92

$36,069.00

$35,187.90

$80,706.02

$390,859.66

$22]79,65
$82,560.53

$44,011.46

$1 3,684 72

$21,831 04

$62,386.89

$20,165.34

$20,744.54

$67,653.23

$40,837.66

$173,976.36

$31,400,76

$196,228.55

$288,367.14

$9,123.39

$11,699.70

$9,092.00

$0.00

$24,282.72

$60,058.80

$76,748.01

$160,642.36

$14,548.38

River Canyon Nodh
River Canyon North 2
River Ganyon North 3

1,022

160

1,022

165

'165

660

2,369

812

2,065

389

98

308

299

103

113
70

337

1,897

27

919

919

17

10

25

114

154

747

741

1462

517

$102.94

Blue Ravine Oaks

Blue Ravine Oaks No.2

Briggs Ranch

Broadstone

Broadstone Unit No.3

Broadstone No,4

Gobble Hills ll/Reflections ll
Cobble Ridge

Folsom Heights

Folsom Heights No. 2

Hannaford Cross

Lake Natoma Shores

Natoma Valley (fo rmerly) Lakerid ge

Los Cenos
Natoma Station
Prospect Ridge

Prairie Oaks Ranch

Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2

The Residences at ARC

The Residences at ARC I I

Sierra Estates

Silverbrook
Steeplechase

Willow Creek East

Willow Creek East Estates No 2

Willow Creek South
Willow Springs

$639,000.00 $2,389,079.41

* Subject to CPI increase

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts

Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 82

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 23

Method of Apportionment

This section of the Engineer's Report includes an explanation of the benefits to be derived from

the installation, maintenance and servicing of the lmprovements throughout the Districts, and the

methodology used to apportion the total assessment to properties within the City of Folsom

Landscaping and Lighting Districts,

The City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts consist of all Assessor Parcels within the

boundaries of each District defined as defined by Assessment Diagram included within this report

and the Assessor Parcel Numbers listed within the included Levy roll. The parcels include all

privately or publicly owned parcels within said boundaries. The method used for apportioning

the assessment is based upon the proportional special benefits to be derived by the properties in

the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts over and above general benefits conferred

on real property or to the public at large. The apportionment of special benefit is a two-step

process: the first step is to identify the types of special benefit arising from the improvements,

and the second step is to allocate the assessments to property based on the estimated relative

special benefit for each type of property.

Discussion of Benefit

ln summary, the assessments can only be levied based on the special benefit to property. This

benefit is received by property over and above any general benefits. With reference to the

requirements for assessments, Section 22573 of the Landscaping and Lighting AcI of 1972 states:

"The net amount to be assessed upon lands within on ossessment district may be

apportioned by any formula or method which fairly distributes the net omount among all
assessable lots or parcels in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by eoch

such lot or parcel from the improvements."

Proposition 21.8, as codified in Article XlllD of the California Constitution, has confirmed that

assessments must be based on the special benefit to property and the assessment must not

exceed the reasonable cost ofthe proportional benefit upon the assessed parcel:

"No ossessrnent shall be imposed on any parcel which exceeds the reasonable cost of the
proportional special benefit conferred on that parcel."

The following benefit categories summarize the types of special benefit to residential,

commercial, industrial and other lots and parcels resulting from the lmprovements to be provided

with the assessment proceeds. These categories of special benefit are supported by various

California legislation and supporting studies which describe the types of special benefit received

by property from lmprovements such as those proposed by the City of Folsom Landscaping and

Lighting Districts. These types of special benefit are summarized as follows:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

$GlGonsultingGroup

Page 83

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 24

Proximity to improved landscaped areas within each District.

Access to improved landscaped areas within each District.

lmproved Views within each District.

Extension of a property's outdoor areas and green spaces for properties within close

proximity to the lmprovements.

Creation of individual lots for residential and commercial use that, in absence of the

District and the services provided bythe District, would not have been created.

ln this regard, the recent the SVTA v. SCCOSA decision provides enhanced clarity to the
definitions of special benefits to properties in three distinct areas:

Proximity

Expanded or improved access

Views

The SVTA v. SCCOSA decision also clarifies that a special benefit is a service or improvement that
provides a direct advantage to a parcel, and that indirect or derivative advantages resulting from

the overall public benefits from a service or improvement are general benefits. The SVTA v.

SCCOSA decision also provides specific guidance that park improvements are a direct advantage

and special benefit to property that is proximate to a park improved by an assessment:

The characterization of a benefit may depend on whether the porcel receives o direct
advantage from the improvement (e.9, proximity to a park) or receives an indirect,
derivative advantage resulting from the overall public benefits of the improvement (e.9.

generol enhancement of the district's property values).

Proximity, improved access and views, in addition to the other special benefits listed above

further strengthen the basis of these assessments.

Benefit Factors

The special benefits from the lmprovements are further detailed below:

Proximity to improved landscaped areas within the District

Only the specific properties within close proximity to the lmprovements are included in each

District. Therefore, property in the Districts enjoys unique and valuable proximity and access to
the lmprovements that the public at large and property outside the Districts do not share.

I

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 84

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 25

ln absence of the assessments, the lmprovements would not be provided and the landscaping

areas in the Districts would be degraded due to insufficient funding for maintenance, upkeep and

repair. Therefore, the assessments provide lmprovements that are over and above what

otherwise would be provided. lmprovements that are over and above what otherwise would be

provided do not by themselves translate into special benefits but when combined with the unique

proximity and access enjoyed by parcels in the Districts, they provide a direct advantage and

special benefit to property in the Districts.

Access to improved landscaped areas within the District

Since the parcels in each District are the only parcels that enjoy close access to the lmprovements,

they directly benefit from the unique close access to improved landscaping areas that are

provided by the Assessments. This is a direct advantage and special benefit to property in that

District.

lmproved views within the District

The District, by maintaining these landscaped areas, provides improved views to properties in

each District. The properties in a District enjoy close and unique proximity, access and views of

the lmprovements; therefore, the improved and protected views provided by the Assessments

are another direct and tangible advantage that is uniquely conferred upon property in a District.

Extension of a property's outdoor areas and green spaces for properties within
close proximity to the lmprovements

ln large part because it is generally cost prohibitive to provide large open land areas in

development projects, the residential, commercial and other benefiting properties in each District

do not have large outdoor areas and green spaces. The landscaped areas within each District

provide additional outdoor areas that serve as an effective extension of the land area for

properties that are in close proximity to the lmprovements. The lmprovements, therefore,

provide an important, valuable and desirable extension of usable land area, which confers a direct

advantage and special benefit to properties in close proximity to the lmprovements.

Creation of individual lots for residential and commercial use that, in absence of
the assessments, would not have been created

Typically, the original owner/developer of the property within the Districts can petition the City

to establish the assessment districts. As parcels were sold, new owners were informed of the

assessments through the title reports, and in some cases, through Department of Real Estate

"White Paper" reports that the parcels were subject to assessment. Purchase of property was

also an "agreement" to pay the assessment. ln absence of the assessments, the lots within the

Districts would probably not have been subdivided and created. These lots, and the

improvements they support, are a special benefit to the property owners.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 85

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 26

General versus Special Benefit

The assessments from the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts are used to fund

improvements and increased levels of maintenance to the grounds adjoining the properties in the

Districts. ln absence of those Districts, such lmprovements would not be provided and the

properties would not have been subdivided and improved to the same extent. The Districts were

specifically proposed for formation to provide additional and improved improvements, and

services in the Districts. ln absence of the assessments, these public resources could not be

created and revenues would not be available for their continued maintenance and improvement.

Therefore, the assessments solely provide special benefit to property in the Districts over and

above the general benefits conferred by the general facilities of the City.

Although these lmprovements may be available to the general public at large because the

Districts are accessible by members of the public, the lmprovements within each District were

specifically designed, located and created to provide additional and improved public resources for
property inside the Districts, and not the public at large.. Other properties that are either outside

the Districts or within the Districts and not assessed, do not enjoy the unique proximity, access,

views and other special benefit factors described previously. These lmprovements are of special

benefit to properties located within the Districts because they provide a direct advantage to
properties in the Districts that would not be provided in absence of the assessments.

Although the analysis used to support these assessments concludes that the benefits are solely

special, as described above, consideration is made for the suggestion that a portion of the benefits

are general. General benefits cannot be funded by these assessments - the funding must come

from other sources.

The maintenance and servicing of these improvements is also partially funded, directly and

indirectly from other sources including City of Folsom, the County of Sacramento and the State of
California. This funding comes in the form of grants, development fees, special programs, and

general funds, as well as direct maintenance and servicing of facilities (e.g. curbs, gutters, streets,

drainage systems, and other infrastructure maintenance items such as pond clean outs and street

sweeping, etc.) This funding from other sources more than compensates for general benefits, if
any, received by the properties within the districts.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 86

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 27

ln the 2009 Dahms case, the court upheld an assessment that was 100% special benefit on the

rationale that the services funded by the assessments were directly provided within the

assessment district over and above the services already provided by the City within the

boundaries of the assessment district. lt is also important to note that certain services funded by

the assessments in Pomona are similar to the services funded by the Assessments described in

this Engineer's Report and the Court found these services to be 100% special benefit. Similar to

the assessments in Pomona, the Assessments described in this Engineer's Report fund

improvements and services directly provided within the Assessment District to benefit properties

within the assessment district and not to the public at large, and these properties enjoy close

proximity and access to the lmprovements. Therefore, Dahms establishes a basis for minimal or

zero general benefits from the Assessments.

Step 1: Calculation of the General Benefit

The general benefits from this assessment may be quantified as illustrated in the following table.

Benefit Factor

Relative
Weieht

General Benefit
Contribution

Relative
General
Benefit

Creation of parcels

lmproved views
lmproved nighttime visibility and safety from streetlights

90

5

5

o%

ro%

20%

0

0.5
1

100

Total Calculated General Benefit =

1.5

L5%

As a result, the City of Folsom will contribute at least L.5% of the total budget from sources other

than the assessment. The contribution offsets any general benefits from the Assessment Services.

Step 2: Calculation of Current General Benefit Contribution from City

The general benefit contribution is satisfied from the sum of the following components:

The City of Folsom owns, maintains, rehabilitates and replaces curb and gutter along the border

of the Assessment Districts improvements. This curb and gutter serves to support, contain, retain,

manage irrigation flow and growth, and provide a boundary for the improvements. The

contribution from the City of Folsom toward general benefit from the maintenance, rehabilitation

and replacement of the curb gutter is conservatively estimated to be 1%.

The City of Folsom owns and maintains storm drainage systems along the border of the

Assessment Districts improvements. This system serves to prevent flooding and associated

damage to the improvements, and manage urban runoff including local pollutants loading from

the improvements. The contribution from the City of Folsom towards general benefit from the

maintenance, and operation of the local storm drainage systems are conservatively estimated to

be 1%.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 87

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 28

The City of Folsom owns and maintains local public streets along the border of the Assessment

District improvements. These public streets proved access to the improvements for its enjoyment

as well as efficient maintenance. The contribution from the City of Folsom towards general

benefit from the maintenance of local public streets is conservatively estimated to contribute 7%.

The lmprovements were constructed by the original owner/developer(s) as a condition of

development. The value of the construction of the improvements can be quantified and

monetized as an annuity. Since this construction was performed and paid by non-assessment

funds, this "annuity" can be used to offset general benefit costs, and is conservatively estimated

to contribute 25%.

Therefore, the total General Benefit that is conservatively quantified at1..5% is more than offset

by the total non-assessment contribution towards general benefit of 28%.

Method of Assessment

The second step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit for each

property. This process involves determining the relative benefit received by each property in

relation to a single family home, or, in other words, on the basis of Single Family Equivalents (SFE).

This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute assessments in proportion to estimated

special benefit and is generally recognized as providing the basis for a fair and appropriate

distribution of assessments. For the purposes of this Engineer's Report, all properties are

designated a SFE value, which is each property's relative benefit in relation to a single family home

on one parcel. ln this case, the "benchmark" property is the single family detached dwelling which

is one Single Family Equivalent or one SFE.

Assessment Apportionment

The improved properties within the Districts consist of primarily of single family, multi-family,

commercial and non-assessed parcels, with the vast majority being single family. Since all single

family residential parcels in the Districts are deemed to have good proximity to the improvements,

such single family properties receive similar benefit from the proposed improvements and are

assigned 1.0 SFE units. The benefits for other types of properties are further defined as follows.

General Case

Many of the City of Folsom Districts contain only single family residences and non-assessed

properties such as parks and green spaces. These districts are:

Blue Ravine Oaks

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2

Cobble Ridge

155 residential lots

165 residential lots

98 residential lots

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

$GlConsultingGroup

Page 88

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 29

Cobble Hills Ridge lllReflections ll

Hannaford Cross

Lake Natoma Shores

Los Cerros

Natoma Station - {Union Square Annexation)

Natoma Valley

Sierra Estates

Silverbrook

Steeplechase

The Residences at American River Canyon

The Residences at ARC ll Annexation

Willow Creek East

Willow Springs

Total

389 residential lots

103 residential lots

11"3 residential lots

337 residential lots

116 residential lots

72 residential lots

25 residential lots

122 residential lots

l-54 residential lots

17 residential lots

10 residential lots

747 residential lots

517 residential lots

3,150

These Districts are assessed per Assessment Table 1

Assessment Table 1

Description SFEs

Single Family Parcel 1.00

Non Assessed (e.g. open space, park land etc.) 0.00

Note: ln 2006-07, a general case SFE rate was established for condominiums in districts in which the

original Engineer's Report did not anticipate condominium development. This rate is 0.67 SFEs.

American River Canyon North

There are 41,0.124 acres in American River Canyon North. There are 1006 residential lots and

each one is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE.) The 2.00 acres of currently undeveloped property is

assigned 2.63 SFEs per acre from a rate determined at the time of formation of this district:

American River Canyon North properties are assessed per Assessment Table 2, below, as per the

original formation documents:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 89

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 30

Assessment Table 2

Description SFEs

Single Family Parcel 1.00

Undeveloped Property, per acre 2.63

Non Assessed (e.g. open space, park land etc.) 0.00

American River Canyon North No. 2

There are 130.305 acres in American River Canyon North No. 2. American River Canyon No. 2 lies

completely within American River Canyon North. There are L6l. residential lots and each one is

assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE).

American River Canyon North No. 2 properties are assessed per Assessment Table 3, below, as

per the original formation documents:

Assessment Table 3

Description SFEs

Single Family Parcel 1.0000

Undeveloped Residential Property, per lot o.3273

Non Assessed (e.9. open space, park land etc.) 0.0000

American River Canyon North No 3

There are 4t}.t24 acres in American River Canyon North. There are L006 residential lots

Each assessable parcel in the Assessment District receives a special and direct benefit from the

improvements in the Assessment District. Since the Assessment District is comprised of

residential single family improved properties and all properties have good proximity to the

improvements, all assessable parcels within the Assessment District are estimated to benefit

equally from the improvements associated with the Assessment District, and the costs associated

with the improvements are apportioned equally to all parcels on the basis of current or proposed

dwelling units. Each parcel is assigned SFE units relative to the number of current or proposed

dwelling units on the parcel.

The procedure used to arrive at each parcel's annual levy amount is

Balance to Levy / Total SFE Benefit Units in District = Assessment Amount Per Benefit Unit

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 90

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 31-

There are three Zones of Benefit. ln Zone A each parcel is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE), in Zone B,

each parcel is assigned 0.83 benefit unit (SFE) and Zone C each parcel is assigned 0.50 benefit unit

(SFE.) Properties in Zone B and Zone C receive lower benefit units because they currently pay for

common open space areas within their zone. ln2OO7, when the American River Canyon North

District No. 3 was formed, an analysis of the associated landscaping improvements was performed

to determine the relative benefit to each zone from this new assessment. lt was estimated that

Zone B receives t7% of the special benefit, and Zone C receives 5O% of the special benefit.

Therefore, the SFE units for Zone B and Zone C have been adjusted accordingly.

American River Canyon North properties are assessed per Assessment Table 4, below

Assessment Table 4

Description SFEs

Zone A - Original ARCN Area 1.0000

Zone B - Canyon Falls Village Area 0.8300

Zone C-ARCN No.2 Area 0.5000

Broa dstone

According to the Broadstone Landscaping and Lighting "Method of Spread," there are 895.301

assessable acres in Broadstone. Of these, 416.7455 acres are divided into 1,582 single family

residential lots (4.2 lots per acre average) and 479.156 acres are divided into multi-family and

commercial lots. The multi-family parcels are APN O72[O7OOO2 through APN 0721070100 are

known as Bentley Square West (99 units); and APN OT2L6IOOOI through APN 072151053 are

known as Bentley Square East (53 units). [ln addition to these properties listed in the "Method of

Spread," other multi-family complexes are also assessed, including Vessona, Sherwood, Haildon.]

Although these projects were designed as single family small lot divisions, the density is consistent

with the multi-family land use designation. These projects are consistent with both the Multi-

Family Low Density General Plan Land Use Designation (MLD) and the Multi-Family zoning (R-

M_PD) of the project site. There are 1530 single family residential lots and each one is assigned

1 SFEs. There are 312.555 developed, non-single family acres and each is assigned 2.1 SFEs per

acre [This is the rate applied to commercial properties, as implicitly indicated in the Method of

Spreadl. (4.2 units * 0.5). Unrecorded single family residential lots are assigned .65 SFEs.

There are 134.387undeveloped, non-single family residential acres and each one with be assigned

0.704 SFEs per acre. (4.2 units *.0.5 * 0.335). There are 1"52 lots with Bentley Square East and

West and each is assigned .0962 SFEs per lot.

Broadstone properties are assessed per Assessment Table 5, below, as per the original formation

documents:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts

Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 91

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 32

Assessment Table 5

Description SFEs

Single Family Parcel L.0000

Multi-Family Parcels, per unit 0.0962

Developed Non-Single Family, per acre 2.1000

Undeveloped Non-Single Family, per acre 0.7040

Non Assessed (e.g. open space, park land etc.) 0.0000

Broadstone No.3

There are 559.36 acres in Broadstone No.3. Of these,325 acres are single family residential lots

(2.034lots per acre average)and 11.48 acres are divided into multi-family residential and 26.93

acres are non-assessed for use as parks, open space, etc. There are 382 single family residential

lots and each one is assigned 1 SFE. There are 28.09 developed, non-single family residential acres

and each one is assigned 2.034 SFEs per acre. There are 283 undeveloped, single family lots and

each one is assigned 0.326 SFEs. There are t7t.7L undeveloped, non-single family residential

acres and each one is assigned 0.325 x 2.034 SFEs.

Broadstone No.3 properties are assessed per Assessment Table 5, below, as per the original

formation documents:

Assessment Table 5

Description SFEs

Single Family Parcel 1.0000

Undeveloped Single Family Parcel 0.3260

Developed Non-Single Family, per acre 2.0340

Undeveloped Non-Single Family, per acre 0.6630

Non Assessed (e.g. open space, park land etc.) 0.0000

Broadstone No.4

Residential

Certain residential properties in the Assessment District that contain a single residential dwelling

unit are assigned one Single Family Equivalent or 1.0 SFE. Detached or attached houses, zero-lot

line houses and town homes are included in this category of single family residential property. lf

there is more than one single family detached dwelling on a parcel, it will be charged one SFE per

single family detached dwelling.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 92

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 33

Properties with more than one residential unit (otherthan parcels with more than one detached

single family dwelling as described above) are designated as multi-family residential properties.

These properties benefit from the lmprovements in proportion to the number of dwelling units

that occupy each property, the average number of people who reside in multi-family residential

units versus the average number of people who reside in a single family home and the relative

size of each type of residential dwelling unit. The population density factors for the area in

Sacramento County encompassing the Assessment District, as depicted in the following table,

provide the basis for determining the SFE factors for residential properties. Using the total

population in a certain property type in the area from the 2010 Census and dividing it by the total

number of such households, finds that approximately 2S1 persons occupy each single family

residence, whereas an average of 2.L2 persons occupy each condominium. The ratio of 2.9L

people on average for a single family residence and 2.72 people per dwelling unit in a

condominium unit results in a population density equivalent of 0.73 for condominiums. Next, the

relative building areas are factored into the analysis because special benefits are related to the

average size of a property, in addition to average population densities. For a condominium, this

calculation results in an SFE factor of 0.40 per dwelling unit. A similar calculation is used for the

SFE Rates for other residential property types.

Commercial

SFE values for commercial and industrial land uses are based on the equivalence of special benefit

on a land area basis between single family residential property and the average

commercial/industrial property. The SFE values for various commercial and industrial land uses

are further defined by using average employee densities because the special benefit factors

described previously can be measured by the average number of people who work at

commercial/industrial properties.

ln order to determine employee density factors, the findings from the San Diego Association of

Governments Traffic Generators Study (the "SANDAG Study") are used because these findings

were approved by the State Legislature as being a good representation of the average number of

employees per acre of land area for commercial and industrial properties. As determined by the

SANDAG Study, the average number of employees per acre for commercial and industrial

property is 24.

ln comparison, the average number of people residing in a single family home in the area is 2.91.

Since the average lot size for a single family home in the Assessment District is approximately 0.20

acres, the average number of residents per acre of residential property is 14.55.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts

Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 93

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 34

The employee density per acre is generally 1,.65 times the population density of single family

residential property per acre (24 employees per acre / 14.55 residents per acre). Therefore, the

average employee density can be used as the basis for allocating benefit to commercial or

industrial property since a commercial/industrial property with 4.8 employees receives generally

similar special benefit to a residential property with 1 resident. This factor of equivalence of

benefit between 1 resident to 4.8 employees is the basis for allocating commercial/industrial

benefit. Table 2 below shows the average employees per acre of land area or portion thereof for

commercial and industrial properties and lists the relative SFE factors per quarter acre for

properties in each land use category.

Commercial and industrial properties in excess of 5 acres generally involve uses that are more

land intensive relative to building areas and number of employees (lower coverage ratios). As a

result, the benefit factors for commercial and industrial property land area in excess of 5 acres is

determined to be the SFE rate per quarter acre for the first 5 acres and the relevant SFE rate per

each additional acre over 5 acres.

lnstitutional properties that are used for residential, commercial or industrial purposes are also

assessed at the appropriate residential, commercial or industrial rate.

Vacant

The benefit to vacant properties is determined to be proport[onal to the corresponding benefits

for similar type developed properties; however, at a lower rate due to the lack of improvements

on the property. A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land is the average value

of land in relation to lmprovements for developed property. The SFE factor for

vacant/undeveloped parcels is 0.25 per parcel.

The benefit to undeveloped properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding

benefits for similar type developed properties, but at a lower rate due to the lack of improvements

on the property. A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land is the average value of

land in relation to lmprovements for developed property. An analysis of the assessed valuation

data from the County of Sacramento found that approximately 25% of the assessed value of

improved properties is classified as the land value. lt is reasonable to assume, therefore, that

approximately 25% of the benefits are related to the underlying land and 75% are related to the

improvements and the day-to-day use of the property. Using this ratio, the SFE factor for

vacant/undeveloped parcels is 0.25 per parcel.

Other Properties

Article XlllD stipulates that publicly owned properties must be assessed unless there is clear and

convincing evidence that those properties receive no special benefit from the assessment.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts

Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 94

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 35

All properties that are specially benefited are assessed. Other publicly owned property that is

used for purposes similar to private residential, commercial, industrial or institutional uses is

benefited and assessed at the same rate as such privately owned property.

Miscellaneous, public right-of-way parcels, well, reservoir or other water rights parcels, limited

access open space parcels, watershed parcels and common area parcels typically do not generate

employees, residents, customers or guests. Moreover, many of these parcels have limited

economic value and, therefore, do not benefit from specific enhancement of property value. Such

parcels are, therefore, not specially benefited and are not assessed.

ln 201"5, when the Broadstone No. 4 was formed, an analysis was performed of the associated

lighting and landscaping improvements to determine the relative benefit to each zone from this

new assessment. As a result, four Zones of Benefit were created within Broadstone No. 4. Parcels

in Zone B are determined to receive 95.25% of the level of special benefit of those within Zone A,

parcels in Zone C are determined to receive 93.87% of the level of special benefit of those within

Zone A, and parcels in Zone D are determined to receive 92.23% of the level of special benefit of

those within Zone A.

Broadstone No. 4 properties are assessed per Assessment Table 7, below:

Assessment Table 7

Description SFEs

Single Family Parcel 1.00

Multi-Family Parcels, per unit (2 to 4 units) 0.27

Multi-Family Parcels, per unit (5+ units) 0.22

Condo 0.40

Mobile Home (separate lot) o.20

Commercial, shopping center 0.50

Office L.42

Vacant 0.25

Briggs Ranch

There are 642 residential lots and each one is assigned l- benefit unit (SFE). Undeveloped

residential parcels APN: 071-L1-90-007, 008, 010, 01L and 012 are assessed based on 2.2 SFEs per

acre.

Briggs Ranch properties are assessed per Assessment Table 8, on the next page, as per the original

formation documents:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 95

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 36

Assessment Table 8

Description SFEs

Single Family Parcel 1.0000

Undeveloped Single Family, per acre 2.2000

Non Assessed (e.g. open space, park land etc.) 0.0000

Folsom Heights

There are 288 residential lots and each one is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE.) APN 071-1050-050 is

assessed 4,1 SFEs per acre.

Folsom Heights properties are assessed per Assessment Table 9, below, as per the original

formation documents:

Assessment Table 9

Description SFEs

Single Family Parcel 1.0000

Undeveloped Single Family, per acre 4.1000

Multi Family, per unit 0.5000

Non Assessed (e.g. open space, park land etc.) 0.0000

Natoma Station

There are 1.272single family residential lots and each one is assigned 1SFEs. There are 94,99

acres of Commercial and each one is assigned .6299 SFEs per acre. There are 21.03 acres of Multi

Family and each one is assign ed 3.2337 SFEs per acre.

Natoma Station properties are assessed per Assessment Table L0, on the next page, as per the

original formation documents;

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 96

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 37

Assessment Table 10

Description SFEs

Single Family Parcel 1.0000

Commercial outside of Lot X, per acre 0.6299

Commercial inside of Lot X, per acre 4.2487

Multi Family, per acre 3.2337

Non Assessed (e.g. open space, park land etc.) 0.0000

Prospect Ridge

The assessments provide comprehensive lmprovements that will clearly confer special benefits

to properties in the Assessment District. The allocation of special benefits to property is partially

based on the type of property and the size of property. These benefits can also partially be

measured by the occupants on property in the Assessment District because such parcel

population density is a measure of the relative benefit a parcel receives from the lmprovements.

It should be noted that many other types of "traditional" assessments also use parcel population

densities to apportion the assessments. For example, the assessments for sewer systems, roads

and water systems are typically allocated based on the population density of the parcels assessed.

Therefore, the apportionment of benefit is reasonably based the type of parcel, the size of parcels

ad the population density of parcels.

The primary step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit for each

property. This process involves determining the relative benefit received by each property in

relation to a single family home, or, in other words, on the basis of Single Family Equivalents (SFE).

This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute assessments in proportion to estimated

special benefit and is generally recognized as providing the basis for a fair and appropriate

distribution of assessments. For the purposes of this Engineer's Report, all properties are

designated a SFE value, which is each property's relative benefit in relation to a single family home

on one parcel. ln this case, the "benchmark" property is the single family detached dwelling which

is one Single Family Equivalent or one SFE.

ln the process of determining the appropriate method of assessment, the Engineer considered

various alternatives. For example, an assessment only for all residential improved property was

considered but was determined to be inappropriate because commercial, industrial and other

properties also receive direct benefits from the lmprovements.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 97

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 38

Moreover, a fixed or flat assessment for all properties of similar type was deemed to be

inappropriate because larger properties receive a higher degree of benefit than other similarly

used properties that are significantly smaller, (For two properties used for commercial purposes,

there is clearly a higher benefit provided to the larger property in comparison to a smaller

commercial property because the larger property generally supports a larger building and has

higher numbers of employees, customers and guests that would benefit from proximity and

improved access to well maintained and improved landscaped areas. So the potential population

of employees or residents is a measure of the special benefits received by the property.) Larger

parcels, therefore, receive an increased benefit from the assessments.

Finally, the special benefits to be derived from the proposed assessments will be conferred on

property and are not based on a specific property owner's use of the improvements, or a specific

property owner's occupancy of property or the property owner's demographic status such as age

or number of dependents, However, it is ultimately people who value the special benefits

described above and use and enjoy the Assessment District's landscaped areas. ln other words,

the benefits derived to property are related to the average number of people who could

potentially live on, work at, or otherwise could use a property, not how the property is currently

used by the present owner. Therefore, the number of people who could or potentially live on,

work at or otherwise use a property is one indicator of the relative level of benefit received by a

property.

ln conclusion, the Assessment Engineer determined that the appropriate method of assessment

apportionment should be based on the type and use of property, the relative size of the property,

its relative population and usage potential and its proximity to landscaped areas. This method is

further described below.

Residential

Assessment Table 11

Tvpe of Residential Property
Pop. Density
Equivalent

SqFt
Factor

Proposed
Rate

Single Family Residential

Condominium
Duplex, Triplex, Fourplex

Multi-Family Residential (5+ Units)

Mobile Home on Separate Lot

1.00

4.73

0.64

0.64

o.45

1.00

0.55

o.42

0.34

0.45

1.00

0.40

o.27

o.22

o.20

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 98

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 39

Commercial/l ndustrial Properties

Assessment Table 12

Vacant Properties

The benefit to vacant properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding benefits

for similar type developed properties; however, at a lower rate due to the lack of improvements

on the property. A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land is the average value

of land in relation to lmprovements for developed property. The SFE factor for

vacant/undeveloped parcels is 0.25 per parcel.

The benefit to undeveloped properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding

benefits for similar type -developed properties, but at a lower rate due to the lack of improvements

on the property. A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land is the average value of

land in relation to lmprovements for developed property. An analysis of the assessed valuation

data from the County of Sacramento found that approximately 25% of the assessed value of

improved properties is classified as the land value. lt is reasonable to assume, therefore, that

approximately 25% of the benefits are related to the underlying land and75% are related to the

improvements and the day-to-day use of the property. Using this ratio, the SFE factor for

vacant/undeveloped parcels is 0.25 per parcel.

0ther Properties

Article XlllD stipulates that publicly owned properties must be assessed unless there is clear and

convincing evidence that those properties receive no special benefit from the assessment.

All properties that are specially benefited are assessed. Other publicly owned property that is

used for purposes similar to private residential, commercial, industrial or institutional uses is

benefited and assessed at the same rate as such privately owned property,

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

Type of Com m erci al /ln d udri al
Land U*

Average
Employees
Per Acre 1

SFE Units
per

Quafter Acre 2

SFE Units
per

Acre After 5

Commercial
Ofice
Shopping Center
Offce
Self Storage or Parking Lot

0.500
1.420
0"500
0.500
0.o21

24
68
24
24

1

0.500
1.420
0.500
0.500

0.033
0.004
0.002

Golf Course
Cemeteries 0.10

0.05

SClConsultingGroup

Page 99

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 40

Miscellaneous, public right-of-way parcels, well, reservoir or other water rights parcels, limited

access open space parcels, watershed parcels and common area parcels typically do not generate

employees, residents, customers or guests. Moreover, many of these parcels have limited

economic value and, therefore, do not benefit from specific enhancement of property value. Such

parcels are, therefore, not specially benefited and are not assessed.

Prairie Oaks Ranch

There are 855 residential lots and each one is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE). There is one multi-

family parcel and it is being assessed 57 SFEs. There is one proposed school site and it is being

assessed 5.62 SFEs, or the cost of maintaining its' frontage.

Prairie Oaks Ranch properties are assessed per Assessment Table 13, below, as per the original

formation documents:

Assessment Table 13

Description SFEs

Single Family Parcel 1.0000

Proposed School Site, per parcel 5.6300

Multi Family, per unit 1.0000

Non Assessed (e.g, open space, park land etc.) 0.0000

Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2

The proposed assessments will provide additional maintenance and servicing of existing

improvements that will clearly confer special benefits to properties in the Assessment District.

The allocation of special benefits to property is partially based on the type of property and the

size of property. These benefits can also partially be measured by the occupants on property in

the Assessment District because such parcel population density is a measure of the relative

benefit a parcel receives from the improvements. lt should be noted that many other types of

"traditional" assessments also use parcel population densities to apportion the assessments. For

example, the assessments for sewer systems, roads and water systems are typically allocated

based on the population density of the parcels assessed. Therefore, the apportionment of benefit

is reasonably based the type of parcel, the size of parcels and the population density of parcels.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 100

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 4t

The primary step in apportioning assessments is to determine the relative special benefit for each

property. This process involves determining the relative benefit received by each property in

relation to a single-family home, or, in other words, on the basis of Single Family Equivalents (SFE).

This SFE methodology is commonly used to distribute assessments in proportion to estimated

special benefit and is generally recognized as providing the basis for a fair and appropriate

distribution of assessments. For the purposes of this Engineer's Report, all properties are

designated an SFE value, which is each property's relative benefit in relation to a single-family

home on one parcel. ln this case, the "benchmark" property is the single-family detached dwelling

which is one Single Family Equivalent or one SFE that currently total to 899.4.

Moreover, a fixed or flat assessment for all commercial properties of similar type was deemed to

be inappropriate because larger commercial properties receive a higher degree of benefit than

other similarly used properties that are significantly smaller. (For two properties used for

commercial purposes, there is clearly a higher benefit provided to the larger property in

comparison to a smaller commercial property because the larger property generally supports a

larger building and has higher numbers of employees, customers and guests that would benefit

from proximity and improved access to well maintained and improved landscaped areas. So the

potential population of employees or residents is a measure of the special benefits received by

the property.) Larger parcels, therefore, receive an increased benefit from the assessments.

Finally, the special benefits to be derived from the proposed assessments will be conferred on

property and are not based on a specific property owner's use of the improvements, or a specific

property owner's occupancy of property or the property owner's demographic status such as age

or number of dependents. However, it is ultimately people who value the special benefits

described above and use and enjoy the Assessment District's landscaped areas. ln other words,

the benefits derived to property are related to the average number of people who could

potentially live on, work at, or otherwise could use a property, not how the property is currently

used by the present owner. Therefore, the number of people who could or potentially live on,

work at or otherwise use a property is one indicator of the relative level of benefit received by a

property.

ln conclusion, the Assessment Engineer determined that the appropriate method of assessment

apportionment should be based on the type and use of property, the relative size of the property,

its relative population and usage potential and its proximity to landscaped areas. This method is

further described on the next page.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 101

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 42

Residential Properties

Assessment Table 14

Commercial/l ndustrial Properties

Assessment Table 15

Type ol Com m erct al/hclu*l at
Lend L&

Avera'ge
Emplolle,€6
furActg I

SFE Untts
pQr

Quarfrr Aere 2

SFE {.lrrits
per

Acra Altbr 5

Comm6rcial
Ofrice
Shopping Center
Ofice
Sslf Storao€ or Parklno Lot

24
68
24
24

1

0.500
1.420
0.500
0.500
0.021

0.500
1.420
0.500
0.500

Golf Course
C€m€l6rles
Agrlcultur€

0.80
0.10
0.05

0.033
0.004
0.002

Vacant Properties

The benefit to undeveloped properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding

benefits for similar type developed properties, but at a lower rate due to the lack of improvements

on the property. A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land is the average value of

land in relation to improvements for developed property. An analysis of the assessed valuation

data from the County of Sacramento found that approximately 25% of the assessed value of

improved properties is classified as the land value. lt is reasonable to assume, therefore, that

approximately 25% of the benefits are related to the underlying land and 75% are related to the

improvements and the day-to-day use of the property. Using this ratio, the SFE factor for

vacant/undeveloped parcels is 0.25 per parcel.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

Pop. Denslty
Equlvalent

SqR SFE

Factor1}me of Resldentlal Properly Faclor

Single Family Residential

Condominium
Duplax Triplex, Fourplex

Multi-Family Residenlial (5+ Units)

Mobile Home on Separab Lot

1.00

0.73
0.77
0.72
0.58

1.00

0.58

0.42

0.30
0.43

1.00

042
0.32
022
025

SClConsultingGroup

Page 102

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 43

Willow Creek Estates East No. 2
Zones of Benefit

As part of the engineering work for this assessment, an analysis was conducted on the relationship

(including proximity, level of service, etc.), between properties and the primary improvements

located throughout the Assessment District. Parcels in Zone A (on Garrett Drive, Ferrera Drive

and Whitmer Drive) receive direct special benefit from the proximate landscaping and trees

adjacent to the properties as well as less proximate streetlighting. Parcels in Zone B receive direct

special benefit from the proximate streetlighting as well as landscaping particularly along the

street entrances into the neighborhood. Zone C receive direct special benefit from the proximate

streetlighting but lees benefit from the landscaping because they are less proximate to the

landscaped areas.

Thus, three zones (A, B, and C) were created as shown on the assessment diagram. Parcels in Zone

A are determined to receive same level of the level of special benefit of those within Zone B and

parcels in Zone C are determined to receive 92.08% of the level of special benefit of those within

Zone A and Zone B.

The SVIA decision indicates

ln a well-drawn district - limited to only porcels receiving special benefits from the

improvement - every parcel within that district receives o shared special benefit. Under

section 2, subdivision (i), these benefits can be construed as being general benefits since

they are not "particular and distinct" ond ore not "over and sbove" the benefits received

by other properties "located in the district."
We do not believe thot the voters intended to invalidote on qssessment district that is

norrowly drawn to include only properties directly benefiting from an improvement.

lndeed, the ballot materials reflect atherwise. Thus, if dn assessment district is narrowly

drawn, the fact that a benefit is conferred throughout the district does not make it general

rather thon special. tn that circumstance, the characterizotion of a benefit may depend on

whether the parcel receives a direct advantoge from the improvement (e.9., proximity to
park) or receives on indirect, derivative advantage resulting from the overall public

benefits of the improvement (e.g., general enhancement of the district's property values).

ln the Assessment District, the advantage that each parcel receives from the lmprovements is

direct, and the boundaries are narrowly drawn to include only parcels that benefit from the

assessment. Therefore, the even spread of assessment throughout each narrowly drawn Zone of

Benefit is indeed consistent with the SVIA decision and satisfies the "direct relationship to the

"locality of the improvement" standard.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 103

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 44

Residential Properties

Assessment Table 15

Commercial/l ndustrial Properties

Assessment Table 17

Vacant Properties

The benefit to vacant properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding benefits

for similar type developed properties; however, at a lower rate due to the lack of improvements

on the property. A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land is the average value

of land in relation to lmprovements for developed property. The SFE factor for

vacant/undeveloped parcels is 0.25 per parcel.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

Tvne of Recklential Prooertv
Pop. Densfty
Eouivalent

SqFt
Factor

Proposed
Rate

Single Fanily Residential

Condominium

Dupbx Triplex Fourpbx

Mulli-Fanily Residential (5+ Units)

Mobih Home on Separaie Lot

1.00

0.73

0.64

0.64

0.45

1.00

0.55

0.42

034
0.45

1.00

0.40

0.27

0.22
0.20

TWe o, @ m merci atlhtd u&rial
Ldrd U&

Avqage
Employee6
fur Acre I

SFE UDitS
pQr

Quartq Acre '

SF€ Units
per

Acre After 5

Commcrcial
Offce
Shopftnq Cerler
Oflicc
Sclt Storide or Pdrkino Lot

24

58

24
24
1

0.500
1.420
0.s00
0.500
0.021

0.500
1.420
0.500
0.500

gricdturc

Course
enes 0.10

0.0s
0.00.1

0.002

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 104

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 45

The benefit to undeveloped properties is determined to be proportional to the corresponding

benefits for similar type developed properties, but at a lower rate due to the lack of improvements

on the property. A measure of the benefits accruing to the underlying land is the average value of

land in relation to lmprovements for developed property. An analysis of the assessed valuation

data from the County of Sacramento found that approximately 25% of the assessed value of

improved properties is classified as the land value. lt is reasonable to assume, therefore, that

approximately 25% of the benefits are related to the underlying land and 75% are related to the

improvements and the day-to-day use of the property. Using this ratio, the SFE factor for

vacant/undeveloped parcels is 0.25 per parcel.

Other Properties

Article XlllD stipulates that publicly owned properties must be assessed unless there is clear and

convincing evidence that those properties receive no special benefit from the assessment.

All properties that are specially benefited are assessed. Other publicly owned property that is

used for purposes similar to private residential, commercial, industrial or institutional uses is

benefited and assessed at the same rate as such privately owned property'

Miscellaneous, public right-of-way parcels, well, reservoir or other water rights parcels, limited

access open space parcels, watershed parcels and common area parcels typically do not generate

employees, residents, customers or guests. Moreover, many of these parcels have limited

economic value and, therefore, do not benefit from specific enhancement of property value. Such

parcels are, therefore, not specially benefited and are not assessed.

Willow Creek Estates South

There are 1102 residential lots in Village 1, 2, 3 (lots 41-93 and 155-165), 4-7 and 9A and each one

is assigned 1 benefit unit (SFE.) There are 243 residential lots in Village 8 and 9b and each one is

assigned 1.086 benefit unit (SFE). There are 64 residential lots in Village 3 (lots 41-93 and 155-

155), and each one is assigned 1.256 benefit unit (SFE). There are 10 Lexington Business Park

parcels and they are assessed at 0.618 SFEs per parcel. There are 3 Lexington Square parcels and

they are assessed at2.47!0 SFEs per parcel.

Willow Creek Estates South properties are assessed per Assessment Table L8, on the next page,

as per the original formation documents:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts

Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 105

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 46

Assessment Table 18

Description SFEs

Single Family Parcel Village L,2,3 (lots 41-93 and 155-165),4-7 and 9A 1.0000

Single Family Parcel Village 8 and 9b 1.0870

Single Family Parcel Village 3 (lots 4L-93 and 155-155) 1.2550

Business Park Parcel 0.6180

Commercial Parcel 2.4710

Non Assessed (e.g. open space, park land etc.) 0.0000

Other Property Types

Public right-of-way parcels, well, reservoir or other water rights parcels, limited access open space

parcels, watershed parcels and common area parcels typically do not generate employees,

residents, customers or guests. Moreover, many of these parcels have limited economic value

and, therefore, do not benefit from specific lmprovement of property value. Such parcels are,

therefore, not specially benefited and are not assessed.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 106

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 47

Assessment

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom, County of Sacramento, California, pursuant to the provisions of the

Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 and Article XlllD of the California Constitution (collectively

"the Act"), initiated the preparation of an Engineer's Report for the City of Folsom Landscaping

and Lighting Districts;

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom directed the undersigned Engineer of Work to prepare and file a

report presenting an estimate of costs, a diagram for the Districts and an assessment of the

estimated costs of the improvements upon all assessable parcels within the Districts, to which the

description of said proposed improvements therein contained;

NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned, by virtue of the power vested in me under said Act and the

order of the City Council of said City of Folsom, hereby make the following assessment to cover

the portion of the estimated cost of said improvements, and the costs and expenses incidental

thereto to be paid by the Districts.

The amount to be paid for said improvements and the expense incidental thereto, to be paid by

the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts for the fiscal year 2022-23 is generally as

follows:

SummarV Cost Estimates

lmprovement Costs

lncidental Costs

Other Costs

Sz,ss,qsa.w
5337,758.15

563g,ooo.oo

Total lmprove ment Costs 53,8s2,244.24

As required by the Act, an Assessment Diagram is hereto attached and made a part hereof

showing the exterior boundaries of said City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts. The

distinctive number of each parcel or lot of land in the said City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting

Districts is its Assessor Parcel Number appearing on the Assessment Roll.

And I do hereby assess and apportion said net amount of the cost and expenses of said

improvements, including the costs and expenses incident thereto, upon the parcels and lots of

land within said City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts, in accordance with the special

benefits to be received by each parcel or lot, from the improvements, and more particularly set

forth in the Cost Estimate and Method of Assessment hereto attached and by reference made a

part hereof.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 107

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 48

The assessments are made upon the parcels or lots of land within the City of Folsom Landscaping

and Lighting Districts in proportion to the special benefits to be received by the parcels or lots of

land, from said improvements.

The Sierra Estates, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at American Canyon

ll Annexation to the Residences at American River Canyon, Cobble Ridge, Broadstone 3, and

Natoma Valley, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Prospect Ridge are subject to an annual

adjustment tied to the Consumer Price lndex for the San Francisco Area, with a maximum annual

adjustment not to exceed 4% and American River Canyon North 3, Blue Ravine No. 2, Folsom

Heights No. 2, and Prairie Oaks Ranch No.2 are subject a maximum annual adjustment not to

exceed 3%.

Any change in the CPI in excess of the maximum annual increase shall be cumulatively reserved

as the "Unused CPl" and shall be used to increase the maximum authorized assessment rate in

years in which the CPI is less than 4% for Sierra Estates, The Residences at American River Canyon,

The Residences at American Canyon ll Annexation to the Residences at American River Canyon,

Cobble Ridge, Broadstone 3, and Natoma Valley, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Prospect Ridge;

and is less than 3% for American River Canyon North 3, Blue Ravine No. 2, Folsom Heights No. 2

and Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2.

The proposed assessments for the Districts that are eligible for the CPI increase will be assessed

at the rate used in fiscal year 202L-2022 but are less than the maximum authorized rates.

Broadstone No.4 and Willow Creek East Estates No. 2 will be assessed at the maximum authorized

rate for fiscal year 2022-23.

District

Authorized
Rate

Proposed

Rate22-23

American River Canyon North No. 3 s294.90 s269.86

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2 s232.eo s2r3.26
Broadstone 3 sse.sg 528.07

Broadstone No. 4-Zone A s3s.s8 s3s.s8

Broadstone No. 4-Zone B sas.o0 s38.06

Broadstone No. 4-Zone C s37.s2 SEZ.SZ

Broadstone No.4-Zone D sso.so s36.80

Cobble Ridge 5227.73 Srag.e+

Folsom Heights No.2 5227.70 5208.38

Natoma Vallev 5972.s6 S8s6.37

Prospect Ridge $t,zzo.n S1,173.86

Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 s323.32 SSZS.SZ

The Residences s722.63 ss36.67

The Residences ll s1,499.93 sL,169.97

Sierra Estates s413.02 s363.68

Willow Creek East Eastates No 2-Zone A&B s1o3.s1 s1o3.s1

Willow Creek East Eastates No 2-Zone C sgs.rs sss.1s

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 108

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 49

Silverbrook is subject to an annual assessment for S132.32. However, there will be a credit in

2022-23 due to sufficiency of fund balance for current maintenance needs.

On April g, 2Ot3 by Resolution No. 9137, the Fieldstone Meadows Landscaping and Lighting

District was dissolved. The City will no longer be responsible for maintain the improvements nor

providing services within the Fieldstone Meadows Landscaping and Lighting District.

Union Square a benefit zone of Natoma Station will be maintained and serviced by their Home

Owner's Association and has not been levied since fiscal year 2009-10.

Each parcel or lot of land is described in the Assessment Roll by reference to its parcel number as

shown on the Assessor's Maps of the County of Sacramento for the fiscal year 2022-23. For a more

particular description of said property, reference is hereby made to the deeds and maps on file

and of record in the office of the County Recorder of said County'

I hereby place opposite the Assessor Parcel Number for each parcel or lot within the Assessment

Roll, the amount of the assessment for the fiscal year 2022-23 for each parcel or lot of land within

the said City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts.

Dated: June30,2O22

I
Engineer Work

John W. Bliss, License No. C52091

c 52091
**

4
c

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 109

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 50

Assessment Diagram

The boundaries of the City of Folsom Landscaping and Lighting Districts are displayed on the

following Assessment Diagram.

The specific lines and dimensions of each lot or parcel are on file at the City.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 110

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



American
River

Canyon No. 3 ^A,
FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK OF THE

CITY OF FOLSOM, COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO,
CALIFORNIA,THIS 

- 

DAY OF
2022.

NORTH CITY CLERK

American
River

Canyon No. 2

RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK
OF THECITY OF FOLSOM, COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO,
CALIFORNIA, THIS 

- 

DAY OF

_,2022.

Wllow Creek
East Estates No. 2

Zone A
Zone B
Zone C

CITY CLERK

The
AN ASSESSMENT WAS CONFIRIVIED AND LEVIED
BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOIVI
ON THE LOTS. PIECES AND
PARCELS OF LAND ON THIS ASSESSIVIENT DIAGRAIU
ON THE 

- 

DAY OF 

-,

2022FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022.23 AND SAID
ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM AND THE ASSESSI\iIENT
ROLL FOR SAID FISCAL YEAR WERE FILED IN THE
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY AUDITOR OF THE COUNTY
OF SACRAMENTO ON THE DAY OF

at American
River Canyon

Lake
Natoma
Shores

2022. REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID
RECORDED ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR THE EXACT
AMOUNT OF EACH ASSESSMENT LEVIED
AGAINST EACH PARCEL OF LAND.

CITY CLERK

FTLED TH|S _ DAY OF _,
2022, AT THE HOUR OF O'CLOCK

-, 
M. IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY

AUDITOR OF THE COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AT THE REQUEST OF
THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE CITY OF FOLSOIVI.

ffiEruro
Pairie Oaks Ranch No. 2

Prospect Ridge Note:

REFERFNCE IS HEREBY MADE TO THE IVIAPS AND DEEDS

OF RECORD IN THE OFFICE OF THE ASSESSOR OF THE

COUNTY OF SACRAI\iIENTO FOR A DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF
THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF ANY PARCELS SHOWN
HEREIN. THOSE I\4APS SHALL GOVERN FOR ALL DETAILS
CONCERNING THE LINES AND DIMENSIONS OF SUCH PARCELS,
EACH PARECL IS IDENTIFIED IN SAID MAPS BY ITS

DISTINCTIVE ASSESSORS'S PARCEL NUI\4BER.

Sierra Estates

CITY OF FOLSOM
LANDSGAPING AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICTS

ASSESSMENT DIAGRAM

Hannaford
C ross

River

Natoma Valley

/_ __ s!/
Brioos Inaiirr 

I

Hills Ridge ll/
Cobble
Ridge

Folsom
Heights

& Folsom

Blue
Ravine
Oaks

Blue
Ravine
Oaks
No. 2 Willow Creek

SouthNo. 2

'-
_i--

BroadstonJ- 
'r

Broadstone
No.1&2andNo.4

No. 3
Natoma
Station

Wllow

SCI Consulting Group
4745 Mangels Btud

Falfield CA S4534

707-4304300 Page 111

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 5L

Appendix A -- Budgets

The attached budgets for Fiscal Year 2022-23 are included for each of the Districts

Category Descriptions

Fund Balance Calculation:

This calculation determines funds available in a district. This calculation includes the included

funds remaining after being allocated to the estimated reserve.

Estimated Reserves

Estimated Reserve to finance approximately 6 months of the following year: This is approximately

45% of the operating and incidental costs of a Landscaping and Lighting District to fund the

operations until collected revenue is received from the County.

Short-Term lnstallments

Funds listed here are monies collected in prior years and set aside for future proposed

improvements projected to be completed within the next five years.

[ong-Term I nstallments

Funds listed here are monies collected in prior years and set aside for future proposed

improvements projected to be completed within five to thirty years.

Improvement Costs

General Maintenance Costs

. Scheduled: monthly landscape maintenance and service

r Unscheduled: unscheduled but potential costs for repairs (i.e. broken sprinklers and

irrigation systems), replacements (i.e. remove and replace dead tree or irrigation

controller), and other services (i.e. repair fence post or treat for a specific pest) not

included in monthly maintenance and service costs

r Streetlights: repair and replace bulbs and ballasts in streetlights

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts

Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 112

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 52

Service Costs

. Electrical: electric costs for streetlight maintenance and power to irrigation controllers
r Water: water costs to irrigate landscaping

Current Year fmprovement Projects

Funded improvements planned to occur in the upcoming fiscal year

lncidental Costs

Professional Services: consultant cost for Engineer's Report and lmprovement Plan

Contract Services: other contracts or professional services such as backflow testing

(yearly tests), vector control, graffiti removal, and streetlight pole replacement

Publications/Mailings/Communications: yearly notices in public hearings, mailings to

Advisory Committee Members, and telephone expenses

Staff: Landscaping and Lighting District Manager and/or inspector, clerical support,

and/or other city staff.

Overhead: General overhead (Landscaping and Lighting Districts' share of general

overhead categories such as City Clerk, City Attorney, City Manager, etc,) and

Department overhead (Landscaping and Lighting Districts' share of department

overhead categories such as City Attorney, City Clerk and Finance Dept. Costs).

County Auditor Fee: Per Parcel Fee charged by County to put levy on tax bills

Total lmprovement Costs

This is the total of all improvement costs budgeted for the upcoming year. This cost includes

current improvements that are funded by fund balance monies. Fund balance monies are monies

that have been collected in prior years in anticipation of being used for specific improvements

and/or intended for replacement or improvement of capital items within a district.

Assessment to Property (Current)

This calculation takes the number of single-family equivalent benefit units and multiplies it by the

amount that each property within a district is will be assessed for the upcoming year. This is the

total assessment amount that will be generated by the properties within the District.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2A22-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 113

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 53

District Balance

The purpose of this calculation is to describe all costs expected to occur in the upcoming year, any

installments being collected as part of the upcoming year's assessment and contributions from

other sources. The outcome of the calculation is the total assessment for the district. A surplus

would be applied and/or credited to the upcoming year's assessment. lf there are insufficient

funds in the fund balance to cover the 6-month reserve, or the current and/or proposed

improvements, then a deficit would exist. A deficit generally indicates that an increase in

assessment may be necessary (requiring voter approval with a simple majority), however there

may be a one-time reason for the deficit and an increase may not be necessary. Deficit situations

are reviewed and analyzed on a case-by-case basis.

Net Assessment Calculation

This calculation determines the net assessment after the surplus or deficit is factored into the

calculation. lf a deficit exists, the net assessment will indicate that the assessment for the district

might be too low. lf a surplus exists, the net assessment will indicate that the assessment for the

district might be too high. Any increased adjustments require voter approval (simple majority).

Allocated Net Assessment to Property

This calculation takes the net assessment for the district that was calculated above (i.e. factoring

in a surplus or deficit) and divides it by the number of single-family equivalent benefit units. The

outcome of the calculation is the total allocated net assessment per single-family equivalent

benefit unit. This calculation is generally the same as the allocated assessment however if there

is a deficit it will indicate the revised amount that would be required to eliminate the deficit.

Conversely if there is a surplus the calculation would show the amount that the assessment could

be reduced by and still cover the anticipated costs for current and future years.

Comparison of Net Assessment and Assessment

Shows a comparison of the net assessment and the current assessment and indicates a per parcel

deficit or surplus.

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 114

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 54

Stortinq Fund Bdlance (as otApril 2022)
Estimated ReseNe to Jinonce approx. JiBt 6 months of 22-23

S106,2o4.19
(546,e81.82)

Clty of Folsom
herican Rlver Nonh bnds€aping and Lithtint Dlstrld

Fund 253
2022-29

lmorovement &ss

General Mainten.nce CoSs
1. Scheduled
2. Unscheduledr
3- Streetlights*
4. lrdgation

9o.oo
So-oo

ss,s00.oo
s11,OOO.OO

SsryEclEE
5. ElecFical* s3O,O0O.OO

53s,000.00

current Year lmbrovement Prolects
7. sien rehab, ladderfuel removal s65,0OO.OO

subtotdl of ltem 7 S6s,m.m
subtotal s146,sO0.OO

bdCel!3!.less
8. Professional Seruices (EnClneer's Repod and lP)

L Contract Seruices {all oth€r contra€ts and seruices)*
1o. Publications/Mailings/communications
11- staff
12. overh€ad
13. county Auditor Fee

57so.oo
So.oo
9o.oo
50.oo

s4,966.OO
ss93.s4

$8,309.54

Total lmprovement Cosis Srs2,8o9.54

A$esrment to Propefrv lcur.€ntl

Asessment per Sinele Familv Equivalent

Single Family Equivalent Benefit Unlts
s102.94

7,O22

$1O5,2O4.6a

n$allment Cois lsee installmeht Plan and Summaru n€t oase)

Shod-Term lnstallment Plan {previously collected)
Long-Term lnstallment Plan (previously colle€ted)

shod-Term tnstallment Plan {colle€ted this year)

LonB-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

ToEl lnsallm€ht 6$s

so.oo
s14,695.OO

So.oo
So oo

s14,595.O0

Dl*rl.t Balance
Total Assessment to propeny
Total Improvement Cosb

Subtotal
Total Available Funds

Total Funds

Total lnstallment cosc
conFibutions f rom other sources

Net Balance

S1o5,2o4.6a
(s1s2,8O9.s4)

(s47,604.86)

ssg,222.31
s11,617.51

{sx4,695.o0)
So.oo

153,071.49)

District Balanc€ lsurplus is +; deticit is 0) l$3,077.49)

Net Assessment Glc!lation

Surplus or Deficit {surplus is sublracted; deficit is added}

Net Assessment

$1o5,2o4.08
33,077.49

sroa,2a2,77

Alss!c!L!e!-AEe!:4edls.L@!v
Net Assessment
Single Family Equival€nt Benefit Unib
Allocaled Net Asessment to Property

91O8,282.U

4
S10s.9s

Comparlson ot Net Assessmeht and Assesiment
Allocated Nel As.essment to Propefry
Allocated Ass€ssm€ht to Propedy
Per P.r.el Surplus {+} or D€tlclt G)

($1os'9s)

-tgc3-

(S3'o1)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 115

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 55

American River Canyon North - lnstallment Summary

American River Canyon NorthDistrict:
2022-2tFiscal Year:

s6s.179Fund Balance (2022)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

So s0 So So SoSo So $oTotals:

Long Term lnstallment Summary

s33.333 Sloo.ooos1.200 S14,69s s3,333 S13,333 s16,667 S33,333Waterfall Pond Liner (concrete and other)
s2.500 Slo.ooo s12,s00 S2s,ooo s2s,000 s7s,000S2,soo soWaterfall pumps, autofill, filters, clorination systern

s175.000S14.69s ss.833 S23.333 s29,167 SsB,333 s58,333fotals: S3,7oo

i rl,r'r r.,.rr 'i V,-, :i "/, lrl ,l
,) i:l lt'.) '):t) )t.)

r,',f i1 ''
) (1 ).1

rrlil ti''i:l
ir iir; illl til,iiilt.i il:l:ii rr

.lil l.;rilft r,i...i1i(irji), ll,irlii,l{:ltt,, ;:j ilrr-t,

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 116

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 56

Stortins Fund Balance (os of April 2022)

Estimoted Reseve to ftnance opprox.JiEt 6 monttu of 22-23
$168,618.22

(Ss,ss1.82)

€lty of Folsom
Merlcan River Cahyoh Nonh No. 2 Landscaping and LiShtinA Dlstrlct

Fund 27O - llShts OhlY
2022-23

lmprovement Co*s

General Malntenanc€ Co*s
1. scheduled
2. Unscheduled
3. Streetlishts

so.oo
So.oo

53O,OOO.OO

Seruice Costs
4. Electracal s1,OOO.OO

So.oo

Orr€nt Year lmprovement Proiects
6. LED conversion s2s,000.00

Subtotal oJ ltem 6 S2s,ooo.oo
s56,0OO.OO

lhcld€ntal Coss
7. Professional seruices (Ensineer's Repod and lP)

a. Contract Seruices (3ll other contracts and services)

9. Publications/Mailings/communications
10. Staff
11. overhead
12. countyAuditor Fee

s75O.OO

So.oo
so.oo
So.oo

S631.oo
S94.4o

Subtotal

Total lmprov€ment cods

s1.475.40

ss?,475.40

\ssesment to Probetv lcurrent)

Assessment oer Sinsle Famaly €quivalent
Sinsie Famllv Equlvalent Benefit Units

S7t.1o
150

S12,432.o0

niallmenr cods lsee in$allmcnt Plan and Summarv nen baee)

Shod-T€rm lnstallment Pian (previously collected)
Long-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
shofr-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

Long-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

Total ln$allment 6sts

So.oo
S203,688.o0

50.o0
s16,OOO.O0

s219,68a.O0

)lstrict Balance
Total ksessment
Total lmprovement Costs

Subtotal
Total Available Funds

Total Funds

Total lnstallment costs
Contributions from other sources

s12,432.0O
(ss7,47s.4O)
(s4s,043.40)

5163,055.4O
s118,023.0o

(s219,638.00)

so.oo
(s101,665.00)

Distrlct aalance (surplus is +; dellcit is 0) {5101,66s.00)

s12,432.m
suplus or Deficit {surplus is subtracted; deficit is added)

-i1@-$114,097.m

s114,O97.@

J
s713.11

Allocated Nei Assessment to ProDeitv
Net Assessment
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Allocated Net Assessment to Property

Qmbarlson of Net Assessment and Ass€ssment

Allocated Net Assessment to Property

Per Parcel surplus {+) or Deflclt G)

(S713.11)

-w9-
(9G3s.41)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 117

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 57

American River Canyon North No' 2 - Installment Summary

llishts)American River Canyon North #2Distrist:
2022-23Fiscal Year:

S170,4s8Fund Balance

Short Term lnstallment Summary

So SO 5o soSO So $o$oTotals:

Long Term lnstallment Summary

s10.000 s20,000 s20,000 s6o,oooSs7.s87 S2,ooo s8,oooS2,oooles 250
Sso.ooo Sso,ooo S24o,ooos66.101 S8,ooo S32,ooo S4o,ooos8,000Pole Replacement

Sloo,ooo S3oo,oooSlo.ooo S4o,ooo Sso,ooo sloo,oooSlo,ooo S123,G88Totals:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultlngGrouP

Page 118

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

Page 58

stoding Fund Balonce (ds ol Aptil 2022)
Estimoted Reserue to Jinance dpptox. litst 6 months oJ 22-23

51,O11,292.O1
(s110,8X8.77)

6€n.ral Maintehance Cosis

s2so,m.m _
s373,600.00

s250,OOO.OO

Subtotal

1. S€heduled
2. Unscheduled

3. StreetlighB
4. lriigation Pads

Sgrv!!919$s
5. Electrical

$7so.oo
5o.oo
So.oo

s1s,3s1.OO
ss,387.OO

s542.54

subtotal

Total lmprovement costs

s22,030.s4

s395,630.54

STo,ooo.oo
sso,o0o.oo

so.oo
S3,3oo.oo

s300.oo
so.oo

Current Year lmorovemeht Proiects
7. Landscapeimprovements

a. Professionai seruices (Engineer's Repoft ahd lP)

9. Contract seruices (all othercontBcts and seruices)

10. Publications/Mailinas/communications
11. Staff
12. Overhead
13. County Auditor Fee

Assessment per Single Family Equivalent
Slngle Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Total Asessment 524a,752.46

s269.86
91S 56

Short-Term lnstallmeht Plan lpreviously collected)
Lons-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
shoft-Term lnstallment Plan {collected this yea.)

Long-Term lnstallmeht Plan (collected this year)

Total lhstallm€nt coss 3769,0@.oo

5128,OOO.OO

s597,OOO.OO

s12,0O0.o0
s32,OOO.OO

Total Assessm€nt
Total lmprovement costs

Subtota I

Total Available Funds

Annual lnstallment (collected this year)
contributions lrom other sources

Dlstrlct Balance (surplus ls +r defi.li ls ())

s24B,1s2.46
{s39s,630.54)
lst47 ,47a.oal

(s16,0&.841

59OO,473.24
s752,995.16

{s759,OOO.OO)

So.oo
(s16,0O4.84)

surplus or Deficit {surplus ls subtractedj deficit is added)
s248,152.45

-!1144
s254,1s7.30

Clty ot Folsom

Ameri6n Rlver Canyon North No. 3 LandscaplnA and Llghting Distrid
Fund 27S
2022-2e

allocat€d Net assessment to Proo€dv
Net Asessment
single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Allocated Net Assessment to Property

s2641s7.30

--
s287.26

Combarison of Net Asse$ment and Ass€ssmeht
(9287.25)

---t4gg-
($17.4o)

Allocated Assessment to PropertY
Per Parc€l surplos (+) or D€tlclt G)

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 119

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 59

American River Canyon North No, 3 - lnstallment Summary

District: American River Canyon North S3

2022-2?Fiscal Year:

Fund Balance 12022) S1,078,365

Short Term lnstallment summarv

s3.000 S 1s.ooolrrisation controller uoErade-centralized {1 controller) S4.ooo So s4,000 s4,000 s4,ooo S4,ooo
s13.000 s3.000 s3.000 s3.000 s3.000 s3.000 s60,000SisnaPe ReDlacement S2,ooo

s2.000 s2.000 S25.oooS4,ooo S8.ooo s2,000 S2,ooo S2,oooMvstic Hills replace missing landscape

s8.000 s100.000s10.000 s21,000 59,ooo S9,ooo 59,ooo $9,oooTotals:

Long Term lnstallment Summary

s1.000 s12.000 s1.000 s1.000 S1.ooo s1.000 s1.000 STs,oooWaterfall Rock Repair
ss.000 ss.000 s350.000Ss,ooo s60,000 Ss,ooo Ss,ooo Ss,oooBaldwin Dam Path Repair

S5.ooo s60.000 Ss.ooo S5.ooo ss.000 ss,000 s5.000 s300,000Tree and landscape imDrovement (or replacement)
E2.000 s2.000 S2.ooo s135.000S2,ooo s163,000 92,000 s2,000ARC Drive/Canyon Falls (Cascade perimeter), landscape/

remove, reDlace trees,mow band replacement
s10.000 s10-000 Slo.ooo s10-000 Slso.oooMain Walkins Trail landscaDins. irrieation. stairs. clean-up s10,000 s102,000 Slo,ooo

s23.000 323.ooo s23.000 s23.000 323.ooo s1,010,000Totals: s23,000 s397,000

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 120

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 60

startins Fund Bolonce (as oJ Aptil 2022)

Estimoted ReseNe to linonce apprcx. fitst 5 montht oJ 22-23
S1oo,274.sg
(s16,107.s3)

ciry of Folsom
Blue Ravlne Oaks landscapln8 and lithtint Distrld

Fund 25O

2022-2t

General Maintehahce Costs

1. Scheduled
2. Uns€heduled
3. Streetlights

so.oo
so-oo

S1,zoo.oo

S€ruice ftsts
4. Electrical S4,ooo.oo

512,sOO.OO

Curreht Year lmErov€ment Proi€cts
6- No Planned Prcjects so.oo

subtotdl oJ ltem 6 Sm
917,7O0,OO

7. Professional seruices (Engineer's R€poft and lP)

a- contract SeNlces (all other contracts and servlces)

e. Pu bl icati ons/Ma i I i nss/c ommu ni.a ti ons

10. Staff

12. county Auditor Fee

s750.OO

So.oo
so.oo
so.oo

s1,496.00
Ss7.3s

subtotal

Total lmprovement Co*s

Sr"3#

$zo,q3.3s

Assessment per Sinsle Family Equivalent

Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units
s218.50

155

$35,059.O0

ln*allm€nt Costs lsee installment Plan and Summarv ned paee)

short-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
Lohg-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
short-Term lnstallment Plan {collected thas year)

Long-Term lnstallment Plan {coilected this year)

Toial lnstallment co*s

S11,ooo.oo
so.oo

s1,OOO.OO

so.oo
312,000,OO

Total lmprovement Costs
Subtotal

Total Available Funds

Total lnstallmeht cost
Contdbutions from other sources

s36,069.00
(s20,043.3s)

$16,025.6s
S84,167.0s

s1O0,192.70
(sx2,ooo.oo)

So.oo
saa,!92.7O

Distrlct Balance (surplus ts +; deficit ls 0) s8&192.70

s35,059.OO

Surplus or Deficit (surplus is subtracted; deficit is added) 1s88.192.701
(ss2,123.70)

Allocated Net Assessment to Propertv

SihBle Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Allocated Net Assessment to Property

($s2,123.7O)

J
l$31s.9o)

comoarison of N€t Assssment and Assersment
Allo.ated Net Assesshent to Propenv
Allocated Assessment to ProPerty

Per Parcel surFlus (+) or Deticit (-)

s31s.9O

,,1?!9.!o
s534.sO

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 121

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 6l-

Blue Ravine Oaks - lnstallment Summary

District: Blue Ravine Oaks (The Shores)

Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Fund Balance {2022) S108,044

Short Term lnstallment Summary

So s0 s0 So So Sofotals: $o $o

Long Term lnstallment Summary

ss.000 Sso.ooo Ss,ooo Ss.ooo S5,ooo s130,000Blue Ravine wall renair Ss,ooo Ss,ooo

Ss.ooo s5.000 Ss,ooo s130,000Ss,ooo Ss,ooo Ss,ooo Sso,oooTotals:

i ;il,tl"ll./,.r tJ j

:i .t:, iii, I rilr,r; I'

'\i;rr rr', tiil ii
)i:\) :) ' ,.|,t'ii ,

i. !i, i;

{"lrtlti:rrr,

)i,,.\t \')i) )\j;rl,tI ,, i

1t lii lli,lrlitfl,

'ri,r.liil,- 'irrt,1'.,.rr ,', '1 
"r,, 

; ' I t'r

:;ijl.):\ift,.t). '.)t().:).r ,tttt,)..,t',1 ,iL) I'j tri,l 1,

'i' i.-i, I

i ,')1:rj,)r irl:i

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultlngGroup

Page 122

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 62

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

stortins fund Bdtonce (as oJ Aptil 2022)
Estlmated ReseNetoJindnce apprcx. fhst 6months oJ 22'23

s180,575.m
(s1s,714.Os)

CliYol Folsom

Blue Ravine Oak No.2bndscaplngand UAhtina Distrid
Fund 27a
2022-23

€elEElM3i4glsE€leslt
1.

2.

3. Streetlights

S22,@o.06
s15,@0.@

so.s
s1,3m-@

5erul.e Cosb
5.

6.

Eledrical So.m
So.@

Curent Year lmorovement Proleds
7. Dripconve.sion/F€ncereplacefrent s15,W.m

SubtotaloJ lkm a S15,O0O.m

Subtotal s$,3e.06

a. Professional Seruices (Enelneer's Report and lP)

9. Contract Seruices (all other contracts and seruices)

10. Publications/Mailinss/communicatiohs
11. Statf
12. overhead
13. CountyAuditorFee

s7so.m
so.@
so.oo

s4,O8O.@

s99O.@
s97.35

Subtoral s5,917.3s

s59,297.41Total lmprovement Costs

Assessment per sincle Family Equivalent
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

5213.26
165

s3t187.S

lnstallmenr Costs ls€€ installmeht Plah and Summ.ryhext oa!€l

shod Term lnstallment Plan (previously colleded)
Lons-Term lnstallment Plah {previously collected)
Short-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

Long-Term lnstallment Plan {colleded this year)

Total lnsiallmehtcosis

s6,@0.@
s33,@O.OO

S1,mo.oo
54,2@.@

54,U.@

qi$d4E3fc@
Total Assessment
Total lmprovement Costs

subtotal
Total available Funds

Total Funds
Total lnstallment Cost
contributions from oth€r sources

N€t Balance

s35,187.s
(ssg,297.41)

{s24,109.s1)
91fl,9m.95
s14,851.4
(s4,8m.OO)

So.m
596,051.e

Dlstild Balanle lsurFlus ls+; dellcltis ()) S$,0s1.4

Surplus or Deficit {surplus is subtradedi deficit is added)
$35,r87.s
(ss,051.{l
(s@,863.v)

Allo.ated Net Assessmehtto ProDenv

Single Family Equivaleht Benefit Units

allo€ated Net assessment to Propedy

(ss,s3.e)
155

($34.87)

Comoailsonof NeiAsse.smentandAssessmeht
allocated Net Assessmeni to Property
Allocated Assessmentto PropetY
Per Parcel surplus (+) or Deficit (-)

s3S.87
s2A.26
ss82.13

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 123

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 63

Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2 - lnstallment Summary

Blue Ravine Oaks No,2District:
2022-23Fiscal Year:

s180,67sFund Balance (2022)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

S1.ooo s1.000 51,000 S1.ooo S3s,ooos1.000 S1,ooo s1,oooTree Removal/Replacement (Blue Ravine Road)

S1.ooo s3s.00031.000 s1,000 S1.ooo s1,000 $1,ooo$1,oooTotals:

[ong Term lnstallment Summary

S1.2oo s1.200 s1,200 S1,zoo s1,200 s6s,000S1,2oo s3.600Fence Replacement on Rilev
s80.000S7.5oo S2.soo s2,s00 S2,soo S2,soo S2,sooS2,sooIree RemovaUReplacement

ss00 Ssoo S4,oooss00 s1,s00 Ssoo Ssoo SsoosiEnaee Reolacement

s4.200 s4.200 S149.ooo312.600 s4.200 S4,20o S4,2oo$4,200fotals:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 124

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 64

staning Fund Bolan.e (os oJAptil2022)
Estimated BeseNeto lhone apptox. Jirst 6months of 22-a

{s9,396.@)
(s36,s1.32)

Cltyof Folsom
Brlgs ench bndscapingand Uthting Distrid

Fuhd il5
m22-2?

General Maintenanc€ Costs
1.

2.

3.

4.

Streetlights
ItriAation

s66,s2.9s
915,@.@

54,s@.@
s2,soo.oo

Serulce Costs
5.

6.

Electrical s9,mo-oo
sa,soo.m

Currcnt Year horovement Proied5
7- No planned projeds so.@

subtotoloJ ltem 7 so.m _
s105,s2.9sSubtotal

a. Professional serulces (Engin€er's Repodand lP)

9. contract Services (all othercontrads and seruices)

10. Publications/Mailings/conmunications
11. Staff
12. overhead
13. countyAuditorFee

STso.oo
So.oo

So'@
st2,727.@

s2,96s.OO

s389.41

Subtotal s16,a31.41

3L2,374.36Total lmprov€ment Costs

&sessment to Propenv {cutrent}

Assessment per sintle Famlly Equivalent
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Srz2.za
560.01

Ss.7s.02

nsbllmenr costs lsee insiallm€nt Plan and SummaB n€xt barel

shot-Term lnstallment Pl.h {previously colleded)
Lons-Term lnstallment Plan (previously colleded)
shod-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

Lons-Term lnstallment Plan {collected this year)

Total lhstallment cosc

sso,5m.@
59s,o7o.m
s2,Om.m
53,410.@

91s,9e,e

Distrid Balance
Total Assessment
Total lmprov€ment costs

subtotal
Total Available Funds

Total Funds
Total Installment cost
Contributions f rom other sources

Net Balance

sao,706.02
{s122,374.36)
(s41,668.33)

{s4s,437_32)
{587, los- 6s)

(s1so,98O-OO)

sooo
(s238,o85.65)

Dlstdd Balance (surylus ls +; deficit is 0) (s2S,085.5s)

Ne!4!:@!!eEclegs!
s&,7S,02

slrplus or Deficit (surplus is subtractedj deficit is added)

-*@E-
s31&791.ff

Allocated NetAssessment to Probefl
NetAssessment
Single Family Equivalent Benefil Units

Allocated N€t Assessment to Prop€fty

s38,791.@

S€3.01

Comparisonol NetAssessmentandAsressment
Allocated Net Assessment to Prop€rty
allocated asessmentto Property
PerParc€l surplus l+) or Dellclt {-}

(S43.01)
s122.8

(5350.73t

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 125

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 65

Briggs Ranch - Installment Summary

District: Briggs Ranch

Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Fund Balance (2022) (ss,3e6l

Short Term lnstallment Summary
Aporox,

Proiect Yearlv Prior Years Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Total

lnstallment Collections 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Required

Shrub and tree upgrades (E. Natoma & Blue Ravine) Slo.ooo S17,ooo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Sso.ooo

Fence/Wall repair/replacement Slo,ooo S17,ooo ss00 Ssoo Ssoo ss00 Ssoo Sso,ooo

Fence repair/replacement (E. Natoma partial) S2.ooo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo s50,000

Pet Stations repair/replacement S2,ooo S6,ooo S5oo ss00 Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo S6,ooo

Totals: s24,000 s40,s00 S2,ooo S2,ooo s2.000 s2.000 s2.000 S1s6.ooo

Long Term lnstallment Summary
AbDrox.

Proiect Yearly Prior Years Year 1 Years 2-5 Years 5-10 Years 10-20 Years 20-30 Total

lnstallment Collections 2018 20L9-2022 2022-2027 2027-2037 2037-2047 Required

Bollard repair/replacement 52,000 S3s,o2o s410 S41o s410 541o $410 S6o,ooo

Fence repair/replacement (Blue Ravine Partial) s4,000 S8,ooo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo ssoo S6o.ooo

Fence repair/replacement (E. Natoma Partial) S4,ooo 58,ooo ss00 ss00 Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Sso,ooo

Entrv Sisn Replacement (brass lettering) s1,000 S3,soo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo s10,000

irrigation upgrades/replacement (3 controllers) Sz,ooo Ss,ooo ssoo ss00 Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Slo,ooo

Landscape lighting uperades or replacement Ss,ooo S9,soo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo s7s,000

Tree and landscape improvement (partial collection) Sz,ooo Ss,ooo Ssoo ss00 Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo s10,000

Totals: S2o,ooo S7s,o2o S3,410 s3.410 S3.410 s3.410 S3.410 s28s,000

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

.lClConsultingGroup

Page 126

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 66

Clty oI Folsom

Broeditone tandscaping and Ughting Distrid
fund 210
ao22-23

!Ese!rDc$l9$!

General Malntenan6€co5ts

1. scheduled

2. Unscheduled

3. Streetlight.

sx11,404.m
s0.00
So.oo

servic€ Coss
547,soo.oo

s145,000.00

Current Y€ar lmprov€ment Prolects

6. No Planned Prcjects So.m

0.00

Subtotal Ss3.9re

lncld€ntal cods
7. Professional SeNices (Enginee/s Repofr and lP)

8. conhact SeNic€s {all other€onvacts and seMc€s)

9. Publications/Mailings/communication5
10. staff
11. ovefi€ad
12. County Alditor Fee

s7so.00
90.oo
50.oo

ss4,909.00
59,s76.00

$1,397.70

Subtotal s65,632.70

Totai lmprovement costs S370,s36.70

Assessment per single Family Equivalent

Slngle Family Equivalent Benefit Units

S164.s9
2,368.99

s390,859.65

nstallm€nl cofs lsee ln*allmeni Plah and Summarv nen oaiel

Shod-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)

Long-Term lnstallment PIan {previously collected)

Shon-Term lnstallment Plan {collected this yead

tong-Term lhstallrent Plan {collected this Year)

total lndallment hds

s7,500.00
s72,s00.00
$1,soo.oo

s14,500.00

$96,000.00

Di$ri.t Salance

Total lmprovement Costs

Subtotal

Tdal Available Funds

Iotal Funds

Total lnstallmentcost
contributions f rom oth€r sources

Net Balance

s390,859.66
(5370,s36.701

s20,322.96
{9285,870.29)

{s255,s47.33)
{s96,000.Oo)

So.oo
(S362,s47.33)

Dlsiri.t Balance lsurplus is +; delicil is l)) (S352,547.r3)

Net Assesrment 6lculation
s390,8s9.66

Surplus orDeficit {sunlus is subtEct€d; deficit b added) __l!!?.!1?!3
s753,405.99

allocated N€t Asse$ment to Propenv
9753,405.99

Single Family Equivalent Eenefit Units

Allocated Net ksessmentto Propeny s318.03

stanins Fund Bolance (as oJ Aptil 2022)

Estimoted ReseNe to Jinance approx. Jitst 6 months oJ 22-23
{s112,322.00)
(s174,s48.29)

Comparisn of Net Ass.$m€nt and A$essment

Allocated N€t Assrrm€nr ro Property

Allocated Ass€ssm€nt to ProPerty

Per Parc€l surplus (+l or Deficit l-l

(s318.03)

s164.99

ts153.04)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts

Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 127

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 57

Broadstone 1 and 2 - Installment Summary

BroadstoneDistrict:
2022-21Fis6lYear:

$L12,322)Fund Balance (2022)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

ss00 So ss00 S5oo Ssoo Ssoo ssoo s25,000free & Landscaoe lmDrovements (partial fund collection)
s0 sso0 ss00 ss00 ss00 Ssoo Sls,oooBollar reoair/reolacement {40) ssoo

ssoo ss00 ss00 ss00 ss00 s10,000Ssoo StLisht polefixture replacement of KW

ss0.00031.500 So S1.50o s1,s00 s1,s00 s1,500 91,soofotals:

Long Term lnstallment Summary

s1.000 S1.ooo s1.000 ss0.000s1.000 So s1,ooo s1,oooRepair irrisation/replace shrubs lron Point median
ss.000 s150.000ss.000 So Ss,ooo ss,000 Ss,ooo ss,ooofree & landscape imDrovement (or replacement)

ss.000 So ss.000 ss,000 Ss,ooo Ss,ooo S5,ooo s1,000,000shrub reblacement - throushout (some irrisation repair) 28 acres

s0 ss00 ss00 ss00 S5oo ss00 slo,oooLandscaDe light reolacement sso0
s500 s500 ss00 s500 ss00 S11,oooSsoo SoPet station replacement (7)

ssoo s500 ss00 S4o.oooss00 So Ssoo SsooSienase repair/replacement
s200.000s1.500 So S1.soo S1,soo s1,500 s1,soo s1,5ooTurf removal/irrisation retrofit

s4s,oooEs00 So ss00 S5oo Ssoo Ssoo sso0lrrisation uDsrades and flow {15 controllers)

S14-soo s14.s00 s14.S00 s14.500 s14.500 s1.515.000s14,s00 9oTotals:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 128

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 68

Stortihs Fund Bolance (as ol Aptil 2022)
Estimoted ReseNe to lihonce opprox. lirst 6 months oJ 22 23

557,73a.13
(S10,172.83)

City of Folsom
Broadstone 3 Lands.aping and Lighting District

Fund 2O9 - StreetllShts Ohly
2022-23

!.!!p!s!e.!!!.!ll9$!

Gen€ral Maintenahc€ CoSs
1. Scheduled
2. Unscheduled
3. Streetlights

5o.oo
$o.oo

512,5O0.00

Servlce Costs
4. Electri€al s2,OO0.O0

So.oo

Current Year lmprovement Proiects
6. LED conveEion Slo,ooo.oo

Subtotol ol ltem 6 1O,OOO.OO _
s24sO0.00

hcidental 6sts
7. Professional seruiEes (En8iheer's Repod and lP)

8. contract Seruices (all other contracts and seruices)

9. PubliEations/Mailinss/Communications
10. Staff
11. Overhead
12. county Auditor Fee

STso.oo
So.oo
So.oo
5o.oo

51,435.00
S599.oo

Subtotal

Total lmprovement Costs

9r.8m

-G6t
qssessment to Propertv lcurrent)

Sinale Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Total Assescmeni

s28.07
411.53

s22,779.65

nnallm€nt Costs lsee lhstallheht Plan and Summarv ne* pa.el

Shod-Term hstallment Plan {previously collected)
tons-Tem lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
Shon-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)
LonC-Term lnstallment Plan (collected rhis year)

Total lnstallment &sts

So.oo
Ss,ooo.oo

So.oo
9o.oo

Ss,ooo.oo

Dlstrlct Salance
Totai Asessmenr
Total lmprovement Costs

Subtotal
Total Avallable Funds

Total Funds
Total lnstallment Cost
contdbutions from other sources

Net Balance

522,779.65
(S27,38s.0o)
(54,60s,3s)

5s8,10s.90
$s3,soo.ss
lSS,ooo.oo)

So oo

S48,5oo.ss

District Salan.e (5urplus is +; deficit is 0l s48.500,55

Net Assessment Calculation
s22,779.53

Surplus or Deficit (surplus is subtracted; deficit is added)

-{@I(s2s,720,90)

Alloceted N€t Asessment to Propedv

5ingle Family Equivalent Behefit Units

Allocated Net Assessment to Property

ts2s,720.90)

-

(S31.5s)

5s9.76

Comparlson of Net Assessment and A$essm€nt
s31.69

--$492-Allocated Assessment to Properly
Per Parcel surplus (+) or D€flclt (-)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 129

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 69

Broadstone 3 - lnstallment Summary

Broadstone #3District:
2022-29Fiscal Year:

S39,886Fund Balance (2022)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

So SO 9o So So So$o soTotal

Long Term lnstallment Summary

s8,333 sr6,667 s15,667 Sso,oooss.000 Ss,ooo s1,667 56,667Paint Streetlieht Poles (350 poles)

S16.667 ss0.000s5.000 s1,667 s6,657 s8,333 s16,667Total $s,ooo

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

$GlGonsultlngGroup

Page 130

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

Page 70

gdhq Fund Belilce la ol AFil n22)

EsIinM Mee b fnace qNox frBl 6 n$lhs d 22-23

AvailablsFundE

s166,588.00

(S6,m.s)

mprcvmenl&d6

Genenl Malnlonanco6*
1. Scheduled

2 Unschdulsd

3. Sbetighb
4. hgaljon

$1S,000.00

$15,000.00

142,500.00

$5,m0.00

SrryE Adg
5. Elechcal

6. Wabr

$0.00

$o.oo

Cumnl Yoil lnpmvamonl Preie*
7. Tee pruning 075,000.00

il&old of ten 6 $75@.@
lg7,sqO

lnddonhl &d!
8. Pohssiond S€ruices (Engin6o/s Ropoiland lP)

L ContactS€flices (all ohr contub and seruices)

10. PSlicatonilailingY&mmunicatons
11. Shff

12. Ov€frsad

13 CounlyAdiuFee

$750.00

$0.00

$0.00

$6.39S.00

$7,90.00
g2l.s

Tolal lmpreremcnl &dB

315.210S

rs-dF

Es6smenl to PreFtu lcumnl)

tusesmenlper Singl€ Fmily Equtualenl

Single Fmily Equivalenl Beref t Unib

$3.s8
2,065.05

$2,5m.53

n$llhonlQsl6(slndallm6ilPlanandSummaryns{p4s}

ShoruTem lrehllmentPla (pr€viousv collecbd)

Long'Tem lnsbllmenl Plan (pEviously collocbd)

Shod-Tem lmbllment Pld (collecbd his yer)
loE-Tem lnsHlmenl Pla[ (collecbd his yee)

Told lnshllmMtCods

$7,ffi.m
&.m

$1,ffi.00
$.oo

s,mo00

Tobl A$osm€nl
Tobl hpmvem6nt&sb

Subbbl

Tobl Availdl€ Funds

Tohl Flnds

Tohl hshllmentCost

ft nhbutons fom oher sorc€s
NetBdance

$e.s0.s
($$2,710.S)

($280,149.S)

$12S,718.S

($150,4ffi)
(@,000.00)

$0.00

($fJ'43ffi)

Di*jd Balane (surylus ls +; dof cil is 0) (tl59,{i.3q

ftlk6sm6d &lculalion
t82,$0.53

SuplosorDefcil(s$plusissubhcbd;defcilisadded) t159,41.S

12t1,991.S

12t1,991.S

265

tl17.i8

Clty ol Foliom

Ero.drton. ltlo.4 Lrnd3ceping rnd Lighting District
Fund 202

2022-23

Alo6led llel Ass6smsnt 1o Prcpoft

Single Family Eqdvabnl Beref t Unib

Alo€bd MlAss€ssmenlb Pmp€ry

ompadson of lLl Asssmsnl and assmont
Alodod Mkesmlnllo PreFdy
Alo6ted b6m€nt 10 Prcpoiy

P6r Pa@l SurplG (+) or hticil ( )

(1117.1E

11998

lnl 2q

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 131

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



PageTL

Broadstone 4 - Installment Summary

Broadstone No.4District:
2022-2?Fiscal Year:

s166.588Fund Balance (2022)

s1.000 s1.000 s1.000 ss0.000s1.000 So S1,ooo S1,oooReoair irrisation/reolant shrubs Rathbone, Knofler, other interior areas

S5oo So Ssoo ss00 Ssoo Ssoo ssoo S6,oooLandscaoe lipht reoair/reolacement (60 lishts)

So s1.500 s1.s00 s1.s00 91.soo s1,s00 ss6,000fotal Sl,soo

Lons Term lnstallment Summarv

So so s0So So So So 5oTotal

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 132

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page72

stanins Fund Bdldnce (as oJ April 2022)
Estimated Resetue to Jinance approx-JiRt 6 months oJ 22 23

(s1s,8O7.OO)

(s19,5s4.43)

City ofFolsom
cobble Hllls lllRetledions ll tandscaping and Liahtina Dlsrrid

Fund 214
2022-23

lmprov€ment 6ds

G€n€ral Malntenanc€ 6fs

2. Unscheduled
3. StreetlighG
4. lrdgation

525,218.38
$5,ooo.oo
s1,250.OO
s2,50O.OO

lcryisslgllg
5. Electri€al $2,ooo.oo

s1O,5OO.OO

curr€nt Year lmprovem€nt Proi€cts
7. No Planned Projects So.oo

subbtol of ltem 7 So.@

Subtotal s46,558.3a

lncid€ntal &ns
a. Professional Seruices (Eneineer's Repod and lP)

9. contract seruices {all other contracts and seruices}

1o. Publi€ations/Mailings/communications
U. Staff
X2. ovetread
X3. county Auditor Fee

5750.OO

so.oo
So.oo

s9,151.00
$1,948.00

S229.s1

Subtotal 312,O78.51

Total lmprovemeht 6sts Ss8,66,89

Asse$ment to Propertv lCuirent)

Assessment per single Family Equivalent
SinEle Famlly Equlvalent Beneflt Units

sx13.14

s4,o[.46

ln$allment Co*s (see installment Plan and Summarv net pasel

shod-Term lhstallment Plan (previously collected)
Long Term lnstallment Plan (prevlously collected)
shofr-Term lnstallment Plan (colle€ted this year)

Lone-Term lnstallment Plan (€oll€cted this year)

Total lnstallmenr costs

s93,8s6.O0
s109,OOO.OO

So.oo
Su,ooo.oo

S213,a56.0o

Toial ksessment
Total lmprovement costs

Subtotal
Total Available Funds

Total Funds

Total lnstallment cost
contributions fiom oth€r sources

Net Balance

s44,011.46
(ss8,646.89)

{S14,63s.43}
(S3s,461.43)

{ss0,096.86)
(s213,8s6.00)

5s,0oo.oo
(5258,9s2.85)

Dlsrlct Balancc lsurplus ls +; deflclt ls {}} {925E,952.66)

Surplus or Deficit {surplus is subt€cted, defi.it is added)
S{,o11,46

___5?E!,eE349-
s302,964.32

Allocated Net Asersment to ProEertv

Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Allocated Net Asessment to Property

5302,964.32
349

S778.83

Comparison of Net Assessment and Assessment
Allocated Net As.essment to Propeny

Per Pareel Surplus {+} or Deficlt {-}

1s778.83)

-$s11
(9665.69)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts

Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 133

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 73

Cobble Hills Ridge - lnstallment Summary

Cobble Hills lllReflections llDistrict:
2022-21Fiscal Year:

(s1s,807)Fund Balance {2022)

Short Term lnstallment Summarv

s0 So So ss0,000ss.000 S38,8s6 Ss,ooo Ss,ooolree & landscape improvements (or replacement)
So s40,000s10.000 $s,ooo s10,000 Slo,ooo s10,000 Slo,oooMini Park & Path to Lembi Turf and Shrub Repair/Replacement

s10.000 So Sgo,oooSls.ooo S43,8sG Sls,ooo Sls,ooo Slo,oooTotals:

Long Term lnstallment Summary

s1.000 s1.000 Slo,oooS1,ooo s6,500 S1,ooo s1,000 S1,oooFence Repair/Replacment (225 ft)
s40.000S1.ooo s3s,s00 S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,oooWall Reoairs and Paintinp {628 ft}

S7.soo S5.ooo Ss.ooo S5,ooo Ss,ooo S5,ooo s65,000Ss,ooo
s1.000 S1,ooo s1.000 S1,ooo Sls,oooS1,ooo So S1,oooShrub Replacement-Siblev and Corner

s1.000 s1.000 S8,oooS1.ooo S 1,soo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,oooSisnase Repair/Reolacement
ss3.600S2.ooo s3,000 s2.000 S2,ooo S2,ooo s2,000 S2,oooTree & landscaoe imorovements (or replacement)

S11.ooo s11.000 S11.ooo S191,600S11,ooo ss4,000 S11,ooo 511,oooTotals:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts

Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 134

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page74

stdrtins Fund Roldnce (ds oJ April 2022)
Estimated Resetue to linonce apprcx. fltst 6 months ot22 23

s177,ss9.OO
(55,111.25)

City ot Folsom
cobble Rldge Landscaplng ahd Lighting Distrid

Fund 234
2022-23

General Maintehanc€ coss
1. Scheduled
2. Unscheduled
3. Streetlights
4. lrrigation

s8,186.67
s3,OOO.OO

575O.OO

s4OO.OO

Servlce Costs
5. Electrical S5oo.oo

51,250.00

current Year lmprovement Paole.ts
7. Fence repair/Plant & bark s500.oo

s5@.@ _
$14586.67Subtotal

8. Professional Seruices (Ensineels Repod and lP)

9. Contract seruices (all other contracts and services)

1O. Publications/Mailings/communications
11. Staff
12. Overhead

s750.00
so.oo
So.oo

51,03O.OO

5422.oo
Ss7.B213. county Auditor Fee

5ubtotal

Total lmprovement 6sts

s2,259.A2

s16,846.49

Ass€ssment to Pro!€rtv {Currentl

Assessment per stngle Family Equivalent
Slngle Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Total A$essment

S139.64

s13,6&.72

Shon Term lnstallment Plan (prevlously collected)
Long-Term lhstallment Plan (previously collected)
Short-Term lnstallment Plan {collected this year)

tong-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

Total lnnallment costs

so2so.oo
s3qooo.oo

S1,25o.oo
s1,000.o0

s38,Sm,OO

ol$rlct Balahce
Total Asessment
Total lmprovement Costs

subtotal
Total Available Funds

Total Fuhds

Total lnstallment cost
contributions f rom other sources

Net Balance

st3,6a4.72
(s16,846.49)

{s3,161.77)
9atL,447.14
s158,28s.97
(s38,sOO.OO)

9o,oo
sa29,7A5.97

Dldrict Balance (surplus is +; deflclt ls ()l S129,785.97

Net As*srment Glculatioh

surplus or Deficit {surplus is subtracted; deficit is added)

Net Assessment

s13,684.72
tsr29,785.97)
($116,1o1.2s)

Allocated Net Assessment to ProE€rtv
Net Assessment
Single FamllV Equlvalent Benefit Units

Allo€ated Net Asessment to Property

(s115,1O1.25)
9a

(s1,184.71)

Comparison of Net A$essment and Assessment

Allocared Net Assessment to Property
Allocated Ass€ssment to Prop€rtv
Per Par(el surplus (+l or oeficit G)

s1,184.71

-$ry-
sr,324.35

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 135

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 75

Cobble Ridge - lnstallment Summary

District: Cobble Ridee

2022-23Fiscal Year:

Fund Balance {2022) 5t77,ssg

Short Term lnstallment Summarv

vear 2 Drunins S2so So Szso Szso Szso Szso s2s0 S3,ooo

So S2so Szso S2so S25o S2so S3,ooovear 3 Drunins s2s0
S3.ooovear 4 orunins S2so So Szso S2so S2so S2so S2so

s250 So Szso s2s0 s2s0 S25o S2so S3,ooovear 5 pruning
ss.000Fence reoair and oaintinp s2s0 5o S2so s2s0 s2s0 52so 52so

S1.2so S1.2so S1.250 S17.oooTotals: S1,2so $o S1,2so S1,2so

Lons Term lnstallment Summary

S2,ooo st4,7so S2so S2so S2so Szso 52so S2o,oooFence Repair/Replacement (340 ft)
s4.7s0 S2so S2so S2so S25o s2s0 S2o,oooShrub Replacement S2,ooo

S4oo S3,ooo 52so S2so S2so S2so 52so S4,ooof ubular Fence repair/replacement
S2so s2s0 s250 s2s0 s2s0 S3,oooIree & landscaoe imorovements (or replacements) ssoo S2,soo

s25.000 s1.000 s1.000 S1.ooo S1.ooo S1.ooo s47.000fotals: S4,9oo

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

$GlGonsultingGroup

Page 136

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 76

Stonihs Fund Balance (as ol Aptil 2022)
Estimoted Reserye to finonce opprox. Jitst 6 months of 22-23

525,081.07
(S9,749.20)

mprov€mEnt 6sts

6eneral Maintenance Costs
1. scheduled'+
2. Unscheduled
3. Streetlights
4. ldgalion

So.oo
So.oo

s2,OOO.0O

s2,7sO.OO

s!!!l!clgE!!
5. Electdcal s3,650.0o

5s,7so.oo

curreht Year lmprovement Prol€cts
7. open spacefree wo*/Ladder fuel removal s28,OOO.OO

subtotat ofltem ? Srsn@s
subtotal

84c3!$L!e$!

s42,1sO.OO

8. Professional Serulces (Eneineer's Repod and lP)

9. Contract Seruices (all other contracts and services)
10. Publications/Mailings/communications
1X. staff
12. overhead
13. county Auditor Fee

STso.oo
So.oo
50.0o
so.oo

s823.OO

S181.72

Total lmprouemeht Costs

31,754.72

943,9o4.72

Assessment per Single Family Equivaleht
Slngle Famlly Equiv.lent Beneflt Units

s70.88
308

s21,831.O4

lndallment costs lsee in$allmeht Plah and summarv nen ba{e}

Shot-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
Lons-Term lnstallment Plan {previously €ollected)
shod-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

Long-Term Installment Plan (collected this year)

Total lnstallm€nt coss

5o.oo
s56,OOO.OO

so.oo
so.oo

356,ooo.oo

giS4!!-EEElle

Total lmprovement CosE
Subtotal

Total Available Funds

Total lnstallment cost
contributions from other sources

Net Balance

s21,831.04
1543,9O4.721
(s22,073.68)

S15,331.87
(s6,741.81)

(s56,OOO.OO)

So.oo

l$62.7 4L.aL)

Dlstrict Ealance {surplus is +; deficit is 0) (562,741,81)

Net Assessment qt€ulatloh

sualus or Deficlt (surplus js subtractedj defi€it 
's 

added)

Net Assessment

s21,a31.9

-w-s84572.85

sa4,s72.as
304

5274.s9

city of Folsom
Folsom Helghts bhdscaplng ahd Li8htlng Distrid

Fund 2o8
2022-23

Als$lsglelllEcEEEllls ry
Net tusessment
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Allocated Net Assessment to Property

6mbarlsn of Net Asessment ahd A$essment
Allocated N.t Asesrment to Property
allocat€d A$€sshent to Property
Per Parcel Surplus (+) or Deflclt (-)

(s274.59)

--$4c!-(S2o3.7r)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 137

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page77

Folsom Heights - lnstallment Summary

District: Folsom Heiehts

Fiscal Year: 2022-23
Fund Balance (2022) $31,40s

Short Term lnstallment Summary

So Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo S2s,oooLadder fuel work ssoo

s500 s500 ss00 Ssoo s2s.000Totals: ssoo 5o $soo

Long Term lnstallment Summary

SOSo $o $o So $o $o $oTotals:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SclGonsultingGroup

Page 138

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 78

startins Fund Balance (os oJ Aptil 2022)

Estinoted Resetue to finance opprox. li6t 6 months of 22-23
s265,432.27
(s27,850.45)

Clty of Folsom
Folsom Heights No. 2 bndscaping and LightinB Distrid

Fund 281
2022-21

losEvcEe4lgEE

General Maint€nanc€ Costs

2. Unscheduled
3. streetlishts

s16,275.0O
SlO,OOO.OO

so.oo

sgryisele$!
4. Electdcal So.oo

So.oo

gse!!-YeedEEsE4edllelellr
6. Tree pruning/tadder fuel removal s37,OOO.oO

subtotdl oJ ltem 6 s37,m.@
963,27s.o0

lncid€ntel Costs
7. Professional Seruices (Ehginee/s Repod and lP)

a. contract seruices (all other contracts and seruices)

9. Publications/Mailings/Communications
10- Staff
11. Overhead
12. County Auditor Fee

STso.oo
So.oo
So.oo

S5,1oo.oo
s1,102.OO

So.oo

Total lmprovement tu*s

s5,m

$?qm;

Assessment to Prooedv {Curr€ntl

Assessment per Single Family Equivalent
slngle Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Total A$essment

s208.38
299.39

962,385.a9

lnstallment coss lsee In*allment Plah and Summarv neft paqe)

short-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
lons-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
shod'T€rm lnstallment Plan {collected this year)

long-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

Total lnstallment costs

So.oo
So.oo
so.oo
so.oo

so.@

Dlstrld aalance
Total Assessmeht
Total lmprovement costs

subtdtal
Total Available Funds

Total Funds

Total lnstallment cost
contrib0tions from other sources

Net Balan.e

s62,386.89
1s7o,227 ,OOl

(s7,84o.XX)

5237,s7!.a2
5229,731.71

9o.oo
So.oo

s229,73t.7r

District aalance lsurplus is +; dettclt is {)) s229,73L.7a

{€t Assessment Glculatlon

Sumlus or Deficit {surplus is subtracted; deficit is added)

Net AssEssm€nt

s52,3a5.a9
1s229.73L.7Ll
(s157,34.82)

(s167,34.82)
299

(Sss8.ss)

Allocated Nel Assesment ro Properiv
Net ksessment
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Allocated Ner As(essment to Property

&mparison of Net A$esrhent and assessment
Allocared Net Assessmeht to Prop€rty
Allocat€d Asre$ment lo Propedy
Per Parc€l surFlus {+) or Detlclt (-)

ss5a.9s

-$43!-
s767.3t

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 139

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 79

Folsom Heights No. 2 - lnstallment Summary

District: Folsom Heights No.2
Fiscal Year: 2022-23

S290.736Fund Balance (2022)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

s2s0 S2so S25o S8.ooovear 3 oruning S2so so S2so s2so
S2so Szso S2so s2s0 S8,ooovear 4 orunins s2s0 so S2so

S2so S25o s2s0 s2s0 S2so S8,ooovear 5 orunins $zso $o

s2s0 s2s0 S2so S2so S2so s2,000fence work S2so So

So s2s0 S2so S2so Szso S2so S3,oooTree care in open space s2so

S1.250 So s1,2s0 s1,2s0 S1,2so Sr,2so S1,2so S29,oooTotals:

Long Term lnstallment Summary

So s0 s0 s0 s0Glenn wall reoair so
So So So SoIree and landscaoe imprv (Vierra Cir) so So

s0 So SO s0 So SoNew landscape (Glenn)

So So So $o So So SOfotals: $o

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, tY 2022-23

SGlConsultlngGroup

Page 140

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 80

startins FDnd Balance (as oJ Aptil 2022)

Estimoted Reserye to Jinonce opprox. Jitst 6 months oJ 22-23
(Ss,s71.oo)
(59,O0s.34)

City of Folsom
Hannaford cross tandscaping and liShtint Distrld

Fund 212
2022-23

morov€ment @ds

General Malntenance Co$s
1. scheduled
2. Unsch€duled
3- Streetliehts
4. lrdgation

s16,961.76
s2,5OO.OO

s1,25O.OO

S65o.oo

Sgvjsslgsls
s. Electdcal s2,5OO.OO

s2,5OO.OO

Current Year lmprovem€nt Proie.ls
7. No Planned Projects 50.oo

Subtotol oJ ltem a so.@ _
926,361.76

lh.ldenral cods
L Professional seruices (Ensineer's Repod and lP)

9. contmct seruices (all other contracts and services)
10. Publicalions/Mailings/communications
11. Staff
12. Overhead
13. county Audltor Fee

57so.oo
5o.oo
So.oo

s3,776.00
S743.oo

560.77

subtotal 5s329.a7

s31,691,53Total lmprovement &*s

Asiessment to Prooertv lcurrentl

Assessment per Singl€ Family Iquivalent
sinale Family Equivalent aenefit units

Total As$ment

s19s-7a
103

S20,165.34

lnstallment co$s lsee installmeni Plan and Summarv net pare)

Shod'Term lnsrallment Plan {previously collected)
Lons-Term lnstallment Plah (previously collected)
shofr-Ierm lnstallment Plan (€ollected this Year)
Lons-Term lnstallment Plan lcollected this year)

Total ln.tallm€nt cods

s3s,ooo.oo
9o.oo

S7,ooo.oo
s0.o0

s42,OOO.OO

olstrlct Balanc€
Total Asse5sment
Total lmprovement Cosc

Subtotal
Total Available Funds

Total Funds

Total lnstallment cost
Cont.ibutions from other sources

Net Balance

s20,16s.34
{s31,591.s3)
{s11,526.19)
{S12,416.34)
(s23,942.s3)
(S42,ooo.oo)

so.oo
(s6s,942,s3)

Dlstrlct Balance (surplu3 ls +; deficlt is ()) {S6s,e42.s3)

!€t Aselsment Glcutatlon
s20,165.34

Surplls or Deficit (su.plus is subtracted; delicit i5 added)

-tg!:-s85,107.a7

Alloc?ted Net A$essment to Ptopertv
Net Assessment
sinEle Famlly Equivalent Beneflt Unlts

Allocated Net Asessment to Property

$8O1O7.87
10!

3836.oo

comparison of Net Assessment and Assessment

Allocated Assessmeht to Property
P€r Parcel Surplus (+) or Deflclt (-)

{s835.0o}
s19s.78

(s640.22)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 141

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 81

Hannaford Cross - lnstallment Summary

District: Hannaford Cross

2022-23Fiscal Year:

Fund Balance (2022) (Ss,s71)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

S1.ooo s1.000 s2s,000S1,ooo So s1,ooo s1,000 s1,000Lakeside fense repair
SO S2so Szso Szso s2so s2so ss,ooovear 2 pruning s2so

S2so S25o S2so s2s0 Szso Ss,ooovear 3 orunine s2s0 5o
Ss.ooo Ss,ooo s50,000Ss,ooo 5o Ss,ooo ss,ooo ss,ooovear 4 pruning

SO S2so Szso S2so s2so Szso ss,ooovear 5 pruning s2so
S2so s2s0 S2so s2s0 Szso S3,sooReoairs at suardshack s2so So

S93.sooSo S7,ooo $7,ooo $7,ooo S7,ooo $7,000Totals: s7,ooo

Long Term lnstallment Summary

SO5o $o $o So $o SoTotals: so

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 142

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 82

storting Fund Balonce (as ol April 2022)

Estimoted ReseNe to Jinonce opptox. litst 6 months of22-23
s1O1,21a.OO

1s9,264.0O)

CitY oI Folsom
lake Natoma Shores Landscaping and U8htlhg Distrld

Fund 213
2022-23

G€neral Maihtenance costs
1. Scheduled
2. Unscheduled
3. Streetlights
4. lrrigation

517,87.A4
ss,ooo.oo

s75O.OO

51,000.00

Ssvicele$!
s. Electrical SToo.oo

s3,OO0.OO

Current Y€ar lmorovement Proiects
7. LED conversion/rree work $8.ooo.oo

subtotol ol ttem 7 9a,m.m _
s35,087.84Subtotal

a. Professional Seruices (Ensineer's Repod and lP)

9. contract Setuices {all other contracts and seNices)
10. Publications/MailinAs/Communications
X1. staff
X2. overhead
13. County Auditor Fee

s750.OO

So.oo
so.oo

s2,86O.OO

s943.OO

s65.57

subtotal 54,ffi

54o,7o7.5aTotal lmprovement costs

Assessment to Probertv (currentl

Assessment per SinAle Family Equivalent

Sinsle Famlly Equivalent Eenefit Untrs

Total Ass€ssmeht

s183.s8
113 _

52o,74.s4

shofr-Term lnstaliment Plan (previously collectedl
Long-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
shod-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

Long-Term lnstallment Plan (colle.ted this year)

Total lnstallment costs

ss,ooo.o0
S2a,107.oo

S1,o@.oo
S1,2so.oo

S3s,357.o0

Dlialat Ealance

Total lmprovement costs
Subtotal

Total Available Funds

Total lnstallment cost
contributions from other sources

Net Balance

52o,744.s4
(S40,707.s1)
(S19,962.s7)

s91,954.00
S71,991.03

(S3s,357.00)

So.oo
S36,634.o3

oiirlct aalance (surplus is +; deficit is 0) S36,634.03

Net Assessmenl &lculation
s20,74.54

Surplus or Deficit (surplus is !ubtccted; defacit is added) (s35,534.03)
($1s,889.49)

allocated Net As*ssment to Probenv
(s1s,E89.49)

Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units 113

{s140.61)Allocated Net Assessment to PropeE

comoarisoh ol Net Assesmeht and Assessment
allocated Net Assessment to Property
Allocated Assessment to PtoP€frY
Per Parcel surplus {+) o' Deficit G}

$14O,61

-99:L
s324.19

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 143

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 83

Lake Natoma Shores - Installment Summary

District: Lake Natoma Shores

Fiscal Year: 2022-23
s101.218Fund Balance (2022)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

Szso Szso Szso s2so S2so s2so ss,o0oLED landscape lights

S2so s2s0 s2s0 S2so S2so ss,000vear 3 pruninq s2so
Ss.oooS2so $zso Szso 52so $zso S2sovear 4 pruning

s2s0 s2s0 s2s0 S2so 52so ss,000vear 5 oruninq s2so

So S1.ooo S1.ooo s1.000 S1.ooo S1.ooo s20.000Totals: Sl,ooo

Long Term lnstallment Summary

Sls.ooos1,000 S14.607 Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo SsooSignage Repair/Replacement
s2.7s0 S2so S25o s2s0 s2s0 S2so S22,oooTurf repair/irrisation upqrades S1,ooo

S1,ooo s4,s00 Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo ssoo SlG,oooTree & landscape improvements (or replacements)

Ss3.oooS3.ooo S21,8s7 51,2s0 S1,2so S1,2so Sr,2so $1,2s0Iotals:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 144

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 84

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts

Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

city of Folsom
Los Cerros Landscaping and Lighting District

Fund 204
2022-23

q5sessment to Prooertv lCu(entl

Assessment per Single Family Equivaleht
single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Total Assessment

S121.18

S40,837.66

Net Assesiment Calculation
Assessment
surplus or Deficit {surplus is subtracted; deficit i5 added)

Net Assessment

$40,837.55
{s7,833.04}

---3$"0-0a6-t

Allocated Net Assessmentto Plopenv
Net Assessmeht
single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Allocated Net Assessment to Property

933,004.62
117

s97.94

S101,218.00
6 months of 22-23 ($18,237.09)Resewe toEstimdted

mDrovement Costs

General Malntenance Costs
1. scheduled 527,64r.7o
2. Uns.heduled
3. Streetlights

S7,soo.oo
$3,ooo.oo

Seryice Costs
4. Electrical
5. Water

S7,1so.oo
s4,750.00

Current Year lmorovement Proiects
6. Paint light poles/tree pruning

Subtotal
Subtotol oI ltem 6

$33,soo.oo

--*3"5o-olo
J8-3,s4-i3d-

lncidental Costs
7. Professional serui.es (EnEineer's Report and lP)

L Cohtract Seruices {all other contracts and services)
9. Publications/Mailings/communications
10. Staff
11. overhead
12. CountyAuditorFee

STso.oo
So.oo
So.oo

S4,69o.oo
S1,3os.oo

S198.83

Subtotal

Total lmprovement Costs

---Te6asr3

$90,48s.53

Short-Term lnstallment Plah (previously collected)
Long-Term lhstallment Plan {previously collected)
Short-Term lnstallment Plah (collected this year)
Long-Term lnsiallmeht Plan (collected this year)

Total lnstallment Costs

$1G,2so.oo
Ss,ooo.oo
S3,2so.oo
S1,ooo.oo

s2s,500.00

District Balance
Total Assessment
Total lmprovemeht Costs

subtotal
Total Available Fuhds

Total Funds
Total lnstallment Cost
contributions from other souraes

Net Balance

540,837,G6
(s90,48s,s3)
(s4s,647.87)

S82.980.91
S33,333.04

(s2s,soo.oo)

So.oo
$7,833.04

District Balance (surplus is +; deticlt ii 0) S7,833.04

Comparison of Net Assessment and Assessment
Allocated Net Ass€ssment to Property
allocated Assessmentto Property
Per Parcel Surplus (+) or Oelicit {-)

(se7.e4)
$121.18------Tt5:t-

SClConsultingGroup

Page 145

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 85

Los Cerros - lnstallment Summary

District: Los Cerros

Fiscal Year 2022-23

Fund Balance {2022) S101,218

ss00 So ss00 Ssoo S5oo Ssoo Ssoo Slo,oooLadder fuel work
ss00 So Ssoo Ssoo S5oo Ssoo Ssoo Slo,ooolree replacement

ss00 So Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Slo,oooyear 3 prunina

ss00 So Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Slo,oooyear 4 pruning

ss00 So Ssoo S5oo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Slo,oooyear 5 pruning

s7s0 $o STso STso STso S75o s7s0 S27.3ooPaint street light poles

s3.2s0 So $3.zso S3.2so S3.250 S3,2so s3.2s0 S77,30oIotals:

Lons Term lnstallment Summary

ss00 Ssoo ss00 ss00 ss00 S3o,ooolnstall flow Dackase and master valve $soo $o
ss00 Ssoo ss00 ss00 Ssoo s3s,000Upgrade irrisation controllers Ssoo So

s0 S1.ooo S1.ooo s1.000 s1,000 Sr,ooo s6s.000Totals: Sl,ooo

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultlngGroup

Page 146

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 86

storting fund Balonce (as ol Aptil 2022)
Estimoted ReseNe to Jinance apptox- ftrst 6 months ol 22-23

{s246,857.00)
(s77,693.ss)

City of Folsom
Natoma Statlon bndscaplng and Ughting District

Fund 2O7

2022-23

lmprovement Costs

ge!!El!&l$9!3!S!e$s
1. scheduled

3. Streetlights
4. lrirgation

S101,443.36
512,500.O0
s12,OOO.OO

517,sOO.OO

Seelc€ 6ss
5. Electrical sla,soo.oo

s45,OOO.OO

Curr€nt Year lmprov€meht Prolects
7. No planned prciects So.oo

so.@ _
S2o0,943.38

Subbtol of ltem 7
Subtotal

!!dCs!3l!e!!!
a. Professional Seruices {Engineer's Repon and lP)

L contract Seruices (all other contEcts and seruices)
1o. Publications/Mailinss/Communications
11. Staff
12. Ovetread
13. county Auditor Fee

s75O.OO

$o.oo
So.oo

s32,602.O0
s5,9OO.OO

91,119.37

Total lmprov€ment tusts

54qsffi

5247,3!4.73

A$essment to Propertv {Currentl

Assessment per singl€ Family Equivalent
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Total Asse$ment

s91.70
La91.23

s173,976.36

lnstallment 6sts {see ln*allment Plan and Summa.v nen oaeel

shon-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
Lons-Tem lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
shod'Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)
Lona-Term Installment Plan (collected this year)

Total lhstallm€nt 6sts

s40,000.o0
s240,0o0.o0

s8,OOO.OO

s48,OOO.OO

9i3E,oo0.m

)lstrict Balance
Total Assessment
Total lmprovement Costs

subtotal
Total Available Funds

Total Funds
Total lnstallment cost
Contributions from other sources

Net Balance

s!73,976.36
1s247,314.73)
{s73,338.37)

{s243,O2O.ss)
{s315,3s8.92)
{$336,OOO.OO)

so.oo
(9552,3s8.92)

Disrrict Balance (surplus is +; deficit is 0) (S552,3s8.92)

!€t Assessment Glculation

Surplus or Deficit (surplus is subtEct€dj deficit is added)

N€t Assessment

s173,976.35

-t@93-s826,335.28

Allocated N€t Asse$ment to Prooenv
Net A<<essmeht
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Allocated Net Assessment to Property

S826,33s.28

"-----------1!9Z
s435-5S

Comparlson ot N€t A$essment and Assessneht
Allocared Net A$essment to Prop€rty
Allocat€d As€ssment io Propedv
Pcr Parcel Surplus (+) or oetlclt {-)

(S43s.ss)

$91.70
($343,85)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 147

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 87

Natoma Station - lnstallment Summary

District: Natoma Station

Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Fund Balance (2022) (s245,8s7)

5hort Term lnstallment Summary
Approx,

Pro.iect Yearlv Prior Years Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Total

lnstallment Collections 2018 2019 2920 2021- 2022 Reouired

Ladder fule work S1,ooo so S1,ooo S1.ooo S1.ooo S1.ooo S1,ooo Slo,ooo

Lieht pole replacement S1,ooo So S1,ooo 51,ooo 51,000 S1,ooo 51,000 S25,ooo

Shrub & tree replacement and concrete work on turnpike S1,ooo 5o S1,ooo s1,000 S1,ooo $1,ooo S1,ooo S4o,ooo

Iron Point Rd shrub & tree replacement S1,ooo so S1,ooo s1,000 S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo 54o,ooo

Bigfood mini park tree replacement S1,ooo so s1,ooo 51,ooo S1,ooo S1.ooo s1,000 Slo,ooo

Tree replacement/wall damage on back diamond S1,ooo So S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo s1,ooo s1,ooo Slo.ooo

Shrub/Tree replacement on Blue Ravine s1,ooo So S1.ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S 1,ooo s4o,ooo

year 1 tree pruning 51,000 5o 51,000 S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S25,ooo

Totals: s8.000 So s8,000 S8,ooo S8,ooo S8,ooo s8,ooo s200.000

Lone Term lnstallment Summarv
ADorox.

Proiect Yearlv Prior Years Year 1 Years 2-5 Years 5-10 Years 10:20 Years 20-30 Total

lnstallment Collections 20!a 2079-2022 2022-2027 2027-2037 2037-2047 Required

Tree & landscape improvements (or replacements) s10.000 So Slo,ooo Slo,ooo 510,000 51o,ooo Slo,ooo s 160.000

Wetland area improvement S1,ooo So S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo s3o,ooo

Wall Repair/Paintine (7800 feet) s10,0oo 5o 510,000 s1"0.000 Slo.ooo s10.000 s10,000 S234,ooo

Mini Park-replantine/bark (2 parks at 1/2 acre) Ss,ooo So Ss,ooo ss,ooo Ss,ooo Ss,ooo ss.000 s60,000

Road Paver replacement s1.000 So S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo s40.000

Sienaee Reoair Replacement S1,ooo So S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo 51,ooo 51,ooo S23,ooo

Sidewalk reoair Ss,ooo So ss.000 Ss.ooo ss,000 S5,ooo Ss,ooo S8o,ooo

lrrisation upgrades Ss,ooo 5o Ss,ooo Ss,ooo Ss,ooo 5s,ooo Ss,ooo ss6.000

Art repair Slo.ooo 5o s10,000 Slo,ooo Slo,ooo Slo,ooo $1o,ooo s100.000

Totals: S48,ooo So s48.000 s48.000 S48.ooo s48.000 s48.000 s783.000

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

i:l f-l I Gonsu lti n g G ro u p

Page 148

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 88

CitY ol Folsom
Ndoma Valley l.ndsepina and Lighting Disvid

Fund 232
2022-2t

General Maihtenan.e Co*s
1. Scheduled
2. Unscheduled
3- StreetliShts
4. lrriEation

s39,856-36
s1,OOO.O0

s37s.OO
s1,OOO.OO

servle Co<ts

6.
Electrical s1,5OO.OO

S3,7so.oo

Curreni Year lhprov€ment Proieds

7. No planned prcjects so.oo

subtotal oJ ltem a so.oo
s47,4a!36

a.
9-
10.
11.
12,
13.

Professional servi€es (Engineer's Report and lP)
Contract Services {all other contra€ts and services)
Publ ications/Mai lings/communications
staff

county Auditor Fee

sTso.oo
so.0o
so.oo

s7,436.OO
S1,587.00

S46.61

$tffi

Total lmprovemeni cosis s57,4oo-9?

Asessmeht per Single Fa mily Equivalent
Slnale Familv Equivalent Benefit Units

s8s6.37
79

s57,553.23

lhstallmeht costr ls€E installhent Plan and summarv ne{ o.Ee}

shortTirm lnstallment Pla n {previously col lected)
bna-Term lnstallment Pla n (prEviouslY coll ected)
short-Term lnstallment Plan {col lected this year)
Long-Term lnstallment Plan (collected rhls year)

Total ln.tallment cosls

ss,ooo.oo
$2o,ooo.oo

s1,OOO.OO

s5,OOO.OO

s31,OOO.OO

Dl$dc-Eal@
Totai ssessment
Total lmprovement cosB

Subtotal
Total Available Funds

Total Funds
Total lnstallment cost
Contributions from other sources

Net Balance

s67,653.23
{Ss7,4o0.97)
slo,252.26

s2OA,7 46.7 4

521a,999.00
{s31,OOO.OO)

so.oo
S187,999.00

Distrid aabnce lsurpius is i detidt is l)) s1a7,999.O0

Nel3'Ismdcdqlrli@
tusessment s67,6s3.23
surplus or Deficit (surplus is subtracted; deficit is added) -__-lll.ez.rrl.qqt

($120,345.77)

alcErr!3st3rrrlr@ilef]@$
Net Asessment
Si nale Family Equivalent B€nefit Unib
Al located N€t &sessment to Properv

612O.34s-7r)
79

rs1.523.36t

31,523.36
@

Allo6ted Net Assessment to ProP€rly

Per Parel surplus (+l or Delidt (-)

*Funds from fund balance

________l!50,L
92,379.73

stadtns Fund Balance (os oJApil 2o22)
Estimated ReseNe to Jinan@ approx. litst 6 months of 22 23

s238,9s9.0O
(s30,212.26)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 149

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 89

Natoma Valley - lnstallment Summary

Natoma VallevDistrict:
Fiscal Year: 2022-2?

S238,9s9Fund Balance (2022)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

S2so S2so ss,s00S2so So s2so Szso s2soyear 3 pruning

s2s0 Szso Szso s2so s2so Ss,soovear 4 orunins s2so $o
S2so S2so Ss,soos2s0 So s2so s2so s2soyear 5 pruning

S2so S2so S2so Szso s2so ss,soolnterior landscape imorovements s2so So

s1.000 s1,000 S1,ooo s1,000 S1,ooo $22,oooTotals: S1,ooo $o

Lone Term lnstallment Summary

s50,000SO ss,000 ss,000 Ss,ooo ss,000 Ss,oooWall Reoair/Replacement Ss,ooo

Sso.ooos0 Ss.ooo ss.000 5o ss,000 Ss,oooTotals: Ss,ooo

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClOonsultlngGroup

Page 150

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 90

starting Fund Boldnce (os oJ Aptil 2022)

Estimoted BeseNe to Jinonce opptox. Jirst 6 months ol 22-23
s23,213.00

{s14,022.801

Clty ot folsom
Prosped Ridge bhdscaplhg and tighting District

Fund 285
2022-23

lmprovement Co$s

General Malntenance coss
1. scheduled
2. Unschedul€d
3. StreetliAhts
4. Vtigation

sL4,659.94
s8,3OO.OO

ssoo.oo
s600.OO

Sedice 6sts
5. Electrical s375.OO

s2,5OO.OO

Current Year lmprovement Proiects
7. No Planned Prolects So.oo

subtotal oJ ltem 6 $*
Subrolal s26p4.94

E!iCe!!3!ee$!
8. Prolessiohal Seruices (Ensaneer's Report and lPl

9. contract Seruices (all other contracts and seruices)

10. Publications/Mailings/communications
U- staff
12- Overhead
X3. countyAuditorFee

subrotal

s75O.OO

So.oo
So.oo

55,219.00
s219.OO

s2O.6s

s6,2Oa.5s

Total lmprov€hent @ds s33,153.s9

Assessment per Sinale Famlly Equivalent
Slngle Family Equlvalent Beneflt Unib
Total Assessm€nt

s1,173.86
26.75

s31,4m.75

Shod-Term lnstallment PIan (previously collected)
Lona-Term lnstallment Plan {previously collected)
shod-Term lnstallment Plan (collected rhis Year)
Lona-Term lnstallment Plan (colle.ted this year)

Total lhnallment costs

So.oo
So.oo
$o.oo
So.oo

so.oo

DiSrlct Balahce
Total Assessment
Total hprovement costs

Subtotal

s31,400.75
{s33,1s3-s9)

lsa,7s2.a4)

Total lnstallment cost
contributions from other sources

Net galance

s9,190.20
s7,437.36

So.oo
So.oo

57,437.36

Di3trict aalance {surplus ls +; deficit is (}) s7,437.35

Net Ass€ssment Glculation

Surplus or Deficit (surplus i3 subtEcted; d€ficit is added)

Net Assessment

s31,400,76
ts7,437.35)
923,953.39

Allocai€d Net Asse$ment to Prob€rtv
Net Assessment
Single Family Equivalent Behefit UniB
Allocated Net Assessment to Propedy

s23,953.39
2a

S89s.83

Comparlson ol Net Assessmeht and Assessment
Allocated N€t Ass€ssmehr to Property
Allocated A$e5sm€nt to ProPedY
P€r Parcel Surplus (+) or Delicit G)

(SEss.83)

_$,1?3.88
s278.O3

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 151

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 91

Prospect Ridge - lnstallment Summary

District: Prospect Ridse

Fiscal Year: 2022-23
Fund Balance {2022) S23,213

Short Term lnstallment Summary

year 1 pruning

year 2 pruning

year 3 pruning

vear 4 pruning

vear 5 pruning

s0 So So $o $o so$o $oTotals:

Long Term lnstallment Summary

So s0 So so $oSo $o $oIotals:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 152

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, tY 2022-23

Page 92

startinq Fund Balance (os oJ Apttl 2022)

Estimated Reserue tolinonce apptox. litst 6 months ot22'23
(5458,a29.72)

{sa7,630.83)

Clty of Folsom
Prairle Oaks Ranch bndscaplng and LiShting District

Fuhd 236
2022-23

!ggqve!9dls!!!

ceheral Maintenan.e Cogts
X. scheduled
2. Unschedul€d
3. StreetlighB
4. lrigation-Pafrs

so.@
So.oo

SlO,OOO.OO

so.oo

S€rvlc€ @ds
5. Electdcal $10,o00.oo

SEo,ooo.oo

current Year lmprovement Prolects
7- No pianned prciects so.oo

Subtotol of kem 7 Sm
subtotal s80,O@.OO

lh.ldental costs
a. Professional s€ruices (Engineer's Repod and lP)

9. Contract S€tuices {all other contracts and seruices)

10. Publications/Mailings/Communi€ations
1X. Staff
12. Overhead
13. County Auditor Fee

sTso.oo
So.oo
so.oo

ss9,484.00
S6,818.00

ss41.99

subtotal s67,s93.99

Total lmprov€ment costs s147,593,99

Assessment to Prooedv lcurreht)

Assessmeht per single Family Equlvalent

Singl€ Family Equivalent Benefit Units
$213.51

918.63

s195,228.s5

lnnallment costs (se insallmeni Plan and Summarv net bare)

shod-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
Lon8-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)

Shon-Term lnstallment Plan (.ollected this year)

Lons-lem lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

Total lnstallment @sts

s117,2O0.00
S97,711.00

so.oo
So.oo

$214,91r.o0

Dlstrlct Ealance
Total Assessment
Total lmprovement costs

subtob I

Total Available Fundg

Total Funds

Total lnstallrent cost
Contributions from other sources

Net Balance

s195,22a.55
1s147,593-99)

s48,634-56
(ss46,460.s5)

{$497,82s.99)
(S214,91x.0o)

so.oo
157L2,736.991

Dl$rict Balance (surpl!s is +; deficlt Is 0) (s712,735.99)

$195,22E.55
Surplus or Deficit {surplus is subtracted; deficit is added) _,-s74l3SB

s908,95s.55

Allocated Net Asssment to Propedv
Net Assessment
Single Famlly Equivalent Benefit units
Allocated Net assessment to Property

S9o8,s65.55

-

3989.48

Comparibn of Net Assessm€nt and A$essment
Allocated Net Assessment to Property
Allocated Assessm€nt to ProPertv
Per Parcel surplus {+) or Deticit G)

{Se89.48)

-c491-
ls775.a7l

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 153

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 93

Prairie Oaks Ranch - lnstallment Summary

Prairie Oaks RanchDisrict:
Fiscal Year: 2022-29

Fund Balance (2022! (s4s1,s38)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

5o $oSo SO 5o So $oTotals: So

Lons Term lnstallment Summary

So $o $oSo $o So $oTotals: $o

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultlngGrouP

Page 154

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 94

Statting Fund Bolonce (as oJApril2022)

Estimoted Resetve to finance opprox. Jitst 6 months oJ 22'23

Available Frnds

S159,il7.18

1sx28,777.661

clty of Folsom

Pralile Oaks Ranch No.2 Landscaplngand Llghtlng Dlsttld
Fund 215

2022-23

!4!IqE!!e!!19!E

Gene6l Maint€nance Costs

1. scheduled

2. Uns€heduled

3. streetljghb
4. kriSatlon-Pafrs

91l3,mo.oo
s20,000.00

5o.oo
s2o,ooo.oo

Service Costs

5. flecrical So.oo

$o.oo

Curr€nt Vear lmprovement Prol€ds
7. Grover Entryat lron Point Slm,ooo.oo

Subtoial

ncideilal Costs

Sr?sp()m

8 Professional Senices {Engineer's Repofr and IPJ

9 Contact Seruices (all othe.contracts and seruices)

10 Poblications/Mailings/communications
11 Staff
12 overhead
13 CountyAuditor F€€

57so.oo
So.oo

So.oo

So.oo

ss,2o0.oo
So.oo

subtotal ss,9s0.00

srsqMTotal lmprovement Costs

Assessment per single Family Equivalent

Single Family Equivalent aenefit Units

$313.91
918.63

Srs8p6ru

Short-Term lnstallment Plan (previously colleded)

LonS Term lnstallmentPlan (previouslycollectedl

Shod-Term lnstallm€nt Plan (colleded this yeat)

Long-T€rm ln*allment Plan (collected this year)

Total lnstallment&!ts

5o.oo
So.oo

so.0o
So.oo

So.oo

)lstrict Balance

Total lmprovement costs
Subtotal

TotalAvailable Funds

Total Funds

Total lnstallment Cost

Contributions froh other sources

Net Ealanc€

s2aa,361.14
(S280,9so.oo)

51,417.14

s30,869.s2

s38,286.67

So.oo

So.oo

s38,286.67

Dlstilct Balance {surplus ls+; detlclt ls (}l $38"rffi?

{€t Asse$ment Calculatlon
s288,367.14

surplus or Deficitlsurplus is subtract€d; deficit is addedl (s38,285.57)

S250,080.8

Allodt€d Net Assessment to Ptoo€rtv
9250,080.48

s272,23

Single Family Equivalent Senefit Units

Allocat€d Net Asessment to Property

com..dson ol Net &rEssment and Assessm€nt

Allorated NGt Aressm€ntto P.openy
Allo.ated tusesshent to Prop€dy

P€r Par.el Surplus (+) or Deficlt Gl

15272.2?l

$41.68

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 155

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 95

Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 - lnstallment Summary

Disilict Piairie Oaks Ranch No,2

Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Fund Balance (2022) irss,647

Short Term lnstallment Summary
Aoorox.

Proiect Yearly Prior Years Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Total

lnstallment Collections 2018 2019 2020 2027 2022 Required

vear 1 pruning s1,000 So S1,ooo 51,ooo S1,ooo s 1,000 s1,000 s2s,000

vear 2 pruning 51,ooo So S 1,ooo S1.ooo S1,ooo 51,ooo S1,ooo 52s,ooo

vear 3 pruning S1,ooo So 51,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S2s,ooo

vear 4 pruning S1,ooo So s1,000 S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo s1,000 s2s.000

vear 5 orunine S1,ooo So S1,ooo Si.,ooo S1,ooo s1,000 S1.ooo S2s,ooo

free replacment (replace empty areas) S 1,ooo so s1.000 S1,ooo S1,ooo S 1,ooo S1,ooo Sls,ooo

LED landscape liehts S1,ooo So Sr,ooo 51,ooo S1.ooo s1.000 S1,ooo S2s,ooo

Landscaoe reolacement S1,ooo So S1.ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S 1,ooo S1,ooo s25.000

Fence replacement S1,ooo So $1,ooo S1,ooo s1.000 91.ooo S1,ooo s20,000

Ladder fuel Sr,ooo So S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo Sr,ooo STs.ooo

Repair damage walls (stucco half walls) Ssoo $o ss00 ss00 Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo S8,ooo

Totals: Slo,soo so Slo,soo s10.500 S1o.5oo Slo.soo Slo,soo s293,000

Long Term lnstallment Summary
Aoprox.

Proiect Yearly Prior Years Year 1 Years 2-5 Years 5-10 Years 10-20 Years 20-30 Total

lnstallment Collections 20t8 2019-2022 2022-2027 2027-2037 2037-2047 Required

Landscape reDlacement on Blue Ravine s10,000 5o Slo,ooo Slo,ooo slo,ooo Slo.ooo s10,000 s2s0,000

Landscape Replacement on Riley Slo,ooo So s10.000 s10,000 s10,000 Slo,ooo Slo,ooo S2so,ooo

Landscape Replacement on Prairie City Slo.ooo So Slo,ooo Slo,ooo Slo,ooo s10,000 Slo,ooo S15o,ooo

Landscape replacment on lron Point 510,000 so Slo,ooo s10,000 Slo,ooo Slo,ooo s 1o,ooo s100.000

Fence replacement Slo,ooo 5o Slo,ooo slo,ooo Slo.ooo s10.000 s10,000 s100,000

Post and cable replacement ss,ooo So Ss,ooo Ss.ooo Ss,ooo Ss,ooo Ss,ooo s75.000

Repair damaged walls S1,ooo So S1,ooo S1.ooo S1.ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S4o,ooo

fotals: ss6,000 So SsG.ooo s55.000 SsG.ooo SsG.ooo ss5,000 s96s,000

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

$t)lConsultingGroup

Page 156

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 96

Sturtinq Fund Balahce (6ofAptil 2022)
Estimoted ReseNe b Jinon.e opptox.fitst 6 months of22-23

s67,680.OO

ls4,o14-2Al

CltY of Folsom

The Residen.e! At ARC (Oak Ave) Landscapint and ttAhtina Oistrid
Fund 271
,o2a-a!

lmproveh€nt Cois

9c!€ELMEidE!3$s!9$r

3. st.eetliSht
4, ldgation Pans

s14,gos.06
s3,O0O.OO

sTso.oo
s1,200.@

SssllElg$c
5. Elect.ical 57O0.O0

s3,3Oo.m

Orrcnt Year lmprovement Proi6cts
7. Landscapereplacement s2,O0O.OO

subtorololkema sru
$r5"sffisubtotal

lncidental&ns
8. Professional SeNices (Ensinee/s Report and lP)

9. Contra.t SeNices {all oth€r contracts and seNlces)
10- Publications/Mailings/communications
11- Staff
12. overhead
13. county Auditor Fee

9375.oo
so.m
$0.00

54,O12.@
591s.0o
$10.03

$5,312,03

Total hprovement Costs s31,157,09

a*ssment ro Propedv l@rrentl

Assessment per Singl€ Family Equivalent
Slngle Family Equivalent Benefit Units
Ros 1 - Assesment

ss35.67
17

s9,123.39

s9,123.39

ln*allment ests lsee insallment Pl.n and summarv nef oarel

Shod Term lnstallment Plan (previouslv coll€cted)
lons-Term lnstallment Plan (previously colle.ted)
short'Term lnstallrent Plan (colle.ted this year)

Long-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

Total tdstallment Costs

s4,s0o.oo
so.oo

ssm.oo
90.oo

s5,OOO.O0

St$4!-gd!r
Total Asessment
Total lmprovement CosB

s9,123.39
(s31,157.09)

$22,O43.7O1

Total lnstallment cost
contributions from other sources

$63,505-72
54a,562.O2

{ss,o0o.@)
so.m

s36,552.02

oldrlct Balanc. {surpl{s is +; dellclt ls l)) $36,S62.O2

!€!-Algrellldscbtis

surolus or Deficit (surplus is suhracted; deficlt is added)

Net &sessment

s9,123.39
{s35,562.o2)
(s27,8a-63)

(527,438.631

4
(s1,614.041

Allocated Net A$€sment to Prooen!

The Resldences at ARc I

NetAsses5ment
Singl€ Family Equivalent Benefit units

Allocated Net Assessment to Property

tumDarlson ot Net A$essment and Ase$m€nl

Th€ R6ldences at ARC I

Allocated Assessment to Property
Pcr Parcel surplur {+) or Defi.lt G}

s1,614.@
ss36.67

s2,L5O.7t

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 157

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 97

The Residences at ARC - lnstallment Summary

The Residences at ARCDistrict:
Fiscal Year: 2022-23

s67,680Fund Balance (2022)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

The Residences at ARC

s4.500Ssoo S2.ooo ss00 Ssoo Ssoo ssoo ssooLandscape replacement

Ssoo S4,sooss00 s2.000 Ssoo Ssoo sso0 $sooTotals:

Long Term lnstallment Summary

The Residences at ARC

5o$o SO So $o So so $oTotals:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClconsultlngGroup

Page 158

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 98

sbrtlns Fund Bolonce (os otAptil 20221

Estimoted Reseve tofindnce opptot. li6t 6 months oJ 22 23
s67,680.00
(95,224.80)

CltY ofFolsom
fre Residen.e3 Al ARc ll lfolsom-Auburn Blvd) LandscaPina and tishtang Distrid

Fund 271
2022-23

mprovement 6*s

General Maintenance costs

3. Streetlights
4. trrigation Pats

s14,905-06
s3,00o.oo

sTso.oo
S1,2oo.oo

Servl.c Cods
s. Electdcal $7oo.oo

s3,3O0.00

turr€nt Year lmorovcm€ht Prole.ts
7. Landscapereplacem€nt 92,OOO.00

s2,m.@ _
s29,a5S.06

hcld€nral &is
8- Professional Seruices {Enginee/s Repod and lP)

9. contract seryices {all other.ontracts and seNices)
lo. Pdblications/Mailings/communi.atons
11- Staff
12. Ovefread
13. Counry Audltor Fee

5375.OO
so.0o
So.oo

94,012.00
591s.00

s5.90

ss.3oru

Total lmprov€ment cons S31,162.96

trs.!rment t6 Probertv {Curreni)

Assessment per single Family Equivalent
Single Famlly Equivalent Beneflt Unlts
Re.2 - A<e$ment

s1,169 97
10

511,699.70

s11,699.70

n*allment co5r5 (s€e lnstallment Plan and Summarv nen p.!el

Shon^Term lnstallm€nt Plan (previously collected)
tons-Iem lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
Shod-Term hstallment Plan (colle.ted this yeat
tong-Term lnstallment Plan {collected this yeat
Tot.l lnstallment @sts

s4,5OO.OO

so.oo
ss0o.oo

So.oo

ss,ooo.oo

Dlstrl.t BalEn.e
Total Assessment
Total lmprovement Cosb

Total available Funds

Total Funds

Total lnstallment cost
contributions from other sources

Net Balance

s11,699.70
(s31,162.96)

1s19,463-26)
s62,455.2O

942,991.94
(ss,o00.oo)

So.oo

s37,991-94

oistricr Balan.€ {sqrplu. is +; deficit is 0) s37,991.94

NetAsiesment calculatlon

su@lus o. Deficit (surplus is subtracted; defi.it i5 added)

N€tAsessment

s1L599.70
1s37,991.941

lsz6,zez.24l

(s26,212.24)

---J
(92,629-22)

Allocated Net Asse6smenl to Propertv

The Resld€nc€s at aRc il
Net Assessment
5ln8le Family Equivalent aenefit Units

Allocated Net assessmentto Propery

&mbarlsoh of N€t A$€ssment ahd Assessment

The Residehces at ARC ll
Allo.ated Net Ars€ssment to Propedy
Allocat€d Assessment to ProPerty
P€i Parcel surplus (+) or Detl(lt C)

s2,629.22
___lLi!9!i

s3,799.19

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 159

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 99

The Residences at ARC ll - lnstallment Summary

District: The Residences at ARC ll
2022-23Fiscal Year:

s67,680Fund Balance (2022)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

The Residences at ARCII

s4,s00Ssoo s2,000 ss00 ssoo ss00 ss00 ssooLandscape replacement

S4.sooss00 s2.000 Ssoo $s00 ssoo Ssoo ssooTotals:

Lone Term lnstallment Summary

The Residences at ARC ll

SO $o So $o $o So $oTotals: So

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGone ultlngGroup

Page 160

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 100

stortinE Fund Bolonce (ds ol Aptil 2022)
Estimated ReseNe toJinonce dpptox. JiEt 6 months oJ22'23

s102,449.00
So.oo

Clty of Folsom
Sllveibrook tandscapinB and Lighting oistrid

fund 237
2022-23

lEp@e!!le$!

6eneral Maint€nance co*s
1. scheduled
2. Unscheduled*
3. streetlights*
4. lrlgstion Patu

s6,3a0.44
S1,soo.o0
s1,2OO.OO

slso.oo

Servlc€ Co$s
5. Electrical* ssoo.oo

ssoo.oo

Current Y€ar lmprovem€nt Proi€cB
6. No planned prcjects So.oo

so@ _
91q230.4Subtotal

hgcg4ercesE
7. Professional Seruices {Engin€er's Repod and lP)

a. contm.tSeNices (all orh€r contmcts and seryices)*
9. Publications/Mailinss/Communications
10. Staff
11. Overhead
12. County Auditor Fee

sTso.oo
So.oo

s100.OO

s1,144.0O
s447.OO

s67.!7

subtotal

Total lmprov€ment co*s

s2,s08.17

s12,73a.51

Asresrmehi to Probertv (Currentl

Assessment per Single Family Equivalent
Single Family Equlvalent Senefit UniB

so.o0
113 a4

So.oo

lr*allmenr Plan G*s {s* indallment Plan and Sunmarv ne* oarel

shod-Term lnstallment Plan {previously.ollected)
tons Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)

Shod-Term lnstallment Plan lcollected this yea.)

LonA-Tem lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

Total ln*allment 6*s

s2,5OO.0O

982,000.o0
s5OO.OO

Ss,ooo.oo
sgo,ooo.m

Total Assessment to property
Total lmprovement costs

s!btotal

So.oo
{S12,738.61)
(s12,738.61)

Total lnstallmeht Costs
contdbutions from other sources

S102,449.oo
$a9,710.39

(s90,ooo.o0)

so.oo
(s289.51)

Di*rlct a.lance (surplus ls +; delicir is 0) (s28e.61)

!et Assiment Glculation
So.@

sunlus or Deficit (surplus is subtractedj deficit is added)

-e49r-
$289.51

Allocated N€t Asressment to P.obertv
Net &sessment
Slnale Familv Equlvalent Benefit Units

Allocated Net Assessm€nt to Property

S269.61

Sz.s4

&mparlson of N€t Assessment and Asse$ment
Allocated Net A$essment to Property
Allocated Assessment to Propedy
Per Parcel surplus (+) or Defl.lt {-)

l52.s4)

--t999-
{S2's4)

ar.€nrnated.on! bar€don pnorw.r!

Assessments will not be levied for 2022-23

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 161

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 101"

Silverbrook - lnstallment Summary

SilverbrookDistrict:
Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Fund Balance (2022) sro2,449

Short Term lnstallment Summary

ss00 Ssoo Ssoo S7.sooSsoo So ss00 sso0Tree replacement

ss00 s7.s00Ssoo $o ssoo ss00 sso0 ssooTotals:

Lons Term lnstallment Summary

ss,000 ss,000 ss,000 ss,000 ss,000 s1s0,000Median Relandscapinq Ss,ooo ss7,000

ss.000 ss.000 ss.000 ss.000 ss,000 s1s0,000Totals Ss,ooo ssT,ooo

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 162

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 102

Estimoted Resetue to Iinance dpprox. Jirst 6 months oJ 22-2s
s83,778.0O

{510,844.06)

CitV ot Folsom
Sieeplechase bhdscaplng and Llghting District

Fund 251
2022-23

lmorovement &sts

General Malntenance Cois
1. scheduled
2. Unscheduled
3. Streetlights
4. lrdgation Pans

514,300.2A
s7,soo.oo
s1,25O.OO

560o.oo

Seryllsls$E
s2,1OO.OO

S3,75o.oo

Current Year lmprovement Proiects
7. Fence replacementfree work SlO,OOO.OO

Subtoto! oJ ttem 7 Src""""-
Subtotal s39,500.28

lncldental cods
8, Professional services (Ensineer's Report and lP)

9. Contract seruices (all other contracts and seruices)
10. Publications/Mailings/communications
11. Staff
12. oveAead

97so.oo
So.oo
so.oo

$4,O19.00
s841.OO

s883.OO13. County Auditor Fee

Subtotal

T6tal lmprov€m€nt &*s

s5,493.0O

$4s,993.2a

{ssessment to Prooertv lcutrent)

Assessment per single Family Equivalent
Single Family Equlvalent Benefit Units

Total Ases.ment

sxs7.58
x54

s24,2a2-72

n*allment Coss lsee lnsallment Plan and s!mmarv nen oaqel

Short-Term lnstallment Plan {pr€vaously collected}
Long-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
shofr-Term lnstallment PIan (collected this year)

Long-Term lnstallment Plan (coll€cted this year)

Total lnstallment Costs

57,soo.oo
so.oo

61,soo.oo
So.oo

$9,mo.o0

Dlstrict Balance

Total lmprovement Cosb
Subtotal

Total AvailEble Funds

Total lnstallm€nt cost
contributlons from other sources

Net Balance

s24,2a2.72
(S4s,993.28)
(S21,710.s6)

s72,933.94
9s1,223.38
(s9,OOO.OO)

So.oo
s42,223.3A

Didrict Balance (surplus ii +; d€licit is 0) 542,2233A

Net Asessment Glculatlon
s24,2A2.72

surplus or Deficit (sualus is subtracted, deticit is added)

-{@:cr{s17,940.651

Allocated Net Ass€$ment to Propertv
Net Assessment
Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Allocated Net ksessment to Property

(s17,940.65)
1g

lsr16.so)

Comparison of Net Assessment and Asse$ment
Allocated Net Assessment to Prope^y

Per Parcel surplus (+l or Deticit l-)

s116.sO

--tgg!-9274.1A

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 163

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 103

Steeplechase - lnstallment Summary

SteeolechaseDistrict:
Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Fund Balance (2022) s83,778

Short Term lnstallment summarv

Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo ss00 Ssoo s8,000fence replacments near park $s00 So

s2s0 SO s2s0 Szso Szso s2s0 s2so ss,000year 2 tree pruning

s2s0 S2so ss,000vear 3 tree orunins Szso So s2s0 52so s2so
s2s0 s2s0 S2so S2so s2s0 ss,000vear 4 tree pruning s2so 5o

s250 $o S2so Szso s2s0 s2s0 s2so ss,00oyear 5 tree pruning

s1.s00 s1.s00 s1.s00 s1.500 s1.s00 s28,000Totals: $r,soo $o

Long Term lnstallment Summary

SoSo SO 5o $o So $o $oTotals:

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2A22-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 164

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 104

startins Fund Bolonce las oJ Aptil 2022)
Estimated ReseNe to linance approx. flBt 6 mohths of 22-23

S24,9x9.0o
($4,060.26)

City ot Folsom
Sierra Eslates Landscaping and Lithtlng Distrid

Fund 231
2022-23

lmprovem€nt 6is

G.neral Malntenance Co*s
1. Scheduled
2. Unscheduled
3. str€etlighls
4. lrigatlon Pats

9a,s32.7O
51,soo.oo

s250.00
s35O.OO

Servlce 6$s
5.
6.

Electrical s32s.OO

58so,oo

current Year lmgrovement Prolects
7. Tree replacement S6,00o.oo

Subtotal oJ ltem 7 S6,m.@
sa7,ao7,7o

lncidental co$s
8. Professional Seruices lEnsinee/s Repon and lP)

9. Cont€ct Seruices (all other contracb and servi.es)
10. Publications/Mailings/communications
11. Slafi
12. overhead
13. Colhty Auditor Fee

$7so.oo
$o.oo
so.oo

s1,144.00
s2X9.OO

574.7s

Subtotal $r"w

Tot.l lmprovement 6$s s19,935.45

Assessment to Propertv lQrrent)

Assessment per Single Family Equivalent

SinCle Family Equivalent Benefit Unib
Total Assessment

s363.68

s9,O92.OO

Shoft-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)

Long-Term lnstallmeht Plan lpreviously collected)
Shod-Term lnstallment Plan {collected rhis year)

Lon8-Term lnstallment Plan (collected thas year)

Total lndallm€nt b$s

s2,soo.oo
$o.oo

$soo.oo
so.oo

$3,ooo.m

Dlstd.t Aalance
Total Assessment
Total lmprovement Costs

Subtotal

s9,O92.OO
(s19,93s.45)
(S10,843.4s)

S20,8s8.74
S1o,o15-29
(S3,ooo.oo)

So.oo
s7,O15.29

Total lnstallment cost
Conkibutaons from other sourc€s

Net Balance

Dlsrl.t Balance (surplus is +; deflclt ls 0) s7,Or5.29

s9,O92.OO

{s7,01s.291

52,076,77
surplus or Deficit {surplus is subtracted; deficit as added)

Allocated Net Assessmeht to Propedv
Net Assessment
Single Famlly Equivalent Benefit units
Allocated Net Assessment to Property

s2,O75-77
2S

$83.o7

comparlson of Nel Assessment and Assessment

allocat€d Assesrment to Ptopedy
Per Parcel surplus (+) or Delicit G)

(S83.07)

-!ge!!-
s2ao.61

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultingGroup

Page 165

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 105

Sierra Estates - Installment Summary

Distrlct: Sierra Estates

Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Fund Balance l2o22l s24.919

Short Term lnstallment Summaru

SSoo ss00 s7.500Tree reolacement S5oo So Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo

Totals: ss00 So Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo Ssoo S50o S7,soo

Long Term lnstallment Summary

Totals: s0 So So 3o So So So $o

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultlngGroup

Page 166

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 105

Storting Fund Bolonce (as ofAptil 2022)
Estimoted Reserye tolinance apprcx. Jitst 6 months oJ 2-23

{$156,417.79)
li26,a2o.7a)

Cityof Folsom
WillowCreek Estates Eart bndscaplng and Li8hting Distrid

Fund 249
2022-23

G€neral Maintenance costs
1. scheduled
2. Unscheduled
3. Streetlights
4. lrrjgation

50.m
So.m
so.m
So.m

Sedice costs
5. Electrical s11,m.m

s15,Om.@

Cur.€nt Year lfrprovement Proi€ds
7. No planned projeds So.m

subtotdlof ltem 7 So-m
sr5"otm

a. Professional seruices (En8ineer's Report and lP)
L Contrad SeNaces (all other contrads and seruices)
10. Publications/Mailings/communications
11. Staff
12- Overh€ad
13. countyAuditorFee

57so.m
So.m
so.m
So'@

s2,@.00
50.m

$,1m

s29,1s.@Total lmprovement costs

Assessmentto Propetu {Cuilentl

Assessment per Slngle Famlly Equlvalent
SinSle Family Equivalent Benefit Units

s80.{

$60,o58.S

lnstallment Cosb lsee installment Plan and Summarunexr parel

shot-Term lnstallment Plan (previously colleded)
tong-Term lnstallment Plan {previously colleded)
Shon Term lnstallment PIan (collect€d this year)
Long-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

total lhstallhehtcorrs

so.m
534mO.m

So.m
So.@

Sil,m.m

Dlstrict &lahce
Total Assessment
Total lmprovement Costs

Subtotal
Total Available Funds

Total Funds
Total lnstallment cost
Contributions f rom other sources

Net Balance

So,os8.80
(529,190.m)

S30,868.80
(51328s8.s7)

lilo7 ,o29.77)
{s34,Om.m)

So@
lst4!,o29.77)

Dlstrldgalance (surplus is +r deflclt is Ol |$ML,O?9.77)

Surplus or Deficit {surplus as subtracted; deficit is added)
S60,o58.e

s14t,o29.77

s201,0S,57

Allocated NetAssessmeht to Propefl

Single Family Equivalent Benefit Units
Allocated Net As5essment to Property

s2or"0s.5?
7&

s269.19

Comparison of Net Assessment and Assessment
Allo6ted Net Assessmeht to Propeny
Allodted Ass€ssment to Propedy
Per Parcel surplus l+) orDeficit {-}

(S25e.19)

-try-

(91S,?9)

from fund balance

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClGonsultingGroup

Page 167

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page L07

Willow Creek Estates East - Installment Summary

District: Willow Creek Estates East

2022-23Fiscal Year:
(s1s3,757)Fund Balance (2022)

Short Term lnstallment Summary

SO So 5o So $o $o $oTotals: $o

Long Term lnstallment Summarv

SO $o SO $o $oTotals: SO $o $o

ll,i::1

l'\r'l l,){l{.i':i

;1.{j,ii:tll

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultlngGroup

Page 168

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page L08

Storting Fund Bolonce (os ol Aptil 2022)
Estimated ReseNe to Iinonce opptox. li6t 6 mohths oJ 22-23

$1ss,461.0o
lS34,273.77)

CltV of Folsom
wlllow Cr€ek Estai€s East No. 2 khdscaplhg ahd LlShtlng Dl6triat

Fund 284
2022-2?

lmprovement 6*s

Se!sEL!43!4@995!r
1. scheduled
2. Unscheduled
3. Streetlights

sss,830.68
$20,O00.O0
Sls,ooo.oo

S€rvice Costs
4. Electdcal 5o.oo

so.oo

!cse4-!9slEP!eveqe!!-Pr9iE!!r
5. Pruning, planting, tlow sensor installation 535,OOO.OO

subtotol oJ ltem 7 S35,ooo.oo

s125,83O.68

lncid€ntal e$5
7. Professional seruices (En8ineer's Repot ahd lP)
8. Contract Services (all other contracts and seruices)
9. Publications/MailinEs/communications
10. Staff
11. overhead
12. county Auditor Fee

s75O.OO

so.oo
so.oo

S13,789.o0
S971.oo
s44O.OO

$15,950.00

Total lmprovement &sts s141,780.68

Asessment to Prooenv {Cuirent}

Assessment per sinale Familv Equivalent
Single Famlly Equivalent Benefit Units

Total Assessment

s103.s1
14L-46

s74748.O1

ln*allment @sts {see installment Plan and Summarv nen pas€l

shofr Tem lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
Lons-Term lnstallment Plan (previously €olle€ted)
Shod'Tem lnstallment Plan (collected this year)

tong-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this y€ar)

Total lnsrallment costs

Sz1,?so.oo
slO5,OOO.OO

s4,250.00
Szl,ooo.oo

9lsr,soo.oo

District Balahce
Total Assessment
Total lmprovement Costs

Subtotal

s76,748.01
(S141,780.58)
(96s,032.67)
s72!,La7.23
s55,154.56

{s151,5OO.OO)

so.oo
(S9s,34s.44)

Total lnstallment cost
Contributions Irom other sources

Net Balance

olstrid aalance (surplus is +; defi€it is 0) l$95,34s,44)

N€t As*ssment elcutatioh

Surplus or Deficit (surplus is subtracted; deficit is added)

Net Assessment

s76,78.OL
s95,34S.4

s172,o93.45

a!9!a!e4-Nc!-As4erSlggeper!v

Single Family Equivalent Benefit Unlts

Allocated Net As5essment to Property

$172,O93.4s

14
s232.10

@
Allocated Net acsesm€nt to Prop€dy
Allo€ated Ass€ssh€nt to Propedy
P€r Parcel Surplus (+) or Deliclt F)

(s232.10)

---$193'51-
($128,s9)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 169

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 1"09

Willow Creek Estates East No. 2 - lnstallment Summary

District: Willow Creek Estates East No 2

Fiscal Year: 2022-23

Fund Balance (2022) S1ss,461

Short Term lnstallment Summary

Approx.

Proiect Yearly Prior Years Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Total
lnstallment Collections 2018 2019 2020 202L 2022 Required

2 flow oackases & Master Valve lnstall S2so 5U s2s0 S2so S2so S25o s2s0 S7,soo
Lieht pole replacement (3) S1,ooo So S1,ooo S1,ooo S 1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo s20,000

vear 3 tree pruning S1,ooo so S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo 51,ooo s10,000

Vear 4 tree pruning S1.ooo So s1,000 S1.ooo S1,ooo S1.ooo s1.000 s10.000

vear 5 tree prunine S1,ooo So s1.000 S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo Slo,ooo
Oleander replacement on blue ravine frontage

fotals: 54.2so So s4.2s0 s4.2s0 S4.2so S4.2so S4,2so s57.500

Lonq Term lnstallment Summary

Approx.
Proiect Yearlv Prior Years Year 1 Years 2-5 Years 5-10 Years 10-20 Years 20-30 Total

lnstallment Collections 2018 2019 2020 202t 2022 Required

Landscape replacement on Oak Avenue S1,ooo So s1,000 S1,ooo S1,ooo S1,ooo s1,000 53o,ooo
Landscape replacement on Blue Ravine Ss,ooo So Ss,ooo Ss,ooo Ss,ooo Ss,ooo Ss,ooo SGo,ooo
lrrigaiton controller upgrade (4 controllers) S5,ooo So s5.000 S5.ooo S5,ooo Ss.ooo Ss.ooo Sso.ooo

free and landscape improvement / replacement Slo,ooo So Slo,ooo Slo,ooo Slo,ooo Slo,ooo Slo,ooo Sloo,ooo

fotals: s21,ooo So $21,ooo $21,ooo s21,000 s21,000 S21,ooo S24o,ooo

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClConsultingGroup

Page 170

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 1L0

City ol Folsom

Wlllow Cre€k €states South Landscaping and Lighting Distrlct

Fund 252
2022-21

lm!rovem€nt G$s

G€h€ral Malht€hahce Co$s
1. Scheduled

2. Unscheduled

3. Steetlights
4. ldgation

s76,M2.s4
s1s,om.oo
s12,500.00

s12,s00.00

!gvi!e!g$s
5. Electdcal s3s,000.00

s37,500.00

furr€nt Year lmorovement ProlEcls

7. lnt€dor sisn renwation 5120,000.00

s12o,moo
subtotal 330E,942.s4

lncldental 6$s
8. Professional spruices (Ensinee/s Repotand lP)

9. coniBct serui€es (all othercontEcts and seNices)

10. Publications/Mailings/communications
11- staff
12. overhead

13. countyAuditorfee

s750.00

$o.oo

So.oo

s5,3o8.oo

5s,s97.00

$852.s7

subrotal

Total lmprovement 63tt

Slr,w

9321,450.11

\$€smentlo Proredv lCurrentl

tuses5ment perSingle Family Equivalent

Single Family Equivalent Eeneflt Units
s109.88
1,461.98 _

s160,542.35

nn.ilmenr 6$s lsee insiallm€nt Plan and 5!mmarv nefi laq€l

shod-Tem lnstallment Plan {prcviously collect€d)

Lons-Tem Installment Plrn {previously collected)

shod-Term lnstallment Plan {collected this year)

Long-Tem lnstallment Plan (collected this yead

Total lnnallment 6ns

s12,S@.oo

$o.oo

92,5m.00
So.oo

s1s,0@.00

)lirlat Belanc€

Total tusessment
Total lmprovemnt Cosb

Subtotal

Total Available Funds

Tobl Funds

Total lnsta llrent Cost

conributions f rom dher source!

Net Balan€e

s150,642.36

{s321,460.111

{s160,817.?5)

S614,475.08

s453,657.34
(s1s,000.00)

90.00

$438,6s7.34

Didrid Balance (surplusls+;d€fi.|t is (ll 3410.965.96

{et Asesshent Glcul.tlon

suplus or Deficit {surplus is subtactedj defi.it is add€d)

NetAssessm.nt

s150,642,36
1s410.965.96)

ts250.323-60]

Allocated Net As$meht to Prooetrv
Net tusessment
single FamilyEquivalentBenefitUnits

Allft ated Net Assessment to Property

1s250.323.601

J
(3171.221

@
Allocat€d Net A$€ssment lo Propedy

Per parcel surplus l+) or Deficir (-)

s171,22

_91m
s281.10

stadins rund galanre (as oJ Apnl 2022)

EstinoPd Reseve to Jinance opprcx. liqt 6 nohths ol 22 23
5685,214.m
{s71,738.92)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 171

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 1LL

Willow Creek South - lnstallment Summary

Willow Creek Estates SouthDistrid:
Fiscal Year: 2022-2?

Fund Balance (2022) s686.214

Short Term lnstallment Summarv

r'ear 3 tree brunins Ssoo s0 SSoo ss00 sso0 ss00 S5oo s20.000
JEar 4 tree brunins Ssoo so s500 Ssoo ssoo Ssoo Ssoo s20,o0o
tear 5 tree pruning ss00 So ss00 ss00 ss00 S5oo ss00 S2o.ooo

new blantins around reolaced siens ss00 So ss00 ss00 ss00 S5oo ss00 s15.000
interior sien reolacement ss00 s0 sso0 ss00 SSoo sso0 Ssoo gBs.ooo

fotals: $z,soo 90 s2,500 32.soo s2.500 s2.s0( s2.s00 s160.000

Long Term lnstallment Summarv-

fotals: s0 s0 s0 s0 So sr s0 so

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SClCsnsultingGroup

Page 172

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 112

startins Fund Balance (os oJ Aptil 2022)
Estimoted Resetue to linonce opptox- fi6t 5 months oJ 22-23

s48,s42.0s
(S6,496.9s)

City of Folsom
Willow Springs bndscapina and tiahtint Distri€t

Fund 250 - Str€etlights Only
2022-23

lmorovement Costs

General Maiht€hahc€ Costs
1. scheduled
2. Uns€heduled
3. Streetlights

So.oo
So-oo

s7,50O.0O

S!!v!rsls!!
4. Electrical s6,5OO.OO

$o.oo

current Year lmbrovemeht Proi€ct5
6. No planned projects So.oo

subtotol oJ ttem 5 So.oo
s14,OOO.OO

lncld€hlal Costs
7. Pmfessional seruices (Enginee/s Report and lP)
8. Contract Seruices (all other contracts and seruices)
9. Pu bl icati ons/Ma i I i nBs/commu ni cations
10.Staff
11. overhead
12. County Auditor Fee

s7so.0o
So,oo
5o.oo
So.oo

s475.OO

s30s.03

Subtotal

Total lmprovement Costs

51,530.O3

s15,530.O3

AEEEEellIgllgps gcgelll

Assessment per Single Family Equivalent
SinEle Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Total Assessment

S28.14
517

s14,s4a,38

lndallment Co*s {see installment Plan and Summaru nen pase}

Shod-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
Long-Term lnstallment Plan (previously collected)
shod-Term !nstallment Plan (collected this year)
Long-Term lnstallment Plan (collected this yead
Total lhstallment costs

s12,sO0.O0
5o.oo

s1,OOO-OO

So.oo

s13,500,00

Dlstrict Balance
Total Assessment
Total lmprovement Costs

Subtotal
Total Available Funds

Total Funds
Total lnstallment cost
contdbutions from other sources

Net Balance

s14,s48.38
(s1s,s3o.03)

(Ss81.6s)

s49,260.10
s4a,27a.4s

(s13,s0o.0o)

$o.oo
s34,17a.4s

Dlfrict Balance (surplus is+; deflclt is 0) 342,882.4a

Net Ass€ssment Calculation
314,548.38

surplus or Deficit (sumlus is subtracted; deficit is added) {s42-6a2.4a1

{s28-134.10}

Allocated Net a$essment to Prooertv

Sinsle Family Equivalent Benefit Units

Allocated Net assessment to Propefry

t328.134,10)

-

ts54,42)

comoarison of N€t Assessm€nt snd Assessment
3s4.42

---f413-s82.56
allocated asse$ment to Property
Per Parcel Surplus {+) or Deticit G)

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

$GlConsultingGroup

Page 173

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page 113

Willow Springs - lnstallment Summary

District: Willow SDrinrs

Fiscal Year: 2,J22-2?

Fund Balance 12022) 57.s37

s1.000LED retrofits (contempo) 51,ooo S7,s0o s1,000 S1,ooo S1,ooo s1,000 s1s,000

Totals: s1.000 s7,s00 S1,ooo S1,ooo s1.000 s1.000 S1.ooo s15.000

Lonq Term lnstallment Summan

Totals: So 9o $o So So 3o So So

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlGonsultlngGroup

Page 174

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Page L14

Reference is hereby made to the Assessment Roll in and for the assessment proceedings on file

with the City of Folsom City Clerk, as the Assessment Roll is too voluminous to be bound with this

Engineer's Report.

Appendix B - Assessment Roll, FY 2022-23

City of Folsom
Landscaping and Lighting Districts
Engineer's Report, FY 2022-23

SGlConsultingGroup

Page 175

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



This page is intentionally treft blank.

Page 176

07/12/2022 Item No.8.



Book 1 Pzge67
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

Aptt72,2022

Meetinq Minutes

Joint Folsom Citv Gouncil and Folsom Ranch Financins Authoritv Meetins

April 12,2022

ROLL CALL

Councilmembers Present: Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Mayor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent None

Participating Staff City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni

PUBLIG HEARING:

13. Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) lmprovement Area No.1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022

a. Resolution No. 10835 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Authorizing the
lssuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) lmprovement
Area No. 1 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022, the Execution of a First Supplemental lndenture
Providing therefor, Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, and
Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of other Documents in Connection therewith

b. Resolution No. 0O8-Folsom Ranch FA - A Resolution of the Governing Board of the Folsom
Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the lssuance, Sale and Delivery of not to exceed
$17,000,000 Aggregate PrincipalAmount of City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) lmprovement Area No. 1 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022; Approving the
Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing Modifications thereof and Execution and
Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official Statement, Authorizing Changes thereto and
Execution and Delivery thereof and of an Official Statement to be Derived therefrom; Approving a
Local Obligation Purchase Contract and a Bond Purchase Contract and Execution and Delivery of
each; and Authorizing Related Actions Necessary to lmplement the Proposed Financing

CFO/Finance Director Stacey Tamagni made a presentation.

Mayor Kerri Howell opened the public hearing. Hearing no public comments, the public hearing was
closed.

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Councilmember Mike Kozlowski to
approve Resolution No. 10835.

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the Folsom Ranch Financing AuthorityPage 177

07/12/2022 Item No.9.



Book 1 Page 62

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY
Apnl72,2022

AyES: Gouncilmember(s): Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

Motion by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember Mike Kozlowskito
approve Resolution No.008-Folsom Ranch FA.

Motion carried with the following roll callvote:

AYES: Board Member(s): Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell
NOES: Board Member(s): None
ABSENT: Board Member(s): None
ABSTAIN: Board Member(s): None

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the joint City Council / Folsorn_Ranch Financing

Authority, the meeting was adjourned to the regular City Council meeting at 7:33 pm.

SUBMITTED BY:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk/Board Secretary

ATTEST:

Kerri Howell, Mayor/Board Chair

DMFT - Not fficial until approved by the Folsom Ranch FinancingAuthority.Page 178

07/12/2022 Item No.9.



Book 1 Page 87

Folsom Public Financing Authority
May 24,2022

Meetins Minutes

Folso
Financinq Authoritv. Folsom nch Financinq Au oritv and South of Parkinq

Authoritv Meetinq

Mav 24.2022

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present: YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Vice MaYor
Sarah Aquino, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: None

Participating Staff City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steven Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

CONSENT LENDAR:

16. Approval of the March 22,2022 Joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor Agency i Public

Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

Meeting Minutes

17. Receive and File the City of Folsom, the Folsom Redevelopment Successor Agency, the

Folsom Public Financing Authority, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, and the South of 50

Parking Authority Monthly lnvestment Reports for the Month ol March 2022

Motion by Gouncilmember Mike Kozlowski, second by Vice Mayor Rosario Rodriguez to
approve the Gonsent Galendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AyES: Council/Board Member(s): Ghalamcherla, Kozlowski, Rodriguez, Aquino,
Howell

NOES: Gouncil/Board Member(s): None
ABSENT: Council/BoardMember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncil/Board Member(s): None

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the Folsom Public Financing Authority.
Page 179

07/12/2022 Item No.10.



Book 1 Page 88

Folsom Public Financing Authority
May 24,2022

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor

Agency / Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing

Authority, the meeting was adjourned to the regular City Council meeting at 8:40 pm.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City ClerUBoard Secretary'
ATTEST

Kerri Howell, Mayor/Board Chair

DRAFT - Not fficial until approved by the Folsom Public FinancingAuthority.
Page 180

07/12/2022 Item No.10.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council adopt the following resolution:

Resolution No. 10884 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Authorizing
the Issuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022, the Execution of an Indenture
Providing therefor, Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, and

Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of Other Documents in Connection
therewith

It is recommended the Governing Board of the Authority adopt the following resolution:

Resolution No. 0O9-Folsom Ranch FA - A Resolution of the Governing Board of the Folsom
Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Not to Exceed

$12,000,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo.
23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022;
Approving the Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing Modifications thereof
and Execution and Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary Official Statement,

Authorizing Changes thereto and Execution and Delivery of an Offrcial Statement to be

Derived therefrom; Approving a Local Obligation Purchase Contract and a Bond Purchase

Contract and Execution and Delivery of Each; and Authorizing Related Actions Necessary to
Implement the Proposed Financing.

1

MEETING DATE: 7/r2t2022

AGENDA SECTION: Joint Meeting Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area
No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022

F'ROM: Finance Department

Page 181

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



BACKGRO / ISSI]E

Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (CFD No. 23) is a community facilities
district organized by the City Council under the Mello-Roos Act for the purpose of providing
for the construction and acquisition of certain public improvements and the financing of certain
services to serve property within CFD No. 23. The City established CFD No. 23 onMay 26,

2020 and designated six separate improvement areas atthattime, including Improvement Area
No. 3. In Decemb er 2021, a seventh improvement area was designated within CFD No. 23 and

change proceedings for Improvement Area No. 3 amended the boundaries and Rate and

Method of Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 3. Improvement Area No. 3 consists of
a gross area of approximately 272 aues and is located wholly within the City of Folsom, west

of East Bidwell Street, north of Mangini Parkway and south of U.S. Highway 50.

Development within Improvement Area No. 3 is planned to include 751 single-family/single-
family high density units and 168 multi-family low density units, for a total of 919 units.

Property within Improvement Area No. 3 is in varying stages of development, including
partially-improved lots, improved lots, homes under construction and completed homes.

Improvement Area No. 3 is expected to include five separate product lines of homes, ranging

from typical lot sizes of 3,440 square feet to 6,175 square feet, with three separate floor plans

for each product line. All of the units within Improvement Area No. 3 are expected to be

constructed as age-restricted (55+) residential homes.

The cost to construct all the facilities necessary to service property within Improvement Area
No. 3 is estimated at approximately $173,193,653 and is comprised of backbone infrastructure,
soft costs and subdivision infrastructure. Backbone facilities infrastructure improvements for
Improvement Area No. 3 are expected to include transportation improvements, water system

improvements, recycled water system improvements, drainage system improvements,
wastewater system improvements, and park, parkway and open space improvements.

Subdivision infrastructure improvements for development of Improvement Area No. 3

includes, among other things, intract infrastructure such as underground utilities, subdivision
roadways, street lighting, soundwalls and landscaping improvements. The table below
summarizes the budgeted construction costs for development within Improvement AreaNo. 3.

2
Page 182

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Est. Total
Site Costs

Completed
Costs Through
Mey 31,2022

Remaining Site
Costs

Soft Costs
Phase I Common
Phase2&3Common
MtD Corumon
Phase I IAgeSt
Phase 2 h$ASf
MLD l$gr..a"s.t,

Phase lC hlmst
$dnprgini Parkway Phase 1

M..angiX*li. Parlcway Pha se 2

&lnngii*l Parkway Phase 3

E. Bidwell Parkway
OakAvenue
Phase I Entries
Phase 2 Entry
MtD Entry
Rec. Center Phase I
Rec. AmenityPhase 2

Total Costs

13,968,113 $
22,599,r09
10,704,356
8,602,681

20,700,135
22,433,015
7,894.012
9,455,216
g,3ol,906

13, I I 5,589
599,039

4,259,619
4,786,?19
3,25o,ooo
2.600"000

650,000
18,174,644
l,l00,0oo

8,497,419 $
20,588,47r

901,51I
265,318

18,409,722

$

248,222
7,395,t42
7,369,463
2,991,4O4

5,470,694
2,010,638
g,go2,g45

9,337,363
2,290,413

22,433,0t5
7,645,79Q
8,060,074

933,441
10,124,185

599,039
244,200

4,775,646
687,994

2,600,000
650,000

14,063,793
1,100,000

4,015,418
10,573

2,562,006

4,1lo,85l

$ 173n193,653 $ 71,364,522 $ 101n829,130

Notice of this public hearing was published in the Folsom Telegraph on June 30,2022.

POLICY / RULE

Resolution No. 9282 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
Goals and Policies for Community Facilities Districts

Chapter 3.110, ooCommunity Facilities Financing", of the Folsom Municipal Code

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982

Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985

ANALYSIS

The Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 (Series

2022Revenue Bonds) are being issued by the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (FRFA) in
a not to exceed amount of $12,000,000 to finance the purchase of the limited obligation special

tax bonds (Local Obligations), issued by CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch). The purchase price of
the Local Obligations will be used to finance the acquisition and construction of certain public
facilities, fund a debt service reserve account, fund capitalized interest to September 1, 2022,
and pay certain costs of issuance of the Local Obligations and Series2022 Revenue Bonds.

J
Page 183

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



A special tax will be levied and collected annually to service the Local Obligations. Every
year, CFD No. 23 shall determine the annual special tax requirement relating to Improvement

Area No. 3. The annual special tax requirement is that amount of special tax revenue required

in any fiscal year for Improvement Area No. 3 to:

Pay administrative expenses
Pay annual debt service on all outstanding bonds for Improvement Area No. 3
Pay other periodic costs on outstanding bonds, including credit enhancement or rebate

payments, if applicable
Pay any amounts required to replenish the reserve fund
Pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent special taxes

Fund Improvement Area No. 3 PAYGO costs

Pay for authorized services
Pay other associated costs as listed in the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment

The special tax shall be levied each fiscal year proportionately on each Sacramento County

assessor's parcel of taxable property within Improvement Area No. 3 at arate up to 100% of
the applicable maximum special tax to satisff the annual special tax requirement. As of the

most current appraisal, the appraised value for the property within Improvement Area No. 3 is

$110,464,000 and the value-to-lien ratio is 8.2:1, which is in compliance with the City's CFD
policy. The total projected residential property tax level for both developed single-

family/single-family high-density property and developed multi-family low-density property

within Improvement Area No. 3 is approximately 1.68% and approximately 1.650 ,

respectively, and shall not exceed 2.0%o of the estimated sales price of the respective homes to

be constructed in Improvement AreaNo. 3.

Upon the conclusion of the noticed public hearing, and by adopting the proposed City Council
Resolution, the City Council is taking the following actions in connection with the Local
Obligations:

Determining that there are significant public benefits to the City from the proposed

financing and approving the Series 2022Revenue Bonds
Authorizing the issuance of an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed

$12,000,000 in Local Obligations
Approving the form and substance and the execution and delivery of the Indenture with
U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association
Approving the form and substance and the execution and delivery of the Continuing
Disclosure Certificate
Approving the form and substance and delivery of the Preliminary Official Statement,

and authorizingthe preparation, delivery and execution of a final Official Statement

Approving the form and substance and execution and delivery of the Local Obligation
Purchase Contract
Approving the form and substance and execution and delivery of the Trust Agreement

a

o

o

a

a

a

a

o

1

2.

J

4.

5

6.

7.

4 Page 184

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



8 Authorizing the officers of the City to execute any and all documents and instruments,
for and on behalf of the City andlor CFD No. 23,to carry out the issuance of the Local
Obligations

By adopting the proposed FRFA Resolution, the Governing Board is taking the following
actions in connection with the Series 2022Revenue Bonds:

Authorizing the issuance of an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed

$12,000,000 in Series 2022Revenue Bonds
Approving the form and substance and execution and delivery of the Trust Agreement
Approving the form and substance and execution and delivery of the Local Obligation
Purchase Contract
Approving the form and substance and execution and delivery of the Bond Purchase

Contract
Approving the form and substance of the Preliminary Offrcial Statement authorizing
the Treasurer to determine when said Preliminary Official Statement is final, and

authorizing the distribution of both the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official
Statement to be distributed by the Underwiter.
Authorizing the officers of the FRFA to execute and deliver any and all documents,

and to do any and all things deemed necessary to comply with the terms and intent of
this resolution.

Other documents included as exhibits to this staff report include:

Preliminary Official Statement
Trust Agreement
Indenture
Local Obligation Purchase Contract
Bond Purchase Agreement
Continuing Disclosure Certifi cate
Good Faith Estimates

The City has engaged the following consultants to assist in the issuance of these Series 2022
Revenue Bonds:

1

2
J

4

5

6

O

o

o

a

a

a

a

Bond Counsel:
Disclosure Counsel:
Tax Consultant:
Financial Advisor:
Trustee:

Orrick, Henington & Sutcliffe LLP
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP
NBS
Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc.
U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no discemable financial impact on the City of Folsom. The CFD No. 23 formation,
bonded indebtedness, and expenses, including those for Improvement Area No. 3, are solely

5
Page 185

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



the responsibility of CFD No. 23. The City will receive reimbursement from the issuance of
the Series 2022 Revenue Bonds for staff time and expenses and will receive an annual

administrative fee throughout the term of CFD No. 23; these amounts are intended to offset
expenses incurred by the City for administration and other items.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Environmental Impact Report was previously
approved for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch project (PN 19-091) on March 10,2020 in
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The project is consistent

with this Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS, and all mitigation
measures have been applied as conditions of approval for this project. In addition, none of the
conditions described in Section 21166 of the Public Resources Code or Section 15162 of the
CEQA Guidelines calling for the preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. Therefore,
no additional environmental review is required under CEQA.

ATTACHMENTS

1. ResolutionNo. 10884 - A Resolution ofthe City Council ofthe City of Folsom Authorrzing
the Issuance of the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022, the Execution of an Indenture
Providing therefor, Authorizing the Execution of a Local Obligation Purchase Contract,
and Authorizing Necessary Actions and the Execution of Other Documents in Connection
therewith

2. Resolution No. 009-Folsom Ranch FA - A Resolution of the Governing Board of the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Not to
Exceed $12,000,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds,
Series 2022; Approving the Form and Substance of a Trust Agreement, Authorizing
Modifications thereof and Execution and Delivery as Modified; Approving a Preliminary
Official Statement, Authorizing Changes thereto and Execution and Delivery of an Official
Statement to be Derived therefrom; Approving a Local Obligation Purchase Contract and

a Bond Purchase Contract and Execution and Delivery of Each; and Authorizing Related
Actions Necessary to Implement the Proposed Financing.

3. Trust Agreement by and among the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and the City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) and U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association, as Trustee

4. Indenture between the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as Trustee

6
Page 186

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



5. Preliminary Official Statement for the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series2022

6. Local Obligation Purchase Contract for the City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022between
the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

7. Bond Purchase Agreement for the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 between the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and
Piper Sandler & Co.

8. Continuing Disclosure Certificate

9. Good Faith Estimates for the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom
Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022 and the Folsom Ranch
Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series2022

Submitted,

Tamagni
Finance Director
Treasurer of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

7
Page 187

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 188

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. 10884

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY

FACTLTTTES DISTRICT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3
SPECIAL TAX BONDS, SERIES 2022, THE EXECUTION OF AN INDENTURE
PROVIDING THEREFOR, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LOCAL
OBLIGATION PURCHASE CONTRACT, AND AUTHORIZING NECESSARY

ACTIONS AND THE EXECUTION OF OTHER DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the City Council (the "City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City") has

formed the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the

"Community Facilities District") and designated various improvement areas therein, including
Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Improvement Area"), under the provisions of the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982 (the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District is authorized under the Act to levy special

taxes within the Improvement Area (the "special Taxes") to pay the costs of certain public
facilities (the "Facilities") and to issue bonds payable from the Special Taxes; and

WHEREAS, in order to provide funds to finance certain of the Facilities (the "Project"),
the Community Facilities District proposes to issue not to exceed $12,000,000 principal amount

of its City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area
No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022 (he"Local Obligations"); and

WHEREAS, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") has agreed to
purchase the Local Obligations pursuant to a Local Obligation Purchase Contract (the "Local
Obligation Purchase Contract") between the Authority and the Community Facilities District with
a portion of the proceeds of the Authority's City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 (the

"Authority Bonds"); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined in accordance with Government Code

Section 53360.4 that a negotiated sale of the Local Obligations to the Authority in accordance with
the terms of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract will result in a lower overall cost to the

Community Facilities District than a public sale; and

WHEREAS, there has been submitted to the City Clerk of the City (the "City Clerk") a

form of Indenture, between the Community Facilities District and U.S. Bank Trust Company,

National Association, as trustee (the "Indenture"), providing for the issuance of the Local
Obligations and a form of Local Obligation Purchase Contract providing for the sale of the Local
Obligations to the Authority; and

WHEREAS, there has been submitted to the City Clerk a form of Trust Agreement (the

"Trust Agreement"), among the Authority, the Community Facilities District and U.S. Bank Trust

Resolution No. 10884
Page 1 of5 Page 189

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Company, National Association, as trustee, providing for the issuance of the Authority Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has authorizedthe sale of the Authority Bonds to Piper Sandler

& Co., as underwriter (the "Undenrniter"), with the net proceeds of sale thereof to be utilized to
purchase the Local Obligations from the Community Facilities District; and

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District desires to assist the Underwriter in its
compliance with Rule I5c2-12 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Rule

l5c2-12") pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Continuing Disclosure

Certificate"); and

WHEREAS, the form of a Preliminary Official Statement (the "Preliminary Official
Statement") to be used in connection with the offering and sale of the Authority Bonds has been

prepared and is on file with the City Clerk; and

WHEREAS' there have been prepared and submitted to the City Council for consideration

at this meeting the forms of:

(a) the Trust Agreement;

(b) the Indenture;

(c) the Local Obligation Purchase Contract;

(d) the Continuing Disclosure Certificate; and

(e) the Preliminary Official Statement; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the evidence of the public benefits to the

Community Facilities District of the proposed financing and is fully advised in the premises; and

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District desires to proceed to issue and sell the

Local Obligations and to authorize the execution of such documents and the performance of such

acts as may be necessary or desirable to effect the offering, sale and issuance of the Local
Obligations; and

WHEREAS, on this date, the City held a public hearing on the financing of the Project in
accordance with Section 6586.5 of Articles 1,2,3 and 4 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title I
(commencing with Section 6500) of the Government Code of the State of California (the "Marks-
Roos Act"); and

WHEREAS' in accordance with Section 6586.5 of the Marks-Roos Act, notice of such

hearing was published once at least five days prior to the hearing in the Folsom Telegraph, a
newspaper of general circulation in the City; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 5852.1 requires that the City Council obtain from
an underwriter, financial adviser or private lender and disclose, prior to authorization of the

issuance of bonds with a term of greater than 13 months, good faith estimates of the following

Resolution No. 10884

Page2 of 5 Page 190

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



information in a meeting open to the public: (a) the true interest cost of the bonds, (b) the sum of
all fees and charges paid to third parties with respect to the bonds, (c) the amount of proceeds of
the bonds expected to be received net of the fees and charges paid to third parties and any reseryes

or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the bonds, and (d) the sum total of all debt

service payments on the bonds calculated to the final maturity of the bonds plus the fees and

charges paid to third parties not paid with the proceeds of the bonds; and

WHEREAS' in compliance with Government Code Section 5852.1, the City Council has

obtained from Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc., the municipal adviser to the Community
Facilities District, the required good faith estimates and such estimates have been disclosed at this
meeting; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is the legislative body of the Community Facilities District;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom,

as follows:

Section 1.

and determines.
The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and the City Council so finds

Section 2. The City Council, on behalf of the City, hereby approves the issuance of the

Authority Bonds to finance the Project and finds that the use of the Marks-Roos Act to assist the

Community Facilities District in financing the Project will result in significant public benefits to
the citizens of the City, including more efficient delivery of local agency services to residential

and commercial development.

Section 3. Subject to the conditions desuibed in Section 8, the issuance of the Local
Obligations in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $12,000,000, on the terms and

conditions set forth in, and subject to the limitations specified in, the Indenture, is hereby

authorized and approved. The Local Obligations shall be dated, shall bear interest at the rates,

shall mature on the dates, shall be subject to redemption, shall be issued in the form, and shall be

as otherwise provided in the Indenture.

Section 4. The form of the Indenture providing for the issuance of the Local
Obligations, on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved, and the City Manager of the City (the
*City Manager"), the Finance Director of the City (the 'oFinance Director") and the Chief Financial
Offrcer of the City (the "Chief Financial Officer") and such other officers of the City as the City
Manager, the Finance Director or the Chief Financial Officer shall designate (each an "Authorized
Officer" and collectively, the "Authorized Officers") are, and each of them is, hereby authorized

and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Community Facilities District, to execute

and deliver the Indenture in substantially said form, with such changes therein as may be approved

by the City Attorney of the City (the *City Attorney"), such approval to be conclusively evidenced

by the execution and delivery thereof.

Section 5. The form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, in substantially the form
submitted to this meeting and made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein, is hereby

approved. The Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed, for
and in the name of the Community Facilities District, to execute and deliver the Continuing

Resolution No. 10884
Page 3 of5

Page 191

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Disclosure Certificate in the form presented to this meeting, with such changes, insertions and

omissions as the Authorized Officer executing the same may require or approve, such requirement

or approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate

by such Authorized Officer.

Section 6. The Preliminary Official Statement, in substantially the form presented to

this meeting and made aparthereof as though set forth in full herein, with such changes therein as

may be approved by an Authorized Officer, is hereby approved, and the use of the Preliminary
Official Statement in connection with the offering and sale of the Authority Bonds is hereby
authorized and approved. The Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized
and directed, for and in the name of the Community Facilities District, to certiff to the Underwriter
that the Preliminary Official Statement has been "deemed final" for purposes of Rule l5c2-12.

Section 7. The preparation and delivery of a final Official Statement (the "Official
Statement"), and its use in connection with the offering and sale of the Authority Bonds is hereby

authorized and approved. The Official Statement shall be in substantially the form of the
Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved
by an Authorized Officer, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and

delivery thereof. The Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed
to execute the final Official Statement and any amendment or supplement thereto, for and in the

rurme of the Community Facilities District.

Section 8. The form of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract providing for the sale

of the Local Obligations to the Authority, on file with the City Clerk, is hereby approved, and the
Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name

of the Community Facilities District, to execute and deliver the Local Obligation Purchase

Contract in substantially said form, with such changes therein as may be approved by the City
Attorney, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof;
provided that the final maturity of the Local Obligations shall be no later than September 1,2052,
the principal amount of the Local Obligations shall not exceed twelve million dollars
($12,000,000) and the true interest cost (taking into consideration the associated underwriter's
discount and any original issue premium or discount relating to the Authority Bonds) of the Local
Obligations shall not exceed six and one half percent (6.50%).

Section 9. The form of the Trust Agreement, in substantially the form submitted to this
meeting and made a part hereof as though set forth in full herein is hereby approved. The
Authorized Officers are, and each of them is, hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name

of the Community Facilities District, to execute and deliver the Trust Agreement in the form
presented to this meeting, with such changes, insertions and omissions as the Authorized Officer
executing the same may require or approve, such requirement or approval to be conclusively
evidenced by the execution of the Trust Agreement by such Authorized Officer.

Section 10. Pursuant to Section 53345.8 of the Act and the City's Local Goals and

Policies, the City Council hereby finds and determines that the value of the real property that would
be subject to the Special Taxes to pay debt service on the Local Obligations will be at least three

(3) times the principal amount of the Local Obligations to be sold and the principal amount of all
other bonds outstanding that are secured by a special tax levied pursuant to the Act on property

Resolution No. 10884
Page 4 of 5 Page 192

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



within the Improvement Area or a special assessment levied on property within the Improvement
Area. The City Council determines in its sole discretion that it is necessary and desirable to waive
certain of its Local Goals and Policies to the extent the issuance of the Local Obligations does not
conform thereto.

Sectionll. The officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and

severally, for and on behalf of the City and/or the Community Facilities District to do any and all
things that they may deem necessary or advisable in order to consummate the transactions herein

authorized and otherwise to carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this
resolution, including any subsequent amendments, waivers or consents entered into or given in
accordance with any of the documents approved hereby. The City Manager, the Finance Director,
the Chief Financial Officer, the City Clerk and the officers of the City are hereby authorized and

directed to execute and deliver, for and on behalf of the City and/or the Community Facilities
District, any and all certificates and representations necessary and desirable to accomplish the

transactions set forth above.

S 12. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12ft day of July,2022,by the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s)

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s)

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10884
Page 5 of5

Page 193

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 194

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. OOg-FOLSOM RANCH FA

A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE FOLSOM RANCH
FINANCING AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY
oF NOT TO EXCEED $12,0000000 AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF CITY OF

FOLSOM COMMUNTTY FACILTTTES DISTRTCT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3 SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2022;

APPROVING THE FORM AND SUBSTANCE OF A TRUST AGREEMENT,
AUTHORIZING MODIFICATIONS THEREOF AND EXECUTION AND DELIVERY

AS MODIFIED; APPROVING A PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT,
AUTHORIZING CHANGES THERETO AND EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN
OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO BE DERIVED THEREFROM; APPROVING A LOCAL

OBLIGATION PURCHASE CONTRACT AND A BOND PURCHASE CONTRACT AND
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF EACH; AND AUTHORIZING RELATED
ACTIONS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE PROPOSED FINANCING

WHEREAS, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority is a joint exercise of powers entity
duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the

"Authority"); and

WHEREAS, the City Council (the *City Council") of the City of Folsom (the "City") has

formed the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the
"Community Facilities District") and designated various improvement areas therein, including
Improvement Area No. 3, under the provisions of the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of
1982 (the "Act"); and

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District has completed its legal proceedings under
the Act with respect to authorizing the issuance and sale of the "City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series

2022 (the "Local Obligations") for the purpose of financing certain public facilities within the
City south of Highway 50;

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District is empowered under the provisions of the
Act to undertake legal proceedings for the levy of a special tax and for the issuance, sale and
delivery of special tax bonds upon the security ofthe recorded special tax liens; and

WHEREAS' the Authority is empowered under the provisions of Article 4, Chapter 5,

Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code (the "Law") to issue its bonds for the
purpose of purchasing various local obligations issued by certain local agencies and applying the
proceeds of the bonds to finance certain authorized public facilities; and

WHEREAS' the Authority desires to issue the "Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City
of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement AreaNo. 3 Special
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022" (the "Bonds") pursuant to that certain Trust Agreement (the

"Trust Agreement"), among the Authority, the Community Facilities District and U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"), in order to provide funds to purchase

the Local Obligations; and

Resolution No. OO9-Folsom Ranch FA
Page I of5

Page 195

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that the estimated amount necessary to finance

the purchase of the Local Obligations will require the issuance of the Bonds in the aggregate

principal amount not to exceed twelve million dollars ($12,000,000); and

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Community Facilities District have determined that all
things necessary to make the Bonds, when authenticated by the Trustee, and issued as provided in
the Trust Agreement, the valid, binding and legal obligations of the Authority according to the

import thereof and hereof have been done and performed; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of implementing the financing, there have been filed with the

Authority Secretary for consideration and approval by this Board forms of the following:

(a) a Trust Asreement, under the terms of which the Bonds are to be issued and

the Revenues (as said term is defined in the Trust Agreement and as said

Revenues are received by the Authority as holder of the Local Obligations)
are to be administered to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds;

(b) a Local Obligation Purchase Contract, under the terms of which, among

other things, the Community Facilities District agrees to sell and the

Authority agrees to purchase the Local Obligations;

(c) a Bond Purchase Contract, under the terms of which, among other things,

the Authority agrees to sell and the underwriter agrees to purchase the

Bonds; and

(d) a Preliminarv Official Statement, describing the Bonds and the Local
OUfigatiot"t; "*a

WHEREAS, Government Code Section 5852.1requires that the Governing Board of the

Authority obtain from an undemniter, financial adviser or private lender and disclose, prior to
authorization of the issuance of bonds with a term of greater than l3 months, good faith estimates

of the following information in a meeting open to the public: (a) the true interest cost of the bonds,

(b) the sum of all fees and charges paid to third parties with respect to the bonds, (c) the amount

ofproceeds ofthe bonds expected to be received net ofthe fees and charges paid to third parties

and any reserves or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the bonds, and (d) the sum

total of all debt service payments on the bonds calculated to the final maturity of the bonds plus

the fees and charges paid to third parties not paid with the proceeds of the bonds; and

WHEREAS, in compliance with Government Code Section 5852.1,the Governing Board

of the Authority has obtained from Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc., municipal adviser to the

Authority, the required good faith estimates and such estimates have been disclosed at this

meeting; and

WHEREAS, being fully advised in the matter of the proposed financing program, this

Board wishes to proceed with implementation of said financing program; and

Resolution No. O09-Folsom Ranch FA
Page2 of 5

Page 196

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the

State of California to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in
connection with the consummation of the financing authorized hereby do exist, have happened

and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, and the
Authority is now duly authorized and empowered, pursuant to each and every requirement of law,
to authorize the execution and delivery of certain documents in order to further implement the

financing in the manner and upon the terms herein provided; and

WHEREAS, as required by the Law, the City has conducted a public hearing and has

determined that the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority and the acquisition of the Local
Obligations will result in significant public benefits, including more efficient delivery of local
agency services to residential and commercial development.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Board ofthe FolsomRanch
Financing Authority as follows:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct, and this Board so finds
and determines.

Section 2 Pursuant to the Law, the Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate
principal amount of not to exceed twelve million dollars ($12,000,000). No Bond shall mature
later than September 1,2052.

Section 3. The form and substance of the Trust Agreement are hereby
approved. The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorized and directed,
for and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Trust Agreement in
substantially said form, with such changes therein as such officer may require or approve, such

approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof.

Section 4 The form and substance of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract
is hereby approved. The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorized and

directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Local
Obligation Purchase Contract in substantially said form, with such changes therein as such officer
may require or approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery
thereof.

Section 5. The form and substance of the Bond Purchase Contract is hereby
approved. The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorized and directed,
for and in the name and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver the Bond Purchase

Contract in substantially said form, with such changes therein as such officer may require or
approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof;
provided that the true interest cost of the Bonds shall not exceed six and one half percent (6.50%)

and the underwriter's discount (exclusive of original issue discount) shall not exceed one and one

half percent (1.50%).

Section 6. (a) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement is

hereby approved. The Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is authorized to execute the
final Official Statement to be derived therefrom.

Resolution No. 009-Folsom Ranch FA
Page 3 of5 Page 197

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(b) This Board hereby authorizes the Treasurer of the Authority or designee

thereof to find and determine that said Preliminary Official Statement in preliminary form is, and

as of its date shall be deemed o'final" for purposes of Rule I5c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange

Commission, and the Treasurer of the Authority or designee thereof is hereby authorized to execute

a certificate to such effect in the customary form.

(c) The Treasurer of the Authority or designee is authorized to approve

corrections and additions to the Preliminary Official Statement by supplement or amendment

thereto, by appropriate insertions, or otherwise as appropriate, provided that such corrections or

additions shall be regarded by such officer as necessary to cause the information contained therein

to conform to facts material to the Bonds or the Local Obligations or to the proceedings of this

Board or the City Council or that such corrections or additions are in form rather than in substance.

(d) The underwriter of the Bonds is authorized to distribute said Preliminary

Official Statement and the final Official Statement to be derived therefrom in connection with the

sale and delivery of the Bonds.

Section 7. The officers of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed,
jointly and severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents,

including any agency agreement, which they may deem necessary or advisable in order to carry

out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of this resolution, including any subsequent

amendments, waivers or consents entered into or given in accordance with any of the documents

approved hereby, and to obtain a policy of bond insurance, arating and/or a reserve fund surety

policy for any series of the Bonds. Such actions heretofore taken by such officers are hereby

ratified, confirmed and approved.

Section 8. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage.

Resolution No. 0O9-Folsom Ranch FA
Page 4 of5 Page 198

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12ft day of July,2022, by the following roll call vote:

Boardmember(s):

Boardmember(s):

Boardmember(s):

Boardmember(s):

Kerri M. Howell, CHAIR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, SECRETARY

Resolution No. O09-Folsom Ranch FA
Page 5 of5 Page 199

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 200

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



OH&S DRAFT
6/27122

TRUST AGREEMENT

by and among the

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

and the

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

and

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Trustee

Relating to the

$

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS,
SERIES 2022

Dated as of August 1,2022

4t52-1602-2584.2
Page 201

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Definitions
Rules of Construction................

ARTICLE II
TERMS OF AUTHORITY BONDS

The Authority Bonds
Form of Authority Bonds
Authority Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost......

Execution of Authority Bonds........
Transfer and Registration of Authority Bonds ................

Regulations with Respect to Exchange or Transfer of Authority Bonds

Authentication of Authority Bonds
Cancellation of Authority Bonds.
Authority Bonds as Special Obligations..............
Special Covenants as to Book-Entry Only System for Authority Bonds..........

CUSP Numbers

ARTICLE III
ISSUANCE OF AUTHORITY BONDS

Provisions for the Issuance of Authority Bonds.......
Parity and Subordinate Bonds ................

ARTICLE IV
REDEMPTION OF AUTHORITY BONDS

General Redemption Provisions ....

Optional Redemption......
Extraordinary Redemption ...........

Mandatory Redemption................
Redemption Instructions......
Notice of Redemption...........
Payment of Redeemed Authority Bonds
Purchase in Lieu of Redemption

ARTICLE V
REVENUES AND FUNDS FOR AUTHORITY BONDS

Establishment of Funds .....
Deposit of Proceeds of Authority Bonds..
Proceeds Fund ..........
Local Obligations Fund
Revenue Fund
Revenues Derived from Special Tax Prepayments

Page

2
10

Section 1.01.

Section 1.02.

Section 2.01.
Section 2.02.
Section 2.03.
Section 2.04.
Section 2.05.
Section 2.06.
Section 2.07.
Section 2.08.
Section 2.09.
Section 2.10.
Section 2.11.

Section 3.01.
Section 3.02.

18

l8

Section 4.01.
Section 4.02.
Section 4.03.
Section 4.04.
Section 4.05.
Section 4.06.
Section 4.07.
Section 4.08.

Section 5.01.
Section 5.02.
Section 5.03.
Section 5.04.
Section 5.05.
Section 5.06.
Section 5.07.

22
22
22
22
22
23

23

4t52-1602-2584.2

Interest Fund...........

-1-

Page 202

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Payment of Authority Bonds; No Encumbrances
Enforcement and Amendment of Local Ob1igations.......'
Further Documents..
Tax Covenants for the Authority Bonds..
Maintenance of Existence............
Continuing Disclosure .....

Redemption Fund for the Local Obligations ................

Concerning the Trust Estate

ARTICLE VIII
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

Events of Default..
Proceedings by Trustee; No Acceleration ............'.....
Effect of Discontinuance or Abandonment
Rights of Owners.
Restriction on Owner's Action......
Power of Trustee to Enforce....
Remedies Not Excluslve.............
Waiver of Events of Default; Effect of Waiver........
Application of Money upon Event of Default.

ARTICLE IX
THE TRUSTEE

Appointment and Acceptance of Duties...
Duties, Immunities and Liability of Trustee..............
Merger or Consolidation..........
Compensation and Indemnifi cation....
Liability of Trustee
Right to Rely on Documents; Adverse Effect Determinations ..

Preservation and Inspection of Documents ............

Page

Section 5.08.
Section 5.09.
Section 5.10.

Section 6.01.
Section 6.02.

Section 7.01.
Section 7.02.
Section 7.03.
Section 7.04.
Section 7.05.
Section 7.06.
Section 7.07.
Section 7.08.

Section 8.01.
Section 8.02.
Section 8.03.
Section 8.04.
Section 8.05.
Section 8.06.
Section 8.07.
Section 8.08.
Section 8.09.

Section 9.01.
Section 9.02.
Section 9.03.
Section 9.04.
Section 9.05.
Section 9.06.
Section 9.07.
Section 9.08.

Principal Fund ........
Redemption Fund
Rebate Fund.........

ARTICLE VI
SECURITY FOR AND INVESTMENT OF MONEY

Security..
Investment of Money...

ARTICLE VII
COVENANTS OF THE AUTHORITY AND THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

23
23
23

24

26
26
26
27
27
28
28
28

29
29
30
30
30
31

3l
3l
3I

4152-1602-2584.2

Indemnity for Trustee

-11-

Page 203

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

ARTICLE X
EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS BY OWNERS AND
PROOF OF OWNERSHIP OF AUTHORITY BONDS

Trustee Authorized to Enter into Supplemental Trust Agreements ...

ARTICLE XII
DEFEASANCE

Defeasance
Authority Bonds Deemed to Have Been Paid
Money Held for Particular Authority Bonds.
Effect of Defeasance of Authority Bonds .....

ARTICLE XIII
MISCELLANEOUS

Dissolution of Authority
Parties Interested Herein..........
Notice
Holidays....
Limitation of Liability
Unclaimed Money
Governing Law.
Severability of Invalid Provisions
Counterparts and Electronic Execution ..

U.S.A. Patriot Act............
Force Majeure..

EXHIBIT A FORM OF AUTHOzuTY BONDS....

Page

..38Section 10.01. Execution of Instruments; Proof of Ownership........."..

ARTICLE XI
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENTS

Section I 1.01.
Section 11.02.
Section 11.03.

Section 12.01.
Section 12.02.
Section 12.03.
Section 12.04.

Section 13.01.
Section 13.02.
Section 13.03.
Section 13.04.
Section 13.05.
Section 13.06.
Section 13.07.
Section 13.08.
Section 13.09.
Section 13.10.
Section 13.11.

Supplemental Trust Agreements with Consent of Owners .....38

Supplemental Trust Agreements Without Consent of Owners
........39

39

40
40
4T

4T

42
42
43
44
44
44
44
44
44
45

A-1

4t52-r602-2584.2

-111-

Page 204

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



TRUST AGREEMENT

This Trust Agreement (the "Trust Agreement"), dated as of Augustl,2022,by and

among the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, a joint exercise of powers agency duly organized

and existing under the laws of the State of California (the "Authority"), the City of Folsom

Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch), organized and existing under and by virtue

of the laws of the State of California (the "Community Facilities District") and U.S. Bank Trust

Company, National Association, a national banking association duly organizedand existing under

the laws of the United States of America, as Trustee (the "Trustee");

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Authority is empowered under the provisions of the Marks-Roos

Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, being Article 4, Chapter 5, Division T,Title I of the California

Government Code (the "Law"), to issue its bonds for the purpose of purchasing various Local

Obligations (as defined herein) issued by certain local agencies; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined to issue its Folsom Ranch Financing

Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement

Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 (the "Authority Bonds") to be secured by a
pledge, lien and claim upon the Revenues (as that term is defined herein) in order to provide a

portion of the funds necessary to purchase the Local Obligations (as that term is defined herein);

and

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Community Facilities District have determined

that all things necessary to make the Authority Bonds (as that term is defined herein), when issued

by the Authority and authenticated by the Trustee and delivered as provided herein, valid, binding

and legal obligations of the Authority according to the import thereof and hereof have been done

and performed; and

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS TRUST AGREEMENT WITNESSETH, that iN
consideration of the premises, the acceptance by the Trustee of the trusts hereby created and other

good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in order to

secure the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on all
Authority Bonds Outstanding (as that term is defined herein) hereunder from time to time

according to their tenor and effect, and the making of such other payments required to be made by

the Authority and the satisfaction of all the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms expressed

and implied herein and in the Authority Bonds, the Authority does hereby assign, bargain, convey,

grant, mortgage and pledge a security interest unto the Trustee and unto its successors and assigns

hereunder forever in all right, title and interest of the Authority in, to and under, subject to the

provisions hereof permifiing the application thereof for the pu{poses and on the terms and

conditions set forth therein, each and all of the following (collectively, the "Trust Estate"):

(a) the proceeds of sale of the Authority Bonds;

(b) the Revenues (as that term is defined herein);

4ts2-r602-2s84.2
Page 205

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(c) the amounts in the Funds (as that term is defined herein) established and

held hereunder, except amounts in the Rebate Fund; and

(d) the Local Obligations;

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD IN TRUST all of the same hereby assigned, bargained,

conveyed, granted, mortgaged and pledged or agreed or intended so to be to the Trustee and to its

successors and assigns forever for the equal and ratable benefit of the Owner issued by the

Authority hereunder and authenticated by the Trustee and delivered hereunder and Outstanding

hereunder, without any priority as to the Trust Estate of any one Authority Bond over any other

(except as expressly provided in or permitted hereby), upon the trusts and subject to the

agreements, conditions, covenants and terms hereinafter set forth;

AND THIS TRUST AGREEMENT FURTHER MTNESSETH, and it is expressly

declared, that all Authority Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be issued, authenticated and

delivered and all of the rights and property hereby assigned, bargained, conveyed, granted,

mortgaged and pledged are to be dealt with and disposed of under, upon and subject to the

agreements, conditions, covenants, terms, trusts and uses as hereinafter expressed, and the

Authority and the Community Facilities District have agreed and covenanted, and do hereby agree

and covenant, with the Trustee and with the Owner, as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.01. Definitions. The terms set forth below shall have the following
meanings set forth herein, unless the context clearly otherwise requires:

"Act" shall mean the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended

(being Sections 53311 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of California), and all laws

amendatory thereof or supplemental thereto.

"Authority" shall mean the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, a joint exercise of
powers agency duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, and its

successors and assigns.

"Authority Bond" or o'Authority Bonds" shall mean the Folsom Ranch Financing

Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement

Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022. "Serial Authority Bonds" shall mean the

Authority Bonds for which no Minimum Sinking Fund Payments are provided. 'oTerm Authority
Bonds" shall mean the Authority Bonds which are payable on or before their specified maturity

date from Minimum Sinking Fund Payments established for that purpose and calculated to retire

such Authority Bonds on or before their specified maturity date.

"Authorized Denominations" shall mean five thousand dollars ($5,000) and any

integral multiple thereof, but not exceeding the principal amount of the Authority Bonds maturing

on any one date.

2
4t52-t602-2584.2

Page 206

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"Authorized Officer" shall mean, when used with reference to the Authority, the

Chair, the Treasurer or any other person authorized by the Authority in a Written Order or

resolution to perform an act or sign a document on behalf of the Authority for the purposes hereof,

and when used with reference to the Community Facilities District and the City, acting for and on

behalf of the Community Facilities District, the Mayor, the Chief Financial Officer, the Finance

Director or any other person authorized by the City or the Community Facilities District, as

applicable, in a Written Order or resolution to perform an act or sign a document on behalf of the

City or the Community Facilities District for the purposes hereof.

"Bond Counsel" shall mean an attorney-at-law, or a firm of such attorneys, of
nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the tax-exempt nature of interest on

obligations issued by states and their political subdivisions.

ooBond Register" shall meanthe registration books specified as such in Section 2.05.

"Business Day" shall mean any day other than (i) a Saturday or a Sunday or (ii) a
day on which commercial banks in New York, New York, or the city in which the Corporate Trust

Office of the Trustee is located, are closed.

"Cash Flow Certiftcate" shall mean a written certificate executed by a Cash Flow
Consultant.

"Cash Flow Consultant" shall mean a hnancial consultant or firm of such

consultants generally recognized to be well qualified in the financial consulting field relating to

municipal securities such as the Authority Bonds, appointed and paid by the Community Facilities
District or the Authority and who, or each of whom:

(1) is in fact independent and not under the domination of the Community
Facilities District, the Authority or the City;

(2) does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, with the

Community Facilities District, the Authority or the City; and

(3) is not connected with the Community Facilities District, the Authority or
the City as a member, officer or employee of the Community Facilities District, the Authority or

the City, but who may be regularly retained to make annual or other reports to the Community
Facilities District, the Authorrty or the City.

The Cash Flow Consultant shall not, as a result of its role as Cash Flow Consultant,

be deemed to have a"frnancial advisory relationship" with the Authority within the meaning of
California Government Code Section 53590(c).

*Chair" shall mean the Chair of the Authority

"Chief Financial Officer" shall mean the Chief Financial Officer of the City.

J
4152-t602-2584.2

Page 207

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"City" shall mean the City of Folsom, a charter city and municipal corporation duly

organized and existing under its charter and the Constitution and laws of the State of California,

and its successors.

"City Manager" shall mean the City Manager of the City.

'oCode" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the

regulations issued thereunder.

"Community Facilities District" shall mean the City of Folsom Community

Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), established by the City pursuant to the Act.

"Corporate Trust Office" shall mean the designated corporate trust office of the

Trustee at the location set forth in Section 13.03.

"Dated Date" shall mean the applicable date of the original execution and delivery

of the Authority Bonds.

"DTC" shall mean The Depository Trust Company, in New York, New York; or,

in accordance withthen current guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Commission, such other

securities depository as the Authority may designate in an Officer's Certificate delivered to the

Trustee.

"Event of Defaulf' shall mean an event of default specified as such in Section 8.01.

"Finance Director" shall mean the Finance Director of the City.

"Fund" or ooFunds" shall mean any or all, as the case may be, of the Revenue Fund,

the Interest Fund, the Principal Fund, the Redemption Fund, the Proceeds Fund, the Local

Obligations Fund and the Rebate Fund, including all accounts therein.

"Government Obligations" shall mean any Investment Securities described in
clause (i) or clause (ii) of the definition thereof but excluding any securities that arc callable or

prepayable prior to the redemption or maturity date of the Authority Bonds to be paid therefrom,

and excluding any securities that do not have a fixed par value or the terms of which do not promise

a fixed dollar amount at maturity or earlier call date.

'olmprovement Area" means Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities

District.

"Indenture Trustee" means U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as

trustee under the Local Obligations Indenture'

"Interest Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to
Section 5.01.

"Interest Payment Date" shall mean March I and September I in each year,

commencing on fSeptember 1, 2022].

4
4t52-1602-2584.2

Page 208

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"Investment Securities" shall mean and include any of the following securities, to

the extent permitted by the laws of the State and the City's Investment Policy, for and on behalf

of the Community Facilities District as it may be amended from time to time:

(D Cash (insured at all times by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or

fully collateralizedby Investment Securities described in clause (ii) hereof);

(iD Obligations of, or obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by, th9

United States of America o. atry agency or instrumentality thereof, when such obligations ard

backed by the fulI faith and credit of the United States of America including:

(A) All direct or fully guaranteed U.S. Treasury obligations;

(B) Farmers Home Administration;

(C) GeneralServicesAdministration;

(D) Guaranteed Title XI financing;

(E) GovernmentNational Mortgage Association (GNMA); and

(F) U.S. Treasury - State and Local Government Series;

(iii) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations

represent the full faith and credit of the United States of America, including:

(A) Export-Import Bank;

(B) Rural Economic Community Development Administration;

(C) U.S. Maritime Administration;

(D) SmallBusinessAdministration;

(E) U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (PHAs);

(F) Federal Housing Administration; and

(G) Federal Financing Bank;

(iv) Direct obligations of any of the following federal agencies which
obligations are not fully guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America:

(A) Senior debt obligations issued by the Federal National Mortgage

Association (FNMA) or Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC);

(B) Obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation (REFCORP);

5
4ts2-1602-2584.2

Page 209

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(C) Senior debt obligations of the Federal Home Loan Bank System;

and

(D) Senior debt obligations of other Government Sponsored Agencies;

(v) U.S. Dollar-denominated deposit accounts, federal funds and bankers'

acceptances with domestic commercial banks which have a rating on their short term certificates

of deposit onthe date of purchase of 'oP-l" by Moody's and "A-1" or "A-1+" by S&P and maturing

not more than 360 calendar days after the date of purchase (provided that ratings on holding

companies shall not be considered the rating of the bank) or fully collateralized by Investment

Securities described in clause (ii) hereof for amounts in excess of deposit insurance;

(vi) Commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the single

highest classification, "P-1" by Moody's and "A-1*" by S&P and which matures not more than

270 calendar days after the date ofpurchase;

(vii) Investments in a money market fund rated 66AAArn" or "AAAm-G" or

better by S&P, including funds for which the Trustee or an affiliate provides investment

management or other services but excluding funds with a floating net asset value;

(viii) 'oPre-refunded Municipal Obligations," defined as follows: any bonds or

other obligations of any state of the United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality or

local governmental unit of any such state which are not callable at the option of the obligor prior

to maturity or as to which irrevocable instructions have been given by the obligor to call on the

date specified in the notice and (A) which are rated, based on an irrevocable escrow account or

fund (the 'oescrow"), in the highest rating category of Moody's or S&P or any successors thereto;

or (B) (l) which are fully secured as to principal and interest and redemption premium, if any, by

an escrow consisting only of cash or obligations described in clause (ii) of this definition, which
escrow may be applied only to the payment of such principal of and interest and redemption

premium, if any, on such bonds or other obligations on the maturity date or dates thereof or the

ipecified redemption date or dates pursuant to such irrevocable instructions, as appropriate, and

(2) which escrow is sufficient, as verified by a nationally recognized independent certified public

accountant, to pay principal of and interest and redemption premium , if any , on the bonds or other

obligations desuibed in this paragraph on the maturity date or dates specified in the irrevocable

instructions referred to above, as appropriate;

(ix) Any bonds or other obligations of any agency, instrumentality or local

governmental unit of any state of the United States of America which are rated "Aaa/AAA" or

general obligations of any such state with ratings of "A2" or higher by Moody's and "A" or higher

by S&P.

(") The Local Agency Investment Fund (established under Sections 53600-

53609 of the California Government Code, as amended or supplemented from time to time).

o'Law" shall mean the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, being Article 4

of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California Government Code, and all laws amendatory

thereof or supplemental thereto,

6
4t52-1602:2584.2

Page 210

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"Lettet of Representation" shall mean the letter of the Authority delivered to and

accepted by the Depository on or prior to the issuance of the Authority Bonds setting forth the

basiJ on which the Depository serves as depository for such Authority Bonds as originally
executed or as it may be supplemented or revised or replaced by a letter to a substitute depository.

"Local Obligations Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to

Section 5.01.

'o|.ocal Obligations Indenture" shall mean the indenture authorizing and securing

the Local Obligations and pursuant to which the Local Obligations were issued.

"Local Obligation Purchase Contract" shall mean the purchase contract entered into

bdtween the Authority and the Community Facilities District providing for the purchase of the

Local Obligations by the Authority with the proceeds of the Authority Bonds.

"Local Obligations" shall mean the Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022 to be issued by the Community

Facilities District pursuant to the Act and to be purchased by the Authority pursuant to the Law.

"Mayor" shall mean the Mayor of the City.

'oMinimum Sinking Fund Payments" shall mean the payments required by

Section 2.01to be deposited in the Sinking Fund Account.

"Moody's" shall mean Moody's Investors Service Inc., a corporation duly

organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, and its successors

or assigns, except that if such entrty shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the

functions of a municipal securities rating agency, then the term "Moody's" shall be deemed to

refer to any other nationally recognized municipal securities rating agency selected by the

Authority (which shall be under no liability by reason of such selection).

"Officer's Certificate" shall mean a certificate signed by an Authorized Officer.

"Opinion of Bond Counsel" shall mean a legal opinion signed by a Bond Counsel

selected by the Authority.

"Outstanding" shall mean, with respect to the Authority Bonds and as of any date,

all Authority Bonds authorized, issued, authenticated and delivered hereunder, except:

(a) Authority Bonds canceled or surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation

pursuant to Section 2.08;

(b) Authority Bonds deemed to have been paid pursuant to Section 12.02;

(c) Authority Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Authority
Bonds shall have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to Section 2.03; and

(d) Authority Bonds paid pursuant to Section 2'03'

7
4t52-1602-2584.2

Page 211

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"Owner" shall mean, as of any date, the Person or Persons in whose name or names

a particular Bond shall be registered on the Bond Register as of such date.

"Person" shall mean an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association, a

joint stock company, a trust, any unincorporated organization or a government or political

subdivision thereof.

"Principal Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to

Section 5.01.

"Principal Installment," when used with respect to any Principal Payment Date,

shall mean the principal amount of Outstanding Authority Bonds due on such date.

"Principal Payment Date," when used with reference to an Authority Bond, shall

mean the maturity date or the Minimum Sinking Fund Payment date for such Authority Bond.

"Proceeds Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to

Section 5.01.

"Rebate Fund" shall mean the fund by that rutme established pursuant to

Section 5.01.

ooRebate Instructions" shall mean the calculations and directions required to be

delivered to the Trustee by the Authority pursuant to the Tax Certificate.

"Rebate Requirement" shall mean the Rebate Requirement defined in the Tax

Certificate.

"Record Date" shall mean the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding any

Interest Payment Date, whether or not such day is a Business Day.

"Redemption Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to

Section 5.01.

"Responsible Officer of the Trustee" means any officer within the global corporate

trust department (or any successor group or department of the Trustee) including any vice

president, assistant vice president, assistant secretary or any other officer or assistant officer ofthe
1rustee customarily performing functions similar to those performed by the persons who at the

time shall be such offrcers, respectively, with responsibility for the administration of this Trust

Agreement.

o'Revenue Fund" shall mean the fund by that name established pursuant to

Section 5.01.

"Revenues" shall mean all amounts received by the Trustee as the payment of
interest on, or the equivalent thereof, and the payment or return of principal of, or redemption

premiums, if any, on, or the equivalent thereof, all Local Obligations, whether as a result of
scheduled payments, or redemption premiums, Special Tax Prepayments or remedial proceedings

8
4152-1602-2584.2

Page 212

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



taken in the event of a default thereon, and all investment earnings on any money held in the Funds

held hereunder (except the Rebate Fund).

"S&P" shall mean S&P Global Ratings, a business of Standard & Poor's Financial

Services LLC, and its successors or assigns, except that if such entity shall be dissolved or

liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a municipal securities rating agency, then

the term "S&P" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized municipal securities

rating agency selected by the Authority (which shall be under no liability by reason of such

selection).

"Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Authority.

"sinking Fund Account" shall mean the account within the Principal Fund by that

name established pursuant to Section 2.01.

"special Tax" shall mean the special tax authorized to be levied and collected

annually on all Taxable Property in the Improvement Area under and pursuant to the Act at the

special election held in the Community Facilities District.

"special Tax Prepayments" shall mean all payments to the Community Facilities

District by or on behalf of the owner of a parcel within the Improvement Area subject to a Special

Tax to accomplish a pay-off of the Special Tax obligation pertaining to such parcel and the

discharge of the Special Tax lien with respect to such parcel (except the portion thereof, if any,

which represents accrued interest on the Local Obligations).

"special Tax Revenues" shall mean all money collected and received by the

Community Facilities District on account of unpaid Special Tax obligations within the

Improvement Area, including all amounts collected in the normal course by the Community
Facilities District, all Special Tax Prepayments and all amounts received by the Community

Facilities District as a result of superior court foreclosure proceedings brought to enforce payment

of delinquent Special Taxes within the Improvement Area, but excluding therefrom any amounts

explicitly included therein on account of collection charges, administrative cost charges, or

attorneys' fees and costs paid as a result of foreclosure actions.

"special Record Date" shall mean the date established by the Trustee pursuant to

Section 2.01 as a record date for the payment of defaulted interest on the Authority Bonds.

"State" shall mean the State of California.

"supplemental Trust Agreement" shall mean any trust agreement supplemental to

or amendatory of this Trust Agreement which is duly executed and delivered in accordance with
the provisions of Article XI.

"Term Authority Bonds" shall mean the Authority Bonds which are payable on or

before their specified maturity date from Minimum Sinking Fund Payments established for that
purpose and calculated to retire such Authority Bonds on or before their specified maturity date.

9
4152-t602-2584.2

Page 213

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"Tax Certifrcate" shall mean each certificate for the Authority Bonds relating to

various federal tax requirements, including the requirements of Section 148 of the Code, signed

by the Authority and the Community Facilities District on the Dated Date, as the same may be

amended or supplemented in accordance with its terms'

"Treasurer" shall meSn the Treasurer of the Authority.

ooTaxable Property" shall mean all property within the Improvement Area taxable

under the Act in accordance with the proceedings for the authorizationof the issuance of the Local

Obligations and the levy and collection of the Special Tax.

"Trust Agreement" shall mean this Trust Agreement dated as of August 1,2022,

by and among the Authority, the Community Facilities District and the Trustee pursuant to which

the Authority Bonds are to be issued, as amended or supplemented from time to time in accordance

with its terms.

"Trust Estate" shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the granting clause hereof.

'oTrustee" shall mean U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, a national

banking association duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America,

in its capacity as Trustee hereunder, and any successor as Trustee hereunder.

"Written Order" shall mean, when used with reference to the Authority, a written

order or written direction of the Authority to the Trustee signed by an Authorized Officer, and

when used with reference to the Community Facilities District, an instrument in writing signed by

the City Manager or the Finance Director, or by any other officer of the City duly authorized by

the City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities District, for that purpose.

SECTION 1.02. Rules of Construction. Except where the context otherwise requires,

all words imparting the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa, and all

pronouns inferring the masculine gender shall include the feririnine gender and vice versa. The
-headings 

or titles of the several articles and sections hereof and the table of contents appended

hereto rhult b" solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction

or effect hereof. All references herein to "Articles," "sections" and other subdivisions or clauses

are to the corresponding articles, sections, subdivisions or clauses hereof; and the words'ohereby,"

"herein," "hereof," "hereto," "herewith," "hereunder" and other words of similar import refer to

this Trust Agreement as a whole and not to any particular article, section, subdivision or clause

thereof.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

ARTICLE II

TERMS OF AUTHORITY BONDS

SECTION 2.01. The Authoritv Bonds. The Authority Bonds shall be issued under

and secured by this Trust Agreement and shall be in the form of fully registered bonds in

4t52-1602-2584.2

10

Page 214

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



denominations of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or any integral multiple of five thousand dollars

($5,000) in excess thereof designated the 'oFolsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax

Revenue Bonds, Series 2022' and shall be in the aggregate principal amount of
dollars ($ The Authority Bonds shall be dated the Dated

Date and shall bear interest at the rates specified in the table below, such interest being payable

semiannually on each Interest Payment Date, and shall mature on the Principal Payment Dates in
the following years in the following principal amounts, namely:

Principal
Payment Date
(September 1)

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate

$ %

*

- 
TermBonds

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

4152-t602-2584.2

11

Page 215

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Minimum Sinking Fund Payments are hereby established for the mandatory

redemption and payment of the Term Authority Bonds, which payments shall become due during

the years ending on the dates and in the amounts set forth in the following schedule (except that if
any Term Authority Bonds have been redeemed pursuant to Section 4.02 or 4.03, the amounts of
such Minimum Sinking Fund Payments shall be reduced proportionately by the principal amount

of all such Term Authority Bonds so redeemed), namely:

Term Authoritv Bond Maturing September 1" 20[ I

Year Minimum
Ending Sinking Fund

September 1 Account Payment
$

Maturity

Term Authoritv Bond Seotember 1.201 I

Year
Ending

September 1

Minimum
Sinking Fund

Account Payment
$

Maturity.

All such Minimum Sinking Fund Payments for the Term Authority Bonds shall be

deposited in a separate account in the Principal Fund, which account is hereby established and

shall be known as the Sinking Fund Account and which account the Authority hereby agrees and

covenants to cause to be maintained by the Trustee so long as any Term Authority Bonds are

Outstanding. All money in the Sinking Fund Account on September 1 of each year during the

period beginning on Septemb er 1,201 f, and ending on September I,201 ], both years inclusive,

shall be used and withdrawn by the Authority on each such Sepember 1 for the mandatory

4ts2-t6oz-2ss4.z 
12

Page 216

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



redemption or payment of the Term Authority Bonds maturing on September 1,20f l; and all

money in the Sinking Fund Account on September 1 of each year during the period beginning on

September I,201 1, and ending on September 1, 20[ l, both years inclusive, shall be used and

withdrawn by the Authority on each such September 1 for the mandatory redemption or payment

of the Term Authority Bonds maturing on September 1,201-], and the Authority hereby agrees

and covenants with the Owners of the respective Term Authority Bonds to call and redeem in
accordance with Section 4.04 or pay the Term Authority Bonds from Minimum Sinking Fund

Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Account pursuant to this paragraph whenever on

September I of any year there is money in the Sinking Fund Account available for such pu{pose.

The interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority
Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America. The Authority Bonds

shall be issued as fully registered bonds and shall be numbered from one (1) upward. The

Authority Bonds shall bear interest from the Dated Date. Payment of the interest on any Authority
Bond shall be made to the Person whose name appears on the Bond Register as the Owner thereof

as of the close of business on the Record Date, such interest to be paid by check mailed by first
class mail on each Interest Payment Date to the Owner at the address which appears on the Bond

Register as of the Record Date for that purpose; except that in the case of an Owner of one million
dollars ($1,000,000) or more in aggregate principal amount of Authority Bonds, upon wriffen
request of such Owner to the Trustee received not later than such Record Date, such interest shall

be paid on such Interest Payment Date in immediately available funds by wire transfer to an

account in a bank or trust company or savings bank that is a member of the Federal Reserve System

and that is located in the continental United States of America. The principal of and redemption

premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds shall be payable by the Trustee at its Corporate Trust

Office upon presentation and surrender of such Authority Bonds. Interest shall be calculated on

the basis of a 360-day yeff consisting of twelve (I2) 30-day calendar months; prcv{lecl, that

notwithstanding any other provision herein contained, any interest not punctually paid or duly
provided for, as a result of an Event of Default or otherwise, shall forthwith cease to be payable to

the Owner on the Record Date and shall be paid to the Owner in whose name the Authority Bond

is registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such defaulted

interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice of which shall be given to the Owner not less than ten

(10) Business Days prior to such Special Record Date.

SECTION 2.02 Form of Bonds. The Authority Bonds and the forms of
the certificate of authentication, the assignment and the DTC endorsement to appear thereon shall

be substantially as set forth in Exhibit A hereto, with such variations, insertions or omissions as

are appropriate and not inconsistent herewith.

SECTION 2.03. Authoritv Bonds Mutilated. Destroyed. Stolen or Lost. In the event

any Authority Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Authority may execute and, upon

its request in writing, the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a substitute Authority Bond of the

same principal amount and maturity as the mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed Authority Bond in
exchange and substitution for such mutilated Authority Bond, or in lieu of and substitution for
such lost, stolen or destroyed Authority Bond.

Application for exchange and substitution of mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed

Authority Bonds shall be made to the Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office. In every case the

4152-1602-2584.2

13

Page 217

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



applicant for a substitute Authority Bond shall furnish to the Trustee indemnification to its
satisfaction, and in every case of loss, theft or destruction of an Authority Bond, the applicant shall

also furnish to the Authority and the Trustee evidence to their satisfaction of such loss, theft or

destruction and of the identity of the applicant, and in every case of mutilation of an Authority

Bond, the applicant shall surrender the mutilated Authority Bond to the Trustee.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the event any such

Authority Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is then continuing in the

payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds,

the Trustee shall, upon written direction from the Authority, pay the same (without surrender

thereof except in the case of a mutilated Authority Bond) instead of issuing a substitute Authority

Bond so long as indemnification is furnished as above provided.

Upon the issuance of any substitute Authority Bond, the Trustee may charge the

Owner of such Authority Bond for its reasonable fees and expenses in connection therewith. Every

substitute Authority Bond issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact

that any Authority Bond is lost, stolen or destroyed shall constitute an original additional

contractual obligation of the Authority, whether or not the lost, stolen or destroyed Authority Bond

shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits

hereof equally and proportionally with any and all other Authority Bonds duly issued hereunder

to the same extent as the Authority Bonds in substitution for which such substitute Authority Bonds

were issued.

SECTION 2.04. Execution of Authoritv Bonds. All Authority Bonds shall, from

time to time, be executed on behalf of the Authority by the manual or facsimile signature of the

Treasurer and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary.

If any of the officers who shall have signed any Authority Bond shall cease to be

such officer of the Authority before the Authority Bond so signed shall have been actually

authenticated by the Trustee or delivered, such Authority Bond nevertheless may be authenticated,

issued and delivered with the same force and effect as though the person or persons who signed

such Authority Bond had not ceased to be such officer of the Authorityr and any such Authority
Bond may be signed on behalf of the Authority by those persons who, at the actual date of the

execution of such Authority Bond, shall be the proper officers of the Authority, although on the

date of such Authority Bond any such person shall not have been such officer of the Authority.

SECTION 2.05 Transfer and Resistration of A Bonds. The Authority Bonds

shall be transferred or exchanged and title thereto shall pass only in the manner provided herein,

and the Trustee shall keep books constituting the Bond Register for the registration and transfer of
the Authority Bonds as provided herein. All Authority Bonds presented for transfer or exchange

shall be accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer or authorization for

exchange, in form and with guaranty of signature satisfactory to the Trustee, duly executed by the

Owner or by his or her attorney duly authorized in writing, and all such Authority Bonds shall be

surrendered to the Trustee and canceled by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.08. The Authority
and the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively treat the Owner as the absolute owner of such

Authority Bond for the purpose of receiving any payment of the interest on or principal of or

redemption premium, if any, on such Authority Bond and for all other purposes hereof, whether

4152-1602-2584.2

l4
Page 218

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



such Authority Bond shall be overdue or not, and neither the Authority nor the Trustee shall be

affected by any notice to the contrary. All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisff
and discharge the liability upon such Authority Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

SECTION 2.06. Regulations with Respect to Exchange or Transfer of Authoritv
Bonds.

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging or registering the transfer of
Authority Bonds is exercised, the Authority shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and

deliver Authority Bonds in accordance with the provisions hereof. There shall be no charge to the

Owner for any such exchange or registration of transfer of Authority Bonds, butthe Authority may

require the payment of a sum sufficient to pay any tax or other governmental charge required to

be paid with respect to any such exchange or registration of transfer. Neither the Authority nor

the Trustee shall be required to register the transfer or exchange of any Authority Bond during the

period established by the Trustee for selection of Authority Bonds for redemption or to register

the transfer or exchange of any Authority Bond selected for redemption.

Upon surrender for exchange or transfer of any Authority Bond at the Corporate

Trust Office of the Trustee, the Authority shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and

deliver in the name of the Owner (in the case of transfers) a new Authority Bond or Authority
Bonds, of Authorized Denominations, in the aggregate principal amount which the registered

Owner is entitled to receive.

A11 new Authority Bonds delivered upon any transfer or exchange shall be valid

obligations of the Authority, evidencing the same debt as the Authority Bonds surrendered, shall

be secured hereby and shall be entitled to all of the security and benefits hereof to the same extent

as the Authority Bonds surrendered.

SECTION 2.07. Authentication of Authoritv Bonds. No Authority Bond shall be

secured hereby or entitled to the benefits hereof or shall be valid or obligatory for any pu{pose

unless there shall be endorsed on such Authority Bond the Trustee's certificate of authentication,

substantially in the form prescribed herein, executed by the manual signature of a duly authorized

signatory of the Trustee; and such certificate on any Authority Bond issued by the Authority
hereunder shall be conclusive evidence and the only competent evidence that such Authority Bond

has been duly authenticated and delivered hereunder.

SECTION 2.08. Cancellation of Authority Bonds. Upon the surrender to the Trustee

of any mutilated Authority Bond, or any Authority Bond surrendered for transfer or exchange, or

any Authority Bond redeemed or paid at maturity, the same shall forthwith be canceled and the

Trustee shall destroy such Authority Bonds and the Trustee shall deliver a certificate of destruction

with respect thereto to the Authority.

SECTION 2.09. Authoritv Bonds as Special Obligations. The Authority Bonds are

special, limited obligations of the Authority, payable from the Trust Estate and secured as to the

payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, thereon in accordance

with their terms and the terms hereof, solely by the Trust Estate. The Authority Bonds do not

constitute a charge against the general credit of the Authority or any of its members, and under no

4152-1602-2584.2

15

Page 219

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



circumstances shall the Authority be obligated to pay the interest on or principal of or redemption

premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds except from the Trust Estate. None of the Community

Facilities District, the City, the State, any public agency (other than the Authority) or any member

of the Community Facilities District or the Authority is obligated to pay the interest on or principal

of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds, and neither the faith and credit nor the

taxing po*e. of the Community Facilities District, the City, the State or any public agency thereof

or *y member of the Authority or the Community Facilities District is pledged to the payment of
the interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds. The

payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds

does not constitute a debt, liability or obligation of the Community Facilities District, the City, the

State or any public agency (other than the Authority) or any member of the Authority.

No agreement or covenant contained in any Authority Bond or herein shall be

deemed to be an agreement or covenant of any officer, member, agent or employee ofthe Authority
in his or her individual capacity, and neither the members of the Authority nor any officer or

employee thereof executing the Authority Bonds shall be liable personally on any Authority Bond

or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance of the Authority
Bonds.

SECTION 2.10. Special Covenants as to Book-Entry Only System for Authoritv
Bonds.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in subsections (b) and (c) of this Section, all of the

Authority Bonds initially issued shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co, as nominee for The

Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), or such other nominee as DTC shall

request pursuant to the Letter of Representation. Payment of the interest on any Authority Bond

registered in the name of Cede & Co. shall be made on each Interest Payment Date for such

Authority Bonds to the account, in the manner and at the address indicated in or pursuant to the

Letter of Representation.

(b) The Authority Bonds initially shall be issued in the form of a single authenticated

fully registered Authority Bond for each stated maturity of such Authority Bonds, representing the

aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds of such maturity. Upon initial issuance, the

ownership of all such Authority Bonds shall be registered in the registration records maintained

by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.05 inthe name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, or such

other nominee as DTC shall request pursuant to the Letter of Representation. The Trustee and any

paying agent may conclusively treat DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive owner of the

Authority Bonds registered in its name for the purposes of payment of the principal or redemption

price of and interest on such Authority Bonds, selecting the Authority Bonds or portions thereof

to be redeemed, giving any notice permitted or required to be given to Owners hereunder,

registering the transfer of Authority Bonds, obtaining any consent or other action to be taken by

Owners of the Authority Bonds and for all other purposes whatsoever; and neither the Trustee nor

the Trustee or any paying agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. Neither the Trustee

nor any paying agent shall have any responsibility or obligation to any Participant (which shall

mean, for purposes of this Section, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing

cotporations and other entities, some of whom directly or indirectly own DTC), any person

claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Authority Bonds under or through DTC or any

41s2-1602-2584.2

t6
Page 220

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Participant, or any other person which is not shown on the registration records as being an Owner,

with respect to (i) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC or any Participant, (ii) the

payment by DTC or any Participant of any amount in respect of the principal or redemption price

of or interest on the Authority Bonds, (iii) any notice which is permitted or required to be given to
Owners of Authority Bonds hereunder, (iv) the selection by DTC or any Participant of any person

to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Authority Bonds, or (v) any consent

given or other action taken by DTC as Owner of Authority Bonds. The Trustee shall pay all
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on tfre Authority Bonds only at the times, to the

accounts, at the addresses and otherwise in accordance with the Letter of Representation, and all
such payments shall be valid and effective to satisff fully and discharge the Trustee's obligations

with respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Authority Bonds to the

extent of the sum or sums so paid. Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the

effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of its then existing nominee,

the Authority Bonds will be transferable to such new nominee in accordance with subsection (e)

of this Section.

(c) In the event that the Authority determines that the beneficial owners of the

Authority Bonds shall be able to obtain Authority Bond certificates, the Trustee shall, upon the

written instruction from the Authority, so notifu DTC, whereupon DTC shall notiff the

Participants of the availability through DTC of Authority Bond certificates. In such event, the

Authority Bonds will be transferable in accordance with subsection (e) of this Section. DTC may

determine to discontinue providing its services with respect to the Authority Bonds at any time by
giving written notice of such discontinuance to the Trustee and discharging its responsibilities with
respect thereto under applicable law. In such event, the Authority Bonds will be transferable in
accordance with subsection (e) of this Section. Whenever DTC requests the Trustee to do so, the

Trustee will cooperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to arrange for
another securities depository to maintain custody of all certificates evidencing the Authority Bonds

then Outstanding. In such event, the Authority Bonds will be transferable to such securities

depository in accordance with subsection (e) of this Section, and thereafter, all references in this
Trust Agreement to DTC or its nominee shall be deemed to refer to such successor securities

depository and its nominee, as appropriate.

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Trust Agreement to the contrary, so

long as all Authority Bonds Outstanding are registered in the name of any nominee of DTC, all
payments with respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on each such Authority
Bond and all notices with respect to each such Authority Bond shall be made and given,

respectively, to DTC as provided in the Letter of Representation.

(e) In the event that arry transfer or exchange of Authority Bonds is authorized under

subsection (b) or (c) of this Section, such transfer or exchange shall be accomplished upon receipt

by the Trustee from the registered owner thereof of the Authority Bonds to be transferred or
exchanged and appropriate instruments of transfer to the permitted transferee, all in accordance

with the applicable provisions of Sections 2.05 and2.06. lnthe event Authority Bond certificates

are issued to Owners other than Cede & Co., its successor as nominee for DTC as Owner of all the

Authority Bonds, another securities depository as Owner of all the Authority Bonds, or the

nominee of such successor securities depository, the provisions of Sections 2.05 and 2.06 shall

4t52-t602-2s84.2

I7

Page 221

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



also apply to, among other things, the registration, exchange and transfer of the Authority Bonds

and the method of payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Authority Bonds.

SECTION 2.1 l. CUSIP Numbers. The Authority in issuing the Authority Bonds may

use "CUSIP" numbers (if then generally in use), and, if so, the Trustee shall use '.CUSIP" numbers

in notices of redemption as a convenience to Owners; provided that the Trustee shall have no

liability for any defect in the "CUSIP" numbers as they appear on any Authority Bond, notice or

elsewhere, and, provided further that any such notice may state that no representation is made as

to the correctness of such numbers either as printed on the Authority Bonds or as contained in any

notice of redemption and that reliance may be placed only on the other identification numbers

printed on the securities, and any such redemption shall not be affected by any defect in or omission

of such numbers. The Authority shall promptly notiff the Trustee in writing of any change in
CUSP numbers.

ARTICLE III

ANCE OF

SECTION 3.01. Provisions for the of Authoritv Bonds. The Authority
Bonds shall be executed by the Authority and delivered to the Trustee for authentication, together

with a Written Order authorizing and directing the Trustee to authenticate the Authority Bonds

and containing instructions as to the delivery of the Authority Bonds. The Trustee shall

authenticate and deliver the Authority Bonds upon receipt of such Written Order and upon the

following having been made available to it:

(a) A copy of the resolution adopted by the Authority approving this Trust Agreement

and the execution and delivery by the Authority hereof, duly certified by the Secretary to have

been duly adopted by the Authority and to be in full force and effect on the date of such

certification;

(b) The proceeds of sale of the Authority Bonds;

(c) An Offrcer's Certificate stating that all conditions precedent to the authorization of
the Authority Bonds have been satisfied and that the Authority is not in default in the performance

of any of the agreements, conditions, covenants or terms contained herein;

(d) An original executed counterpart hereof;

(e) The Local Obligations to be purchased with the proceeds of the Authority Bonds,

registered in the name of the Trustee; and

(0 An Opinion or Opinions of Bond Counsel addressing the validity and, if applicable,

the tax-exempt status of the Authority Bonds and the validity of the Local Obligations, subject to

such exceptions as may be reasonable and appropriate.

SECTION 3.02. Paritv and Subordinate Bonds. So long as any of the Authority
Bonds remain Outstanding, the Authority shall not issue any bonds or obligations payable from
Revenues.

4152-1602-2584.2

18

Page 222

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF ORITY BONDS

SECTION4.QI. General Redemption Provisions. The Authority Bonds tllm:t are

subject to redemption prior to maturity pursuant to this Trust Agreement shall be redeemable, upon

mailed notice as provided in this Article, at such times and upon such terms as are contained in
this Article.

SECTION 4.02. Optional Redemption. The Authority Bonds are subject to optional

redemption by the Authority prior to their respective maturity dates as a whole or in part on any

date on or after September l, 201 1, from any source of available funds other than Minimum
Sinking Fund Payments and Special Tax Prepayments, upon mailed notice as provided herein, at

the following redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Authority Bonds or

portions thereof called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption:

103% if redeemed on any date on or after September l, 201 1

through August 31,201 l;

102% if redeemed on any date from September I,201 I through
August 31,201 l;

rcl% if redeemed on any date from September 1,201 l through
August 3l,20[-f; and

100% if redeemed on September 1, 20[ I and any date thereafter'

SECTION 4.03. Extraordinary Redemption. The Authority Bonds are subject to

extraordinary redemption by the Authority prior to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or

in part on any Interest Payment Date on or after fSeptember l, 2022], solely from funds derived

from extraordinary redemption of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments, at the

following redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Authority Bonds or

portions thereof called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption:

103% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on or after

September 1,201 I through March l,20ll;

102% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on September 1,

20lJ and March 1,201 1;

rcI% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on September 1,

20Ll and March 1,201 l; and

100% if redeemed on September l, 20L-] and any Interest Payment

Date thereafter.

4t52-1602:2584.2

t9

Page 223

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SECTION 4.04. Mandatory Redemption. The Term Authority Bonds maturing on

September 1,201 1, are subject to mandatory redemption by the Authority prior to their maturity

date in part on September 1 of each year on and after September I,201 f, to and including

September 1,201 l;and the Term Authority Bonds maturing on September 1, 20[ l, are subject

to mandatory redemption by the Authority prior to their maturity date in part on September I of
each year on and after September 1, 201_l,to and including September 1,201 I from (and in the

amount of) the Minimum Sinking Fund Payments due and payable for the Term Authority Bonds

on each such date, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest

thereon to the date of redemption, without premium.

SECTION 4.05. Redemption Instructions. Upon any prepayment of a Local
Obligation, the Authority shall deliver to the Trustee at least forty-five (45) days prior to the

redemption date aWritten Order of the Authority designating the amounts and maturities of the

Authority Bonds to be redeemed, which shall be in the manner necessary to enable the Authority
to deliver a Cash Flow Certificate satisfuing the requirements described below. In the event only

a portion of the Outstanding Authority Bonds of any maturity are to be redeemed at any one time,

the Trustee shall select the particular Authority Bonds of each maturity date to be redeemed in
accordance with DTC procedures (which, at the time of the issuance of the Authority Bonds, would

be a redemption by lot) or, if the Authority Bonds are not then in book-entry, in a manner that it
deems appropriate and fair. The Trustee shall redeem Authority Bonds in Authorized

Denominations. The Trustee shall promptly notiff the Authority in writing of the numbers of the

Authority Bonds so selected for redemption on any date. Upon any redemption of a portion but

not all of the Outstanding Authority Bonds, the Authority shall deliver to the Trustee a Cash Flow
Certificate to the effect that, assuming all payments are made with respect to the Local Obligations,

(i) the Revenues, together with moneys on deposit in other funds and account held under this Trust

Agreement, will be sufficient to pay all Principal Installments, Minimum Sinking Fund Payments

and interestpayments onthe Authority Bonds when due; and (ii) the redemptionpremiums, if any,

on the Local Obligations, together with other Revenues available to the Trustee for such pufpose,

are sufficient to offset any difference between the interest to accrue on the Authority Bonds to be

paid or redeemed with the proceeds of prepayment of such Local Obligations (plus any redemption

premium payable upon redemption of such Authority Bonds) and the income to be eamed on any

investment of such proceeds (assured as of the date of payment thereof), in each case until the date

of payment or redemption of Authority Bonds, such that in no event will the prepayment of Local

Obligations cause the Trustee to have insufficient funds to pay debt service onthe Authority Bonds

when due. In no event shall Authority Bonds be redeemed if upon such redemption the principal

amount of the Local Obligations remaining outstanding will be less than the total principal amount

of Outstanding Authority Bonds. Such Written Order of the Authority may speciff that optional

redemption of the Authority Bonds will be conditioned upon receipt of funds or other events.

SECTION 4.06. Notice of Redemption. Subject to receipt of the Written Order of
the Authority delivered pursuant to Section 4.05, the Trustee shall, at the sole cost and expense of
the Authority, give notice of redemption as hereinafter provided in this Section; ppvlilg!, that

Authority Bonds, identified by CUSIP numbers, serial numbers and maturity date, have been

called for redemption and, in the case of Authority Bonds to be redeemed in part only, the portion

of the principal amount thereof that has been called for redemption (or if all the Outstanding

Authority Bonds are to be redeemed, so stating, in which event such serial numbers may be

omitted), that they will be due and payable on the date fixed for redemption (speciffing such date)

4152-1602-2584.2

20

Page 224

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



upon surender thereof to the Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office, subject to any conditions to

such redemption specified in the Written Order of the Authority, at the redemption price

(speciffing such price), together with any accrued interest to such date, and that all interest on the

Authority Bonds (or portions thereof) so to be redeemed will cease to accrue on and after such

date and that from and after such date such Authority Bond (or such portion thereof) shall no longer

be entitled to any lien, benefit or security hereunder, and the Owner thereof shall have no rights in
respect of such redeemed Authority Bond or such portion except to receive payment from such

money of such redemption price plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption. If sufficient
monies for the payment of the redemption price of all Authority Bonds to be redeemed are not then

on deposit with the Trustee, such notice shall also state that redemption is conditioned upon the

timely deposit of sufficient funds therefor with the Trustee.

Such notice shall be mailed by first class mail, in a sealed envelope, postage

prepaid, at least thirty (30) but not more than sixty (60) days before the date fixed for redemption,

to the Owners of such Authority Bonds (or portions thereof) so called for redemption, at their

respective addresses as the same shall last appear on the Bond Register; Wviidgd, that neither the

failure of an Owner to receive notice of redemption of Authority Bonds hereunder nor any error

in such notice shall affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of Authority Bonds.

Any notice of optional redemption hereunder may be rescinded by written notice

given by the Authority to the Trustee no later than three (3) Business Days prior to the date

specified for redemption, instructing the Trustee to send such notice of rescission. The Trustee

shall give notice of rescission of the notice of optional redemption or non-satisfaction of any

conditions specified in the notice of optional redemption as soon as practicable to the same parties

and in the same manner as the notice of redemption was given pursuant to this Section.

SECTION 4.07. Pa)'ment of Redeemed Authoritv Bonds. If notice of redemption

has been given and not rescinded and if the conditions to such redemption specified therein, if any,

have been satisfied, each as provided in Section 4.06,the Authority Bonds (or the portions thereof)

called for redemption shall become irrevocably due and payable on the date fixed for redemption

at the redemption price thereof, together with accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption,

upon presentation and surrender of the Authority Bonds to be redeemed at the Coqporate Trust

Office of the Trustee specified in the notice of redemption. If there shall be called for redemption

less than the full principal amount of an Authority Bond, the Authority shall execute and deliver

and the Trustee shall authenticate, upon surender of such Authority Bond, and without charge to

the Owner thereof, Authority Bonds of like interest rate and maturity in an aggregate principal

amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the principal amount of the Authority Bonds so

surrendered in such Authorized Denominations as shall be specified by the Owner thereof.

If any Authority Bond or any portion thereof shall have been duly called for
redemption and payment of the redemption price, together with unpaid interest accrued to the date

fixed for redemption, shall have been made or provided for by the Authority, then interest on such

Authority Bond or such portion thereof shall cease to accrue from such date, and from and after
such date such Authority Bond or such portion thereof shall no longer be entitled to any lien,

benefit or security hereunder, and the Owner thereof shall have no rights in respect of such

Authority Bond or such portion except to receive payment of such redemption price and unpaid

interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

4t52-1602-2584.2

21

Page 225

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SECTION 4.08. Purchase in Lieu of Redemption. In lieu of redemption of any

Authority Bond pursuant to the provisions of Section 4.02 or Section 4.03, and after complying
with Section 4.05, amounts on deposit in the Proceeds Fund, the Principal Fund or in the

Redemption Fund may be used and withdrawn by the Trustee at any time prior to a notice of
redemption having been delivered, upon a Written Order for the purchase of such Authority Bonds

at public or private sale as and when and at such prices as the Authority may in its discretion

determine, but not in excess of the lower of the highest or then current redemption price thereof
plus accrued interest to the purchase date; and all Authority Bonds so purchased shall be delivered

to the Trustee for cancellation.

ARTICLE V

FUNDS

SECTION 5.01. Establishment of Funds. There is hereby established with the

Trustee, and the Trustee hereby agrees to maintain, the following special trust funds for the

Authority Bonds, which the Trustee shall keep separate and apart from all other funds and moneys

held by it: the Revenue Fund, the Interest Fund, the Principal Fund, the Redemption Fund, the

Proceeds Fund, the Local Obligations Fund and the Rebate Fund.

SECTION 5.02 Deoosit of Proceeds of Authoritv Bonds. The net proceeds received

from the sale of the Authority Bonds (in the amount of $l l, consisting of the principal
amount thereof, fplus/less] the [net] original issue fpremium/discount] of $l- I and less an

underwriter's discount of $ ) shall be deposited by the Trustee in the Proceeds Fund

SECTION 5.03. Proceeds Fund. The amounts in the Proceeds Fund shall be applied

forthwith by the Trustee for the purchase of the Local Obligations pursuant to the Local Obligation
Purchase Contract in accordance with a Written Order of the Authority whereupon the Proceeds

Fund shall be closed. If any amount shall remain in the Proceeds Fund following such purchase,

such amount shall be transferred to the Revenue Fund.

SECTION 5.04. Local Oblieations Fuad. All Local Obligations acquired by the

Trustee pursuant to Section 5.03 shall be deposited in the Local Obligations Fund, which the

Trustee shall establish and maintain.

SECTION 5.05. Revenue Fund. All Revenues received by the Trustee, other than

Revenues derived from the early redemption of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments

(which shall be administered in accordance with Section 5.06), shall be deposited by the Trustee

in the Revenue Fund. On each Interest Payment Date and Principal Payment Date, the Trustee

shall transfer Revenues (to the extent that Revenues are available therein) from the Revenue Fund,

in the amounts specified in Sections 5.07 and 5.08, for deposit into the respective Funds specified

therein in the order of priority herein set forth, the requirements of each Fund to be fully satisfied,

leaving no deficiencies therein, prior to any deposit into any Fund later in priority. On each Interest

Payment Date and Principal Payment Date, after making the deposits required by Sections 5.07

and 5.08, the Trustee shall transfer all remaining money in the Revenue Fund to the Indenture

Trustee for deposit pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture.

4152-1602-2584.2

22

Page 226

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SECTION 5.06. Revenues Derived from Tax Preoavments. The Communi ty
Facilities District and the Authority acknowledge that amounts received by the Community
Facilities District on account of Special Tax Prepayments are to be utilized for the sole purpose of
the prior redemption of Local Obligations pursuant to Section 4.03, and not to pay current,

scheduled debt service payments on the Local Obligations. Correspondingly, in order to maintain

a proper ratio between debt service payments on the Local Obligations and debt service payments

on the Authority Bonds, all Revenues received by the Trustee which are derived from the early

redemption of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments whenreceivedby the Community
Facilities District shall be deposited in the Redemption Fund and used to redeem the Authority
Bonds pursuant to Section 4.03, in accordance with a Written Order of the Authority delivered

pursuant to Section 4.05.

SECTION 5.07. Interest Fund. The Trustee shall deposit in the Interest Fund on each

Interest Payment Date from the Revenue Fund an amount of Revenues which, together with any

amounts then on deposit in the Interest Fund, is equal to the interest due on the Authority Bonds

due on such date. On each Interest Payment Date, the Trustee shall pay the interest due and payable

on the Authority Bonds on such date from the Interest Fund.

SECTION 5.08. Principal Fund. After satisfuing the requirements of the foregoing

Section 5.07 respecting deposits in the Interest Fund, the Trustee shall deposit in the Principal
Fund (i) on each Principal Payment Date from the Revenue Fund an amount of Revenues which,
together with any amounts then on deposit in the Principal Fund (other than amounts previously

deposited on account of any Authority Bonds which have matured but which have not been

presented for payment) is sufficient to pay the Principal Installments on the Authority Bonds due

on such Principal Payment Date and (ii) on each September 1 on which a Minimum Sinking Fund

Payment is required to be made (for deposit in the Sinking Fund Account) from the Revenue Fund

an amount of Revenues which is equal to the Minimum Sinking Fund Payment due and payable

on such date. On each Principal Payment Date, the Trustee shall pay the principal or redemption
price due and payable on the Authority Bonds on such date from the Principal Fund.

SECTION 5.09 Fund. All money held in or transferred to the

Redemption Fund pursuant to Section 5.06 shall be used for the pulpose of redeeming or
purchasing all or a portion of the Outstanding Authority Bonds pursuant to Section 4.03, and the

Trustee shall use other moneys in the Redemption Fund for the payment of the redemption price

of Authority Bonds called for redemption pursuant to Section 4.02,together with accrued interest

to the redemption date.

SECTION 5.10. Rebate Fund. The Trustee agrees to establish and maintain when

needed a fund separate from any other fund established and maintained hereunder designated the

Rebate Fund. The Trustee shall deposit in the Rebate Fund, from funds made available by the

Authority, the Rebate Requirement, all in accordance with the Rebate Instructions received from
the Authority. The Trustee will apply money held in the Rebate Fund as provided in Section 7.04

and according to instructions provided by the Authority. Subject to the provisions of Section 7.04,

all money held in the Rebate Fund is hereby pledged to secure payments to the United States of
America, and the Authority and the Community Facilities District and the Owners will have no

rights in or claim to such money. The Trustee will invest all money held in the Rebate Fund in
Investment Securities as directed in writing by the Authority, such written direction to specifr

4152-t602-2584.2

23

Page 227

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



which Investment Securities are to be invested in, and all investment earnings with respect thereto

shall be deposited in the Rebate Fund.

Upon receipt of the Rebate Instructions required by the Tax Certificate to be

delivered to the Trustee, the Trustee will remit part or all of the balance held in the Rebate Fund

to the United States of America as so directed. In addition, if the Rebate Instructions so direct, the

Trustee will deposit money into or transfer money out of the Rebate Fund from or into such Funds

as the Rebate Instructions shall direct. The Trustee shall be deemed conclusively to have complied

with such provisions if it follows the written directions of the Authority including supplying all
necessary information in the manner provided in the Tax Certificate to the extent such information

is reasonably available to the Trustee, and shall have no liability or responsibility to monitor or

enforce compliance by the Authority with the terms of the Tax Certificate.

The Trustee shall have no obligation to rebate any amounts required to be rebated

pursuant to this Section, other than from money held in the Rebate Fund or from other money

provided to it by the Authority. The Trustee shall not be responsible for computing the Rebate

Requirement, and computations of the Rebate Requirement shall be furnished to the Trustee or on

behalf of the Authority in accordance with the Tax Certificate'

Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, including in particular Article XII
pertaining to defeasance, the obligationto remitthe rebate amounts to the United States of America

and to comply with all other requirements of this Section and the Tax Certificate shall survive the

defeasance or payment in full of the Authority Bonds.

ARTICLE VI

SEC

SECTION 6.01. Security. All money required to be deposited with or paid to the

Trustee in any of the Funds (other than the Rebate Fund) refemed to in any provision hereof shall

be held by the Trustee in trust, and except for money held for the payment or redemption of
Authority Bonds or the payment of interest on Authority Bonds pursuant to Section 12.03, shall,

while held by the Trustee, constitute part of the Trust Estate and shall be subject to the lien and

pledge created hereby.

SECTION 6.02. Investment of Money. So long as the Authority Bonds are

Outstanding and there is no default hereunder, all money on deposit to the credit of the Revenue

Fund, the Interest Fund, the Principal Fund and the Redemption Fund and all accounts within such

Funds shall, at the written request of an Authorized Officer of the Authority speciffing and

directing that such investment of such money be made, be invested by the Trustee in Investment

Securities having maturities not later than the date necessary to provide the availability of money

when needed for purposes hereof, and all money held in the Rebate Fund shall, at the written

request of an Authorized Officer specifring and directing that such investment of such money be

made, be invested by the Trustee in Govemment Obligations having maturities not later than the

date necessary to provide the availability of money when needed for purposes hereof, and the

Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely on such instructions for purposes of this Section. The

Trustee shall notiff the Authority in writing prior to the date money held hereunder will be

4152-1602-2584.2

24

Page 228

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



available for investment, requesting that the Authority deliver to the Trustee written instructions

specifring the Investment Securities to be acquired by the Trustee with such money. The

Authority, in issuing such written instructions, shall comply with the provisions of the Tax
Certificate. In the absence of written instructions from the Authority regarding investment, such

money shall be held uninvested. The Trustee (or any affiliate thereof) may actas principal or agent

in the acquisition or disposition of any investments.

Money on deposit in the Proceeds Fund, if any, shall be invested in Investment

Securities pursuant to a Written Order speciffing which Investment Securities to be invested in,
and such money may not be reinvested in any other Investment Securities unless the Trustee

receives, at the time of such reinvestment, a further written certification to the effect that, after

such reinvestment, the Revenues will be sufficient to pay principal and interest on the Authority
Bonds when due.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, an amount of interest

received with respect to any Investment Security equal to the amount of accrued interest, if any,

paid as part of the purchase price of such Investment Security shall be credited to the Fund from
which such accrued interest was paid. The Trustee shall not be responsible for any losses, taxes,

fees, charges or consequences of any investment, reinvestment or liquidation of investment if it
follows such instructions. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Trustee

shall have no obligation or responsibility to determine whether investment in a security is
permitted by the laws of the State and the City's Investment Policy, for and on behalf of the

Community Facilities District, and shall be entitled to conclusively assume that any investment it
is directed to make is so permitted.

The securities purchased with the money in each Fund shall be deemed a part of
such Fund. If at any time it shall become necessary or appropriatethat some or all of the securities
purchased with the money in any Fund be redeemed or sold in order to raise money necessary to
comply with the provisions hereof, the Trustee shall effect such redemption or sale, employing, in
the case of a sale, any commercially reasonable method of effecting the same. The Trustee shall

not be liable or responsible for any consequences, fees, taxes or other charges resulting from any

such investment or resulting from the redemption, sale or maturity of any such investment as

authorized pursuant to this Section.

Investments in the Revenue Fund, the Interest Fund, the Principal Fund and the

Redemption Fund may be commingled for pulposes of making, holding and disposing of
investments, notwithstanding provisions herein for transfer to or holding in particular Funds

amounts received or held by the Trustee; provided, that the Trustee shall at all times account for
such investments strictly in accordance with the Funds to which they are credited and otherwise

as provided herein.

All earnings on the investment of the money on deposit in any Fund shall remain a
part ofsuch Fund.

4152-1602:2584.2

25

Page 229

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ARTICLE VII

COVENANTS OF AI]THOzuTY AND THE COMMUNITY DISTRICT

SECTION 7.01. Pavment of Authoritv : No Encumbrances. The Authority
shall cause the Trustee to promptly pay, from Revenues and other funds derived from the Trust
Estate pledged hereunder, the interest on and principal of and redemption premium, if any, on

every Authority Bond issued under and secured hereby at the place, on the dates and in the manner

specified herein and in such Authority Bonds according to the true intent and meaning thereof.

The Authority shall not issue any bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness or incur any

obligations payable from or secured by the Trust Estate, other than the Authority Bonds.

SECTION 7.02. Enforcement and Amendment of Local Obligations. The Authority,
the Community Facilities District and the Trustee (subject to Article IX hereof) shall enforce all
of their rights with respect to the Local Obligations to the fullest extent necessary to preserve the

rights and protect the security of the Owners hereunder.

The Authority, the Community Facilities District and the Trustee may, without the

consent of or notice to the Owners of the Authority Bonds, consent to any amendment, change or
modification of any Local Obligation that may be required (a) to conform to the provisions hereof
(including any modifications or changes contained in any Supplemental Trust Agreement), (b) for
the purpose of curing any ambiguity or inconsistency or formal defect or omission, (c) to add

additional rights acquired in accordance with the provisions of such Local Obligation, (d) in
connection with any other change therein that is not to the material prejudice of the Owners of the

Authority Bonds, or (e) in the Opinion of Bond Counsel, to preserve or assure the exemption of
interest on the Local Obligations or Authority Bonds from federal income taxes or the exemption

of such interest from State personal income taxes.

Except for the amendments, changes or modifications provided for in the preceding

paragraph, neither the Authority, the Community Facilities District nor the Trustee shall consent

to any amendment, change or modification of any Local Obligation without the written approval

or consent of the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Authority
Bonds at the time Outstanding given and procured as provided in this Section. If at any time the

Authority and the Community Facilities District, as the case may be, shall request the consent of
the Trustee to any such proposed amendment, change or modification of aLocal Obligation, the

Trustee shall, upon being satisfactorily indemnified with respect to expenses, cause notice,

prepared by the Authority, of such proposed amendment, change or modification to be mailed in
the same manner as provided by Section 13.03. Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of
such proposed amendment, change or modification and shall state that copies of the instrument

embodying the same are on file with the Trustee for inspection by all Owners.

SECTION 7.03. Further Documents. The Authority covenants that it will from time
to time execute and deliver such further instruments and take such further action as may be

reasonable and as may be required to carry out the purpose hereof; proviidgd, that no such

instruments or actions shall pledge the faith and credit or the taxing power of the State or any

political subdivision of the State.

4rs2-t602-2s84.2

26

Page 230

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SECTION 7.04. Tax Covenants for the Authoritv Bonds.

(a) The Authority and the Community Facilities District will not take any action, or

fail to take any action, if any such action or failure to take action would adversely affect the

exclusion from gross income of interest on the Authority Bonds under Section 103 of the Code.

The Authority and the Community Facilities District will not directly or indirectly use or permit

the use of any proceeds of the Authority Bonds or any other funds of the Authority or take or omit
to take any action that would cause the Authority Bonds to be "private activity bonds" within the

meaning of Section lal(a) of the Code or obligations which are 'ofederally guaranteed" within the

meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code. The Authority will not allow ten percent (10%) or more

of the proceeds of the Authority Bonds to be used in the trade or business of any nongovernmental

units and will not lend five percent (5%) or more of the proceeds of the Authority Bonds to any

nongovemmental units.

(b) The Authority and the Community Facilities District will not directly or indirectly
use or permit the use of any proceeds of the Authority Bonds or any other funds of the Authority
or take or omit to take any action that would cause the Authority Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds"

within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. To that end, the Authority and the Community
Facilities District will comply with all requirements of Section 148 of the Code to the extent

applicable to the Authority Bonds. In the event that at any time the Authority is of the opinion that

for purposes of this Section it is necessary to restrict or to limit the yield on the investment of any

money held by the Trustee hereunder, the Authority will so instruct the Trustee in writing, and the

Trustee will take such actions as directed by such instructions.

(c) The Authority will pay or cause to be paid the Rebate Requirement as provided in
the Tax Certificate. This covenant shall survive payment in fulI or defeasance of the Authority
Bonds. The Authority will cause the Rebate Requirement to be deposited in the Rebate Fund as

provided in the Tax Certificate (which is incorporated herein by reference).

(d) The Trustee will conclusively be deemed to have complied with the provisions of
this Section and the provisions of the Tax Certificate and shall incur no liability if it follows the

directions of the Authority set forth in the Tax Certificate and the Rebate Instructions and shall not

be required to take any actions hereunder in the absence of Rebate Instructions from the Authority.

(e) Notwithstanding any provision of this Section, if the Authority shall provide to the

Trustee an Opinion of Bond Counsel that any specified action required under this Section is no

longer required or that some further or different action is required to maintain the exclusion from
gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest with respect to the Authority Bonds, the

Trustee and the Authority and the Community Facilities District may conclusively rely on such

opinion in complying with the requirements of this Section, and the covenants hereunder shall be

deemed to be modified to that extent.

(0 The provisions of this Section shall survive the defeasance of the Authority Bonds.

SECTION 7.05. Maintenance of Existence. The Authority shall maintain the

existence, powers and authority of the Authority as a joint exercise of powers authority under the

laws of the State.

4152-1602-2584.2

27

Page 231

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SECTION 7.06. Continuing Disclosure. The Community Facilities District has

undertaken all responsibility for compliance with continuing disclosure requirements, and the

Authority shall have no liability to the Owners of the Authority Bonds or any other person with
respect to S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, failure of the

Community Facilities District to comply with any continuing disclosure obligation shall not be

considered an Event of Default; provided, that any Owners of the Authority Bonds or beneficial

owner may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or

specific performance by court order, to cause the Community Facilities District to comply with its

continuing disclosure obligations.

SECTION 7.07. Redemotion Fund for the Local Oblisations.

(a) The Community Facilities District expressly acknowledges that, pursuant to the

Local Obtigations Indenture, the Community Facilities District is to establish and maintain a

separate redemption fund for the Local Obligations (the "Local Obligations Redemption Fund")

and, so long as the Local Obligations remain outstanding, to deposit into such Local Obligations

Redemption Fund, upon receipt, my and all Special Tax Revenues received by the Community

Facilities District in connection with the Local Obligations. The Community Facilities District
further acknowledges that no temporary loan or other use whatsoever may be made of Special Tax

Revenues, and that the Local Obligations Redemption Fund constitutes a trust fund for the benefit

of the owners of the Local Obligations.

(b) The Community Facilities District hereby covenants for the benefit of the

Authority, as owner of the Local Obligations, the Trustee, as assignee of the Authority with respect

to the Revenues, and the Owners from time to time of the Authority Bonds, that it will establish,

maintain and administer the Local Obligations Redemption Fund and the Special Tax Revenues in
accordance with their status as trust funds as prescribed by the Act, the Local Obligations Indenture

and this Trust Agreement.

(c) The Community Facilities District fuither covenants that, no later than one (1)

Business Day prior to each Interest Payment Date and Principal Payment Date of the Authority
Bonds, the Community Facilities District will advance to the Trustee against payment on the Local

Obligations, as assignee of the Authority with respect to the Local Obligations, the interest due on

the Local Obligations on such Interest Payment Date and the principal of all Local Obligations

maturing on such Principal Payment Date, respectively, and upon receipt by the Trustee, such

amounts shall constitute Revenues. For so long as Authority Bonds remain Outstanding, the

Trustee shall provide written notice to the Authority no later than fifteen (15) days prior to each

Interest Payment Date specifuing the amount required to be paid to the Trustee pursuant to this

subsection in the month subsequent thereto.

SECTION 7.08. Concernine the Trust Estate. The Authority hereby represents and

warrants as follows:

(a) This Trust Agreement creates a valid and binding pledge of and security interest in
the Trust Estate in favor of the Trustee in order to secure the payment of the interest on and

principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on all Authority Bonds Outstanding hereunder,

enforceable by the Trustee in accordance with the terms hereof.

4rs2-t602-2584.2

28

Page 232

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(b) Under the laws of the State of California, (1) such pledge of and security interest in
the Trust Estate and (2) each pledge, assignment, lien, or other security interest made to secure any

prior obligations of Authority which, by the terms hereof, ranks on parity with or prior to the
pledge ofand security interest granted hereby, are and shall be prior to anyjudicial lien hereafter

imposed on such collateral to enforce a judgment against the Authority on a simple contract.

(c) The Authority has not heretofore made a pledge of, granted a lien on or security
interest in, or made an assignment or sale of the Trust Estate that ranks on parity with or prior to
the pledge and security interest granted hereby, except for the pledge and security interest granted

to secure the Authority Bonds. The Authority shall not hereafter make or suffer to exist any pledge

or assignment of, lien on, or security interest in such collateral that ranks prior to or on parity with
the pledge and security interest granted hereby, or file any financing statement describing any such

pledge, assignment, lien or security interest, except as expressly permified hereby.

ARTICLE VIII

SECTION 8.01.
Default" hereunder:

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

Events of Default. The following shall constitute "Events of

(a) if payment of interest on the Authority Bonds shall not be made when due; or

(b) if payment of any Principal lnstallment or Minimum Sinking Fund Payment shall

not be made when due and payable, whether at maturity, by proceedings for redemption, or
otherwise; or

(c) if the Authority or the Community Facilities District shall fail to observe or perform
in any material way any other agreement, condition, covenant or term contained herein on its part
to be observed or performed, and such failure shall continue for thirty (30) days after written notice

speciffing such failure and requiring the same to be remedied shall have been given to the

Authority orthe Community Facilities District, as the case may be, by the Trustee orby the Owners

of not less than fifty percent (50%) in aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds,

ryldgd, that if such default be such that it cannot be corrected within the applicable period, it
shall not constitute an Event of Default if corrective action is instituted by the Authority or the

Community Facilities District within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the default
is corrected; or

(d) if there is an event of default under the Local Obligations Indenture.

SECTION 8.02. Proceedings by Trustee; No Acceleration. Upon the happening and

continuance of any Event of Default the Trustee may, or at the written request of the Owners of
not less than fifty percent (50%) in aggregate principal amount of Authority Bonds Outstanding,
shall (but only if indemnified to its satisfaction from any liability, expense or cost), do the

following:

(a) by mandamus, or other suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity, enforce all
rights of the Owners, including the right to receive and collect the Revenues;

4ts2-t6oz-2ss4.z 
29

Page 233

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(b) bring suit upon or otherwise enforce any defaulting Local Obligation;

(c) by action or suit in equity enjoin any acts or things which may be unlawful or in
violation of the rights of the Owners;

(d) as a matter of right, have a receiver or receivers appointed for the Trust Estate and

of the earnings, income, issues, products, profits and revenues thereof pending such proceedings,

with such powers as the court making such appointment shall confer; and

(e) take such action with respect to any and all Local Obligations or Investment

Securities as shall be necessary and appropriate, subject to Section 8.04 and to the terms of such

Local Obligations or Investment Securities.

The Trustee shall have no right to declare the principal of all ofthe Authority Bonds

then Outstanding, or the interest accrued thereon, to be due and payable immediately.

SECTION 8.03. Effect of Discontinuance or Abandonment. In case any proceeding

taken by the Trustee on account of any Event of Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned

for any reason, or shall have been determined adversely to the Trustee, then and in every such case

the Trustee and the Owners shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder,

respectively, and all rights, remedies and powers of the Trustee shall continue as though no such

proceeding had been taken.

SECTION 8.04. Rights of Owners. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding,
but subject to the limitations and restrictions as to the rights of the Owner contained in Sections

8.01, 8.02, and 8.05, upon the happening and continuance of any Event of Default, the Owners of
not less than fifty percent (50%) in aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds then

Outstanding shall have the right, upon providing the Trustee security and indemnity reasonably

satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, by an

instrument in writing executed and delivered to the Trustee, have the right to direct the method

and place of conducting all remedial proceedings to be taken by the Trustee hereunder.

The Trustee may refuse to follow any direction that conflicts with law or herewith
or that the Trustee determines would subject the Trustee to personal liability without adequate

indemnifi cation therefor.

SECTION 8.05. Restriction on Owner's Action. In addition to the other restrictions

on the rights of Owners to request action upon the occturence of an Event of Default and to enforce
remedies set forth in this Article, no Owner shall have any right to institute any suit, action or
proceeding in equity or at law for the enforcement of any trust hereunder, or any other remedy

hereunder or in the Authority Bonds, unless such Owner previously shall have given to the Trustee

written notice of an Event of Default as hereinabove provided and unless the Owners of not less

than fifty percent (50%) in aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds then Outstanding

shall have made written request of the Trustee to institute any such suit, action, proceeding or other

remedy, after the right to exercise such powers or rights of action, as the case may be, shall have

accrued, and shall have afforded the Trustee a reasonable opportunity either to proceed to exercise

the powers granted herein, or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its or their name; nor
unless there also shall have been offered to the Trustee security and indemnity reasonably

4ts2-r6oz-2s84., 
to

Page 234

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, and

the Trustee shall not have complied with such request within a reasonable time; and such

notification, request and offer of indemnity are hereby declared in every such case to be conditions

precedent to the execution of the trusts hereof or for any other remedy hereunder, it being

understood and intended that no one or more Owners of Authority Bonds secured hereby shall

have any right in any manner whatever by his, her or their action to affect, disturb or prejudice the

security hereof, or to enforce any rights hereunder or under the Authority Bonds, except in the

manner provided herein, and that all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted, had and

maintained in the manner provided herein, and for the equal benefit of all Owners of Outstanding

Authority Bonds; subject, however, to the provisions of this Section. Notwithstanding the

foregoing provisions of this Section or any other provision hereof, the obligation of the Authority
shall be absolute and unconditional to pay, but solely from the Trust Estate, the interest on and

principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds to the respective Owners

thereof at the respective due dates thereof, and nothing herein shall affect or impair the right of
action, which is absolute and unconditional, of such Owners to enforce such payment.

SECTION 8.06. Power of Trustee to Enforce. A11 rights of action hereunder or under

any of the Authority Bonds secured hereby which are enforceable by the Trustee may be enforced

by it without the possession of any of the Authority Bonds, or the production thereof at the trial or

other proceedings relative thereto, and any such suit, action or proceedings instituted by the

Trustee shall be brought in its own name, as Trustee, for the equal and ratable benefit of the Owners

subject to the provisions hereof.

SECTION 8.07. Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or
reserved to the Trustee or to the Owners is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or

remedies, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative, and shall be in addition to every

other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute.

SECTION 8.08. Waiver of Events of Default: Effect of Waiver. Upon the written
request of the Owners of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of all Outstanding

Authority Bonds, the Trustee shall waive any Event of Default hereunder and its consequences. If
any Event of Default shall have been waived as herein provided, the Trustee shall promptly give

written notice of such waiver to the Authority and the Community Facilities District and shall give

notice thereof by first class mail, postage prepaid, to all Owners of Outstanding Authority Bonds

if such Owners had not previously been given notice of such Event of Default; but no such waiver,
rescission and annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent Event of Default, or impair any

right or remedy consequent thereon.

No delay or omission of the Trustee or of any Owner to exercise any right or power

accruing upon any Event of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to

be a waiver of any such Event of Default, or an acquiescence therein; and every power and remedy

given by this Article to the Trustee and to the Owners may be exercised from time to time and as

often as may be deemed expedient.

SECTION 8.09. Application of Money upon Event of Default. Any money received

by the Trustee pursuant to this Article shall, after payment of all fees and expenses of the Trustee,

and the fees and expenses of its counsel incurred in representing the Owners, be applied as follows:

4ts2-t602-2584.2

31

Page 235

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(a)
payable,

unless the principal of all of the Outstanding Authority Bonds shall be due and

FIRST - To the payment of the Owners entitled thereto of all installments
of interest then due on the Authority Bonds, in the order of the maturity of the
installments of such interest, and if the amount available shall not be sufficient to
pay in full any particular installment, then to the payment ratably, according to the

amounts due on such installment, to the Persons entitled thereto, without any

discrimination or privilege;

SECOND - To the payment of the Owners entitled thereto of the unpaid
principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on any of the Authority Bonds which
shall have become due (other than Authority Bonds matured or called for
redemption for the payment of which money is held pursuant to the provisions
hereof) in the order of their due dates, and if the amount available shall not be

sufficient to pay in fulI the principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such

Authority Bonds due on any particular date, then to the payment ratably, according
to the amount due on such date, to the Owners entitled thereto without any

discrimination or privilege; and

THIRD - To be held for the payment to the Owners entitled thereto as the

same shall become due of the interest on and principal of and redemption
premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds which may thereafter become due, either

at maturity or upon call for redemption prior to maturity, and if the amount available
shall not be sufficient to pay in full such interest and principal and redemption
premiums, if any, due on any particular date, payment shall be made in accordance

with the FIRST and SECOND paragraphs hereof.

(b) if the principal of all of the Outstanding Authority Bonds shall be due and payable,

to the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, due on all
Outstanding Authority Bonds without preference or priority of or of any interest on any

Outstanding Authority Bond over any other Outstanding Authority Bond, any principal of or the

redemption premium, if any, on any Outstanding Authority Bond or of any other Outstanding

Authority Bond, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for interest and principal and

redemption premiums, if any, to the Owners entitled thereto without any discrimination or
preference except as to any difference in the respective amounts of interest specified in the

Outstanding Authority Bonds.

4ts2-t602-2584.2

32

Page 236

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ARTICLE IX

TRUS

SECTION 9.01. Appointment and Acceptance of Duties. The Trustee hereby accepts

and agrees to the trusts hereby created to all of which the Authority agrees and the respective

Owners of the Authority Bonds, by purchase and acceptance thereof, agrees.

SECTION 9.02. Duties.Immunities and Liability of Trustee. The Trustee shall, prior
to an Event of Default, and after the curing or waiver of all Events of Default which may have

occurred, perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth herein, and no

implied duties or obligations shall be read herein against the Trustee. The Trustee shall, during

the existence of any Event of Default (which has not been cured or waived), exercise such of the

rights and powers vested in it hereby and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise as

a prudent person would exercise under the circumstances in the conduct of his or her own affairs.

In the absence of an Event of Default, the Authority may remove the Trustee. The

Authority shall remove the Trustee if (A) it receives an instrument or concurrent instruments in
writing signed by the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the

Authority Bonds then Outstanding (or their attorneys duly authorized in writing) or (B) at any time
the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance with this Section, or (C) the Trustee shall

become incapable of acting, or (D) the Trustee shall commence a case under any bankruptcy,

insolvency or similar law, or (E) a receiver of the Trustee or of its property shall be appointed, or
(F) any public officer shall take control or charge of the Trustee or its property or affairs for the

purpose of rehabilitation, conservation or liquidation. To effect any such removal, the Authority
shall give written notice thereof to the Trustee, and thereupon the Authority (with the concuffence

of the Community Facilities District) shall promptly appoint a successor Trustee by an instrument

in writing.

The Trustee may, subject to the next following paragraph of this Section, resign by
giving written notice of such resignation by mail, first class postage prepaid, to the Authority, the

Community Facilities District and the Owners at the respective addresses listed in the Bond

Register. Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the Authority (with the concturence of the

Community Facilities District) shall promptly appoint, by an instrument in writing, a successot

Trustee.

Any removal or resignation of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee

shall become effective only upon acceptance of the successor Trustee by the Authority and the

Community Facilities District and acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee. If no

successor Trustee shall have been appointed and shall have accepted appointment within thirty
(30) days of giving notice of removal or notice of resignation as aforesaid, the resigning Trustee

or any Owner (on behalf of himself and all other Owners) may petition, at the expense of the

Community Facilities District, any court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a
successor Trustee, and such court may thereupon, after such notice (if any) as it may deem proper,

appoint such successor Trustee. Any successor Trustee appointed under this Trust Agreement

shall signifu its acceptance of such appointment by executing and delivering to the Authority and

the Community Facilities District and to its predecessor Trustee a written acceptance thereof, and

4t52-1602-2584.2

JJ

Page 237

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



thereupon such successor Trustee, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become

vested with all the money, estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of such

predecessor Trustee, with like effect as if it were originally named Trustee herein; but,

nevertheless, at the written request of the Authority or the Community Facilities District or the

successor Trustee, such predecessor Trustee shall execute and deliver any and all instruments of
conveyance or further assurance and do such other things as may reasonably be required for more

fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to such successor Trustee all the right, title and

interest of such predecessor Trustee in and to any property held by it hereunder and shall pay over,

transfer, assign and deliver to the successor Trustee any money or other property subject to the

trusts and conditions herein set forth. Upon request of the successor Trustee, the Authority and

the Community Facilities District shall execute and deliver any and all instruments as may be

reasonably required for more fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to such successor

Trustee all such money, estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations. Upon
acceptance of appointment by a successor Trustee as provided in this subsection, such successor

Trustee shall mail a notice of the succession of such successor Trustee to the trusts hereunder by
first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Owners at their respective addresses listed in the Bond

Register.

Any successor Trustee appointed under the provisions of this Section shall be a

trust company or bank having the powers of a trust company, having a designated corporate trust
offrce in Califomia, and with a combined capital and surplus of at least one hundred million dollars

($100,000,000) and being subject to supervision or examination by federal or state authority; and

if such bank or trust company publishes a report of condition at least annually, pursuant to law or
to the requirements of any supervising or examining authority above referred to, then for the

pu{pose of this subsection the combined capital and surplus of such bank or trust company shall

be deemed to be its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition
so published. In case at any time the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance with the

provisions of this subsection, the Trustee shall resign promptly in the manner and with the effect

specified in this Section.

No provision herein shall require the Trustee to risk or expend its own funds or

otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of any of its duties hereunder unless the

Owners shall have offered to the Trustee indemnity it deems reasonable, against the costs,

expenses and liabilities that may be incurred. The Trustee shall be entitled to interest on all money

advanced by it hereunder at its prime rate then in effect plus two percent (2%), but not to exceed

the maximum interest rate permitted by the laws of the State.

In accepting the trust hereby created, the Trustee is acting solely as Trustee for the

Owners and not in its individual capacity, and under no circumstances shall the Trustee be liable

in its individual capacity for the obligations evidenced by the Authority Bonds.

The Trustee makes no representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the

compliance with legal requirements of the use contemplated by the Authority or the Community
Facilities District of the funds hereunder including, without limitation, the purchase of the Local
Obligations hereunder; provided, that the Trustee shall not acquire Local Obligations other than

pursuant to the provisions of Sections 5.03 and 5.04.

4152-t602-2584.2

34

Page 238

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



In no event shall the Trustee be responsible or liable for special, indirect, punitive

or consequential loss or damage of any kind whatsoever (including, but not limited to, loss of
profit) irrespective of whether the Trustee has been advised of the likelihood of such loss or

damage and regardless of the form of action.

The Trustee shall not be responsible for the validity or effectiveness or value of any

collateral or security securing any Local Obligation. The Trustee shall not be responsible for the

recording or filing of any document relating hereto or any Local Obligation or of financing
statements (or amendments or continuation statements in connection therewith) or mortgage or of
any supplemental instruments or documents of further assurance as may be required by law in
order to perfect the security interests or lien on or in any collateral or security securing any Local

Obligation. The Trustee shall not be deemed to have made representations as to the security

afforded thereby or as to the validity or sufficiency of any such document, collateral or security.

The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of any Event of Default
hereunder unless and until a Responsible Officer of the Trustee shall have actual knowledge

thereof at its Corporate Trust Office.

The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use or application by the Authority or
the Community Facilities District or any other party of any funds which the Trustee has released

hereunder.

The Trustee shall provide a monthly accounting of all funds held pursuant hereto

to the Authority within fifteen (15) Business Days after the end of such month and shall provide

statements of account for each annual period beginning July 1 and ending June 30, within ninety
(90) days after the end of such period. Such accounting shall show in reasonable detail all financial
transactions during the accounting period and the balance in any accounts and funds (including the

Local Obligations Fund) created hereunder as of the beginning and the close of such accounting
period.

The Trustee shall furnish the Authority periodic cash transaction statements which
include detail for all investment transactions effected by the Trustee or brokers selected by the

Authority. Uponthe Authority's election, such statements will be delivered viathe Trustee's online
service and upon electing such service, paper statements will be provided only upon request. The

Authority waives the right to receive brokerage confirmations of security transactions effected by
the Trustee as they occur, to the extent permitted by law. The Authority further understands that
trade confirmations for securities transactions effected by the Trustee will be available upon

request and atno additional cost and other trade confirmations may be obtained from the applicable
broker.

SECTION 9.03. Merger or Consolidation. Any company into whichthe Trustee may

be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any company resulting from any

merger, conversion or consolidation to which it shall be a party or any company to which the

Trustee may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business shall succeed to

the rights and obligations of the Trustee without the execution or filing of any paper or any further
act, anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding; provided, that such company shall be eligible
under Section 9.02.

4152-1602-2584.2

35

Page 239

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SECTION 9.04. Compensation and Indemnification. The Authority shall pay or

cause the Community Facilities District to pay the Trustee such compensation, as shall be agreed

in writing, for its services rendered hereunder and reimburse the Trustee for reasonable expenses,

disbursements and advances, including attorneys' fees and expenses, incurred by the Trustee in
the performance of its obligations hereunder and with respect to the Local Obligations.

The Authority agrees, to the extent permitted by law, to indemniff the Trustee and

its officers, directors, employees, attorneys and agents for, and to hold it harmless against, any

loss, liability, claim or expense incurred without negligence or willful misconduct on its part

arising out of or in connection with (i) the acceptance or administration of the trusts imposed

hereby, including performance of its duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses of
defending itself against any claims (whether asserted by the City or any other Person) or liability
in connection with the exercise or performance of any of its powers or duties hereunder (including

this Section9.04), (ii) the projects to be financed with the purchase of the Local Obligations; (iii)
the sale of any Authority Bonds or the purchase of the Local Obligations and the carrying out of
any of the transactions contemplated by the Authority Bonds or the Local Obligations; or (iv) any

untrue statement of any material fact or omission to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any

official statement or other disclosure document utilized by the Authority or the Community
Facilities District in connection with the sale of the Authority Bonds or the Local Obligations. The

Authority's obligations hereunder with respect to indemnity of the Trustee and the provision for
its compensation set forth in this Article shall survive and remain valid and binding
notwithstanding the maturity and payment of the Authority Bonds, or the resignation or removal

of the Trustee.

The Trustee shall have no responsibility for or liability in connection with assuring

that all of the procedures or conditions to closing set forth in the contract of purchase for the sale

of the Authority Bonds, that all documents required to be delivered on the closing date to the

parties are actually delivered, except its own responsibility to receive or deliver the proceeds of
the sale, deliver the Authority Bonds and other certificates expressly required to be delivered by it
and its counsel.

The Trustee shall not be responsible for determining or investigating whether any

Local Obligation purchased pursuant to Section 5.03 is a Local Obligation, as defined herein, and

the Trustee may conclusively rely on the Authority's determination and direction in this regard;

ployi,idgd, that the Trustee shall not acquire the Local Obligations other than pursuant to the

provisions of Section 5.03. The Trustee shall be entitled to rely conclusively on the covenants,

representations and warranties of each obligor on any Local Obligation and in the documents and

certificates delivered in connection therewith and each Written Order.

SECTION 9.05. Liabilitv of Trustee. The recitals of facts herein and in the Authority
Bonds contained shall be taken as statements of the Authority or the Community Facilities District,
and the Trustee does not assume any responsibility for the correctness of the same, and does not
make any representations as to the validity or srifficiency hereof or of the Authority Bonds, and

shall not incur any responsibility in respect thereof, other than in connection with the duties or
obligations herein or in the Authority Bonds assigned to or imposed upon it; provided, that the

Trustee shall be responsible for its representations contained in its certificate of authentication on

4152-1602-2584.2

36

Page 240

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



the Authority Bonds. The Trustee shall not be liable in connection with the performance of its
duties hereunder except for its own negligence or willful misconduct. The Trustee (in its individual
or any other capacity) may become the Owner of Authority Bonds with the same rights it would
have if it were not Trustee hereunder, and, to the extent permitted by law, may act as depositary
for and permit any of its officers, directors and employees to act as a member of, or in any other

capacity with respect to, any committee formed to protect the rights of Owners, whether or not
such committee shall represent the Owners of a majority in principal amount of the Authority
Bonds then Outstanding. The Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted
to be taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Owners of a majority in
principal amount of the Outstanding Authority Bonds relating to the time, method and place of
conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or
power conferred upon the Trustee hereunder. Whether or not therein expressly so provided, every
provision hereof or related documents relating to the conduct or affecting the liability of or
affording protection to the Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of this Article.

SECTION 9.06. Right to Relv on Documents: Adverse Effect Determinations. The

Trustee may conclusively rely on and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon

any notice, resolution, requisition, request, consent, order, certificate, report, opinion, bond or
other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the
proper party or parties. The Trustee may consult with counsel of its selection, who may be counsel
of or to the Authority, with regard to legal questions, and the opinion of such counsel shall be fulI
and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken or suffered or omitted by
it hereunder in good faith and in accordance therewith.

Whenever in the administration of the trusts imposed upon it hereby the Trustee

shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or
suffering or omitting any action hereunder, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof
be herein specifically prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by an

Officer's Certificate, and such Officer's Certificate shall be full warrant to the Trustee for any

action taken or suffered or omitted in good faith under the provisions hereof in reliance upon such

Officer's Certificate, but the Trustee may, in lieu thereof, accept other evidence of such matter or

may require such additional evidence as to it may seem reasonable.

The Trustee shall be entitled to advice of counsel of its selection and other
professionals or agents concerning all matters of trust and its duty hereunder, but the Trustee shall
not be answerable or liable for the acts or omissions of any agent, attorney-at-law, certified public
accountant, or other professional if such agent, attorney-at-law, certified public accountant or other
professional was selected by the Trustee with due care.

SECTION 9.07. Preservation and Inspection of Documents. All documents received
by the Trustee under the provisions hereof shall be retained in its possession in accordance with
its record retention policies and shall be subject at all reasonable times upon prior written notice

to the inspection of the Authority, the Owners of not less than a majority of the aggregate principal
amount of the Outstanding Authority Bonds, and their agents and representatives duly authorized
in writing, at reasonable hours and under reasonable conditions.

4152-r602-2s84.2

37

Page 241

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SECTION 9.08. Indemnit)' for Trustee. Before taking any action or exercising any
rights or powers hereunder, the Trustee may require that satisfactory indemnity be furnished to it
for the reimbursement of any and all costs, claims and expenses which it may incur and to
indemnifr it against any and all liability, except liability which may result from its negligence or
willful misconduct, by reason of any action so taken.

ARTICLE X

EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS BY OWNERS AND
PROOF OF OWNERSHIP OF AUTHORITY BONDS

SECTION 10.01. Execution of Instruments: Proof of Ownership. Any request,
direction, consent or other instrument in writing required or permitted hereby to be signed or
executed by Owners may be in any number of concurrent instruments of similar tenor by different
parties and may be signed or executed by such Owners in person or by agent appointed by an
instrument in writing. Proof of the execution of any such instrument and of the ownership of
Authority Bonds shall be sufficient for any purpose hereof and shall be conclusive in favor of the
Trustee with regard to any action taken, suffered or omitted by either of them under such
instrument if made in the following manner:

(a) The fact and date of the execution by any Person of any such instrument may be

proved by the certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who, by the laws thereof, has power to
take acknowledgments within such jurisdiction, to the effect that the Person signing such
instrument acknowledged before him or her the execution thereof, or by an affidavit of a witness
to such execution.

(b) The fact of the ownership of Authority Bonds hereunder by any Owner and the
serial numbers of such Authority Bonds and the date of his ownership of the same shall be proved
by the Bond Register.

Nothing contained in this Article shall be construed as limiting the Trustee to such
proof, it being intended that the Trustee may accept any other evidence ofthe matters in this Article
stated which shall be sufficient. Any request or consent of the Owner shall bind every future
Owner of such Authority Bond and any Authority Bond or Authority Bonds issued in exchange or
substitution therefor or upon the registration of transfer thereof in respect of anything done by the
Trustee in pursuance ofsuch request or consent.

ARTICLE XI

SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENTS

SECTION 11.01. Supplemental Trust Agleements with Consent of Owners. Any
modification or alteration hereof or of the rights and obligations of the Authority, the Community
Facilities District or the Owners may be made with the consent of the Owners of not less than a
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds then Outstanding; provided, that
no such modification or alteration shall be made which will reduce the percentage of aggregate
principal amount of Authority Bonds the consent of the Owners of which is required for any such
modification or alteration or permit the creation by the Authority or the Community Facilities
District of any lien prior to or on parity with the lien hereof upon the Trust Estate or which will

4ts2-1602-2584.2

38

Page 242

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



affect the times, amounts and currency of payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption
premiums, if any, on the Authority Bonds or affect the rights, duties or obligations of the Trustee

without the consent of the party affected thereby.

SECTION I1.02. Supplemental Trust Agreements Without Consent of Owners. The
Authority and the Community Facilities District may, without the consent of the Owners, enter

into a Supplemental Trust Agreement or Supplemental Trust Agreements, which thereafter shall
form a part of this Trust Agreement, for any one or more of the following purposes:

(a) to add to the agreements and covenants of the Authority or the Community
Facilities District contained herein other agreements and covenants thereafter to be observed, or
to surrender any right or power herein reserved to or conferred upon the Authority or the
Community Facilities District; provided, that no such agreement, covenant or surrender shall
materially adversely affect the rights of any Owner;

(b) to cure any ambiguity, to supply any omission or to cure, coffect or supplement any

defect or inconsistent provisions contained herein or in any Supplemental Trust Agreement;

(c) to make any change which does not materially adversely affect the rights of any

Owner;

(d) to grant to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners additional rights, remedies,
powers or authority;

(e) to subject hereto additional collateral or to add other agreements of the Authority
or the Community Facilities District;

(0 to modifu this Trust Agreement or the Authority Bonds to permit qualification
hereof under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or any similar statute at the time in
effect, or to permit the qualification of the Authority Bonds for sale under the securities laws of
any state of the United States of America;

(g) to make any amendments or supplements necessary $ appropriate to preserve or
protect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes under the Code of the
interest on the Authority Bonds or the exemption of interest on the Authority Bonds from State
personal income taxes; or

(h) to evidence the succession of a successor Trustee.

For all purposes of this Section, the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely
upon and shall be fully protected in relying upon an Opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the
extent, if any, to which any action affects the rights hereunder of any Owner.

SECTION 11.03. Trustee Authorized to Enter into Supplemental Trust Agreements.
The Trustee is hereby authorized to enter into any Supplemental Trust Agreement with the
Authority and the Community Facilities District authorized or permitted by the terms hereof, and

to make the further agreements and stipulations which may be therein contained, and for all
purposes of this Section the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely upon and shall be fully

4t52-1602-2584.2

39

Page 243

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



protected in relying upon an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that such Supplemental Trust
Agreement is authorized or permitted by the provisions hereof.

ARTICLE XII

DEFEASANCE

SECTION 12.01. Defeasance. If and when the Authority Bonds secured hereby shall

become due and payable in accordance with their terms or through redemption proceedings as

provided herein, or otherwise, and the whole amount of the interest on and principal of redemption
premiums, if any, so due and payable upon all of the Authority Bonds shall have been paid, or
provision shall have been made for the payment of the same, together with all other sums payable

hereunder by the Authority, including all fees and expenses of the Trustee, then and in that case,

this Trust Agreement and the lien created hereby shall be completely discharged and satisfied and

the Authority and the Community Facilities District shall be released from the respective

agreements, conditions, covenants and terms of the Authority and the Community Facilities
District contained herein, and the Trustee shall assign and transfer all property (in excess of the

amounts required for the foregoing) then held by the Trustee free and clear of any encumbrances

as provided in Section 12.04 and shall execute such documents as may be reasonably required by
the Authority or the Community Facilities District in this regard.

Notwithstanding the satisfaction and discharge hereof, those provisions of this
Trust Agreement relating to the maturity of the Authority Bonds, interest payments and dates

thereof, exchange and transfer of Authority Bonds, replacement of mutilated, destroyed, lost or
stolen Authority Bonds, the safekeeping and cancellation of Authority Bonds, nonpresentment of
Authority Bonds, and the duties of the Trustee in connection with all of the foregoing, shall remain

in effect and shall be binding upon the Trustee and the Owner, and the Trustee shall, subject to
Section 13.06, continue to be obligated to hold in trust any money or investments then held by the
Trustee for the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on
the Authority Bonds, to pay to the Owner of Authority Bonds the funds so held by the Trustee as

and when such payments become due, and those provisions hereof contained in Section 9.04
relating to the compensation and indemnification of the Trustee and in Section 7 .04 relating to the

tax covenants of the Authority and the Community Facilities District shall remain in effect and

shall be binding upon the Trustee, the Authority and the Community Facilities District.

SECTION 12.02. Authoritv Bonds Deemed to Have Been Paid. If any money shall
have been set aside and held by the Trustee for the payment or redemption of any Authority Bonds

and the interest installments therefor at the maturity thereof or date fixed for redemption, such

Authority Bonds shall be deemed to be paid within the meaning and with the effect provided in
Section 12.01. Any Outstanding Bond shall prior to the maturity or redemption date thereof be

deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in Section 12.01 if (a)

in case any Authority Bonds are to be redeemed on any date prior to their maturity, the Authority
shall have given to the Trustee irrevocable instructions to mail notice of redemption of such

Authority Bonds on such redemption date, such notice to be given in accordance with the
provisions of Article IV, (b) there shall have been deposited with the Trustee in escrow either (i)
money in an amount which shall be sufficient to pay when due the interest on and principal of and

redemption premiums, if any, due and to become due on such Authority Bonds on and prior to the

4152-t602:2584.2

40

Page 244

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



date scheduled for redemption or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, or (ii) noncallable

Government Obligations the principal of and the interest on which when due, and without any
reinvestment thereof, will provide money which, together with the money, if any, deposited with
or held by the Trustee at the same time, shall be sufficient as verified by a report of a nationally
recognized independent certified public accountant to pay when due the interest on and principal
of and redemption premiums, if any, due and to become due on such Authority Bonds on and prior
to the date fixed for redemption or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and (c) in the event

any of such Authority Bonds are not to be redeemed within the next succeeding sixty (60) days,

the Authority shall have given the Trustee irrevocable instructions to mail, as soon as practicable

in the same manner as a notice of redemption is mailed pursuant to Article IV, a notice to the

Owners of such Authority Bonds that the deposit required bV (b) above has been made with the

Trustee and that such Authority Bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with this
Section and stating the maturity dates or redemption dates upon which money is to be available
for the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such

Authority Bonds. Neither the securities nor money deposited with the Trustee pursuant to this
Section nor interest or principal payments on any such securities shall be withdrawn or used for
any purpose other than, and shall be held in trust for, the payment of the interest on and principal
of and redemption premiums, if any, on such Authority Bonds; ryldgd, that any cash received
from such interest or principal or interest payments on such obligations deposited with the Trustee,

if not then needed for such pu{pose, shall, to the extent practicable and at the written direction of
the Authority, be reinvested in Government Obligations, such written direction to specif which
Government Obligations are to be invested in, maturing at times and in amounts, together with the
other money and payments with respect to Government Obligations then held by the Trustee

pursuant to this Section, sufficient to pay when due the interest on and principal of and redemption
premiums, if any, to become due on such Authority Bonds on and prior to such redemption date

or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and interest earned from such reinvestments shall,

upon receipt by the Trustee of a Written Order so directing, be paid over to the Authority as

received by the Trustee free and clear of any trust, lien or pledge.

SECTION 12.03 for Particular Except as otherwise
provided in Section 12.02 or 13.06, the amounts held by the Trustee for the payment of the interest

on or principal of the redemption premiums, if any, or the interest due on any date with respect to
particular Authority Bonds shall, on and after such date and pending such payment, be set aside

on its books and held in trust by it solely for the Owners entitled thereto.

SECTION 12.04. Effect of Defeasance of Authoriff Bonds. Notwithstanding any
other provision hereof, in the event that the Authority Bonds are defeased and the obligations
hereunder are discharged pursuant to this Article, the Trustee shall transfer all property and money
held by the Trustee (including, without limitation, the Local Obligations), to or upon the written
order of the Authority.

ARTICLE XIII

MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 13.01. Dissolution of Authoritv. In the event of the dissolution of the
Authority, all the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained herein by or on behalf

4r52-t602-2s84.2

4I

Page 245

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



of, or for the benefit of, the Authority shall bind or inure to the benefit of the successors of the

Authority from time to time and any officer, board, commission, agency or instrumentality to

whom or to which any power or duty of the Authority shall be transferred.

SECTION 13.02. Parties Interested Herein. Except as otherwise specifically provided
herein, nothing contained herein, expressed or implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer

upon any Person other than the Authority, the Community Facilities District, the Trustee and the

Owners any right, remedy or claim under or by reason hereof, this Trust Agreement being intended

to be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Authority, the Community Facilities District, the
Trustee and the Owners.

SECTION 13.03. Notice. All written notices to be given hereunder to the Authority
or the Community Facilities District or the Trustee shall be given by mail or electronic means to
the party entitled thereto at its address set forth below, or at such other address as such party may
provide to the other parties in writing from time to time, namely:

If to the Authority Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Attention: Treasurer
Fax: 916-985-0870
Email : financetreasury@folsom.ca.us

If to the Community Facilities District:
City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Attention: Finance Director
Fax: 916-985-0870
Email : fi nancetreasury@folsom.ca.us

If to the
Trustee:

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association
One California Street, Suite 1000
SanFrancisco, CA 94ttl
Attention: Global Corporate Trust
Fax 415-677-3769
Email : kar en.lei@usbank. c om

Each such notice, statement, demand, consent, approval, authorization, offer,
designation, request or other communication hereunder shall be deemed delivered to the party to
whom it is addressed (a) if personally served or delivered, upon delivery, @) if given by electronic
communication, upon the sender's receipt of an appropriate answer back or other written
acknowledgment or confirmation of receipt of the entire notice, approval, demand, report or other
communication, (c) if given by first class mail deposited with the United States mail postage

prepaid, seventy-two (72) hours after such notice is deposited with the United States mail, (d) if
given by overnight courier, with courier charges prepaid, twenty-four (24) hours after delivery to

4152-1602-2584.2

42

Page 246

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



said overnight courier, or (e) if given by any other means, upon delivery at the address specified
in this Section.

In case, by reason of the suspension of or irregularities in regular mail service, it
shall be impractical to mail to the Owners notice of any event when such notice is required to be

given pursuant to any provision hereof, then any manner of giving such notice as the Authority
shall direct and not objected to by the Trustee shall be deemed to be a sufficient giving of such

notice.

The Trustee shall have the rightto accept and act upon instructions, including funds
transfer instructions ("Instructions") given pursuant to this Trust Agreement and delivered using
Electronic Means ("Electronic Means" shall mean the following communications methods: e-

mail, facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission containing applicable authorization
codes, passwords andlor authentication keys issued by the Trustee, or another method or system

specified by the Trustee as available for use in connection with its services hereunder); provided,

however, that the Authority shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing officers
with the Authority to provide such Instructions and containing specimen signatures of such

officers, which incumbency certificate shall be amended by the Authority whenever a person is to
be added or deleted from the tisting. If the Authority elects to give the Trustee Instructions using

Electronic Means and the Trustee in its reasonable judgment elects to act upon such Instructions,
the Trustee's understanding of such Instructions shall be deemed controlling. The Community
Facilities District understands and agrees that the Trustee cannot determine the identity of the

actual sender of such Instructions and that the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively presume

without liability that directions that purport to have been sent by an officer listed on the
incumbency certificate provided to the Trustee have been sent by such officer. The Authority shall

be responsible for ensuring that only officers transmit such Instructions to the Trustee and that the
Authority and all officers are solely responsible to safeguard the use and confidentiality of
applicable user and authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys upon receipt by the
Authority. The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, costs claims, or expenses arising directly
or indirectly from the Trustee's reliance upon and compliance with such Instructions
notwithstanding the factthat such directions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written
instruction. The Authority agrees: (i) to assume all risks arising out of the use of Electronic Means

to submit Instructions to the Trustee, including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on
unauthorized Instructions, and the risk of interception and misuse by third parties; (ii) that it is
fully informed of the protections and risks associated with the various methods of transmitting
Instructions to the Trustee and that there may be more secure methods of transmitting Instructions
than the method(s) selected by the Authority; (iii) that the security procedures (if any) to be

followed in connection with its transmission of Instructions provide to it a commercially
reasonable degree of protection in light of its particular needs and circumstances; and (iv) to notifu
the Trustee in writing immediately upon learning of any compromise or unauthorized use of the

security procedures.

SECTION 13.04. Holidays. If the date for making any payment or the last date for
performance of any act or the exercising of any right, as provided herein, shall not be a Business

Day, such payment may be made or act performed or right exercised on the next succeeding

Business Day with the same force and effect as if done on the nominal date provided in this Trust
Agreement, and no interest shall accrue for the period from and after such nominal date.

41s2-1602-2584.2

43

Page 247

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SECTION 13.05. Limitation of Liability. The Authority shall not be obligated to

make any payments required hereunder or under any Bond, or be deemed to incur any liability
hereunder or by reason hereof or arising out of any of the transactions contemplated hereby,

payable from any funds or assets other than the Trust Estate as provided herein.

SECTION 13.06. Unclaimed Monev. Anything contained herein to the contrary

notwithstanding, any money held by the Trustee in trust for the payment and discharge of the

interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on any Bond which remains unclaimed

for two (2) years after the date when such amounts have become payable, if such money was held

by the Trustee on such date, or for two (2) years after the date of deposit of such money if deposited

with the Trustee after the date such amounts have become payable, shall be paid by the Trustee to

the Authorrty as its absolute property free from trust, and the Trustee shall thereupon be released

and discharged with respect thereto and the Owners shall look only to the Authority for the

payment of such amounts; provided, that before being required to make any such payment to the

Authority, the Trustee shall, at the expense and written direction of the Authority, give notice by

first class mail to the Owners that such money remains unclaimed and that after a date named in
such notice, which date shall not be less than sixty (60) days after the date of giving such notice,

the balance of such money then unclaimed will be returned to the Authority.

SECTION 13.07. Governing Law. This Trust Agreement shall be governed as to

validity, construction and performance by the laws of the State.

SECTION 13.08. Severabilitv of Invalid Provisions. If any clause, provision or

section hereof is held illegal or invalid by any court, the invalidity of such clause, provision or

section shall not affect any of the remaining clauses, provisions or sections hereof, and this Trust

Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid clause, provision or section

had not been contained herein.

SECTION 13.09. Counterparts and Electronic Execution. This Trust Agreement may

be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall

be an original; but all of which such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same

instrument. The exchange of copies of this Trust Agreement and of signature pages by facsimile

or PDF transmission shall constitute effective execution and delivery of this Trust Agreement as

to the parties hereto and may be used in lieu of the original Trust Agreement and signature pages

for all purposes. Each party agrees that the electronic signatures, whether digital or encrypted, of
the parties included in this Trust Agreement are intended to authenticate this writing and to have

the same force and effect as manual signatures. Electronic signature means any electronic sound,

symbol, or process attached to or logically associated with a record and executed and adopted by

aparty with the intent to sign such record, including facsimile or email electronic signatures.

SECTION 13.10. U.S.A. Patriot Act. The parties hereto acknowledge that in
accordance with Section326 of the U.S.A. Patriot Act, the Trustee, like all financial institutions

and in order to help fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering, is required to obtain,

veri$', and record information that identifies each person or legal entity that establishes a

relationship or opens an account with the Trustee. The parties to this Trust Agreement agree that
they will provide the Trustee with such information as it may request in order for the Trustee to

satisff the requirements of the U.S.A. Patriot Act.

41s2-t602-2584.2

44

Page 248

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SECTION 13.1 1 . Force Majeure. In no event shall the Trustee be responsible or liable
for any failure or delay in the performance of its obligations hereunder arising out of or caused by,

directly or indirectly, forces beyond its control, including, without limitation, strikes, work
stoppages, accidents, acts of war or terrorism, pandemics, epidemics, quarantine restrictions,

recognized public emergencies, civil or military disturbances, nuclear or natural catastrophes or
acts of God, and intemrptions, loss or malfunctions of utilities, communications or computer
(software and hardware) services; it being understood that the Trustee shall use reasonable efforts
which are consistent with acceped practices in the banking industry to resume performance as

soon as practicable under the circumstances.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

4152-1602-2584.2

45

Page 249

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Authority has caused this Trust Agreement to be

executed by the Treasurer, the Community Facilities District has caused this Trust Agreement to

be executed in its rurme by the Finance Director of the City of Folsom, and the Trustee has caused

this Trust Agreement to be executed by its authorized signatory, all as of the day and year first
above written.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

By
Treasurer

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMI.JNITY FACILITIES
DrsTRrcr No. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

Finance Director of the City of Folsom

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,

as Trustee

By
Authorized Signatory

By

4t52-1602-2s84.2

Signature Page to Trust Agreement

Page 250

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



EXHIBIT A

FORM OF AUTHORITY BONDS

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Unless this Authority Bond (as hereinafter defined) is presented by an authorized representative

of The Depository Trust Company, a New York corporation ("DTC"), to the Trustee for
registration of transfer, exchange, or payment, and any Authority Bond issued is registered in the

name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is requested by anauthorized representative of DTC
(and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized
representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE
OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner
hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3 SPECIAL TAX REVENUE
BOND, SERIES 2022

No. R- $

INTEREST
RATE

MATURITY
DATE

DATED
DATE CUSIP

% September 1,20- August | 1,2022 3444141 l

Registered Owner: CEDE & CO

Principal Sum: DOLLARS

The Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, a joint exercise of powers agency

established pursuant to the laws of the State of California (the "Authority"), for value received
hereby promises to pay to the registered owner specified above, or registered assigns, on the
maturity date set forth above (subject to any right of prior redemption hereinafter mentioned) the
principal sum set forth above and to pay interest thereon at the interest rate per alrnum set forth
above. The interest on this Authority Bond will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year
consisting of twelve (12) 30-day calendar months and will be payable on March 1 and September
1 in each year (each an "Interest Payment Date"), commencing on [September l, 2022), and is

4152-1602-2584.2

A-1

Page 251

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



payable by check, mailed by first class mail, on each Interest Payment Date to the registered owner

whose name appears on the bond register maintained by the Corporate Trust Office (as defined in

the Trust Agreanent hereinafter referred to) of U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association

(together *ith utry successor as Trustee under the Trust Agreement hereinafter mentioned, the
;Tiustee") as of ihe close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding such

Interest Payment Date (the "Record Date"), except with respect to defaulted interest for which a

special record date will be established; provided, that in the case of a registered owner of one

million dollars ($1,000,000) or more in aggregate principal amount of Authority Bonds, upon

written request of such registered owner to the Trustee received not later than the Record Date,

such interest shall be paidon the Interest Payment Date in immediately available funds by wire

transfer to an account in a bank or trust company or savings bank that is a member of the Federal

Reserve System and that is located in the continental United States of America. The principal

hereof and the redemption premium hereon, if any, are payable upon presentation and surrender

hereof at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee. Both the interest on and principal of and

redemption premium, if any, hereon are payable in lawful money of the United States of America.

eil capitaliied terms used herein but not otherwise defined shall have the meanings contained in

the hereinafter mentioned Trust Agreement.

The Authority and the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively treat the registered

owner of this Authority Bond as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment

as herein provided and for all other pu{poses, and the Authority and the Trustee shall not be

affected by notice to the contrary.

This Authority Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the Authority

designated as the "Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series

2022" (the "Authority Bonds") issued in the aggregate principal amount of dollars

($ pursuant to the provisions relating to the joint exercise of powers found in Chapter

5 of Division 7 of Title I of the California Govemment Code, including the Marks-Roos Local

Bond Pooling Act of 1985 (being California Government Code Sections 6584-6594) as amended

and supplemented (the "Act"), and pursuant to a trust agreement executed and entered into as of
Augusi-1,2022,by and among the Authority, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District

No. Z: (Folsom Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") and the Trustee (the "Trust

Agreement"). The Authority Bonds are issued for the purpose of purchasing Local Obligations,

and reference is hereby made to the Trust Agreement (a copy of which is on file at the Corporate

Trust Office of the Trustee) and all trust agreements supplemental thereto and to the Act for a

description of the pu{poses thereof, of the rights thereunder of the registered owner' of the nature

and extent of the security for the Authority Bonds and of the rights, duties and immunities of the

Trustee, of the obligations of the Community Facilities District, and of the rights and obligations

of the Authority thereunder, to all the provisions of which Trust Agreement the registered owner

of this Authority Bond, by acceptance hereof, assents and agrees'

The Authority Bonds and the interest thereon and any redemption premiums

thereon are special, limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from the Trust Estate and

are secured Uy ttre Trust Estate, including amounts held in the accounts and funds (other than the

Rebate Fund) established pursuant to the Trust Agreement (including proceeds of the sale of the

Authority Bonds), subject only to the provisions of the Trust Agreement permifiing the application

4152-1602-2584.2

A-2

Page 252

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the Trust Agreement. No

member or officer of the Authority, nor any person executing this Authority Bond, shall in any

event be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance of this

Authority Bond.

THE AUTHORITY BONDS ARE SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF

THE AUTHOzuTY, PAYABLE FROM, AND SECURED AS TO THE PAYMENT OF THE

PRINCIPAL OF AND ANY REDEMPTION PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE

AUTHORITY BONDS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR TERMS AND THE TERMS OF THE

TRUST AGREEMENT, SOLELY FROM THE TRUST ESTATE. THE AUTHORITY BONDS

DO NOT CONSTITUTE A CHARGE AGAINST THE GENERAL CREDIT OF THE

AUTHOzuTY OR ITS MEMBERS, AND LTNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE

AUTHORITY BE OBLIGATED TO PAY PRINCIPAL OF OR ANY REDEMPTION

PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE AUTHORITY BONDS EXCEPT FROM THE

TRUST ESTATE. NONE OF THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, THE CITY OF

FOLSOM (THE "CITY"), THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA NOR ANY PUBLIC AGENCY
(OTHER THAN THE AUTHORITY) NOR ANY MEMBER OF THE COMMLINITY

FACILITIES DISTzuCT OR THE AUTHORITY IS OBLIGATED TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL

OF OR ANY REDEMPTION PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE AUTHOzuTY BONDS,

AND NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE

COMMLINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, THE CITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY
PUBLIC AGENCY THEREOF OR ANY MEMBER OF THE AUTHORITY (INCLUDING THE

CITY) OR THE COMMLTNITY FACILITIES DISTzuCT IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT

OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR ANY REDEMPTION PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE

AUTHORITY BONDS, AND NEITHER THE PRINCIPAL OF OR ANY REDEMPTION

PREMIUMS ON OR INTEREST ON THE AUTHORITY BONDS CONSTITUTES A DEBT,

LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION OF THE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT, THE CITY,

THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY PUBLIC AGENCY (OTHER THAN THE

AUTHOzuTY) OR ANY MEMBER OF THE AUTHORITY.

The Authority Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Authority prior to

their respective maturity dates as a whole or in part on any date on or after September 1,201--1,

from any source of available funds other than Minimum Sinking Fund Payments and Special Tax

Prepayments, upon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, at the following redemption prices

(comiuted upon the principal amount of the Authority Bonds or portions thereof called for

redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

103% if redeemed on any date on or after September l, 201 l
through August 31,201 l;

t02% if redeemed on any date from September 1,201 I through

August 31,201 l;

l0I% if redeemed on any date from September 1, 201 I through

August 31,201 l; and

100% if redeemed on September 1, 20[J and any date thereafter.

4152-1602-2584.2

A-3

Page 253

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The Authority Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption by the Authority prior

to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or in part on any Interest Payment Date on or after

fSeptember l, 20227, solely from funds derived from extraordinary redemption of Local

Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments, at the following redemption prices (computed upon

the principal amount of the Authority Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption) together

with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

103% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on or after
September 1,201 l through March 1,201--l;

I02% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on September 1,

201 I and March 1,201 1;

rcL% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on September 1,

201)and March 1,201 1; and

100%if redeemed on September 1,201 ] and any Interest Payment

Date thereafter.

The Authority Bonds maturing on September 1, 201 l, are subject to mandatory

redemption by the Authority prior to their stated maturity date in part on September 1 of each year

ott utrd after September l, 201 l,to and including September 1,201 1; and the Authority Bonds

maturing on September 1, 20[ l, are subject to mandatory redemption by the Authority prior to

their stated maturity date in part on September I of each year on and after September 1,201 f,to
and including September 1, 201_], upon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, from (and in the

amount of) the Minimum Sinking Fund Payment due and payable for the Authority Bonds on each

such date, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon

to the date of redemption, without premium.

Notice of redemption of any Authority Bonds shall be mailed by first class mail, in
a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, at least thirty (30) but not more than sixty (60) days before the

date fixed for redemption, to the registered owners of such Authority Bonds (or portions thereof)

so called for redemption, at their respective addresses as the same shall last appear on the Bond

Register maintained by the Trustee; plevidgd, that neither the failure of a registered owner to

r"""iu" notice of redemption of Authority Bonds nor any error in such notice shall affect the

validity of the proceedings for the redemption of Authority Bonds.

Any notice of optional redemption under the Trust Agreement may be rescinded by

written notice given by the Authority to the Trustee no later than three (3) Business Days prior to

the date specified for redemption. The Trustee shall give notice of rescission of the notice of
optional redemption or non-satisfaction of any conditions specified in the notice of optional

redemption as soon as practicable to the same parties and in the same manner as the notice of
redemption was given.

The Authority Bonds are issuable as fully registered bonds in denominations of five

thousand dollars ($5,000) or any integral multiple in excess thereof. This Authority Bond may be

transferred or exchanged by the registered owner hereof, in person or by an attorney duly

authorized in writing, but only in the manner, subject to the limitations and upon payment of the

4rsz-r602:25s4.2 
A-4

Page 254

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



charges, if any, provided in the Trust Agreement, and upon surrender and cancellation of this
Authority Bond. Upon such transfer or exchange, a new Authority Bond or Authority Bonds, of
authorized denominations, for the same aggregate principal amount, interest rate and maturity will
be issued to the transferee in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement. The Trustee

is not required to register the transfer of, or to exchango, ffiy Authority Bond during the period
established by the Trustee for selection of Authority Bonds for redemption or to register the

transfer of, or to exchange, any Authority Bond which has been selected for redemption pursuant

to the Trust Agreement.

The Trust Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Authorrty and of the

registered owners of the Authority Bonds may be modified or amended from time to time and at

any time (and in certain cases without the consent of such registered owners) in the manner, to the

extent and upon the terms provided in the Trust Agreement.

The Trust Agreement contains provisions permitting the Authority to make

provisions for the payment of the interest on, and the principal and premium, if any, of, any of the

Authority Bonds so that such Authority Bonds shall no longer be deemed to be Outstanding under

the terms of the Trust Agreement.

It is hereby certified and recited that any and all conditions, things and acts required

to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this
Authority Bond do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner

as required by the Constitution and laws of the State of California, including the Act, and that the

amount of this Authority Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the Authority, does not
exceed any limit prescribed by the Constitution and laws of the State of California, including the

Act, and is not in excess of the amount of Authority Bonds permitted to be issued under the Trust
Agreement.

This Authority Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Trust Agreement,

or become valid or obligatory for any pulpose, until the certificate of authentication hereon

endorsed shall have been manually signed by an authorized signatory of the Trustee.

4t52-1602-2s84.2

A-5
Page 255

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority has caused this

Authority Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the manual or facsimile signature

of its Treasurer and attested by the facsimile signature of its Secretary, all as of August I l, 2022.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

By
Treasurer

Attest:

Secretary

4t52-t602-2584.2

A-6
Page 256

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This is one of the Authority Bonds described in the within-mentioned Trust

Agreement, which has been authenticated on the date below.

Dated:August | 1,2022

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association
as Trustee

By
Authorized Signatory

4152-1602-2584.2

A-7
Page 257

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



FORM OF ASSIGNMENT

For value received, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto
this registered Authority Bond and irrevocably constitutes

attomey to transfer the same on the books of theand appoints
Trustee, with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

NOTE:

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED BY:

Signatures must be guaranteed by an "eligible guarantor institution" meeting the

requirements of membership or participation in the Security Transfer Agent
Medallion Program ("STAMP") or such other "signature guarantee program" as

may be determined in substitution for STAMP, all in accordance withthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Social Security Number, Taxpayer Identification Number or other Identiffing
Number of Assignee:

4152-1602-2584.2

A-8
Page 258

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 4

Page 259

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



OH&S DRAFT
6127/22

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH)

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,

as Trustee

INDENTURE

Dated as of August 1,2022

Relating to the

City of Folsom
Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement AreaNo. 3

Special Tax Bonds

and

4t4t-6633-1704.3 Page 260

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS; EQUAL SECURITY

Page

2

t4

......... 15

.........16

t8

Section 1.01.

Section 1.02.

Definitions ......

Equal Security

ARTICLE II

AUTHORIZATION AND ISSUANCE OF BONDS

Section 2.01.

Section 2.02.

Section 2.03.

Section 2.04.

Section 2.05.

Section 2.06.

Section 2.07.

Section 2.08.

Section 2.09.

Section 2.10.

Section 2.11.

Section 2.12.

Section 2.13.

Section 2.14.

Section 2.15.

Section 2.16.

Authorization and Purpose of Bonds.'.

Additional Bonds; Subordinate Bonds

Procedure for the Issuance of Additional Bonds.'.

Date and Maturity Dates of and Interest Rates on and Minimum Sinking

Fund Account Payments for Bonds

Interest Payment Dates of Bonds ..

Form of Bonds...

Payment of Bonds.........

Execution of Bonds

Transfer and Exchange of Bonds ........'......

Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Bonds

Registration of the Bonds

CUSIP Numbers....

Application of Proceeds of Sale of 2022 Bonds.......

Capitalized Interest Account

Acquisition and Construction Fund

Costs of Issuance Fund..........

ARTICLE III

REDEMPTION OR EXCHANGE OF BONDS

Redemption Prices and Terms of Bonds...

Selection of Bonds for Redemption...'.'....

Notice of Redemption of Bonds...'..........

Partial Redemption of Bonds.'........'..... i.

Section 3.01.

Section 3.02.

Section 3.03.

Section 3.04.

Section 3.05.

.....26

.....27

.....27

.....28

.....28

4t41-6633-1704.3

Effect of Redemption of Bonds.............

Page 261

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

ARTICLE IV

SPECIAL TAX

Section 4.01. Deposit of Proceeds of the Special Tax in the Community Facilities Fund

and Transfer to the Special Tax Fund..

Section 4.02. Allocation of Money in the Special Tax Fund

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS OF THE COMMI.]NITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

Page

28

29

Section 5.01.

Section 5.02.

Section 5.03.

Section 5.04.

Section 5.05.

Section 5.06.

Section 5.07.

Section 5.08.

Section 5.09.

Section 5.10.

Section 5.1 1 .

Section 6.01.

Section 6.02.

Section 6.03.

Section 6.04.

Punctual Payment and Performance .......

Against Indebtedness and Encumbrances

Against Federal Income Taxation

Payment of Claims

Expense Budgets

Accounting Records; Financial Statements and Other Reports ..

Protection of Security and Rights of Holders.

Payment of Governmental Charges and Compliance with Governmental

Regulations.

Levy and Collection of the Special Tax

Foreclosure of Special Tax Liens

Further Assurances

.30

3l

31

32

32

32

JJ

Section 7.01.

Section 7.02.

ARTICLE VI

THE TRUSTEE

The Trustee..........

Liability of the Trustee.....

Compensation and Indemnification of the Trustee .

Notice to the Trustee

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT OF OR SUPPLEMENT TO THE INDENTURE

Procedure for Amendment of or Supplement to the Indenture ..

......., JJ

....,,..34

........34

........34

..............35

.............. 36

..............37

..............38

38

40

ll
4t4t-6633-t704.3

Disqualified Bonds

Page 262

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Section 7.03.

Section 7.04.

Section 8.01.

Section 8.02.

Section 8.03.

TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Page

Endorsement or Replacement of Bonds After Amendment or Supplement......40

Amendment or Supplement by Mutual Consent

ARTICLE VIII

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF HOLDERS

40

40

4l

Section 9.01.

Section 9.02.

Section 10.02.

Section 10.03.

Section 10.04.

Section 10.05.

Section 10.06.

Section 10.07.

Section 10.08.

Section 10.09.

Section 10.10.

Section 10.1 l.

Section 10.12.

Section 10.13.

Section 10.14.

Section 10.15.

Section 10.16.

Events of Default and Remedies of Holders

Non-Waiver

Remedies Not Exclusrve..

ARTICLE IX

DEFEASANCE

Discharge of the Bonds

Unclaimed Money .......

Successor Is Deemed Included in All References to Predecessor..

Execution of Documents bY Holders

Deposit and Investment of Money in Accounts and Funds.......'..

Waiver of Personal LiabilitY

Acquisition of Bonds by Community Facilities District...

Content of Certificates and Reports

Maintenance of Accounts and Funds

Article and Section Headings, Gender and References..".......

Partial Invalidity

Execution in Counterparts and Electronic Execution...

Governing Law

Notices

U.S.A. Patriot Act............'.

......42

......43

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.01. Liability of Community Facilities District Limited to Proceeds of the

Special Tax and Certain Other Funds

Benefits of the Indenture Limited to Certain Parties

....47

....47

44

44

45

45

45

46

46

46

47

47

48

48

49

49

4t41-6633-1704.3

Force Majeure....

lll

Page 263

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



TABLE OF CONTENTS
(continued)

Section I0.17. Effective Date of the Indenture

EXHIBIT A FORM OF BONDS....

Page
.. 50

A-1

4t4r-6633-1704.3

lv

Page 264

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



INDENTURE

This Indenture (the "Indenture"), dated as of August 1,2022, by and between the

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), organized and existing

under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the "Community Facilities District"),
and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, a national banking association duly

organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of America and

authorized to accept and execute trusts of the character herein set forth, as trustee (the "Trustee");

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Folsom (the "City") on May 26,2020,
duly adopted its Resolution No. 10435, establishing the Community Facilities District and

designating various improvement areas therein, including Improvement Area No. 3 (the

"Improvement Area") for the purpose of providing for the financing of certain public facilities and

certain public services in and for such Community Facilities District, and also duly adopted its

Resolution No. 10768 on December 14,202I, whereby the boundaries of the Improvement Area,

the rate and method of apportionment and manner of collection of the Special Tax for the

Improvement Area and the appropriations limit and maximum bonded indebtedness for the

Improvement Area were amended; and

WHEREAS, at an election held in the Community Facilities District on December

14,2021, the qualified electors within the Improvement Area duly authorized the issuance of
fifteen million seven hundred fifty thousand dollars ($15,750,000) principal amount of special tax

bonds for the Improvement Area for the purpose of financing such public facilities and services;

and

WHEREAS, the qualified electors in the Improvement Area at such election

additionally authorized the levy and collection of a special tax to be used for the pu{pose, among

others, of paying the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such special

tax bonds; and

WHEREAS, the Community Facilities District has determined to issue

dollars ($IPAR AMOUNTI) principal amount of such special tax bonds for the

Improvement Area (the "2022 Bonds" and, together with
the "Bonds") pursuant hereto and to secure the Bonds in

any Additional Bonds (defined herein),
the manner provided herein, and for the

purpose of paying for such public facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") has agreed

to purchase the Bonds pursuant to a Local Obligation Purchase Contract between the Authority
and the Community Facilities District dated [SALE DATE], with a portion of the proceeds of the

Authority's City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement

Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 (the "Authority Bonds"); and

WHEREAS, all things necessary to cause the Bonds, when executed by the

Community Facilities District and authenticated by the Trustee and delivered as provided herein,

to be legal and valid special tax obligations of the Community Facilities District enforceable in
accordance with their terms, and to constitute the Indenture a valid agreement for the uses and

4t4t-6633-1704.3 Page 265

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



purposes herein set forth in accordance with its terms, have been done and taken, and the execution

*d d.liu.ry hereof and the execution and delivery of the Bonds, subject to the terms hereof, have

in all respects been duly authorized;

Now, THEREFORE, THE INDENTURE WITNESSETH, that in ordcr tO SECUTE

the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on all Bonds at

unyii-" issued and Outstanding hereunder according to their tenor, and to secure the observance

and performance of all the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms therein and herein set

forth, and to declare the conditions and terms upon and subject to which the Bonds are to be issued

and received, and in consideration of the premises and of the mutual agreements and covenants

contained herein and ofthe purchase and acceptance ofthe Bonds by the respective Holders thereof

from time to time, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt whereof is hereby

acknowledged, the Community Facilities District does hereby agree and covenant with the Trustee,

for the benefit of the respective Holders from time to time of the Bonds, as follows:

ARTICLE I

D

Section 1.01. Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, all terms defined

in this Section shall for all purposes hereof and of any Supplemental Indenture and of the Bonds

and of any certificate, opinion, report, request or other document mentioned herein or therein have

the meanings defined herein, the following definitions to be equally applicable to both the singular

and plural forms of any of the terms defined herein:

2022Bonds

*2022 Bonds" means the dollars ($[PAR AMOLTNT]) aggregate

U

principal amount of City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (F
i-prou"-"nt Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022, at any time Outstanding

are executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the provisions hereof.

olsom Ranch)
hereunder that

Accountant's Report

"Accountant's Report" means a report signed by an Independent Certified Public

Accountant.

Acquisition and Construction Fund

"Acquisition and Construction Fund" means the City of Folsom Community

Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement AreaNo. 3 Special Tax Bonds Acquisition

and Construction Fund established pursuant to Section 2.15.

Additional Bonds

"Additional Bonds" mean Bonds other than the 2022 Bonds issued hereunder in

accordance with the provisions of Sections 2.02 and2.03.

2
4141-6633-1704.3 Page 266

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Annual Debt Service

"Annual Debt Service" means for each Bond Year, the sum of (a) the interest due

on the Outstanding Bonds in such Bond Year, assuming that the Bonds are retired as scheduled

(including by reason of Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments), and (b) the principal of the

Bonds due in such Bond Year (including by reason of Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments).

Authoritv

"Authority" means the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority and its successors and

assigns.

Authority Bonds

"Authorrty Bonds" means the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax

Revenue Bonds, Series 2022.

Authority Trusleq

"Authorrty Trustee" means U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as

trustee under the Trust Agreement.

Average Annual Debt Service

ooAverage Annual Debt Service" means the average Debt Service on the Bonds

payable in the current Bond Year and in all future Bond Years during which any Bonds are

scheduled to be Outstanding, all as determined by the Community Facilities District under the

Code and specified in writing to the Trustee.

Bond Reserve Account

"Bond Reserve Account" means each such account within the Bond Reserve Fund

referred to by that name, including the Series 2022Bond Reserve Account.

Bond Reserve Fund

"Bond Reserve Fund" means the fund within the Special Tax Fund refened to by

that name established pursuant to Section 4.02.The Bond Reserve Fund will be made up solely of
the Bond Reserve Account(s) established therein.

Bonds. Serial Bonds. Term Bonds

"Bonds" means 2022Bonds and any Additional Bonds'

"serial Bonds" means the Bonds for which no Minimum Sinking Fund Account

Payments are established.

J
4t4t-6633-1704.3 Page 267

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ooTerm Bonds" means the Bonds which are redeemable or payable on or before their

specified maturity dates from Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments established for the

puipose of redeeming or paying such Bonds on or before their specified maturity dates.

Bond Year

"Bond Year" means the twelve-month period terminating on September I of each

year; providgd, that the first Bond Year shall cornmence on the date of the execution and initial

delivery of the Bonds.

Business Day

ooBusiness Day" means any day other than (i) a Saturday or a Sunday or (ii) a day

on which commercial banks in New York, New York, or the city in which the Corporate Trust

Office of the Trustee is located, are closed.

Caoitalized Interest Account

"Capitalized Interest Account" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds Capitalized Interest

Account established pursuant to Section 2.14.

Certificate of the Citv

"Certificate of the City" means an instrument in writing signed by the City Manager

or the Finance Director, or by any other officer of the City duly authorized by the City Council for

that purpose.

eiry

'ocity" means the City of Folsom, a charter city and municipal corporation duly

organized and existing under and by virtue of its charter and the Constitution and laws of the State

of California.

Citv Clerk

"City Clerk" means the City Clerk of the City.

City Council

"City Council" means the City Council of the City.

Citv Manager

"City Manager" means the City Manager of the City.

4
414t-6633-1704.3

Page 268

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Code

'oCode" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and the regulations issued

thereunder from time to time, and in this regard reference to any particular section of the Code

shall include reference to any successor to such section of the Code.

Communitv F ties District

"Community Facilities District" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), a community facilities district duly organized and existing in the

City under and by virtue of the Law.

Communitv Facilities Fund

"Community Facilities Fund" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Community Facilities Fund established

pursuant to Section 4.02.

Corporate Trust Office

"Corporate Trust Offrce" means the office of the Trustee in California designated

in Section 6.01 at which at any particular time its corporate trust business shall be administered.

Costs of Issuance

"Costs of Issuance" means all costs and expenses payable by or reimbursable to the

City or the Community Facilities District that are related to the authorization, sale, execution and

initial delivery of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, costs of preparation and reproduction

of documents, rating agency fees, filing fees, initial fees and charges of the Trustee (including fees

and expenses ofits counsel),legal fees and charges and fees and charges ofother consultants and

professionals, together with all costs for preparation of the Bonds, and any other cost or expense

in connection with the authorization, sale, execution and initial delivery of the Bonds.

Costs of Issuance Fund

"Costs of Issuance Fund" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities District

No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund

established pursuant to Section 2.16.

Debt Service

'oDebt Service" means, for any Bond Year, the sum of (1) the interest payable

during such Bond Year on all Outstanding Bonds, assuming that all Outstanding Serial Bonds are

retired as scheduled and that all Outstanding Term Bonds are redeemed or paid as scheduled at the

times of and in amounts equal to the sum of all Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments, plus

(2) the principal amount of all Outstanding Serial Bonds maturing by their terms in such Bond

Year, pius (3) the Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payment required to be deposited in the

Sinking Fund Subaccount in such Bond Year.

5
4141-6633-1704.3

Page 269

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Developed Property

'oDeveloped Property" means all Taxable Property for which a building permit for

new construction has been issued as of the date of calculation.

Effective Tax Evaluation Minimum F Revenue

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" has the meaning

given to such term in the Rate and Method.

Event of Default

"Event of Default" means an event described as such in Section 8.01

Expenses

"Expenses" means all expenses paid or incurred by the City or the Community

Facilities District for the cost of planning and designing the Facilities, including the cost of
environmental evaluations of the Facilities and the costs associated with the creation of the

Community Facilities District, the designation of the improvement areas therein, the issuance of
the Bonds, the determination of the amount of the Special Tax, the collection of the Special Tax

and the payment of the Special Tax, or costs otherwise incurred in order to carry out the authorized

pu{poses of the Community Facilities District, and any other expenses incidental to the acquisition,

ionstruction, completion and inspection of the Facilities; all as determined in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Facilities

"Facilities" means those certain public facilities authorized to be acquired and

constructed in and for the Community Facilities District under and pursuant to the Law at the

special election held in the Community Facilities District on May 26,2020.

Facilities Special Tax

"Facilities Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal

Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

in accordance with the Rate and Method (each as defined in the Rate and Method).

Federal Securities

"Federal Securities" means (a) any securities now or hereafter authorized both the

interest on and principal of which are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States

of America, and (b) any of the following obligations of federal agencies not guaranteed by the

United States of America: (1) participation certificates or senior debt obligations of the Federal

Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, (2) bonds or debentures of the Federal Home Loan Bank Board

established under the Federal Home Loan Bank Act and bonds of any federal home loan bank

established under such act, and (3) stocks, bonds, debentures, participations and other obligations

of or issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Student Loan Marketing

6
4t4r-6633-1704.3 Page 270

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Association, the Government National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corporation, as and to the extent that such securities or obligations are eligible for the

legal investment of city or community Facilities District funds.

Finance Director

"Finance Director" means the Finance Director of the City.

Fiscal Year

"Fiscal Yeaf'means the twelve-month period terminating on June 30 of each year,

or any other annual accounting period hereafter selected and designated by the Community

Facilities District as its Fiscal Year in accordance with applicable law.

Fitch

o'Fitch" means Fitch Ratings, Inc., a corporation duly organized and existing under

and by virtue of the laws of the State of New York, and its successors or assigns, except that if
such entity shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities

rating ug"tt.y, then the term "Fitch" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized

securities rating agency selected by the Community Facilities District.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

"Generally Accepted Accounting Principles" means the uniform accounting and

reporting procedures set forth in publications of the American Institute of Certified Public

Accountants or its successor, or by any other generally accepted authority on such procedures, and

includes, as applicable, the standards set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board

or its successor.

Holder

"Holder" means any person who shall be the registered owner of any Outstanding

Bond, as shown on the registration books maintained by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.09.

Improvement Area

"Improvement Area" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3, a designated improvement area within the Community

Facilities District.

Indenture

"Indenture" means this Indenture and all Supplemental Indentures.

Independent Certified Public Accountant

"Independent Certified Public Accountanf'means any certified public accountant

or firm of such accountants duly licensed and entitled to practice and practicing as such under the

7
4141-6633-1704.3 Page 271

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



laws of the State of California, appointed and paid by the Community Facilities District, and who,

or each of whom:

(1) is in fact independent and not under the domination of the Community

Facilities District;

(2) does not have a substantial financial interest, direct or indirect, in the

operations of the Community Facilities District; and

(3) is not connected with the Community Facilities District as an officer or

employee of the Community Facilities District, but who may be regularly retained to audit

the accounting records of and make reports thereon to the Community Facilities District.

Independent Consultant

"Independent Consultant" means any consultant or firm of consultants selected by

the Community Facilities District who, or each of whom, (a) is generally recognized to be qualified

in the field of special tax or financial consulting, (b) is in fact independent and not under the control

of the Community Facilities District, (c) does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect,

in the Community Facilities District, or any owner of real property in the Community Facilities

District, and (d) is not an officer or employee of the Community Facilities District, but who may

be regularly retained to make reports to the Community Facilities District.

Law

*Lafr' means the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended

(being Sections 53311 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of California), and all laws

amendatory thereof or supplemental thereto.

Lien

"Lien" means the aggregate principal amount of all overlapping debt and bonds

(including the Bonds) outstanding that are secured by a special tax levied pursuant to the Law or

a special assessment levied on property within the Improvement Area, including any overlapping

debt or bonds for community facilities districts or special assessment districts that is reasonably

allocated to property within the Improvement Area.

Local Oblisation hase Contract

'o[.ocal Obligation Purchase Contract" means the Local Obligation Purchase

Contract between the Community Facilities District and the Authority providing for the sale of the

2022Bonds.

Mayor

"Mayor" means the Mayor of the City

8
4t4t-6633-1704.3 Page 272

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Maximum Annual Debt Service

"Maximum Annual Debt Service" means, as of any date of calculation, the largest

Debt Service in any Bond Year during the period from the date of such calculation through the

final maturity date of any Outstanding Bonds.

Maximum Facilities Special Tax

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the total maximum annual Facilities

Special Tax, determined in accordance with the provisions of Section C of the Rate and Method,

which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property (each as

defined in the Rate and Method).

Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments

"Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments" means the payments required

hereunder and under all Supplemental Indentures to be deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount

for the payment of the Term Bonds.

Moody's

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service Inc., a corporation duly organized

and existing under and by virtue of the laws ofthe State of Delaware, and its successors or assigns,

except that if such entity shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions

of a securities rating agency, then the term "Moody's" shall be deemed to refer to any other

nationally recognized securities rating agency selected by the Community Facilities District.

Opinion of Counsel

"Opinion of Counsel" means a written opinion of counsel (including, without

limitation, the City Attomey of the City) retained by the Community Facilities District.

Outstanding

"Outstanding," when used as of any particular time with reference to Bonds, means

(subject to the provisions of Section 7 .02) all Bonds except:

(a) Bonds delivered to the Trustee for cancellation and destruction pursuant to

Section 10.07;

(b) Bonds paid or deemed to have been paid pursuant to Section 9.01;

(c) Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Bonds shall have been

executed by the Community Facilities District and authenticated and delivered by the Trustee

pursuant to Section 2.10; and

(d) Bonds paid in accordance with the second to last paragraph Section 2.10.

9
4t4t-6633-r704.3 Page 273

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Permitted Investments

"Permitted Investments" means any of the following investments, as authorizedby

applicable law at the time of making such investment, namely:

(1) Federal Securities;

(2) Participation certificates (excluding stripped mortgage securities which are

purchased at prices exceeding their principal amounts) and senior debt obligations of the Federal

Ho-" Loan Mortgage Corporation; consolidated system-wide bonds and notes of the Farm Credit

System; senior debt obligations and mortgage-backed securities (excluding stripped mortgage-

backed securities which are purchased at prices exceeding their principal amounts) of the Federal

National Mortgage Association; senior debt obligations (excluding securities that have no fixed

par value andlor whose terms do not promise a fixed dollar amount at maturity or call date) of the

Student Loan Marketing Association; debt obligations of the Resolution Funding Corp.; and

REFCORP STRIPS (stripped by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York) (collectively, the

'oAgency Obligations");

(3) Direct obligations of any state of the United States of America or any

subdivision or agency thereof whose long-terrn unsecured general obligation debt is rated "A3" or

better by Moody's and "A-" or better by Standard & Poor's or any obligation fully and

unconditionally guaranteed by any state or subdivision or agency thereof whose long-term,

unsecured general obligation debt is rated "A3" or better by Moody's and "A-" or better by

Standard & Poor's;

(4) Commercial paper (that matures in not more than three hundred sixty-five
(365) days) rated o'Prime-l" or better by Moody's and o'A-1" or better by Standard & Poor's;

(5) Deposits, Federal funds or bankers acceptances (that mature in not more

than three hundred sixty-five (365) days) of any domestic bank (including a branch office of a
foreign bank which branch office is located in the United States of America, if the Trustee shall

have received a legal opinion or opinions to the effect that full and timely payment of such deposit

or similar obligation is enforceable against the principal office or any branch of such bank), which:

(a) has an unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed obligation rated

"Prime-l" or "A3" or better by Moody's and "A-1" or "A-" or better by Standard & Poor's,

or

(b) is the lead bank of a parent bank holding company with an

uninsured, unsecured and unguaranteed obligation meeting the rating requirements in
paragraph (a) above;

(6) Deposits in any bank or savings and loan association which has a combined

capital, surplus and undivided profits of not less than ten million dollars ($10,000,000); provided,

that if such deposits are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Banking

Insurance Fund or the Savings Association Insurance Fund, or are fully collateralized by Federal

Securities;

4141-6633-1704.3

10

Page 274

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(7) Investments in a money-market fund rated'oAm" or "Am-G" or better by

Standard & Poor's, including any such fund managed, advised or sponsored by the Trustee or any

of its affiliates but excluding any such fund with a floating net asset value;

(8) Repurchase agreements with a term of six (6) months or less with any

institution having long-term, unsecured debt rated at least 
(64A" 

or commercial paper rated "A-1*"
by Standard & Poor's;

(9) Repurchase agreements collateralized by Federal Securities ("Collateral

Securities,,y wiih atry ."gist"red broker-dealer which is under the jurisdiction of the Securities

Investors protection Corporation or any commercial bank, if such broker-dealer or bank has

uninsured, unsecured und .r.rgrrutanteed debt rated "Prime-l" or "A3" or better by Moody's and
4A-l' or 'oA-" or better by Standard & Poor's; provided, that:

(a) a master repurchase agreement or other specific written repurchase

agreement governs the transaction;

(b) the Collateral Securities are held free and clear of any other lien by

the Trustee or an independent third party acting solely as agent for the Trustee, so long as

any such third party 1A; is (l) a Federal Reserve Bank or (2) a bank which is a member of
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and which has combined capital, surplus and

undivided ptofitr of not less than twenty-five million dollars ($25,000,000), and (B)

certifies in writing to the Trustee (or delivers to the Trustee a written opinion of counsel to

such third party) that such third party holds the Collateral Securities free and clear of any

lien, as agent for the Trustee;

(c) a perfected first security interest under the Uniform Commercial

Code is created in, or book-entry procedures prescribed at 31 C.F.R. 306.1 et seq. or 3l
C.F.R. 350.0 et seq. are followed with respect to, the Collateral Securities for the benefit

of the Trustee;

(d) such repurchase agreement has a term of thirty (30) days or less;

(e) such repurchase agreement matures at least ten (10) days (or other

appropriate liquidation period) prior to each interest payment date on the Bonds;

(0 the fair market value of the Collateral Securities in relation to the

amount of the repurchase obligation, including principal and interest, is equal to at least

one hundred three percent (103%); and

(g) the Trustee obtains an opinion of counsel to such broker-dealer or

bank (which opinion shall be addressed to the Community Facilities District) to the effect

that such repurchase agreement is a legal, valid, binding and enforceable agreement of such

broker-deaGr o. bank (and, in the case of a bank which is a branch of a foreign bank, of
such foreign bank) in accordance with its terms;

(10) Shares in the California Asset Management Program (established pursuant

to Title 1, Division 7 , Chapter 5 of the Government Code of the State of California) that invests

4t4t-6633-r704.3

11

Page 275

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



exclusively in investments permitted by Section 53635 of the Government Code of the State of
California, as now existing and as it may be amended from time to time; and

(11) Investments in the Local Agency Investment Fund maintained by the

California State Treasurer, which such investments shall only be invested in the special portion of
the Local Agency Investment Fund for bond proceeds that are not subject to arbitrage restrictions.

Prioriw Administrative Expenses

"Priority Administrative Expenses" means an amount equal to (a) for Fiscal Year

2022-23, $20,000, and (b) for any subsequent Fiscal Year, the amount resulting from increasing

the Priority Administrative Expenses on each July 1, from and including the July 1 immediately

following the end of the then current Fiscal Year to and including the July I in such Fiscal Year

by 2% of the amount in effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

Proceeds Fund

"Proceeds Fund" means the temporary account referred to by that name established

pursuant to Section 2,13.

Rate and Method

"Rate and Method" means the amended rate and method of apportionment of
special tax for the Improvement Area.

Rebate Fund

"Rebate Fund" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds Rebate Fund established pursuant to

Section 5.03.

Redemption Account

"Redemption Account" means the account within the Special Tax Fund referred to

by that name established pursuant to Section 4.02.

Required Bond Reserve

"Required Bond Reserve" means, for each applicable series of Bonds, as of any

date of calculation, ihe least of: (a) Maximum Annual Debt Service, (b) one hundred twenty-five

percent (125%) of the Average Annual Debt Service or (c) ten percent (10%) of the original

proceeds'of such series of Bonds; provided, that the Required Bond Reserve shall be calculated on

th" dut" of issuance of each series of Bonds and shall not increase thereafter; and provided further,

that such requirement (or any portion thereof) may be satisfied by the provision of one or more

policies of municipal bond insurance or surety bonds issued by a municipal bond insurer or by a

ietter of credit issued by a bank, the obligations insured by which insurer or issued by which bank,

as the case may be, have ratings at the time of issuance of such policy or surety bond or letter of
credit equal to "AA" or higher (without regard to qualifier) assigned by Fitch or ooAa" or higher

4t4l-6633-1704.3

t2
Page 276

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(without regard to qualifier) assigned by Moody's or'oAA" or higher (without regard to qualifier)

assigned by Standard & Poor's.

Resnonsible Officer of the Trustee

o'Responsible Officer of the Trustee" means any officer within the corporate trust

division (or any successor group or department of the Trustee) including any vice president,

assistant vice president, assistant secretary or any other officer or assistant officer of the Trustee

customarily pJrforming functions similar to those performed by the persons who at the time shall

be such officers, respectively, with responsibility for the administration of this Indenture.

Series 2022 Bond Reserve Account

"series 2}22BondReserve Account" means the account within the Bond Reserve

Fund referred to by that name established pursuant to Section 2.13(a).

Services Tax

"Seryices Special Tax" means the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal

Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Services Special Tax Requirement

(each as defined in the Rate and Method).

Sinking Fund Subaccount

"sinking Fund Subaccount" means the subaccount in the Redemption Account

referred to by that name established pursuant to Section 2.04.

Special Tax

"special Tax" means the special tax authorizedto be levied and collected annually

on all Taxable Property in the Improvement Area under and pursuant to the Law at the special

election held in the Improvement Area on December 14,2021, including the Services Special Tax.

Special Tax Fund

"special Tax Fund" means the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.

23 (Folsom Rancih) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Fund established pursuant to Section

4.0r.

Standard & Poor's

"standard & Poor's" means S&P Global Ratings, a business of Standard & Poor's

Financial Services LLC, and its successors or assigns, except that if such entity shall be dissolved

or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, then the term

"standard & Poor's" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating

agency selected by the Community Facilities District.

4t4t-6633-1704.3

t3
Page 277

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Supplemental Indenture

"supplemental Indenture" means any indenture then in full force and effect that has

been made and enteied into by the Community Facilities District and the Trustee, amendatory of
or supplemental hereto; but only to the extent that such Supplemental Indenture is specifically

authorized hereunder.

Tax Certificate

"Tax Certificate" means the certificate or certificates delivered upon the issuance

of any series of the Bonds relating to Section 148 of the Code, or any functionally similar

replacement certifi cate.

Taxable Propertv

"Taxable Property" means all property within the Improvement Area taxable under

the Law in accordance with the proceedings for the authorizationof the issuance of the Bonds and

the levy and collection of the Special Tax.

Trust Asreemefi!

"TrustAgreement" means that certain TrustAgreement, dated as of Augustl,2022,
among the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority, the Community Facilities District and the Trustee,

as Authority Trustee for the Authority Bonds.

Trustee

ooTrustee" means U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, a national

banking association duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United

States of America and authorized to accept and execute trusts of the character herein set forth, at

its Corporate Trust Office, and its successors or assigns, or any other bank or trust company having

a designated corporate trust offrce in California which may at any time be substituted in its place

as provided in Section 6.01.

Value

"Valus" means the current assessed valuation of the Taxable Property andior the

appraised value of the Taxable Property determined by an MAI appraiser.

Written Request of the Communitv Facilities District

"Written Request of the Community Facilities District" means an instrument in

writing signed by the City Manager or the Finance Director, or by any other officer of the City

duly authorizedby the City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities District, for

that purpose.

Section 1.02. Equal Securitv. In consideration of the acceptance of the Bonds by

the Holders thereof, the Indenture shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between

4t4t-6633-r704.3

t4
Page 278

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



the Community Facilities District and the Holders from time to time to secure the full and final
payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on all Bonds which

may from time to time be authorized, sold, executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder,

subject to the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained herein; and all agreements,

conditions, covenants and terms contained herein required to be observed or performed by or on

behalf of the Community Facilities District shall be for the equal and proportionate benefit,

security and protection of all Holders without distinction, preference or priority as to securrty or

otherwise of any Bonds over any other Bonds by reason of the number thereof or the time of
execution, authentication or delivery thereof or otherwise for any cause whatsoever, except as

expressly provided herein or therein.

ARTICLE II

BONDS

Section 2.01. Authorization and Purpose of Bonds.

(a) The City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities
District, has reviewed all proceedings heretofore taken relative to the authorization of the

Bonds and has found, as a result of such review, and hereby finds and determines that all
acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, happen and be performed precedent to

and in the issuance of the Bonds do exist, have happened and have been performed in due

time, form and manner as required by the Law, and the Community Facilities District is

now authorized, pursuant to each and every requirement of the Law and hereof, to issue

the Bonds in one or more series as from time to time shall be authorized and established

by the Community Facilities District pursuant to the Law and pursuant hereto and pursuant

to one or more Supplemental Indentures, which series shall be entitled to the benefit,

protection and security of the provisions hereof, shall be designated the "City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special

Tax Bonds," together with such further appropriate particular designation added to or
incorporated in the title of the Bonds of each series as the Community Facilities District
may determine or as shall be required by the Law, and each Bond shall bear upon its face

the designation so determined for the series to which it belongs. Additionally, the Bonds

may contain or have endorsed thereon such descriptive provisions, specifications and

words not inconsistent with the provisions hereof as may be desirable or necessary to

comply with custom or the rules of any securities exchange or commission or brokerage

board or otherwise as may be determined by the Community Facilities District prior to the

delivery thereof. An initial series of Bonds shall be issued hereunder to be designated the

"City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area

No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022."

(b) The purpose for which the Bonds are to be issued is to provide funds

to pay costs of the acquisition and construction of the Facilities, including the repayment

of funds advanced by the City for the Community Facilities District and the repayment

under any agreement of advances of funds or reimbursement for the lesser of the value or

cost of work in-kind provided by any person for the Community Facilities District, and

4l4t-6633-1704.3

15

Page 279

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



including the payment of costs incidental to or connected with such acquisition and

construction.

(c) From and after the issuance of any series of the Bonds, the findings

and determinations of the City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities

District, respecting such series of the Bonds shall be conclusive evidence of the existence

of the facts so found and determined in any action or proceeding in any court in which the

validity of any Bonds of such series is at issue, and no bona fide purchaser of any of the

Bonds of such series shall be required to see to the existence of any fact or to the

performance of any condition or to the taking of any proceeding required prior to such

issuance or to the application of the purchase price paid for such series of the Bonds. The

validity of the issuance of the Bonds of any series shall not be dependent on or affected in

any way bV (i) any proceedings taken by the City for the acquisition and construction of
any Facilities, or (ii) any contracts made by the City or the Community Facilities District

in connection therewith, or (iii) the failure to complete the acquisition and construction of
any Facilities. The recital contained in the Bonds that the Bonds are issued under and

pursuant to the Law and under and pursuant hereto and under and pursuant to a

Supplemental Indenture shall be conclusive evidence of their validity and of the regularity

of their issuance and all Bonds shall be incontestable from and after their issuance. The

Bonds shall be deemed to be issued, within the meaning hereof, whenever the definitive

Bonds (or any temporary Bonds exchangeable therefor) have been delivered to the

purchaser thereof and the purchase price thereof received.

Section 2.02. Additional Bonds: Subordinate Bonds. The Community Facilities

District may atany time issue Additional Bonds payable from the proceeds of the Special Tax net

of Priority Administrative Expenses as provided herein on a parity with all other Bonds and

Additional Bonds theretofore issued or to be issued hereunder, but only subject to the following

conditions, which are hereby made conditions precedent to the issuance of such Additional Bonds:

(a) The issuance of Additional Bonds shall have been authorized

pursuant to the Law and pursuant hereto and shall have been provided for by a

Supplemental lndenture which shall specifu the following:

(i) The purpose for which the Additional Bonds are to be issued;

plqvidgd., thatthe proceeds of sale of suchAdditional Bonds shall be applied

solely for the pulpose of financing the acquisition and construction of the

Facilities, including the repayment of funds advanced by the City for the

Community Facilities District and the repayment under any agroement of
advances of funds or reimbursements for the lesser of the value or cost of
work in-kind provided by any person for the Community Facilities District,

and including the payment of costs incidental to or connected with such

acquisition, construction and payment, and payment of the Costs of
Issuance, or for the refunding of Outstanding Bonds;

(ii) The principal amount and designation of the Additional
Bonds and the denomination or denominations of the Additional Bonds;

4t41-6633-r704.3

16

Page 280

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(iiD The date, the maturity date or dates, the interest payment

dates and the dates on which Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments

are due, if any, for such Additional Bonds; plgviided, that (i) the Serial

Bonds of such Additional Bonds shall be payable as to principal on

September 1 of each year in which principal of such Additional Bonds falls

due, and the Term Bonds of such Additional Bonds shall be subject to

mandatory redemption on September I of each year in which Minimum
Sinking Fund Account Payments for such Additional Bonds are due; (ii) the

Additional Bonds shall be payable as to interest semiannually on March 1

and September 1 of each year, except that the first installment of interest

may be payable on either March I or September 1 and shall be for a period

of not longer than twelve (12) months and the interest shall be payable

thereafter semiannually on March 1 and September 1, (iiD all the Additional
Bonds of a series of like maturity shall be identical in all respects, except as

to number or denomination, and (iv) serial maturities of Serial Bonds of
such Additional Bonds or Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments for
Term Bonds of such Additional Bonds, or any combination thereof, shall be

established to provide for the redemption or payment of the Additional
Bonds on or before their respective maturity dates;

(iv) The redemption premiums and redemption terms, if any, for

such Additional Bonds;

(") The form of the Additional Bonds;

("i) The amount,if arty,to be deposited fromthe proceeds of sale

of such Additional Bonds in the Redemption Account, and its use to pay

interest on such Additional Bonds;

(viD The amount to be deposited from the proceeds of sale of such

Additional Bonds in the applicable Bond Reserve Account; provided, that

the applicable Bond Reserve Account shall equal, at the time that such

Additional Bonds become Outstanding, the Required Bond Reserve for
such Additional Bonds, and an amount at least equal to the Required Bond

Reserve for such Additional Bonds shall thereafter be maintained in the

applicable Bond Reserve Account;

(viii) The amounts to be deposited from the proceeds of sale of
such Additional Bonds in the separate accounts for each series of Additional
Bonds to be established in the Acquisition and Construction Fund and in the

Costs of Issuance Fund; and

(ix) Such other provisions that are appropriate or necessary and

are not inconsistent with the provisions hereof;

(b) The Community Facilities District shall be in compliance with all

agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained herein and in all Supplemental

4t4l-6633-1704.3

t7
Page 281

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Indentures required to be observed or performed by it, and no Event of Default hereunder

or under any Supplemental Indenture shall have occurred and shall be then continuing; and

(c) In each year until the maturity date for the Additional Bonds, the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax for Taxable Property classified as Developed Property,

plus the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue for Taxable Property

not classified as Developed Property less Priority Administrative Expenses is estimated to

equal at least one hundred ten percent ( 1 1 0%) of the sum of the Annual Debt Service for

eich year on the Bonds, including such Additional Bonds, and the Value of all Taxable

Property, in aggregate, is at least three (3) times the aggregate Lien on such Taxable

Property.

(d) The Community Facilities District may issue one or more series of
Bonds (the "Refunding Bonds") without complying with this Section 2.02(c) if, after the

issuance and delivery of such Refunding Bonds, either (i) none of the Bonds theretofore

issued hereunder will be Outstanding or (ii) the Debt Service in each Bond Year that begins

after the issuance of such Refunding Bonds is not increased by reason of the issuance of
such Refunding Bonds.

(e) The Community Facilities District may issue bonds or other

obligations payable from the proceeds of the Special Tax on a basis subordinate to the

Bonds without complying with this Section 2.02(a), (b) and (c).

Section 2.03 Procedure for the Issuance of Addi Bonds. At any time after

the sale of any Additional Bonds in accordance with the Law, the Additional Bonds shall be

executed by the Community Facilities District and shall be delivered to the Trustee and thereupon

shall be authenticated and delivered by the Trustee, but only upon receipt by the Trustee of the

following documents:

(a) An executed copy of the supplemental Indenture authorizing the

issuance of such Additional Bonds;

(b) A Written Request of the Community Facilities District as to the

delivery of the Additional Bonds;

(c) One or more Opinions of Counsel to the effect that (i) the

Community Facilities District has the right and power under the Law to execute the

Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture, and the Indenture and Supplemental Indenture

have each been duly and lawfully executed and delivered by the Community Facilities

District and are in full force and effect and are valid and binding upon the Community

Facilities District and enforceable in accordance with their terms (except as enforcement

may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent

conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, by the

application of equitable principles, by the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate

caies and by the limitations on legal remedies against cities in the State of California) and

no other authorization for the execution thereof is required; and (ii) the Additional Bonds

are valid and binding special tax obligations of the Community Facilities District payable

from the proceeds of the Special Tax net of Priority Administrative Expenses and the other

4t4t-6633-t704.3
t8

Page 282

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



funds provided herein for such payment as provided herein and are enforceable in
accordance with their terms (except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy,

insolvency, rcorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other

laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, by the application of equitable principles, by

the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and by the limitations on legal

remedies against cities in the State of California) and the terms of the Law and of the

Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture and the Additional Bonds have been duly and

validly authorized, sold, executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the Law

and with the Indenture and the Supplemental Indenture;

(d) A Certificate of an Independent Consultant containing such

statements as may be reasonably necessary to show compliance with the requirements of
Section 2.02(c);

(e) A Certificate of the Community Facilities District containing such

statements as may be reasonably necessary to show compliance with the requirements of
Section 2.02; and

(D The proceeds of the sale of such Additional Bonds.

Section 2.04. Date and Maturitv Dates of and Interest Rates on and Minimum

Sinkins Fund Account Payments for Bonds. The Bonds shall be issued in fully registered form

and shalt be numbered consecutively from one (1) upward in order of issuance. The dates, maturity

dates, interest rates, and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments for any Additional Bonds

shall be set forth in the Supplemental Indenture relating thereto. The 2022 Bonds shall be dated

the date of the delivery thereof, and shall mature on the dates and in the principal amounts and

shall bear interest at the rates per annum as set forth in the following schedule:

Principal
Payment Date Principal

Amount
Interest

Rate(September 1)

%

. 
Term Bonds

Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments are hereby established for the

mandatory redemption and payment of the Term Bonds of the 2022Bonds, which payments shall

$

4141-6633-1704.3

t9
Page 283

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



become due during the years ending on the dates and in the amounts as set forth in the following
schedule (except that if any of the Term Bonds of the 2022 Bonds shall have been redeemed

pursuant to Section 3.01, the amounts of the Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments shall be

reduced proportionately by the principal amount of all such Term Bonds of the 2022 Bonds so

redeemed), namely:

Term Bond Maturing September 1.20[ I
Year Minimum

Ending Sinking Fund
September I Account Payment

$

Maturity

Term Bond Maturins September 1.20[ I

Year Minimum
Ending Sinking Fund

September I Account Payment
$

Maturity

*

4t4t-6633-1704.3

20

Page 284

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



A11 such Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments shall be deposited in the

Sinking Fund Subaccount, which subaccount is hereby established and which subaccount the

Community Facilities District hereby agrees and covenants to cause to be maintained by the

Trustee so long as any of the Term Bonds are Outstanding. All money in the Sinking Fund

Subaccount shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee (upon receipt of a Written Request of the

Community Facilities District) atany time for the purchase of the Term Bonds at public or private

sales as and when and at such prices (including brokerage and other charges) as the Community

Facilities District may in its discretion determine, but not to exceed the principal amount of such

Term Bonds. All money in the Sinking Fund Subaccount on September 1 of each year during the

period beginning on September l, 201 l, and ending on September 1,201 ], both dates inclusive,

rnuU b. used and withdrawn by the Trustee on such September 1 for the mandatory redemption or

payment of the Term Bonds of the 2022Bonds maturing on September l, 201 l; and all money

in-the Sinking Fund Subaccount on September 1 of each year during the period beginning on

September I,101 1, and ending on September 1, 20[ l, both dates inclusive, shall be used and

wiinarawn by th-Trustee on such September 1 for the mandatory redemption or payment of the

Term Bonds of the2022 Bonds maturing on September l, 20[ l, and the Community Facilities

District hereby agrees and covenants with the Holders of the Term Bonds to call and redeem in

accordance with Article III or pay the Term Bonds from the Minimum Sinking Fund Account

Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount pursuant to this paragraph whenever on

September I of any year there is money in the Sinking Fund Subaccount available for such

purpose.

Section 2.05 Interest Pavment Dates of Bonds. Interest on the Bonds shall be

computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve (12) 30-day calendar months, and shall be

puyubl" on [September 1, 2022],and semiannually thereafter on September I and March 1 in each

year until the principal sum of the Bonds has been paid. The Bonds shall bear interest from the

interest paymant date next preceding the date of registration thereof, unless they are registered on

a day during the period from the sixteenth (16th) day of the month next preceding an interest

payment date to such interest payment date, both inclusive, in which event they shall bear interest
^from 

such interest payment date, or unless they are registered on a day on or before the fifteenth

(lsth) day of the month next preceding the first (1') interest payment date, in which event they

rhull b"* interest from their dated date; provided, that if at the time of registration of any Bond

interest is then in default on the Outstanding Bonds, such Bond shall bear interest from the interest

payment date to which interest has previously been paid or made available for payment on the

Outstanding Bonds.

Section 2.06. Form of Bsndt. The Bonds and the authentication and registration

endorsement and assignment to appear thereon shall be substantially in the form appearing in

Exhibit A.

Section 2.07. Payment of Bonds. The interest on and principal of and redemption

premiums, if any, on the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America

ut ttr. Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, and the Community Facilities District and the Trustee

shall be entitled to conclusively treat the registered owner of any Bond as the absolute owner of
such Bond for all purposes hereof, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, and neither the

Community Facilities District nor the Trustee shall be affected by any notice or knowledge to the

contrary. Payment of interest on the Bonds due on or before the maturity or prior redemption

4141-6633-1704.3

2T

Page 285

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



thereof shall be made only to the person whose name appears in the registration books required to

be kept by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.09 as the registered owner thereof at the close of
business as of the fifteenth (15th) day of the month next preceding each interest payment date,

such interest to be paid by check mailed by first class mail on each such interest payment date to

such registered owner at his or her address as it appears on such books, except that in the case of
a Holder of one million dollars ($1,000,000) or more in principal amount of Bonds then

Outstanding, payment shall be made at such Holder's option by wire transfer on each such interest

payment date-of immediately available funds to an account in a bank or trust company or savings

t*t tttut is amember ofthe Federal Reserve System and is located inthe continental United States

of America according to written instructions provided by such Holder to the Trustee at least fifteen

(15) days before such interest payment date. Payment of the principal of and redemption

premiums, if any, on the Bonds shall be made only to the person whose name appears in the

iegistration books required to be kept by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.09 as the registered

o*tt"r thereof, such principal and redemption premiums, if any, to be paid only on the surrender

of the Bonds at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee at maturity or on redemption prior to

maturity. All such payments of interest and principal and redemption premiums, if any, on any

Bond shall be valid and effectual to satisfu and discharge the liability on such Bond to the extent

of the sum or sums so paid.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Holder of any Bond may, in lieu of surrendering the same for a

new Bond, endorse on such Bond a record of partial payment of the principal of such Bond in the

form set forth below (which shall be typed or printed on such Bond):

PAYMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF PRINCIPAL

Principal Balance of PrinciPal
Amount Paid Amount UnPaid

Signature
of Registered HolderPayment Date

The Trustee shall maintain a record of each such partial payment made in

accordance with the foregoing agreement and such record of the Trustee shall be conclusive. Such

partial payment shall be valid upon payment of the amount thereof to the Registered Holder of
such B-ond, and the Community Facilities District and the Trustee shall be fully released and

discharged from all liability to the extent of such payment regardless of whether such endorsement

shall oi shall not have been made upon such Bond by the Holder thereof and regardless of any

error or omission in such endorsement.

Section 2.08. Execution of Bonds. The Bonds shall be signed on behalf of the

Community Facilities Districtby the manual or facsimile signature ofthe Mayor and countersigned

by the manual or facsimile signature of the City Clerk, and any Bond may be signed on behalf of
the Community Facilities District by any person who, on the actual date of the execution of such

Bond, shall be the proper officer of the City and member of the City Council, as legislative body

of the Community Facilities District, although on the nominal date of such Bond such person shall

4r4t-6633-t704.3

22
Page 286

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



not have been such officer of the City. In case any such officer, who shall have signed any of the

Bonds, shall cease to be such officer before the Bonds so signed shall have been delivered to the

purchaser by the Trustee, such Bonds may nevertheless be delivered and issued and, upon such

delivery und irrrr*"e, shall be as binding upon the Community Facilities District as though such

officer who signed the same had continued to be such officer until such delivery and issuance.

Only those Bonds that bear thereon a certificate of authentication executed by the Trustee shall be

entitled to any benefit, protection or security hereunder or be valid or obligatory for any pu{pose,

and such certificate of the Trustee shall be conclusive evidence that the Bonds so authenticated

have been duly authorized, sold, executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder and are entitled

to the benefits hereof.

Section 2.09. Transfer and Exchange of Bonds. The Trustee shall keep at its

Corporate Trust Office sufficient books for the transfer and exchange of the Bonds, which books

shall at all times during normal business hours with reasonable prior written notice be open to

inspection by the Community Facilities District or by any Holder (or his representative authorized

in writing). Any Bond may, in accordance with its terms, be transferred or exchanged on such

books by the person in whose name it is registered, in person or by his or her duly authorized

attorney, upon payment by the Holder requesting such transfer or exchange of any tax or other

governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer or exchange and upon

surrender of such Bond for cancellation accompanied by delivery of a duly executed written

instrument of transfer or exchange in a form approved by the Trustee. Whenever any Bond or

Bonds shall be surrendered for transfer or exchange, the Community Facilities District shall

execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond or Bonds of the same series and

maturity date for the same aggregate principal amount, except that neither the Community

Facilities District nor the Trustee shall be required (i) to transfer or exchange any Bonds during

the fifteen-day period prior to the selection of any Bonds for redemption under Article III, or (ii)
to transfer or exchange any Bond which has been selected for redemption in whole or in part,

except the unredeemed portion of such Bond selected for redemption in part, from and after the

day that such Bond has been selected for redemption in whole or in part under Article III.

Section 2.10. Mutilated. Destroyed. Stolen or Lost Bonds. In case any Bond shall

become mutilated in respect of the body of such Bond or shall be believed by the Community

Facilities District to have been destroyed, stolen or lost, upon proof of ownership satisfactory to

the Community Facilities District and the Trustee and upon the surrender of such mutilated Bond

at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee, or upon the receipt of evidence satisfactory to the

Community Facilities District and the Trustee of such destruction, theft or loss and upon receipt

of indemnity satisfactory to the Community Facilities District and the Trustee, and also upon

payment of all expenses incurred by the Community Facilities District and the Trustee in the

premises and receipt of each of indemnity satisfactory to them, the Community Facilities District

shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver at the Corporate Trust Office a new

Bond or Bonds of the same series and maturity date for the same aggregate principal amount of
like tenor and date and bearing such numbers and notations as shall be appropriate in exchange

and substitution for and upon cancellation of the mutilated Bond or in lieu of and in substitution

for the Bond so destroyed, stolen or lost.

If any such destroyed, stolen or lost Bond shall have matured or shall have been

called for redemption, payment of the amount due thereon shall be made by the Trustee, at the

4141-6633-1704.3

23

Page 287

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



written direction of the Community Facilities District, upon receipt of like proof, indemnity and

payment of expenses.

Any replacement Bonds issued pursuant to this Section shall be entitled to equal

and proportionate benefits with all other Bonds issued hereunder, and the Community Facilities

Distiict and the Trustee shall not be required to treat both the original Bond and any replacement

Bond as being Outstanding for the pu{pose of determining the principal amount of Bonds which

may be issueJ hereunder or for the purpose of determining any percentage of Bonds Outstanding

herlunder, but both the original and the replacement Bond shall be treated as one and the same.

Section2.l1. Registration of the Bonds. The Bonds shall be registered in the

name of the Authority and delivered to the Authority Trustee upon the issuance thereof in

accordance with the provisions of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract.

Section 2.12. CUSIP Numbers. The Community Facilities District in issuing the

Bonds may, but shall not be required to, use "CUSIP" numbers (if then generally in use), and, if
used, the Trustee shall use "CUSIP" numbers in notices of redemption as a convenience to Holders;

provided that the Trustee shall have no liability for any defect in the "CUSIP" numbers as they

upp.* on any Bond, notice or elsewhere, and, provided further that any such notice may state that

no representation is made as to the correctness of such numbers either as printed on the Bonds or

as contained in any notice of a redemption and that reliance may be placed only on the other

identification numbers printed on the Bonds, and any such redemption shall not be affected by any

defect in or omission of such numbers. The Community Facilities District shall promptly noti$
the Trustee.in writing of any change in "CUSIP" numbers, if any. The Community Facilities

District does not expect to use 6'CUSIP" numbers for the 2022Bonds.

Section 2.13. Application of Proceeds of Sale of 2022 Bonds. Upon the receipt of
payment of the purchase price of the 2022Bonds when the2022 Bonds shall have been duly sold

tythe Community Facilities District, the Trustee shall deposit such proceeds of sale of the 2022

Bbnds into a temporary account called the Proceeds Fund which the Trustee shall establish,

maintain and hold in trust, and which shall be disbursed in full on the date of receipt (whereupon

said temporary account shall be closed) in the following order:

(a) The Trustee shall deposit in the Series 2022Bond Reserve Account

the amount of $ , being a sum equal to the Required Bond Reserve, which

such account is hereby created in the Bond Reserve Fund;

(b) The Trustee shall deposit in the Acquisition and Construction Fund

the amount of $

(c) The Trustee shall deposit in the Capitalized Interest Account the

amount of $

of$
(d) The Trustee shall deposit in the Costs of Issuance Fund the amount

; and

(e) [The Trustee shall transfer to the City the amount of
pursuant to instructions provided by the Cityl.

24
4t4l-6633-r704.3 Page 288

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Section 2.14. Capitalized Interest Account. There is hereby established a fund to

be known as the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds Capitalized Interest Account. On each of the

following dates, the Trustee shall transfer the respective amounts from the Capitalized Interest

Account to the Redemption Account for the payment of interest due on the 2022 Bonds:

Date of Transfer Amount

[September 1,2022] $l I

If at any time the Trustee is required by a Supplemental Indenture to deposit any

amount of funds therein, the Trustee shall reestablish and maintain a fund to be known as the City

of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special

Tax Bonds Capitalizedlnterest Account. On each of the dates set forth in any table set forth in a

Supplemental Indenture, the amount set forth shall be transferred from the Capitalized Interest

Account to the Redemption Account for the payment of interest due on the Bonds. The Capitalized

Interest Account will be closed following the last date of transfer.

Section 2.15. Acquisition and Construction Fund. There is hereby established a

fund to be known as the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds Acquisition and Construction Fund, to be held and

administered by the Trustee. All money in the Acquisition and Construction Fund shall be used

by the Trustee for payment of the costs of the acquisition and construction of the Facilities,

including the repayment of funds advanced by the City for the Community Facilities District and

the repayment under any agreement of advances of funds or reimbursement for the lesser of the

value or cost of work in-kind provided by any person for the Community Facilities District, upon

receipt of a Written Request of the Community Facilities District filed with the Trustee, each of
which shall be sequentially numbered and shall state the person to whom payment is to be made,

the amount to be paid, the purpose for which the obligation was incurred and that such payment is

a proper charge against such fund; provi,idgd, that any remaining amount therein after the

"o-pl"tiott 
of such pulpose (as set forth in a Certificate of the Community Facilities District so

determining filed with the Trustee) shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Redemption Account.

The Acquisition and Construction Fund will be closed following the last date of transfer.

Section2.16. Costs of Issuance Fund. There is hereby established a fund to be

known as the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement

AreaNo. 3 Special Tax Bonds Costs of Issuance Fund, to be held and administered by the Trustee.

All money in the Costs of Issuance Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee to pay the

Costs of Issuance upon receipt of a Written Request of the Community Facilities District filed with
the Trustee, each of which shall be sequentially numbered and shall state the person to whom

payment is to be made, the amount to be paid, the purpose for which the obligation was incurred

and that such payment is a proper charge against such fund; provided, that on 20221,

or upon a prior determination bY the Community Facilities District that all Costs of Issuance have

been paid (as set forth in a Certificate of the Community Facilities District so determining filed

with the Trustee), any balance of money remaining in the Costs of Issuance Fund shall be

withdrawn from the Costs of Issuance Fund by the Trustee and transferred to the Acquisition and

Construction Fund. The Costs of Issuance Fund will be closed following the last date of transfer

25
4t41-6633-1704.3 Page 289

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ARTICLE III

REDEMPTION OR EXCHANGE OF BONDS

Section 3.01 Redemotion Prices and Terms of Bonds. Any Supplemental

Indenture may set forth the provisions for redemption of any Additional Bonds.

(a) Mandatory Sinkine Fund Account Redemption of the 2022 Bonds.

The 2022 Bonds maturing on September 1,201 1, are subject to mandatory redemption

by the Community Facilities District prior to their maturity date in part on September 1 in
each ofthe years 20[ ] through 201 1,both years inclusive; and the 2022Bonds maturing

on September 1,201 l, are subject to mandatory redemption by the Community Facilities

District prior to their maturity date in part on September I in each of the years 201-l
through 201 l, both years inclusive, in each case solely from Minimum Sinking Fund

Account Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount, upon mailed notice as

provided herein, at a redemption price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal

amount thereof called for redemption together with accrued interest thereon to the date

fixed for redemption.

(b) Optional Redemption of the 2022 Bonds. The 2022 Bonds arc

subject to optional redemption by the Community Facilities District prior to their respective

maturity dates as a whole or in part on any date on or after September 1,201 1, from funds

derived by the Community Facilities District from any source other than such Minimum
Sinking Fund Account Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount or such

prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as provided herein, at the following
redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the 2022 Bonds or portions

thereof called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption:

103% if redeemed on any date on or after September 1,201 l
through August 31,201 l;

I02% if redeemed on any date from September 1,201 I through
August 31,201 1;

rcl% if redeemed on any date from September l, 20[ I through
August 31,201 1;

100% if redeemed on September 1, 20L_l and any date thereafter.

(c) Extraordinarv Redemption of the 2022 Bonds. The 2022Bonds ate

subject to extraordinary redemption by the Community Facilities District prior to their
respective maturity dates, as a whole or in part on any interest payment date on and after

[September l, 2022], from funds derived by the Community Facilities District from
prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as provided herein, at the following
redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the 2022 Bonds or portions

thereof called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption, to wit:

4l4t-6633-1704.3

26

Page 290

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



I03% if redeemed on an interest payment date on or after
September 1,201 l through March l,20ll;

102% if redeemed on an interest payment date on September 1,

20L-] or March l,20ll;

l0l% if redeemed on an interest payment date on September 1,

20L) or March I,20ll;

100% if redeemed on September l, 20L) or any interest payment

date thereafter.

Section 3.02. Selection of Bonds for Redemption. If less than all the Outstanding

Bonds are to be redeemed as a result of prepayments of the Special Tax at any one time, the Bonds

shall be redeemed pro rata by maturity. If less than all the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed

at the option of the Community Facilities District at any one time, the Bonds of the latest maturity

date or dates shall be redeemed prior to or simultaneously with the redemption of the Bonds

maturing prior thereto, and if less than all the Outstanding Bonds of any one maturity date are to

be redeemed at any one time, the Trustee shall select the Bonds or the portions thereof of such

maturity date to be redeemed in integral multiples of five thousand dollars ($5,000) in a manner

that it deems appropriate and fair.

Section 3.03. Notice of Redemption of Bonds. At the Written Request of and at

the sole cost and expense of the Community Facilities District, received by the Trustee at least ten

(10) days in advance of so sending, such Written Request to contain the information to be

contained in the notice of redemption to be sent to Holders, as set forth below, the Trustee shall

mail at least twenty (20) and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption,

notice of redemption pursuant to Section 1 0. 14 to the respective Holders of all Bonds selected for
redemption in whole or in part and to all securities depositories and securities information services

selected by the Community Facilities District to comply with custom or the rules of any securities

exchange or commission or brokerage board or otherwise as may be determined by the Community

Facilities District in its sole discretion, but neither failure to receive any such mailed notice nor

any immaterial defect contained therein shall affect the sufficiency or the validity of such

proceedings for redemption; ppy!!g{, that no notice of redemption need be given to the Authority
for any Bonds for which the Authority is the Holder. Such notice shall state the date of such notice,

the Bonds to be redeemed, the date of issue of such Bonds, the redemption date, the redemption

price, the place of redemption (including the name and appropriate address of the Trustee), and, if
iess than all of any such maturrty, the numbers of the Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed and,

in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, the respective portions of the principal amount

thereof to be redeemed, and shall give notice that further interest on such Bonds or the portions

thereof to be redeemed will not accrue from and after the redemption date, and shall require that

such Bonds be then surrendered for redemption at the address of the Trustee so designated. If any

Bond so chosen for redemption shall not be redeemable in whole, such notice shall also state that

such Bond is to be redeemed in part only and that upon presentation of such Bond for redemption

there will be issued in lieu of the unredeemed portion of principal thereof a new Bond or Bonds of
the same series and maturity date equal in aggregate principal amount to such unredeemed portion.

414r-6633-1704.3

27

Page 291

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



IntheeventofanoptionalredemptionofBonds,theTrusteeshallmailanoticeof
redemption, in the ;;; ;"r"", ^u, 

uror"ruid, only after receipt of a writtgn Request of the

Community facilities nistrict at f"art filJu'' p'io' to.the aut" o" which the Trustee must send

notice to the Holders of the Bonds; ptttdd;;&".orr, if sufficient monies for the payment of the

redemption pri"" or-utt g;rrO, to b" 
"de"m"d 

are not then on deposit with the-Trustee' such notice

sha' state that such redemption sharl be conditioned ,rpo' ih" iimety deposit of sufficient funds

Anynoticeofoptionalredemptionmayberescindedbywritterrnoticegivenbythe
community Facilities District io the T;;"; rater ihan three (3) Business Days prior to the date

specified for redemption. The Truste" 
't'urr 

giue notice.of '""i"iott 
of the notice of optional

redemption or non-satisfaction of any 
""rJiii"ir:specified 

in the notice of optional redemption as

soon as practicable;lh; ;"*e parties and in the same ma'ner as the notice of redemption was

given Pursuant to this Section'

Section 3'04' Partial Redemption o-[' Bqnds' Upon surrender of any Bond

redeemedinparton1y,theco**.,,'it@a11executeandtheTrusteeshall
authenticate and detvlr to the registereJo;#;i;ih" expense of the.community Facilities

District a new Bond or Bonds of the ,*" ,"ri., una *ut*ity date equal in aggregate principal

amount to the rr*.Ot'-td portion of the Bond surrendered'

section 3.05. Effect of Redemption of B-onds. If notice of redemption has been

dulygivenu,,a,,ot,","inded*ufo,",uffiforthepaymentoftheprincipalof
and redemption premiums, if any, orr, tog"tt 

", yith interest to the redemption date on, the Bonds

or portions tt 
"r"oiro-r"'.a 

ro, i.a.-pii* t^ been irrevocabry depositea wit'the Trustee, then

on the redemption date designated i1 ,,i.t, ,roti"" such Bonds or such portions thereof shall become

irrevocably due and payable, ur-rO from u"J uft"' the date so designatgd inlgrgst on the Bonds or

such portions ttrereiisl;;il"d fo, ,"d"rnftion shall ,"ur. to u"cruJ and the Holders of such Bonds

sha, have no rights in respect thereof e-xiept to receive payment of the principal of such Bonds or

such porrions thereof and the 
,.a.-ffi;;;T*t,if';y, thereon gd.lfre interest accrued

thereon to the redemption aut", prou1i"J, ttui '"at*ption 
of Bonds other than from Minimum

Sinking runa ntt-outtlipuv*"tiJ:'nurr rc made only irom and to the extent of funds on deposit

with the Trustee ;;d 
";;dbre 

for such purpose on the date of redemption'

therefor with the Trustee'

ARTICLE IV

SPECIAL TAX

Section 4.01
The CommunttY Facilities District agrees and

covenants that it will deposit the SPecial Tax proceeds inthe CitY ofFolsom CommunitY Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement AreaNo.3 CommunitY Facilities Fund, which fund

is herebY established in the treasury of the CitY, for and on behalf of the CommunitY Facilities

District, and which fund the CommunitY Facilities District herebY agrees and covenants to

maintain so long as any Bonds are Outstanding hereunder. All moneY inthe CommunttY Facilities

Fund shall be used and withdrawn bY the CommunitY Facilities District solely for the benefit of

the CommunitY Facilities District in accordance with

4r4r-6633-r704.3

28

the Law, including payment of ExPenses

Page 292

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The Community Facilities District agrees and covenants that, after payment of its Priority
Administrative Expenses, it will transfer to the Trustee from the Community Facilities Fund

amounts sufficient and in sufficient time for the Trustee to make the transfers required by Section

4.02 (less any amounts to be transferred pursuant to Section 2.14), and the Trustee shall deposit

such proceeds as and when received in the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement AreaNo. 3 Special Tax Fund, which fund the Trustee shall establish

and maintain so long as Bonds remain Outstanding hereunder, and all money in such fund shall be

held by the Trustee in trust hereunder and shall be disbursed, allocated and applied solely to the

uses and purposes hereinafter set forth in this Article.

Section 4.02. Allocation of Money in the Special Tax Fund. All money in the

Special Tax Fund shall be set aside by the Trustee in the following respective special accounts and

fund within the Special Tax Fund (each of which accounts and fund is hereby created) in the

following order of priority, and all money in each of such accounts and fund shall be applied, used

and withdrawn only for the purposes hereinafter authorized in this Section, namely:

(1) Redemption Account; and

(2) Bond Reserve Fund.

(a) Redemption Account. On or before September I and March 1 in
each year, beginning on September l, 2022, the Trustee shall,.from the money in the

Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account an amount of money

equal to the aggregate amount of interest becoming due and payable on all Outstanding

Bonds on such March 1 or September l, as the case may be, and on or before September I
in each year, beginning on September 1,2022, the Trustee shall, from the then remaining

money in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account an

amount of money equal to the aggregate amount of principal becoming due and payable on

all Outstanding Serial Bonds on such September 1 plus all Minimum Sinking Fund

Account Payments required to be made on such September I into the Sinking Fund

Subaccount; provided, that all of the aforesaid payments shall be made without priority of
any payment over any other payment, and in the event that money in the Special Tax Fund

oouny Murch 1 or September 1 is not equal to the amount of interest becoming due on all

Bonds on such date, or in the event that the money in the Special Tax Fund on any

September 1 is not equal to the amount of principal of the Bonds becoming due on such

date, as the case may be, then such money shall be applied pro rata in such proportion as

such interest and principal and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments bear to each

other.

No deposit need be made into the Redemption Account if the amount of money

contained therein is at least equal to the amount required by the terms of the preceding

paragraphto be deposited therein at the times and in the amounts herein provided.

All money in the Redemption Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee

to pay the interest on the Bonds as it shall become due and payable (including accrued

interest on any Bonds purchased or redeemed prior to maturity) plus the principal of and

redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds as they shall mature or upon the prior

4l4t-6633-1704.3

29

Page 293

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



redemption thereof, except that any money in the Sinking Fund Subaccount shall be used

only to purchase or redeem or retire the Term Bonds as provided herein.

(b) Bond Fund. On or before March I and September I in each

year, beginning on September 1,2022, the Trustee shall, from the then remaining money

in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in each Bond Reserve Account within the

Bond Reserve Fund such amount of money as shall be required to restore each such Bond

Reserve Account to a sum equal to the Required Bond Reserve for the applicable series of
Bonds, pro rata,to the extent that amounts are available in the Special Tax Fund for such

pufpose; and for this purpose all investments in each Bond Reserve Account shall

(beginning on September 1,2022) be valued on March I and September I of each year at

the face value thereof if such investments mature within twelve (12) months from the date

of valuation, or if such investments mature more than twelve (12) months after the date of
valuation, at the price at which such investments are redeemable by the Holder at his or her

option, if so redeemable, or if not so redeemfule, at the lesser of (i) the cost of such

investments plus the amortization of any premium or minus the amortization of any

discount, or (ii) the market value of such investments. For purposes of allocating remaining

money in the Special Tax Fund between more than one Bond Reserve Account, any such

transfers to and deposits in each Bond Reserve Account shall be made equally and ratably

in proportion to the Required Bond Reserve for each series of Bonds.

No deposit need be made into a Bond Reserve Account if the value of the

investments contained therein is at least equal to the Required Bond Reserve for the

applicable series of Bonds.

All money in each Bond Reserve Account shall be used and withdrawn by the

Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the interest on or principal of the corresponding

series of Bonds in the event there is insufficient money in the Redemption Account
available for this purpose; provided, that if as a result of any of the foregoing valuations or
as a result of any property owner prepayment it is determined that the amount of money in
a Bond Reserve Account exceeds or will exceed the Required Bond Reserve for the

applicable series of Bonds, the Trustee shall withdraw the amount of money representing

such excess from such fund and shall deposit such amount of money in the Redemption

Account as provided in the last paragraph of Section 10.05. For the avoidance of doubt,

amounts in a Bond Reserve Account are not available to make up a deficiency for the
payment of principal and interest on any Bonds other than the specific series of Bonds to

which the Bond Reserve Account relates.

ARTICLE V

ANTS OF DISTRI

Section 5.01. Punctual Payment and Performance. The Community Facilities
District will punctually pay the interest on and principal of and redemption premium, if any, to

become due on every Bond issued hereunder in strict conformity with the terms of the Law and

hereof and of the Bonds, and will faithfully observe and perform all the agreements, conditions,

4r4r-6633-1704.3

30

Page 294

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



covenants and tenns contained herein and in the Bonds required to be observed and performed by

it.

Section 5.02 Asainst Indebtednes s and Encumbrances. The Community

Facilities District will not issue any evidences of indebtedness payable from the proceeds of the

Special Tax except as provided herein, and will not create, nor permit the creation of, any pledge,

lien, charge or other encumbrance upon any money in the Special Tax Fund other than as provided

herein; prcviided, that the Community Facilities District may at any time, or from time to time,

issue evidences of indebtedness for any lawful purpose of the Community Facilities District which

are payable from any money in the Community Facilities Fund as may from time to time be

deposited therein so long as any payments due thereunder shall be subordinate in all respects to

the use of the proceeds of the Special Tax as provided herein'

Section 5.03. Against Federal Income Taxation.

(a) Ifthe Community Facilities District has obtained an opinion of Bond

Counsel that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes, the Community Facilities District will not take any action, or fail to take any

action, if such action or failure to take such action would adversely affect the exclusion

from gross income of the interest on the Bonds pursuant to Section 103 of the Code, and

specifically the Community Facilities District will not directly or indirectly use or make

any use of the proceeds of the Bonds or any other funds of the Community Facilities
District or take or omit to take any action that would cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage

bonds" subject to federal income taxation by reason of Section 148 of the Code or "private

activity bonds" subject to federal income taxation by reason of Section 1a1(a) of the Code

or obligations subject to federal income taxation because they are "federally guaranteed"

as provided in Section la9@) of the Code; and to that end the Community Facilities
District, with respect to the proceeds of the Bonds and such other funds, will comply with
all requirements of such sections of the Code and all regulations of the United States

Department of the Treasury issued thereunder to the extent that such regulations are, at the

time, applicable and in effect; provided, that if the Community Facilities District shall

obtain an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that any action

required under this Section is no longer required, or to the effect that some further action

is required, to maintain the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Bonds

pursuant to Section 103 of the Code, the Community Facilities District may rely

conclusively on such opinion in complying with the provisions hereof. In the event that at

any time the Community Facilities District is of the opinion that for purposes of this Section

it is necessary to restrict or limit the yield on the investment of any money held by the

Finance Director, for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District, hereunder or

otherwise the Community Facilities District shall so instruct the Finance Director in
writing, and the Finance Director shall take such action as may be necessary in accordance

with such instructions.

(b) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Community
Facilities District will pay from time to time all amounts required to be rebated to the

United States of America pursuant to Section 148(0 of the Code and all regulations of the

United States Department of the Treasury issued thereunder to the extent that such

4t4l-6633-1704.3

3l
Page 295

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



regulations are, at the time, applicable and in effect, which obligation shall survive payment

in full or defeasance of the Bonds, and to that end, there is hereby established in the treasury

of the City, for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District, a fund to be known as

the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement
Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds Rebate Fund to be held in trust and administered by the

Finance Director for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District. The Community
Facilities District will comply with the provisions of the Tax Certificate with respect to

making deposits in the Rebate Fund, and all money held in the Rebate Fund is pledged to

provide payments to the United States of America as provided herein and in the Tax

Certificate and no other person shall have claim to such money except as provided in the

Tax Certificate.

Section 5.04. Payment of Claims. The Community Facilities District will pay and

discharge any and all lawful claims which, if unpaid, might become payable from the proceeds of
the Special Tax or any part thereof or upon any funds in the hands of the Community Facilities
District or the Trustee allocated to the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds, or which might impair the security of the Bonds.

Section 5.05. Expense Budgets. The City Council, as legislative body of the

Community Facilities District, will, on or before July I in each year, adopt a budget setting forth
the costs of the estimated Expenses for the period from such July I through the next succeeding

June 30; ppvided, that any budget adopted in accordance with this Section may be amended by
the City Council at any time.

Section 5.06. Accounting Records: Financial Statements and Other Reports.

(a) The Community Facilities District will keep, or in the case of
transactions made by the Trustee it will cause the Trustee to keep, appropriate accounting
records in which complete and correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to

the receipt, investment, disbursement, allocation and application of the proceeds of the

Special Tax and of the proceeds of the Bonds, which accounting records shall at all times

during business hours with reasonable prior written notice be subject to the inspection of
any Holder (or his or her representative authorized in writing). The Trustee shall furnish
the Community Facilities District periodic cash transaction statements which include detail
for all investment transactions effected by the Trustee or brokers selected by the

Community Facilities District. Upon the Community Facilities District's election, such

statements will be delivered via the Trustee's online service and upon electing such service,

paper statements will be provided only upon request. The Community Facilities District
waives the right to receive brokerage confirmations of security transactions effected by the

Trustee as they occui, to the extent permitted by law. The Community Facilities District
further understands that trade confirmations for securities transactions effected by the

Trustee will be available upon written request and at no additional cost and other trade

confirmations may be obtained from the applicable broker.

(b) The Community Facilities District will prepare annually not more

than two hundred seventy (270) days after the close of each Fiscal Year (commencing with
the Fiscal Year ending June 30,2022) a sunmary report showing in reasonable detail the

4t4l-6633-1704.3
32

Page 296

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



proceeds of the Special Tax levied and collected and the costs of the Expenses for the
preceding Fiscal Year and containing a general statement of the physical condition of the
Facilities. The Community Facilities District will furnish a copy of such summary report
without charge to any Holder (or his or her representative authorizedinwriting) and to any
investment banker, security dealer or other person interested in the Bonds requesting a copy
thereof.

(c) The Community Facilities District will prepare annually not later
than October 30 of each year (beginning in 2022) and file with the California Debt and
Investment Advisory Commission by mail, postage prepaid, all necessary information
required to be filed under the Law, including:

(1) The principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding;

(2) The balance in each Bond Reserve Account;

(3) The balance in the Redemption Account constituting capitalized interest, if
arry;

(4) The number of parcels securing the Bonds which are delinquent with respect
to their Special Tax payments, the amount that each delinquent parcel is delinquent, the
length of time that each delinquent parcel has been delinquent and when foreclosure was
commenced for each delinquent parcel; and

(5) The assessed value of all parcels subject to the levy of the Special Tax to
repay the Bonds, as shown on the most equalized assessment roll of the County of
Sacramento.

Additionally, the Community Facilities District will notifu the California Debt and
Investment Advisory Commission by mail, postage prepaid, within ten (10) days if the Community
Facilities District or the Trustee fails to pay any interest on or principal of any of the Bonds on any
scheduled payment date, or if funds are withdrawn from a Bond Reserve Account to pay any
interest on or principal of a series of the Bonds.

Section 5.07. Protection of Securitv and Riehts of Holders. The Community
Facilities District will preserve and protect the security of the Bonds and the rights of the Holders
and will wanant and defend their rights against all claims and demands of all persons.

Section 5.08. Payment of Governmcntal Charges and Compliance with
Governmental Resulations. The Community Facilities District will pay and discharge all taxes or
payments in lieu of taxes, assessments and other governmental charges or liens that may be levied,
assessed or charged upon the Facilities or any part thereof promptly as and when the same shall
become due and payable, except that the Community Facilities District shall not be required to pay
any such governmental charges so long as the application or validity thereof shall be contested in
good faith and the Community Facilities District shall have set aside reserves to cover such
charges. The Community Facilities District will duly observe and conform with all valid
regulations and requirements of any governmental authority relative to the operation of the
Facilities or any part thereof, except that the Community Facilities District shall not be required to

4r4t-6633-t704.3
JJ

Page 297

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



comply with any such regulations or requirements so long as the application or validity thereof
shall be contested in good faith.

Section 5.09. Levy and Collection of the Special Tax. The Community Facilities
District, so long as any Bonds are Outstanding, will annually levy the Special Tax against all
Taxable Property in the Improvement Area and make provision for the collection of the Special
Tax in amounts which will be sufhcient, together with the money then on deposit in the
Redemption Account, after making reasonable allowances for contingencies and errors in the
estimates, to yield proceeds equal to the amounts required for compliance with the agreements,
conditions, covenants and terms contained herein, and which in any event will be sufficient to pay
the interest on and principal of and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments for and redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds as they become due and payable and to replenish each Bond
Reserve Account and to pay all current Expenses as they become due and payable in accordance
with the provisions and terms hereof. The Special Tax shall be collected in the same manner as

ordinary ad valorem property taxes are collected and, except as otherwise provided in Section 5.10
or by the Law, shall be subject to the same penalties and the same collection procedure, sale, and
lien priority in case of delinquency as is provided for ad valorem property taxes.

Section 5.10. Foreclosure of Special Tax Liens The Community Facilities
District shall annually on or before September I of each year review the public records of the
County of Sacramento relating to the collection of the Special Tax in order to determine the amount
of the Special Tax collected in the prior Fiscal Year, and if the Community Facilities District
determines on the basis of such review that the amount so collected is deficient by more than five
percent (5%) of the total amount of the Special Tax levied in such Fiscal Year, it will within sixty
(60) days thereafter institute foreclosure proceedings as authorizedby the Law in order to enforce
the lien of the delinquent installments of the Special Tax against each lot or parcel of land in the
Improvement Area, and will diligently prosecute and pursue such foreclosure proceedings to
judgment and sale; ploviidgd, that irrespective of the foregoing if the Community Facilities District
determines on the basis of such review that property owned by any single property owner in the
Improvement Area is delinquent by four missed payments with respect to the Special Tax due and
payable by such property owner by such delinquency date, then the Community Facilities District
will institute, prosecute and pursue such foreclosure proceedings in the time and manner provided
herein against such property owner; provided further, that any actions taken to enforce delinquent
Special Tax liens shall be taken only consistent with Sections 53356.1 through 53356.7,both
inclusive, of the Govemment Code of the State of California; and provided further, that the
Community Facilities District shall not be obligated to enforce the lien of any delinquent
installment of the Special Tax for any Fiscal Year in which the Community Facilities District shall
have received one hundred percent (I00%) of the amount of such installment from the County of
Sacramento pursuant to the so-called "Teeter Plan."

Section 5.1 1. Further Assurances. The Community Facilities District will adopt,
deliver, execute, make and file any and all further assurances, instruments and resolutions as may
be reasonably necessary or proper to carry out the intention or to facilitate the performance hereof
and for the better assuring and confirming unto the Holders of the rights and benefits provided
herein, including without limitation the filing of all financing statements, agreements, instruments
or other documents in the forms and in the locations necessary to perfect and protect, and to
continue the perfection of, the pledge of the Special Taxes provided herein to the fullest extent

4t4l-6633-1'.|04.3
34

Page 298

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



possible under applicable law of the State of California. Further, the Community Facilities District
covenants to not approve any amendments, changes or modifications relating to development of
the property within the Improvement Area that would reduce the amount of the Maximum
Facilities Special Tax less Priority Administrative Expenses to equal less than one hundred ten
percent (lI0%) of the sum of the Annual Debt Service on the Bonds in any year until the maturity
date for the Bonds.

ARTICLE VI

THE TRUSTEE

Section 6.01. The Trustee. U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association at its
Corporate Trust Office in San Francisco, California, is hereby appointed Trustee for the purpose
of receiving all money which the Community Facilities District is required to transfer to it
hereunder and for applying and using such money as provided herein for the pulpose of paying the
interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds. The Community
Facilities District agrees that it will at all times maintain a Trustee having a designated corporate
trust office in Los Angeles or San Francisco, Califomia.

The Trustee and the Community Facilities District shall, prior to an Event of
Default, and after the curing or waiver of all Events of Default which may have occurred, perform
such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Indenture. The Trustee shall,
during the existence of any Event of Default (which has not been cured or waived), exercise such
of the rights and powers vested in it by this Indenture, and use the same degree of care and skill in
their exercise as a prudent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of
his or her own affairs.

The Community Facilities District may remove the Trustee initially appointed and
any successor thereto and may appoint a successor or successors thereto by an instrument in
writing; ploviidgd, that any such successor shall be a bank or trust company doing business and
having a designated corporate trust office in Los Angeles or San Francisco, California, having a

combined capital (exclusive of borrowed capital) and surplus of at least one hundred million
dollars ($100,000,000) and subject to supervision or examination by a federal or state banking
authority. If such bank or trust company publishes a report of condition at least annually, pursuant
to law or to the requirements of any supervising or examining authority above referred to, then for
the purpose of this Section the combined capital and surplus of such bank or trust company shall
be deemed to be its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition
so published. The Trustee may at any time resign by giving written notice of such resignation to
the Community Facilities District and by giving notice of such resignation by mail pursuant to
Section 10.14 to the Holders, and upon receiving such notice of resignation, the Community
Facilities District shall promptly appoint a successor Trustee by an instrument in writing having
the qualihcations required hereby. Any resignation or removal of a Trustee and appointment of a
successor Trustee shall become effective only upon the acceptance of appointment by the
successor Trustee. If within thirty (30) days after notice of the removal or resignation of the
Trustee no successor Trustee shall have been appointed by the Community Facilities District and
shall have accepted such appointment, the removed or resigning Trustee may petition, at the
expense of the Community Facilities District, any court of competent jurisdiction for the

4t4t-6633-1704.3
35

Page 299

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



appointment of a successor Trustee, which court may thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it may
deem proper and prescribe and as may be required by law, appoint a successor Trustee having the
qualifications required hereby.

Any company into which the Trustee shall be merged or converted or with which
it may be consolidated or any company resulting from any merger, conversation or consolidation
to which it shall be a party or any company to which the Trustee may sell or transfer all or
substantially all of its corporate trust business, so long as such company shall meet the
requirements set forth in this Section, shall be the successor to the Trustee and shall be vested with
all of the trusts, powers, discretions, immunities, privileges and all other matters as was its
predecessor, without the execution or filing of any paper or further act, anything herein to the
contrary notwithstanding.

Section 6.02. Liabilitv of the Trustee. The recitals of facts, agreements and
covenants contained herein and in the Bonds shall be taken as statements, agreements and

covenants of the Community Facilities District, and the Trustee shall not assume any responsibility
for the correctness of the same and does not make any representation as to the sufficiency or
validity hereof or of the Bonds or of the Special Tax, or as to the financial or technical feasibility
of the acquisition and construction of any of the Facilities, and shall not incur any responsibility
in respect thereof other than in connection with the rights and obligations expressly assigned to or
imposed upon it herein or in the Bonds, and shall not be liable in connection with the performance
of its duties hereunder except for its own negligence or willful misconduct. The Trustee shall not
be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith, unless it shall be proved that the Trustee
was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts, and no provision hereof shall require the Trustee

to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any liability for the performance of its duties
hereunder, or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers hereunder.

The Trustee shall not be liable for any enor of judgment made in good faith by a

Responsible Officer unless it shall be proved that the Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the
pertinent facts, and the Trustee shall be entitled to advice of counsel of its selection concerning all
matters of trust and its duties hereunder and the advice of such counsel or any Opinion of Counsel
shall be full and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken, suffered or
omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in reliance thereon. The Trustee may execute any of the
trusts or powers set forth herein and perform the duties required of it hereunder by or through
attorneys, agents or attorneys, and the Trustee shall not be liable for the negligence or misconduct
of any agent, attorney or certified public accountant selected by it with due care.

The Trustee shall, at all times, perform such duties and only such duties as are

specifically set forth herein, and no implied duties or obligations shall be read herein against the
Trustee. At no time shall the Trustee be a fiduciary or have fiduciary duties hereunder.

The Trustee shall not be bound to recognize any person as the Holder of a Bond
unless and until such Bond is submitted for inspection, if required, and such Holder's title thereto
is certihed to the Trustee in a written instrument, upon which the Trustee shall be entitled to
conclusively rely.

4r4t-6633-t704.3
36

Page 300

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted to be

taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of not less than a majority
in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds exercising any trust or power conferred upon the
Trustee hereunder.

The Trustee has no obligation to the Holders and shall incur no liability for the
payment of the interest on, principal of or redemption premiums, if any, with respect to the Bonds
from its own funds. The duties and obligations of the Trustee shall be determined solely by the

express provisions of this Indenture, and the Trustee shall perform such duties and obligations as

are specifically set forth in this Indenture and shall not be liable except for its negligence or willful
misconduct, and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Indenture against the
Trustee.

The Trustee shall not be deemed to have knowledge of any Event of Default
hereunder unless and until a Responsible Officer at the Trustee's Corporate Trust Office
responsible for the administration of the Trustee's duties and obligations hereunder shall have

actual knowledge thereof or the Trustee shall have received written notice thereof at its Corporate
Trust Office. The Trustee shall not be bound to ascertain or to inquire as to the performance or
observance of any of the agreements, conditions, covenants or terms herein or of any of the

documents executed in connection with the Bonds, or as to the existence of an Event of Default
hereunder.

No provision hereof shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its own funds or
otherwise incur any financial liability inthe performance or exercise of any of its duties hereunder,

or in the exercise of its rights or powers. The Trustee shall be entitled to interest on all amounts

advanced to it hereunder at its prime rate plus two percent (2%),but not greater than twelve percent
(12%) per anmrm.

The Trustee shall have no responsibility, opinion or liability with respect to any
information, statement or recital in any offering memorandum or other disclosure material
prepared or distributed with respect to the issuance of the Bonds.

All rights, privileges, immunities, indemnifications and releases from liability
granted herein to the Trustee shall extend to the directors, employees, officers and agents thereof.

In no event shall the Trustee be responsible or liable for special, indirect, punitive
or consequential loss or damage of any kind whatsoever (including, but not limited to, loss of
profit) irrespective of whether the Trustee has been advised of the likelihood of such loss or
damage and regardless of the form of action.

Section 6.03. Compensation and Indemnification of the Trustee. The Community
Facilities District agrees to pay to the Trustee from time to time, and the Trustee shall receive
compensation for all services rendered by it in the exercise and performance of any of the duties
and obligations of the Trustee hereunder, as mutually and previously agreed upon in writing, and

the Community Facilities District will pay or reimburse the Trustee upon its request for all
expenses, disbursements and advances incurred or made by the Trustee and its affiliates, directors,
employees or agents in accordance with any of the provisions hereof (including the reasonable

4t4t-6633-1704.3
37

Page 301

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



compensation and the expenses and disbursements of its counsel and of all persons not regularly

in its employ) except any such expense, disbursement or advance as may arise from its negligence

or willful misconduct. The Community Facilities District, to the extent permitted by law, agrees

to indemniff, defend and hold harmless the Trustee against any and all loss, damages, claims,

liability o. e*pettr. incurred without negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the Trustee

arising out oi or in connection with (i) the exercise or perforrnance of any of its duties or

obligations hereunder, or (ii) any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of any material fact

or oirission or alleged omission to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in

the tight of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any official statement

or other offering circular utilized in connection with the sale of any of the Bonds, including costs

and expenses (including attorneys' fees and expenses) of defending itself against any claim or

liability in connection with the exercise or performance of any of its duties and obligations

hereunder. The rights of the Trustee and the obligations of the Community Facilities District under

this Section shall survive the discharge of the Bonds and the resignation or removal of the Trustee.

Section 6.04. Notice to the Trustee. The Trustee shall be protected in acting upon

any Bond, certificate, consent, notice, opinion, report, request, resolution or other document or

paper believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or

purtl"r. The Trustee may consult with counsel of its selection, including, without limitation,

counsel to the Community Facilities District, with regard to legal questions, and the opinion of
such counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection with respect to any action

taken or suffered hereunder in good faith and in accordance therewith.

Whenever in the administration of its rights and obligations hereunder the Trustee

shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be established or proved prior to taking or

suffering any action hereunder, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein

specifically prescribed) may, in the absence of negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the

Trustee, be deemed to be conclusively established or proved by a Certificate of the Community

Facilities District or an Accountant's Report, which shall be fuIl warrant to the Trustee for any

action taken or suffered under the provisions hereof upon the faith thereof, and on which the

Trustee may conclusively rely, but in its reasonable judgment the Trustee may, in lieu thereof,

accept other evidence of such matter or may require such additional evidence as it may deem

reasonable.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENT OFORS TO THE INDENTURE

Section 7.01. Procedure for Amendment of or Supplement to the Indenture.

(a) Amendment or Supplement With Consent of Holders. The

Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Community Facilities District and of the

Holders may be amended or supplemented at arry time by the execution and delivery of a

Supplemental Indenture by the Community Facilities District and the Trustee, which

Supplemental Indenture shall become binding when the written consents of the Holders of
sixty percent (60%) or more in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding,

"*"i.trirr" 
of Bonds disqualified as provided in Section 7.02, shallhave been filed with the

4t4t-6633-t704.3

38

Page 302

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Trustee; ploviidgd, that no such amendment or supplement shall (1) extend the maturity of
or reduce the interest rate on or otherwise alter or impair the obligation of the Community
Facilities District to pay the interest on or principal of or Minimum Sinking Fund Account

Payment for or redemption premium, if any, on any Bond at the time and place and at the

rate and in the curency and from the funds provided herein without the express written
consent of the Holder of such Bond, or (2) permit the issuance by the Community Facilities

District of any obligations payable from the proceeds of the Special Tax other than the

Bonds as provided herein, or j eopardi ze the ability of the Community Facilities District to

levy and collect the Special Tay,, or (3) reduce the percentage of Bonds required for the

written consent to any such amendment or supplement, or (a) modiff any rights or

obligations of the Trustee without its prior written assent thereto.

(b) Consent of The

Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Community Facilities District and of the

Holders may also be amended or supplemented at any time by the execution and delivery
of a Supplemental Indenture by the Community Facilities District and the Trustee, which
Supplemental Indenture shall become binding upon execution without the prior written

consent of any Holders, but only to the extent permitted by law and after receiving an

Opinion of Counsel, stating that the Supplemental Indenture is the valid and binding

obligation of the Community Facilities District, and only for any one or more of the

following purposes:

(D To add to the agreements and covenants required herein to
be performed by the Community Facilities District other agreements and

covenants thereafter to be performed by the Community Facilities District
which shall not (in the opinion of the Community Facilities District)
adversely affect the interests of the Holders, or to surrender any right or
power reserved herein to or conferred herein upon the Community Facilities
District which shall not (in the opinion of the Community Facilities District)
adversely affect the interests of the Holders;

(iD To make such provisions for the purpose of curing any

ambiguity or of curing, correcting or supplementing any defective provision

contained herein or in regard to questions arising hereunder which the

Community Facilities District may deem desirable or necessary and not
inconsistent herewith and which shall not (in the opinion of the Community
Facilities District) adversely affect the interests of the Holders;

(iiD To authorize the issuance of Additional Bonds and to
provide the conditions and terms under which the Additional Bonds may be

issued;

(iv) To authorize the issuance under and subject to the Law of
any refunding bonds for any of the Bonds and to provide the conditions and

terms under which such refunding bonds may be issued;

4141-6633-1704.3

39

Page 303

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(v) To make such additions, deletions or modifications as may

be necessary or appropriate to ensufe compliance with section la8(f) of the

Code relating to tire iequired rebate of excess investment earnings to the

United states of America, or otherwise as may be necessary to ensure the

exclusion from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation of the

interest on the Bonds or the eiemption of such interest from State of

California personal income taxes; or

(vi) To make such additions, deletions or modifications as may

be necessary or applopriate to maintain any then current rating on the

Bonds.

Section 7.02. Disqualified Bonds. Bonds owned or held for the account of the

Community Facilities District shall not be deemed Outstanding for the purpose of any consent or

other action or any calculation of outstanding Bonds provided for in this Article or in Article vIII,

and shall not be entitred to consent to or tafe *y oih.t action provided for in this Article or in

Article VIII.

Section 7.03 of

Supplement. After the effective date of anY action taken as hereinabove provided, the CommunitY

Facilities District may determine that the Bonds maY bear a notation by endorsement in form

approved by it as to such action, and in that case upon demand of the Holder of anY Bond

Outstanding on such effective date and presentation of his or her Bond for such Pulpose at the

Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee a suitable notation as to such action shall be made on such

Bond. If the CommunitY Facilities District shall so determine, new Bonds so modified as, in the

opinion of the CommunitY Facilities District, shall be necessary to conform to such action shall be

prepared and executed, and in that case upon demand of the Holder of any Bond Outstanding on

such effective date such new Bonds shall, uPon surrender of such Outstanding Bonds, be

exchanged at the CorPorate Trust

then Outstanding.

Office of the Trustee, without cost to each Holder, for Bonds

Section 7.04.

this Article shall not Prevent
particular Bonds held bY him

The provisions of

any Holder from accePting any amendment or suPPlement as to anY

or her; ppvtdgd, that due notation thereof is made on such Bonds

ARTICLE VIII

S o

Section g.01. Events of Default and Remedies of Holders. If one or more of the

following events (herein "Events of Default") shall happen, that is to say:

(a) if default shall be made by the Community Facilities District in the

due and punctual payment of any interest o1 oi principal of or Minimum sinking Fund

Account p"V-."if"r any of thl Bonds when and as the same shall become due and

payable;

414t-6633-1704.3

40

Page 304

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(b) if default shall be made by the Community Facilities District in the

observance or performance of any of the other agreements or covenants contained herein

required to be observed or performed by it, and such default shall have continued for a
period of thirty (30) days after the Community Facilities District shall have been given

notice in writing of such default by the Trustee;

(c) if default shall be made by the Community Facilities District in the

due and punctual payment of any indebtedness on a parity with or senior to the Bonds; or

(d) if the Community Facilities District shall file a petition or answer

seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other

applicable law of the United States of America or any state therein, or if a court of
competent jurisdiction shall approve a petition filed with or without the consent of the

Community Facilities District seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal

bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America or any state

therein, or ifunder the provisions ofany other law for the reliefor aid ofdebtors any court

of competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Community Facilities

District or of the whole or any substantial part of its property;

then in each and every such case during the continuance of such Event of Default any Holder shall

have the right for the equal benefit and protection of all Holders similarly situated:

(a) by mandamus or other suit or proceeding at law or in equity to

enforce his rights against the City Council or the Community Facilities District or any of
the officers or employees of the Community Facilities District, and to compel the City
Council or the Community Facilities District or any such offtcers or employees to perform

and carry out their duties under the Law and the agreements and covenants with the Holders

contained herein;

(b) by suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or

violate the rights of the Holders; or

(c) by suit in equity upon the nonpayment of the Bonds to require the

City Council or the Community Facilities District or its officers and employees to account

as the trustee of an exPress trust.

Section 8.02. Non-Waiver. Nothing in this Article or in any other provision herein

or in the Bonds shall affect or impair the obligation of the Community Facilities District, which is

absolute and unconditional, to pay the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if
any, on the Bonds to the respective Holders of the Bonds at the respective dates of maturity or

upon redemption prior to maturity as provided herein from the proceeds of the Special Tax and the

other funds as provided herein, or shall affect or impair the right of such Holders, which is also

absolute and unconditional, to institute suit to enforce such payment by virtue of the contract

embodied herein and in the Bonds.

A waiver of any Event of Default or breach of duty or contract by any Holder shall

not affect any subsequent Event of Default or breach of duty or contract and shall not impair any

rights or remedies on any such subsequent Event of Default or breach of duty or contract. No

4r4r-6633-t7o4.t 
o'

Page 305

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



delay or omission by any Holder to exercise any right or remedy accruing upon any Event of
Default or breach of duty or contract shall impair any such right or remedy or shall be construed

to be a waiver of any such Event of Default or breach of duty or contract or an acquiescence

therein, and every right and remedy conferred upon the Holders by the Law or hereby may be

enforced and exercised from time to time and as often as shall be deemed expedient by the Holders.

If any action, proceeding or suit to enforce any right or exercise any remedy is

abandoned or determined adversely to any Holder, the Community Facilities District and such

Holder shall be restored to their former positions, rights and remedies as if such action, proceeding

or suit had not been brought or taken.

Section 8.03. Remedies Not Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or

reserved to the Holders is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and every such remedy

shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or

hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be exercised without

exhausting and without regard to any other remedy conferred by the Law or any other law.

ARTICLE IX

DEFEASANCE

Section 9.01. Discharee of the Bonds.

(a) If the Community Facilities District shall pay or cause to be paid or

there shall otherwise be paid to the Holders of all Outstanding Bonds the interest thereon

and the principal thereof and the redemption premiums, if any, thereon at the times and in
the manner stipulated therein and herein, then all agreements, covenants and other

obligations of the Community Facilities District to the Holders of such Bonds hereunder

shall thereupon cease, terminate and become void and be discharged and satisfied. In such

event, the Trustee shall execute and deliver to the Community Facilities District all such

instruments as may be necessary or desirable to evidence such discharge and satisfaction,

and the Trustee shall pay over or deliver to the Community Facilities District for deposit

in the Community Facilities Fund all money or securities held by it pursuant hereto which

are not required for the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption

premiums, if any, on such Bonds.

(b) Any Outstanding Bonds shall on the maturity date or redemption

date thereof be deemed to have been paid within the meaning of and with the effect

expressed in subsection (a) of this Section if there shall have been irrevocably deposited

with the Trustee money which is sufficient to pay the interest due on such Bonds on such

date and the principal and redemption premiums, if any, due on such Bonds on such date.

(c) Any Outstanding Bonds shall prior to the maturity date or

redemption date thereof be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the

effect expressed in subsection (a) of this Section if (l) in case any of such Bonds are to be

redeemed on any date prior to their maturity date, the Community Facilities District shall

have agreed to mail a notice of redemption pursuant to Section 10.14 to the respective

4r4r-6633-1704.3

42

Page 306

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Holders of all such Outstanding Bonds and to the securities depositories or securities

information services selected by it pursuant to Section 3.03, (2) there shall have been filed
with the Community Facilities District and the Trustee an Opinion of Counsel to the effect

that the payment of such Bonds has been provided for in the manner set forth herein and

that all obligations of the Community Facilities District with respect to such Bonds have

been discharged and satisfied and there shall have been deposited with an escrow agent

meeting the requirements of a successor trustee set forth in Section 6.01 or the Trustee

either (i) money in an amount which shall be sufficient to pay when due the interest on and

principal of and redemption premiums, if any, due and to become due on such Bonds on

and prior to the date scheduled for redemption or maturity date thereof, as the case may be

andlor (ii) Federal Securities which are not subject to redemption except by the holder

thereof prior to maturity (including any Federal Securities issued or held in book-entry

form on the books of the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America), the

interest on and principal of which when paid will provide money which, together with the

money, if any, deposited with such escrow agent meeting the requirements of a successor

trustee set forth in Section 6.01 or the Trustee at the same time, shall be sufficient to pay

when due the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, due and to

become dug on such Bonds on and prior to the date scheduled for redemption or maturity

date thereof, as the case may be, as evidenced by an Accountant's Report on file with the

Community Facilities District and the Trustee, and (3) in the event such Bonds are not by

their terms subject to redemption within the next succeeding sixty (60) days, the

Community Facilities District shall have agreed to mail pursuant to Section 10.14 anotice

to the Holders of such Bonds and to the securities depositories and securities information
services selected by it pursuant to Section 3.03 that the deposit required by clause (2) above

has been made with such escrow agent meeting the requirements of a successor trustee set

forth in Section 6.01 or the Trustee and that such Bonds are deemed to have been paid in
accordance with this Section and stating the maturity dates or redemption dates, as the case

may be, upon which money will be available for the payment of the principal of and

redemption premiums, if any, on such Bonds'

Section 9.02. Unclaimed Money. Anything contained herein to the contrary

notwithstanding, any money held by the Trustee in trust for the payment and discharge of any of
the Bonds or any interest thereon which remains unclaimed for two (2) years after the date when

such Bonds or interest thereon have become due and payable, either at their stated maturity dates

or by call for redemption prior to maturity, if such money was held by the Trustee on such date, or

for two (2) years after the date of deposit of such money if deposited with the Trustee after the

date when such Bonds or interest thereon became due and payable, shall be repaid by the Trustee

to the Community Facilities District as its absolute property free from trust for deposit in the

Community Facilities Fund and for use in accordance with the Law, and the Trustee shall

thereupon be released and discharged with respect thereto and the Holders shall look only to the

Community Facilities District for the payment of such Bonds and interest thereon; plQvldecl, that

before the Trustee shall be required to make any such repayment the Community Facilities District
shall mail pursuant to Section 10.14 a notice to the Holders of all Outstanding Bonds and to such

securities depositories and securities information services selected by it pursuant to Section 3.03

that such money remains unclaimed and that after a date named in such notice, which date shall

not be less than thirty (30) days after the date of the mailing of such notice, the balance of such

4t4r-6633-1704.3

43

Page 307

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



money then unclaimed will be returned to the Community Facilities District for deposit in the
Community Facilities Fund.

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.01 Facilities District Limited to
the Special Tax and Certain Other Funds. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the

Community Facilities District shall not be required to advance any money derived from any source

of income other than the proceeds of the Special Tax net of Priority Administrative Expenses and

the other funds provided herein for the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds.

The Bonds are special tax obligations of the Community Facilities District and the

interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds are payable solely
from the proceeds of the Special Tax (including any prepayments thereof and proceeds from the
sale of property collected pursuant to the foreclosure provisions of the Indenture for the

delinquency of the Special Tax), net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and amounts in certain
funds and accounts established in the Indenture, and the Community Facilities District is not
obligated to pay the Bonds except from such funds. The General Fund of the City and the funds
of the Community Facilities District are not liable, and neither the full faith and credit of the
Community Facilities District nor the City are pledged for the payment of the interest on or
principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds, and no tax or assessment other than
the Special Tax shall ever be levied or collected to pay the interest on or principal of or redemption
premiums, if any, on the Bonds. The Bonds are not secured by a legal or equitable pledge of or
charge, lien or encumbrance upon any property of the Community Facilities District or any of its
income or receipts except the proceeds of the Special Tax (including any prepayments thereof and

proceeds from the sale ofproperty collected pursuant to the foreclosure provisions ofthe Indenture
for the delinquency of the Special Tax), net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and amounts in
certain funds and accounts established in the Indenture, and neither the payment of the interest on
or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds is a general debt, liability or
obligation of the Community Facilities District. The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of
the Community Facilities District within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt
limitation or restriction, and neither the City Council nor the Community Facilities District nor
any officer or employee thereof shall be liable for the payment of the interest on or principal of or
redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds otherwise than from the proceeds of the Special Tax,
net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and such other funds as provided in the Indenture.

Section 10.02. Benefits of the Indenture Limited to Certain Parties. Nothing
contained herein, express or implied, is intended to give to any entity or person other than the City
Council, the Community Facilities District, the Trustee, and the Holders any right, remedy or claim
under or by reason hereof, and any agreement or covenant required herein to be performed by or
on behalf of the City Council or the Community Facilities District or any officer or employee
thereof shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the Trustee and the Holders.

4t4t-6633-1704.3
44

Page 308

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Section 10.03. Successor Is Deemed Included in All References to Predecessor.

Whenever either the City Council or the Community Facilities District or any offtcer or employee

thereof or of the City is named or referred to herein, such reference shall be deemed to include the

successor to the powers, duties and functions with respect to the administration, control and

management of the Community Facilities District that are presently vested in the City Council or

the Community Facilities District or such officer or employee, and all agreements and covenants

required herein to be performed by or on behalf of the City Council or the Community Facilities

District or any officer or employee thereof shall bind and inure to the benefit of the respective

successors thereofwhether so expressed or not.

Section 10.04. Execution of Documents by Holders. Any declaration, request or

other instrument which is permitted or required herein to be executed by Holders may be in one or

more instruments of similar tenor, and may be executed by Holders in person or by their attomeys

duly authorized,inwriting. The fact and date of the execution by any Holder or his attorney of any

declaration, request or other instrument or of any writing appointing such attorney may be proved

by the certificate of any notary public or other officer authorized to take acknowledgments of deeds

to be recorded in the state or territory in which he or she purports to act that the person signing

such declaration, request or other instrument or writing acknowledged to him or her the execution

thereof, or by an affidavit of a witness to such execution duly sworn to before such notary public

or other officer. The ownership of Bonds and the amount, maturity, number and date of holding

the same shall be provided by the registration books required to be kept by the Trustee pursuant to

Section 2.09.

Any declaration, request or other instrument or writing of the Holder of any Bond

shall bind all future Holders of such Bond with respect to anything done or suffered to be done by

the Community Facilities District in good faith and in accordance therewith.

Section 10.05. ln All
money held by the Trustee in any accounts and funds established herein shall be deposited in time

or demand deposits in any state or nationally chartered bank or trust company, including the

Trustee, or any state or federal savings and loan association, and shall be secured at all times by

such obligations as are required by law and to the fullest extent required by law, except such money

that is at the time invested in accordance with this Section. Any money in the Acquisition and

Construction Fund and in the Special Tax Fund and in the Redemption Account shall be invested

by the Trustee pursuant to a Written Request of the Community Facilities District received by the

Trustee at least three (3) days before making any such investment in those Permitted Investments

specified in such Written Request of the Community Facilities District that mature not later than

the date on which it is estimated that such money will be required to be paid out hereunder, and

any money in a Bond Reserve Account shall be invested by the Trustee pursuant to a Written

Request of the Community Facilities District received by the Trustee at least three (3) days before

making any such investment in those Permitted Investments specified in such Written Request of
the Community Facilities District that mature not more than five (5) years from the date of
purchase by the Trustee, or the final maturity date of any Outstanding Bonds, whichever is earlier;

and the Trustee may conclusively rely and determine that any investment specified in any such

Written Request of the Community Facilities District is a Permitted Investment or a Federal

Security, as the case may be, hereunder; gqvldgd, that in the absence of written instructions from

the Community Facilities District regarding such investments, such money shall be held

4141 -6633-t704.3

45

Page 309

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



uninvested. The Trustee (or any affiliate thereof) may act as principal or agent in the making of
any investment hereunder and may impose its customary charges therefor, and shall not be

responsible for any losses, taxes, fees or other charge suffered in connection with any investment,

reinvestment or liquidation of investments made in accordance herewith. Notwithstanding
anything in the Indenture to the contrary, for purposes of any time limitation on the maturity of an

investment of moneys in the funds and accounts held thereunder, such investment shall be deemed

to satisff such time limitation if, by its terms and within such time limitation, the Community
Facilities District or the Trustee has the right, for any purpose permitted or required under the

Indenture, to demand the repurchase, redemption, withdrawal or termination of such investment

and to receive at least the outstanding par amount thereof plus accrued interest, without penalty.

All interest received on any such money so deposited or invested which exceeds

the requirements of the account or fund from which such money was deposited or invested shall

(as specified in a Written Request of the Community Facilities District filed with the Trustee)
(subject to the requirements of Section 5.03) be deposited in the Redemption Account, and all
losses on any such money so deposited or invested shall be borne by the account or fund from
which the deposit or investment was made.

Section 10.06. Waiver of Personal LiabiliW. No member of the City Council or

officer or employee of the City, acting for and on behalf of the Community Facilities District, shall

be individually or personally liable for the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption

premiums, if any, on the Bonds, but nothing herein contained shall relieve any member of the City
Council or officer or employee of the City from the performance of any offrcial duty provided
hereby or by the Law or by atty other applicable provisions of law.

Section 10.07. Acquisition of Bonds by Communitv Facilities District. All Bonds

acquired by the Community Facilities District, whether by purchase or gift or otherwise, shall be

surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation and destruction by it, and the Trustee shall send the

Community Facilities District a certificate of such destruction

Section 10.08. Content of Certificates and Reports. Every certificate or report with
respect to compliance with an agreement, condition, covenant or term provided herein shall include

(a) a statement that the person or persons making or giving such certificate or report have read

such agreement, condition, covenant or term and the definitions herein relating thereto; (b) a brief
statement as to the nature and scope of the examination or investigation upon which the opinion
contained in such certificate or report is based; (c) a statement that, in the opinion of the signers,

they have made or caused to be made such examination or investigation as is necessary to enable

them to express an informed opinion as to whether or not such agreement, condition, covenant or
term has been complied with; and (d) a statement as to whether, in the opinion of the signers, such

agreement, condition, covenant or term has been complied with.

Any such certificate made or given by an officer of the City, for and on behalf of
the Community Facilities District, may be based, insofar as it relates to legal matters, upon a

representation made in an Opinion of Counsel unless such officer knows that the representation

with respect to the matters upon which his certificate may be based, as aforesaid, is erroneous, or
in the exercise of reasonable care should have known that the same was effoneous. Any such

Opinion of Counsel may be based, insofar as it relates to factual matters information with respect

414t-6633-1704.3

46

Page 310

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



to which is in the possession of the Community Facilities District, upon a representation by an

officer or officers of the City unless the counsel giving such Opinion of Counsel knows that the

representation with respect to the matters upon which his representation may be based, as

aforesaid, is erroneous, or in the exercise of reasonable care should have known that the same was

erToneous.

Section 10.09. Maintenance of Accounts and Funds. Any account or fund required

herein to be established and maintained by the Trustee may be maintained by the Trustee in its
accounting records in its customary manner either as an account or a fund, and may, for the

purposes of such accounting records, any audits thereof and any financial reports or statements

with respect thereto, be treated either as an account or as a fund; but all such accounting records

with respect to all such accounts and funds shall at all times be maintained by the Trustee in
accordance with trust industry standards.

Section 10.10. Article and Section Headings. Gender and References. The

headings or titles of the several articles and sections hereof and the table of contents appended

hereto shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the construction, effect or

meaning hereof, and words of any gender shall be deemed and construed to include all genders.

All references herein to o'Articles," "sections" and other subdivisions are to the corresponding

articles, sections or subdivisions hereof; and the words "hereby," "herein," "hereof," "hereto,"
"herewith" and "hereunder" and other words of similar import refer to the Indenture as a whole

and not to any particular article, section or subdivision hereof.

Section 10.11 Partial Invaliditv. If any one or more of the agreements, conditions,

covenants or terms or portions thereof required hereby to be observed or performed by the

Community Facilities District or the Trustee should be contrary to law, then such agreement or

agreements, such condition or conditions, such covenant or covenants or such term or terms or

such portions thereof shall be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining

agreements, conditions, covenants or terms or portions thereof and shall in no way affect the

validity hereof or of the Bonds; and the Holders shall retain all the rights and benefits accorded to

them under the Law or any other applicable provisions of law. The Community Facilities District
hereby declares that it would have executed the Indenture and each and every other article, section,

paragraph,subdivision, sentence, clause and phrase hereof and would have authorized the issuance

of the Bonds pursuant hereto irrespective of the fact that any one or more of the articles, sections,

paragraphs, subdivisions, sentences, clauses or phrases hereof or the application thereof to any

person or circumstance may be held to be unconstitutional, unenforceable or invalid.

Section 10.12. Execution in Counterparts and Electronic Execution. The Indenture

may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of
which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. The exchange of copies of the Indenture

and of signature pages by facsimile or PDF transmission shall constitute effective execution and

delivery of the Indenture as to the parties hereto and may be used in lieu of the original Indenture

and signature pages for all pu{poses. Each party agrees that the electronic signatures, whether

digital or encrypted, of the parties included in this Indenture are intended to authenticate this

writing and to have the same force and effect as manual signatures. Electronic signature means

any electronic sound, symbol, or process attached to or logically associated with a record and

4141-6633-1704.3

47

Page 311

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



executed and adopted by a party with the intent to sign such record, including facsimile or email

electronic signatures.

Section 10.13. Governing Law. The Indenture shall be governed by and construed

and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

Section 10.14. Notices. All written notices to be given hereunder shall be given by

mail or electronic means to the party entitled thereto at its address set forth below, or at such other

address as such party may provide to the other parties in writing from time to time, namely:

If to the Community Facilities District:

City of Folsom
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630
Attention: Finance Director
Fax: 9 1 6-985-0870
Email : financetreasury@folsom.ca.us

If to the Trustee:

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association
One California Street, Suite 1000

San Francisco, CA 94111
Attention: Corporate Trust
Fax: (415) 677-3596
Email : karen.lei@usbank.com

Each such notice, statement, demand, consent, approval, authorization,

offer, designation, request or other communication hereunder shall be deemed delivered to

the party to whom it is addressed (a) if personally served or delivered, upon delivery, @)
if given by electronic communication, upon the sender's receipt of an appropriate answer

back or other written acknowledgment or confirmation of receipt of the entire notice,

approval, demand, report or other communication, (c) if given by first class mail deposited

with the United States mail postage prepaid, seventy-two (72) hours after such notice is

deposited with the United States mail, (d) if given by ovemight courier, with courier

charges prepaid, twenty-four (24) hours after delivery to said overnight courier, or (e) if
given by any other means, upon delivery at the address specified in this Section.

The Trustee shall have the right to accept and act upon instructions,

including funds transfer instructions ("Instructions") given pursuant to this Indenture and

delivered using Electronic Means ("Electronic Means" shall mean the following
communications methods: e-mail, facsimile transmission, secure electronic transmission

containing applicable authorization codes, passwords andior authentication keys issued by

the Trustee, or another method or system specified by the Trustee as available for use in
connection with its services hereunder); provided, however, that the Community Facilities

District shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing officers with the

414t-6633-t704.3

48

Page 312

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Community Facilities District to provide such Instructions and containing specimen

signatures of such offrcers, which incumbency certificate shall be amended by the

Community Facilities District whenever a person is to be added or deleted from the listing.
If the Community Facilities District elects to give the Trustee Instructions using Electronic

Means and the Trustee in its reasonable judgment elects to act upon such Instructions, the

Trustee's understanding of such Instructions shall be deemed controlling. The Community
Facilities District understands and agrees that the Trustee cannot determine the identity of
the actual sender of such Instructions and that the Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively
presume without liability that directions that purport to have been sent by an officer listed

on the incumbency certificate provided to the Trustee have been sent by such officer. The

Community Facilities District shall be responsible for ensuring that only officers transmit

such Instructions to the Trustee and that the Community Facilities District and all officers
are solely responsible to safeguard the use and confidentiality of applicable user and

authorization codes, passwords and/or authentication keys upon receipt by the Community
Facilities District. The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, costs claims, or expenses

arising directly or indirectly from the Trustee's reliance upon and compliance with such

Instructions notwithstanding the fact that such directions conflict or are inconsistent with
a subsequent written instruction. The Community Facilities District agrees: (i) to assume

all risks arising out of the use of Electronic Means to submit Instructions to the Trustee,

including without limitation the risk of the Trustee acting on unauthorized Instructions, and

the risk of interception and misuse by third parties; (ii) that it is fully informed of the

protections and risks associated with the various methods of transmitting Instructions to

the Trustee and that there may be more secure methods of transmitting Instructions than

the method(s) selected by the Community Facilities District; (iii) that the security
procedures (if any) to be followed in connection with its transmission of Instructions

provide to it a commercially reasonable degree of protection in light of its particular needs

and circumstances; and (iv) to notifi'the Trustee in writing immediately upon leaming of
any compromise or unauthorized use of the security procedures.

Section 10.15. U.S.A. Patriot Act. The parties hereto acknowledge that in
accordance with Section 326 of the U.S.A. Patriot Act, the Trustee, like all financial institutions
and in order to help fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering, is required to obtain,

verifi, and record information that identifies each person or legal entity that establishes a

relationship or opens an account with the Trustee. The parties to this Indenture agree that they

will provide the Trustee with such information as itmay request in order for the Trustee to satisff
the requirements of the U.S.A. Patriot Act.

Section 10.16. Force Majeure. In no event shall the Trustee be responsible or liable

for any failure or delay in the performance of its obligations hereunder arising out of or caused by,

directly or indirectly, forces beyond its control, including, without limitation, strikes, work
stoppages, accidents, acts of war or terrorism, pandemics, epidemics, quarantine restrictions,

recognized public emergencies, civil or military disturbances, nuclear or natural catastrophes or
acts of God, and intemrptions, loss or malfunctions of utilities, communications or computer
(software and hardware) services; it being understood that the Trustee shall use reasonable efforts
which are consistent with accepted practices in the banking industry to resume performance as

soon as practicable under the circumstances.

4r4r-6633-t704.3

49

Page 313

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Section 10.17. Effective Date of the Indenture. The Indenture shall take effect from
and after its execution and delivery.

4t4t-6633-t704.3
50

Page 314

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) has caused the Indenture to be signed in its name by the Finance Director
of the City of Folsom and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as Trustee, in token

of its acceptance of the trusts created hereunder, has caused the Indenture to be signed in its
corporate name by its officer thereunto duly authoized, all as of the date and year first above

written.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMLTNITY FACILITIES
DrsTzucT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

Finance Director of the City of Folsom

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,

as Trustee

Authorized Officer

By

4t4t-6633-t704.3
Signature Page to Indenture

Page 315

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



No

EXHIBIT A

IFORM OF BONDSI

UNITED STATES OF AMEzuCA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTzuCT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3

SPECIAL TAX BOND, SERIES 2022

$

Interest

% September l, _ August _,2022

REGISTERED OWNER: U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, AS

TRUSTEE FOR THE FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

PRINCIPAL AMOI.INT: DOLLARS

The City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch),

organized and existing under and pursuant to the laws of the State of California (the "Community
Facilities District"), for value received hereby promises to pay (but only out of the proceeds of the

Special Tax hereinafter referred to, net of Priority Administrative Expenses (as defined in the

Indenture hereinafter referred to), and certain other funds as described herein) to the registered

owner set forth above on the maturity date set forth above (subject to any right of prior redemption

hereinafter provided for) the principal amount set forth above, together with interest thereon

computed on the basis of a360-day year of twelve (12) 30-day calendar months from the interest

payment date next preceding the date of registration of this Bond (unless this Bond is registered

bna day during the period from the sixteenth (l6th) day of the month next preceding an interest

payment date to such interest payment date, both inclusive, in which event it shall bear interest

from such interest payment date, or unless this Bond is registered on a day on or before the

fifteenth (15tn) day of the month next preceding the first interest payment date, in which event it
shall bear interest from its dated date) until the principal hereof shall have been paid, at the interest

rate per annum set forth above, payable on [September 1,2022} and semiannually thereafter on

September I and March 1 in each year. The interest on and principal of and redemption premium,

Rate

Maturity
Date

Bond
Date

4141-6633-t704.3

A-1

Page 316

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



if any, on this Bond are payable in lawful money of the United States of America at the Corporate

Trust Office (as that term is defined in the Indenture hereinafter referred to, and herein the

"Corporate Trust Offrce") of U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, or any other bank

or trust company at its Corporate Trust Office, which may at any time be substituted in its place

as provided inthe Indenture hereinafter described, the Trustee of the Community Facilities District
for the Bonds (the "Trustee"). The interest on this Bond due on or before the maturity or prior
redemption hereof shall be payable only to the person whose rulme appears in the registration

books required to be kept by the Trustee as the registered owner hereof at the close of business as

of the fifteenth (15th) day of the month next preceding each interest payment date, such interest to

be paid by check mailed by first class mail on each such interest payment date to such registered

owner at his or her address as it appears on such books, except that in the case of a registered

owner of one million dollars ($1,000,000) or more in principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding,
payment shall be made at such owner's option by wire transfer on each such interest payment date

of immediately available funds to an account in a bank or trust company or savings bank that is a

member of the Federal Reserve System and that is located in the continental United States of
America according to written instructions provided by such owner to the Trustee at least fifteen
(15) days before such interest payment date. The principal of and redemption premium, if any, on

this Bond shall be payable only to the person whose name appears in such registration books as

the registered owner hereof, such principal and redemption premium, if any, to be paid only on the

surrender of this Bond at the Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee at maturity or on redemption
prior to maturity.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee may agree with the Holder of this Bond
that such Holder may, in lieu of surrendering the same for a new Bond, endorse on this Bond a

record of partial payment of the principal of this Bond as follows:

PAYMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF PRINCIPAL

Payment Date
Principal

Amount Paid
Balance of Principal

Amount Unpaid
Signature
of Holder

This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of Bonds in the aggregate principal

amount of dollars ($[PAR AMOUNT]) issued by the Community Facilities
District located in the City of Folsom (the "City"), designated the *City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series

2022'(the "Bonds"), which Bonds are issued under and pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community
Facilities Act of 1982, as amended (being Sections 533 1 1 et seq. of the Government Code of the

State of California) , and all laws amendatory thereof or supplemental thereto (the "Law") and

4141-6633-1704.3

A-2

Page 317

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



under and pursuant to the provisions of an Indenture dated as of August 1,2022 (the "Indenture")

between the Community Facilities District and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association,

as Trustee, all of like tenor and date (except for such variations, if any, as may be required to

designate varying numbers, maturities, interest rates or redemption provisions), and all capitalized

terms used herein not otherwise defined shall have the meanings contained in the Indenture. All
the Bonds are equally and ratably secured in accordance with the terms and conditions of the

Indenture (copies of which are on file atthe office of the City Clerk of the City and atthe Corporate

Trust Office of the Trustee), and reference is hereby made to the Law and to the Indenture and any

and all amendments thereof and supplements thereto for a description of the terms on which the

Bonds are issued and for the rights of the registered owners of the Bonds; and all the terms of the

Law and the Indenture are hereby incorporated herein and constitute a contract between the

Community Facilities District and the registered owner from time to time of this Bond, to all the

provisions of which the registered owner of this Bond, by his or her acceptance hereof, agrees and

consents; and each taker and subsequent registered owner hereof shall have recourse to all the

provisions of the Law and the Indenture and shall be bound by all the terms and conditions thereof.

The Bonds are issued to provide funds to pay costs of the acquisition and

construction of the Facilities. The Bonds are special tax obligations of the Community Facilities

District and the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds are

payable solely from the proceeds of the Special Tax, net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and

certain other funds, as provided in the Indenture, and the Community Facilities District is not

obligated to pay them except from the proceeds of the Special Tax, net of Priority Administrative

Expenses, and such other funds. The General Fund of the Clty and the funds of the Community

Facilities District are not liabte and neither the full faith and credit of the Community Facilities

District nor the City are pledged for the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption

premiums, if any, on the Bonds, and no tax or assessment other than the Special Tax shall ever be

levied or collected to pay the interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the

Bonds. The Bonds are not secured by a legal or equitable pledge of or charge, lien or encumbrance

upon any property of the Community Facilities District or any of its income or receipts except the

proceeds of the Special Tax, net of Priority Administrative Expenses, and such other funds, and

neither the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds

is a general debt, liability or obligation of the Community Facilities District.

The Bonds maturing on September 1, 20[ ], are subject to mandatory redemption

by the Community Facilities District prior to their maturity date in part on September I in each of
the years 201--l through 201 l, both years inclusive; and the Bonds maturing on September 1,

201 l, are subject to mandatory redemption by the Community Facilities District prior to their

maturity date in part on September 1 in each of the years 20f I through 201 l, both years

inclusive, in each case solely from Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments deposited in the

Sinking Fund Subaccount, upon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, at a redemption price of
one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof called for redemption together with
accrued interest thereon to the date of redemption'

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Community Facilities District
prior to their respective maturity dates as a whole or in part on any date on or after September 1,

1Ol l, from funds derived by the Community Facilities District from any source other than such

Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount or such

4141-6633-1704.3

A-3

Page 318

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, at the following
redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof called
for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, to wit:

103% if redeemed on any date on or after September l, 201 1

through August 31,201 l;

102% if redeemed on any date from September l,201 I through
August 31,201 l;

l0l% if redeemed on any date from September 1,201 I through
August 31,201 l; and

100% if redeemed on September 1, 20I__l and any date thereafter.

The Bonds are subject to extraordinary redemption by the Community Facilities
District prior to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or in part on any interest payment date

on and after fSeptember 1,2022f, from funds derived by the Community Facilities District from
prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as hereinafter provided, at the following
redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof called
for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, to wit:

103% if redeemed on an interest payment date on or after
September 1,201 I through March l,20ll;

102% if redeemed on an interest payment date on September 1,

20Ll or March l,20ll;

rcl% if redeemed on an interest payment date on September l,
20L) or March l,20ll; and

100% if redeemed on September 1, 20L_l or any interest payment
date thereafter.

If less than all the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed as a result of prepayments
of the Special Tax at any one time, the Bonds shall be redeemed pro rata by maturity. If less than
all the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed at the option of the Community Facilities District at

any one time, the Bonds of the latest maturity date or dates shall be redeemed prior to or
simultaneously with the redemption of the Bonds maturing prior thereto, and if less than all the
Outstanding Bonds of any one maturity date are to be redeemed at any one time, the Trustee shall
select the Bonds or the portions thereof of such maturity date to be redeemed in integral multiples
of five thousand dollars ($5,000) in a manner that it deems appropriate and fair.

Notice of redemption of this Bond or any portion hereof shall be mailed by the

Trustee to the registered owner hereof and to those securities depositories and securities
information services selected by the Community Facilities District in accordance with the

Indenture, but neither failure to receive any such mailed notice nor any immaterial defect contained
therein shall affect the sufficiency or validity of such proceedings for redemption. Any notice of

4t4r-6633-1704.3
A-4

Page 319

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



optional redemption may be rescinded by written notice given by the Community Facilities District
to the Trustee no later than three (3) Business Days prior to the date specified for redemption. The

Trustee shall give notice of rescission of the notice of optional redemption or non-satisfaction of
any conditions specified in the notice of optional redemption as soon as practicable to the same

parties and in the same manner as the notice of redemption was given pursuant to the Indenture.

If notice of redemption has been duly given and not rescinded as aforesaid and

money sufficient for the payment of the principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on, together

with interest to the redemption date on, this Bond or portion thereof so called for redemption has

been irrevocably deposited with the Trustee, then this Bond or the portion thereof to be redeemed

shall, on the redemption date designated in such notice, become due and payable at the above-

described redemption price; and from and after the date so designated interest on this Bond or the
portion thereof to be redeemed shall cease to accrue and the registered owner of this Bond shall

have no rights in respect hereof except to receive payment of the redemption price of this Bond or

the portion thereof to be redeemed, and upon srilrender of this Bond if redeemed in part only, the

Community Facilities District shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to the

registered owner hereof at the expense of the Community Facilities District a new Bond or Bonds

equal in aggregate principal amount to the unredeemed portion of this Bond so surrendered.

The Community Facilities District has covenanted that, so long as any Bonds are

Outstanding, it will annually levy the Special Tax against all Taxable Property in the Improvement
Area and make provision for the collection of the Special Tax in amounts which will be sufficient,
together with the money then on deposit in the Redemption Account, after making reasonable

allowances for contingencies and errors in the estimates, to yield proceeds equal to the amounts

required for compliance with the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms contained in the

Indenture, and which in any event will be sufficient to pay the interest on and principal of and

Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments for and redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds as

they become due and payable and to replenish each Bond Reserve Account established under the
Indenture and to pay all current Expenses as they become due and payable in accordance with the

provisions and terms of the Indenture.

The Bonds are issuable in the form of fully registered bonds. The registered owner

of any Bond or Bonds may swrender the same (together with a written instrument of transfer

satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed by the registered owner or his or her duly authorized
attorney) in exchange for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same series and

maturity date in the manner, subject to the conditions and upon payment of the charges provided
in the Indenture.

The registration of this Bond is transferable on the registration books kept by the
Trustee by the registered owner hereof or by his or her duly authorized altorney upon surrender of
this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed

by the registered owner or his or her duly authorized attorney, and thereupon a new Bond or Bonds

of the same series and maturity date in the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the

transferee in exchange therefor in the manner, subject to the conditions and terms and upon
payment of the charges provided in the Indenture. The Community Facilities District and the

Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively treat the person in whose name this Bond is registered as

4t4l-6633-1704.3
A-5

Page 320

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal
hereof and redemption premium, if any, hereon and for all other purposes.

The rights and obligations ofthe Community Facilities District and of the registered

owners of the Bonds may be amended at arry time in the manner, to the extent and upon the terms

provided in the Indenture, and in certain circumstances without the consent of such registered

owners, but no such amendment shall (1) extend the maturity of this Bond or reduce the interest

rate hereon or otherwise alter or impair the obligation of the Community Facilities District to pay

the interest hereon or principal hereof or Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payment herefor or
redemption premium, if any, hereon at the time and place and at the rate and in the currency and

from the funds provided herein without the express written consent of the registered owner of this
Bond, or (2) permit the issuance by the Community Facilities District of any obligations payable

from the proceeds of the Special Tax other than as provided in the Indenture, or jeopardize the
ability of the Community Facilities District to levy and collect the Special Tax, or (3) reduce the

percentage of Bonds required for the written consent to an amendment of the Indenture, or (4)

modifu any rights or obligations of the Trustee without its prior written assent thereto; all as more

fully set forth in the Indenture.

The Bonds do not constitute an indebtedness of the Community Facilities District
within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction, and neither the

City Council of the City nor the Community Facilities District nor any officer or employee thereof
or of the City shall be liable for the payment of the interest on or principal of or redemption

premiums, if any, on the Bonds otherwise than from the proceeds of the Special Tax, net of Priority
Administrative Expenses, and such other funds, as provided in the Indenture.

This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefits under the Indenture or become valid
or obligatory for any pu{pose until the certificate of authentication and registration hereon

endorsed shall have been manually signed by an authorized signatory of the Trustee.

It is hereby certified that all acts, conditions and things required by law to exist, to

have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond do exist,

have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law and that
the amount of this Bond, together with all other obligations of the Community Facilities District,
does not exceed any limit prescribed by the laws of the State of California and is not in excess of
the principal amount of the Bonds permitted to be issued under the Indenture.

4141-6633-1704.3

A-6

Page 321

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) has caused this Bond to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the
manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the City and countersigned by the manual or
facsimile signature of the City Clerk of the City, and has caused this Bond to be dated ICLOSING
DATEI.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DrsTRrcT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

Mayor of the City of Folsom

Countersigned:

City Clerk of the City of Folsom

By

4t4l-6633-t704.3
A-7

Page 322

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



IFORM OF TRUSTEE'S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION
TO APPEAR ON BONDSI

This is one of the Bonds described in the within-mentioned Indenture which has
been authenticated on [CLOSING DATE].

U.S. BANK TRUST COMPANY, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION,

as Trustee

Authorized Signatory

IFORM OF ASSTGNMENT TO AppEAR ON BONDSI

For value received the undersigned do(es) hereby sell, assign and transfer unto
the within Bond and do(es) hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint

attorney to transfer the same on the bond register of the Trustee, with fulIpower
of substitution in the premises.

Dated

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED BY:

Note: Signatures must be guaranteed by an "eligible guarantor institution" meeting
the requirements of membership or participation in the Security Transfer Agent
Medallion Program ("STAMP") or such other'osignature guarantee program" as

may be determined in substitution for STAMP, all in accordance withthe Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Social Security Number, Taxpayer Identification Number or other identiffing
number of Assignee:

4t4t-6633-1704.3
A-8

Page 323

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 5

Page 324

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



OH&S DRAFT
7t6n2

NEW ISSUE-BOOK.ENTRY ONLY NOT RATED

In the opinion of Onick, Herrington & Sutclffi LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority, based upon an analysis of existing
laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and
compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under

Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes. In the further
opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal alternative minimum
tax. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the

amounL accrual or receipt ofinterest on, the Bonds. See "TAX MATTERS."

$9,100,000*
FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23
(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2022

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: September 1, as shown on inside front cover

The Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 (the "Bonds") are being issued by the Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority (the "Authority") to provide funds to finance the purchase of limited obligation special tax bonds (the "Local
Obligations"), issued by the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Districf'). The purchase

price of the Local Obligations will be used to finance the acquisition of certain public facilities, fund a debt service reserve account,

fund capitalized interest to September 1,2022, and pay certain costs ofissuance ofthe Local Obligations and Bonds.

The Bonds are being issued by the Authority pursuant to a Trust Agreement (the "Trust Agreement") among the District,
the Authority and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee") and will be secured by a pledge of the

Trust Estate, as defined herein. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS."

The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Authority. The Bonds are payable solely from and secured by the Trust
Estate of the Authority pledged under the Trust Agreement, consisting primarily of payments received by the Authority from the

District under the Local Obligations, which payments are secured by a lien of the Special Taxes (defined herein) levied upon
property within Improvement Area No. 3 of the District (the "Improvement Area"), as more fully described herein. Payments under
the Local Obligations are calculated to be sufficient to permit the Authority to pay the principal of, and interest on, the Bonds when
due.

The Local Obligations Indenture (defined herein) for the Local Obligations establishes a debt service reserve fund (the

"Local Obligations Reserve Fund") with a debt service reserve account therein for the Local Obligations (the "Local Obligations
Reserve Accounf'). Pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture, a deposit is being made to the Local Obligations Reserve Account
for the Local Obligations. Amounts available from the Local Obligations Reserve Account are not available to make up a

deficiency for the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR
THE BONDS-Terms of the Local Obligations-Local Obligations Reserve Account."

The Bonds are being issued only as fully registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (.'DTC) and interest thereon is payable on September I and March I of each

year, commencing September 1,2022, by the Trustee to DTC. DTC will in turn remit principal or redemption price and interest to

the DTC participants, which will in tum remit such principal or redemption price and interest to the Beneficial Owners of the

Bonds, as described herein. DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. Individual purchases will be made in book-entry
only form in the principal amount of $5,000 or integral multiple thereof. Purchasers of the Bonds will not receive instruments
representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. See APPENDIX F-"DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM."

The Bonds are subject to optional, extraordinary and mandatory redemption as described herein. See "THE BONDS-
Redemption Provisions."

NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM (THE "CITY'),
THE AUTHORITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY OTHER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED
TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS. THE AUTHORITY IIAS NO TAXING POWER. EXCEPT FOR THE TRUST
ESTATE, NO OTHER REVENUES OR TAXES ARE PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF TIIE BONDS. THE BONDS ARE
NOT GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY, THE DISTRICT OR THE CITY, BUT ARE LIMITED
OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE TRUST ESTATE, DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM
PAYMENT ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS FROM THE PAYMENT OF THE SPECIAL TAXES LEVIED WITHIN THE
IMPROVEMENT AREAAS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN.

* 
Preliminary, subject to change.

Page 325

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The Bonds are not rated by any rating agency. Investment in the Bonds involves a substantial degree ofrisk that
may not be appropriate for some investors. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS" for a discussion of special risk

factors that strouta Ue considered, in addition to the other matters set forth herein, in evaluating the investment quality of the Bonds.

This cover page contains information for general reference only and it is not a complete sirmmary of the Bonds. Investors

should read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.

Maturity Schedule, Interest Rates, Prices and CUSIPS
(See inside front cover)

The Bonds are offered when, as and ifissued, subject to the approval as to their legality by Orick, Herrington & Sutcliffe

LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Authority and the

District by the City Attomey. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriter by Stradling, Yocc4 Carlson & Rauth,

a Professi,onal Corporation. It is anticipated that the Bonds in book-entry form will be available for delivery through the facilities of
The Depository Trust Company in New York, New York on or about [August 10,20227-

Piper Sandler & Co.

The date of this Official Statement is 2022

Page 326

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



s9,100,000"
F'OLSOM RANCII FINAI\CING AUTHORITY

CITY OF F'OLSOM COMMTJNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23
(FOLSOM RANCTT) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2022

MATURITY SCFIEDULE, INTEREST RATES, PRICES AND CUSIPS

Maturity
(September l)

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate

CUSIPNo.I
(344414)Price

%

$_ % Term Bond maturing September 1,20_Price _ (CUSIP No.t 344414_-J
$ X Term Bond maturing September 1,20_Price _ (CUSIP No.r 344414_J

* 
Preliminary, subject to change.

I CUSPO is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP Global Services (CGS) is managed on

behalf of the American Bankers Association by FactSet Research Systems Inc. Copyright@ 2022 CUSIP Global Services.

All rights reserved. CUSIP@ data herein is provided by CUSIP Global Services. This data is not intended to creats a

database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CGS database. CUSIP numbers are provided for convenience

of reference only. The Authority, the District, the Underwriter and the City take no responsibility for the accuracy of such

numbers.

$

Page 327

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the Authority, the Dishict or the

Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than as contained in this Official
Statement, and if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been

authorized by any of the foregoing. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of
an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds by any person, in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for

such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with
the purchasers of the Bonds. Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates, forecasts or

matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be

construed as representations of fact.

The information set forth herein has been obtained from sources which are believed to be reliable, but such

information is neither guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, nor is it to be construed as a representation of such

by the Authority, the District or the Underwriter. The information and expressions of opinion stated herein are

subject to change without notice; and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder

shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Authority,
the District or the property owners in the Improvement Area, or in the condition of the property in the Improvement

Area, since the date hereof.

The summaries and references to the Trust Agreement, the Mello-Roos Act, the Local Obligations

Indenture and to other statutes and documents referred to herein do not purport to be comprehensive or defmitive

and are qualified in their entireties by reference to each such statute and document. This Official Statement

including any amendment or supplement hereto is intended to be deposited with one or more depositories.

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The

Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, their
responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this

transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

IN CONNECTION W]TH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT

TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS AT A LEVEL
ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING,IF
COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. THE UNDERWRITER MAY OFFER AND SELL

THE BONDS TO CERTAIN DEALERS AND OTHERS AT PRICES LOWER THAN THE PUBLIC OFFERING

PRICES SET FORTH ON THE INSIDE FRONT COVER PAGE HEREOF AND SUCH PUBLIC OFFERING

PRICES MAY BE CHANGED FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE UNDERWRITER.

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS

AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS
CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT. THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED UNDER THE

SECUzuTIES LAWS OF ANY STATE.

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute forward-

looking statements. Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used such as "plan," "expect,"

"estimate," "budgef' or similar words. The achievement of certaih results or other expectations contained in such

forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause

actual results, performance or achievements described to be materially different from any future results,

performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.

Page 328

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



IINSERT REGIONAL AND CITY CONTEXT MAPSI

Page 329

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



CITY OF'FOLSOM
COMMUNITY F'ACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCII)

AMEI\DED BOTINDARY MAP

Page 330

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



CITY OF F'OLSOM
COMMTJNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCTT)
IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.3

ITNSERT AERIAL PHOTO(S)I

Page 331

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



AUTHORITY GOVERNING BOARD/CITY COT]NCIL

Kerri Howell, Chair / Mayor
Rosario Rodriguez, Vice Chair / Vice Mayor

Sarah Aquino, Member / Councilmember
YK Chalamcherla, Member / Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Member / Councilmember

AUTHORITY/CITY STAFF

Elaine Andersen, Executive Director / City Manager
Stacey Tamagni, Treasurer / Finance Director

Steven W*g, Esq., General Counsel / City Attorney
Christa Freemantle, Secretary / City Clerk

SPECIAL SERVICES

BOI\D AND DISCLOSURE COI]NSEL MIINICIPAL ADVISOR

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc.

TRUSTEE SPECIAL TAX CONSULTANT

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association NBS

APPRAISER

Inte gra Realty Resources

Page 332

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

INTRODUCTION.........
General
Authority for Issuance ..

Purpose
Security for the Bonds..
The Improvement Area.
Properly Ownership and

Development Status.....
Property Values
Bondholders Risks........
Continuing Disclosure ..

Summaries Not Definitive.'...........'."..
FOLSOM PLAN AREA........

General Folsom Plan Area Plan
of Finance..
Public Facilities Financing Plan..........
Folsom Plan Area Development....'.'.'.

PLAN OF FINANCE ................
Facilities to be Financed.......... ".....'...

THE BONDS.................
General
Description of the Bonds ....................
Redemption Provisions..

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES
OF FI.INDS

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE
SECURITY AND SOURCES OF

PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS .........
General
Flow of Funds...............
Description of Local
Obligations

Property Values .......... ..................
Value-to-Lien Analysis
Estimated Tax Burden on Single
Family Home.........
Overlapping Debt...........

PROPOSED PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT......

Development Entitlements .............

Property Ownership
Development Plan and Status of
Development...............
COVID-19Impact.
Development Plan of Finance

CERTAIN RISKS TO
BONDHOLDERS ...........

Levy of the Special Tax....................
Collection of Special Tax..................
Concentration of Ownership ...

Payment of the Special Tax is
Not a Personal Obligation of a
Property Owner........
Potential Early Redemption of
Bonds from Prepaid Special
Taxes
Special Tax Delinquencies.................
Teeter Plan Termination...........
Land Values ...............
Appraisal Risks ..........
Exempt Properties
Maximum Special Tax .............
No Acceleration Provision .................
Loss of Tax Exemption
Panty Taxes and Special
Assessments .................
Future Private Indebtedness ...............
Disclosures to Future
Purchasers
Bankruptcy
FDIClFederal Government
Interests in Properties .........................
Zoningand Land Use Decisions ......

Ballot Initiatives and Measures........
Shapiro v. San Diego..........
Recent Changes to Federal
Income Tax Law
Risks of Real Estate Secured
Investments Generally....
Current Challenges to the
Homebuilding Industry
Failure to Develop.

. . ... ... ... .. 1

... .. ... .. ... 1

... .. .. ... ... 1

. ... ......... 1

..','.'.''.'.2

.............3

Page

...40

...41

...43

...44

45
45
54

55

60
6l

63
63

64
65

70
7l
7t
72

J

6
6
6

6
7

7
7
I

t6
17

65

65
65
66
66
66
67
67
68
68

68
69

69
69

18

18

19

..t9
Issuance of Local Obligations
Payment of the Local
Obligations
Local Obligations Flow of
Funds
Special Tax Authorization........
Covenant for Foreclosure .........'.....'..'
No Required Advances from
Available Surplus Funds
Terms of the Local Obligations
Special Tax Analysis ................ "..'.....
Special Tax CalcuIation.................'....
The Teeter Plan ...........

THE AUTHORITY.......
TI{E CITY....
THE IMPROVEMENT AREA

General Description and

Location.....

72

72

t5
73

Page 333

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(continued)

Page Page

No Independent Review of
Valuation or Viability of
Completed Projects...............
Potential Impact of Global
Health Crises or Concerns....
Geologic, Topographic and

Climatic Conditions..
Endangered Species..............

LEGAL MATTERS.......
TAX MATTERS............
NO LITIGATION
NO RATING.........
MUNICIPAL ADVISOR..........
TINDERWRITING.........
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The District
The Developer..............

MISCELLANEOUS .................

78
78

............74 .. 81

.. 81

..81

.. 81

Hazardous Substances

Naturally Occurring Asbestos ........

75

75
77
77
78

81

81

82
83

APPENDIX A - AMENDED RATE, METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF

COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX
APPENDX B - ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION RELATING TO TTIE CITY

OF FOLSOM
APPENDX C - SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS
APPENDIX D - FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE LINDERTAKINGS
APPENDX E - PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL
APPENDIX F - DTC AND TI{E BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM
APPENDIX G - APPRAISAL

ll Page 334

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



$9,100,000.
X'OLSOM RANCH FINAI{CING AUTHORITY

CITY OF'F'OLSOM COMMUNITY F'ACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23
(F',OLSOM RANCTD IMPROVEMENT AREA NO.3

SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2022

INTRODUCTION

The description and summaries of various documents hereinafter set forth do not purport to be

comprehensive or definitive, and reference is made to each document for the complete details of all terms

and ionditions. All statements herein are qualified in their entirety by reference to each document. All
caprtalized terms used in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined herein have the same meaning

as in the Trust Agreement (defined below) or the Local Obligations Indenture (defined below), as

applicable.

General

This Official Statement, including the cover page, the inside cover page and the Appendices

hereto, is provided to furnish certain information in connection with the issuance and sale by the Folsom

Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") of $9,100,000- aggregate principal amount of Folsom

Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 (the "Bonds").

Authority for Issuance

The Bonds will be issued pursuant to the provisions of the Trust Agreement (the "Trust
Agreement") among the Authority, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom

Ranch) (the "District"), and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"),
as authorized pursuant to a resolution of the Authority. The Bonds will be issued pursuant to the Marks-

Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, as amended, constituting Article 4 of Chapter 5, Division 7, Title
I of the Government Code of the State of California. The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds

in book-entry form, in denominations of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof and will be dated the

date ofdelivery thereofand bear interest at the rates set forth on the inside front cover page hereof. See

"TIfi BoNDs-Description of the Bonds."

Purpose

The Bonds are being issued to finance the purchase of the limited obligation special tax bonds

(the "Local Obligations"), issued by the District pursuant to an Indenture (the "Local Obligations

Indenture") between the District and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (the

"Local Obligations Trustee"). The purchase price of the Local Obligations will be used to finance the

acquisition of certain public facilities, fund a debt service reserve account, fund capitalized interest to

September 1,2022, and pay certain costs of issuance of the Local Obligations and Bonds. See "PLAN
OF FINANCE" and o'Tm IMPROVEMENT AREA."

The Local Obligations are authorized pursuant to (i) the provisions of the Mello-Roos

Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, constituting Section 53311, et seq. of the California
Government Code (the "Mello-Roos Acf'), (ii) a resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom (the

1

* 
Preliminary, subject to change.

Page 335

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"City") as legislative body of the District adopted on July 12, 2022, and (iii) the Local Obligations

Indenture. Thi Local Obligations are payable from the special taxes authorized to be levied and collected

annually upon taxable real property within Improvement Area No. 3 of the District (the "Improvement

Area"). See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-General."

Security for the Bonds

The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Authority, payable from and secured by the

Trust Estate (as defined herein) received by the Authority consisting primarily of payments received from

the District as debt service payments on the Local Obligations.

The Local Obligations will be issued with an annual scheduled debt service that results in at least

lI1Yo annual debt service coverage for the Local Obligations from Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenues for Developed Property as of June 16,2022, and Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenues for the remaining Taxable Property expected to be

generated in the Improvement Area, net of Priority Administrative Expenses (each as defined below).

Although the scheduled payments under the Local Obligations are sufficient, in the aggtegate, to provide

the Authority with moneys to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds when due

(see "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR TIfi BONDS"), investment in the Bonds

involves a substantial degree of risk that may not be appropriate for some investors. See "CERTAIN
RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS" below.

The Local Obligations are secured by a pledge of special taxes received by the District (the

"special Tax" or the "special Taxes," as the context requires) (including any prepayment thereof and

proceeds from foreclosure sales pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture), net of Priority

Administrative Expenses, and the Local Obligations Reserve Account established under the Local

Obligations Indenture. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS." The

Special Taxes are included on the regular property tax bill sent to the record owners of taxable properties

within the Improvement Area. The District has covenanted in the Local Obligations Indenture to

commence judicial foreclosure proceedings against property with delinquent Special Taxes and to

diligently pursue such proceedings to completion; provided, however, that the District is not obligated

under the Local Obligations Indenture to commence such judicial foreclosure proceedings on any

delinquent installment of the Special Tax for any Fiscal Year in which the District has received one

hundred percent (100%) of the amount of such installment from the County of Sacramento (the "County")
pursuant to the Teeter Plan (described below). See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR

ftn, gONnS-Payment of the Local Obligations," "-special Tax Authorization," "-{ovenant for

Foreclosure" and 
('-The 

Teeter Plan."

The Special Taxes secure only the Local Obligations. For this reason, a delinquency or default in

the payment oi Special Taxes could cause a default in the payments of principal and interest on the Bonds

if moneys in the Local Obligations Reserve Account are insufficient to make up the deficit in debt service

for the Local Obligations caused by such delinquency or nonpayment'

NEITHER TTM FULL FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF TI{E CITY,
TI{E DISTRICT, THE AUTHORITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA (THE "STATE") OR ANY
OTI{ER POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED TO TI{E PAYMENT OF T}IE
BONDS. THE AUTHORITY HAS NO TAXING POWER. EXCEPT FOR THE TRUST ESTATE, NO

OTFM,R REVENUES OR TAXES ARE PLEDGED TO TTM PAYMENT OF TI{E BONDS. T}M
BONDS ARE NOT GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY, TI{E DISTzuCT OR THE

CITY, BUT ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE

TRUST ESTATE, DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS ON THE LOCAL

2

Page 336

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



OBLIGATIONS FROM TI{E PAYMENT OF TFIE SPECIAL TAXES LEVIED WITHIN THE

IMPROVEMENT AREA AS MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN.

The Improvement Area

General. The Improvement Area is located in the southern portion of the City, west of East

Bidwell Street, north of Mangini Parkway and south of U.S. Highway 50 and consists of over 272 total
gross acres, of which approximately 178 acres are subject to the Special Tax. Presently, the Improvement

Area includes properties in varying stages of development, including partially-improved lots, improved

lots, homes under construction and completed homes. Collectively, these properties are planned to

include 751 single-family/single-family high density units and 168 multi-family low density units, all of
which are expected to be constructed as age-restricted (55+) residential homes'

Formation Proceedings. The Dishict was formed by the City pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act.

The Mello-Roos Act was enacted by the California legislature to provide an alternative method of
financing certain public capital facilities and services, especially in developing areas of the State. Any
local agency (as defined in the Mello-Roos Act) may establish a community facilities district to provide

for and finance the cost of eligible public facilities, development-related fees, and services. Subject to

approval by two-thirds of the votes cast at an election and compliance with the other provisions of the

Millo-Roos Act, a legislative body of a local agency may issue bonds for a community facilities district

and may levy and collect a special tax within such district to repay such indebtedness.

Pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act, the City Council undertook proceedings to form the District,

initially designating six separate improvement areas therein, including the Improvement Area, and called

an election to authorize the incurring of bonded indebtedness and authorize the levy of special taxes

within the District. On May 26,2020, elections were held within the District for each improvement area

therein at which the eligible voters in each improvement area approved the levy of special taxes in

accordance with the respective Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax for such improvement

area. In addition, the eligible voters in the Improvement Area initially authorized the issuance of bonds in

an amount not to exceed $124,000,000 for the Improvement Area. In December 2027, a seventh

improvement area was designated within the District and change proceedings for the Improvement Area

were held, whereby the eligible voters in the Improvement Area approved amended boundaries for the

Improvement Area, an Amended and Restated Rate and Method of Apportionment for Community

Faiilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment") and a reduction in the maximum principal amount of bonded indebtedness that may be

isiued for and paid by Improvement Area to $15,750,000. The amended boundary map for the

Improvement Area is included above immediately following the regional, statewide and City context

ffi&ps, and the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment is included as APPENDIX A hereto and

summarized herein under 'SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS - Special

Tax Analysis."

Property Ownership and Development Status

The planned development within the Improvement Area includes a gated residential adult active

community for residents age 55+ years known as Regency at Folsom Ranch, which is expected to contain

919 residential units at completion, including 751 single-story/single-family detached units and 168

single-story/multi-family paired units otherwise known as duets. Regency at Folsom Ranch is expected

to include five separate product lines of homes known as Sequoia, Redwood, Mendocino, Shasta, and

Tahoe, on lots ranging from approximately 3,440 square feet to approximately 6,175 square feet, with
homes ranging from approximately 1,400 square feet to approximately 2,450 square feet, and with three

separate floor plans for each product line. Planned amenities include an 18,000 square foot clubhouse

J

Page 337

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



with access to onsite food and beverage services, an indoor pool, an outdoor pool and spa, fitness center,

barbeque pavilion, event lawns, pickleball and bocce ball courts, gathering areas, two dog parks, and

access to miles of outdoor trails and biking paths. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT'"

As of June 16,2022, the entirety of the taxable residential property within the Improvement Area

was owned by Toll West Inc., d/b/a Toll Brothers West Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Developer"),

and was in varying stages of development, including partially-improved lots, improved lots, homes under

construction and completed model homes. As of June 16, 2022, the Developer had completed the

construction of 15 model homes (three for each product line) that were open to the public and had sold

(but not closed) 155 production homes. Homes under contract may not result in closed escrows as sales

contracts are subject to cancellation. As of June 16, 2022, final maps authorizing the subdivision of a
portion of the property within the Improvement Area into 443 residential lots had been recorded, and

tentative maps had been approved for the remaining 476 proposed residential lots. The Developer expects

to receive final map approval for an additional 100 residential lots by December 2022 and final map

approval for the remaining 376 residential lots between 2023 and mid-2025. See "PROPOSED

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Entitlements-Tentative and Final Mapping" for a

discussion of these zoningentitlements within the Improvement Area.

As of June 16, 2022,the amenities being constructed by the Developer within the Improvement

Area were approximately 30% complete and anticipated to be complete by March 2023. The Developer

is also in the process of completing the required backbone improvements for the Improvement Area,

which it anticipates completingby fall2023.

The following table summarizes, as of June 16, 2022, the development status of the residential

lots and homes proposed to be constructed within each of the five product lines within the Improvement
Area.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

4

Page 338

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Product Line Land Use
Typical Lot Size

(square feet)

3,440

4,200

4,750

< 11\

6,175

IIomes
Under

Construction

177

Homes
Completed

But Not
Closed(l)

Homes
Under

Contract(2)

Building
Permits
Issued

Finished Lots
(Without
Vertical
Home

Construction)

42

19

36

26

26

Partially
Improved

Lots

104

100

122

t4l
lt0

577

Undeveloped
Lots

0

Total
Proposed
Units(3)

168

172

198

209

t72

9t9

Homes
Closed

Sequoia

Redwood

Mendocino

Shasta

Tahoe

TOTAL

MLD

SF/SFHD

SF/SFHD

SF/SFHD

SF/SFHD

l8

50

37

39

JJ

20

39

3l

3l

34

0

0

0

0

0

4

J

J

J

3

22

6l

40

42

36

0

0

0

0

0

0 20r 149

(l) Includes 15 model homes and one production home, none ofwhich have been released for sale.
(2) Homes under contract may not result in closed escrows as sales contracts are subject to cancellation by the homebuyers.

Home Construction)," (v) "Partially Improved Lots" and (vi) "Undeveloped Lots."
Source: The Developer

t6 155

5
Page 339

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Property Values

An appraisal of the taxable property within the Improvement Area dated June 15, 2022 (the

"Appraisal") was prepared by Integra Realty Resources, Sacramento, California (the "Appraiser"). The

purpose of the appraisal was to estimate the aggregate value of the fee simple interest, subject to the

rp..iut tax and based upon a hypothetical condition, for all of the taxable property within the

Improvement Area. Subject to the assumptions, hypothetical condition and limiting conditions contained

in ihe Appraisal, the Appraiser estimated that the taxable property within the Improvement Area had an

estimated aggregate value of $110,464,000 as of }une 1,2022. See "TFIE IMPROVEMENT AREA-
Property Values."

Bondholders Risks

Investment in the Bonds involves a substantial degree of risk that may not be appropriate for

some investors. For a discussion of certain considerations relevant to an investment in the Bonds, in

addition to the other matters set forth herein, see "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS'" Investors

should read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed

investment decision.

Continuing Disclosure

The District will agree to provide certain annual financial information and operating data by not

later than April 1 in each year, commencing April 1, 2023 (the 'oAnnual Report"), and to provide notices

of the o""urren"" of certain enumerated events. The Annual Report and notices will be filed with the

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board's Electronic Municipal Market Access database ("EMMA").
The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Report or the notices of enumerated

eventi is set forth in APPENDIXD-"FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE LINDERTAKINGS."
These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with S.E.C'

Rule 15c2-12.

The Developer will covenant for the benefit of the Bondholders to provide certain information

relating to the Deveioper and its development within the Improvement Area no later than March 31 and

September 30 in each year, commencing March 31,2023 (collectively, the "Disclosure Reports"), and to

provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events. The Disclosure Reports and notices will
be filed with EMMA. The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Disclosure Reports or

the notices of enumerated events is set forth in APPENDIX D-"FORMS OF CONTINUING

DISCLOSURE TINDERTAKINGS." The obligation of the Developer will terminate upon the occurrence

of certain events as set forth in the Developer's Continuing Disclosure Certificate, including at such time

as the Developer and its Affiliates (as defined in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement), in the aggregate,

own less tha;U441of the residential lots (or land planned to be subdivided into [44] residential lots)

within the Improvement Area.

Summaries Not Definitive

Brief descriptions of the Bonds; the Local Obligations; the security for the Bonds, the City, the

Improvement Area and the status of development within the Improvement Area are included in this

Offrcial Statement together with summaries of certain provisions of the Bonds, the Trust Agreement and

the Local Obligations Indenture. Such descriptions do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive. All
references herein to the Trust Agreement and the Local Obligations Indenture are qualified in their

entirety by reference to such documents, copies of which are available for inspection at the office of
Trustee.

6 Page 340

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



FOLSOM PLAII AREA

General Folsom Plan Area Plan of Finance

In 2001, the City commenced plans to expand its sphere of influence area to include an area south

of US Route 50. The area, known as the Folsom Plan Area is bordered to the west by Prairie City Road,

the east by the Sacramento/El Dorado County boundary line, the north by US Route 50, and the south by
White Rock Road. In November 2004, the citizens of the City adopted Measure W ("Measure W'),
which specified certain requirements for annexing the Folsom Plan Area into the City. In June 2011, the

City adopted its Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (the "Specific Plan"). The Local Agency Formation
Commission approved the City's plan to annex the Folsom Plan Area on January 18,2012.

As described below, the Folsom Plan Area is an area of approximately 3,500 acres in the southern

portion of the City that has been approved for development of approximately 17,461 units of residential

development , plus 27 4.5 acres of commercial/industrial development (including mixed use development).

Over the build out of the property, the City anticipates using community facilities districts under the

Mello-Roos Act to finance a large portion of the public infrastructure required for the development, plus

certain maintenance obligations of public improvements and facilities.

The City has previously issued a series of bonds for its Community Facilities District No. 17

(Willow Hill Pipeline) ("CFD 17") to finance certain public capital improvements for the benefit of the

Folsom Plan Area in the principal amount of $6,675,000, of which $5,870,000 are currently outstanding.

The City has also formed its Community Facilities District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area - Area-Wide
Improvements and Services) ("CFD 18") to finance certain water and sewer improvements and a regional
aquatic center along with maintenance and certain services. CFD 18 encompasses all of the properly
within the Folsom Plan Area, which is the CFD 17 property plus approximately 190 acres bordering El
Dorado County in the eastern portion of the City south of US Route 50. The City has authorized the

issuance of up to $200,000,000 in bonds for CFD 18. The timing of issuance of bonds for CFD 18 is

dependent upon market conditions and development within the Folsom Plan Area. The City currently
anticipates that an initial series of CFD 18 bonds in an estimated amount between $25 million to $30

million will be issued in the fourth quarter of 2022 to help finance at least a portion of the required Phase

2 Water Facilities (as defined herein). See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development
Entitlements-Water Supply Infrastructure." The boundaries of CFD I7 and CFD 18 encompass nearly
all of the property in the Folsom Plan Area, including the property in the Improvement Area. The

Improvement Area represents approximately 8.1% by acres of CFD 77 and approximately 7 .8% by acres

of CFD 18. The allocable portion of bonds previously issued for CFD l7 and any bonds to be issued for
CFD 18 constitute overlapping debt. See "THE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Overlapping Debt."

Public Facilities Financing Plan

Measure W, adopted by City of Folsom residents in November 2004, required, among other

things, that residents north of US Route 50 not bear the cost for infrastructure and public facilities serving

the Folsom Plan Area. The City adopted a Public Facilities Financing Plan ("PFFP") for the Folsom Plan

Area on January 14, 2014. The PFFP provides an overview of how the infrastructure required for the

development of the Folsom Plan Area will be financed and constructed and how various public facilities
will be financed and maintained to ensure that public facilities and infrastructure will be available for the

orderly development of the Folsom Plan Area without cost to the residents of the City north of US

Route 50 and without an adverse impact on the service levels provided to future residents of the Folsom

Plan Area.

7

Page 341

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The PFFP contemplates that the primary sources of funding for the construction of the public

infrastructure and facilities in the Folsom Plan Area are community facilities districts, development

impact fees collected upon permit issuance (including development impact fees of the Folsom Cordova

Unined School District), diiect developer financing, and matching state school grants and other school

funding (including the school facilities improvement district described under "TFIE IMPROVEMENT

AREA-Overlapping Debt"). Subdivision improvements are not included as part of the PFFP'

On September 8, 2015, the City approved Resolution No. 9641, in which the City Council

adopted a Nexus Study to collect certain impact fees for the Specific Plan to be collected in accordance

witfr City Ordinance lio. 1234. In addition, on the same date, the City approved Resolution No. 9642, in

which the City Council adopted a Nexus Study for the Specific Plan Infrastructure Fees (the "SPIF") to be

collected forihe Specific Flan and in accordance with Ordinance No. 1235 and Chapter 3.130 of the

Folsom Municipal 
-Code. 

Most recently, on January 9,2018, the City of Folsom approved Resolution

No. 10040, amending Resolution No. 9641, to adjust the initial Folsom Plan Area Development Impact

Fees. On the same date, the City approved Resolution No. 10059, adopting the Nexus Study Fiscal
year 2017-18 Update for the SPIF, and setting the updated infrastructure fees. On July 28, 2020,the City

approved Resolution No. 10491, in which the City adopted the Nexus Study Fiscal Year 2020-21Update

foi ttre Folsom plan Area SpIF. On this date, the City also introduced and had the first reading for City

Ordinance No. i307, in which the City amended sections 3.130.010(JJ) and 3.130.030(EXl)(c) of the

Folsom Municipal Code pertaining to the SPIF Set-Aside Component of the SPIF. The SPIF Set-Aside

was amended to include a new SPIF Off-Site Water Set-Aside Component to repay the City for water

treatment plant costs the City had previously incurred. On August 25, 2020, the City conducted the

second reading and approved Ordinance No' 1307.

phasing of Development. For purposes of setting the PFFP costs, the City projected single family

units would be sold and oicupied within 13 years, multi-family low density units within 15 years, and

multi-family medium and high density units within 18 years.

Backbone Infrastructure. The PFFP provides for the financing or collection of impact fees for

and the construction of the backbone infrastructure required before construction in the Folsom Plan Area

can proceed. Specifically, the PFFP recognizes the need for roadway improvements, on-site water system

impiovements, bff-site water system improvements, recycled water system improvements, sanitary sewer

system improvements, storm drainage system improvements, habitat mitigation, and construction of two

freeway interchanges and improvements to an existing freeway interchange.

public Facilities - the Folsom Plan Area. The PFFP describes plans for the financing of public

schools, parks, transit services, trails, police and fire facilities and equipment, municipal service center, a

corporation yard, solid waste facilities, a library, general capital improvements, transportation, and a

community and aquatic center. The PFFP anticipates that the land for the public facilities will be

dedicated to the City without cost to the City.

The Folsom Plan Area is currently being served by the existing fire resources of the City as well

as other Sacramento County, El Dorado County and Placer County fire agencies through mutual aid

agreements with the City. As noted in the PFFP, the City's goal is to maintain a level of service that

rJpresents a rate of 1 station per 12,000 population, which the City expects to resolve by commencing

construction on the first fire station servicing the Folsom Plan Area during the third quarter of 2022' The

City currently expects construction of this first fire station to last approximately 18 months and to be

completed during the first quarter of 2024.

8

Page 342

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The estimated total cost of the backbone infrastructure and public facilities for the Folsom Plan

Area at build-out is $876,669,484 (in 2017 dollars), of which the City anticipates that a portion will be

financed through the Folsom Plan Area SPIF and the issuance of bonds for CFD 18, the Improvement
Area or other community facilities districts and improvement areas. This estimate is subject to a variety
of construction and market risks. The City and the District can provide no assurances that the overall
costs will not increase, even significantly, in the future. The following table shows the breakdown of
overall estimated costs for each category of improvement within the Folsom Plan Area as a whole.

Table 1

City of Folsom
Folsom Plan Area Public Facilities Financing Plan

Estimated Budget (2017$)

Infrastructure Estimated Cost Public Improvements Estimated Cost

Roadways
Dry Utility
On-Site Water
Off-Site Potable Water
Recycled Water
Wastewater (Sewer)
Storm Drainage
Habitat Mitigation

Total:

$270,335,001
32,476,778
54,966,951
41,655,691
10,931,440
21,434,14',7

65,467,614

Public schooh(l)(2)
Parks
Transit Services
Housing Trust(2)
Trails
Fire Facilities and Equipment
Police Facilities and Equipment
Municipal Service Center
Corporation Yard
Solid Waste
Branch Library
Community and Aquatic Center(3)

General Capital
Transportation(2)

Total:

$134,250,000
74,116,000
17,129,000
39,680,000
14,420,000
12,736,582
5,843,000
5,434,000
8,02o,ooo
5,542,000
2,833,000

37,860,000
13,800,000

760,000

6,97 8.281

$504,245,902

$372,423,582

(r) Assumed no active-adult units in calculation of estimated school fee revenue. Certain developments within the Folsom Plan
Area are expected to include active-adult units.

@ Based on estimated fee revenue generated from existing fee programs.
(3) Community and Aquatic Center was not included in the Nexus Study Update. Estimated cost based on original PFFP costs

in2013 dollars increasedby 3.02%o, similar to the cost increases for the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Stand Alone Fee

facilities included in the Nexus Study Update.

Source: Folsom Specific Plan In&astructure Fee Nexus Study Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Update ('Nexus Study Update");
City of Folsom; EPS.

Development within the Folsom Plan Area, including within the Improvement Area, is dependent
upon completion of certain of the above described infrastructure. For more information on status of
construction of improvements and development necessary for development to occur within the

Improvement Area, see "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT." See also "TIfi
IMPROVEMENT AREA-Overlapping Debt."

Folsom PIan Area Development

The Folsom Plan Area is comprised of approximately 3,500 acres zoned for 11,460 residential
units and 2.8 million square feet of commercial, office and industrial space. Through multiple acquisitions
beginning in 2012, affiliates of Westland Capital Partners, L.P. ("Westland") acquired nearly 2,400
acres within the Folsom Plan Area, including approximately 8,350 dwelling units, 1.2 million square feet

of commercial, office and industrial space, as well as several sites for elementary, middle and high
schools.

9

Page 343

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Since development began in May 2017, Westland affiliates have invested more than $250

million into backbone infrastructure and subdivision improvements to support the development of nearly

3,000 single-family dwelling units, as well as three separate sites for multifamily development. Many of
the region's largest public and private homebuilders have been actively building in the Folsom Plan Area,

including the Developer, Lennar Homes of California ("Lennar"), Taylor Morrison, Tri Pointe Homes

Holdings, KB HOME Sacramento,Beazer Homes Holdings, Meritage Homes, Richmond American, The

New Home Company, Signature Homes, Van Daele Homes, A.G. Spanos Company, and St. Anton

Communities. The Developer began developing the Improvement Area in 2020 and, as of May 3I, 2022,

had invested over $7i million to develop the Improvement Area to be able to construct homes for sale to

individual homeowners.

Other community developments in the Folsom Plan Area include, but are not limited to, Russell

Ranch and White Rock Springs Ranch, which consist of an additional 1,500 units of single-family
housing. Infrastructure investment in these two communities, as of April 2022, was estimated by East

Carpenter Improvement Company ("ECIC"), one of the master developers responsible for the initial
improvement of a portion of the District, to have exceeded $200 million since development began in

2017.

Affiliates of Pacific Coast Capital Partners ("PCCP"), known as the Eagle group of companies

("Eagle"), own a majority of the non-residential land uses in the Folsom Plan Area. In two separate

transactions, Eagle sold 4O-acre development parcels to Dignity Health and UC Davis Health, two of the

region's major healthcare providers, for hospital and medical campus facilities. Development for the

Dignity Health campus began in202l, and significant investments in land development have been made

there. The UC Davis Health property is planned to commence developmentin2023.

Westland affiliates' remaining land holdings include nearly 3,500 dwelling units and 1.2 million
square feet of commercial and office uses. Lennar, PCCP, UC Davis Health, Dignity Health, Elliott
Homes and other landowners control an additional2,500 residential lots and 1.5 million square feet of
commercial development space. Infrastructure planning, design and engineering is underway to support

the development of these remaining properties and, as of April 2022, was anticipated by ECIC to exceed

$200 million over the next three to five years.

The Folsom Plan Area, including Folsom Ranch and Russell Ranch, is widely considered to be

the premier master-planned community in the Sacramento region. In 2021 alone, over 900 building
permits were issued in the Folsom Plan Area, and homebuilders have enjoyed sustained demand and

pricing power as they continue to build out some of the most attractive housing in Northern California.

PLAN OF FINANCE

Facilities to be Financed

The Bonds are issued for the purpose of providing funds to purchase the Local Obligations. The

Local Obligations are being issued to finance the acquisition of certain public capital improvements more

particularly described in the Resolution of Formation adopted by the City Council of the City on May 26,

2020. The City and the Developer anticipate entering into an acquisition agreement wherein the City will
agree to use a portion of the proceeds of the Local Obligations to finance the acquisition from the

Developer of those facilities set forth in the acquisition agreement. Such facilities are expected to consist

of certain transportation improvements, water system improvements, recycled water system

improvements, drainage system improvements, wastewater system improvements, park, parkway and

open space improvements, Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee program improvements and certain Specific

Plan Infrastructure Fee obligations (collectively, the "Facilities"). Construction of the Facilities is

required for development within the Improvement Area and the District to be completed.

l0

Page 344

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Proceeds from the Local Obligations are expected to finance some, but not all, of the Facilities

eligible to be financed within the District, and the District expects to issue one or more series of bonds to

finance the acquisition of additional facilities in the future. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY

DEVELOPMENT - Development Plans of Finance."

THE BOI\DS

General

The Bonds are secured by a pledge of amounts paid with respect to the Local Obligations. The

Local Obligations are secured by a pledge of Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expenses)

levied against taxable property within the Improvement Area. See "DEBT SERVICE SCF{EDULE" and
,,SECURITy AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR Tm BONDS." The Local Obligations are secured

by a pledge of Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) on parity with any Additional

Local Obligations (defined below).

The Local Obligations Indenture establishes a Local Obligation Reserve Fund and a Local

Obligations Reserve Account therein with respect to the Local Obligations. Amounts available from the

f-ocA Obngations Reserve Account are available to pay debt service on the Local Obligations. The Local

Obligations Indenture requires the funding of separate debt service reserve accounts for the Local

Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations, each of which may be used only to pay the principal of
and interest on the related series of special tax bonds issued under the Local Obligations Indenture. There

is no reserve fund with respect to the Bonds, Amounts available from the Local Obligations Reserve

Account are not available to cure a deficiency generally in the Trust Estate to make debt service payments

on the Bonds.

Description of the Bonds

General. The Bonds will be dated their date of delivery and mature on September 1, as set forth

on the inside front cover page hereof (each, a "Principal Payment Date"). Interest is payable

semiannually on September 1 and March 1 of each year, commencing September l, 2022 (each, an

"Interest Payment Date").

The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds, without coupons, in denominations of $5,000,

or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds will be issued in book-entry only form and will be registered

in th! nami of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York
("DTC"). DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. So long as the Bonds are in book-entry

only form, principal of and redemption premium, if any, on the Bonds will be payable to DTC or its
nominee, who wiil in turn remit such payments to DTC Participants for subsequent disbursement to the

Beneficial Owners. See APPENDIX F-"DTC AND Tt{E BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM'"

Principal of, and redemption premium, if any, on the Bonds is payable at the corporate trust office

of the Trustee. Interest on the Bonds will be paid only to the registered owners as shown on the Trustee's

books as of the fifteenth day of the calendar month next preceding each Interest Payment Date (the

"Record Date"), except that in the case of an owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount

of Bonds outstanding, payment will be made at the owner's option by wire transfer of immediately

available funds to an account in a bank or trust company or savings bank that is a member of the Federal

Reserve System and that is located in the continental United States of America according to instructions

provided by such owner to the Trustee and received no later than the Record Date for such Interest

Payment Date.

11

Page 345

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Authority. The Bonds are payable solely from
and secured by the Trust Estate of the Authority pledged under the Trust Agreement, consisting primarily
of payments received by the Authority from the District under the Local Obligations, which payments are

secured by a lien of the Special Taxes (defined herein) (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied
upon propefiy within the Improvement Area, as more fully described herein. See "SECURITY AND
SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS."

Payments under the Local Obligations are calculated to be sufficient to permit the Authority to
pay the principal of, and interest on, the Bonds when due. Pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture, a

Local Obligations Reserve Account is established for the Local Obligations. Amounts available from the
Local Obligations Reserve Account are not available to cure a deficiency in the Trust Estate available to
pay debt service of the Bonds. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR TI# BONDS-
Terms of the Local Obligations-Zocal Obligations Reserve Account."

No Additional Bonds under the Trust Agreement. The Trust Agreement does not permit the
Authority to issue any additional bonds on parity with the Bonds. However, subject to certain conditions
contained in the Local Obligations Indenture, the District may at any time issue bonds (the "Additional
Local Obligations") payable from the net proceeds of the Special Tax (after payment of Priority
Administrative Expenses) on parity with the Local Obligations. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR TIIE BONDS - Terms of the Local Obligations -Additional Local Obligations;'

Redemption Provisions

Optional Redemption The Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Authority prior to
their respective maturity dates as a whole or in part on any date on or after 20_, from any

source of available funds other than Minimum Sinking Fund Payments and Special Tax Prepayments, at

the following redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof
called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

103% if redeemed on any date on or after
through _,20-;

I02% if redeemed on any date from
through 20-;

l0l% if redeemed on any date from
through 20-; and

1 00% if redeemed on _ , 20 _ and any date thereafter

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

20-

20-

20

T2

Page 346

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Extraordinary Redemption from Prepayment of Special Taxes. The Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption by the Authority prior to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or in part on
any Interest Payment Date on or after 20_, solely from funds derived from the
extraordinary redemption of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments, at the following
redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof called for
redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

103% if redeemed on any Interest Payment Date on or after
through _,20-;

20

102% if redeemed on any Interest Payment Date on _, 20-
and 20-;

l0l% if redeemed on any Interest Payment Date on

and _,20-; and
20

100% if redeemed on 20_and any Interest Payment Date thereafter

Prepayments from prepaid Special Taxes could be made by any of the owners of any of the
property within the Improvement Area, including the Developer, any other developers or homebuilders
owning Taxable Property in the Improvement Area or any individual owner; and they could also be made
from the proceeds of bonds issued by or on behalf of an overlapping special assessment district or
community facilities dishict. The resulting redemption of Bonds that were purchased at a price greater
than the applicable redemption price could reduce the otherwise expected yield on such Bonds. See

"CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Potential Early Redemption of Bonds from Prepaid Special
Taxes."

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Bonds. The Bonds maturing on September 1,20_are
subject to mandatory redemption in part on September 1 of each year commencing September 1,20 . at
a redemption price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof called for
redemption together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

Minimum Sinking Fund
Payment Date
(September 1)

Bonds
Minimum Sinking Fund Payment

$

Maturity

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

13
Page 347

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The Bonds maturing on September l, 20- are subject to mandatory redemption in part on
September I of each year commencing September 1, 20-, at a redemption price equal to one hundred
percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof called for redemption together with accrued interest
thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

Minimum Sinking Fund
Payment Date
(September 1)

Bonds
Minimum Sinking Fund Payment

$

t

i Maturity

If the Bonds subject to mandatory redemption are redeemed in part prior to their stated maturity
date other than from Minimum Sinking Fund Payments, the Minimum Sinking Fund Payments for such
Bonds shall be reduced proportionately by the principal amount of such Bonds so redeemed.

Redemption Instructions. Upon any prepayment of a Local Obligation, the Authority shall
deliver to the Trustee a Written Order of the Authority designating the amounts and maturities of the
Bonds to be redeemed, which shall be in the manner necessary to enable the Authority to deliver a Cash
Flow Certificate satisfuing the requirements described below. In the event only a portion of the
Outstanding Bonds of any maturity are to be redeemed at any one time, the Trustee shall select the
particular Bonds of each maturity date to be redeemed in accordance with DTC procedures (which , at the
time of the issuance of the Bonds, would be a redemption by lot) or, if the Bonds are not then in book-
entry, in a manner that it deems appropriate and fair. The Trustee shall redeem Bonds in Authorized
Denominations.

Upon any redemption of a portion but not all of the Outstanding Bonds, the Authority shall
deliver to the Trustee a Cash Flow Certificate to the effect that, assuming all payments are made with
respect to the Local Obligations, (i) the Revenues, together with moneys on deposit in other funds and
accounts held under the Trust Agreement, will be sufficient to pay all Pfincipal Installments, Minimum
Sinking Fund Payments and interest payments on the Bonds when due; and (ii) the redemption premiums,
if any, on the Local Obligations, together with other Revenues available to the Trustee for such purpose,
are sufficient to offset any difference between the interest to accrue on the Bonds to be paid or redeemed
with the proceeds of prepayment of such Local Obligations (plus any redemption premium payable upon
redemption of such Bonds) and the income to be earned on any investment of such proceeds (assured as

of the date of payment thereof), in each case until the date of payment or redemption of Bonds, such that
in no event will the prepayment of Local Obligations cause the Trustee to have insufficient funds to pay
debt service on the Bonds when due.

In no event shall Bonds be redeemed if upon such redemption the principal amount of the Local
Obligations remaining outstanding will be less than the total principal amount of Outstanding Bonds.
Such Written Order of the Authority may specift that optional redemption of the Bonds will be
conditioned upon receipt offunds or other events.

Notice of Redemption. Subject to receipt of the Written Order of the Authority described under
'(-Redemption Instructions", the Trustee shall give notice of redemption; provided, that Bonds,

t4
Page 348

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



identified by CUSIP numbers, serial numbers and maturity date, have been called for redemption and, in

the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, the portion of the principal amount thereof that has been

called for redemption (or if all the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, so stating, in which event such

serial numbers may be omitted), that they will be due and payable on the date fixed for redemption

(specitring such date) upon surrenderthereof to the Trustee at its Corporate Trust Office, subjectto any

conditions to such redemption specified in the Written Order of the Authority, at the redemption price

(speciflring such price), together with any accrued interest to such date, and that all interest on the Bonds

(or portions thereof) so to be redeemed will cease to accrue on and after such date and that from and after

such date such Bond (or such portion thereof) shall no longer be entitled to any lien, benefit or security

under the Trust Agreement, and the Owner thereof shall have no rights in respect of such redeemed Bond

or such portion except to receive payment from such money of such redemption price plus accrued

interest to the date fixed for redemption. If sufficient monies for the payment of the redemption price of
all Bonds to be redeemed are not then on deposit with the Trustee, such notice shall also state that

redemption is conditioned upon the timely deposit of sufficient funds therefor with the Trustee.

Such notice shall be mailed by first class mail, in a sealed envelope, postage prepaid, at least

thirty (30) but not more than sixty (60) days before the date fixed for redemption, to the Owners of such

Bonds (or portions thereof) so called for redemption, at their respective addresses as the same shall last

appear on the Bond Register; provided, that neither the failure of an Owner to receive notice of
redemption of Bonds nor any error in such notice shall affect the validity of the proceedings for the

redemption of Bonds.

Any notice of optional redemption may be rescinded by written notice given by the Authority to
the Trustee no later than three Business Days prior to the date specified for redemption. The Trustee shall

give notice of rescission of the notice of optional redemption or non-satisfaction of any conditions

specified in the notice of optional redemption as soon as practicable to the same parties and in the same

manner as the notice of redemption was given.

So long as the Bonds are in book-entry only form, notices of redemption will be given directly by

the Trustee to DTC and not to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. See APPENDIX F-"DTC AND
THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM."

Purchase in Lieu of Redemption. ln lieu of redemption of any Bond, amounts on deposit in the

Proceeds Fund, the Principal Fund or in the Redemption Fund may be used and withdrawn by the Trustee

at any time prior to a notice of redemption having been delivered, upon a Written Order for the purchase

of such Bonds at public or private sale as and when and at such prices as the Authority may in its
discretion determine, but not in excess of the lower of the highest or then current redemption price thereof
plus accrued interest to the purchase date; and all Bonds so purchased shall be delivered to the Trustee for
cancellation.

Payment of Redeemed Bonds. If notice of redemption has been given and not rescinded and if the

conditions to such redemption specified therein, if any, have been satisfied, each as provided in the Trust

Agreement, the Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption will become inevocably due and payable

on the date fixed for redemption at the redemption price thereof, together with accrued interest to the date

fixed for redemption, upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds to be redeemed at the office specified

in the notice of redemption. If less than the full principal amount of a Bond is called for redemption, the

Authority is required to execute and deliver and the Trustee is required to authenticate, upon surrender of
such Bond, and without charge to the Owner thereof, Bonds of like interest rate and maturity in an

aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion of the principal amount of the Bonds so

surrendered in such Authorized Denominations as specified by the Owner'

15

Page 349

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



If any Bond or any portion thereof has been duly called for redemption and payment of the

redemption piice, together with unpaid interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption, has been made or

provided foi Uy the Authority, then interest on such Bond or such portion will cease to accrue from such

date, and from and after such date such Bond or such portion will no longer be entitled to any lien, benefit

or security under the Trust Agreement, and the Owner thereof will have no rights in respect of such Bond

or such portion except to receive payment of such redemption price, and unpaid interest accrued to the

date fixed for redemption.

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUI\DS

The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to purchase the Local Obligations. The

proceeds of ihe Local Obligations in turn will be used to finance construction and acquisition of the

Facilities and pay costs of issuance of the Local Obligations and Bonds. The following table sets forth

the sources and uses ofthe funds as allocated to the Bonds:

Sources ofFunds
Principal Amount
[P lus/LessJ. tNet] Original Issue fPremium/Discount]

Total Sources

Uses of Funds
Acquisition and Construction Fund
Underwriter's Discount
Deposit to Local Obligations Reserve Account(l)
Deposit to Local Obligations Capitalized Interest Account(2)

Deposit to Costs of Issuance Fund(3)

Total Uses

(D A portilon of the purchase price of the Local Obligations will be deposited into the Local Obligations Reserve Account for

the Local Obligations. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS."
@ To pay interest on the Local Obligations and, in turn, the Bonds, to September 1,2022.
(3) a portion of the purchase price of the Local Obligations will be used to pay costs of issuance including fees of Bond

Counsel and the Municipal Advisor, the initial fees of the Trustee, noncontingent fees of the Appraiser, printing costs and

other miscellaneous expenses.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

$

$

$

$

16

Page 350

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

The annual scheduled debt service for the Bonds, assuming no early redemption other than from

mandatory sinking fund installments, is set forth in Table 2 below. The Local Obligations are sized to
provide tbOoZ of ttre debt service on the Bonds when due and have the same principal amortization as the

bonds. The Local Obligations will be issued with an annual scheduled debt service that results in at least

ll0o/o annual debt re*i"" coverage from the revenues of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax (as defined herein) for Developed Property as of June 16,2022, and the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenues for the remaining Taxable Property expected to be

generated in the Improvement Area, net of Priority Administrative Expenses (defined below). The

birt i.t expects that Additional Local Obligations will be issued on parity with the Local Obligations as

the Improviment Area develops. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS

- Terms of the Local Obligations - Additional Local Obligations."

Table 2
Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3

Special Tax Revenue Bondso Series 2022
Debt Service Schedule

Period Ending
(September 1)

2922Q)
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
2045
2046
2047
2048
2049
2050
2051
2052

Principal Interest
Total Debt

Service

$ $ $

ToTAL

(r) Local Obligations debt service capitalized through September 1,2022.

$$

Source: Piper Sandler & Co.

17

$

Page 351

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SECURITY AI\D SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS

The Bonds are secured by a lien on and pledge of the Trust Estate, consisting primarily of
payments received by the Authority from the District under the Local Obligations, which payments are

secured by Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied upon property within the

Improvement Area and received by the District.

NEITI{ER TTIE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE CITY, TIfi
DISTRICT, THE AUTHORITY, THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR ANY OT}IER POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION TI{EREOF IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF TIfi BONDS. TI{E AUTHORITY
HAS NO TAXING POWER. EXCEPT FOR THE TRUST ESTATE, NO OTHER REVENUES OR
TAXES ARE PLEDGED TO TI{E PAYMENT OF TIM BONDS. TTM BONDS ARE NOT GENERAL
OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY, THE DISTRICT OR CITY, BUT ARE LIMITED
OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY PAYABLE SOLELY FROM TI{E TRUST ESTATE,
DERIVED PRIMARILY FROM PAYMENTS ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS FROM THE
PAYMENT OF THE SPECIAL TAXES LEVIED WITHIN TTM IMPROVEMENT AREA AS MORE
FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN.

The Trust Agreement does not permit the Authority to issue any additional bonds on parity with
the Bonds. However, subject to certain conditions contained in the Local Obligations Indenture, the
District may at any time issue Additional Local Obligations payable from the net proceeds of the Special
Tax (after payment of Priority Administrative Expenses) on parity with the Local Obligations. See

"SECUzuTY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS - Terms of the Local Obligations -
Additional Lo c al Ob I i gat i ons ;'

General

The Trust Estate consists of the Revenues, the amounts in certain of the funds established and

held under the Trust Agreement, and the Local Obligations. The Revenues consist of amounts received
by the Trustee as the payment of interest on, or the equivalent thereof, and the payment or refurn of
principal of, or redemption premiums, if any, on, or the equivalent thereof, the Local Obligations, whether
as a result of scheduled payments, or redemption premiums, Special Tax Prepayments or remedial
proceedings taken in the event of a default thereon, and all investment earnings on any money held in the
Funds held under the Trust Agreement (except the Rebate Fund).

The principal of and the interest on the Local Obligations are payable from the annual Special
Taxes levied and to be collected on all real property within the Improvement Area subject to the Special
Taxes and the proceeds, if any, from the sale of such property for delinquency of such Special Taxes,

after payment of Priority Administrative Expenses. The Local Obligations are secured by a pledge on the
Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) on parity with the pledge of such Special Taxes
for any Additional Local Obligations issued under the Local Obligations Indenture. See 

(6-Payment of
the Local Obligations" 6d "-fsrms of the Local Obligations."

The District may not issue indebtedness payable from the Special Taxes except as provided in the
Local Obligations Indenture. See APPENDIX C-"SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS-
SUMMARY OF THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE-Authorization and Issuance of Bonds-
Additional Bonds; Subordinate Bonds." The City has, however, formed CFD 17, which has issued bonds
secured by special taxes with a co-equal lien on property within the Improvement Area and has formed
CFD 18, which is authorized to issue bonds secured by special taxes with a co-equal lien on property
within the Improvement Area. See "FOLSOM PLAN AREA." The Authority, the District and the City
have no control over the amount of additional debt payable from taxes or assessments on all or any

18

Page 352

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



portion of the property within the Improvement Area that may be issued in the future by other

governmental entities or districts having jurisdiction over all or a portion of the land within the

i-prou"-"nt Area. To the extent such debt is payable from other assessments or special taxes levied

puisuant to the applicable law, such assessments or special taxes may have a lien on the property within

the Improvement Area on parity with the lien of the Special Taxes.

Flow of Funds

Receipt and Deposit of Revenues. As noted above, Revenues consist of amounts received by the

Trustee as the payment of interest on, or the equivalent thereof, and the payment or return of principal of,

or redemption primiums, if any, on, or the equivalent thereof, all Local Obligations, whether as a result of
scheduled payments, or redemption premiums, Special Tax Prepayments or remedial proceedings taken in

the event of a default thereon, and all investment earnings on any money held under the Trust Agreement

(except the Rebate Fund). All Revenues, other than Revenues derived from the early redemption of Local

Obtigutionr from Special Tax Prepayments received by the Trustee from the Authority, will be deposited

into ihe Revenue Fund. On each Interest Payment Date and each Principal Payment Date, the Trustee

will transfer Revenues from the Revenue Fund, in the amounts required in the order of priority as set forth

below, with the requirements of each fund being fully satisfied, leaving no deficiencies therein, prior to

any deposit into any fund later in priority:

First: To the Interest Fund, an amount of Revenues which together with amounts on deposit

therein, is equal to the interest due and payable on the Bonds due on such Interest

Payment Date;

Second.. To the Principal Fund (i) on each Principal Payment Date from the Revenue Fund an

amount of Revenues which, together with any amounts then on deposit in the Principal

Fund (other than amounts previously deposited on account of any Bonds which have

matured but which have not been presented for payment) is sufficient to pay the

Principal Installments on the Bonds due on such Principal Payment Date and (ii) on

each September I on which a Minimum Sinking Fund Payment is required to be made

(for deposit in the Sinking Fund Account) from the Revenue Fund an amount of
Revenues which is equal to the Minimum Sinking Fund Payment due and payable on

such date. On each Principal Payment Date, the Trustee shall pay the principal or

redemption price due and payable on the Bonds on such date from the Principal Fund.

Following such deposits, any remaining money in the Revenue Fund is required to be transferred

to the Local Obligations Trustee for application under the Local Obligations Indenture. For additional

information regarding the Flow of Funds, 5ss 
('-l6s4l Obligations Flow of Funds."

Revenues Derived from Special Tax Prepayments. All Revenues derived from early redemption

of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments received by the Trustee will be immediately

deposited into the Redemption Fund to be applied to the extraordinary redemption of Bonds. See "THE

BoNDs-Redemption Provisions-Extraordinary Redemptionfrom Prepayment of Special Taxes."

Description of Local Obligations

The District will issue the Local Obligations in the principal amount of $9,100,000*. The Local

Obligations are secured solely by the Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied upon

* 
Preliminary, subject to change.

t9
Page 353

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



certain real propefty within the Improvement Area and proceeds of foreclosure sales in the Improvement

Area.

The pledge of Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied within the

Improvement Area is on parity with the pledge thereof securing any Additional Local Obligations issued

under the Local Obligations Indenture. The District may issue Additional Local Obligations secured on

palty with the pledge of the Special Taxes (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) within the

i-piou"-.nt Area only in accordance with the Local Obligations Indenture. See APPENDIX C-
..SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS-SUMMARY OF THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS

INDENTURE-Authorization and Issuance of Bonds-l dditional Bonds; Subordinate Bonds."

A description of the Improvement Area is set forth under the caption, "TIfi IMPROVEMENT
AREA."

Issuance of Local Obligations

The Local Obligations are authorized pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act and are issued under a

resolution of the City Council of the City, as legislative body of the District and the Local Obligations

Indenture. The Mello-Roos Act was enacted by the State Legislature to provide an alternate method of
financing certain essential public capital facilities and services, especially in developing areas of the State'

Subject io approval by a two-thirds vote of qualified electors and compliance with the provisions of the

Mefio-Roos-Act,alegislative body of a local agency may issue bonds for a community facilities district

and may levy and collect a special tax within such district to repay such indebtedness'

The Local Obligations constitute special tax obligations of the District payable as to both

principal and interest from the annual Special Tax (after payment of the District's Priority Administrative

h,*penses) to be levied by the District on land within the Improvement Area, including proceeds from the

sall of property within the Improvement Area collected as a result of foreclosure of the lien of the Special

Taxes and-certain funds and accounts held under the Local Obligations Indenture. The District's sole

recourse in the event of a delinquency or failure to pay Special Taxes on a particular parcel is to institute

foreclosure proceedings with respect to that parcel. However, the District is not obligated under the Local

Obligations Indenture to enforce the lien of any delinquent installment of the Special Tax for any Fiscal

Yeaiin which the District has received one hundred percent (100%) of the amount of such installment

from the County pursuant to the Teeter Plan. See "-{ovenant for Foreclosure" 6nd 
(6-f[e Teeter Plan"

herein.

Payment of the Local Obligations

The Local Obligations constitute the limited obligations of the District payable as to both

principal and interest from the annual Special Tax (net of Priority Administrative Expenses) levied by the

birt iit on Taxable Property within the Improvement Area, including proceeds from the sale of property

within the Improvement Area collected as a result of foreclosure of the lien on the Special Taxes and

certain funds and accounts held under the Local Obligations Indenture. The District's sole recourse in the

event of a delinquency or failure to pay Special Taxes on a particular parcel is to institute foreclosure

proceedings with respect to that parcel'

The term "Priority Administrative Expenses" means an amount equal to (a) for Fiscal

Year 2022-23, $20,000, and (b) for any subsequent Fiscal Year, the amount resulting from increasing the

Priority Administrative Expenses on each July 1, from and including the July 1 immediately following the

end olthe then current Fiscal Year to and including the July I in such Fiscal Year by 2o/o of the amount in

effect for the previous Fiscal Year.

20

Page 354

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS ARE SPECIAL TAX OBLIGATIONS OF TIfi DISTRICT,
AND TI{E INTEREST ON AND PRINCIPAL OF AND REDEMPTION PREMruMS, IF ANY, ON

TT{E LOCAL OBLIGATIONS ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM TFIE PROCEEDS OF TI{E SPECIAL

TAX (INCLUDING ANY PREPAYMENTS THEREOF AND PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF

PROPERTY COLLECTED PURSUANT TO T}M FORECLOSURE PROVISIONS OF THE LOCAL
OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE FOR THE DELINQUENCY OF TTM, SPECIAL TAX), NET OF

PRIORITY ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, AND AMOLTNTS IN CERTAIN FI.INDS AND
ACCOI.INTS ESTABLISHED IN TI{E LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE, AND TF{E DISTRICT
IS NOT OBLIGATED TO PAY THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS EXCEPT FROM SUCH FI.INDS. THE

GENERAL FLIND OF THE CITY AND TI{E FLTNDS OF THE DISTRICT ARE NOT LIABLE, AND
NEITHER THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF TI{E DISTRICT NOR THE CITY ARE PLEDGED

FOR THE PAYMENT OF TFM,INTEREST ON OR PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMruMS,

IF ANY, ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS. NO TAX OR ASSESSMENT OTHER TIIAN TTIE

SPECIAL TAX SHALL EVER BE LEVIED OR COLLECTED TO PAY THE INTEREST ON OR

PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMruMS, IF ANY, ON TI{E LOCAL OBLIGATIONS. TFIE

LOCAL OBLIGATIONS ARE NOT SECURED BY A LEGAL OR EQUITABLE PLEDGE OF OR

CHARGE, LIEN OR ENCUMBRANCE UPON ANY PROPERTY OF TFM, DISTRICT OR A}[Y OF

ITS INCOME OR RECEIPTS EXCEPT TFIE PROCEEDS OF T}IE SPECIAL TAX (INCLUDING
ANY PREPAYMENTS TFMREOF AND PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF PROPERTY

COLLECTED PURSUANT TO THE FORECLOSURE PROVISIONS OF TFIE LOCAL
OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE FOR THE DELINQUENCY OF THE SPECIAL TAX), NET OF

PRIORITY ADMINISTRATTVE EXPENSES, AND AMOUNTS IN CERTAIN FUNDS AND
ACCOTINTS ESTABLISHED IN TFM, LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE, AND NEITHER THE

PAYMENT OF TI{E INTEREST ON OR PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMIUMS, IF ANY,
ON THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS IS A GENERAL DEBT, LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION OF TFM,

DISTRICT. THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE

DISTRICT WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY DEBT

LIMITATION OR RESTRICTION, AND NEITHER THE CITY COUNCIL NOR THE DISTRICT
NOR ANY OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE TI{EREOF SHALL BE LIABLE FOR THE PAYMENT OF

THE INTEREST ON OR PRINCIPAL OF OR REDEMPTION PREMruMS, IF ANY, ON TI{E LOCAL
OBLIGATIONS OT}IERWISE THAN FROM TIIE PROCEEDS OF THE SPECIAL TAX
(INCLUDING ANY PREPAYMENTS TI{EREOF AND PROCEEDS FROM THE SALE OF

PROPERTY COLLECTED PURSUANT TO TFIE FORECLOSURE PROVISIONS OF TFIE LOCAL
OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE FOR TI{E DELINQUENCY OF THE SPECIAL TAX), NET OF

PRIORITY ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, AND AMOLINTS IN CERTAIN FLINDS AND
ACCOUNTS ESTABLISHED IN THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE.

Although the Special Tax will constitute a lien on property subject to taxation in the Improvement

Area, it will not constitute a personal indebtedness of the owners of such property. There is no assurance

that the owners will be financially able to pay the annual Special Tax or that they will pay such tax even if
financially able to do so. The risk of nonpayment by property owners is more fully described in

"CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Collection of Special Tax'"

Local Obligations Flow of Funds

Application of Special Tax Fund. Pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture, the Dishict agrees

and covenants that it will deposit the Special Tax proceeds in the Community Facilities Fund, which fund

is established in the treasury of the City. All money in the Community Facilities Fund shall be used and

withdrawn by the District solely for the benefit of the District in accordance with the Mello-Roos Act,

including payment of Expenses. Pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture, the District further agrees

and covinants that, after payment of Priority Administrative Expenses, it will transfer to the Local

2I
Page 355

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Obligations Trustee from the Community Facilities Fund amounts sufficient and in sufficient time for the

mcal obligations Trustee to make the transfers required by it, and the Local Obligations Trustee shall

deposit ,u"f, pror""ds as and when received in the Special Tax Fund. All money in the Special Tax Fund

is iequired to be set aside by the Local Obligations Trustee in the following respective special account

and fund within the Special Tax Fund in the following order of priority, and all money in each such

account and fund shall be applied, used and withdrawn only for the purposes specified in the Local

Obligations Indenture:

(1) Redemption Account; and

(2) Local Obligations Reserve Fund.

Redemption Account. On or before March I and September 1 in each year, the Local Obligations

Trustee shall, from the money in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account

an amount of money equui to the aggregate amount of interest becoming due and payable on all

Outstanding Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations on such March 1 or September 1, as

the case miy be, and on or before September 1 in each year, the Local Obligations Trustee shall, from the

then remaining money in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit in the Redemption Account an

amount of money equal to tlie aggregate amount of principal becoming due and payable on all

outstanding seriai LoCal obligations and any Additional Local Obligations on such September 1 plus all

Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments required to be made on such September 1 into the Sinking

Fund Subaccounq provided, that all of the aforesaid payments shall be made without priority of any

payment over any other payment, and in the event that money in the Special Tax Fund on any March 1 or
^September I is not equal to the amount of interest becoming due on all Local Obligations and any

Additional Local Obligations on such date, or in the event that the money in the Special Tax Fund on any

September 1 is not equal to the amount of principal of the Local Obligations and Additional Local

Obligations becoming due on such date, as the case may be, then such money shall be applied pro rata in

such proportion as such interest and principal and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments bear to

each other.

No deposit need be made into the Redemption Account if the amount of money contained therein

is at least 
"quul 

to the amount required by the terms of the preceding paragraph to be deposited therein at

the times and in the amounts provided in the Local Obligations Indenture.

All money in the Redemption Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Local Obligations

Trustee to pay the interest on the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations as it shall

become due and payable (including accrued interest on any Local Obligations or any Additional Local

Obligations purchasld or redeemed prior to maturity) plus the principal of and redemption premiums, if
uny,-on the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations as they shall mature or upon the prior

redemption thereof; exiept that any money in the Sinking Fund Subaccount shall be used only to purchase

or rediem or retire the tirm Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations as provided in the

Local Obligations Indenture.

Local Obligations Reserve Fund. On or before March 1 and September 1 in each year, the Local

Obligations Trustee shall, from the then remaining money in the Special Tax Fund, transfer to and deposit

in eJch Local Obligations Reserve Account within the Local Obligations Reserve Fund such amount of
money as shall be required to restore each such Local Obligations Reserve Account to a sum equal to the

Required Bond Reserve (as defined herein) for the applicable series of Local Obligations or Additional

Local Obligations, pro rata, to the extent that amounts are available in the Special Tax Fund for such

purpose; und fot this purpose all investments in each Local Obligations Reserve Account shall be valued
^on 

March 1 and Septim6er 1 of each year at the face value thereof if such investments mature within

22

Page 356

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



twelve (12) months from the date of valuation, or if such investments mature more than twelve (12)

months after the date of valuation, atthe price at which such investments are redeemable by the holder at

his option, if so redeemable, or if not so redeemable, at the lesser of (i) the cost of such investments plus

the imortization of any premium or minus the amortization of any discount, or (ii) the market value of
such investments. For purposes of allocating remaining money in the Special Tax Fund between more

than one Local Obligations Reserve Account, any such transfers to and deposits in each Local Obligations

Reserve Account shall be made equally and ratably.

No deposit need be made into a Local Obligations Reserve Account if the value of the

investments contained therein is at least equal to the Required Bond Reserve for the applicable series of
Local Obligations or Additional Local Obligations.

All money in each Local Obligations Reserve Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Local

Obligations Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the interest on or principal of the conesponding

series of Local Obligations or Additional Local Obligations in the event there is insufficient money in the

Redemption Account available for this purpose; pley-idgd, that if as a result of any of the foregoing

valuations or due to redemption as a result of property owner prepayments it is determined that the

amount of money in a Local Obligations Reserve Account exceeds or will exceed the Required Bond

Reserve for the applicable series of Local Obligations or Additional Local Obligations, the Local

Obligations Trustee shall withdraw the amount of money representing such excess from such fund and

shall deposit such amount of money in the Redemption Account. For the avoidance of doubt, amounts in

a Local Obligations Reserve Account are not available to make up a deficiency for the payment of
principal and interest on any series of Local Obligations or Additional Local Obligations, other than the

specific series of Local Obligations or Additional Local Obligations to which that Local Obligations

Reserve Account relates.

Special Tax Autho rization

The Special Tax is to be levied and collected against all Taxable Property within the

Improvement Area in accordance with the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment. See

APPENDIX A-"AMENDED RATE, METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF

COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX." The Special Tax is to be collected in the same manner as ordinary

ad valorem property taxes are collected, and, except as otherwise provided in the covenant for foreclosure

and in the Mello-Roos Act, is to be subject to the same penalties and the same procedure, sale and lien
priority in case of delinquency as is provided for ad valorem properly taxes. See "SECURITY AND
SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-Covenant for Foreclosure" and "CERTAIN RISKS TO

BONDHOLDERS-Collection of Special Tax."

The Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment of the Special Tax, subject to the maximum

rates set forth therein, apportions the total debt service requirement (principal, interest, and mandatory

sinking fund payments), restoration of the Required Bond Reserve, cunent annual expenses, pay as you

go improvement costs and other costs each year among the taxable land in the Improvement Area. See

APPENDIX A-"AMENDED RATE, METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF

COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX."

Pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture, so long as any Local Obligations or Additional
Local Obligations are Outstanding, the District is required annually to levy the Special Tax against all
Taxable Property in the Improvement Area and make provision for the collection of such Special Tax in
amounts which will be sufficient, after making reasonable allowances for contingencies and errors in the

estimates, to yield proceeds equal to the amounts required for compliance with the agreements,

conditions, covenants and terms contained in the Local Obligations Indenture, and which in any event

23

Page 357

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



will be sufficient to pay the interest on and principal of and Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments

for and redemption prerniums, if any, on the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations as

they becom" du" und payable, to replenish each reserve account within the Local Obligations Reserve

f'und to the Required Bond Reserve and to pay all current Expenses as they become due and payable.

Under the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, the Facilities Special Tax (as defined

herein) levied in any fiscal year against any Assessor's Parcel (as defined in the Amended Rate and

Method of Apportionment) oiDevel,oped Property classified as Residential Property may not be increased

as a consequence of delinquency or default by the owner or owners of any other parcel or parcels within

the Improvement Area by^more than l0o/o above the amount that would have been levied against such

Assessor,s parcel in that fiscal year had there never been any such delinquencies or defaults. Pursuant to

the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, property is considered "Residential Property" once a

building permit could be issued for the purposes of constructing one or more Residential Units, including

either single family detached homes or multi-family attached properties, such as apartments, and property

is consideied ,.Developed property" if a building permit for new construction was issued prior to June 30

of the previous fiscal year. See "CERTAINRISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Maximum Special Tax'"

Covenant for X'oreclosure

The Local Obligations Indenture provides that the Special Tax is to be collected in the same

manner as ordinary aivalorem property taxes are collected and, except as provided in the special

covenant for foreclosure describedbelow and in the Mello-Roos Act, is subject to the same penalties and

the same procedure, sale, and lien priority in case of delinquency as is provided for ad valorem propefty

taxes.

pursuant to Section 53356.1 of the Mello-Roos Act, in the event of any delinquency in the

payment of the Special Tax, the District may order the institution of a Superior Court action to foreclose

itt" ti.n therefor within specified time limits. In such an action, the real properly subject to the unpaid

amount may be sold at u 3.rAi"iat foreclosure sale. Such judicial foreclosure action is not mandatory'

However, the District has covenanted in the Local Obligations Indenture that it will annually on or before

September 1 of each year review the public records of the County relating to the collection of the Special

Tax in order to determine the amount of the Special Tax collected in the prior Fiscal Year, and if it
determines on the basis of such review that the amount so collected is deficient by more than five percent

(5%) of the total amount of the Special Tax levied in such Fiscal Year within the Improvement Area, it
will-within sixty (60) days thereafter institute foreclosure proceedings as authorized by the Mello-Roos

Act in order to enforce the lien of the delinquent installments of the Special Tax against each lot or parcel

of land in the Improvement Area, and will diligently prosecute and pursue such foreclosure proceedings

to judgment and sale; p1qvidgd, that irrespective of the foregoing if the District determines on the basis of
,u"h ,"ui"* that property owned by any single property owner in the Improvement Area is delinquent by

four missed payments with respect to the Special Tax due and payable by such propeffy owner by such

delinquency iaL, then the District will institute, prosecute and pursue such foreclosure proceedings in the

time and manner provided in the Local Obligations Indenture against such property owner; provided

further, that any actions taken to enforce delinquent Special Tax liens shall be taken only consistent with

Sections 53356.1through 53356.7,both inclusive, of the Government Code of the State of California; and

provided further, that the District is not obligated under the Local Obligations Indenture to enforce the

ii"" of unv O"tinquent installment of the Special Tax for any Fiscal Year in which the District has

received one hundied percent (100%) of the amount of such installment from the County pursuant to the

Teeter Plan (described herein).

In the event that sales or foreclosures of property are necessary, there could be a delay in

payments to Owners of the Bonds (if the Local Obligations Reserve Account has been depleted) pending

24

Page 358

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



such sales or the prosecution of such foreclosure proceedings and receipt by the District ofthe proceeds

of sale. However, within the limits of the Special Tax, the District may adjust the Special Tax levied on

Taxable Property in the Improvement Area (subject to the limitation on the Maximum Special Tax,

defined herein), to provide an amount required to pay interest on and principal of the Local Obligations
and any additional obligations payable from the Special Tax, and the amount, if any, necessary to
replenish each subaccount of the Local Obligations Reserve Fund to an amount equal to the Required
Bond Reserve and to pay all current Expenses for the Improvement Area. There is, however, no

assurance that the total amount of the Special Tax that could be levied and collected against Taxable

Property (as defined in the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment) in the Improvement Area will
be at all times sufficient to pay the amounts required to be paid by the Local Obligations Indenture, even

if the Special Tax is levied at the Maximum Special Tax rates. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO
BONDHOLDERS-Maximum Special Tax,"

No assurance can be given that the real property subject to sale or foreclosure will be sold, or if
sold, that the proceeds of sale will be sufficient to pay any delinquent installments of the Special Tax.

The Mello-Roos Act does not require the District to purchase or otherwise acquire any lot or parcel of
property to be sold if there is no other purchaser at such sale. The Mello-Roos Act and the Local
Obligations Indenture do specifr that the Special Tax will have the same lien priority as for ad valorem
property taxes in the case of delinquency. Section 53356.6 of the Mello-Roos Act requires that propeffy
within the Improvement Area that is sold pursuant to foreclosure under the Mello-Roos Act be sold for
not less than the amount ofjudgment in the foreclosure action, plus post judgment interest and authorized
costs, unless the consent of the owners of at least 7 5o/o of the Local Obligations and any Additional Local
Obligations issued under the Local Obligations Indenture is obtained.

No Required Advances from Available Surplus Funds

Neither the City nor the District is obligated to advance available surplus funds available from the

City treasury to pay debt service on the Local Obligations or to replenish the Local Obligations Reserve

Account; ppyldgd, that nothing shall affect the right of the Dishict under the Mello-Roos Act to make

advances to cure any deficiencies.

Terms of the Local Obligations

General. The City Council of the City established the District and designated the Improvement
Area therein on May 26,2020. On that same date, the eligible voters of the District in the Improvement
Area authorized the issuance of bonds in an amount not to exceed $124,000,000 for the Improvement
Area. However, in December 2021, change proceedings for the Improvement Area were held, whereby
the eligible voters in the Improvement Area approved a reduction in the maximum principal amount of
bonded indebtedness that may be issued for and paid by'Improvement Area to $15,750,000.

The Local Obligations will be the first issuance of bonds for the Improvement Area. The Local
Obligations will be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $9,100,000* pursuant to the Mello-Roos
Act and the Local Obligations Indenture. The Local Obligations will be dated the date of delivery of the

Bonds. The Local Obligations are secured by a pledge of the Special Tax (net of Priority Administrative
Expenses) levied within the Improvement Area. The District may issue Additional Local Obligations on
panty with the Local Obligations in accordance with the Local Obligations Indenture. Based on the
expected Special Tax revenues, the District expects that obligations issued to finance the Facilities in the

Improvement Area will be issued for the Improvement Area in a total amount of approximately

* 
Preliminary, subjectto change.

25

Page 359

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



$10,900,000*. This amount may vary depending on the timing of the issuance of the Additional Local

Obligations and the applicable interest rates at the time of any such issuance.

Local Obligations Reserve Account. The Local Obligations Indenture establishes, for this series

of the Local Obligutionr specifically, a Local Obligations Reserve Account within the Local Obligations

Reserve Fund to be held by the Local Obligations Trustee. The Local Obligations Indenture requires that

there be maintained in the Local Obligations Reserve Account an amount equal to the Required Bond

Reserve. "Required Bond Reserve" is defined to mean, for the Local Obligations specifically, as of any

date of calculation, the least of: (a) the Maximum Annual Debt Service, (b) one hundred twenty-five

percent (I25%) of the Average Annual Debt Service or (c) ten (10%) percent of the original proceeds of
ihe Local Obligations; provided that the Required Bond Reserve shall be calculated on the date of
issuance of the Local Obligations issued under the Local Obligations Indenture and shall not increase

thereafter; and provided further that such requirement (or any portion thereof) may be satisfied by the

provision of oni or more policies of municipal bond insurance or surety bonds issued by a municipal

tond insurer or by a letter of credit issued by a bank, the obligations insured by which insurer or issued by

which bank, as the case may be, have ratings at the time of issuance of such policy or surety bond or letter

of credit equal to "AA" or higher (without regard to qualifier) assigned by Fitch or "Aa" or higher

(without regard to qualifier) assigned by Moody's or "AA" or higher (without regard to qualifier)

assigned by S&P.

The Local Obligations Reserve Account is established specifically for the Local Obligations, and

a-o,rnts in the Local Obligations Reserve Account are not available to make up a deficiency for the

payment of principal and interest on any Additional Local Obligations. Pursuant to the Local Obligations

indenture, each reserve account within the Local Obligations Reserve Fund is only available for paying

the interest on or principal of the corresponding series of Local Obligations or any Additional Local

Obligations for which it was created.

The Required Bond Reserve with respect to the Local Obligations upon their date of issuance will
be$

All money in the Local Obligations Reserve Account will be used and withdrawn by the Local

Obligations Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the Local Obligations

in the event there is insufficient money available for the purpose; ppvidgd, that if as a result of any of the

valuation of a Required Bond Reserve or as a result of any property owner prepayment it is determined

that the amount of money in the Local Obligations Reserve Account exceeds the Required Bond Reserve,

the Local Obligations Trustee shall withdraw the amount of money representing such excess from such

fund and shall deposit such amount of money in the Redemption Account. Amounts on deposit in the

Local ObligationJ Reserve Account are not available to cure a deficiency in Revenues available to pay

debt service on the Bonds.

Additional Local Obligations. The District may at any time, by a supplement to the Local

Obligations Indenture, issue Additional Local Obligations that are payable from the proceeds of the

Special Tax (after payment of Priority Administrative Expenses) on parity with the Local Obligations,

subject to the following conditions, which conditions are precedent to the issuance of such Additional

Local Obligations:

(D The District shall be in compliance with all agreements, conditions, covenants and terms

contained in the Local Obligations Indenture and in all Supplemental Indentures required to be observed

or performed by it, and no Event of Default under the Local Obligations Indenture or under any

Supplemental Indenture shall have occurred and shall be then continuing;

26

Page 360

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(iD The District shall establish a separate subaccount of the Local Obligations Reserve Fund

for the payment of such Additional Local Obligations in an amount equal to the Required Bond Reserve;

and

(iiD (a) In each year until the maturity date for the Additional Local Obligations, the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax for Taxable Property classified as Developed Property, plus the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue (as defined in the Amended Rate and Method

of Apportionment) for Taxable Property not classified as Developed Property less Priority Administrative

n*penses is estimated to cover at least one hundred ten percent (Lrc%) of the sum of the Annual Debt

Service for each year on the Local Obligations and all Additional Local Obligations, including such

Additional Local Obligations to be issued, and (b) the Value of all Taxable Property, in aggregate, is at

least three (3) times the aggregate Lien on such Taxable Property.

"Facilities Special Tax" is the annual Special Tax to be levied in each Fiscal Year on each

Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property to fund the Facilities Special Tax Requirement in accordance with

the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment (each as defined in the Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment).

"Developed Property" means, for purposes of the requirement described above relating to the

issuance of Additional Local Obligations, Taxable Property for which a building permit for new

construction has been issued as of the date of calculation.

"Maximum Facilities Special Tax" is the total maximum annual Facilities Special Tax,

determined in accordance with the provisions of Section C of the Arnended Rate and Method of
Apportionment, which may be levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Propefty

(each as defined in the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment).

"Value" is defined as the current assessed valuation of the Taxable Property and/or the appraised

value of the Taxable Property determined by a MAI appraiser. "Lien" is defined in the Local Obligations

Indenture as the aggt"gut" principal amount of all overlapping debt and bonds (including the Local

Obligations and any-Additional Local Obligations) outstanding that are secured by a special tax levied

pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act or a special assessment levied on property within the Improvement Area,

including any overlapping debt or bonds for community facilities districts or special assessment districts

that is reasonably allocated to property within the Improvement Area.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District may issue one or more series of Additional Local

Obligations (the "Refunding Local Obligations") without meeting the requirements summarized in

parugraph (iii) above if, after the issuance and delivery of such Refunding Local Obligations, either (i)
non" oi the Local Obligations and Additional Local Obligations theretofore issued under the Local

Obligations Indenture wiil be Outstanding or (ii) the Debt Service in each Bond Year that begins after the

issuance of such Refunding Local Obligations is not increased by reason of the issuance of such

Refunding Local Obligations.

Redemption of the Local Obligations. The Local Obligations are subject to extraordinary

redemption by the District from funds derived by the District from prepayments of the Special Tax. The

Local bbliguiionr are also subject to optional and mandatory redemption by the District. A description of
the redemption prices and terms of the Local Obligations is set forth under APPENDIX C-"SUMMARY
OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS-SUMMARY OF THE LOCAL OBLIGATIONS INDENTURE-
Redemption of Bonds."

27

Page 361

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Selection of Local Obligations for Redemption. lf less than all the outstanding Local Obligations

and any Additional Local Obligations are to be redeemed as a result of prepayments of the Special Tax at

any one time, the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations shall be redeemed pro rata by

maturity. If less than all the outstanding Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations are to

be redeemed at the option of the District at any one time, the Local Obligations and any Additional Local

Obligations of the latest maturity date or dates shall be redeemed prior to or simultaneously with the

redemption of the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations maturing prior thereto, and if
less than all the outstanding Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations of any one maturity

date are to be redeem ed at any one time, the Trustee shall select the Local Obligations and any Additional
Local Obligations or the portions thereof of such maturity date to be redeemed in integral multiples of
five thousand dollars ($5,000) in a manner that it deems appropriate and fair.

Special Tax Analysis

The following is a synopsis of the provisions of the Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment, which should be read in conjunction with the complete text of the Amended Rate and

Method of Apportionment which is attached as APPENDIX A. The definitions of the capitalized terms

used under this caption "-special Tax Analysis" are as set forth in APPENDIX A. This section provides

only a summary of the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, and is qualified by more complete

and detailed information contained in the entire Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment attached as

APPENDIX A.

The Special Tax is to be levied and collected against all Taxable Property within the

Improvement Area in accordance with the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment approved by the

landowner electors of the Improvement Area. The total annual levy of the Special Tax is calculated to

satisfu the annual debt service during the ensuing Fiscal Year, to replenish the reserve fund for the Local

Obligations, the allocable portion of administrative expenses, the amount necessary to cure any

delinquencies or to fund any deficiency of the amount to be available for the payment of principal or

interest on bonds which are expected to occur in the ensuing Fiscal Year, to fund authorized facilities

funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, to fund authorized services expenses and to pay amounts required to

establish or replenish certain funds related to authorized services, less any available capitalized interest

and earnings on the funds that may be used to fund the aforementioned costs.

Assignment to Land (Jse Categories. Each Fiscal Year, all Assessor's Parcels within the

Improvement Area will be classified as either Taxable Property or Exempt Property. Taxable Property

will be fuither classified as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-
FamilyAtron-Residential Property, Large Lot Property, or Undeveloped Property and shall be subject to

the levy ofthe annual Special Tax.

"Developed Propertf'means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a building

permit for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a

Small Lot Final Subdivision Map was recorded prior to June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Permit Ready Multi-Family/Non-Residential Property" meansan Assessor's Parcel of Taxable

Property zoned for multi-family or non-residential land use for which all discretionary entitlements have

been obtained, including without limitation, development plan review and improvement plan approval,

such that building permits may be issued without further approvals for the construction of multi-family
Residential Units or non-residential buildings within such Assessor's Parcel. The City shall have sole

28

Page 362

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



discretion, based upon available development information, in classifuing an Assessor's Parcel as Permit

Ready Multi-FamilyA'{on-Residential Property.

"Large Lot Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which aLargeLot
Map was recorded prioito June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, excluding any portion(s) thereof classified

as beveloped Propirty, Small Lot Final Map Properly or Permit Ready Multi-FamilyA'{on-Residential

Property. Large tot Properly also means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small

Lot Final Map Remainder Property as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year.

"Small Lot Final Map Remainder Propertll' means an Assessor's Parcel that is created from the

subdivision of Large Lot Property by the recordation of a Small Lot Final Subdivision Map that has not

yet been mapped for final development approval. Small Lot Final Map Remainder Property is that

portion of priperty for which the Small Lot Final Subdivision Map definition does not apply (i.e., does

not contain individual lots for which building permits may be issued for Residential Units without further

subdivision of such property). Each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property classified as Small Lot Final Map

Remainder Property, as of June 30 of the previous Fiscal Year, will be considered Large Lot Property'

"(Jndeveloped Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Properly not classified as

Developed Property, Smalt tot Final Map Property, Permit Ready Multi-FamilyA'{on-Residential

Property or Large Lot ProPeffY.

"single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zoningl'means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more detached

or attac-hed Residential Units with a permitted density range of 7-12 Residential Units per Acre, which is

more fully described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2071 and as amended by

the City Council.

"single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoningl'means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable

Property for which a building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more Residential

Units. Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFFID Zoning shall consist of either single-family propeffy

with a permitted density range of 1-4 Residential Units per Acre or single-family high density propeffy

with a permitted density range of 4-7 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully described in the

FolsomPlan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2011 and as amended by the City Council.

"MMD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building

permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

irarcel with a permitted density range of 12-20 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully described

in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2011 and as amended by the City Council.

"MHD Multi-Family Attached Property" means all Assessor's Parcels for which a building
permit could be issued for purposes of constructing one or more attached Residential Units per Assessor's

iarcel with a permitted density range of greater than 20 Residential Units per Acre, which is more fully
described in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan adopted on June 28,2011 and as amended by the City

Council. MHD Multi-Family Attached Property shall also include an Assessor's Parcel or that portion of
an Assessor's Parcel designated as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel.

"Mixed (Jse Residential Pqrcel" means a mixed use Assessor's Parcel that is designated for

residential land use. If the mixed use Assessor's Parcel contains a combination of residential land use and

non-residential land use, only that portion ofan Assessor's Parcel designated for residential land use shall

be classified as a Mixed Use Residential Parcel and the remaining non-residential land use of the

Assessor's Parcel shall be classified as Non-Residential Properly.

29

Page 363

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"Non-Residential Property" means, for each Fiscal Year, all Taxable Property for which a

building permit could be issued for purposes of constructing non-residential buildings.

Maximum Special Tax. The Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment is used to allocate the

amount of the Special Tax required among the Taxable Property, based upon land use categories, subject

to the Maximum Special Tax rate thatmay be levied against each land use category.

The following table shows the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Special Tax
rates and the Maximum Special Tax rates within the Improvement Area for all anticipated allocable land

use categories in Fiscal Year 2022-23. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Special
Tax rates are the minimum rates for the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

30

Page 364

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Table 3
City of Fotsom

Communities Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No.3

Maximum Special Tax Rate Categories
tr'iscal Year 2022-23

Tax Category
Residential
Floor Area

Effective
Tax Rate

Evaluation
Minimum
Facilities
Special

Tax Rate(l)

Effective Tax
Rate

Evaluation
Maximum
F'acilities

Special Tax
Rate(l)

Maximum
Services
Special

Tax Rate(2)

Maximum
Annual
Special
Tax(3)

Developed Property ($ amounts per residential unit)
Detached Residential:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zontng
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zontng
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zoning
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zonng

Developed Property ($ amounts per acre)
MMD Multi-Family Attached Property
MHD Multi-Family Attached Property
Non-Residential Property

Small Lot Final Map Property
($ amounts per residential lot)
Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zonng
Single-Family Detached Property - MLD Zontng

Permit Ready Multi-Family/It{on-Residential
Property ($ amounts per acre)

Large Lot Property ($ amounts per acre)

Undeveloped Property ($ amounts per acre)

$102
t02
t02
102
102

$30,600
11,934
1r,934

$3 1,1 10

12,954
12,954

> 2,200
2,000 - 2,199
1,800 - 1,999

< 1,799
N/A

s908
806
704
602
500

$602
602
602
602
500

$sl0
1,020
1,020

$1,010
908
806
704
602

s19,380

$19,380

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

$30,600
11,934
11,934

N/A

N/A

$102
102

N/A $602
500

$704
N/A

N/A $11,934 $1,020 $12,954

602

N/A

N/A

$18,360

$18,360

$1,020

$1,020

(r) Increases by 2%oeachFiscal Year.
(2) Increases by the annual June consumer price index change for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose are4 not to exceed 4o/o each Fiscal Year.

Available to pay debt service on the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations in the event of a shortfall in the Facilities

Special Tax (as defined in the Local Obligations Indenture). Estimated to increase by 2o/ofot Fiscal Year 2022-23.
(3) The sum of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax and the Maximum Services Special Tax.

Source: NBS and the District.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

3l Page 365

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The total Special Tax generated by the Improvement Area may change from time to time if there

are amendments or modifications to the development plan. The District covenants in the Local

Obligations Indenture to not approve any amendments, changes or modifications relating to development

of thi property within the Improvement Area that would reduce the amount of the Maximum Facilities

Speciai Tax less Priority Administrative Expenses to equal less than one hundred ten percent (110%) of
the sum of the Annual Debt Service on the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations in

any year until the maturity date for the Local Obligations and any Additional Local Obligations.

Tables 4 and 5 under '6-special Tax Calculation" collectively show the estimated maximum and

projected actual amounts of Special Tax revenue for Fiscal Year 2022-23 using the development status of
the properties as of June 16, 2022 (unless otherwise noted). Table 4 shows the Fiscal Year 2022-23

estimated Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenues, based on the

development status of the properties as of June 16,2022 (unless otherwise noted). If changes are made to

development plans for the Improvement Area, the projected Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Speciat Tax revenues may decrease from the amounts shown in that table, but in no event will
the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenues decrease below the Effective

Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue. Table 5 shows the estimated total Special Tax levy for
Fiscal Year 2022-23 based on the properties' development status as of June 16,2022 (unless otherwise

noted), including both the estimated Facilities Special Tax levy and the estimated Services Special Tax

levy for Fiscal iear 2022-23, and the percentage of the estimated Special Tax levy allocable to each of
the projected property owners.

Included below are additional relevant defined terms used in the Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue" means, following the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation, the total minimum amount of CFD No. 23 IA3 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Facilities Special Tax, as adjusted annually by the Facilities Special Tax Escalation Factor after the Fiscal

Year in which the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation occurs, less any Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax amounts prepaid and permanently satisfied pursuant to Section K of the

Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities

Revenue, based on Planned Development, is set forth in Attachment D of the Amended Rate and Method

of Apportionment.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tmc" means the total maximum

annual paiitities Special Tax, as determined during the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation, which may be

levied in any Fiscal Year on any Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property.

"Effective Tax Rate Evaluation" means an evaluation of the Total Effective Tax Rate of
Residentiai Property at the time of such evaluation. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation will be based

upon a prepared Price Point Study to determine the Total Effective Tax Rate for Residential Properly,

based upon the calculated Total Estimated Tax Burden.

"Total Effective Tax Rate" means the percentage of the Total Estimated Tax Burden as compared

to the estimated average sales price identified in the Price Point Study for each land use category of
Residential Property.

"Total Estimated Tax Burden" means the total amount of overlapping property taxes anticipated

to be levied upon a Residential Unit, based upon the estimated average sales price identified in the Price

Point Study and existing property tax rates for the current Fiscal Year. Existing property tax rates shall

32
Page 366

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



reflect the actual property tax rates levied upon Taxable Property in the Fiscal Year that the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation is completed.

Future Assessor's Parcel Changes. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax shall be assigned to all future Assessor's Parcel(s) created from a subdivision, lot line

adjustment, or merger of one or more Assessor's Parcels so that the revised total Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax revenue is not less than the total Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue amount described in the Amended Rate and Method of
Apportionment.

Method of Apportionment - Facilities Special Tax. The CFD No. 23 lA3 Administrator shall

determine the Facilitiei Special Tax Requirement and levy the Facilities Special Tax until the amount of
Facilities Special Taxes equals the Facilities Special Tax Requirement. The Facilities Special Tax shall

be levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at

a rate up to 100%o of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special

Tax in order to satisff the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Second: If additional monies are needed to satisff the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first step has been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the

Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special

Tax shall be levied on Small Lot Final Map Property for the entire portion of the

Facilities Special Tax Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Third: If additional monies are needed to satis$ the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first two steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Permit Ready Multi-FamilyA.{on-Residential Propeffy at a tate

up to 100% of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax.

The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on Permit Ready Multi-FamilyA{on-
Residential Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax Requirement,

excluding onlY PaY As You Go Costs.

Fourth: If additional monies are needed to satisfu the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first three steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be

levied on Large Lot Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Ffth If additional monies are needed to satis$u the Facilities Special Tax Requirement after

the first four steps have been completed, the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Undeveloped Property at a rate up to 100% of the Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Special Tax. The Facilities Special Tax shall be

levied on Undeveloped Property for the entire portion of the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement, excluding only Pay As You Go Costs.

Method of Apportionment - Services Special Tax. The CFD No. 23 IA3 Administrator shall

determine the Servicei Special Tax Requirement and levy the Services Special Tax until the amount of
Services Special Taxes equals the Services Special Tax Requirement. The Services Special Tax shall be

JJ

Page 367

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



levied each Fiscal Year as follows:

First: The Services Special Tax shall be levied Proportionately on all Developed Property at

a rate up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfr the

Services Special Tax Requirement.

Second: If additional monies are needed to satisfii the Services Special Tax Requirement after

the first step has been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Small Lot Final Map Property at a rate up to 100% of the

Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisfu the Services Special Tax

Requirement.

Third: If additional monies are needed to satisfu the Services Special Tax Requirement after

the first two steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Permit Ready Multi-FamilyA.{on-Residential Property at a rate

up to 100% of the Maximum Services Special Tax in order to satisff the Services

Special Tax Requirement.

Fourth: If additional monies are needed to satisfu the Services Special Tax Requirement after

the first three steps have been completed, the Services Special Tax shall be levied

Proportionately on all Large Lot Properly at a rate up to 100% of the Maximum

Services Special Tax in order to satisff the Services Special Tax Requirement,

"special Tax" means the annual Facilities Special Tax and Services Special Tax to be levied in

each Fiscal Year on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Properly to fund the Facilities Special Tax

Requirement and the Services Special Tax Requirement.

"Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means that amount of Special Tax revenue required in any

Fiscal Year for the Improvement Area to: (i) Pay Facilities Administrative Expenses in an amount

designated by the City; (ii) pay annual debt service on all Outstanding Bonds due in the Bond Year

beginning in such Fiscal Year; (iii) pay other periodic costs on Outstanding Bonds, including but not

nmitea to, credit enhancement and rebate payments on Outstanding Bonds; (iv) pay any amounts required

to establish or replenish any reserve funds for all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with the Indenture; (v)
pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Special

tu*"r levied in the previous Fiscal Year and known upcoming delinquencies; and (vi) pay for Pay As

You Go Costs; less (vii) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Facilities Special Tax

levy as determined by the CFD No. 23IA3 Administrator pursuant to the Indenture.

"services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of Services Special Tax revenue required

in any Fiscal Year for the Improvement Area to: (i) Pay Services Administrative Expenses in an amount

designated by the City; (ii) pay Authorized Services expenses; (iii) pay any amounts required to

establish or replenish any repair and contingency funds, capital improvement funds, or reserve funds

related to the Authorized Services expenses; (iv) cover any shortfalls that exist if, in any Fiscal Year, the

levy of the Facilities Special Tax on each Assessor's Parcel of Taxable Property is insufficientto pay

the Facilities Special Tax Requirement in that Fiscal Year (Facilities Special Tax Requirement shortfalls

shall not include Pay As You Go Costs), and (v) pay for reasonably anticipated delinquent Services

Special Taxes based on the delinquency rate for Services Special Taxes levied in the previous Fiscal

Year; less (vi) a credit for funds available to reduce the annual Services Special Tax levy as determined

by the CFD No. 23IA3 Administrator.

34

Page 368

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



In accordance with the flow of Special Tax proceeds under the Local Obligations Indenture, in

the event of a shortfall in the Facilities Special Tax to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, the

proceeds of the Services Special Tax will be applied to help cover the Facilities Special Tax shortfall

before being applied to fund Authorized Services. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT
FOR THE BONDS-Local Obligations Flow of Funds'"

Residential Property Limitation. Under no circumstances will the Facilities Special Tax levied in

any fiscal year against any Assessor's Parcel of Developed Property classified as Residential Property be

increased as a consequence of delinquency or default by the owner or owners of any other parcel or
parcels within the Improvement Area by more than 10Yo above the amount that would have been levied

against such Assessor's Parcel in that fiscal year had there never been any such delinquencies or defaults.

Pursuant to the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, property is considered "Residential

Property" once a building permit could be issued for the purposes of constructing one or more Residential

Units, including either single family detached homes or multi-family attached properties, such as

apartments, and property is considered "Developed Property" if a building permit for new construction

was issued prior to June 30 of the previous fiscal year. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-
Maximum Special Tax."

Special Tax Calculation

The following tables reflect the estimated Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax revenues for Fiscal Year 2022-23 and the estimated Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum
Facilities Revenues for Fiscal Year 2022-23 (Table 4) and the estimated total Special Tax levy for Fiscal

Year 2022-23 (Table 5), each based on the development status of the properties as of June 16,2022
(unless otherwise noted). For Table 4, the estimated Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities

Special Tax revenues for Small Lot Final Map Properly are equal to the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Minimum Facilities Revenues until a building permit is issued for such property. The following tables do

not necessarily reflect the Special Tax that will be actually levied in any year. See "PROPOSED

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Entitlements" for a discussion of the anticipated timing
of the final map approval for the remaining 476 units that had not received such approval as of June 16,

2022.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

35

Page 369

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Table 4
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 3

Estimated 2022-23 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Facilities Revenue and Minimum Facilities Revenue
Development Status as of June 16,2022 (unless otherwise noted)

Planned
Units

Estimated 2022-23
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum
Facilities

psysaus(z)(3)

Percentage of
Estimated 2022-23

Effective Tax
Rate Evaluation

Maximum
Facilities Revenue

Estimated 2022-23
Effective Tax

Rate Evaluation
Minimum
Facilities

ftsysnqs(z)(3)

Percentage of
Estimated 2022-23

Effective Tax
Rate Evaluation

Minimum
Facilities Revenue

Appraised
Value(l)

$ 18,995,376
7,886,969

Propertv

Developed Property:

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zontng

Single-Family Detached Proper{y - MLD Zonng

Developed Property Total:

Smatt Lot Final Map Property(a);

Single-Family Detached Property - SF/SFHD Zonng
Single-Family Detached Propeny - MLD Zonng

Small Lot Final Map Property Total:

Large Lot ProPertY(a);

Large Lot Propefty(s)

Large Lot Property Total:

Totals:

$ 30,150,217
2,332,765

217 532,482,982 $ 155,275

196
2l

l7l
7l

8 144,779
10,496

$ 102,908
35,486

5.4%
0.4%

5.8o/o

3.8%
13%

5.to

89.lYo

89.1o/o

l00o/o

g 1M,779
10,496

$ 155,275

$ 102,908
35,486

$ 138,394

$ 269,076

$ 269,076

s 562,744

25.7%
l.9o/o

27.6Vo

t8.3%
6.3%

24.60/o

47.8%
47.80h

1000h

242

460

$26,882,345 $ 138,394

$ 51,098,673 I 2,398,367

460 $51,098,673 82,398,367

919 $110,464,000 $2,692,035

(l) Appraised value amounts provided by the Appraiser.
(2) Increases by 2%o each Fiscal Year.

is shown for Developed Property.

revenues of $496,108 at full buildout.
(5) The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue based upon the number of units planned.

Source: NBS.

36
Page 370

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Table 5
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 3
Estimated 2022-23 Special Tax Levy

Development Status as of June 1612022 (unless otherwise noted)

Planned
Units

Estimated
Facilities Special

Tax Levfr)

sr55,275

t38,394
218,317

Percent of
Estimated Total
Facilities Special

Tax Levy

3UVo

27Yo

43o/"

lo00

Estimated
Services
Special

Tax Levy

$22,134

24,684
133,243

$1E0,061

Estimated
Total Special

Tax Levy

$t77,409

163,078
351,559

8692,046

Percent of
Estimated

Total Special
Tax Levy

26%

24%
5lYo

l0Oo/"

Development Status

Developed Property

Small Lot Final Map Property
Large Lot Property

2t7

242
460

Totals: 919 $511,985

(1) Based on estimated debt service requirements for the Bonds plus Priority Administrative Expenses of $20,000

Source: NBS.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

37 Page 371

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The Teeter Plan

In 1949, the State Legislature enacted an alternative method for the distribution of secured

property taxes to local agencles. This method, known as the Teeter Plan, is now set forth in
3""tiotri 470r-4:-17 of the Califomia Revenue and raxation code. upon adoption and implementation of
the Teeter Plan by a county board of supervisors, local agencies for which the county acts as o'bank" and

certain other pubiic ug"n"i"r and taxing areas located in the county receive annually the full amount of
their share of properry taxes on the secured roll, including delinquent property taxes which have yet to be

collected. While a county benefits from the penalties associated with these delinquent taxes when they

are paid, the Teeter plan provides participating local agencies with stable cash flow and the elimination of
collection risk.

To implement a Teeter Plan, the board of supervisors of a county generally must elect to do so by

July 15 of the fiscal year in which it is to apply. The Sacramento County Board of Supervisors has

adopted the Teeter Plan. Once adopted, a county's Teeter Plan will remain in effect in perpetuity unless

the 
^board 

of supervisors orders its discontinuance or unless prior to the commencement of a fiscal year a

petition for disiontinuance is received and joined in by resolutions of the governing bodies of not less

ihan two-thirds of the participating districts in the county. An electing county may, however, opt to

discontinue the Teeter Plan with respect to any levying agency in the county if the board of supervisors,

by action taken not later than July 15 of a fiscal year, elects to discontinue the procedure with respect to

such levying agency and the rate- of secured tax delinquencies in that agency in any year exceeds 3o/o of
the total of all taxes and assessments levied on the secured roll by that agency. See "CERTAIN RISKS

TO BONDHOLDERS-Teeter Plan Termination."

Upon making a Teeter Plan election, a county must initially provide a participating local agency

with 95%o of the estimated amount of the then accumulated tax delinquencies (excluding penalties) for

that agency. In the case of the initial year distribution of special taxes and assessments (if a county has

elected to include assessments), 700oA of the special tax delinquencies (excluding penalties) are to be

apportioned to the participating local agency which levied the special tax. After the initial distribution,

each participating lbcal agency receives annually 100% of the secured properly tax levies to which it is
otherwise 

"tttitled, 
regardless of whether the county has actually collected the levies.

If any tax or assessment which was distributed to a Teeter Plan participant is subsequently

changed by correction, cancellation or refund, a pro rata adjustment for the amount of the change is made

on th. records of the treasurer and auditor of the county. Such adjustment for a decrease in the tax or

assessment is treated by the County as an interest-free offset against future advances of tax levies under

the Teeter Plan.

The Special Tax for the District will be submitted to the County for direct levy. By submitting

the Special Tax to the County, the District has agreed to allow the District to participate in the County's

Teetei Plan. The County annually determines whether to include a particular direct levy and may make

that determination on a district by district basis or a parcel by parcel basis. In addition, the County may

not decide to include a particular parcel or district that had been included in its Teeter Plan in the previous

year. The District can provide no assurance that the County will continue to include the District or any

improvement area therein, including the Improvement Area, in the Teeter Plan.

To the extent that the County's Teeter Plan continues in existence and is carried out as adopted'

the County's Teeter Plan may help protect the Owners of the Bonds from the risk of delinquencies in

Special Taxes.

38
Page 372

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



THE AUTHORITY

The Authority was created by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, effective April20,2015
(the "JPA Agreement"), between the City and the City of Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority. The

JPA Agreement was entered into pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, Chapter 5 of Division 7 of
Title 1 of the Government Code of the State. The Authority was created for the purpose of facilitating

financing of public improvement facilities within the City south of US Route 50.

THE CITY

The Improvement Area is located in the City, which is located in the easterly section of the

Sacramento metropolitan area approximately 22 miles east of the central business district of the City of
Sacramento.

Certain economic and demographic information with respect to the City is contained in

APPENDIX B. This information is presented solely as background information. The Local Obligations

are not general obligations of the City but, rather, are special tax obligations of the District secured solely

by the Special Taxes to be paid by the owners of property in the Improvement Area and funds held

pursuant to the Local Obligations Indenture.

THE IMPROVEMENT AREA

General Description and Location

The District is a community facilities district organized by the City Council as the legislative

body of the District under the Mello-Roos Act for the purpose of providing for the acquisition and

construction of certain public improvements and the financing of certain services to serve property within
the District. The City established the Dishict on May 26,2020, and designated six separate improvement

areas therein, including the Improvement Area. On May 26, 2020, elections were held within the

Improvement Area and the other improvement areas within the District at which the eligible voters in

each improvement area approved the levy of special taxes in accordance with the respective Rate and

Method of Apportionment of Special Tax for such improvement area. In addition, the eligible voters in

the Improvement Area initially authorized the issuance of bonds in an amount not to exceed $124,000,000

for the Improvement Area. In December 2021, a seventh improvement area was designated within the

District and change proceedings for the Improvement Area were held, whereby the eligible voters in the

Improvement Area approved amended boundaries for the Improvement Area, the Amended Rate and

Method of Apportionment and a reduction in the maximum principal amount of bonded indebtedness that

may be issued for and paid by Improvement Area to $15,750,000.

The District expects that such bonds and any bonds issued for the other improvement areas within
the District from time to time will be issued to finance the authorized public facilities for the benefit of
the District. With respect to the Improvement Area, such bonds will be issued only in accordance with
the provisions of the Local Obligations Indenture. The total bonded indebtedness authorized in the

Improvement Area will be limited by the requirements of the Local Obligations Indenture, including the

following requirements relating to any Additional Local Obligations: a 3:l overlapping value to lien ratio

on all land projected to be subject to the levy of the Special Tax and ll0o/o anntal coverage from the

Maximum Facilities Special Tax for Taxable Property classified as Developed Property (as defined in the

Local Obligations Indenture), plus the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue for
Taxable Property not classified as Developed Property (as defined in the Local Obligations Indenture)

less Priority Administrative Expenses. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR TFIE

BONDS- Terms of the Local Obligations-ldditional Local Obligations;'

39

Page 373

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The Improvement Area is located in the southern portion of the City, west of East Bidwell Street,

north of Mangini Parkway and south of U.S. Highway 50 and consists of over 272 total gross acres, of
which approximately 178 acres are expected to constitute Taxable Property subject to the Special Tax.

The remainder of the properly will include an approximately 18,000 square foot clubhouse that includes

an indoor swimming pool, a fitness center with men's and women's locker rooms, social areas, exercise

rooms, two multipgrpose areas, a social hall, a self-serve store, offices, restrooms, storage rooms, and

outdoor patios and seating areas; an outdoor pool and spa; a barbeque pavilion; event lawns; bocce ball

courts; pickle ball courts; two dog parks; walking trails; a parking lot; and approximately 80 acres of open

space. bevelopment within the Improvement Area is planned to include, at the time of full build-out, 919

age-restrictea (SS+; residential homes, comprised of 751 single-family/single-family high density units

unO tOS multi-family low density units. The maps appearing on the inside cover pages show the general

location of the District and the Improvement Area.

Presently, the Improvement Area includes properties in varying stages development, including

partially-improved lots, improved lots, homes under construction and completed homes. The

I-p.ou"-"ttt Ar"u is expected to include 5 separate product lines of homes, ranging from typical lot sizes

of 3,440 square feet to 6,175 square feet, with three separate floor plans for each product line'

Construction of the public improvements and backbone infrastructure in the Improvement Area is

currently underway and has been completed for some properties, as more particularly described
,,PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Plans of Finance."

The Improvement Area is located southwest of a residential community under current

development known as Russell Ranch that is expected to include over 1,000 single family dwellings at

full build-out, is immediately west of Mangini Ranch, apartially developed residential community that is

also expected to include over i,000 single family dwelling units at full build-out, and is west of an

additional residential community known as White Rock Springs that is also under development and

expected to include over 420 single family dwellings'

Property Values

An appraisal of the land within the Improvement Area has been prepared by the Appraiser in

connection with the issuance of the Bonds. The appraisal estimates the land value as of June 1,2022 (the

"Appraisal"). The Appraisal is attached to this Offrcial Statement as APPENDIX G.

As of the date of inspection, the Appraiser notes that development of the property is underway.

The subject property was valued based on the hypothetical conditions that proceeds from the Bonds will
be used to r"imb.,r." infrastructure improvements completed. The Appraisal is based on land values at

the time of inspection.

Subject to the assumptions, hypothetical condition and limiting conditions, the Appraiser

estimated that the value of the land within the Improvement Area, as of June l, 2022, in aggregate, is

$110,464,000. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Plan and Status of
Development" below and APPENDIX G - "APPRAISAL."

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

40

Page 374

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Value-to-Lien Analysis

The following table sets forth the ratios of the appraised bulk value of the land to the total liens

on the property in the Improvement Area based on the development status of the property as of June 16,

2022. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Entitlements." The following

table also shows the estimated Facilities Special Tax levy for Fiscal Yeat 2022-23 based on the

properties' current map status as Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Properly and Large Lot
Froperty. The value-to-lien ratio for the Improvement Area based solely on the Local Obligations and the

appiaised aggregate value of the land within the Improvement Area is 12.1-:1.0. The overall value to

overlapping debt ratio, including certain overlapping general obligation tax and assessment debt and CFD

17 special tax debt, is 8.2-:1.0 (see "-Overlapping Debf'). Any bonds secured by special assessments or

special taxes issued from time to time may have the effect of reducing the value to lien ratio on properly

within the Improvement Area.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

* 
Preliminary, subject to change.

4l

Page 375

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Table 6
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 3
Appraised Value-to-Lien Ratios

Development Status as of June 1612022 (unless otherwise noted)

Estimated 2022-23
Effective Tax Rate

Evaluation
Maximum Facilities

Revenue(2)

9155,275

138,394

2,398,367

$2,692,035

Estimated
2022-23

Facilities
Special Tax

Levy(s)

$15s,27s

138,394

218,3t'.|

Share ofLocal
Obligations(9

$2,759,844

Appraised
Value To Lien

from Local
Obligations(6).

I 1.8

10.9

13.2

Appraised
Value To Lien

from Local
Obligations

Overlapping
Debt(6).

Appraised
Value(a)

932,482,982

26,882,345

s1,098,673

Overlapping
Debt

$973,969

1,351,482

2,1 19,888

and

Development Status(l)

Developed Property

Small Lot Final Map Property

Large Lot Property0)
Total

Planned
Units

2t7

242

460

919

2,459,802

3.880,354

$511,985 $110,464,000 $9,100,000 $4,445,339 l2.l

8.7

7.1

8.5

8.2

* 
Preliminary, subject to change.

(1) As of June 16,2022, unless otherwise noted.
(2) Increases by 2%o eachFiscal Year. The2022-23 Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue amowrt is $535,918.
(3) Based on estimated debt service requirements for the Bonds plus Priority Administrative Expenses of $20,000.
(a) Appraised value amounts provided by the Appraiser. See "-Property Values."
(s) Allocated based on the projected Fiscal Year 2022-23 Special Tax levy.
(6) Value to lien ratio is for the Local Obligations. Local Obligations are issued in the same principal amount of the Bonds.
(?) Based on the number of units planned for all remaining Large Lot Property, the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Minimum Facilities Revenue is$269,076.

Source: Except as otherwise noted, NBS

42
Page 376

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Estimated Tax Burden on Single Family Home

The following table sets forth the estimated total tax burden on single-family high density

residential property (Sefn) and multi-family low density residential property (MLD) within the

Improvement Area, presented as an estimate of the majority of proposed homes to be constructed in the

Improvement Area, based on estimated tax rates for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

Table 7
City of Folsom

Community F''acilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No.3

Residential Property Sample Property Tax Bill
Estimated Charges for Fiscal Year 2021-22

SFHD MLD

Assessed Value(I)

Less: Homeowner Exemption
Net Assessed Value

Ad Valorem(2)
General Purpose Ad Valorem Tax (Proposition 13)

Los Rios College General Obligation
Folsom-Cordova Unified School District Improvement Dist. 2

Folsom-Cordova Unified School District Improvement Dist. 3

Total Ad Valorem Taxes

SpeciaVDirect Assessments and Taxes
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) - Facilities(3)

Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) - Services(a)

Folsom Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline)ts)

Folsom Community Facilities District No. 18 (Folsom Plan Area)(s)

Sacramento Area Flood Control(6)
Totat SpeciaVDirect Assessments and Taxes

Total Estimated Annual Property Taxes
Effective Tax Rate(?)

$ 751,100
(7,000)

$ 600,300
(7,000)

$ 744,100 $ 593,300

Tax Rate
1.0000%
0.0249o/o

0.0247%
0.3881%

1.43770 $10,697.93 $8,529.87

$ 7,441.00
185.28
183.79

2,887.85

$ 5,933.00
147.73

146.55
2,302,60

s 690.00
100.00
75.45

1,016.80
1.50

$ 1,883.75 S 1,389.67

$ 490.00
100.00

46.78

751.39
1.50

$12,581.68
l.675lo/o

$9,919.54
1.65240

(1) Estimated based upon the minimum appraisal value for a sample single-family high density unit and a sample multi-family low density

unit per the Developer.
(2) Based upon 2021-22 Sacramento County ad valorem property tax rates for TRA 04-035 and 04-036.
(3) 2021-2; Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum Annual Facilities Special Tax for a single-family high density unit with residential

floor area between 1,800 and 1,999 square feet and a multi-family low density unit. The Effective Tax Rate Evaluation Maximum

Annual Facilities Special Tax escalates annually at2%o'
(4) 2021-22 Maximum Annual Services Special Tax for a single-family high density unit with residential floor area between 1,800 and 1,999

square feet and a multi-family low density unit. The Maximum Annual Services Special Tax escalates annually based upon the annual

June CPI Change, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose are, not to exceed 47o.
(5) 20zl-22 Maximum Annual Special Tax. The Maximum Annual Special Tax excludes the Willow Hill Pipeline Special Tax, which is

currently reflected under Folsom Community Facilities District No. 17 (Willow Hill Pipeline). The Area-Wide Special Tax escalates

annually at 2yo and the Maintenance Special Tax and TDM Services Special Tax escalate annually based upon the annual June CPI

Change, for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose are, not to exceed 4o/o.

(6) Approximate assessment for residential lots, based on lot size.
(7) Estimate ofannual property taxes does not include any new special financing district fees, assessments, and/or special taxes imposed by

the state, county, or local agencies that are yet to be established or any future annexation into existing special financing districts required

by conditions for approval-of development or any other imposed requirement. Information contained within is based upon records and

official documents provided by various govemmental agencies and third-party sources.

43
Page 377

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Overlapping Debt

Set forth below is an overlapping debt table showing the existing authorized indebtedness payable

with respect to property within the Improvement Area. Additional indebtedness could be authorized by

other public agenciis at any time. Further, a portion of the overlapping debt shown in the table below is

based on the assessed value of the underlying property, which can be expected to increase over time as

development occurs and the assessed value grows. This table has been prepared by California Municipal

Statistics, Inc. as of July 1,2022, and is included for general information purposes only. Other than with

respect to CFD 17 , the table below allocates overlapping debt based on the assessed value of property and

not on taxes paid. The District and the Authority have not reviewed the data for completeness or

accuracy and make no representations in connection therewith.

CFD 17 authorized up to $8,000,000 of bonds. In additionto CFD l7 and the District, the City

has formed CFD 18, which the District overlaps, and the City Council of the City has authorized the

issuance of $200,000,000 in bonds to be secured by a special tax on properly within CFD 18 on parity

with the Special Tax in the Improvement Area. The timing of issuance of bonds for CFD 18 is dependent

upon market conditions and development within the Folsom Plan Area. The City currently anticipates

that aninitial series of CFD 18 bonds in an estimated amount between $25 million to $30 million will be

issued in the fourth quarter of 2022 to help finance at least a portion of the required Phase 2 Water

Facilities (as defined herein). A portion of any bonds issued for CFD 18 will constitute overlapping debt.

Other community facilities districts formed in the Folsom Ranch area will overlap CFD 18 and potentially

CFD 17 but are not expected to overlap the District.

Direct assessments and levies payable with respect to property within the Improvement Area

could potentially include up to $750 million of general obligation bonds for the School Facilities

Improvement Dishict No. 3 of the Folsom Cordova Unified School District ("SFID 3"), approved by

uoi"r, on March 27,2007. SFID 3 encompasses approximately 52.6 square miles of land including the

District and additional territory outside of the District, including territory in the City of Rancho Cordova

and unincorporated Sacramento County. As of lune 27,2022, general obligation bonds in the aggregate

principal amount of approximately $195.6 million had been issued and approximately $188.4 million
were outstanding for SFIO :. At the time of the election approving the SFID 3 general obligation bonds,

the ballot ru.rnury indicated the average taxrate per $100,000 assessed valuation would be $73.61. For

2021-22,the actual SFID 3 taxrate per $100,000 was approximately $388.10. The followingtable sets

forth the ad valorem tax rates for SFID 3 over the past five years. The future tax levy per property owner

in SFID 3 may vary depending on future bond issuance and/or changes in assessed value.

Table 8
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 3
SFID 3 Ad Valorem Rates

Year Rate(l)

2021-22
2020-21
2019-20
2018-19
2017-18

0.3881%
0.2065%
0.1366%
0.r4sl%
0.1878%

(t) 1P,45 04-035 and o4-036
Source: NBS.

44

Page 378

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"nffll'"n*"-Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 3

OverlaPPing Debt

2021-22 Local secured Assessed valuation s59,420,743 (Land and Improvements)

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT:

Los Rios Community College District
Folsom-Cordova Unified School District School Facilities Improvement District No. 2

Folsom-Cordova Unified School District School Facilities Improvement District No' 3
City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 17

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23, I.A. 3
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT

OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT:
Sacramento County General Fund Obligations
Sacramento County Pension Obligation Bonds
Sacramento County Board of Education Certificates of Participation

City of Folsom General Fund Obligations
TOTAL GROSS OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT

Less: Sacramento County supported obligations
TOTAL NET OVERLAPPING GENERAL FLIND DEBT

GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT
NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT

% Apnlicable
0.026%
0.370
2.075
6.085

100.

0.031%
0.031
0.03 r
0.358

DebtTlll22
$ 128,395

51,706
3,908,047

357,l9t
_$r)
$4,445,339

$ 39,830
194,123

818
3.587

$238,358
4.265

9234,093

$4,683,69'.7Q)

$4,679,432

(l) Excludes Mello-Roos Bonds to be sold.

iZj fxctuOes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and non-bonded capital lease obligations.

Ratios to 2021-22 Local Secured Assessed Valuation:
Direct Debt ($0)................
Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt

.0.00%

GROSS Combined Total Debt.

7.48%
7.88o/o

7.88%Net Combined Total Debt......

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.

PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Development Entitlements

Specific Plan. On June 28, 2011, the City Council approved the Specific Plan for the

development of 10,210 residential homes along with commercial, industriaVoffice park, open space,

publicichools, parks, infrastructure and other land uses on the 3,513.4 acre site of the Folsom Plan Area.

At build out, projected to occur over a 2}-year time frame, the Folsom Plan Area is projected to have a

population of approximately 24,362 persons. Along with the 1.,455.6 acres of residential development,

the adopted Specific Plan called for 511.3 acres of commercial, office/industrial and mixed-use,309'5

u.r", of public and quasi-public use (public and private schools, parks and infrastructure);173.6 acres of
major roads and 1,063 acres of open space'

Various property owners have submitted and received approvals of Specific Plan Amendments

("SPA's") since the 2011 City Council adoption. These approved SPA's have resulted in various land use

changes compared to the Specific Plan that was originally approved in20l1, including an increase in the

45

Page 379

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



total entitled unit count to 11,461dwelling units and reduction to approximately 2.8 million square feet of
commercial, office/indushial and mixed use.

Through a Minor Administrative Modification for the Improvement Area, the Specific Plan was

modified to allow for the adjustment of a common lot line between an elementary school site and seven

residential lots in order to accommodate a wider street path that provides improved emergency access.

The minor modification was approved by the City's Community Development Director and confirmed

through a letter dated April 20,2020.

The Specific Plan is designed to guide and regulate the development for the area within the City
south of US Route 50.

Tentative and Final Mapping. As of June 16, 2022, final maps authorizing the subdivision of a

portion of the property within the Improvement Area into 443 residential lots had been recorded, and

tentative maps had been approved for the remaining 476 proposed residential lots. The Developer expects

to receive final map approval for an additional 100 residential lots by December 2022 and final map

approval for the remaining 376 residential lots between 2023 and mid-2025. Design review approval,

which provides for City review of the home plans, architecture and conformance to certain development

standards, has been completed for all 919 units. The Developer believes that the only remaining

discretionary entitlement within the Improvement Area is the recordation of small lot final maps for the

remaining 4T6tentative map units.

Based on the current tentative and final subdivision maps and zoning entitlements, the properly

within the Improvement Area is entitled to be developed into 751 single-family/single-family high density

units and 168 multi-family low density units. The single-family high density zoned properties can

include 4 to 7 dwelling units per gross acre and can include either single-family dwellings or two-family
dwellings. The multi-family low density zoned properties can include 7 to 12 dwelling units per gross

acre.

The following table describes the status of final maps within the Improvement Area as of June 16,

2022

Table 10
City of Folsom

Communities F'acilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No.3

Final Map Status as of June 1612022

Number of Number of
Typical Lot Units With Units With

Sizes Final Map Only Tentative Total Number of
Product Line Zoning (square feet) Approval Map Approval

76
t07
105
106

82

476

Proposed Units
Expected Date of
Last Final Map

Sequoia
Redwood

Mendocino
Shasta

Tahoe

TOTAL

MLD
SF/SFHD
SF/SFHD
SF/SFHD
SF/SFHD

168
172
198
209
172

9t9

January 2025
January 2025
Ianuary 2025
January 2025
Jantary 2025

3,440
4,200
4,750
\ ))5
6,175

92
65
93

103

90

443

Source: The Developer.

46

Page 380

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Development Conditions/Building Permit Limitations. Certain provisions of the PFFP for the

Folsom Plan Area, as implemented through the tentative subdivision map conditions, place limits on the

number of building permits that can be issued before certain facilities and/or backbone infrastructure is in
place. These provisions/conditions could, but are not expected to, affect build-out of the Improvement

Area.

For example, tentative map conditions require a fire station to be operational prior to the

occupancy of the 1,5006 home in the Folsom Plan Area. See "FOLSOM PLAN AREA-Public Facilities

Financing Plan-Public Facilities-the Folsom Plan Area" for details on the CrW's plans for construction

of the fire station. The City is responsible for building and operating this fire station and would expect to

waive or modiS, this condition as it deems necessary to balance development within the Folsom Plan

Area and the increasing fire service needs of the Folsom Plan Area as development progresses.

During initial planning of water infrastructure needs, the City estimated that the Phase 1 Water

Facilities (as defined herein) would have capacity to serye approximately 2,800 dwelling units in the

Folsom Plan Area. The City currently estimates that the Phase 1 Water Facilities have the capacity to

deliver a sustained maximum day demand of up to 2 million gallons of water and, based on actual water

usage within the Folsom Plan Area and a study prepared by Peterson Brustad, Inc. in Aprll 2019, that
water usage within the Folsom Plan Area will exceed the Phase 1 Water Facility capacity when

approximately 2,800 to 3,300 dwelling units within the Folsom Plan Area have been occupied. The Phase

2 watq backbone facilities, which include a water pipeline, booster pump and storage tank (collectively,

the "Phase 2 Water Facilities"), are required to be constructed to provide expanded water transmission

conveyance capabilities to deliver water from the water treatment plant to the Folsom Plan Area. The

City continues to evaluate water usage and needs within the Folsom Plan Area. The City reserves the

right to restrict new building permits within the Folsom Plan Area if the City determines that the new

construction would cause residential water usage to exceed the capacity of the Phase 1 Water Facilities.

See "-Development Entitlements-Water Supply Infrastructure" below for details on the status of the

Phase 2Water Facilities and the current plan for their construction and financing.

As of May 31,2022,fina1maps had been approved and recorded for 3,056 dwelling units. There

is an additional final map that has been approved by the City and recorded for 174 additional dwelling

units. There are also currently nine additional final maps submitted to the City for review with
approximately 993 dwelling units. It is anticipated that five of these final maps will be recorded by

September 2022, with the four remaining final maps expected to be recorded by the first quarter of 2023.

Also as of May 31,2022,2,262 bullding permits and 1,435 certificates of occupancy had been issued in

the Folsom Plan Area for projects underway, which include, but are not limited to, the City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No. 19 (Mangini Ranch) ("CFD 19"), the City of Folsom Community

Facilities District No. 20 (Russell Ranch) ("CFD 20"), the City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 21 (White Rock Springs Ranch) ("CFD 21") and the City of Folsom Community Facilities District
No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 1 ("CFD 23IAl"). Collectively, CFD 19, CFD 20, CFD

21, CFD 23 IA1 and the Improvement Area are expected to include 4,269 dwelling units, approximately

2,156 of which had been issued building permits and approximately 2,769 of which had received final
map approval as of May 31,2022.

The Developer and the District do not believe that these conditions will materially impede

development of the Improvement Area. However, multiple other development projects are underway in

the Folsom Plan Area, and if there were an unforeseen and significant delay in construction in the

Improvement Area it is possible that other development within the Folsom Plan Area will overtake

development of the Improvement Area, resulting in the need for construction of the fire station and Phase

2 Water Facilities before all building permits could be issued for the Improvement Area.

47

Page 381

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



External access to the project site will be provided via East Bidwell Street to the east and Mangini

Parkway to the north, Pedestrian circulation is provided by a combination of street separated sidewalks,

open space trails, park trails and pathway connections. Proposed on-site improvements include:

underground utilities, drainage improvements, retaining walls, driveways, on-street parking, curbs/gutters,

sidewalks, pathways, trails, fencing, site lighting, site landscaping, and park enhancements.

The Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines (of which the Improvement Area is a part)

were approved by the City concurrent with the Tentative Map approvals on June 23,2015' The design

guidelines provide for the orderly development of the proposed single family residential subdivision. The

primary purpos" of these design guidelines is to articulate the general architectural and design

ixpectationslor the proposed residential neighborhood, the landscapes, hardscapes, open spaces, fencing,

eniry features and siie lighting. The goal of the design guidelines is to establish a regulatory framework

for the design of individual homes on the residential lots. The final design details of the homes are

subject to review and approval by the Crty's Planning Commission as part of a future Design Review

application.

Army Corps of Engineers Wetland Permitting, Biological Opinion, Streambed Alteration

Agreements and Siction 106 Compliance. On May 22,2014, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (the

"USACOE") issued a Record of Decision ("ROD") for the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific

Plan Project - City of Folsom Backbone Infrastructure. This wetland permit covered the wetland

permitting requirements for the entire backbone infrastructure necessary to serve the Folsom Plan Area'

1o the extent backbone infrastructure was required within a property owner's land, the backbone wetland

permit authorized the filling of waters of the U.S. necessary for such construction. Each landowner

ihereafter is required to obtain their own wetland permit for the fill ofjurisdictional wetlands not included

in the footprinf of the backbone wetland permit. As discussed in greater detail below, the Folsom Plan

Area has received all required environmental permits.

Development Agreement. Through City Ordinance No. 1149, the City approved a Tier 1

Development Agreement between the City and the propefty owners within the Folsom Plan Area on

July 12, 2011. The effective date of the ordinance was August 1I, 2011, The Tier 1 Development

Agieement vests certain rights of the property owners and of the City, commits each party to the

agieements to subsequent actions before development may proceed within the Folsom Plan Area.

Siparate First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreements (the "ARDAs") were entered into

among certain property owners and the City for their applicable properties, as approved by the City

through City Ordinance No. 1211. The ARDAs for the property owners comprising the property within

the Improvement Area were recorded in the official records of the County of Sacramento in July 2014.

The City entered into Amendment No. 1 to the ARDA with Carpenter East, which was recorded in the

official records of the County of Sacramento in January 2016. The City also entered into Amendment

Nos. 1 and 2 to the ARDA with Folsom Real Estate South, which were each recorded in the official
records of the County of Sacramento in January 2016. See "-Properly Ownership."

Article 2.5 (commencing with Section 65864), of Chapter 4, Division 1, Title 7 of the State

Government Code, pertaining to development agreements, has the general effect of authorizing

development to continue in accordance with then existing General Plan, Specific Plan, zoning and

subdivision regulations notwithstanding any subsequently enacted conflicting regulations, except for

regulations the failure of which to enact would place the residents in a condition which is dangerous to

their health or safety or both.

Environmental Permits and Approvals. The California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"),

constituting Division 13 of the State Public Resources Code (commencing with Section 21000) requires

that an Environmental Impact Report (an "EIR"), detailing the significant environmental effects of the

48

Page 382

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



project and proposed mitigation measures, be prepared, considered and certified as complete by a public

ug"n"y prioi to its taking discretionary action on any project which may have a significant effect on the

environment.

In June 2011, after statutorily required public notice, hearing and comment, the City Council

certified as adequate and complete a final EIR/EIS for the Specific Plan for the development of the

Folsom Plan Area. The EIR/EIS satisfied both CEQA and the National Environmental Policy Act for the

entirety of the Folsom Plan Area. In February 2015,the City Council adopted the South of Highway 50

Backbone Infrastructure Project Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (Backbone Infrastructure

MND), dated December 9,2014. This CEQA project level document satisfied the required environmental

review for the construction of backbone infrastructure for the entire Folsom Plan Area, including the

Improvement Area.

The Folsom Plan Area has received all required environmental permits, including a Section 404

Permit for the entire Folsom Plan Area pursuant to Section 404 of the federal Clean Water Act' This

permit allows for any necessary fill of jurisdictional wetlands and streambed alterations for the

ionstruction of backbone infrastructure to serve the entire Folsom Plan Area at build-out. In addition, a

Biological Opinion has been obtained from the US Fish and Wildlife Service for the entire Folsom Plan

Area, together with a California Department of Fish and Wildlife Master Streambed Alteration Permit

with conditions for the whole of the Folsom Plan Area. All of the property in the Improvement Area

subject to the Special Tax has received its Section 404 Permit and a subnotification approval from the

California Department of Fish and Wildlife.

Water Supply. The City entered into an agreement (the "Water Supply Agreement") with the

property owners in the Folsom Plan Area providing for a water supply for new development south of
US Route 50. The Water Supply Agreement was supported by an addendum to the EIR. The Water

Supply Agreement provides adequate water supply for full build out of the Improvement Area and the rest

of ilie Folsom Plan Area (except the portion of the Folsom Plan Area serviced by the El Dorado Irrigation

District). The amount of water provided in the Water Supply Agreement to meet the build-out demands

of the Folsom Plan Area project is projected to be 5,600 acre-feet annually.

Water Supply in Folsom Generally. The primary water supply source for the City of Folsom is

Folsom Reservoir, which provides the water supply for all of the City south of the American River. The

City has water rights and contracts for up to 34,000 acre-feet annually ("afa") through three different

contracts with the United States Bureau of Reclamation ("Reclamation"). The surface water supplies

were developed through different circumstances and, as such, are subject to unique conditions and

limitations. These athibutes and issues affect the volume of water available under certain conditions.

Surface water supply for the portions of the City north of the American River is obtained through a

contract with the San Juan Water District, and therefore is not a directly owned City supply. The surface

water supplies for the City's water service area are listed below.

r { pre-1914 appropriative water right for 22,000 acre-feet per year (Agreement with
Reclamation)

. d pre-7914 appropriative water right for 5,000 acre-feet per year (Co-Tenancy agreement

with Golden State Water ComPanY)

o { Central Valley Project ("CVP") water service contract for 7,000 acre-feet per year

(Partial Assignment from Sacramento County Water Agency to the City of Folsom and

used in the CitY's East Area)

49

Page 383

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The City's 22,000 acre-foot entitlement is based on a pre-1914 appropriative right from the South

Fork of the American River established by the Natoma Water Company ('Natoma") in 1851. Natoma's

original pre-1914 water right established a maximum diversion rate"to fill a Canal Eight feet wide and

poir feei deep with a current running Ten miles per hour." This correlates to a diversion rate of 60 cubic

feet per r""ond and a maximum allocation of 32,000 afa. This right is held with Golden State Water

Company pursuant to a co-tenancy agreement. The City's 5,000 acre-foot entitlement is also based on

Natomais pre-1914 appropriative right from the South Fork of the American River. In Novembet 7994,

the City eiecuted a contract with Southern California Water Company-Folsom Division ("SCWC") under

which in" City acquired the right to lease 5,000 afa (of SCWC's remaining 10,000 afa under the original

Natoma purchase) for an indefinite period. This right is held with Golden State Water Company pursuant

to a co-tenancy agreement. This water right was also formally recognized in the settlement agreement

between Reclamation and the City. As authorized by Public Law No. 101-5i4, the City was a

subcontractor under Sacramento County Water Agency's (SCWA) CVP water-service contract for 7,000

afa. In 20l6,the United States, the City and SCWA completed an assignment of this portion of SCWA's

CVP water-service contract from SCWA to the City.

Under the agreements with Reclamation for 22,000 afa and 5,000 afa, Reclamation delivers this

entire water supply without reduction on a permanent basis. Under the agreement with Reclamation for

7,000 afa of CVP water, this water supply faces possible reductions pursuant to Reclamation's Municipal

and Industrial Water Shortage Policy. In 1994, the City entered into an agreement with Golden State

Water Company (f/Va Southern California Water Company, herein "GSWC") to acquire the right to

divert up to 5,000 acre feet of pre-1914 water rights annually (the "GSWC Agreement"), subject to the

terms and conditions of that agreement. Under the GSWC Agreement, the City is required to pay for the

entire 5,000 acre-feet annual water supply regardless of whether the City is able to divert and use that

quantity of water. The City has been using the supplies provided in the GSWC Agreement to serve the

existing portion of the City known as the "East Area." The cost of water under the GSWC Agreement

has, in the past, been paid for by East Area landowners and water customers.

Source of Water for the Folsom PIan Area, The City has determined that its Water Systems

Optimization Review Program and implementation of metered rates will provide additional water supplies

in an estimated amount of 6,450 acre-feet per year, which is in addition to the present and forecasted

demands of the City's existing water users. The City intends to use a portion of this 6,450 acre-feet per

year of available water to meet present and future water demand in the East Area in order to make the

5,000 acre-feet per year of GSWC Agreement water supply available for use in the Folsom Plan Area, on

the terms and cbnditions of that Agreement. To meet this intent, the City has converted the East Area

water supply from the GSWC Agreement to the less expensive CVP water service contract. The City

would meet the additional build-out water demand of the Folsom Plan Area with approximately 600 acre-

feet per year of water produced by the Water Systems Optimization Review Program that is in excess of
the water demand in the East Area. The water made available under the GSWC Agreement and Water

Systems Optimization Review Program will be sufficient to supply the projected water demand in the

Folsom Plan Area. Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 860 et seq. of the State Code of Civil Procedure

and Government Code Sections 53511 and 53589.5, the City filed a complaint in the Superior Court of
the State for the County of Sacramento to validate the agreement. The Superior Court determined that the

agreement: (a) is lawful, valid, enforceable and in the best interests of the City and all persons in any way

interested therein and (b) is consistent with all applicable laws and obligations, including the Measure W

water supply requirement.

The City's Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Water Facilities and Supply) (the "Water

CFD") was formed by the City in 2014. The cost of the GSWC Agreement water will initially be paid for

by the Folsom Plan Area through special taxes collected for the Water CFD on certain property in the

F-olsom Plan Area, including the Improvement Area. When a building permit has been issued and a

50

Page 384

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



customer billing account has been established, the developed parcel is no longer subject to the lely of the

special tax for the Water CFD and thereafter pays for water through water rates.

Water Conservation. The City adopted Ordinance I 1 18, Chapter 13.26 of the Folsom Municipal

Code ("FMC"), Water Conservation. Chapter 13.26 establishes a five stage water conservation program

with conservation goals and water use restrictions. The City Manager is authorized to implement and

enforce whatever conservation measures are deemed necessary to achieve the water reduction

requirements of the declared conservation stage.

Water Supply Infrastructure. Existing water infrastructure and pipelines run to the north side of
US Route 50. For the first phase of infrastructure, the developers of the Folsom Plan Area constructed

improvements to connect this water supply and extend water infrastructure pipelines to serve the initial
phases of development in the Folsom Plan Area (the "Phase 1 Water Facilities"). In the next phase, the

Folsom Plan Area developers will be required to construct improvements at the existing City water

treatment plant to include a water booster pump station and construct a new water pipeline transmission

main from the water treatment plant site into the Folsom Plan Area along with two storage tanks and a

pump station improvement to serve the area-wide development with potable water. In order for each

individual parcel to access that water supply, the developers of those parcels will need to extend

infrastructure to their sites.

The Phase 1 Water Facilities were completed in August 2018. The City estimates that the

Phase 1 Water Facilities have the capacity to deliver a sustained maximum day demand of up to 2 million
gallons of water. The Phase 2 Water Facilities (which include the new water pipeline transmission main,

a booster pump station and a storage tank) are required to be constructed to provide expanded water

transmission conveyance capabilities to deliver water from the water treatment plant to the Folsom Plan

Area.

During initial planning of water infrastructure needs, the City estimated that the Phase I Water

Facilities would have capacity to serve approximately 2,800 dwelling units in the Folsom Plan Area.

Based on actual water usage within the Folsom Plan Area and a study prepared by Peterson Brustad, Inc'

in April 2019, the City currently estimates that water usage within the Folsom Plan Area will exceed the

PhaJe I Water Facility capacity when approximately 2,800 to 3,300 dwelling units within the Folsom

Plan Area have been occupied. The City continues to evaluate water usage and needs within the Folsom

Plan Area. The City reserves the right to restrict new building permits within the Folsom Plan Area if the

City determines that the new construction would cause residential water usage to exceed the capacity of
the Phase 1 Water Facilities.

As of May 31, 2022, for the Folsom Plan Area, final maps had been approved and recorded for

approximately 3,056 dwelling units, 2,262 building permits had been issued, and 1,435 certificates of
o""upuncy had been issued. There is an additional final map that has been approved by the City and

recorded for 174 additional dwelling units. There are also currently nine additional final maps submitted

to the City for review with approximately 993 dwelling units. It is anticipated that five of these final maps

will be recorded by September 2022, with the four remaining final maps expected to be recorded by the

first quarter of 2023. During summer 2021 as a result of high levels of construction activity, the

maximum day water demand exceeded 2 million gallons for several days with no service interruption to

the water system. Developers within the Folsom Plan Area have made various arrangements for

alternative water sources during the next two years to alleviate usage of the Phase 1 Water Facilities and

in response to drought aoncerns. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT - Development

Entitlements - Drought Conditions and Construction Water (Jsage" for more information. Based on

curyent development plans and discussions with the developers within the Folsom Plan Area, and subject

to variations due to water usage for construction within the Folsom Plan Area, the City estimates that the

51

Page 385

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Phase 1 Water Facilities will reach their maximum day capacity in the summer of 2024. An increase in

residential water demand, an event impacting the capacity of the Phase 1 Water Facilities, or other factors

that increase water demand or decrease capacity could cause the City to reevaluate this estimated date and

could adversely impact the ability of the City to issue building permits if the City expects demand to

exceed capacity before the Phase 2Water Facilities are complete.

In February 2018, the first round of developers within the Folsom Plan Area began conducting

alignment studies for the Phase 2 Water Facilities and, as of December 13,2018, developers within the

Foisom Plan Area engaged Hydroscience Engineers for the design of the Phase 2 Water Facilities. The

City has commenced review of the construction documents for the Phase 2 Water Facilities and

anticipates completing its review in slmmer 2022. ECIC, who is expected to be involved with the

bidding and construction of the Phase 2 Water Facilities, has informed the City and the Developer that

bidding for the construction work of the Phase 2 Water Facilities is expected to occur in summer 2022

and that the construction is expected to commence by fall 2022 and be completed 18 months thereafter or

by summer 2024, intime to meet the expected demands from projected growth within the Folsom Plan

Area. If the Phase 2 Water Facilities are completed by summer 2024, the projected timing of
development described in this Official Statement should not be affected. [However, the Developer is not

."rponiibl" for construction of the Phase 2 Water Facilities] and there can be no assurance that the

construction of the Phase 2 Water Facilities will be completed as planned. Additionally, increased

residential or construction water usage amounts or a reduction in the capacity of the current water

facilities could cause the City to restrict the continued development of the Folsom Plan Area, including

within the Improvement Area. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS - Failure to Develop."

Based on a preliminary analysis prepared by ECIC and its consultants, the Phase 2 Watet

Facilities were projected, as of April 2022, to cost approximately $29 million but may cost more

depending on the cost of supplies, the cost of labor and other factors at the time construction commences.

ECIC has requested that the Phase 2 Water Facilities be funded through bonds issued for CFD 18 and

certain pay-go proceeds from CFD I7 and CFD l8 special taxes. Based on cost projections as of April
2022,ECIC expected the sources of revenues from CFD l7 and CFD 18 to be sufficient to fund the Phase

2 Water Facilities costs. See "FOLSOM PLAN AREA - Folsom Plan Area Development" for a

discussion of certain development and investment that has already occurred within the Folsom Plan Area

and additional future development and investment that is anticipated as the Folsom Plan Area continues to

be developed.

In addition to the Phase 2 Water Facilities, the City anticipates that an additional water tank and

pump station improvement will be needed to accommodate the increased development once there are

apprbximately 1,600 occupied dwelling units in zones 4,5 and 6 of the Folsom Plan Area (the"Zone 4

Wut"r Facilities"). These zones are east of Placerville Road (and east of the District) and generally

constitute the areas covered by CFD 20, CFD 2I and CFD 22. The Zone 4 Water Facilities and the

Phase 2 Water Facilities are separate water improvements, and, if needed, the Phase 2 Watet Facilities

can be constructed and completed separately from the Zone 4 Water Facilities, thereby allowing

development to continue in the Folsom Plan Area generally, including within the Improvement Area.

According to estimates from ECIC as of April 2022, the Zone 4 Water Facilities are projected to cost

approximitely $10 million but may cost more depending on the cost of supplies, the cost of labor and

other factors at the time construction commences. To the extent CFD 18 bond proceeds are available, the

developers within the Folsom Plan Area anticipate using proceeds from CFD 18 bonds to finance the

Zone 4 Water Facilities. [The Developer is not responsible for construction of the Zone 4 Water

Facilities], and there can be no assurance that the construction of the Zone 4 Water Facilities will be

completed as planned. However, if the Zone 4 Water Facilities are constructed as planned, neither the

City nor the Developer expects that the need for a Zone 4 Water Facilities will adversely impact the

52

Page 386

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



timeline or cost estimates for development of the Improvement Area otherwise described in this Official

Statement.

ll/astewater Treatment. The Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District has an existing

wastewater treatment plant with its ongoing and permitted improvement projects projected to

accommodate all wastewater from development in the Folsom Plan Area. Existing sewer transmission

mains are capable of conveying wastewater from the Folsom Plan Area and initial development sites

(including the Improvement Area) to the existing treatment plant.

Flood Zones. According to the Federal Emergency Management Agency flood map, the

Improvement Area is in Zone X, which consists of areas determined to be outside of the 500-year flood
plain.

Fire Zones. The Improvement Area is located within an area identified as a moderate ftrehazatd
severity zone. More information regarding Fire Hazard Severity Zones can be found at the California

Department of Forestry and Fire Protection website athttps:l/ftap.fire.ca.gov, though such website is not

incbrporated herein by reference. The development within the Improvement Area is subject to mitigation

measures set forth in a fuel modification plan approved by the City Fire Department. The mitigation

measures include, among others, limitations on the type of vegetation that may be planted within fuel

modification zones established in open space areas along certain portions of the perimeter of the

Improvement Area, minimum setback of structures and irrigation requirements of the fuel modification

zones. Maintenance of such zones is expected to initially be the responsibility of the property owners but

upon build-out of the Improvement Area and dedication of the open space to the City will be maintained

by the City from funds provided through CFD 18. Homeowner's insurance is expected to be available to

property owners within the Improvement Area, and the coverage provided by such insurance typically
insures against fire damage, although there is no assurance that homeowners within the Improvement

Area will purchase or maintain such insurance'

Drought Conditions and Construction Water (Jsage.In response to drought conditions in 2021,

the City imposed a mandatory 20Yo reduction in water use on its water customers. In addition, use of City

water for construction purposes required City approval. At the time, the City allowed construction within
the Folsom Plan Area to proceed, including the use of City water. However, prolonged drought

conditions in 2022 could result in mandatory reductions in water usage that may adversely impact the

ability of the developers within the Improvement Area to develop the Improvement Area in the timeline

described in this Offrcial Statement.

To help alleviate the demand on the current water facilities, certain developers within the Folsom

Plan Area have made affangements to obtain construction water from the El Dorado Irrigation District
("EID"), an alternative water provider that has existing facilities adjacent to the Folsom Plan Area. For

instance, Lennar has previously received construction water from EID for its Russell Ranch project in

CFD 20. Such arangements augment, but do not replace, the need for and the use of City water, which is

currently provided through the Phase 1 Water Facilities. Due to such alternative arrangements for

construction water and the amount of development that has already occurred in the Folsom Plan Area, the

City anticipates that the demand for construction water will likely be lower in summer 2022 than it has

been in some of the recent past years.

Affordabte Housing. [The City and the Developer entered into an Inclusionary Housing

Agreement for the Improvement Area, which is recorded in the official records of the County of
Sacramento and provides for the Developer's compliance with the Crty's inclusionary housing

requirement by payment of an in-lieu fee to the City.l

53

Page 387

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Utilities. All typical urban utility services for finished lots will be extended to the lots. These

utilities include electric power, natural gas, telephone, cable television, water, refuse, and sanitary sewer

and storm water facilities. The City provides water, sewer, refuse and storm water facilities, and police

and fire services. Pacific Gas & Electric provides natural gas and the Sacramento Municipal Utility
District (SMUD) provides electric service. Comcast provides cable service.

Specific Plan Infrastructure Fee Credits and Improvements. The SPIF is administered by the

City for the purposes of collecting impact fees for plan area wide improvements for the construction of
roadways, water, sewer, drainage, dry utilities, recycled water and habitat mitigation in the Folsom Plan

Area. The purpose of the SPIF is to require each landowner to pay its fair share of Folsom Plan Area

area-wide improvements and to be reimbursed for any amount expended in excess of a landowner's fair
share requirement. Under the terms of the SPIF Ordinance adopted by the City, property owners in the

Folsom Plan Area will be eligible to enter into an agreement with the City and receive future

reimbursements (that are convertible to fee credits for use within the owner's property) in exchange for
the construction of eligible SPIF improvements. Based on the amount of improvements eligible for SPIF

reimbursement, all of the properties within the Improvement Area are anticipated to fully cover their SPIF

obligations through the conversion of these SPIF reimbursements to SPIF fee credits. After applying the

SPIF reimbursements as SPIF fee credits to all properties in the Improvement Area, all amounts expended

in excess of the project's SPIF obligation are expected to be reimbursed from the City as other SPIF fees

are collected in the Folsom Plan Area.

Within the Folsom Plan Area, initial development will be required to pay a "SPIF Set-Aside"
component to address initial water and sewer facility costs. This is a loan of SPIF collections to help the

cash flow for the initial water and sewer costs. It will be repaid or equalized to all properties through the

SPIF program as well as through CFD 18. The SPIF Set-Aside will apply to the first 2,500 Folsom Plan

Area dwelling units that would be subject to the SPIF. A portion of the SPIF will be required to be paid

regardless of whether a developer/property owner has advance-funded eligible SPIF infrastructure and has

executed a Fee Reimbursement Agreement through the City. An exception to this rule is that a property

owner who constructs certain water or sewer infrastructure for which the SPIF Set-Aside is being
collected may take a credit against the SPIF Set-Aside.

In addition, in August 2020, the City approved an ordinance amending certain provisions of the

SPIF ordinance to include a new SPIF - Offsite Water Set-Aside. This new SPIF - Offsite Water Set-

Aside will be payable at the building permit stage and will not be eligible to be offset by fee credits.

Property Ownership

The information in this section has been provided by the Developer. The District and the
Underwriter believe this information to be reliable, but can give no assurances that it is accurate or
complete. There may be material adverse changes in this information after the date of this Official
Statement.

Information in this section is included because it may be considered relevant to some

investors to an informed evaluation and analysis of the taxable property within the Improvement
Area and any existing or future improvements thereon as security for the Bonds. The information
contained in this section does not guarantee that property ownership will not change or that the
current or any subsequent property owners will pay the Special Tax when due. In fact, as

described herein, ownership of much of the taxable property in the Improvement Area will change
prior to development thereof. The Special Tax will constitute a lien on parcels subiect to taxation
within the Improvement Area and not a personal indebtedness of the owners of property within the
Improvement Area. There is no assurance that the present property owners or any subsequent

54

Page 388

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



owners will have the abitity to pay the Special Taxes or that, even if they have the abilityo they will
choose to pay the Special Taxes. An owner may elect to not pay the Special Taxes when due and

cannot be legally compelled to do so. Neither the District nor any Bond Owner will have the ability
at any time to seek payment directly from the owners of property within the Improvement Area of
the Special Tax or the principal or interest on the Local Obligations, or the ability to control who
becomes a subsequent owner of any property within the Improvement Area.

Toll West lnc., dlbla Toll Brothers West Inc., a Delaware corporation (previously defined as the

"Developer"), is the owner and developer of the property within the Improvement Area. The Developer

is a subsidiary of Toll Brothers, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("TBI"). TBI is a publicly traded company

whose common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "TOL." TBI was

incorporated in 1986, began doing business through predecessor entities in 1967 and became a public

company in 1986. Through its subsidiaries, the company designs, builds, markets, sells, and affanges

financing for any array of luxury residential single-family detached home, attached home, master-planned

resort-style golf, and urban low-, mid-, and high-rise communities.

The company caters to luxury first-time, move-up, empty-nester, active-adult and second-home

buyers in the United States ("Traditional Home Building Product"), as well as urban and suburban renters

under the brand names Toll Brothers Apartment Living@ and Toll Brothers Campus Living@. The

company also designs, builds, markets, and sells urban low-, mid-, and high-rise condominiums through

Toll Brothers City Living@ ("City Living"). At October 31,2021, the company operated in 24 states, and

in the District of Columbia. In the five years ended October 37,2021, the company delivered 42,005

homes from 835 communities, including 9,986 homes from 497 communities in fiscal2027. At October

31,2021, the company had 995 communities in various stages of planning, development or operations

containing approximately 80,900 home sites that were owned or controlled through options.

TBI is subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

(the "Exchange Act"), and, in accordance therewith, files annual and quarterly reports, proxy statements

and other information with the SEC. Such reports, proxy statements and other information, including its
Annual Report on Form 10-K and its most recent Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, are available to the

public via the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. All documents filed by TBI pursuant to the requirements

of the Exchange Act after the date of this Official Statement will be available for inspection in the same

manner as described above. Copies of TBI's Annual Report and related financial statements are also

available from TBI's website at www.tollbrothers.com.

The foregoing website addresses and references to filings with the Securities and Exchange

Commission (the "SEC") are given for reference and convenience only, and the information on such

websites and onfile with the SEC does not form a part of this Official Statement and is not incorporated

by reference herein. No representation is made in this Official Statement as to the accuracy or adequacy

of the information contained on such websites. The Developer and TBI are not obligated to advance funds
for construction or development or to pay ad valorem property taxes or the Special Taxes and investors

should not rely on the information and financial statements contained on such websites in evaluating

whether to buy, hold or sell the Bonds. The information contained on suchwebsites may be incomplete or
inaccurate and has not been reviewed by the City, the District or the Underwriter.

Development Plan and Status of Development

Unless otherwise indicated, the information provided in this section has been provided by
the Developer and has been included because it may be considered relevant to an informed
evaluation and analysis of the Bonds and the fmprovement Area. No assurance can be given'
however, that the proposed development of the property within the Improvement Area will occur in

55

Page 389

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



a timely manner or in the configuration or to the density described herein, or that the Developer'
any owners or affiliates thereofo or any other current or subsequent property owners' will or will
not retain ownership of its respective property within the Improvement Area. The City' the
District and the Underwriter can provide no assurances as to the accuracy of the information in
this section. There may be material adverse changes in this information after the date of this
Official Statement.

Development Planz

The planned development within the Improvement Area includes a gated residential adult active

community for residents age 55+ years known as Regency at Folsom Ranch, which is expected to contain

919 residential units at completion, including 751 single-story/single-family detached units and 168

single-story/multi-family paired units otherwise known as duets. Regency at Folsom Ranch is expected

to include five separate product lines of homes known as Sequoia, Redwood, Mendocino, Shasta, and

Tahoe, on lots ranging from approximately 3,440 square feet to approximately 6,175 square feet, with
homes ranging from approximately 1,400 square feet to approximately 2,450 square feet, and with three

separate floor plans for each product line.

Planned amenities include an 18,000 square foot clubhouse with access to onsite food and

beverage services, an indoor pool, an outdoor pool and spa, a fitness center, a barbeque pavilion, event

lawns, pickleball and bocce ball courts, gathering areas, two dog parks, and access to miles of outdoor

trails and biking paths.

Below is a summary of the anticipated product types planned within the Improvement Area,

Tabte ll
City of Folsom

Communities Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 3

Summary of Product Types

Product Line
Living Area
(square feet)

Estimated
Base Price(l)

Expected
UnitsPlan

Sequoia

Redwood

Mendocino

Shasta

Crystal
Hartley

Whitmore

Redding
Cresthaven

Trinity

Covelo
Julian

Newman

Caldwell
Lockwood
Whitney

Carmichael
Glenbrook
Petaluma

1,398
1,420
1,446

Stories Bedrooms Bathrooms Garage Size

2
2
2

2
2
2

2
2
2

2
2

2

5-3.5
2.5
2.5

2.5
2.5
2.5

2.

2-3
2

z-5

2-3
2
2

2
2-3
2-3

,
2
2

2
2
2

2
2
2

2
2
2

$583,995
$593,995
$598,995

$654,99s
$659,995
$678,995

$692,99s
$697,995
$708,995

$74s,995
$760,995
s770,995

$840,995
$845,995
$855,995

Total

56
56
56

57
57
58

563
542
596

t,
1,

l,

2
2
2

1,815
1,876
1,925

2,012
2,128
2,148

66
66
66

69
70
70

57
57
58

Tahoe

(r) Base sales prices are as of June 16,2022, and are subject to change at any time by the Developer. Base sales prices are

exclusive of any premiums, options, upgrades, incentives, and any selling concessions or price reductions currently being offered.

Source: The Developer.

2,316
2,356

2,441

2.5
2.5
2.5

919

56

Page 390

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The Developer is actively marketing the homes within the Improvement Area to individual

homeowners and, as of June 16,2022, had sold (but not closed) 155 homes. The Developer anticipates

delivering the first 12 homes to individual homebuyers by the end of July 2022, with 47 closings

anticipated for August 2022,48 closings anticipated for September 2022 and 48 closings anticipated for
October 2022. The Developer expects the final home closings within the Improvement Area to occur in

September 2026. Below is a summary of the Developer's anticipated timing for its sale and delivery of
finished homes.

Table 12
City of Folsom

Communities Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No.3

Expected Delivery of Finished Homes by Sales Year

Product Line Zoning 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

Sequoia

Redwood

Mendocino
Shasta

Tahoe

TOTAL

MLD
SF/SFHD

SF/SFHD
SF/SFHD
SF/SFHD

6
t7

23

48

48

48
48
48

240

48

48

48
48
48

240

48

48

48
48
48

240

24

28

48
48
28

176

Source: The Developer

The map below reflects the lot mix, the zoning of development and the overall layout of
development within the Improvement Area.

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No.3
Master PIan

rtoErcYAttsoM ulcf,
Ia(ffY! Mdf 6nmodv)

llurlroilE lrloti.r llon lxHbl
TOL' IROIHEIS AT FOISOM IAI{CI{

ISGff

(ld!il ldEAdiCn6ur[r,
ToIIBrolhers

lgFqr!tH

rt
:.:

57
Page 391

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Status of Developmentz

As of June 16, 2022, all of the taxable residential property within the Improvement Area was

owned by the Developer and was in various stages development, including partially-improved lots,

improved lots, homes under construction and completed model homes. As of June 16, 2022, the

Developer had completed the construction of 15 model homes (three within each product line) that were

open to the public and had sold to individual homebuyers (but not closed) 155 production homes. Homes

under contract may not result in closed escrows as sales contracts are subject to cancellation. As of June

16, 2022, final maps authorizing the subdivision of a portion of the property within the Improvement
Area into 443 residential lots had been recorded, and tentative maps had been approved for the remaining

476 proposed residential lots. The Developer expects to receive final map approval for an additional 100

residential lots by December 2022 and final map approval for the remaining 376 residential lots between

2023 and mid-2025. The only remaining discretionary entitlement within the Improvement Area is the

recordation of small lot final maps for the remainin g 47 6 tentative map units.

As of June 16, 2022, the amenities being constructed within the Improvement Area were

approximately 30% complete and anticipated to be completed by March 2023. The Developer is in the

process of completing the required backbone improvements for the Improvement Area, which it
anticipates completing by fall 2023 .

The following table summarizes, as of June 16, 2022, the development status of the residential

lots and homes proposed to be constructed within each of the five product lines within the Improvement

Area.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

58

Page 392

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Table 13
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No.3

Development Status as of June 1612022

Product Line Land Use
Typical Lot Size

(square feet)

3,440

4,200

4,750

5,225

6,175

Homes
Under

Construction

Homes
Completed

But Not
Closed(1)

t6

Homes
Under

Contract{2)

20

39

3l

3l

34

Building
Permits
Issued

22

6t

40

42

36

Finished Lots
(Without
Vertical
Home

Construction)

42

l9

36

26

26

Partially
Improved

Lots

104

100

122

l4t
110

Undeveloped
Lots

Total
Proposed
Units(3)

168

172

198

209

172

Homes
CIosed

Sequoia

Redwood

Mendocino

Shasta

Tahoe

TOTAL

MLD

SF/SFHD

SF/SFHD

SF/SFHD

SF/SFHD

l8

50

37

39

JJ

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

4

J

3

J

J

155 0 20t t49 577 0 919

(r) Includes 15 model homes and one production home, none ofwhich have been released for sale.
(2) Homes under contract may not result in closed escrows as sales contracts are subject to cancellation by the homebuyers.

Home Construction)," (v) "Partially Improved Lots" and (vi) "Undeveloped Lots."
Source: The Developer

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

177

59
Page 393

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



lBackbone and Offiite Infrastructure. The Developer is in the process of completing certain

required backbone infrastructure and offsite improvements serving the Improvement Area. Backbone

infrastructure includes the following: (i) construction of the Mangini Parkway bridge, which has been

completed; (ii) construction of the Regency Parkway bridge, which is expected to commence inlate 2022

and be completed by summer 2023; and (iii) construction of a hydromodification basin, the Mangini
Parkway phase 2 roadway and utilities, and the Oak Avenue roadway and utilities, which commenced in
spring 2022 and are expected to be completed by December 2022. Landscaping of the Mangini Parkway

and Oak Avenue roadways is expected to commence after completion of the roadways and take

approximately four months to complete. The Developer anticipates completing the backbone

improvements by the end of 2023. Offsite improvements, which include primary access roads and curbs,

gutters, sidewalks and streetlights are substantially complete and expected to be completed by December

2022.1

lSubdivision Improvements. The in-tract subdivision improvements within the Improvement
Area have been completed for 342 units, and the Developer anticipates completing the remaining in-tract
subdivision improvements by the end of 2024. Remaining in-tract subdivision improvements for
development of the Improvement Area includes, among other things, water and sewer hookups,

underground utilities, streets, street lighting, soundwalls and landscaping improvements. As of May 31,

2022, the total remaining subdivision improvements in the Improvement Area are estimated at

approximately $40 million, including all design, construction staking, plan check, inspection, habitat

mitigation and other project related soft costs.l

COVD-19Impact

The planned development within the Improvement Area is subject to disruption due to the

COVID-l9 pandemic and related public health and governmental authorities' orders and actions, which
could have a material adverse effect on the Developer's ability to complete its proposed development

within the Improvement Area and sell completed homes in the time frames and budgets, and at the sales

prices, described in this Official Statement. The Developer has largely continued, with certain

modifications, their development, home construction and sales activities in the Improvement Area to date,

including taking steps at the model home sites, sales offices and jobsites, as applicable, to limit the spread

of the COVID-l9 outbreak and implementing certain changes to the home sales process in an effortto
mitigate the spread of COVID-19. The Developer has provided the option of touring homes virtually
online, by appointment, or currently, in person. However, in the event that the Developer believes it is
advisable to, or are required to, implement additional measures in response to a resurgence of COVID-I9
or other public health risks, they may experience further negative impacts on their businesses and

operations.

The Developer has experienced increases in certain construction costs, supply chain delays, labor
shortages, and increased cycle time for construction projects generally. However, the Developer has not
experienced any significant development delays resulting from work stoppages, reduced attendance of
workers, or the ability to obtain necessary inspections and approvals for homes, which may be attributed,

directly or indirectly, to the COVID-l9 pandemic. While the cost increases and delays may have been

and may continue to be intermittently affected by COVID-l9, the majority of cost increases and delays

can be affributable to production backlogs due to prior shutdowns or shelter in place orders, the strength

of the housing market and the result of vendors not anticipating the scale of the demand for housing

materials.

The COVID-19 outbreak is ongoing and, among other things, the ultimate geographic spread of
the virus, the emergence and spread of new strains or variants of COVID-19, the duration and severity of
the outbreak, the availability and acceptance of effective vaccines, adequate testing and treatments and the

60
Page 394

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



prevalence of widespread immunity to COVID- 1 9, and the economic and other actions that may be taken
by governmental authorities to contain the outbreak or to address its impact remain uncertain. The
ultimate effects of COVID-l9 on the Improvement Area, the Developer's operations and financial
condition, homebuyers' willingness and ability to pay the Special Tax when due, and the real estate

market and United States economy in general are unknown. Such effects, if and as they arise, could have

a material adverse effect on the ability to complete the development within the Improvement Area and/or

sell homes or lots as planned, and no assurance can be provided that the Developer will be able to (a)

complete in whole or in any patt, or within any particular time, their construction of homes within the

Improvement Area; (b) avoid additional material increases in development costs or delays resulting from
work stoppages, reduced attendance of workers, shortages or delays in the delivery of building materials,
andlor delays in obtaining necessary inspections and approvals; or (c) sell homes, and close home sales or
not experience purchase contract cancellations, due in each case to public health or governmental
restrictions, further spread of COVID-L9, an economic downturn driven by the pandemic, or otherwise.
See "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Potential Impact of Global Health Crises or Concerns"
herein.

Development Plan of Finance

To date, the Developer has financed its land acquisition and various site development and

homebuilding costs related to its property in the Improvement Area through internally generated funds.
As of May 3I,2022, the Developer had expended approximately $111.5 million on its project in the

Improvement Area, including land acquisition costs, site development costs, permits and fees, direct and

indirect home construction costs, and marketing and sales costs and expenses (exclusive of corporate
overhead and other carry costs). The Developer expects to incur approximately $478.8 million on
remaining site development costs, permits and fees, direct and indirect home construction costs, and

marketing and sales costs and expenses (exclusive ofcorporate overhead and other carry costs) related to
its project in the Improvement Area. The Developer expects to use internal funding (which may include
homes sales revenue and funding from its parent company) and proceeds from the sale of the Local
Obligations to complete its development and home construction within the Improvement Area and

believes that it will have sufficient funds available to complete its planned development as described in
this Official Statement.

[As of May 31,2022, the Developer estimates that it had incurred total grading and backbone and

off-site infrastructure development costs of approximately $47 million for the Improvement Area. As of
that same date, the Developer's remaining grading and backbone and off-site infrastructure for
development costs for the Improvement Area were estimated at approximately $50 million. The
remaining backbone and off-site infrastructure work is expected to continue and ultimately be completed
by the end of 2023.l

[As of May 31,2022, the Developer had incurred total site development costs of approximately
$71.4 million for the development of the Improvement Area. As of that same date, the Developer's
remaining development costs for the Improvement Area, excluding home construction costs, were
estimated at $101.8 million. The remaining site development work is expected to continue and ultimately
be completed by the end of 2024.1

' The following table describes the Developer's estimated total site development costs for the
Improvement Area, excluding home construction costs. The table also describes, as of May 3I, 2022, the
site development costs spent, the remaining site development costs and the estimated time for completion.

6t

Page 395

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Table 14
City of Folsom

Community Facilities District No.23 (Folsom Ranch)
fmprovement Area No.3

Site Development Costs and Estimated Completion Dates

Est. Total
Site Costs

Completed
Costs Through
llay 31,2022

Remaining Site
Costs

Estimated
Completion Date

Soft Costs
Phase I Common
Phase2&3Common
MLD Common
Phase I Intract
Phase 2 Intract
MLD Intract
Phase lC Intract
Mangini Parkway Phase I
Mangini Parkway Phase 2
Mangini Parkway Phase 3

E. Bidwell Parkway
Oak Avenue
Phase I Entries
Phase 2 Entry
MLD Entry
Rec. Center Phase I
Rec. Amenity Phase 2

$ 13,968,1 l3 $
22,599,109
tQ,704,356
8,602,681

20,700,135
22,433,015

7,894,012
9,455,216
8,301,906

13,1 15,589
s99,039

4,259,619
4,786,219
3,250,000
2,600,000

650,000
1,8,174,644

1,100,000

8,497,419 $
20,588,471

90r,51r
265,318

18,409,722

248,222
1,395,142
7,368,465
2,991,404

4,015,418
10,573

2,562,006

4, I 10,851

5,470,694
2,010,638
9,802,845
8,337,363
2,290,413

22,433,015
7,645,790
8,060,074

933,441
10,t24,185

s99,039
244,200

4,77s,646
687,994

2,600,000
650,000

14,063,793
1,100,000

December 2024
December 2022

August 2023
August 2023

December 2022
November 2024

Febrcary 2024
August 2023

December 2022
November 2023
November 2023

October 2022
November 2023
September 2022
December 2023
September 2023

April2023
October 2024

Total Costs $ 173,193,653 $ 7t.364.s22 $ 10r.829.130

Source: The Developer.

Although the Developer expects to have sfficient funds available to complete its planned
development in the Improvement Area as described in this Official Statement, there can be no assurance
that amounts necessary to finance the remaining development and home construction costs will be

available from the Developer or any other source when needed. While the Developer has made such
internal financing available in the past, there can be no assurance whatsoever of its willingness or ability
to do so in the future. Neither the Developer, nor any of its related entities are under any legal obligation
of any kind to expend funds or obtain loans for land acquisition or the development of and construction of
homes on its property in the Improvement Area. Any contributions by the Developer to fund the costs of
such development or home construction are entirely voluntary.

If and to the extent that internal funding, including but not limited to home sales revenues, are
inadequate to pay the costs to complete the planned development by the Developer within the

Improvement Area and other financing by the Developer is not put into place, there could be a shortfall in
the funds required to complete the planned development by the Developer of its property in the

Improvement Area.

IREMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

62

Page 396

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS

This section provides a general overview of certain risk factors which should be considered, in
addition to the other matters set forth in this Official Statement, in evaluating an investment in the Bonds.
This section is not meant to be a comprehensive or definitive discussion of the risks associated with an

investment in the Bonds, and the order in which this information is presented does not necessarily reflect
the relative importance of various risks. Potential investors in the Bonds are advised to consider the
following factors, among others, and to review this entire Official Statement to obtain information
essential to the making of an informed investment decision. Any one or more of the risk factors discussed

below, among others, could lead to a decrease in the market value and/or in the marketability of the

Bonds. There can be no assurance that other risk factors not discussed herein will not become material in
the future.

Levy of the Special Tax

The principal source of payment of debt service on the Local Obligations, from which funds for
the payment of the Bonds are derived, is the proceeds of the annual levy and collection of the Special Tax
against property in the Improvement Area. The annual levy of the Special Tax is subject to the Maximum
Special Tax rates authorized within the Improvement Area. The levies cannot be made at higher rates

even if the failure to do so means that the estimated proceeds of the levy and collection of the Special
Tax, together with other available moneys, will not be sufficient to pay debt service on the Local
Obligations. Other funds which might be available include funds derived from the payment of delinquent

Special Tax and funds derived from the tax sale or foreclosure and sale of related Taxable Property on

which levies of the Special Tax are delinquent.

The levy of the Special Tax will rarely, if ever, result in a uniform relationship between the value
of particular Taxable Property and the amount of the levy of the Special Tax against such parcels. Thus,
there will rarely, if ever, be a uniform relationship between the value of such parcels and the
proportionate share of debt service on the Local Obligations, and certainly not a direct relationship.

The Special Tax levied in any particular tax year on a Taxable Property is based upon the revenue
needs and application of the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment. Application of the Amended
Rate and Method of Apportionment will, in turn, be dependent upon certain development factors with
respect to each Taxable Property by comparison with similar development factors with respect to the

other Taxable Property in the Improvement Area. Thus, in addition to annual variations of the revenue
needs from the Special Tax, the following are some of the factors which might cause the levy of the

Special Tax on any particular Taxable Property to vary from the Special Tax that might otherwise be

expected:

Reduction in the number of Taxable Property for such reasons as acquisition of Taxable
Property by the federal government or an agency thereof, asserting immunity (however,

see "Exempt Properties" below) from taxation, thereby resulting in an increased tax
burden on the remaining Taxable Propefiy.

a

a Failure of the related owners of Taxable Property to pay the Special Tax and delays in the
collection of or inability to collect the Special Tax by tax sale or foreclosure and sale of
the delinquent parcels, thereby resulting in an increased tax burden on the remaining
parcels, subject to the related Maximum Special Tax.

63

Page 397

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Collection of Special Tax

In order for the District to pay debt service on the Local Obligations, from which funds for the

payment of the Bonds are derived, it is necessary that the Special Tax levied against land in the

Improvement Area be paid in a timely manner. The District has established the Local Obligations
Reserve Account under the Local Obligations Indenture in the amount of the Required Bond Reserve to
pay debt service on the Local Obligations, in the event that a portion of the Special Taxes for the Local

Obligations are not paid on time.

The Local Obligations Indenture provides that the Special Tax is to be collected in the same

manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes are collected and, except as provided in the special

covenant for foreclosure described below and in the Mello-Roos Act, is to be subject to the same penalties

and the same procedure, sale and lien priority in case of delinquency as is provided for ad valorem

property taxes. Pursuant to these procedures, iftaxes are unpaid for a period of five years or more, the

property is deeded to the State and then is subject to sale by the County.

Pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act, in the event of any delinquency in the payment of the Special

Tax, the District may order the institution of a Superior Court action to foreclose the lien therefor within
specified time limits. In such an action, the real property subject to the unpaid amount may be sold at

judicial foreclosure sale. Such judicial foreclosure action is not mandatory. However, the District has

covenanted that it will annually on or before September 1 of each year review the public records of the

County of Sacramento relating to the collection of the Special Tax in order to determine the amount of the

Special Tax collected in the prior Fiscal Year, and if it determines on the basis of such review that the

amount so collected is deficient by more than 5oh of the total amount of the Special Tax levied in such

Fiscal Year, it will within 60 days thereafter institute foreclosure proceedings as authorized by the Mello-
Roos Act in order to enforce the lien of the delinquent installments of the Special Tax against each lot or

parcel of land in the Improvement Area, and will diligently prosecute and pursue such foreclosure

proceedings to judgment and sale; pleyiidgd, that irrespective of the foregoing if the District determines on

the basis of such review that property owned by any single property owner in the Improvement Area is
delinquent by four missed payments with respect to the Special Tax due and payable by such property

owner by such delinquency date, then the District will institute, prosecute and pursue such foreclosure

proceedings in the time and manner provided herein against such property owner; provided further, that

any actions taken to enforce delinquent Special Tax liens shall be taken only consistent with Sections

53356.1through 53356.7, both inclusive, of the Mello-Roos Act; and provided fuither that the Dishict is

not obligated under the Local Obligations Indenture to enforce the lien of any delinquent installment of
the Special Tax for any Fiscal Year in which the District has received one hundred percent (100%) of the

amount of such installment from the County pursuant to the Teeter Plan.

In the event that sales or foreclosures of property are necessary, there could be a delay in
payments to Owners of the Bonds pending such sales or the prosecution of foreclosure proceedings and

receipt by the District of the proceeds of sale if the Local Obligations Reserve Account with respect to the

Local Obligations is depleted. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR TI{E BONDS-
Covenant for Foreclosure."

The District may be unable to make full or timely payment of debt service on the Local

Obligations if property owners in the Improvement Area fail to pay installments of the Special Tax when

due, if the Local Obligations Reserve Account is depleted, or if the District is unable to sell related

foreclosed parcels for amounts sufficient to cover the delinquent installments of the Special Tax.

64

Page 398

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Concentration of Ownership

As of June 16, 2022, the Taxable Property in the Improvement Area was entirely owned by the
Developer, and consequently, the Special Tax within the Improvement Area will be paid by the
Developer until the land is developed and sold. See "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-
Property Ownership."

The Developer is in the process of building and selling completed homes to individual
homeowners. No assurance can be given that the property sales will close when anticipated. See

"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Property Ownership." Generally, the risk of delinquency
or nonpayment of Special Taxes at levels which do not permit the timely payment of principal of and
interest on the Bonds is inversely comelated to the diversity of ownership of Taxable Property within the
Improvement Area. The fact that a substantial portion of the property providing the ultimate security for
the payment of Local Obligations is controlled by a single owner means that timely payment of the
respective Special Tax and, therefore, the Bonds, will depend initially upon the willingness and ability of
such owner to pay the Special Tax when due. The only assets of the Developer that constitute security for
the Local Obligations are its real property holdings located within the Improvement Area.

There can be no assurance that the remaining undeveloped property will be fully developed and
that property ownership will be further diversified as a result. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO
BONDHOLDERS-Failure to Develop. "

Payment of the Special Tax is Not a Personal Obligation of a Property Owner

A PROPERTY OWNER IS NOT PERSONALLY OBLIGATED TO PAY TI{E SPECIAL TAX.
RATHE& TI{E SPECIAL TAXES ARE OBLIGATIONS ONLY AGAINST THE PROPERTY. IF THE
VALUE OF THE PARCELS OF PROPERTY IS NOT SUFFICIENT, TAKING INTO ACCOTINT
OTHER OBLIGATIONS ALSO PAYABLE TIfiREBY, TO FULLY DISCI{ARGE TI{E SPECIAL
TAX, TIIE DISTRICT WILL HAVE NO RECOURSE AGAINST TTM PROPERTY OWNER.

Potential Early Redemption of Bonds from Prepaid Special Taxes

Property owners within the Improvement Area are permitted to prepay their Special Taxes at any
time. Such prepayments could also be made from the proceeds of bonds issued by or on behalf of an
overlapping special assessment district or community facilities district. Such payments will result in a
redemption of the Bonds on the Interest Payment Date for which timely notice may be given under the
Trust Agreement following the receipt of the prepayment. The resulting redemption of Bonds purchased
at a price greater than par could reduce the otherwise expected yield on such Bonds. See "TIfi
BoNDs-Redemption Provisions-Extraordinary Redemptionfrom Prepayment of Special Taxes."

Special Tax Delinquencies

The Special Taxes are billed to the properties within the Improvement Area on the ad valorem
property tax bills sent to owners of such properties. Such Special Tax installments are due and payable,
and bear the same penalties and interest for non-payment, as do ad valorem property tax installments. In
each year the County includes the Improvement Area in the Teeter Plan, the County will be obligated to
pay the District l00Yo of the amount of the Special Taxes actually levied in the Improvement Area,
regardless of any delinquencies. However, the County is required to terminate the Teeter Plan if two-
thirds of the participants so petition the Board of Supervisors and may discontinue the Teeter Plan as to
the Improvement Area if the delinquency rate in the Improvement Area exceeds 3o%. Moreover, the
County determines annually whether to include a particular district in the Teeter Plan. See "-Teeter

65

Page 399

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Plan Termination" and "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-The Teeter

Plan." Significant delinquencies in the payment of annual Special Tax installments, or delays in the

prosecution of foreclosure proceedings to collect such Special Taxes, could result in a default in the

payment of the debt service on the Bonds. $ss "-Bznkruptcy" and "-FDIC/Federal Government

Interests in Properties" below, for a discussion of the limitations on the District's ability to foreclose on

the lien of the Special Taxes in certain circumstances and the policy of the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation regarding the payment of special taxes.

Teeter Plan Termination

The County has implemented its Teeter Plan as an alternate procedure for the distribution of
certain property tax and assessment levies on the secured roll. The County determines annually which
special taxes and assessment levies to include in the Teeter Plan. Pursuant to its Teeter Plan, once the

County determines to include special taxes and assessment levies in the Teeter Plan, the County provides

the local agency and taxing area with full tax and assessment levies instead of actual tax and assessment

collections. In return, the County is entitled to retain all delinquent tax and assessment payments,

penalties and interest. Thus, the County's Teeter Plan may help protect Owners from the risk of
delinquencies in the payment of Special Taxes. However, the County is entitled, and under certain

circumstances could be required, to terminate its Teeter Plan with respect to all or part of the local

agencies and taxing areas covered thereby. In addition, the County may decide not to include certain

special taxes and assessment levies, including the Improvement Area, in the Teeter Plan in any fiscal
year. Any termination of the Teeter Plan with respect to the Improvement Area would eliminate such

protection from delinquent Special Taxes. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR TFIE

BONDS-The Teeter Plan."

Land Values

If a property owner defaults in the payment of the Special Tax, from which funds for the payment

of the Bonds are derived, the District's only remedy is to foreclose on the delinquent property in an

attempt to obtain funds with which to pay the delinquent Special Tax. The value of taxable properly in
the Improvement Area is therefore an important consideration in evaluating the security for the Bonds.

Land values could be adversely affected by economic factors beyond the District's control, such as

relocation of employers out of the area, stricter land use regulations, the absence of water, or destruction

of property caused by, among other eventualities, earthquake, flood or other natural disaster, or by

environmental pollution or contamination.

Appraisal Risks

The Appraiser has estimated the market value of the property in the Improvement Area on the

basis of certain assumptions which the Appraiser believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. See

the Appraisal included in APPENDIX G hereto. However, certain of the assumptions made by the

Appraiser may prove to be untrue.

Although the District believes that the Appraiser's methodology and assumptions are reasonable

under the circumstances, the Appraiser's aggregate value conclusions are expressions of professional

opinion only. No assurance can be given that the aggregate values of property in the Improvement Area

are equal to or greater than the Appraiser's estimated values, nor can any assurance be given that such

aggregate values will not decline during the period of time the Bonds are Outstanding. The values of the

property in the Improvement Area can be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including, but not

limited to, the occuffence of one or more of the special risk events discussed herein. A decline in the

value of a parcel in the Improvement Area could lower the ability or willingness of the owner of such

66

Page 400

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



parcel to pay Special Taxes when due and would decrease the amount recoverable at a foreclosure sale of
such parcel.

See "THE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Property Values" for a further discussion of estimated
property values in the Improvement Area.

Exempt Properties

Certain properties within the Improvement Area are or may become exempt from the Special Tax
in accordance with the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment. In addition, the Mello-Roos Act
provides that properties or entities of the state, federal or local government are exempt from Special Tax;
provided, however, that property acquired by a public entity through a negotiated transaction or by gift or
devise, which is not otherwise exempt from the Special Tax, will continue to be subject to the Special
Tax. In addition, the Mello-Roos Act provides that if property subject to Special Tax is acquired by a

public entity through eminent domain proceedings, the obligation to pay Special Tax with respect to that
property is to be treated as if it were a special assessment. Further, properties receiving a welfare
exemption under subsection (g) of Section 214 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code are exempt
from the Special Tax unless debt is outstanding and the property was subject to the Special Tax prior to
receiving the exemption. Neither the District or the Developer are aware of any property within the
Improvement Area currently receiving a welfare exemption. The constitutionality and operation of these
provisions of the Mello-Roos Act have not been tested.

In particular, insofar as the Mello-Roos Act requires payment of a special tax by a federal entity
acquiring property within the community facilities district, it may be unconstitutional. If for any reason

properly within the Improvement Area becomes exempt from taxation, then, subject to the Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment, including the limitation on the maximum special tax rates set out in the
Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, the special tax will be reallocated to the remaining taxable
properties within the Improvement Area. This would result in the owners of such property paying a

greater amount of the Special Tax and could have an adverse impact upon the timely payment of the
Special Tax. Moreover, if a substantial portion of land within the Improvement Area becomes exempt
from the Special Tax because of public ownership, or otherwise, the maximum rate that could be levied
upon the remaining property might not be sufficient to pay principal of and interest on the related Local
Obligations and could adversely affect the ability of the District to pay principal of and interest on the
Bonds when due.

Maximum Special Tax

Within the limits of the Special Tax, the District may adjust the Special Tax on all property in the
Improvement Area to provide an amount required to pay interest on, principal of, Minimum Sinking Fund
Payments for and redemption premiums, if any, on the Local Obligations, and the amount, if any,
necessary to cure delinquencies and replenish the Local Obligations Reserve Account to an amount equal
to the Required Bond Reserve, and to pay all current Expenses.

Although the Maximum Special Tax is designed to provide Special Tax revenues on an annual
basis, there is no assurance that the Maximum Special Tax on the property in the Improvement Area will
be sufficient to pay the amounts required to be paid by the Local Obligations Indenture at all times, from
which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived. See "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS-Special Tax Authorization" and APPENDIX A-"AMENDED RATE,
METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX."

67

Page 401

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Under the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment, the Facilities Special Tax levied in any

fiscal year against any Assessor's Parcel (as defined in the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment)
of Developed Properly classified as Residential Property may not be increased as a consequence of
delinquency or default by the owner or owners of any other parcel or parcels within the Improvement
Area by more than 10% above the amount that would have been levied against such Assessor's Parcel in
that fiscal year had there never been any such delinquencies or defaults. Pursuant to the Amended Rate

and Method of Apportionment, property is considered "Residential Property" once a building permit
could be issued for the purposes of constructing one or more Residential Units, including either single
family detached homes or multi-family attached properties, such as apartments, and property is
considered "Developed Property" if a building permit for new construction was issued prior to June 30 of
the previous fiscal year.

No Acceleration Provision

The Local Obligations Indenture does not contain a provision allowing for the acceleration of the
Bonds in the event of a payment default or other default under the terms thereof.

Loss of Tax Exemption

As discussed under "TAX MATTERS," interest on the Bonds could become includable in gross

income for purposes of federal income taxation retroactive to the date of issuance, as a result of acts or
omissions of the District subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in violation of the District's covenants
with respect to the Bonds. Should interest become includable in gross income, the Bonds are not subject

to redemption by reason thereof and will remain outstanding until maturity or unless earlier redeemed

pursuant to optional or mandatory redemption.

Parity Taxes and Special Assessments

The ability or willingness of a property owner in the Improvement Area to pay the Special Tax,

from which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived, could be affected by the existence of other

taxes and assessments imposed upon the properly either currently existing or imposed in the future. The
assessments and any penalties thereon constitute a lien against the lots and parcels of land on which they
have been levied until they are paid. Such lien is on parity with all special taxes and special assessments

levied by other agencies and is co-equal to and independent of the lien for general property taxes and

other special assessments regardless of when they are imposed upon the same property. The Special Tax
has priority over all existing and future private liens imposed on the property. In addition, other public
agencies whose boundaries overlap those of the Improvement Area could, with or in some circumstances
without the consent of the owners of the land in the Improvement Area, impose additional taxes or
assessment liens on the property in the Improvement Area in order to finance public improvements to be

located inside or outside of the Improvement Area.

Although the District has covenanted not to impose additional special taxes or assessments on
property within the Improvement Area except in accordance with the Local Obligations Indenture, the
Authority and the District have no control over the ability of other entities and districts to issue

indebtedness secured by special taxes or assessments payable from all or a portion ofthe property in the
Improvement Area. The imposition of additional liens on panty with the assessments could reduce the

ability or willingness of the owners of parcels in the Improvement Area to pay the Special Tax and

increases the possibility that foreclosure proceeds will not be adequate to pay delinquent Special Taxes or
the principal of and interest on the Local Obligations when due. As described under "FOLSOM PLAN
AREA-Public Facilities Financing Plan," and "TFIE IMPROVEMENT AREA-Overlapping Debt" the

City plans to issue additional obligations secured by special taxes from time to time to finance backbone

68

Page 402

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



infrastructure and public improvements within the Folsom Plan Area and the boundaries of the

Improvement Area. For example, CFD 18 authorized the issuance of up to $200,000,000 in obligations.

The special taxes securing such additional obligations would be payable on parity with the Special Taxes,

and the City currently anticipates that an initial series of CFD 18 bonds in an estimated amount between

$25 million to $30 million will be issued in the fourth quarter of 2022 to help finance at least a portion of
the required Phase 2 Water Facilities. In addition, property owners may choose to participate in a

residential PACE program (a mechanism for financing energy efficiency and renewable energy

improvements on private property), consenting to assessments on their parcels that would be on a parlty

with the Special Taxes.

Future Private Indebtedness

At the present time, the Improvement Area included properties that are undergoing development

or are developed. In order to develop any improvements on that undeveloped land, the properly owners

will need to construct private improvements, the cost of which may increase the private debt for which the

land in the Improvement Area or other land or collateral owned by the property owners is security over

that contemplated by the Local Obligations, and such increased debt could reduce the ability or desire of
the property owners to pay the Special Tax secured by the land in the Improvement Area. It should be

noted however, that the lien of any private financing secured by the land within the Improvement Area

would be subordinate to the lien of the Special Tax.

Disclosures to Future Purchasers

The District has recorded notice of the Special Tax Lien in the Office of the County Recorder of
the County of Sacramento. While title companies normally refer to such notices in title reports, there can

be no guarantee that such reference will be made or, if made, that a prospective purchaser or lender will
consider such Special Tax obligation in the purchase of a parcel of land, a home or a commercial or

industrial facility in the Improvement Area or the lending of money thereon. The Mello-Roos Act
requires the subdivider (or its agent or representative) ofa subdivision to notiff a prospective purchaser or

long-term lessor of any lot, parcel, or unit subject to a Mello-Roos special tax of the existence and

maximum amount of such special tax using a statutorily prescribed form. State Civil Code

Section ll02.6b requires that in the case of transfers other than those covered by the above requirement,

the seller must at least make a good faith effort to notifii the prospective purchaser of the special tax lien

in a format prescribed by statute. Failure by an owner of the property to comply with the above

requirements, or failure by a purchaser or lessor to consider or understand the nature and existence ofthe
Sp-cial Tax, could adversely affect the willingness and ability of the purchaser or lessor to pay the

Special Tax, from which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived, when due.

Bankruptcy

The payment of the Special Tax and the ability of the District to foreclose the lien of a delinquent

unpaid tax, as discussed in "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR Tfm BONDS," may be

limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws generally affecting creditors' rights or by the laws of the

State relating tojudicial foreclosure. In addition, the prosecution ofa foreclosure action could be delayed

due to crowded local court calendars or delays in the legal process. The various legal opinions to be

delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds (including Bond Counsel's approving legal

opinion) will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by bankruptcy,

insolvency, rcorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights, by the

application of equitable principles and by the exercise ofjudicial discretion in appropriate cases.

69

Page 403

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Although bankruptcy proceedings would not cause the lien of the Special Tax to become

extinguished, bankruptcy of a property owner could result in a delay in prosecuting superior court
foreclosure proceedings. The federal bankruptcy laws provide for an automatic stay of foreclosure and

sale oftax sale proceedings, thereby delaying such proceedings perhaps for an extended period. Any such

delays would increase the likelihood of a delay or default in payment of the principal of and interest on

the Bonds and the possibility of delinquent tax installments not being paid in full. To the extent that
property in the Improvement Area continues to be owned by a limited number of property owners, the

chances are increased that the Local Obligations Reserve Fund could be fully depleted during any such

delay in obtaining payment of delinquent Special Taxes. As a result, sufficient moneys would not be

available in the Local Obligations Reserve Account to make up shortfalls resulting from delinquent
payments of the Special Tax and thereby to pay principal of and interest on the Local Obligations on a
timely basis. The payment of the Special Tax and the ability of the District to foreclose the lien of a
delinquent unpaid tax could be delayed by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or other
similar laws affecting rights of creditors generally or by the laws of the State relating to judicial
foreclosure. Further, should remedies be exercised under the federal bankruptcy laws against parcels in
the Improvement Area, payment of the Special Tax may be subordinated to bankruptcy law priorities.
Thus, certain claims may have priority over the Special Tax in a bankruptcy proceeding even though they
would not outside of a bankruptcy proceeding.

FDIC/Federal Government Interests in Properties

The ability of the District to foreclose the lien of delinquent unpaid Special Tax installments may
be limited with regard to properties in which the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC"), the

Drug Enforcement Agency, the Internal Revenue Service, or other federal agency has or obtains an

interest.

Under the Supremacy Clause of the United States Constitution, unless Congress has otherwise
provided, if a federal governmental entity owns a parcel that is subject to Special Taxes within the

Improvement Area but does not pay taxes and assessments levied on the parcel (including Special Taxes),

the applicable state and local governments cannot foreclose on the parcel to collect the delinquent taxes

and assessmdnts. Moreover, unless Congress has otherwise provided, if the federal government has a
mortgage interest in the parcel and the District wishes to foreclose on the parcel as a result of delinquent
Special Taxes, the property cannot be sold at a foreclosure sale unless it can be sold for an amount

sufficient to pay delinquent taxes and assessments on parity with the Special Taxes and preserve the

federal government's mortgage interest. In Rust v. Johnson,597 F.2d I74 (1979), the United States Court
of Appeal, Ninth Circuit held that the Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA") is a federal

instrumentality for purposes of this doctrine, and not a private enttty, and that, as a result, an exercise of
state power over a mortgage interest held by FNMA constitutes an exercise of state power over property
of the United States.

Neither the Authority nor the District have undertaken to determine whether any federal
governmental entity currently has, or is likely to acquire, any interest (including a mortgage interest) in
any of the parcels subject to the Special Taxes within the Improvement Area, and therefore expresses no

view concerning the likelihood that the risks desuibed above will materialize while the Bonds are

outstanding.

In the event that any financial institution making any loan which is secured by real property
within the Improvement Area is taken over by the FDIC, and prior thereto or thereafter the loan or loans

go into default, then the ability of the Authority to collect interest and penalties specified by State law and

to foreclose the lien of delinquent unpaid Special Taxes may be limited.

70

Page 404

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The FDIC's policy statement regarding the payment of state and local real property taxes (the

"Policy Statement") provides that property owned by the FDIC is subject to state and local real property

taxes only if those taxes are assessed according to the property's value, and that the FDIC is immune from

real property taxes assessed on any basis other than properly value. According to the Policy Statement,

tne pntb *ilt puy its property tax obligations when they become due and payable and will pay claims for

delinquent prodrry taxes as promptly as is consistent with sound business practice and the orderly

administrati,on bf the institution's affairs, unless abandonment of the FDIC's interest in the property is

appropriate. The FDIC will pay claims for interest on delinquent property taxes owed at the rate provided

undeistate law, to the extent the interest payment obligation is secured by a valid lien. The FDIC will not

pay any amounts in the nature of fines or penalties and will not pay nor recognize liens for such amounts.

if uny property taxes (including interest) on FDIC-owned property are secured by a valid lien (in effect

befoie the-property became owned by the FDIC), the FDIC will pay those claims' The Policy Statement

further p.ouiair that no property of the FDIC is subject to levy, attachment, garnishment, foreclosure or

sale without the FDIC's conient. In addition, the FDIC will not permit a lien or security interest held by

the FDIC to be eliminated by foreclosure without the FDIC's consent.

The Policy Statement states that the FDIC generally will not pay non-ad valorem taxes, including

special assessments, on property in which it has a fee interest unless the amount of tax is fixed at the time

that the FDIC acquir"r itr fee interest in the propetty, nor will it recognize the validity of any lien to the

extent it purports to secure the payment of any such amounts. Special taxes imposed under the Mello-

Roos Aci uttd u special tax formula which determines the special tax due each year are specifically

identified in the folicy Statement as being imposed each year and therefore covered by the FDIC's

federal immunity. The Ninth Circuit has issued a ruling on August 28,2001, in which it determined that

the FDIC, as a federal agency, is exempt from Mello-Roos special taxes. According to information

available from the Sacramento County assessment roll, the FDIC does not currently own any of the

property in the Improvement Area.

The Authority and the District are unable to predict what effect the application of the Policy

Statement would have in the event of a delinquency in the payment of Special Taxes on a parcel within

the Improvement Area in which the FDIC has or obtains an interest, although prohibiting the lien of the

FDIC io be foreclosed out at a judicial foreclosure sale could reduce or eliminate the number of persons

willing to purchase a parcel at foreclosure sale. Such an outcome could cause a draw on the reserve

uc"ourrt foi the Local Obligations and perhaps, ultimately, if enough property were to become owned by

the FDIC, a default in payment on the Local Obligations and the Bonds.

Zoning and Land Use Decisions

The Special Taxes, from which funds for the payment of the Bonds are derived, are to be levied

annually based upon the land use categories in effect for the property. Decisions made by the City

Councii, which has control over zoning and land use decisions for property in the City, will affect the

prospective use of the propeffy and, therefore, the tax base for the Special Tax. The Amended Rate and

Method of Apportionment does not permit land use changes to reduce the tax base to below the Special

Tax Requirement.

Ballot Initiatives and Measures

From time to time constitutional initiatives or other initiative measures may be adopted by State

voters or voters of the City. For example, Measure W, adopted by City residents in Novembet 2004,

required, among other things, that residents north of State Highway 50 not bear the cost for infrastructure

and public facilities serving the Folsom Plan Area. The adoption of any such initiative in the future might
place limitations on the ability of the State or any political subdivisions thereof, including the Authority

7l

Page 405

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



or the City, to increase revenues or to increase appropriations, the ability of the landowners to complete
their developments, or the ability of the District to collect the Special Tax.

Shapiro v. San Diego

On August 7, 2014, the California Court of Appeal, Fourth Appellate District, Division One,

issued its opinion in Shapiro v. San Diego City Council,777 Cal. Rptr. 2d 631,96 Cal. App. 4th 904
(2002). The case involved a Convention Center Facilities District (the "CCFD") established by the City
of San Diego, much like a community facilities district established under the provisions of the Mello-
Roos Act. The CCFD is comprised of all of the real property in all of the City of San Diego. However,
the special tax to be levied within the CCFD was to be levied only on hotel properties.

At the election to authorize such special tax, the electorate was limited to owners of hotel
properties and lessees of certain of such hotel properties. Thus, the election was a landowner election
limited to owners and lessees of properties on which the special tax would be levied, and not a registered
voter election. Such approach to determining who would constitute the qualified electors of the CCFD
was based on Section 53326(c) of the Mello-Roos Ac! which generally provides that, if a special tax will
not be apportioned in any taxyear on residential property, the legislative body may provide that the vote
shall be by the landowners of the proposed district whose property would be subject to the special tax.
The Court held that the CCFD special tax election was invalid under the Califomia Constitution because

Article XIII A, Section 4 thereof and Article XIII C, Section 2 thereof require that the electors in such an

election be the registered voters within the district.

In the case of the CCFD, at the time of the election there were many, many registered voters
within the CCFD (viz, all of the registered voters in the City of San Diego). There were no registered
voters within the Improvement Area at the time of the election to authorize the Special Tax. In City of
San Diego, the Court expressly stated that it was not addressing the validity of landowner voting to
impose special taxes pursuant to the Mello-Roos Act in situations where there are fewer than 12

registered voters. Thus, by its terms, the Court's holding does not apply to the Special Tax election in the

Improvement Area. Moreover, Section 5334I of the Mello-Roos Act provides that any "action or
proceeding to attack, review, set aside, void or annul the levy of a special tax...shall be commenced
within 30 days after the special tax is approved by the voters." The Special Tax with respect to the

Improvement Area was approved by the voters on May 26,2020. Based on Section 53341 of the Mello-
Roos Act and its analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, the District does not
believe that a challenge to the Special Tax may now be brought.

Recent Changes to Federal Income Tax Law

H.R. 1 of the 115th U.S. Congress was enacted into law on December 22,2017 (the "Tax Act").
The Tax Act makes significant changes to many aspects of the Code. The District, the City, the Authority
and the Developer cannot predict the effect that the Tax Act may have on the cost of home ownership, the
price of homes in the Improvement Area, the rate at which homes in the Improvement Area are sold to
individual homeowners by the Developer, the ability or willingness of homeowners to pay Special Tax or
property taxes on Taxable Property within the Improvement Area, or the values contained in this Official
Statement or in the Appraisal.

Risks of Real Estate Secured fnvestments Generally

The owners of the Bonds will be subject to the risks generally incident to an investment secured

by real estate, including, without limitation, (i) adverse changes in local market conditions, such as

changes in the market value of real property in the vicinity of Improvement Area, the supply of or

72

Page 406

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



demand for competitive properties in such area, and the market value of residential property or buildings

and/or sites in the event of sale or foreclosure, including as a result of tax reform; (ii) changes in real

estate tax rates and other operating expenses, governmental rules (including, without limitation, zoning

laws and laws relating to endangered species andhazardous materials) and fiscal policies; (iii) increased

construction costs, workforce shortages, supply chain disruptions or other similar factors affecting the

development, financing or marketing capabilities of the Developer; (iv) federal, state and local

regulaiions, including environmental, land use, zoning and building requirements; and (v) natural

disasters (including, without limitation, earthquakes, fires and floods), which may result in uninsured

losses. There can be no assurance that land development operations within the Improvement Area will
not be adversely affected by these risks.

No assurance can be given that the Developer or any other current or future homeowners within
the Improvement Area will pay the Special Tax in the future or that they will be able to pay such Special

Tax on a timely basis. gse (c- Bankruptcy" below, for a discussion of certain limitations on the

District's ability to pursue judicial proceedings with respect to delinquent parcels. Further, many homes

within the Improvement Area will have a higher-than-average price point as compared to other homes in

the region, which may impact the absorption of the residential units within the Improvement Area.

Current Challenges to the Ilomebuilding Industry

The pace of homebuilding in the Improvement Area may be adversely affected by a variety of
factors, including changes in economic conditions, interest rates, water shortages, and other similar

factors, and recently including workforce shortages and supply chain disruptions. For example, obtaining

garage doors and window shortages have recently been challenging for home builders generally'

Additionally, some California municipalities have been experiencing a supply chain disruption for the

electrical transformers needed for new development, having been advised in some cases of up to a2-yeat
delay for new orders. The Developer is not currently aware of any anticipated electrical transformer

supply chain disruptions for the development within the Improvement Area. However, no assurance can

Ue given that supply chain disruptions for the materials needed to complete development within the

Improvement Area will not occur.

Failure to Develop

Land development operations are subject to comprehensive federal, State and local regulations.

Approval is required from various agencies in connection with the layout and design of developments, the

nuture and extent of improvements, construction activity, land use, zoning, school and health

requirements, as well as numerous other matters. It is possible that the approvals necessary to complete

development of all taxable property within the Improvement Area are not obtained on a timely basis or

that litigation could be filed regarding approvals. Failure to obtain any such agency approval or satisff
any such government requirement or any litigation concerning such agency approval or government

requirement could adversely affect land development operations. In addition, current and future

governmental restrictions, including, but not limited to, governmental policies restricting or controlling

development within the Improvement Area, could be enacted, and future land use initiatives approved by

the voters in the City could add more restrictions and requirements on development within the

Improvement Area, which restrictions may increase the cost to develop the Improvement Area. One such

governmental restriction is the requirement to install rooftop photovoltaic solar systems for residential

buildings under three stories constructed starting in2020. Costs associated with the installation of solar

to the homebuilders may reduce the willingness of homebuilders to construct homes and increased costs

of those homes may decrease the willingness of homeowners to buy such homes.

73

Page 407

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Moreover, there can be no assurance that the means and incentive to conduct land development
operations within the Improvement Area will not be adversely affected by a deterioration of the real estate

market or economic conditions generally, future local, State and federal governmental policies relating to
real estate development, the income tax treatment of real property ownership, acts of war or terrorism, or
other factors.

A portion of the Taxable Property in the Improvement Area is presently being developed.
Undeveloped property is less valuable per acre than developed property, especially if there are no plans to
develop such property or if there are severe restrictions on the development of such property, and
therefore provides less security to the owners of the Bonds should it be necessary for the District to
foreclose due to the nonpayment of the Special Taxes. Delays in any propefiy owner's ability to obtain
discretionary approvals (including any delays caused by litigation) would in turn delay the construction of
improvements and development of the Taxable Property within the Improvement Area. Furthermore, an
inability to develop the land within the Improvement Area as currently proposed would result in slower
rates of diversification of properly ownership within the Improvement Area. Concentration of ownership
increases the risk of a failure to collect suffrcient Special Taxes to pay debt service on the Bonds, all other
things being equal. The timely payment of Special Taxes levied on undeveloped property depends
primarily upon the ability and willingness of owners of such properly to pay such taxes when due.
Certain infrastructure improvements are required before development in the Improvement Area can
progress intract. The Phase 2 water infrastructure described under the heading "PROPOSED
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Entitlements-Water Supply" is anticipated to be needed
before approximately 2,500 to 3,300 homes are occupied in the Folsom Plan Area. A slowdown in or
cessation of the development of land within the Improvement Area could reduce the ability and
willingness of such owners to make Special Tax payments, and could greatly reduce the value of such
property in the event it has to be foreclosed upon to collect delinquent special taxes, See '(-S4nlffupfsy"
above for a discussion of certain limitations on the ability of the District to pursue judicial foreclosure
proceedings with respect to taxpayers with delinquent Special Taxes.

No Independent Review of Valuation or Viability of Completed Projects

Properly within the Improvement Area is comprised of separate and distinct projects as described
above. Payment of Special Taxes are inherently dependent upon the development within the
Improvement Area, and, with respect to residential properties, the ability of the buyers of completed
homes to pay. The Authorrty, the District, and the Underwriter have not reviewed any business plan for
continued ownership, development and/or operation of the property within the Improvement Area.
Similarly, the Authority, the District and the Underwriter have not conducted any independent evaluation
of the existing or projected economic viability or profitability of any of the plans for development,
including review andlor evaluation of financial statements of any owner or developer of any parcel
subject to the Special Tax. The information contained herein regarding the proposed development and the
owners of the parcels within the Improvement Area has been supplied by such owners and the
Underwriter has not independently verified, makes no representation regarding, and does not accept any
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of such information.

In the event an owner or developer experiences financial difficulties, including difficulties
resulting from construction or operation of the development within the Improvement Area, the value of
the affected parcel within the Improvement Area may decline andlor such owner or developer may elect
to refrain from payment of future Special Taxes for such parcel. See also "-Failure to Develop."

74

Page 408

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Potential Impact of Gtobal Health Crises or Concerns

The ability or willingness of property owners to develop property in the Improvement Area, the

speed at which property o*ni.r develop property in the Improvement Area, the ability or willingness of
property owners to seliproperty in the Improvement Area, the speed at which property owners are ablg

sef property in the Impioviment Area, the ability or willingness of property owners to pay the Special

Tax on property in the Improvement Area when due, the value of the property in the Improvement Area,

or the *ifity of tn" District to collect delinquent Special Taxes through judicial foreclosure could be

adversely afiected by a global, national or localized outbreak of an infectious disease, such as COVID-19,

a new strain of 
"o.onuuirrrr, 

or by the fear of such an outbreak. The construction industry in the United

States relies heavily on international trade for myriad construction materials. A global, national or

localized outbreak could impact the availability of workers in countries producing construction materials,

potentially resulting in supply chain shutdowns, which may result in substantial construction delays and

project cost overruns.

The spread of COVID-19 and the response to its spread has altered the behavior of businesses and

people in a manner that has had and is continuing to have a negative impact on global and local

""ono*i"s, 
and which has resulted in a volatile stock market response and a general disruption of

financial markets in the United States and globally. In response to CoVID-19, California instituted a

statewide stay-at-home order and many California counties issued similar orders. While many COVID 19

restrictions in California and its various counties have ceased or been eased, the same or additional

restrictions could be reinstituted if the outbreak again worsens, due to the currently increasing spread of
any variant of COVID-|9, or otherwise, or another similar event occurs. Essential services, including

housing construction, were generally exempt from the orders and continued during the pandemic.

Howevir, the economic and financial impacts of the stay-at-home orders and the economic downturn

related to COVID-i9 are predicted to last for multiple years. Executive and legislative efforts have also

been made during the COVID-l9 pandemic and may be made again in the future that either require or

allow county tax collectors to cancel or waive penalties, costs and other charges associated with the

delinquent payment of property taxes and the Special Tax upon a showing of property owner hardship

"u.rr"i 
by the COVID-L9 pandemic or related or similar stay-at-home orders. These efforts may affect a

property owner's willingness to pay the Special Taxes before they are delinquent.

These events and other factors resulting from such an outbreak, particularly if prolonged, could

result in, or increase the likelihood of, the occurrence of certain of the other potential adverse effects

described in this Official Statement, including those relating to declines in the value of property, the

failure to complete the development of property, the inability to sell, lease and/or operate properly, the

inability or unwillingness to pay the Special Tax, and delays in (or insufficient funds received from) the

collecti,on of delinquent Special Taxes through judicial foreclosure. A future outbreak of COVID-19 or

another infectious dir"u.e or the threat of any such outbreak could have similar or additional adverse

effects. The Authority cannot predict the ultimate effects of the COVID-l9 outbreak or any future

outbreak or potential future outbreak ofan infectious disease, or whether any such effects would have a

material adverse effect on the ability to develop the Improvement Area as planned, the ability or

willingness of property owners to pay Special Taxes when due, or the ability of the Authority to pay debt

service on the Bonds when due.

Geologic, Topographic and Climatic Conditions

The value of the property in the Improvement Area in the future can be adversely affected by a

variety of additional faitori, particularly those which may affect infrastructure and other public

improvements and private improvements on propefi and the continued habitability and enjoyment of
such private improviments. Such additional factors include, without limitation, geologic conditions such

75

Page 409

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



as earthquakes, topographic conditions such as earth movements, landslides and floods and climatic

conditions such as droughts and wildfire.

The occurrence of seismic activity in the Improvement Area could result in substantial damage to

properties in the Improvement Area which, in turn, could substantially reduce the value of such properties

and could affect the ability or willingness of the property owners to pay the Special Tax on their propefty.

The Improvement Area is not located in any existing special study zone delineated by the Chief of the

Division of Mines and Geology of the State of California as an area of known active faults and is not

otherwise known to be located within an area of any significant seismic activity. However, it may be

expected that one or more of such conditions may occur and may result in damage to improvements of
varying seriousness, that the damage may entail significant repair or replacement costs and that repair or

replacement may never occur either because of the cost or because repair or replacement will not facilitate

habitability or other use, or because other considerations preclude such repair or replacement. Under any

of these circumstances, the value of the property may decline.

In recent years, wildfires have caused extensive damage throughout the State. In some instances,

entire neighborhoods have been destroyed. Several ofthe fires that occurred in recent years damaged or

destroyed properly in areas that were not previously considered to be at risk from such events. Some

commentators believe that climate change will lead to even more frequent and more damaging wildfires
in the future. In general, property damage due to wildfire could result in a significant decrease in the

market value of property in the Improvement Area and in the ability or willingness of property owners to

pay Special Taxes.

The Improvement Area is located within an area identified as a moderate ftre hazard severity

zone. More information regarding Fire Hazard Severity Zones can be found at the California Department

of Forestry and Fire Protection website athttps:llfrap.fire.ca.gov, though such website is not incorporated

herein by reference. The development within the Improvement Area is subject to mitigation measures set

forth in a fuel modification plan approved by the City Fire Department. The mitigation measures include,

among others, limitations on the type of vegetation that may be planted within fuel modification zones

established in open space areas along certain portions of the perimeter of the Improvement Area,

minimum setback of structures and inigation requirements of the fuel modification zones. Maintenance

of such zones is expected to initially be the responsibility of the properly owners but upon build-out of the

Improvement Area and dedication of the open space to the City will be maintained by the City from funds

provided through CFD 18. Homeowner's insurance is expected to be available to property owners within
the Improvement Area, and the coverage provided by such insurance typically insures against fire
damage, although there is no assurance that homeowners within the Improvement Area will purchase or

maintain such insurance.

In the event of a wildfire, flood or other natural disaster, there may be significant damage to both

property and infrastructure in the Improvement Area. As a result, a substantial portion of the property

owners may be unable or unwilling to pay the Special Taxes when due. In addition, the value of land in

the Improvement Area could be diminished in the aftermath of such a natural disaster, reducing the

resulting proceeds of foreclosure sales in the event of delinquencies in the payment of the Special Taxes.

Folsom Dam, located on the American River within the jurisdictional boundaries of the City, was

built in 1955 by the United States Army Corps of Engineers and is owned by the United States Bureau of
Reclamation. An auxiliary spillway to enable the dam to more easily release water as it nears capacity

was completed by the Army Corps of Engineers in October 2017. The City, together with the County and

other local agencies, have established a hazard mitigation plan in the event of a dam failure. Geologic,

topographic and climatic conditions, if severe, could result in damage to the dam which could further

76

Page 410

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



cause damage to the sumounding region and may limit water supply for the City and the Improvement
Area.

Endangered Species

During recent years, there has been an increase in activity at the State of California and federal
level related to the possible listing of certain plant and animal species found in California as endangered
species. An increase in the number of endangered species is expected to curtail development in a number
of areas. The property within the Improvement Area contains protected habitat and species, including but
not limited to Swainson's hawk and tri-colored blackbird foraging habitats and wetlands regulated by
state and federal agencies. Foraging habitat mitigation credits have been satisfied by the Developer for all
backbone projects and all Improvement Area project phases. At present, the property within the
Improvement Area is not known to be inhabited by any other plant or animal species listed as threatened
or endangered under either the State or federal endangered species acts or which either the Califomia Fish
and Game Commission or the United States Fish and Wildlife Service has proposed for addition to the
respective endangered species list. Notwithstanding this fact, new species are proposed to be added to the
State and federal protected lists on a regular basis. Any action by the State or federal governments to
protect species located on or adjacent to undeveloped property could negatively affect the developer's
ability to complete development as planned. This, in turn, could reduce the likelihood of timely payment
of the Special Tax, from which funds for the payment of the Bonds is derived, and would likely reduce
the value of the land and the potential revenues available at a foreclosure sale for delinquent Special
Taxes. See "CERTAIN RISKS TO BONDHOLDERS-Land Values."

Hazardous Substances

While governmental taxes, assessments, and charges are a common claim against the value of a
parcel, other less common claims may be relevant. One of the most serious in terms of the potential
reduction in the value of a parcel in the Improvement Area is a claim with regard to a hazardous
substance. In general, the owners and operators of a parcel may be required by law to remedy conditions
of the parcel relating to releases or threatened releases of hazardous substances. The federal
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, sometimes referred to
as "CERCLA" or the "Superfund Act," is the most well-known and widely applicable of these laws, but
laws with regard to hazardous substances are also stringent and similar. Under many of these laws, the
owner (or operator) is obligated to remedy a hazardous substance condition of properly whether or not the
owner (or operator) has anything to do with creating or handling the hazardous substance. The effect,
therefore, should any of the parcels in the Improvement Area be affected by ahazardous substance is to
reduce the marketability and value of the parcel by the costs of remedying the condition, because the
purchaser, upon becoming owner, will become obligated to remedy the condition just as is the seller.
Further, such liabilities may arise not simply from the existence of a hazardous substance but from the
method of handling it. All of these possibilities could significantly affect the financial and legal liability
of a property owner to develop the affected parcel or other parcels, as well as the value of the property
that is realizable upon a delinquency and foreclosure.

The appraised value of property in the Improvement Area does not take into account the possible
reduction in marketability and value of any of the parcels by reason of the possible liability of the owner
(or operator) for the remedy of a hazardous substance condition of the parcel. While the District is not
aware that the owner (or operator) of any of parcels has such a current liability with respect to any of the
parcels, it is possible that such liabilities do currently exist and that the District is not aware of them.

Further, it is possible that liabilities may arise in the future with respect to any of the parcels
resulting from the existence, currently, on the parcel ofa substance presently classified as hazardous but

77

Page 411

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



which has not been released or the release of which is not presently threatened, or may arise in the future

resulting from the existence, currently, on the parcel of a substance not presently classified as hazardous

but wh[h may in the future be so classified. Further, such liabilities may arise not simply from the

existence of a hazardous substance but from the method of handling it. All of these possibilities could

significantly affect the value of a parcel within the Improvement Area that is realizable upon a
delinquency.

Naturally Occurring Asbestos

California Air Resource Board ("CARB") adopted the Airborne Toxic Control Measure

("ATCM") for Construction, Grading, Quarrying and Surface Mining Operations. This statewide

regulation is applicable to grading or any other projects disturbing soil in areas of California where

asbestos may exist, as determined by the California Geological Survey ("CGS"). The ATCM applies to

any size construction project although there are additional notification requirements for projects that

exceed one acre. Areas and parcels moderately likely to contain naturally occurring asbestos are located

in the eastern parts of Sacramento County, including in the City.

Natural weathering or human disturbance can break the asbestiform minerals down to
microscopic fibers, which are easily suspended in air. There is no health threat if asbestos fibers in soil

remain undisturbed and do not become airborne. When inhaled, these thin fibers irritate tissues and resist

the body's natural defenses. Asbestos causes cancers of the lung (such as mesothelioma) and the lining of
internal organs, asbestosis, and other diseases that inhibit lung function. Scientists consider certain types

of asbestos fibers (i.e., tremolite fibers and similarly structured amphibole asbestos particles) that are

frequently identified in the City to be more potent than other types in causing mesothelioma.

The EIR for the Folsom Plan Area required all new development to undertake a site investigation

to determine the presence of naturally occurring asbestos and, if necessary, prepare and implement an

asbestos dust control plan. The Developer has undertaken an asbestos dust control plan with respect to

development within the Improvement Area and the costs of development in this Official Statement reflect

the costs associated with asbestos mitigation.

The health concerns associated with the presence of naturally occurring asbestos in the

Improvement Area may adversely affect the marketability of property in the area.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the Bonds, the Local Obligations and certain other legal matters are subject to the

approving legal opinion of Onick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority ("Bond

Counsel"). Bond Counsel has not undertaken any responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or

fairness of this Official Statement and expresses no opinion as to the matters set forth herein. Certain

legal matters will be passed upon for the District and the Authority by the City Attorney. Certain legal

matters relating to the Local Obligations will be passed upon by Orrick, Henington & Sutcliffe LLP, as

bond counsel to the District. The fees of Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel are contingent upon the

issuance ofthe Bonds.

TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and

court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, the accuracy of certain representations and

compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal

income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") and is exempt

78

Page 412

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



from State of California personal income taxes. Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on
the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. Bond
Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or
disposition of, or the amount, accrual, or receipt of interest on, the Bonds. A complete copy of the
proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth as APPENDIX E hereto.

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at
maturity of such Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the
term of such Bonds), the difference constitutes "original issue discount," the accrual of which, to the
extent properly allocable to each Beneficial Owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Bonds which is
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and exempt from State of California
personal income taxes. For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Bonds is the first
price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond
houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement
agents or wholesalers). The original issue discount with respect to any maturity of the Bonds accrues
daily over the term to maturity of such Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded
semiannually (with straight-line interpolations between compounding dates). The accruing original issue
discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition
(including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds. Beneficial Owners of the Bonds
should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Bonds with
original issue discount, including the treatment of Beneficial Owners who do not purchase such Bonds in
the original offering to the public at the first price at which a substantial amount of such Bonds is sold to
the public.

Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount higher than their
principal amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) ("Premium Bonds") will
be treated as having amortizable bond premium. No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond
premium in the case of bonds, like the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes. However, the amount of tax-exempt interest received, and a
Beneficial Owner's basis in a Premium Bond, will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond
premium properly allocable to such Beneficial Owner. Beneficial Owners of Premium Bonds should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond premium in their
particular circumstances.

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from
gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Bonds. The
Authority, the City and the District have made certain representations and covenanted to comply with
certain restrictions, conditions and requirements designed to ensure that interest on the Bonds will not be
included in federal gross income. Inaccuracy of these representations or failure to comply with these
covenants may result in interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax
purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel
assumes the accuracy of these representations and compliance with these covenants. Bond Counsel has
not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken), or events
occurring (or not occurring), or any other matters coming to Bond Counsel's attention after the date of
issuance of the Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds.
Accordingly, the opinion of Bond Counsel is not intended to, and may not, be relied upon in connection
with any such actions, events or matters.

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal income taxes, the
ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of amounts treated as interest on, the Bonds may

79

Page 413

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



otherwise affect a Beneficial Owner's federal, state or local tax liability. The nature and extent of these

other tax consequences depends upon the particular tax status of the Beneficial Owner or the Beneficial

Owner's other items of income or deduction. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such

other tax consequences.

Current and future legislative proposals, if enacted into law, clarification of the Code or court

decisions may cause interest on the Bonds to be subject, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to

federal income taxation or to be subject to or exempted from state income taxation, or otherwise prevent

Beneficial Owners from realizing the full current benefit of the tax status of such interest. The

introduction or enactment of any such legislative proposals or clarification of the Code or court decisions

may also affect, perhaps significantly, the market price for, or marketability of, the Bonds. Prospective

purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding the potential impact of any

pending or proposed federal or state tax legislation, regulations or litigation, as to which Bond Counsel

expresses no opinion.

The opinion of Bond Counsel is based on current legal authority, covers certain matters not

directly addressed by such authorities, and represents Bond Counsel's judgment as to the proper treatment

of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes. It is not binding on the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS")
or the courts. Furthermore, Bond Counsel cannot give and has not given any opinion or assurance about

the future activities of the Authority, the City or the District, or about the effect of future changes in the

Code, the applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof or the enforcement thereof by the IRS. The

Authority, the City and the District have covenanted, however, to comply with the requirements of the

Code.

Bond Counsel's engagement with respect to the Bonds ends with the issuance of the Bonds, and,

unless separately engaged, Bond Counsel is not obligated to defend the Authority, the City, the District or

the Beneficial Owners regarding the tax-exempt status of the Bonds in the event of an audit examination

by the IRS. Under current procedures, Beneficial Owners would have little, if any, right to participate in
the audit examination process. Moreover, because achieving judicial review in connection with an audit

examination of tax-exempt bonds is difficult, obtaining an independent review of IRS positions with
which the Authority, the City or the District legitimately disagrees, may not be practicable. Any action of
the IRS, including but not limited to selection of the Bonds for audit, or the course or result of such audit,

or an audit of bonds presenting similar tax issues may affect the market price for, or the marketability of,

the Bonds, and may cause the Authority, the City, the District or the Beneficial Owners to incur

significant expense.

Payments on the Bonds generally will be subject to U.S. information reporting and possibly to

"backup withholding." IJnder Section 3406 of the Code and applicable U.S. Treasury Regulations issued

thereunder, a non-corporate Beneficial Owner of Bonds may be subject to backup withholding with
respect to "reportable payments," which include interest paid on the Bonds and the gross proceeds of a

sale, exchange, redemption, retirement or other disposition of the Bonds. The payor will be required to

deduct and withhold the prescribed amounts if (i) the payee fails to furnish a U.S. taxpayer identification

number ("TIN") to the payor in the manner required, (ii) the IRS notifies the payor that the TIN furnished

by the payee is incorrect, (iii) there has been a "notified payee underreporting" described in Section

3a06(c) ofthe Code or (iv) the payee fails to certiff under penalty ofperjury thatthe payee is not subject

to withholding under Section 3a06(a)(1)(C) of the Code. Amounts withheld under the backup

withholding rules may be refunded or credited against a Beneficial Owner's federal income tax liability, if
any, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS. Certain Beneficial Owners

(including among others, corporations and certain tax-exempt organizations) are not subject to backup

withholding. The failure to comply with the backup withholding rules may result in the imposition of
penalties by the IRS.

80

Page 414

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



NO LITIGATION

At the time of delivery of and payment for the Bonds and the Local Obligations, the Authority
and/or the District, as applicable, will certit, that there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or

investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court or regulatory agency, public board or body

pending or threatened against the Authority or the District affecting their existence, or the titles of their

respective officers, or seeking to restrain or to enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the Bonds or the

Local Obligations, the application of the proceeds thereof in accordance with the Trust Agreement, or the

collection or levy of the Special Taxes to pay the principal of and interest on the Local Obligations, or in

any way contesting or affecting the validity or enforceability of the Local Obligations and the Bonds, the

Trust Agreement, the Local Obligations Indenture, the Bond Purchase Contract entered into among the

Authority, the District and the Underwriter or any other applicable agreements or any action of the

Authority or the District contemplated by any of said documents, or in any way contesting the

completeness or accuracy of this Official Statement or any amendment or supplement thereto, or

contesting the powers of the Authority or the District or their authority with respect to the Bonds or the

Local Obligations or any action of the Authority or the District contemplated by any of said documents,

nor, to the knowledge of the Authority, is there any basis therefor.

NO RATING

The Authority has not made, and does not contemplate making, application to any rating agency

for the assignment of a rating to the Bonds. The absence of a rating may significantly adversely affect the

ability of the owner of Bonds to sell such Bonds.

MUNICIPAL ADVISOR

The District has retained Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. as municipal advisor (the

"Municipal Advisor") with respect to the issuance of the Bonds. The Municipal Advisor is not obligated

to undertake, and has not undertaken to make, an independent verification or assume responsibility for the

accuracy, completeness, or fairness of the information contained in this Official Statement.

Compensation of the Municipal Advisor relating to the issuance of the Bonds is contingent upon

the issuance of the Bonds.

UNDERWRITING

The Bonds are being purchased by Piper Sandler & Co. (the "Underwriter") pursuant to a Bond

Purchase Contract (the "Purchase Contract"), by and among the Authority, the District and the

Underwriter. Pursuant to the Purchase Contract, the Underwriter has agreed to purchase all of the Bonds

from the Authority at a purchase price of $ being the aggregate principal amount of the

Bonds of $ fplus/less] [anl a net] original issue [premium/discount] of $- and less

an Underwriter's discount of $ The Underwriter may offer and sell the Bonds to certain

dealers and others at prices lower than the public offering prices set forth on the inside front cover page

hereof.

CONTIIYUING DISCLOSURE

The District

The District has covenanted for the benefit of the Owners to provide certain financial information

and operating data relating to the Bonds by not later than nine months following the end of the District's

81

Page 415

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



fiscal year (which fiscal year currently ends June 30) commencing with the report for the 202I-22 Fiscal

Year (the "Annual Repoft"), which is due April 1, 2023, and to provide notices of the occurrence of
certain enumerated events. The Annual Report and the notices of enumerated events will be filed with
EMMA, and the first Annual Report may include the filing of or reference to this Official Statement. The

specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Report or the notices of enumerated

EVENTS iS CONtAiNCd WithiN APPENDIX D-"FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
UNDERTAKINGS." These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying
with S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12(bX5).

The District is committed to complete and accurate continuing disclosure in accordance with its
continuing disclosure obligations under the federal securities laws, including rules and regulations
promulgated by the SEC and the MSRB, as those rules may be amended from time to time. However,

during the past five years, there was a specific instance where complete and accurate disclosure was not
achieved by the City or its related agencies when a notice of listed event for a ratings upgrade on

October 12, 2018, was not timely filed for certain of the Folsom Public Financing Authority's water
revenue bonds. The description of this instance of non-compliance in this Official Statement is not an

acknowledgement that any such non-compliance was material. Further, the City made a remedial filing to
address this instance of non-compliance and has policies and procedures in place in order to achieve

compliance with its continuing disclosure undertakings.

The Developer

Pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to be executed by the Developer in connection
with the issuance of the Bonds, the Developer will covenant for the benefit of the Bondholders to provide
certain information relating to the Developer and its development within the Improvement Area no later

than March 3l and September 30 in each year, commencing March 31,2023 (the "Disclosure Reports"),
and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events until the obligation to so provide
such information, data and notices is otherwise terminated in accordance with the provisions of such

Continuing Disclosure Certificate. A form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate for the Developer is
included in APPENDIX D-"FORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE LINDERTAKINGS." The

Disclosure Reports are to be filed with EMMA.

The Authority and the District have not considered, or reached any conclusion as to, whether or

not the Developer is an obligated person under the Rule. The Authority takes no responsibility for the

form or content or for the adequacy of the Developer's Continuing Disclosure Certificate for its intended

purpose.

The obligation of the Developer will terminate upon the occurrence of certain events as set forth
in the Developer's Continuing Disclosure Certificate, including at such time as the Developer and its
Affiliates (as defined in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement), in the aggregate, own less than lI44l ot
the residential lots (or land planned to be subdivided into [144] residential lots) within the Improvement
Area subject to the Special Tax.

Prior Continuing Disclosure Compliance: [The Developer's division will be

responsible for compliance with its obligations under the Developer's Continuing Disclosure Certificate.
The Developer represents that, based on a review of prior continuing disclosure obligations fin Northem
California, encompassing the Developer' s divisionl, the Developer has not failed to comply
in any material respect with any previous undertaking by it to provide periodic continuing disclosure
reports or notices of listed events with respect to community facilities dishict or assessment district bond

issues in fNorthern] California within the past five years.l

82

Page 416

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



MISCELLAIIEOUS

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement among the Authority, the

District and the purchasers of the Bonds. Any statements made in this Official Statement involving
matters of opinion or of estimates, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as

representations of fact, and no representation is made that any of the estimates will be realized. The

information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the

delivery of the Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any

implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Authority, the City or the Dishict since the

date hereof.

References are made herein to certain documents and reports which are brief summaries thereof
which do not purport to be complete or definitive and reference is made to such documents and reports for
full and complete statements of the contents thereof. Copies of such documents and reports are available

for inspection at the office of the Finance Director, City of Folsom, City Hall, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom,

California 95630.

83

Page 417

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The execution and delivery of the Official Statement by the Authority and the District has been
duly authorizedby the Board of Directors of the Authority and the City Council, respectively.

FOLSOM RANCH F'INAIICING AUTIIORITY

Treasurer

CITY OF F'OLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DrsTRrcT NO. 23 (FOLSOM RANCTI)

City of Folsom Finance Director

Signature Page to Official Statement
Page 418

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



APPENDIX A

AMEI\DBD RATE, METHOD OF'APPORTIONMENT AND MANNER OF
COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAX

A-l
Page 419

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



APPENDIX B

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INF'ORMATION RELATING TO THE CITY OF FOLSOM

B-1
Page 420

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



APPENDIX C

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS

c-1
Page 421

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



APPENDIX D

F'ORMS OF CONTINUING DISCLOSI]RE UNDERTAKINGS

DISTRICT CONTII\UING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

THIS DISTRICT CONTINUING DISCLOSIIRE CERTIFICATE (this "Disclosure Certificate"),
dated as of 2022, is executed and delivered by the City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District") relative to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the

"Authority") in connection with the issuance by the Authority of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special

Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Trust
Agreement (the "Trust Agreement"), among the Dishict, the Authority and U.S. Bank Trust Company,

National Association (the "Trustee"). The District covenants and agrees as follows.

SECTION 1, Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. The Disclosure Certificate is being executed

and delivered by the Dishict for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in
order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12(bX5).

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Trust Agreement, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section,

the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Report" means any Annual Report provided by the District pursuant to, and as described

in, Sections 3 and 4 hereof.

"Annual Report Date" means the date in each year that is nine months after the end of the

District's fiscal year, which date, as of the date of this Disclosure Certificate, is April 1.

"Dissemination Agent" shall mean NBS, or any successor Dissemination Agent designated in
writing by the District and which has filed with the District a wriffen acceptance of such designation.

"EMMA System" means the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access system, or such other

electronic system designated by the MSRB.

"Financial Obligation" means, for purposes of the Listed Events set out in Section 5(a)(10) and

Section 5(bX7), a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged

as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (iii) guarantee of (i) or
(ii). The term "Financial Obligation" shall not include Municipal Securities (as defined in the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule) has

been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

"Listed Events" means any of the events listed in subsection (a) of Section 5 hereof.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, or any successor thereto.

"Official Statement" means the Official Statement, dated 2022, relating to the

Bonds

"Participating Underwriter" means the original underwriter of the Bonds required to comply with
the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds.

D-1
Page 422

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"Rule" means Rule 15c2-12(bx5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the

Securities Exchange Act of 7934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(u) The District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, provide to the MSRB

through the EMMA System, in an electronic format and accompanied by identifuing information all as

prescribed by the MSRB, an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 hereof,

not later than the Annual Report Date, commencing with the report for the 2021-22 Fiscal Year. The

Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package,

and may include by reference other information as provided in Section 4 hereof; provided, however, that

the audited financial statements of the District may be submitted separately from the balance of the

Annual Report, and later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if not available

by that date. If the District's fiscal year changes, it shall, or shall instruct the Dissemination Agent to,

give notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of Section 5

hereof. The first Annual Report may include the filing of or reference to the Official Statement.

(b) Not later than 15 business days prior to the date specified in subsection (a) of this Section

for the providing of the Annual Report to the MSRB, the District shall provide the Annual Report to the

Dissemination Agent.

(c) If the Dissemination Agent is other than the District, then not later than fifteen (15)

Business Days prior to said date, the District shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent.

If the District is unable to provide the Annual Report to the MSRB by the Annual Report Date, the

Dishict shall send a notice to the MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A to the Disclosure

Certificate.

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall:

(i) provide any Annual Report received by it to the MSRB, as provided herein; and

(ii) file a report with the District certifuing that the Annual Report has been provided
pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate and stating the date it was so provided.

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports. The District's Annual Report shall contain or
incorporate by reference the following:

(a) The District's audited financial statements, if any, prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board. If the District's audited financial statements, if any, are not

available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuant to subsection (a) of Section 3

hereof, the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial statements, and the audited financial

statements, if any, shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when they become available. If
the District's financial statement is included or consolidated with the financial statement for the City of
Folsom (the "Crty"), then the District shall file the City's audited financial statements as its own.

(b) The following information:

(i) The principal amount of Bonds and any bonds secured by Additional Local

Obligations (as defined in the Official Statement) Outstanding as of the December 3l next
preceding the Annual Report Date along with debt service schedules for the Bonds and any bonds

D-2
Page 423

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



secured by Additional Local Obligations (as defined in the Official Statement) Outstanding as of
such date;

(ii) The balance in each reserve account for the Local Obligations, and a statement of
the required bond reserve amount, as of the December 31 next preceding the Annual Report Date;

(iii) The total assessed value of all parcels within the Improvement Area on which the

Special Taxes are levied, as shown on the assessment roll of the Sacramento County Assessor last

equalized prior to the December 31 next preceding the Annual Report Date, and a statement of
assessed value-to-lien ratios therefor based on special tax and assessment debt, either by

individual parcel or by categories (e.g., "below 3i1," "3:l to 4:1" etc');

(iv) The Special Tax delinquency rate for the Improvement Area as of the December

31 next preceding the Annual Report Date; the number of parcels within the Improvement Area

delinquent in payment of special taxes as of the December 31 next preceding the Annual Report

Date; the amount of each delinquency; the length of time delinquent and the date on which
foreclosure was commenced, or similar information pertaining to delinquencies deemed

appropriate by the District; provided, however, that parcels with aggregate delinquencies of
$1,000 or less (excluding penalties and interest) may be grouped together and such information

may be provided by category;

(v) The status of foreclosure proceedings and a summary of the results of any

foreclosure sales in the Improvement Area as of the December 31 next preceding the Annual

Report Date;

(vi) The identity of any property owner, representing more than 5%o of the Special

Tax levy, delinquent in payment of special taxes as of the December 31 next preceding the

Annual Report Date;

(vii) All tentative and final maps approved and/or recorded within the Improvement

Area, describing the gross acres, the planned commercial acres and the number and type of
planned residential dwelling units;

(viii) The number of new building permits issued and a description of the purpose of
such permits (e.g., new single-family, new multi-family, new commercial, new industrial);

(ix) A land ownership summary listing the top ten Special Tax payers for the

Improvement Area, as shown on the assessment roll of the Sacramento County Assessor last

equalized prior to the December 31 next preceding the Annual Report Date; and

(x) For the current Fiscal Year, the amount of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax, the Maximum Special Tax, the actual Facilities Special Tax

levied within the Improvement Area and the actual Special Tax levied within the Improvement

Area, with such amounts reported separately for Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map

Property and Large Lot Property; provided, however, that once all Taxable Property within the

Improvement Area is Developed Property, the Maximum Special Tax and the actual Facilities

Special Tax and the actual Special Tax levied may each be shown on an aggregate basis in the

Annual Report. For the purposes of this subparagraph (x), all capitalized terms used but not

otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Amended Rate and

Method of Apportionment for the Improvement Area.

D-3
Page 424

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



In addition to any of the information expressly required to be provided under this Section, as set

forth above, the District shall provide such further information, if any, as may be necessary to make the

specifically required statements, in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, not
misleading.

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents,
including official statements of debt issues of the District or related public entities, which have been

submitted to the MSRB through the EMMA System. The District shall clearly identiff each such other

document so included by reference.

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the District shall give notice, or cause notice to
be given, not less than ten Business Days after the occurrence of any of the following events with respect

to the Bonds:

(D Principal and interest payment delinquencies.

(iD Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties.

(iii) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties.

(iv) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform.

(v) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed

or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue IRS Form 5701 TEB) or other
material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material
events affecting the tax-exempt status of the security.

(vi) Defeasances.

(vii) Tender offers.

(viii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person.

Note: For the purposes of the event identified in subparagraph (ix), the event is
considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a
receiver, trustee or similar officer for an obligated person in a proceeding under
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law
in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person, or if such
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governmental body and

officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a
court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of
rcorganization, €urangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority
having supervision orjurisdiction over substantially all ofthe assets or business

of the obligated person.

(ix) Rating changes.

D-4
Page 425

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(x) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms or other

similar events under the terms of a financial Obligation of the District, any of which reflect

financial difficulties,

(b) The District shall give notice, or cause notice to be given, not less than ten Business Days

after the occurence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material:

(D Modifications to rights of Bond holders.

(ii) Bond calls.

(iii) Release, substitution or sale of properly securing repayment of the Bonds.

(iv) Non-paymentrelateddefaults.

(v) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an

obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other

than in the ordinary. course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an

action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than

pursuant to its terms.

(vi) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee.

(viD Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the District, or agreement to covenants,

events of default, remedies, priority rights, or similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the District, any

of which affect Bondholders.

(c) Whenever the District obtains knowledge of the occuffence of a Listed Event described

in subsection (b) above, the District shall determine if such event would be material under applicable

federal securities laws.

(d) If the District learns of the occuffence of a Listed Event described in subsection (a) of
this Section, or determines that knowledge of a Listed Event described in subsection (b) of this Section

would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the Dishict shall notiff the Dissemination

Agent thereof in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to

subsection (e) of this Section. If in response to a request under subsection (b) of this Section, the District

determines that the Listed Event would not be material under applicable Federal securities law, the

District shall so notiff the Dissemination Agent in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent not to

report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (e) ofthis Section.

(e) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the District to report the occurrence of
a Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such occuffence with the MSRB through the

EMMA System. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in paragraph (vii) of
subsection (a) ofthis Section and paragraph (ii) ofsubsection (b) ofthis Section need not be given under

this subsection any earlier than the notice (ifany) ofthe underlying event is given to holders ofaffected
Bonds pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The District's obligations under this

Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all

of the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the District shall give

D-5
Page 426

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of Section 5

hereof.

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent. The District may, from time to time, appoint or engage a

Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may
discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.
The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report
prepared by the District pursuant to the Disclosure Certificate.

SECTION 8. Amendmenl Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the District may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure
Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) if the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of subsection (a) of Section 3 hereof,
Section 4 hereof or subsections (a) and (b) of Section 5 hereof, it may only be made in connection with a
change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the
identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or type of business conducted;

(b) the undertakings herein, as proposed to be amended or waived, would, in the opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the
primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as

well as any change in circumstances; and

(c) the proposed amendment or waiver (i) is approved by Owners of the Bonds in the manner
provided in the Trust Agreement for amendments to the Trust Agreement with the consent of Owners, or
(ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of
Owners or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

If the annual financial information or operating data to be provided in the Annual Report is
amended pursuant to the provisions hereof, the annual financial information containing the amended
operating data or financial information shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment
and the impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial information being provided.

If an amendment is made to the undertaking specifuing the accounting principles to be followed
in preparing financial statements, the annual financial information for the year in which the change is
made shall present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis of
the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. The
comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the
impact of the change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial statements or
information, in order to provide information to investors to enable them to evaluate the ability of the
District to meet its obligations. To the extent reasonably feasible, the comparison shall be quantitative. A
notice of the change in the accounting principles shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event
under subsection (e) ofSection 5 hereof.

SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to
prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth
in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in
any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this
Disclosure Certificate. If the District chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice
of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure

D-6
Page 427

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Certificate, the District shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Certificate to update such

information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

SECTION 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the District or the Dissemination Agent to
comply with any provision of this Disclosure Certificate, any Holder or Beneficial Owner of outstanding

Bonds may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific
performance by court order, to cause the District to comply with its obligations under the Disclosure

Certificate. A default under the Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the

Trust Agreement, and the sole remedy under the Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the

District to comply with the Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

SECTION 11. Duties" Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination
Agent shall be entitled to the protections and limitations from liability afforded to the Trustee under the

Trust Agreement. The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible for the form or content of any

Annual Report or notice of Listed Event. The Dissemination Agent shall receive reasonable

compensation for its services provided under this Disclosure Certificate. The Dissemination Agent shall

have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate, and the District agrees to
indemnifr and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless

against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or
performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including attorneys'

fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's
negligence or willful misconduct. The obligations of the District under this Section shall survive

resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.

SECTION 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the

District, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and Owners and Beneficial Owners from
time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

SECTION 13. Counterparts. This Disclosure Certificate may be executed in several

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same

instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District has executed this Disclosure Certificate as of the date first
above written.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMM'UNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

G'OLSOM RANCTT)

By

D-7
Page 428

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



EXHIBIT A

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE AI\ITUAL REPORT

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthorityName of Issuer:

Name of Issue: Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 2022

Date of Issuance: 2022

NOTICE IS TIEREBY GIVEN that the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named
Bonds as required by Section 3 of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, dated 2022,
executed by the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the above-referenced
bonds. [The Dishict anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by

Dated

CITY OF F'OLSOM COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCTT)

By:
Finance Director of the City of Folsom

l

D-8
Page 429

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



CONTII\UING DISCLOSURE CERTIF'ICATE - HOME BUILDER

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate - Home Builder (the "Disclosure Certificate") dated as of
, 2022, is executed and delivered by Toll West Inc., a Delaware corporation (the

"Developer") in connection with the issuance of $ aggregate principal amount of Folsom
Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 (the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being
issued pursuant to a Trust Agreement, dated as of August I,2022 (the "Trust Agreement"), among the
Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Issuer"), the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.
23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District") and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as hustee (the
"Trustee").

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being
executed and delivered by the Developer for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the
Bonds. The Developer acknowledges that the Issuer and the District have undertaken no responsibility
with respect to any reports, notices or disclosures provided or required under this Disclosure Certificate,
and has no liability to any person, including any holder or beneficial owner of the Bonds, with respect to
this Disclosure Certificate.

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Trust Agreement, which
apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined herein, the
following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

"Afftliate" shall mean, with respect to the Developer, any person directly (or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries) that exercises managerial control over the Developer or that is under
managerial control of the Developer, and about whom information could be material to potential investors
in their investment decision regarding the Bonds (including without limitation information relevant to the
proposed development of the Properly, or to the Developer's ability to pay the applicable Special Tax
obligation levied on the Propeffy owned by it when due).

"Assumption Agreement" means an agreement containing terms substantially similar to this
Disclosure Certificate, whereby a Major Developer agrees to provide Semi-Annual Reports and notices of
significant events with respect to the portion of the Property owned by such Major Developer and its
Affiliates, and with respect to the improvements or payments necessary to cause the Planned
Development Stage to be reached that such Major Developer, or an Affiliate thereof, intends or is
obligated (contractually or otherwise) to make or cause to be made.

"Bonds" means the $ Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue
Bonds, Series2022.

"Developer" means Toll West Inc., a Delaware corporation.

"Development Plan" means with respect to a Major Developer, the specific improvements such
Major Developer intends to make, or cause to be made, in order for the Planned Development Stage to be
reached, and the time frame in which such improvements are intended to be made; the Developer's
Development Plan, as of the date hereof, is described in the Official Statement under the caption
"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT-Development Plan and Status of Development."

"Disclosure Certificate" means this Disclosure Certificate as the same may be amended from time

D-9

to time

Page 430

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"Dissemination Agent" means initially, the Developer, and any successor Dissemination Agent
designated in writing by the Developer and which has filed with the District a written acceptance of such

designation.

"District" means City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch), as the

same may be modified by the City Council of the City from time to time.

"Event of Bankruptcy" means, with respect to a Person, that such Person files a petition or
institutes a proceeding under any act or acts, state or federal, dealing with or relating to the subject or
subjects ofbankruptcy or insolvency, or under any amendment ofsuch act or acts, either as a bankrupt or

as an insolvent, or as a debtor, or in any similar capacity, wherein or whereby such Person asks or seeks

or prays to be adjudicated a bankrupt, or is to be discharged from any or all of such Person's debts or
obligations, or offers to such Person's creditors to effect a composition or extension of time to pay such

Person's debts or asks, seeks or prays for reorganization or to effect a plan of reorganization, or for a

readjustment of such Person's debts, or for any other similar relief or if any such petition or any such

proceedings of the same or similar kind or character is filed or instituted or taken against such Person, or
if a receiver of the business or of the property or assets of such Person is appointed by any court, or if
such Person makes a general assignment for the benefit of such Person's creditors.

"Financing Plan" means, with respect to a Major Developer, the method by which such Major
Developer intends to finance its Development Plan, including specific sources of funding for such

Development Plan; the Developer's Financing Plan, as of the date hereof is described in the Official
Statement under the caption "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT - Development Plan of
Finance."

"Improvement Area" means Improvement Area No. 3 of the Dishict.

"Listed Event" means any of the events listed in Section 5 hereof.

"Major Developer" means, as of any date of determination, any owner of land (which owns itself
or through any Affiliates), who owns [144] or more of the residential lots (or land expected to be

subdivided into [44] or more residential lots) in the Improvement Area subject to the Special Tax.

"MSRB" shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board or any other entity designated
or authorized by the Securities and Exchange Commission as a repository of disclosure information.
Until otherwise designated by the MSRB or the Securities and Exchange Commission, filings with the

MSRB are to be made through the Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website of the MSRB,
currently located at http : / / emma. msrb. org.

"Official Statement" means the final, executed Official Statement relating to the Bonds.

"Participating Underwriter" shall mean Piper Sandler & Co., the original underwriter of the
Bonds

"Person" means an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association, a joint stock company,

a trust, any unincorporated organization or a govemment or political subdivision thereof.

"Planned Development Stage" means the stage of development to which the Developer intends to
develop the Property, as described in the Off,rcial Statement, which is the construction of finished homes.

D-10 Page 431

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



o'Properly" means, as of the date of determination, collectively, the real property within the

boundaries of the Improvement Area that (i) is owned by the Developer or any Affiliate thereof and (ii)
the Developer or any Affiliate thereof has sold to a Major Developer who has not assumed the obligations
under this Disclosure Certificate pursuant to an Assumption Agreement. Property as of any date of
determination does not include real property within the boundaries of the Improvement Area that has been

conveyed to individual homeowners or any real properly that is the subject of an Assumption Agreement.

o'semiannual Report" shall mean any Semiannual Report provided by the Developer on or prior to
March 31 and September 30 of each year, commencing with the Semiannual Report due March 31,2023,
pursuant to, and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"special Taxes" means the special taxes levied on the Taxable Property within the Improvement
Area.

"State" shall mean the State of California.

"Taxable Property" means the real property within the boundaries of the Improvement Area that
is not exempt from the Special Taxes authorized to be levied in the Improvement Area.

"Trust Agreement" means the Trust Agreement, dated as of August l, 2022, among the Issuer,

the District and the Trustee, and as fuither amended and supplemented from time to time.

"Trustee" means U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee under the Trust
Agreement, or any successor as trustee.

SECTION 3. Provision of Semiannual Reports. So long as the Developer's obligations
hereunder have not been terminated pursuant to Section 7, the Developer shall, or shall cause the
Dissemination Agent (if the Dissemination Agent is other than the Developer) to, provide to the MSRB a
Semiannual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4, not later than March 31 and

September 30 of each year, commencing March 3I,2023. If, in any year, March 31 or September 30 falls
on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, such deadline shall be extended to the next following business day.
The Semiannual Report must be submitted in electronic format, accompanied by such identiffing
information as is prescribed by the MSRB, and may be submitted as a single document or as separate

documents comprising apackage, and may include by reference other information as provided in Sections
4 or 5 hereof.

SECTION 4. Content of Semiannual Reports. The Developer's Semiannual Report shall
contain or incorporate by reference the following information:

(a) If information regarding such Major Developer has not previously been included in the
Official Statement or a more recently filed Semiannual Report, the Development Plan and Financing Plan
of such Major Developer or, if information regarding such Major Developer has previously been included
in the Official Statement or a more recently filed Semiannual Report, a description of the progress made

in the Development Plan of such Major Developer since the date of such information and a description of
any significant changes in such Development Plan and the Financing Plan and the causes or rationale for
such changes.

(b) Identification of the conveyance by the Developer of any portion of the Property to an

entity that is not an Affiliate of the Developer, the result of which conveyance is to cause such transferee
to become a Major Developer.

(c) The number of building permits issued with respect to the Property

D-l1
Page 432

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(d) The number of residential lots within the Property that have not reached the Planned

Development Stage and sold (closed escrow) by the Developer since the date of the Official Statement or

a more recent Semiannual Report, and, if any such lots were sold to a Major Developer, the identity of the

Major Developer.

(e) The number of finished homes within the Property sold and conveyed to individual

homeowners by the Developer.

(0 Any material amendments to land use entitlements for the Property, if such amendments

would prevent or significantly delay the implementation of the Developer's Development Plan as

described in the Official Statement or a more recently filed Semiannual Report.

The Developer's Semiannual Reports required to be provided under Section 4 hereof must be

filed in accordance with Section 3.

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events. Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the

Developer shall promptly give, or cause to be given, notice of the occuffence of any of the following
events with respect to the Developer:

(a) Any failure of the Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer owning any Property, to
pay prior to delinquency any property taxes or assessments due with respect to the Property (to the extent

the responsibility of the Developer or any such Affiliate), to the extent such failure is not promptly cured

upon discovery thereof.

(b) Any denial or termination of credit, any denial or termination of, or default under, any

line of credit or loan or any other loss of a source of funds that could have a material adverse effect on the

Developer's most recently disclosed Financing Plan or Development Plan or on the ability of the

Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer owning any Property, to pay the Special Taxes with respect

to the Property prior to delinquency (to the extent the responsibility of the Developer or any such

Affiliate).

(c) The occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy with respect to the Developer, or any Affiliate
owning any Property, that could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the

Developer's most recently disclosed Financing Plan or Development Plan or on the ability of the

Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer owning Property, to pay Special Taxes with respect to the

Property prior to delinquency (to the extent the responsibility of the Developer or any such Affiliate).

(d) Any previously undisclosed governmentally-imposed preconditions to commencement or

continuation of development on the Property, if such preconditions would prevent or significantly delay

the Developer's Development Plan as described in the Official Statement or a more recently filed
Semiannual Report.

(e) Any previously undisclosed legislative, administrative or judicial challenges to

development on the Property, if such challenges would prevent or significantly delay the Developer's

Development Plan as described in the Official Statement or a more recently filed Semiannual Report.

Whenever the Developer obtains knowledge of the occulrence of a Listed Event, the Developer

shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal securities

laws. If the Developer determines that knowledge of the occuffence of a Listed Event would be material

under applicable federal securities laws, the Developer shall promptly file a notice of the occurrence of

D-12
Page 433

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



such Listed Event with the MSRB in electronic format, accompanied by such identiffing information as

is prescribed by the MSRB.

SECTION 6. Assumption of Obligations. If any portion of the Properly owned by the
Developer, or any Affiliate of the Developer, is conveyed such that, upon such conveyance, such new
owner will be a Major Developer, the obligations of the Developer under this Disclosure Certificate with
respect to the Property transferred by the Developer shall be assumed by such Major Developer pursuant
to an Assumption Agreement.

SECTION 7. Termination of Reporting Obligation. All of the Developer's obligations under
this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of (a) the legal defeasance, prior
redemption or payment in full of all the Bonds, (b) the date on which (i) the Developer is no longer a
Major Developer, or (i) all of the Developer's obligations are assumed under one or more Assumption
Agreements entered into pursuant to Section 6 hereof, or (iii) the date on which all Special Taxes levied
on the Property owned by the Developer and its Affiliates are paid or prepaid in full. Upon the
occurrence of any such termination prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Developer shall give
notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5 hereof.

SECTION 8. Amendment: Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the
Developer may amend provisions of this Disclosure Certificate and any provision hereof may be waived,
provided that the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3, 4 or 5 hereof, it may
be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements,
change in law; and

(b) The proposed amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by holders of the Bonds in the
manner provided in the Trust Agreement for amendments to the Trust Agreement with the consent of
holders, or (ii) does not, in the opinion of bond counsel approved by the District, materially impair the
interests of the holders or beneficial owners of the Bonds.

SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed
to prevent the Developer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set

forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other
information in any Semiannual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which
is required by this Disclosure Certificate. If the Developer chooses to include any information in any
Semiannual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically
required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Developer shall have no obligation under this Disclosure
Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Semiannual Report or notice of
occuffence of a Listed Event.

SECTION 10. Dissemination Agent. The Developer may, from time to time, appoint or engage
a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and
may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination
Agent. The Dissemination Agent may resign by providing 30 days' written notice to the Developer. The
Developer shall be responsible for paying the fees and expenses of the Dissemination Agent.

SECTION 11. Default. In the event of a failure of the Developer to comply with any provision
of this Disclosure Certificate, any holder or beneficial owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may
be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause

the Developer to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this

D-13 Page 434

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the Trust Agreement, and the sole

remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Developer to comply with this
Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

SECTION 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the

Developer, the Participating Underwriter, the District and holders and beneficial owners from time to time
ofthe Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other Person.

SECTION 13. Notices. Any notices or communications to the Developer and the other parties

described herein may be given as set forth in Exhibit A hereto or such other address that shall be specified
by the Developer or the other parties described herein from time to time.

SECTION 14. Governing Law. This Disclosure Certificate and any dispute arising hereunder

shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Disclosure Certificate as of the day

and year written above.

Toll West Inc., a Delaware Corporation

By

D-t4 Page 435

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



E)GIIBIT A TO CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE - HOME BUILDER

Any notices or communications to the Developer or the other parties described in the Continuing
Disclosure Certificate - Home Builder may be given.as follows:

To the Developer: Toll West Inc.

To the Issuer:

Attention:
Email:
Phone

To the Dissemination
Agent:

Attention:
Email:
Phone:

To the Participating
Underwriter:

Attention:
Email:
Phone:

D-15
Page 436

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



APPEI\DIXE

PROPOSED F'ORM OF'OPINION OF'BOI\D COUNSEL

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
Folsom, California

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 3

Special Tax Revenue Bonds. Series 2022
(Final Opinion)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as bond counsel to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Issuer") in
connection with the issuance of $ aggregate principal amount of Folsom Ranch Financing
Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities Dishict No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 (the o'Bonds"), issued pursuant to the provisions of the Marks-
Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985 (constituting Article 4, Chapter 5, Division T,Trtle I of the
California Government Code) and a trust agreement, dated as of August l, 2022 (the "Trust Agreement"),
among the Issuer, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the
"Community Facilities District") and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (the
"Trustee"). The Trust Agreement provides that the Bonds are issued for the stated purpose of enabling
the Issuer to acquire certain local obligations to be issued by the Community Facilities District.
Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Trust
Agreement.

In such connection, we have reviewed the Trust Agreement; the Tax Certificate, dated the date
hereof (the "Tax Certificate"), executed and delivered by the Issuer, the Community Facilities District and
the City of Folsom; opinions of counsel to the Issuer, the Community Facilities District and the Trustee;
certificates of the Issuer, the Community Facilities District, the Trustee and others; and such other
documents, opinions and matters to the extent we deemed necessary to render the opinions set forth
herein.

The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and
court decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by such authorities. Such opinions may
be affected by actions taken or omitted or events occurring after original delivery of the Bonds on the date
hereof. We have not undertaken to determine, or to inform any person, whether any such actions are

taken or omitted or events do occur or any other matters come to our attention after original delivery of
the Bonds on the date hereof. Accordingly, this letter speaks only as of its date and is not intended to, and
may not, be relied upon or otherwise used in connection with any such actions, events or matters. Our
engagement with respect to the Bonds has concluded with their issuance, and we disclaim any obligation
to update this letter. We have assumed the genuineness of all documents and signatures provided to us
and the due and legal execution and delivery thereofby, and validity against, any parties other than the
Issuer. We have assumed, without undertaking to veriff, the accuracy of the factual matters represented,
warranted or certified in the documents, and of the legal conclusions contained in the opinions, referred to
in the second paragraph hereof. Furthermore, we have assumed compliance with all covenants and
agreements contained in the Trust Agreement and the Tax Certificate, including (without limitation)
covenants and agreements compliance with which is necessary to assure that future actions, omissions or

E-1 Page 437

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



events will not cause interest on the Bonds to be included in grpss income for federal income tax
purposes.

We call affention to the fact that the rights and obligations under the Bonds, the Trust Agreement
and the Tax Certificate and their enforceability may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership,
reorganization, affangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting
creditors' rights, to the application of equitable principles, to the exercise of judicial discretion in
appropriate cases and to the limitations on legal remedies against governmental entities such as the Issuer
and the Community Facilities District in the State of California. We express no opinion with respect to
any indemnification, contribution, liquidated damages, penalty (including any remedy deemed to
constitute or to have the effect of a penalty), right of set-off, arbitration, judicial reference, choice of law,
choice of forum, choice of venue, non-exclusivity of remedies, waiver or severability provisions
contained in the foregoing documents, nor do we express any opinion with respect to the state or qualrty
of title to or interest in any of the assets described in or as subject to the lien of the Trust Agreement or
the accuracy or sufficiency of the description contained therein of, or the remedies available to enforce
liens on, any such assets. Our services did not include financial or other non-legal advice. Finally, we
undertake no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the Official Statement, dated

2022, or other offering material relating to the Bonds and express no opinion or conclusion
with respect thereto.

Based on and subject to the foregoing, and in reliance thereon, as of the date hereof, we are of the
following opinions:

1. The Bonds constitute the valid and binding special, limited obligations of the Issuer

2. The Trust Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by, and constitutes the valid
and binding obligation of, the Issuer. The Trust Agreement creates a valid pledge, to secure the payment
of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, of the Trust Estate, including the Revenues and any other
amounts (including proceeds of the sale of the Bonds) held by the Trustee in the Funds established
pursuant to the Trust Agreement (except the Rebate Fund), subject to the provisions of the Trust
Agreement permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in
the Trust Agreement.

3. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes
under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and is exempt from State of California personal
income taxes. Interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal
alternative minimum tax. We express no opinion regarding other tax consequences related to the
ownership or disposition of; or the amount, accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds.

Faithfully yours,

ORzuCK,I{ERRINGTON & SUTCLIFFE LLP

per

E-2

Page 438

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



APPENDIX F'

DTC AI\ID THE BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

The description that follows of the procedures and recordkeeping with respect to beneficial
ownership interests in the Bonds, payment of principal of, premium, tf any, and interest on the Bonds to

Participants or Beneficial Owners, confirmation and transfer of beneficial ownership interests in the

Bonds, and other related transactions by and between DTC, Participants and Beneficial Owners, is based
on information furnished by DTC which the Authority believes to be reliable, but the Authority does not
take responsibility for the completeness or accuracy thereof. The Authority cannot and does not give any
assurences that DTC, DTC Participants or Indirect Participants will distribute to the Beneficial Owners
either (a) payments of principal, premium, ,f ary, and interest with respect to the Bonds or (b) certificates
representing ownership interests in or other confirmation of ownership interests in the Bonds, or that they
will so do on a timely basis or that DTC, DTC Participants or DTC Indirect Participants will act in the

manner described in this Official Statement. The current "Rules" applicable to DTC are onfile with the

Securities and Exchange Commission and the current "Procedures" of DTC to be followed in dealing
with DTC Participants are onfile with DTC.

The Depository Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for
the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co.
(DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of
DTC. One fully-registered bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. If, however, the aggregate principal
amount of any maturity exceeds $500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500
million of principal amount, and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining
principal amount of such maturity.

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized
under the New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York
Banking La-w, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of
the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions
of Section i7A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over
3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equrty issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money
market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with
DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other
securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and
pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of
securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,

banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company
for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which
are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the
DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,

banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship
with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has a Standard &
Poor's rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and

Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.

F-1

Page 439

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants,
which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual
purchaser of each Bond (the "Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect
Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their
purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of
the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the
Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on
behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership
interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of the Bonds with DTC and their
registration in the name of Cede & Co. (or such other DTC nominee) do not effect any change in
beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's
records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited,
which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain
responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain
steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such
as redemptions, tenders, defaults and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example,
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit
has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may
wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided
directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being
redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in
such maturity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to
the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under
its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authority as soon as possible after the record
date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to
whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus
Proxy).

Principal, redemption price, and interest payments with respect to the Bonds will be made to
Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's
practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail
information from the Authority on a payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on
DTC records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions
and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or
registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC or its
nominee, the Trustee, or the Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in
effect from time to time. Payment of principal, redemption price and interest to Cede & Co. (or such

F-2

Page 440

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the
Authority or the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility
of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct
and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time
by giving reasonable notice to the Authority or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a
successor depository is not obtained, bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The Authority may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through
DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, bond certificates will be printed and delivered
to DTC.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained
from sources that the Authority deems reliable, but the Authority takes no responsibility for the accuracy
thereof.

TTM TRUSTEE, AS LONG AS A BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM IS USED FOR TTM
BONDS, WILL SEND ANY NOTICE OF REDEMPTION OR OTI{ER NOTICES ONLY TO CEDE &
CO., OR ITS SUCCESSOR AS DTC'S PARTNERSHIP NOMINEE. ANY FAILURE OF CEDE &
CO., OR ITS SUCCBSSOR AS DTC'S PARTNERSHIP NOMINEE TO ADVISE A}[Y
PARTICIPANT, OR OF ANY PARTICIPANT TO NOTIFY ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY
NOTICE AND ITS CONTENT OR EFFECT WILL NOT AFFECT TTM VALIDITY OR
SUFFICIENCY OF TFIE PROCEEDINGS RELATING TO TTIE REDEMPTION OF TFIE BONDS
CALLED FOR REDEMPTION OR OF ANY OTI#R ACTION PREMISED ON SUCH NOTICE.

F-3
Page 441

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



APPENDIX G

APPRAISAL

G-1

Page 442

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 6

Page 443

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



OH&S DRAFT
6127122

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3

SPECTAL TAX BONDS, SERTES 2022

LOCAL OBLIGATION PURCHASE CONTRACT

[SALE DATE]

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23
(Folsom Ranch)
City of Folsom, City Hall
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630

Ladies and Gentlemen

The undersigned Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority") offers to
enter into this Local Obligation Purchase Contract (the "Local Obligation Purchase Contract")
with you, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)
(the "Community Facilities District"), which, upon acceptance, will be binding upon the
Community Facilities District and the Authority; and except as otherwise provided herein, all
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings attributed to them in the Indenture, dated
as of Augustl,2022 (the "Indenture"), between the Community Facilities District and U.S. Bank
Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee").

1. Purchase, Sale and Delivery of the Obliealions.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions and in reliance upon the
representations and agreements set forth herein, the Authority hereby agrees to purchase from the
Community Facilities District, and the Community Facilities District hereby agrees to sell to the
Authority, all (but not less than all) of the $ aggregate principal amount of the City
of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3

Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022 (the o'Local Obligations") issued under the Indenture, dated the
date of their initial delivery, bearing interest payable on the dates and at the interest rates, and
maturing on the dates and in the amounts and subject to the optional, extraordinary and
mandatory redemption provisions, as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated
herein.

The purchase price for the Local Obligations shall be $[ l, which purchase
price shall be paid from the proceeds of sale of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of
Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special

4t4t-0872-6328

Page 444

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022, issued under the Trust Agreement, dated as of August 1,2022,
by and among the Authority, the Community Facilities District and U.S. Bank Trust Company,

National Association, as trustee (the "Trust Agreement"), which bonds issued under the Trust
Agreement are referred to herein as the "Authority Bonds."

The Local Obligations shall be substantially in the form described in, shall be

issued and secured under the provisions of, and shall be payable as provided in the Indenture.

(b) At [8:30] a.m., Califomia time, on [CLOSING DATE], or at such earlier

or later time or date as shall be agreed by the Community Facilities District and the Authority
(such time and date being herein referred to as the "Closing Date"), the Community Facilities
District will deliver to the Authority at the offices of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP,
Sacramento, California (or such other location as may be designated by the Authority and

approved by the Community Facilities District) the Local Obligations in definitive forms, duly
executed by the Community Facilities District and authenticated by the Trustee, and will deliver
to the Authority the other documents herein mentioned; and the Authority will accept such

delivery and pay the total purchase price of the Local Obligations as set forth in paragraph (a) of
this section as provided in the Indenture (such delivery and payment being herein referred to as

the "Closing").

2 Reoresentations and Aqreements o the Communitv Facilities District.
The Community Facilities District represents to and agrees with the Authority that:

(a) The Community Facilities District is and will be at the Closing Date duly
organized and existing as a community facilities district under and by virtue of the laws of the

State of California, with full power and authority to issue the Local Obligations and to carry out
and consummate the transactions contemplated by the Local Obligations, this Local Obligation
Purchase Contract, the Indenture and the Trust Agreement (collectively, the "Financing
Documents"), and the Financing Documents are and will be at the Closing Date valid and

binding obligations of the Community Facilities District;

(b) When delivered to and paid for by the Authority at the Closing in
accordance with the provisions of this Local Obligation Purchase Contract, the Local Obligations
will have been duly authorized, executed, issued and delivered and will constitute valid and

binding obligations of the Community Facilities District in conformity with, and entitled to the

benefit and security of, the Indenture;

(c) By official action of the Community Facilities District, prior to or
concurrently with the acceptance hereof, the Community Facilities District has authorized and

approved the execution and delivery of the Financing Documents, and authorized and approved

the performance by the Community Facilities District of the obligations on its part contained in
the Financing Documents and has authorized and approved the consummation by the

Community Facilities District of all other transactions contemplated by this Local Obligation
Purchase Contract;

(d) There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in
equity, before or by any court, governmental agency, public board or body, pending or, to the

2
4t4l-0872-6328

Page 445

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



knowledge of the Community Facilities District, threatened against the Community Facilities
District or its properties or operations (i) seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale,

execution or delivery of the Local Obligations, (ii) in any way contesting or affecting the validity
or enforceability of any of the Financing Documents, any proceedings of the Community
Facilities District taken concerning the issuance or sale of the Local Obligations, the collection
of the special tax securing the Local Obligations (the "Special Tax") or the existence or powers

of the Community Facilities District relating to the issuance of the Local Obligations or (iii)
which, if determined adversely to the Community Facilities District or its interests, would have a

material and adverse effect on the consummation of the transactions contemplated by or the
validity of the Financing Documents or on the operations of the Community Facilities District
with respect to the Local Obligations;

(e) The execution and delivery of the Financing Documents, and the

consummation of the transactions therein and herein contemplated, and the fulfillment of or
compliance with the terms and conditions thereof and hereol will not conflict with or constitute
a violation or breach of or default (with due notice or the passage of time or both) under any

applicable law or administrative rule or regulation, or any applicable court or administrative
decree or order, or any indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, loan agreement, lease, contract or
other agreement or instrument to which the Community Facilities District is a party or by which
it or its properties are otherwise subject or bound, or result in the creation or imposition of any
prohibited lien, charge or encumbrance of any nature whatsoever upon any of the property or
assets of the Community Facilities District, which conflict, violation, breach, default, lien, charge

or encumbrance might have consequences that would materially and adversely affect the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Financing Documents or the operations of
the Community Facilities District with respect to the Local Obligations;

(0 The Community Facilities District is not in breach of or default under any
applicable law or administrative regulation of the State of Califomia or the United States or any

applicable judgment or decree or any loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution,
agreement or other instrument to which the Community Facilities District is a party or is
otherwise subject, which breach or default may have consequences that would materially and

adversely affect the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Financing
Documents, and no event has occurred and is continuing which, with the passage of time or the
giving of notice, or both, would constitute such a breach or default under any such instrument;

(g) All approvals, consents, authorizations, certifications and other orders of
any govemmental authority, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction, and all filings
with any such entities, which would constitute conditions precedent to or the failure to obtain
which would materially adversely affect the performance by the Community Facilities District of
its obligations under the Financing Documents have been duly obtained, and no further consent,

approval, authorization or other action or filing with or by any governmental or regulatory
authority having jurisdiction over the Community Facilities District is or will be required for the
issue and sale of the Local Obligations or the consummation by the Community Facilities
District of the other transactions described in the Financing Documents;

(h) The Special Tax constituting the security for the Local Obligations has

been duly and lawfully authorized under and pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities

J
4141-0872-6328

Page 446

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



District Act of 1982 (the "Act") within Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities
District (the "Improvement Area") and such Special Tax is secured by a valid and legally
binding continuing lien on the land subject to the Special Tax as provided in the Act;

O The City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities District,
has authorized and will annually levy and collect the Special Tax, in addition to amounts

necessary to pay debt service on the Local Obligations, in an amount suffrcient (subject to any

maximum special tax permitted by law) to pay the Expenses arising directly from the

administration or enforcement of the Local Obligations.

The execution and delivery of this Local Obligation Purchase Contract by the
Community Facilities District shall constitute a representation by the Community Facilities
District to the Authority that the representations and agreements contained in this Section 2 are

true as of the date hereof; ploviidgd, that as to all matters of law the Community Facilities District
is relying on the advice of counsel to the Community Facilities District; and provided further,
that no member of the City Council, as legislative body of the Community Facilities District,
shall be individually liable for the breach of any representation, warranty or agreement contained
herein.

3. Conditions to the Purchase of the Local Obligations by the Authoritv. The
obligation of the Authority to accept delivery of and pay for the Local Obligations on the Closing
Date shall be subject, at the option of the Authority, to (i) the accuracy in all material respects of
the representations and agreements on the part of the Community Facilities District contained
herein as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, (ii) the accuracy in all material respects

of the statements of the officers and other officials of the City for and on behalf of the
Community Facilities District made in any certificates or other documents, fumished pursuant to
the provisions hereof, and (iii) the performance by the Community Facilities District of its
obligations to be performed hereunder at or prior to the Closing Date and to the following
additional conditions:

(a) At the Closing Date, the Financing Documents shall be in full force and

effect in the form heretofore submitted to the Authority and there shall have been taken in
connection with the issuance of the Local Obligations and with the transactions contemplated
thereby and by this Local Obligation Purchase Contract, all such actions as, in the opinion of
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP ("Bond Counsel"), shall be necessary and appropriate;

(b) At the Closing Date, the Financing Documents shall not have been

amended, modified or supplemented, except as may have been agreed to by the Authority;

(c) At or prior to the Closing Date, the Authority and the Trustee shall have
received the following documents, in each case satisfactory in form and substance to the

Authority:

(1) An executed copy of each of the Financing Documents;

(2) An unqualified approving opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the

Closing Date and addressed to the Community Facilities District, as to the validity of the Local
Obligations;

4t4r-0872-6328 
4

Page 447

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(3) An opinion of the City Attorney, dated the Closing Date and
addressed to the Community Facilities District and the Authority, in substantially the form
attached hereto as Exhibit B; and

(4) Such additional legal opinions, certificates, proceedings,

instruments and other documents as the Authority or Bond Counsel may reasonably request to
evidence compliance by the Community Facilities District with legal requirements, the truth and
accvracy, as of the Closing Date, of the representations of the Community Facilities District
contained herein, and the due performance or satisfaction by the Community Facilities District at

or prior to such time of all agreements then to be performed and all conditions then to be

satisfied by the Community Facilities District.

If the Community Facilities District shall be unable to satisfu the conditions to the
Authority's obligations contained in this Local Obligation Purchase Contract, this Local
Obligation Purchase Contract shall terminate and neither the Authority nor the Community
Facilities District shall have any further obligation hereunder.

4. Expenses. All expenses and costs of the Community Facilities District
and the Authority incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Local Obligations and

the Authority Bonds, including fees and expenses of consultants, the Trustee, the appraiser, Bond
Counsel and counsel for the Community Facilities District and the underwriting fees and
expenses incurred by the Authority in connection with the sale of the Authority Bonds shall be
paid by the Community Facilities District or the City on its behalf, and the Community Facilities
District agrees that it will pay such expenses and costs from the proceeds of the Local
Obligations.

5. Notices. Any notice or other communication to be given to the
Community Facilities District under this Local Obligation Purchase Contract may be given by
delivering the same in writing at the Community Facilities District's address set forth above,
Attention: Finance Director, and any such notice or other communications required to be given
to the Authority may be given by delivering the same in writing to the Authority at 50 Natoma
Street, Folsom, California 95630, Attention: Treasurer. The approval of the Authority when
required hereunder or the determination of their satisfaction as to any document referred to
herein shall be in writing signed by the Authority and delivered to the Community Facilities
District.

6. Parties In Interest: Governing Law. This Local Obligation Purchase
Contract is made solely for the benefit of the Community Facilities District, the Authority and

the Trustee and no other persons, partnership, association or corporation shall acquire or have
any right hereunder or by virtue hereof. This Local Obligation Purchase Contract shall be
governed by the laws of the State of California.

7. Pledge: Assignment. The Community Facilities District hereby approves
the pledge and assignment of all the Authority's right, title and interest in the Local Obligations
to the Trustee under the Indenture for the benefit of the owners of the Authority Bonds.

5
4t4t-0872-6328

Page 448

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



8. Limitation on Liability. The Authority shall incur no liability hereunder or
by reason hereof or arising out of the transactions contemplated hereby, and shall be under no

obligation to purchase the Local Obligations hereunder, except from proceeds of the Authority
Bonds available therefor held by the Trustee under, and subject to the conditions set forth in, the

Indenture. The Community Facilities District shall incur no liability hereunder or by reason

hereof or arising out of the transactions contemplated hereunder, except as otherwise provided in
Sections 4 and 5 hereof, or be obligated to make any payments with respect to the Local
Obligations, except from amounts pledged to the payment of the Local Obligations (including
the Special Tax levied and collected in the Improvement Area) pursuant to the terms thereof.

6
4r4t-0872-6328

Page 449

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



9. Counterparts. This Local Obligation Purchase Contract may be signed in
two or more counterparts; all such counterparts, when signed by all parties, shall constitute but
one single agreement.

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY

Stacey Tamagni
Treasurer

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO

CITY OF FOLSOM
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCH)

By
Stacey Tamagni

Finance Director of the City of Folsom

By

7
4t4t-0872-6328

Page 450

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Exhibit A

Local Obligations Maturity Schedule and Redemption Provisions

Maturitv Schedule

Maturity Date
September 1 Principal Amount Interest Rate

%$

* Term Bonds

Redemption Provisions

Extraordinary Redemption. The Local Obligations are subject to extraordinary
redemption by the Community Facilities District prior to their respective maturity dates, as a

whole or in part on any interest payment date on or after [September l, 2022f, from funds

derived by the Community Facilities District from prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed
notice as provided in the Indenture, at the following redemption prices (computed upon the
principal amount of the Local Obligations or portions thereof called for redemption) together
with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, to wit:

103% if redeemed on an interest payment date on or after September I, 201 1

throughMarch l,20ll;

102% if redeemed on an interest payment date on September 1,201-j or March
1,201 1;

l0l% if redeemed on an interest payment date on September l, 201-] or March
1,201 1;and

100% if redeemed on September 1,201 f or any interest payment date thereafter.

4t4t-0872-6328
A-1

Page 451

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Optional Redemption. The Local Obligations are subject to optional redemption by the

Community Facilities District prior to their respective maturity dates as a whole or in part on any

date on or after September 1,201 l, from funds derived by the Community Facilities District
from any source other than such Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments deposited in the

Sinking Fund Subaccount or such prepayments of the Special Tax, upon mailed notice as

provided in the Indenture, at the following redemption prices (computed upon the principal
amount of the Local Obligations or portions thereof called for redemption) together with accrued

interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

103% if redeemed on any date on or after September 1,201 I through August
31,201 l;

102% if redeemed on any date from September l, 201 l through August 31,

201 l;

l0l% if redeemed on any date from September l, 201 I through August 31,

201 l;and

rc}% if redeemed on September l, 20f I and any date thereafter.

Mandatory Sinking Fund Account Redemption of the Local Obligations. The Local
Obligations maturing on September l, 20[ l, are subject to mandatory redemption by the

Community Facilities District prior to their maturity date in part on September I in each of the
years 20[ I through 201 l, both years inclusive; and the Local Obligations maturing on

September 1,201 f, are subject to mandatory redemption by the Community Facilities District
prior to their maturity date in part on September 1 in each of the years 201) through 201--1,

both years inclusive, in each case solely from Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments

deposited in the Sinking Fund Subaccount, upon mailed notice as provided in the Indenture, at a

redemption price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof called for
redemption together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.

Minimum Sinking Fund Account Payments are established for the mandatory redemption

and payment of the Local Obligations described in the paragraph above, which payments shall

become due during the years ending on the dates and in the amounts as set forth in the following
schedules (except that if any of the Local Obligations shall have been optionally redeemed or
redeemed from property owner prepayments, the amounts of the Minimum Sinking Fund

Account Payments shall be reduced proportionately by the principal amount of all such Local
Obligations so redeemed), namely:

4t4t-0872-6328
A-2

Page 452

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Local Obligation Maturing September 1.20[ I

Year Minimum
Ending Sinking Fund

September 1 Account Payment

$

* Maturity

Local Obligation Maturing September 1.20[ I

Year
Ending

September I

Minimum
Sinking Fund

Account Pavment

* Maturity

4141-0872-6328

A-3

Page 453

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Exhibit B

[Form of City Attorney Opinion]

lcLosING DATEI

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
Folsom, California

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch)
Folsom, California

Piper Sandler & Co. 
.

Sacramento, Califorma

U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association
Los Angeles, California

City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23

(Folsom Ranch) Improvement AreaNo. 3

Special Tax Bonds. Series 2022

Ladies and Gentlemen:

I have served as counsel to the City of Folsom (the "City") in connection with the

issuance, sale and delivery of the above-referenced securities (collectively, the "Local
Obligations") by the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

(the "Community Facilities District"), and this letter is being delivered pursuant to the Local

Obligation Purchase Contract dated as of ISALE DATE] (the "Local Obligation Purchase

Contract") by and between the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authorlty") and the

Community Facilities District, and all capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein have the

meanings ascribed thereto in the Local Obligation Purchase Contract'

As such counsel, I have examined and am familiar with (i) those documents

relating to the existence, organization and operation of the Community Facilities District,
including Resolution No. 10435, duly adopted by the City on }ilay 26,2020, establishing the

Community Facilities District and designating various improvement areas therein, including
Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Improvement Area"), and Resolution No. 10768, duly adopted by
the City on December 14,2021, whereby the boundaries of the Improvement Area, the rate and

method of apportionment and manner of collection of the Special Tax for the Improvement Area
and the appropriations limit and maximum bonded indebtedness for the Improvement Area were

amended; (ii) Resolution No. t I of the City Council approving the issuance of the Local
Obligations, the issuance of the Authority Bonds, the Financing Documents and the Ofhcial
Statement (such resolutions referenced in (i) and (ii), together the "Resolutions"); (iii) all
necessary documentation of the Community Facilities District relating to the authorization,

4t4t-osi2-6328 
B-1

Page 454

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



execution and delivery of the Local Obligations and all of the Financing Documents; (iv) the

Preliminary Official Statement, dated ,2022 (the "Preliminary Official Statement")

relating to the Authority Bonds; (v) the Official Statement, dated ISALE DATE], 2022 (the

"Official Statement") relating to the Authority Bonds; and (vi) the Continuing Disclosure

Certificate of the Community Facilities District, dated the date hereof (the "Continuing
Disclosure Certificate") relating to the Authority Bonds.

Based on the foregoing, I am of the opinion that:

1. The Community Facilities District is a community facilities district duly
organized and existing pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as

amended (the "Act"), being Chapter 2.5,Part 1, Division 2,Title 5 of the Government Code of
the State of California.

2. The Resolutions have been duly adopted at meetings of the City Council,
acting as the legislative body of the Community Facilities District, which were called and held

pursuant to law and with all public notice required by law and at which a quonrm was present

and acting throughout, md the Resolutions are in full force and effect and have not been

modified, amended, rescinded or repealed since the date of their respective adoption.

3. The Community Facilities District has the fulI legal right, power and

authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations and duties under the Financing

Documents and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, including the right and power under the

Act to execute the Indenture.

4. The Community Facilities District has complied with the provisions of
applicable law in all matters relating to the transactions contemplated by the Financing

Documents and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate.

5. The Financing Documents; the Continuing Disclosure Certificate; the

Letter of Representations of the Community Facilities District, dated [SALE DATE] (the

"Community Facilities District Letter of Representations" and, together with the Financing

Documents and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the "Community Facilities District
Documents") and the Official Statement have each been duly and lawfully authorized, executed

and delivered by the Community Facilities District, are each in full force and effect and,

assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties thereto, each constitutes

alegal, valid and binding agreement of the Community Facilities District enforceable against it
in accordance with its terms, subject to laws relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other similar laws relating to or affecting
the enforcement of creditors' rights generally and to the application of equitable principles if
equitable remedies are sought, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to

the limitations on legal remedies against community facilities districts in the State of Califomia.

6. The Indenture and the Local Obligations have been duly and validly
authorized, sold, executed, authenticated and delivered, as applicable, in accordance with the Act
and with the Indenture.

No approval, consent or authorization of any governmental or public

B-2
4141-0872-6328

7

Page 455

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



agency, authority or person is required for the execution and delivery by the Community

Facilities District of the Financing Documents or the Continuing Disclosure Certificate or the

performance by the Community Facilities District of its respective obligations thereunder.

8. The execution and delivery of the Financing Documents and the

Continuing Disclosure Certificate by the Community Facilities District, and compliance with the

provisions thereof, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of, or default under, any

instrument relating to the organization, existence or operation of the Community Facilities

District, or any commitment, agreement or other instrument to which the Community Facilities

District is a party or by whichlt or its property is bound or affected, or any ruling, regulation,

ordinance, resolution, judgment, order or decree to which the Community Facilities District (or

any of its officers in their respective capacities as such) is subject or any provision of the laws of
the State of California relating to the Community Facilities District and its affairs.

9. The Local Obligations are valid and binding special tax obligations of the

Community Facilities District payable from proceeds of the Special Tax and the other funds

provided in the Indenture for such payment and are enforceable in accordance with their terms,

subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance,

moratorium and other similar laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, to the application of
equitable principles where equitable remedies are sought, to the exercise of judicial discretion in
appropriate cases and to the limitations on legal remedies against community facilities districts in

the State of California, andthe terms of the Act and of the Indenture.

10. Based upon my review of the Preliminary Official Statement, and without
having undertaken to determine independently the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the

statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement, nothing has come to my attention

which would lead me to believe that the Preliminary Official Statement (excluding therefrom the

financial statements and the statistical data and the information concerning The Depository Trust

Company, the book-entry system and the appendices thereto, as to which no opinion is

expressed) as of its date and as of the date of the Local Obligation Purchase Contract contained

any untrue statement of a material fact with respect to the Community Facilities District or

omitted or omits to state any material fact with respect to the Community Facilities District
necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were

made, not misleading.

11. Based upon my review of the Official Statement, and without having

undertaken to determine independently the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements

contained in the Official Statement, nothing has come to my attention which would lead me to

believe that the Official Statement (excluding therefrom the financial statements and the

statistical data and the information concerning The Depository Trust Company, the book-entry

system and the appendices thereto, as to which no opinion is expressed) as of its date and the

date hereof contained or contains any untrue statement of a material fact with respect to the

Community Facilities District or omitted or omits to state any material fact with respect to the

Community Facilities District necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

4t4t-0872-6328

B-3

Page 456

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



12. Except as may be stated in the Official Statement, there is no action, suit,

proceeding or investigation before or by any court, public board or body pending (notice of
which has been served on the City or the Community Facilities District) or, to my knowledge,

threatened wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would: (a) affect the creation,

organization, existence or powers of the City or the Community Facilities District, or the titles of
their members and officers to their respective offices; or (b) affect the validity of the Community
Facilities District Documents or restrain or enjoin the repayment of the Local Obligations or in
any way contest or affect the validity of the Community Facilities District Documents or contest

the authority of the Community Facilities District to enter into or perform its obligations under

any of the Community Facilities District Documents or under which a determination adverse to

the City or the Community Facilities District would have a material adverse effect upon the

financial condition or the revsnues of the City or the Community Facilities District, questions the

right of the Community Facilities District to use the Special Tax levied within the Improvement
Area for the repayment of the Local Obligations or affects in any manner the right or ability of
the Community Facilities District to collect or pledge the Special Tax levied within the

Improvement Area for the repayment of the Local Obligations.

Very truly yours,

City Attorney

4r4t-0872-6328

B-4

Page 457

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 7

Page 458

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Snadling Yocca Carlson & Rauth
Draft of 6/28/22

$
FOLSOM RANCH FINAIICING AUTHORITY

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3
SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2022

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

_,2022

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natoma Street,
Folsom, California 95630

Ladies and Gentlemen

Piper Sandler & Co., as underwriter (the "Underwriter"), acting not as a fiduciary or agent

for you, but on behalf of itself, offers to enter into this Bond Purchase Agreement (this 'oPurchase
Agreement") with the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority"), which upon

acceptance will be binding upon the Underwriter and the Authority. The agreement of the

Underwriter to purchase the Bonds (as hereinafter defined) is contingent upon the Authority
purchasing from the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the

"Community Facilities District") the Community Facilities District's Improvement Area No. 3

Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022 (the o'special Tax Bonds") in the aggregate principal amount of
$ and upon the Authority and the Community Facilities District satisfying all of the

obligations imposed upon them under this Purchase Agreement. This offer is made subject to the

Authority's acceptance by the execution of this Purchase Agreement and its delivery to the

Underwriter at or before 8:00 P.M., California time, on the date hereof, and, if not so accepted, will
be subject to withdrawal by the Underwriter upon notice delivered to the Authority at any time prior
to the acceptance hereof by the Authority. All capitalized terms used herein, which are not otherwise
defined, shall have the meaning provided for such terms in the Trust Agreement, dated as of _ l,
2022 (he "Trust Agreement"), by and among the Authority, U.S. Bank Trust Company National
Association, as trustee (the "Trustee") and the Community Facilities District. The Special Tax
Bonds are being issued pursuant to an Indenture dated as of _ I, 2022 (the "District
Indenture"), by and between the Community Facilities District and U.S. Bank Trust Company
National Association, as trustee (the "District Trustee").

1. Purchase. Sale and Delivery of the Bonds.

Subject to the terms and conditions and in reliance upon the representations, warranties and

agreements set forth herein, the Underwriter hereby agrees to purchase from the Authority and the

AuthorityherebyagreestoselltotheUnderwriterall(butnotlessthanall)ofthe$-
aggregate principal amount of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds,

Page 459

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Series 2022 (the o'Bonds"), dated the Closing Date (as hereinafter defined), bearing interest at the
rates and maturing on the dates and in the principal amounts set forth in Exhibit A hereto. The
purchase price for the Bonds shall be $_ (being 100% of the aggregate principal amount

and less an Underwriter's discount ofthereof plus original issue premium of $

$ From the proceeds of the Bonds, the Authority agrees to purchase the Special Tax
Bonds from the Community Facilities District pursuant to the terms of the Local Obligation Purchase

Contract (the "Locat Obligation Purchase Contract"), dated _, 2022, by and between the
Community Facilities District and the Authority.

The Bonds shall be substantially in the form described in, shall be issued and secured under
the provisions of, and shall be payable from the Revenues as provided in the Trust Agreement, the
Official Statement (as hereinafter defined), and the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, as

amended, being Article 4, Chapter 5, Division 7, Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of
California (the "Bond Law"). The issuance of the Bonds has been duly authorizedby the Authority
pursuant to Resolution No. _-Folsom Ranch FA (the "Authority Resolution") adopted by the
Goveming Board on _, 2022. The net proceeds of the Bonds will be used to purchase the
Special Tax Bonds.

The Special Tax Bonds shall be substantially in the form described in, shall be issued and

secured under the provisions of, and shall be payable from Special Tax (as defined in the District
Indenture) as provided in the District Indenture.

The Special Tax Bonds are issued under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982,
as amended, being Chapter2.5,Part 1, Division2,Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of
Califomia (the "Community Facilities District Act"). The issuance of the Special Tax Bonds, the
preparation and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Local Obligation Purchase

Contract have been duly authorizedby the City Council of the City of Folsom (the "City Council")
acting as the legislative body for the Community Facilities District, pursuant to Resolution
No._ (the "Community Facilities District Resolution"). The net proceeds of the Special Tax
Bonds will be used, as indicated in the District Indenture, for the following pulposes: (1) finance the
acquisition and construction of certain public facilities; (2) fund a debt service reserve account;
(3) fund capitalized interestto September I,2022; and (4) pay certain costs of issuance of the Bonds
and the Special Tax Bonds.

Prior to the acceptance of this Purchase Agreement by the Authority, the Authority shall have

caused to be delivered to the Underwriter: (i) the Letter of Representations of the Community
Facilities District (the "District Letter of Representations") in substantially the form set forth in
Exhibit B hereto; and (ii) a Letter of Representations (the "Developer Letter of Representations")
of Toll West Inc., d/b/a Toll Brothers West Inc., a Delaware corporation ( the "Developer") in
substantially the form set forth in Exhibit C hereto.

A. The Authority acknowledges that the Underwriter is entering into this
Purchase Agreement in reliance on the representations and agreements made by the Authority herein
and by the Community Facilities District in the District Letter of Representations, and the Authority
shall take all action necessary to enforce its rights hereunder for the benefit of the Underwriter and

shall immediately notifu the Underwriter if it becomes aware that any representation or agreement
made by the Authority herein is incorrect in any material respect.

2

Page 460

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The Authority acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the purchase and sale of the Bonds pursuant

to this Purchase Agreement is an arm's-length commercial transaction between the Authority and the

Underwriter; (ii) in connection therewith and with the discussions, undertakings and procedures

leading up to the consummation of such transaction, the Underwriter is and has been acting solely as

principal and is not acting as a Municipal Advisor (as defined in Section 158 of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended); (iii) the Underwriter has not assumed an advisory or fiduciary
responsibility in favor of the Authority, the Community Facilities District or the City of Folsom (the
o'City") with respect to the offering contemplated hereby or the discussions, undertakings and

procedures leading thereto (irrespective of whether the Underwriter has provided other services or is

cumently providing other services to the Authority, the Community Facilities District or the City on

other matters); and (iv) the Authority, the Community Facilities District and the City have consulted

their own legal, financial and other advisors to the extent that they have deemed appropriate.

B. Pursuant to the authorization of the Authority, the Underwriter has distributed
copies of the Preliminary Official Statement dated _, 2022, relating to the Bonds, which,
together with the cover page, inside cover page and appendices thereto is herein called the

"Preliminary Official Statement." By its acceptance of this Purchase Agreement, the Authority
hereby ratifies the use by the Underwriter of the Preliminary Official Statement, and the Authority
agrees to execute a final official statement relating to the Bonds (including any supplements and/or

amendments thereto, the "Official Statement") which will consist of the Preliminary Official
Statement with such changes as may be made thereto, with the approval of Orrick Henington &
Sutcliffe LLP, the Community Facilities District's and the Authority's Bond Counsel ("Bond
Counsel") and Disclosure Counsel ("Disclosure Counsel"), and the Underwriter, and to provide
copies thereof to the Underwriter as set forth in Section 3.N hereof. The Authority hereby authorizes

the Underwriter to use and promptly distribute, in connection with the offer and sale of the Bonds,

the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement and any supplement or amendment thereto.

The Authority further authorizes the Underwriter to use and distribute, in connection with the offer
and sale of the Bonds, the Trust Agreement, the District Indenture, this Purchase Agreement, the

Local Obligation Purchase Contract and all information contained herein, and all other documents,

certificates and statements furnished by or on behalf of the Authority, the Community Facilities
District or the City to the Underwriter in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Purchase Agreement.

C. To assist the Underwriter in complying with Securities and Exchange

Commission Rule I5c2-I2(b)(5) (the "Rule"), the Community Facilities District will undertake for
and on behalf of the Authority pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, in the form attached

to the Official Statement as Appendix D (the "Continuing Disclosure Certificate"), to provide
annual reports and notices of certain enumerated events. A description of this undertaking is set forth
in the Preliminary Official Statement and will also be set forth in the Official Statement.

D. Except as the Underwriter and the Authority may otherwise agree, the

Authority will deliver to the Underwriter, at the offices of Bond Counsel in Sacramento, California,
or at such other location as may be mutually agreed upon by the Underwriter, the Community
Facilities District and the Authority, the documents hereinafter mentioned; and the Authority will
deliver to the Underwriter through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") in New
York, New York, the Bonds, in definitive form (all Bonds bearing CUSIP numbers), duly executed

by the Authority and authenticated by the Trustee in the manner provided for in the Trust Agreement

and the Bond Law at 8:00 a.m. Califomia time, or _: 2022 (the "Closing Date"), and the

Underwriter will accept such delivery and pay the purchase price of the Bonds as set forth in the first

a
J

Page 461

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



paragraph of this Section by wire transfer, payable in federal or other immediately available funds
(such delivery and payment being herein referred to as the "Closing"). The Bonds shall be in fully
registered book-entry form (which may be typewritten) and shall be registered in the name of Cede &
Co., as nominee of DTC.

2. Public Offering and Establishment of Issue Price.

A. The Underwriter agrees to make a bona fide public offering of all of the

Bonds initially at the public offering prices (or yields) set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and

incorporated herein by reference. Subsequent to the initial public offering, the Underwriter reserves

the right to change the public offering prices (or yields) as it deems necessary in connection with the

marketing of the Bonds, provided that the Underwriter shall not change the interest rates set forth in
Exhibit A. The Bonds may be offered and sold to certain dealers at prices lower than such initial
offering prices.

B. The Underwriter agrees to assist the Authority in establishing the issue price

of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the Authority at Closing an "issue price" or similar
certificate, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit F, with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in
the reasonable judgment of the Underwriter, the Authority and Bond Counsel, to accurately reflect,

as applicable, the sales price or prices or the initial offering price or prices to the public of the Bonds.

All actions to be taken by the Authority under this section to establish the issue price of the Bonds

may be taken on behalf of the Authority by Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates, Inc. (the "Municipal
Advisor") and any notice or report to be provided to the Authority may be provided to the Municipal
Advisor.

C. Except as otherwise set forth in Exhibit A, the Authority will treat the first
price at which l\Yo of each maturity of the Bonds (the "107o test") is sold to the public as the issue

price of that maturity (if different interest rates apply within a maturity, each separate CUSP number

within that maturity will be subject to the l0% test). At or promptly after the execution of this
Purchase Agreement, the Underwriter shall report to the Authority the price or prices at which it has

sold to the public each maturity of the Bonds. If at that time the 10% test has not been satisfied as to

any maturity of the Bonds, the Underwriter agrees to promptly report to the Authority the prices at

which it sells the unsold Bonds of that maturity to the public. That reporting obligation shall

continue, whether or not the Closing Date has occurred, until the 10% test has been satisfied as to the

Bonds of that maturity or until all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public.

D. The Underwriter confirms that it has offered the Bonds to the public on or
before the date of this Purchase Agreement at the offering price or prices (the "initial offering
price"), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in Exhibit A, except as otherwise set forth
therein. Exhibit A also sets forth, identified under the column "Hold the Offering Price Rule Used,"
as of the date of this Purchase Agreement, the maturities, if any, of the Bonds for which the 10% test

has not been satisfied and for which the Authority and the Underwriter agree that the restrictions set

forth in the next sentence shall apply, which will allow the Authority to treat the initial offering price
to the public of each such maturity as of the sale date as the issue price of that maturity (the "hold-
the-offering-price rule"). So long as the hold-the-offering-price rule remains applicable to any

maturity of the Bonds, the Underwriter will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds of that maturity to

any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to the public during the period
starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following:

4

Page 462

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



1. the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or

2. the date on which the Underwriter has sold at least 10% of that

maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the

public.

The Underwriter shall promptly advise the Authority when it has sold l0o/o of that maturity of
the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public, if that

occurs prior to the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date.

E. The Underwriter confirms that any selling group agreement and any retail

distribution agreement relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related

pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each dealer who is a member of the selling
group and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to:

(1) report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allotted to it
until it is notified by the Underwriter that either the l0%o test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of
that maturity or all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public; and (2) comply with the hold-

the-offering-price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the Underwriter.
The Authority acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth in this subsection, the

Underwriter will rely on: (A) in the event that a selling group has been created in connection with the

initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling

group to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, as set forth in a selling group

agreement and the related pricing wires; and (B) in the event that a retail distribution agreement was

employed in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-

dealer that is a pa(ry to such agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable,

as set forth in the retail distribution agreement and the related pricing wires. The Authority funher

acknowledges that the Underwriter shall not be liable for the failure of any dealer who is a member

of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution agreement, to comply

with its coresponding agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule as applicable to the

Bonds.

F. The Underwriter acknowledges that sales of any Bonds to any person that is a

related party to the Underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this section.

Further, for purposes of this section:

1. "public" means any person other than an underwriter or a related

party;

2. "underwriter" means: (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a

written contract with the Authority (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate)

to participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public; and (B) any person that agrees pursuant to

a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate in the

initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail

distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public);

3. a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a "related party" to an

underwriter if the underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to: (A) at least

50o% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are

corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another); (ii) more than 50%;o common

5

Page 463

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including
direct ownership by one partnership of another); or (iii) more than 50olo common ownership of the

value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the
partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership
(including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other); and

4. "sale date" means the date of execution of this Purchase Agreement

by all parties.

3. Representations and Covenants of the Authority. The Authority represents and

covenants to the Underwriter that:

A. The Authority is a joint exercise of powers authority, duly organized and

existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of California (the o'State"), and formed pursuant

to Articles I through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5, Division 7, Title I of the

Government Code (the "JPA Act'o), with full right, power and authority: (i) to enter into this

Purchase Agreement; (ii) to enter into the Trust Agreement; (iii) to adopt the Authority Resolution

authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and entry into this Purchase Agreement and the Trust
Agreement and to take all other actions on the part of the Authority relating thereto (the "Authority
Proceedings"); (iv) to issue, sell and deliver the Bonds to the Underwriter as provided herein; (v) to
purchase the Special Tax Bonds; and (vi) to carry out and consummate the transactions on its part
contemplated by this Purchase Agreement, the Trust Agreement and the Official Statement.

The Trust Agreement, the Bonds, the Local Obligation Purchase Contract and this Purchase

Agreement are collectively referred to herein as the "Authority Documents."

B. By all necessary official action of the Authority, the Authority has duly
authorized and approved the execution and delivery by the Authority of, and the performance by the

Authority of the obligations on its part contained in, the Authority Documents, and has approved the

use by the Underwriter of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement and, as of the

date hereof, such authorizations and approvals are in full force and effect and have not been

amended, modified or rescinded. When executed and delivered by the parties thereto, the Authority
Documents will constitute the legally valid and binding obligations of the Authority enforceable

upon the Authority in accordance with their respective terms, except as enforcement may be limited
by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or similar laws or equitable principles
relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally. The Authority has complied, and will at the

Closing Date be in compliance in all respects, with the terms of the Authority Documents that are

applicable to the Authority.

C. The information in the Preliminary Official Statement and in the Official
Statement relating to the Authority and the Bonds (other than statements pertaining to the book-entry
system, as to which no view is expressed), does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading; and, upon delivery and up to and including 25 days

after the End of the Underwriting Period (as defined in paragraph (D) below), the Official Statement

will be amended and supplemented so as to contain no misstatement of any material fact or omission
of any statement necessary to make the statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances
in which such statements were made, not misleading.

6

Page 464

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



D. Up to and including 25 days after the End of the Underwriting Period (as

defined below), the Authority will advise the Underwriter promptly of any proposal to amend or
supplement the Official Statement and will not effect or consent to any such amendment or
supplement without the consent of the Underwriter, which consent will not be unreasonably
withheld. The Authority will advise the Underwriter promptly of the institution of any proceedings
known to it by any governmental agency prohibiting or otherwise materially affecting the use of the
Official Statement in connection with the offering, sale or distribution of the Bonds. As used herein,
the term "End of the Underwriting Period" means the later of such time as: (i) the Bonds are

delivered to the Underwriter; or (ii) the Underwriter does not retain, directly or as a member of an

underwriting syndicate, an unsold balance of the Bonds for sale to the public. Unless the

Underwriter gives notice to the contrary, the End of the Underwriting Period shall be deemed to be

the Closing Date. Any notice delivered pursuant to this provision shall be a written notice delivered
to the Authority and the City at or prior to the Closing Date, and shall specify a date (other than the
Closing Date) to be deemed the "End of the Underwriting Period."

E. As of the time of acceptance hereof and as of the Closing Date, except as

otherwise disclosed in the Official Statement, the Authority is not, and as of the Closing Date, will
not be, in breach of or in default under any applicable constitutional provision, law or administrative
rule or regulation of the State or the United States, or any applicable judgment or decree or any trust
agreement, loan agreement, bond, note, resolution, ordinance, agreement or other instrument to
which the Authority is a party or is otherwise subject; and no event has occurred and is continuing
which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default or event of
default under any such instrument; which breach, default or event could have an adverse effect on the
Authority's ability to perform its obligations under the Authority Documents; and, as of such times,
except as disclosed in the Official Statement, the authorization, execution and delivery of the
Authority Documents and compliance by the Authority with the provisions of each of such

agreements or instruments does not and will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default
under any applicable constitutional provision, law or administrative rule or regulation of the State or
the United States, or any applicable judgment, decree, license, permit, trust agreement, loan
agreement, bond, note, resolution, ordinance, agreement or other instrument to which the Authority
(or any of its officers in their respective capacities as such) is subject, or by which it or any of its
properties is bound; nor will any such authorization, execution, delivery or compliance result in the
creation or imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or encumbrance of any nature

whatsoever upon any of its assets or properties or under the terms of any such law, regulation or
instrument, except as may be provided by the Authority Documents.

F. At the time of acceptance hereof there is, and as of the Closing Date, there
will be no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any
court, government agency, public board or body (collectively and individually, an "Action") pending
(notice of which has been served on the Authority) or to the knowledge of the Authority threatened,
in which any such Action: (i) in any way questions the corporate existence of the Authority or the
titles of the officers of the Authority to their respective offices; (ii) affects, contests or seeks to
prohibit, restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of any of the Bonds, or the payment or collection
of Revenues (as defined in the Trust Agreement) or any amounts pledged or to be pledged to pay the
principal of and interest on the Bonds, or in any way contests or affects the validity of the Authority
Documents or the consummation of the transactions on the part of the Authority contemplated
thereby; (iii) contests the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from federal or state income taxation
or contests the powers of the Authority which may result in any material adverse change relating to
the financial condition of the Authority; or (iv) contests the completeness or accuracy of the

7

Page 465

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement or any supplement or amendment thereto or
asserts that the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement contained any untrue

statement of a material fact or omiffed to state any material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were

made, not misleading; and, as of the time of acceptance hereof, there is, and as of the Closing Date,

there will be no known basis for any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation of the nature

described in clauses (i) through (iv) of this sentence.

G. The Authority will furnish such information, execute such instruments and

take such other action in cooperation with the Underwriter and at the expense of the Underwriter as

the Underwriter may reasonably request in order: (i) to qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under the

Blue Sky or other securities laws andregulations of such states and other jurisdictions of the United
States as the Underwriter may designate; and (ii) to determine the eligibility of the Bonds for
investment under the laws of such states and other jurisdictions, and will use its best efforts to
continue such qualifications in effect so long as required for the distribution of the Bonds, provided;
however, that the Authority will not be required to execute a special or general consent to service of
process or qualiff as a foreign corporation in connection with any such qualification in any
jurisdiction.

H. The Authority Documents conform as to form and tenor to the descriptions

thereof contained in the Official Statement. The Authority represents that the Bonds, when issued,

executed and delivered in accordance with the Trust Agreement and sold to the Underwriter as

provided herein, will be validly issued and outstanding obligations of the Authority, entitled to the

benefits of the Trust Agreement. The Trust Agreement creates a valid pledge of the moneys in
certain funds and accounts established pursuant to the Trust Agreement, subject in all cases to the
provisions of the Trust Agreement permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the
terms and conditions set forth therein.

I. The Authority has not been notified of any listing or proposed listing by the
Internal Revenue Service to the effect that the Authority is a bond issuer whose arbitrage
certifications may not be relied upon.

J. Any certificate signed by any authorized officer of the Authority and

delivered to the Underwriter in connection with the issuance and sale of the Bonds shall be deemed

to be a representation and covenant by the Authority to the Underwriter as to the statements made

therein.

K.
Trust Agreement.

The Authority will apply the proceeds of the Bonds in accordance with the

L. Between the date of this Purchase Agreement and the Closing Date, the
Authority will not offer or issue any bonds, notes or other obligations for borowed money not
previously disclosed to the Underwriter.

M. Until such time as moneys have been set aside in an amount sufficient to pay

all then outstanding Bonds at maturity or to the date of redemption if redeemed prior to maturity,
plus unpaid interest thereon and premium, if any, to maturity or to the date of redemption if
redeemed prior to maturity, the Authority will faithfully perform and abide by all of the covenants,

undertakings and provisions contained in the Trust Agreement.

8

Page 466

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



N. The Preliminary Official Statement was deemed final by a duly authorized
officer of the Authority prior to its delivery to the Underwriter, except for the omission of such

information as is permitted to be omitted in accordance with paragraph (bxl) of the Rule. The
Authority hereby covenants and agrees that, within seven (7) business days from the date hereof, or
upon reasonable written notice from the Underwriter within sufficient time to accompany any
confirmation requesting payment from any customers of the Underwriter, the Authority shall cause a

final printed form of the Official Statement to be delivered to the Underwriter in sufficient quantity
to comply with paragraph (b)(a) of the Rule and Rules G-Iz, G-l5, G-32 and G-36 of the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board.

The Authority hereby approves the preparation and distribution of the Official Statement,

consisting of the Preliminary Official Statement with such changes as are noted thereon and as may
be made thereto, with the approval of Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel and the Underwriter, from
time to time prior to the Closing Date.

The Authority hereby ratifies any prior use of and authorizes the future use by the
Underwriter, in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds, of the Preliminary Official
Statement, the Official Statement, this Purchase Agreement and all information contained herein, and

all other documents, certificates and written statements furnished by the Authority to the Underwriter
in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Purchase Agreement.

The execution and delivery of this Purchase Agreement by the Authority shall constitute a
representation to the Underwriter that the representations contained in this Section 3 are true as of the
date hereof.

4. Conditions to the Obli of the Underwriter. The obligation of the Underwriter
to accept delivery of andpay forthe Bonds onthe Closing Date shall be subject, atthe option of the
Underwriter, to the accuracy in all material respects of the representations on the part of the
Authority contained herein and of the Community Facilities District in the District Letter of
Representations, to the accuracy in all material respects of the statements of the officers and other
officials of the Authority made in any certificates or other documents furnished pursuant to the
provisions hereof, to the performance by the Authority of its obligations to be performed hereunder
at or prior to the Closing Date and, to the following additional conditions:

A. At the Closing Date, the Authority Resolution, the Community Facilities
District Resolution, the Authority Documents and this Purchase Agreement, the District Indenture,
the Local Obligation Purchase Contracto the Special Tax Bonds, the District Letter of Representations

and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall be in full force and effect, and shall not have been

amended, modified or supplemented, except as may have been agreed to in writing by the
Underwriter, and there shall have been taken in connection therewith, with the issuance of the Bonds
and with the Special Tax Bonds, and with the transactions contemplated thereby, and by this
Purchase Agreement, all such actions as, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, shall be necessary and

appropriate. The Trust Agreement, the District Indenture, the Local Obligation Purchase Contract,
the Special Tax Bonds, the District Letter of Representations and the Continuing Disclosure
Certificate are herein referred to collectively as the "District Documents."

B. At the Closing Date, except as was described in the Preliminary Official
Statement, the Authority shall not be, in any respect material to the transactions referred to herein or
contemplated hereby, in breach of or in default under, any law or administrative rule or regulation of

9

Page 467

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



the State of California, the United States of America, or of any department, division, agency or
instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court or administrative decree or order, or
under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract, agreement or other instrument to
which the Authority is a party or is otherwise subject or bound, and the performance by the Authority
of its obligations under the Authority Documents, the Authority Resolution and any other
instruments contemplated by any of such documents, and compliance with the provisions of each

thereof, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any applicable law or
administrative rule or regulation of the State of California, the United States of America, or of any

department, division, agency or instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court or
administrative decree or order, or under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract,
agreement or other instrument to which the Authority is a party or is otherwise subject or bound, in
any manner that would materially and adversely affect the performance by the Authority of its
obligations under the Authority Documents or the Authority Resolution.

C. At the Closing Date, except as described in the Official Statement, the

Community Facilities District shall not be, in any respect material to the transactions referred to in
the District Letter of Representations or contemplated therein, in breach of or in default under, any

law or administrative rule or regulation of the State of California, the United States of America, or of
any department, division, agency or instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court or
administrative decree or order, or under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract,
agreement or other instrument to which the Community Facilities District is a party or is otherwise
subject or bound, and the performance by the Community Facilities District of its obligations under
the Community Facilities District Resolution, the District Documents, and any other instruments
contemplated by any of such documents, and compliance with the provisions of each thereof, or the
performance of the conditions precedent to be performed hereunder, will not conflict with or
constitute a breach of or default under any applicable law or administrative rule or regulation of the
State of California, the United States of America, or of any department, division, agency or
instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court or administrative decree or order, or
under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract, agreement or other instrument to
which the Community Facilities District is a party or is otherwise subject or bound, in any manner
that would materially and adversely affect the performance by the Community Facilities District of
its obligations under the Community Facilities District Resolution and the District Documents or the
performance of the conditions precedent to be performed by the Community Facilities District under
the Community Facilities District Resolution and the District Documents.

D. The information contained in the Official Statement is, as of the Closing Date
and as of the date of any supplement or amendment thereto pursuant hereto, true and correct in all
material respects and does not, as of the Closing Date or as of the date of any supplement or
amendment thereto, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

E. Between the date hereof and the Closing Date, the market price or
marketability, at the initial offering prices set forth on the cover page of the Official Statement, of the

Bonds shall not have been materially adversely affected, in the judgment of the Underwriter
(evidenced by a written notice to the Authority terminating the obligation of the Underwriter to
accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds), by reason of any of the following:

10

Page 468

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



1. Legislation introduced in or enacted (or resolution passed) by the
Congress of the United States of America or recommended to the Congress by the President of the
United States, the Department of the Treasury, the Internal Revenue Service, or any member of
Congress, or favorably reported for passage to either House of Congress by any committee of such
House to which such legislation had been referred for consideration, or a decision rendered by a court
established under Article III of the Constitution of the United States of America or by the Tax Court
of the United States of America, or an order, ruling, regulation (final, temporary or proposed), press
release or other form of notice issued or made by or on behalf of the Treasury Department of the
United States of America or the Internal Revenue Service, with the purpose or effect, directly or
indirectly, of imposing federal income taxation upon such interest as would be received by any
owners of the Bonds beyond the extent to which such interest is subject to taxation as of the date
hereof;

2. Legislation introduced in or enacted (or resolution passed) by the
Congress or an order, decree or injunction issued by any court ofcompetentjurisdiction, or an order,
ruling, regulation (final, temporary or proposed), press release or other form of notice issued or made
by or on behalf of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or any other governmental agency
having jurisdiction of the subject matter, to the effect that obligations of the general character of the
Bonds or the Special Tax Bonds, including any or all underlying alrangements, are not exempt from
registration under or other requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or that the Trust
Agreement or the District Indenture are not exempt from qualification under or other requirements of
the Trust Agreement Act of 1939, as amended, or that the issuance, offering or sale of obligations of
the general character of the Bonds or the Special Tax Bonds, including any or all underlying
arrangements, as contemplated hereby or by the Official Statement or otherwise is or would be in
violation of the federal securities laws as amended and then in effect;

3. A general suspension of trading in securities on the New York Stock
Exchange, or a general banking moratorium declared by Federal, State of New York or State of
California officials authorized to do so;

4. The introduction, proposal or enactment of any amendment to the
Federal or California Constitution or any action by any Federal or California court, legislative body,
regulatory body or other authority materially adversely affecting the tax status of the Bonds, the
Authority or the Community Facilities District, their property, income, securities (or interest
thereon), the validity or enforceability of the Special Tax, or the ability of the Authority to purchase
any Special Tax Bonds as contemplated by the Official Statement;

5. Any event occurring, or information becoming known which, in the
judgment of the Underwriter, makes untrue in any material respect any statement or information
contained in the Preliminary Official Statement or in the Official Statement, or has the effect that the
Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement contains any untrue statement of a material
fact or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading;

6. Any national securities exchange, the Comptroller of the Currency, or
any other governmental authority, shall impose as to the Bonds, the Special Tax Bonds or obligations
of the general character of the Bonds or the Special Tax Bonds, any material restrictions not now in
force, or increase materially those now in force, with respect to the extension of credit by, or the
charge to the net capital requirements of, the Underwriter;

11

Page 469

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



7. There shall have occurred any material outbreak or escalation of
hostilities or other calamity or crisis the effect of which on the financial markets of the United States

is such as to make it impracticable, in the judgment of the Underwriter, following consultation with
the Authority, to sell the Bonds;

8. The filing or threat of an Action described Section 3.F hereof or
Section M of the District Letter of Representations; or

9. Any proceeding shall have been commenced or be threatened in
writing by the Securities and Exchange Commission against the City or the Authority.

F. At or prior to the Closing Date, the Underwriter shall have received a

counterpart original or certified copy of the following documents, in each case satisfactory in form
and substance to the Underwriter:

1. The Official Statement, executed on behalf of the Authority by its
Treasurer or other authorized officer;

2. The Authority Documents, duly executed and delivered by all parties

thereto;

3. The Authority Resolution, together with a certificate of the Secretary

of the Authority, dated as of the Closing Date, to the effect that such resolution is a true, correct and

complete copy of the resolution duly adopted by the Governing Board of the Authority;

4. The Community Facilities District Resolution, together with a

certificate dated as of the Closing Date of the City Clerk, acting on behalf of the Community
Facilities District to the effect that the Community Facilities District Resolution is a true, correct and

complete copy of the one duly adopted by the City Council, acting as the legislative body of the

Community Facilities District;

5. The District Documents duly executed and delivered by all parties

thereto;

6. An unqualified approving opinion for the Bonds, dated the Closing
Date and addressed to the Authority, of Bond Counsel, in substantially the form included as

Appendix E to the Official Statement, together with a letter addressed to the Trustee to the effect that
such opinion may be relied upon by the Trustee to the same extent as if such opinion was addressed

to the Trustee;

7. A supplemental opinion or opinions, dated the Closing Date and

addressed to the Underwriter, of Bond Counsel, in substantially the form attached hereto as

Exhibit E;

8. A certificate, dated the Closing Date and signed by the Treasurer of
the Authority or other authorized officer, to the effect that: (i) the representations of the Authority
contained herein are true and correct in all material respects on and as of the Closing Date with the

same effect as if made on the Closing Date; (ii) to the best knowledge of such officer, no event has

occurred since the date of the Official Statement which should be disclosed in the Official Statement

for the purpose for which it is to be used or which it is necessary to disclose therein in order to make

t2

Page 470

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



the statements and information therein not misleading in any material respect; and (iii) the Authority
has complied with all the agreements and satisfied all the conditions on its part to be performed or

satisfied under the Authority Documents and the Authority Resolution at or prior to the Closing Date;

9. A certificate dated the Closing Date and signed by an authorized

representative of the Community Facilities District or an authorized designee, on behalf of the

Community Facilities District to the effect that: (i) the representations made by the Community
Facilities District contained in the District Letter of Representations are true and correct in all
material respects on and as of the Closing Date with the same effect as if made on the Closing Date,

provided that any references as to the Preliminary Official Statement shall be deemed to be to the

Official Statement; (ii) to the best knowledge of such officer, no event has occurred since the date of
the Official Statement which should be disclosed in the Official Statement for the purpose for which
it is to be used or which it is necessary to disclose therein in order to make the statements and

information therein not misleading in any material respect; and (iii) the Community Facilities District
has complied with all the agreements and satisfied all the conditions on its part to be satisfied under

the District Documents prior to the Closing Date;

10. An opinion of the City Attorney of the City, as counsel to the

Authority, dated the date of Closing and addressed to the Underwriter, the Authority, the Community
Facilities District, the Trustee and the District Trustee, to the effect that:

(i) The Authority is a public body, corporate and politic, duly
organized and validly existing as a joint powers authority under the laws of the State of California;

(ii) The Authority has full legal power and lawful authority to
enter into the Authority Documents and to carry out the transactions contemplated under the Authority
Documents;

(iiD The Authority Resolution was duly adopted at a regular

meeting of the governing body of the Authority, which was called and held pursuant to law and with all
public notice required by law and at which a quorum was present and acting throughout, and the Authority
Resolution is in full force and effect and has not been modified, amended, rescinded or repealed since the

date of its adoption;

(iv) The Authority Documents have been duly authorized,

executed and delivered by the Authority and constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the

Authority enforceable against the Authority in accordance with their terms, subject to bankruptcy,

insolvency, rcorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights, to the application

of equitable principles where equitable remedies are sought and to the exercise of judicial discretion in

appropriate cases;

(v) To the best knowledge of such counsel, the execution and

delivery of the Authority Documents and the Official Statement and compliance with the provisions thereof
under the circumstances contemplated thereby: (a) do not in any material respect conflict with or constitute

on the part of the Authority a breach of or default under any agreement or other instrument to which the

Authority is a party or by which it is bound; and (b) do not and will not in any material respect or constitute

on the part of the Authority a violation, breach of or default under any court order or consent decree to which
the Authority is subject;

13

Page 471

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(vi) The Authority Documents and the Official Statement have

been duly authorized by the Governing Board of the Authority and executed on its behalf by an authorized

ofhcer of the Authority;

(viD Except as may be stated in the Official Statement, there is no

action, suit, proceeding or investigation before or by any court, public board or body pending (notice of
which has been served on the Authority) or, to the City Attorney's knowledge, threatened wherein an

unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would: (a) affect the creation, organization, existence or powers of the

Authority, or the titles of its members and officers to their respective offices; (b) enjoin or restrain the

issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds, the collection of the Revenues or the pledge thereof; (c) in any way
question or affect any of the rights, powers, duties or obligations of the Authority with respect to the

Revenues or the moneys and assets pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal of, premium, if any, or

interest on the Bonds; (d) in any way question or affect any authority for the issuance of the Bonds, or the

validity or enforceability of the Bonds; or (e) in any way question or affect the Authority Documents or the

transactions contemplated by the Authority Documents, the Official Statement, or any activity regarding the

Bonds;

1 1. An opinion of the City Attorney of the City, dated the date of Closing

and addressed to the Underwriter, the Authority, the Community Facilities District, the Trustee and

the District Trustee to the effect that:

(i) The Community Facilities District is a community facilities

district organized and existing pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended,

being Chapter 2.5,Part l, Division 2,Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California;

(ii) The Community Facilities District Resolution has been duly
adopted at a meeting of the City Council, acting as the legislative body of the Community Facilities District,

which was called and held pursuant to law and with all public notice required by law and at which a quorum

was present and acting throughout, and the Community Facilities District Resolution is in full force and

effect and has not been modified, amended, rescinded or repealed since the date of its adoption;

(iii) The District Documents and the Official Statement have been

duly and lawfully authorized, executed and delivered by the Community Facilities District and the District
Documents constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Community Facilities District
enforceable against the Community Facilities District in accordance with their terms, subject to bankruptcy,

insolvency, reotganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other similar laws relating

to or affecting creditors' rights, to the application of equitable principles where equitable remedies are

sought, to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to the limitations on legal remedies

against community facilities districts in the State of California;

(iv) The Community Facilities District has the right and power

under the Community Facilities District Act to execute the District Indenture and no other authorization for
the execution thereof is required, and the District Indenture is in full force and effect;

(v) The Special Tax Bonds are valid and binding special tax

obligations of the Community Facilities District payable from proceeds of the Special Tax and the other

funds provided in the District Indenture for such payment and are enforceable in accordance with their terms,

subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and

other similar laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, to the application of equitable principles where

t4
Page 472

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



equitable remedies are sought, to the exercise ofjudicial discretion in appropriate cases and to the limitations
on legal remedies against community facilities districts in the State of California, and the terms of the
Community Facilities District Act and of the District Indenture;

(vi) The District Indenture and the Special Tax Bonds have been

duly and validly authorized, sold, executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the Community
Facilities District Act and with the District Indenture;

(vii) Except as may be stated in the Official Statement, there rs no

action, suit, proceeding or investigation before or by any court, public board or body pending (notice of
which has been served on the City or the Community Facilities District) or, to such counsel's knowledge,
threatened wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would: (a) affect the creation, organization,
existence or powers of the City or the Community Facilities District, or the titles of its members and officers
to their respective offices; or (b) affect the validity of the District Documents or restrain or enjoin the

repayment of the Special Tax Bonds or in any way contest or affect the validity of the District Documents or
contest the authority of the Community Facilities District to enter into or perform its obligations under any of
the District Documents or under which a determination adverse to the City or the Community Facilities
District would have a material adverse affect upon the financial condition or the revenues of the City or the
Community Facilities District, questions the right of the Community Facilities District to use the Special Tax
levied within the Improvement Area for the repayment of the Special Tax Bonds or affects in any manner the

right or ability of the Community Facilities District to collect or pledge the Special Tax levied within the
Improvement Area for the repayment of the Special Tax Bonds;

12. A transcript of all proceedings relating to the authorization, issuance,

sale and delivery of the Bonds and the Special Tax Bonds, including certified copies of the Trust
Agreement, the District Indenture and all resolutions of the City and the Authority relating thereto;

13. A certificate dated the Closing Date from NBS addressed to the

Authority, the Community Facilities District and the Underwriter to the effect that: (i) the Special
Tax (after payment of Priority Administrative Expenses) if collected in the maximum amounts
permitted pursuant to the Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes would generate at
least 1 l|Yo of the annual debt service payable with respect to the Special Tax Bonds in each year,

based on such assumptions and qualifications as shall be acceptable to the Underwriter; and (ii) the

statements in the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement provided by NBS
concerning the Special Tax and the Rate and Method of Apportionment of the Special Taxes and all
information supplied by it for use in the Preliminary Official Statement, as of the date of the
Preliminary Official Statement, and in the Official Statement, as of the date of the Official Statement

and as of the Closing Date, did not and do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading;;

14. Certified copies of the general resolution of the Trustee and District
Trustee authorizing the execution and delivery of certain documents by certain officers of the Trustee

and District Trustee, which resolution authorizes the execution of the Trust Agreement, the District
Indenture and the authentication of the Bonds and the Special Tax Bonds;

15. A certificate of the Trustee, addressed to the Underwriter, the
Authority and the Community Facilities District dated the Closing Date, to the effect that: (i) the
Trustee is authorized to carry out corporate trust powers, and have full power and authority to

15

Page 473

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



perform their respective duties under the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture; (ii) the Trustee

is duly authorized to execute and deliver the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture, to accept

the obligations ueated by the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture and to authenticate the

Bonds and the Special Tax Bonds pursuant to the terms of the Trust Agreement and the District
Indenture, respectively; (iii) no consent, approval, authorization or other action by any governmental

or regulatory authority having jurisdiction over the Trustee that has not been obtained is or will be

required for the authentication of the Bonds or the Special Tax Bonds or the consummation by the

Trustee of the other transactions contemplated to be performed by the Trustee in connection with the

authentication of the Bonds and the Special Tax Bonds and the acceptance and performance of the

obligations created by the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture; and (iv) to the best of its
knowledge, compliance with the terms of the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture will not
conflict with, or result in a violation or breach of, or constitute a default under, any loan agreement,

trust agreement, bond, note, resolution or any other agreement or instrument to which the Trustee is a

party or by which it is bound, or any law or any rule, regulation, order or decree of any court or
governmental agency or body having jurisdiction over the Trustee or any of its activities or
properties;

16. An opinion of counsel to the Trustee, dated the Closing Date,

addressed to the Underwriter, the Authority and the Community Facilities District to the effect that
the Trustee is a national banking association duly organized and validly existing under the laws of
the United States having full power and being qualified to enter into, accept and agree to the
provisions of the Trust Agreement and the District Indenture, and that each of such documents has

been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Trustee and, assuming due execution and

delivery by the other parties thereto, constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Trustee

enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,

moratorium and other laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights in general and except as

such enforceability may be limited by the application of equitable principles if equitable remedies are

sought;

17. A certificate of the Authority dated the Closing Date, in a form
acceptable to Bond Counsel and the Underwriter, that the Bonds are not arbitrage bonds within the

meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended;

18. An opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, counsel to the

Underwriter ("Underwriter's Counsel"), dated the date of Closing and addressed to the Underwriter
in form and substance acceptable to the Underwriter;

19. A certificate of the Developer dated the Closing Date, substantially in
the form attached as Exhibit D hereto;

20. A Continuing disclosure certificate of the Developer (the "Developer
Continuing Disclosure Certificate") in the form attached as Appendix D to the Official Statement.

21. An opinion of counsel to the Developer, dated the Closing Date and

addressed to the Authority and the Underwriter, in form and substance acceptable to the Underwriter,
to the effect that:

t6
Page 474

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(D The Developer is a limited liability company validly existing
and in good standing under the laws of the State of California, and has full power and authority to enter into
the Developer Continuing Disclosure Certificate;

(iD The Developer has duly and validly executed and delivered

the Developer Continuing Disclosure Certificate, and the Developer Continuing Disclosure Certificate
constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Developer, enforceable against the Developer in
accordance with its terms;

(iiD Except as set forth in the Official Statement, there is no

litigation pending against the Developer (with service of process to the Developer having been duly given

and completed) or overtly threatened against the Developer which would materially and adversely affect the

validity or enforceability of the Developer Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the Developer's ability to
complete the development of its property as proposed in the Official Statement or to pay the Special Tax;

(i") Without having undertaken to determine independently the

accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement and the

Official Statement under the captions, "PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT" and "CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE - The Developer" (except that no opinion or belief need to be expressed as to any

information relating to The Depository Trust Company, or any information relating to CUSIP numbers, or
with respect to any financial, statistical or engineering information, data or forecasts, numbers, charts,

estimates, projections, assumptions or expressions of opinion, assessed valuations or appraised values, or to

any information which is affributable to a source other than Builder, contained in the Official Statement), no

facts came to such counsel's attention during the course of their representation of the Developer that would
lead them to believe that the information under said captions of the Preliminary Official Statement and the

Official Statement relating to the Developer and the Developer's organizations, activities, properties and

financial condition, and its proposed development of the property within the Community Facilities District,
contained or contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits any material fact necessary

in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading;

22.
hereto as Exhibit G; and

A certificate of the Appraiser, substantially in the form attached

23. Such additional legal opinions, certificates, instruments and other
documents as the Undenwiter may reasonably request to evidence the truth and accuracy, as of the

date hereof and as of the Closing Date, of the material representations of the Authority contained
herein, and of the statements and information contained in the Official Statement and the due

performance or satisfaction by the Authority and the Community Facilities District at or prior to the

Closing of all agreements then to be performed and all conditions then to be satisfied by the

Community Facilities District and the Authority in connection with the transactions contemplated
hereby and by the District Indenture, the Trust Agreement, and the Official Statement.

If the Authority shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the obligations of the Underwriter
to purchase, accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds contained in this Purchase Agreement, or if the

obligations of the Underwriter to purchase, accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds shall be

terminated for any reason permitted by this Purchase Agreement, this Purchase Agreement shall
terminate and neither the Authority nor the Underwriter shall be under any further obligation

t7
Page 475

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



hereunder, except that the respective obligations of the Underwriter and the Authority set forth in
Section 6 hereofshall continue in full force and effect.

5. Conditions to the Obligations of the Authority

A. The obligations of the Authority shall be subject to the satisfaction of the

conditions contained in Section 4 of this Purchase Agreement.

B. If the Authority shall be unable to satisfr the conditions to the obligations of
the Authority to purchase, accept delivery of and pay for the Special Tax Bonds contained in the

Local Obligation Purchase Contract, or if the obligations of the Authority to purchase, accept

delivery of and pay for the Special Tax Bonds shall be terminated for any reason permitted by this
Purchase Agreement, this Purchase Agreement shall terminate and neither the Authority nor the

Community Facilities District shall be under any further obligation hereunder, except that the

obligations of the Authority set forth in Section 6 hereof shall continue in full force and effect.

6. Expenses. Whether or not the transactions contemplated by this Purchase Agreement

are consummated, the Underwriter shall be under no obligation to pay, and the Authority shall pay

only from the proceeds of the Bonds, or cause the Community Facilities District to pay out of the

proceeds of the Special Tax Bonds or any other legally available funds of the City, the Community
Facilities District or the Authority, but only as the Authority and such other party providing such

services may agree, all expenses and costs of the Authority incident to the performance of its
obligations in connection with the authorization, execution, sale and delivery of the Bonds to the

Underwriter, including, without limitation, printing costs, initial fees of the Trustee, including fees

and disbursements of their counsel, if any, fees and disbursements of Bond Counsel, Disclosure

Counsel and other professional advisors employed by the Authority, costs of preparation, printing,
signing, transportation, delivery and safekeeping of the Bonds and for expenses (included in the

expense component of the spread) incurred by the Underwriter on behalf of the Authority's
employees which are incidental to implementing this Purchase Agreement, including, but not limited
to, meals, transportation, lodging, and entertainment of those employees. The Underwriter shall pay

all out-of-pocket expenses of the Underwriter, including, without limitation, advertising expenses,

the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission fee, CUSIP Services Bureau charges,

regulatory fees imposed on new securities issuers and any and all other expenses incurred by the

Underwriter in connection with the public offering and distribution of the Bonds, including fees of its
counsel.

7. Notices. Any notice of other communication to be given to the City or the Authority
under this Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing to the City of
Folsom, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA, 95630, Attention: Finance Director; any notice or other

communication to be given to the Underwriter under this Purchase Agreement may be given by
delivering the same in writing to Piper Sandler & Co,3626 Fair Oaks Blvd., Suite 100, Sacramento,

California 95864, Attention: Dennis McGuire.

8. Parties In Interest. This Purchase Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the

Authority and Underwriter (including any successors or assignees of the Underwriter) and no other
person shall acquire or have any right hereunder or by virtue hereof.

9. Survival of Representations. The representations of the Authority under this
Purchase Agreement shall not be deemed to have been discharged, satisfied or otherwise rendered

18

Page 476

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



void by reason of the Closing and regardless of any investigations made by or on behalf of the
Underwriter (or statements as to the results of such investigations) concerning such representations

and statements of the Authority and regardless of delivery of and payment for the Bonds.

10. Execution in Counterparts. This Purchase Agreement may be executed by the parties
hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original,
but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

11. Effective. This Purchase Agreement shall become effective and binding upon the
respective parties hereto upon the execution of the acceptance hereof by the Authority and shall be

valid and enforceable as of the time of such acceptance.

12. No Prior Aqreements. This Purchase Agreement supersedes and replaces all prior
negotiations, agreements and understanding among the parties hereto in relation to the sale of the
Bonds by the Authority.

13. Governing Law. This Purchase Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State

of California.

t9

Page 477

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



By
Its:

14. Effective Date. This Purchase Agreement shall become effective and binding upon
the respective parties hereto upon the execution of the acceptance hereof by the Authority and shall
be valid and enforceable as of the time of such acceptance.

Very truly yours,

PIPER SANDLER & CO.

By
Its: Authorized Officer

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING
AUTHORITY

Treasurer

s-1

Page 478

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



EXHIBIT A

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23

(FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO.3
SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2022

Schedule of Bond Maturities, Principal Amounts,Interest Rates, Yields and Initial Offering
Prices

Matarity
Date

(September 1)
Principal
Amount

Initial
Offering

Price
10% Test

Used

Holdthe
Price

Offering Rule
UsedInterest Rute Yield

r Term Bonds.
c Priced to the |,z}_optional redemption date, at

Optional Redemption. The Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Authority prior
to their respective maturity dates as a whole or in part on any date on or after _,20-, from any
source of available funds other than Minimum Sinking Fund Payments and Special Tax
Prepayments, at the following redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Bonds
or portions thereof called for redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption:

103% if redeemed on any date on or after _,20_ through _, 20-;

102% if redeemed on any date from _,20_ through _, 20-;

I}Iyo if redeemed on any date from _,20_ through _, 2Q_; and

I00% if redeemed otr _, 20_and any date thereafter

Extraordinary Redemption from Prepayment of Special Taxes. The Bonds are subject to
extraordinary redemption by the Authority prior to their respective maturity dates, as a whole or in

A-l
Page 479

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



part on any Interest Payment Date on or after _, 20_, solely from funds derived from the
extraordinary redemption of Local Obligations from Special Tax Prepayments, at the following
redemption prices (computed upon the principal amount of the Bonds or portions thereof called for
redemption) together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

I03% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on or after _,20_ through _, 20-;

T02% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on _,20- and _,20-;
rcl% if redeemed on an Interest Payment Date on _,20- and _,20-; and

100% if redeemed on September 1,2032 and any Interest Payment Date thereafter.

Mandatory Sinking Fand Redemption of Bonds. The Bonds maturing on September l,
20- are subject to mandatory redemption in part by lot on September 1 of each year commencing
September 1,20_, at a redemption price equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal
amount thereof called for redemption together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption:

Minimum Sinking Fund
Payment Date
(September 1)

Bonds
Minimum Sinking Fund Payment

t Maturity

The Bonds maturing on September I,20- are subject to mandatory redemption in part on
September 1 of each year commencing September 1,20-, at a redemption price equal to one
hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof called for redemption together with accrued
interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

A-2
Page 480

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Minimum Sinking Fund
Payment Date
(September 1)

Bonds
Minimum Sinking Fund Payment

t Maturity.

If the Bonds subject to mandatory redemption are redeemed in part prior to their stated
maturity date other than from Minimum Sinking Fund Payments, the Minimum Sinking Fund
Payments for such Bonds shall be reduced proportionately by the principal amount of such Bonds so

redeemed.

A-3

Page 481

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



EXHIBIT B

FOLSOM RANCH FINAI\CING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23

(FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO.3
SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2022

LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS OF THE DISTRICT

_,2022

Piper Sandler & Co.
3 626 F air Oaks Boulevard
Sacramento, California 9 5864

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement
Area No. 3 Special Tax Bonds, Series 2022

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In connection with the proposed offer and sale of the above-referenced bonds (the "special
Tax Bonds"), the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the
ooCommunity Facilities District") hereby represents and covenants to Piper Sandler & Co., as
underwriter (the "Underwriter") of the Folsom Financing Authority City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds,
Series 2022 (he "Bonds"), as follows:

A. The City of Folsom (the "City") is duly organized and validly existing as a municipal
corporation and charter city under the Constitution and laws of the State of California and the Charter
and the Community Facilities District is a community facilities district organized and existing
pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2.5,
Part l, Division 2,Title 5 of the Government Code of the State of California.

B. The City has duly authorized the formation of the Community Facilities District and
the establishment of Improvement Area No. 3 therein (the "Improvement Area") pursuant to
resolutions and an ordinance duly adopted by the City Council (collectively, the "Community
Facilities District Formation Resolution" and, together with Resolution No. 10835 authorizing the
issuance and sale of the Special Tax Bonds, the "Community Facilities District Resolutions") and
the Community Facilities District Act. The City Council, acting as the legislative body of the
Community Facilities District has duly adopted the Community Facilities District Resolutions, and
has caused to be recorded in the real property records of the County of Sacramento, a notice of
special tax lien (the "Notice of Special Tax Lien") (the Community Facilities District Formation
Resolution and Notice of Special Tax Lien being collectively referred to herein as the "Formation
Documents"). Each of the Formation Documents remains in full force and effect as of the date
hereofand has not been amended.

Re:

B-1

Page 482

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



C. The Community Facilities District has, and at the Closing Date will have, as the case

may be, full legal right, power and authority: (i) to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under

the District Indenture, ihe Trust Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the Local

Obligation Purchase Contract, and to carry out all transactions contemplated by each of such

documents; (ii) to issue, sell and deliver its Special Tax Bonds to the Authority; and (iii) to carry out,

give effect to'and consummate the transactions contemplated by the Formation Documents, the

birt irt Indenture, the Trust Agreement, the Local Obligation Purchase Contract, the Special Tax

Bonds, this Letter of Representations, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and the Official

Statement.

This Letter of Representations, the Trust Agreement, the District Indenture, the Local

Obligation Purchase Contract, the Special Tax Bonds and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate are

collectively referred to herein as the "District Documents'"

D. The Community Facilities District has complied, and will at the Closing Date be in

compliance in all material respects, with the Formation Documents and the District Documents, and

immaterial noncompliance by the Community Facilities District, if any, will not impair the ability of
the Community Facilities District to carry out, give effect to or consummate the transactions

contemplated by the foregoing. From and after the date of issuance of its Special Tax Bonds, the

Community Facilities District will continue to comply with the covenants of the Community

Facilities District contained in the District Documents.

E. Except as described in the Preliminary Official Statement, the Community Facilities

District is not, in any respect material to the transactions referred to herein or contemplated hereby,

in breach of or in default under, any law or administrative rule or regulation of the State of
California, the United States of America, or of any department, division, agency or instrumentality of
either thereof, or under any applicable court or administrative decree or order, or under any loan

agreement, note, resolution, indenfure, contract, agreement or other instrument to which the

Community Facilities District is a party or is otherwise subject or bound, and the performance of its

obligations under the District Documents and compliance with the provisions of each thereof, or the

perf6rmance of the conditions precedent to be performed by the Community Facilities District

pursuant to the District Documents, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under

any applicable law or administrative rule or regulation of the State, the United States of America, or

of any department, division, agency or instrumentality of either thereof, or under any applicable court

or administrative decree or order, or under any loan agreement, note, resolution, indenture, contract,

agreement or other instrument to which the Community Facilities District is a party or is otherwise

subject or bound, in any manner that would materially and adversely affect the performance by the

Community Facilities District of its obligations under the District Documents or the performance of
the conditions precedent to be performed by the Community Facilities District pursuant to the

District Documents.

F. Except as may be required under the 'oblue sky" or other securities laws of any

jurisdiction, all approvals, consents, authorizations, elections and orders of, or filings or registrations

with, any governmental authority, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction which would

constitutl a condition precedent to, or the absence of which would materially adversely affect, the

performance by the Community Facilities District of its obligations under the District Documents,
^have 

been or will be obtained at the Closing Date and are or will be in full force and effect at the

Closing Date.

B-2
Page 483

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



G. The District Documents conform as to form and tenor to the descriptions thereof

contained in the Preliminary Official Statement.

H. The Special Tax Bonds are payable from the Special Tax, as set forth in the District

Indenture, the levy of which has been duly and validly authorized pursuant to the Community

Facilities District Act and the Special Tax within the Improvement Area will be fixed and levied in

an amount which, together with other available funds, is required for the payment of the principal of,

and interest on, the Special Tax Bonds when due and payable, all as provided in the District

Indenture. The Community Facilities District has covenanted to cause the Special Tax to be levied

and collected at the same time and in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes.

I. The District Indenture creates a valid pledge of, first lien upon and security interest

in, the Special Tax, and in the moneys in the Special Tax Fund established pursuant to the District

Indenture, on the terms and conditions set forth in the District Indenture.

J. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement, there are, to the best of the

Community Facilities District's knowledge, no entities with outstanding assessment liens against any

of the properties within the Improvement Area or which are senior to or on a parity with the Special

Tax referred to in paragraph (H) hereof.

K. The information contained in the Preliminary Official Statement (other than

statements therein pertaining to the Authority, DTC and its book-entry system and under the caption

"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT - Property Ownership,)) 4- Development Plan and

Status of Development," 6(- psyslspment Plans of Finance" and "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE -
The Developer," as to which no view is expressed) does not and shall not contain any untrue or

misleading statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the

statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and,

upon delivery and up to and including 25 days after the End of the Underwriting Period (as defined

in paragraph (L) below), the Official Statement will be amended and supplemented so as to contain

no misstatement of any material fact or omission of any statement necessary to make the statements

contained therein, in the light of the circumstances in which such statements were made, not

misleading.

L. Up to and including 25 days after the End of the Underwriting Period, the

Community Facilities District will advise the Underwriter promptly of any proposal to amend or

supplement the Official Statement and will not effect or consent to any such amendment or

supplement without the consent of the Underwriter, which consent will not be unreasonably

*ithh"ld. The Community Facilities District will advise the Underwriter promptly of the institution

of any proceedings known to it by any governmental agency prohibiting or otherwise materially

affecting the use of the Official Statement in connection with the offering, sale or distribution of the

Bonds. As used herein, the term "End of the Underwriting Period" means the later of such time as:

(i) the Bonds are delivered to the Underwriter; or (ii) the Underwriter does not retain, directly or as a

member of an underwriting syndicate, an unsold balance of the Bonds for sale to the public. Unless

the Underwriter gives notice to the contrary, the End of the Underwriting Period shall be deemed to

be the Closing Date. Any notice delivered pursuant to this provision shall be a written notice

delivered to the City at or prior to the Closing Date, and shall specifr a date (other than the Closing

Date) to be deemed the "End of the Underwriting Period'"

B-3
Page 484

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



M. There is no action pending (notice of which has been served on the Community

Facilities District or the City) or to the best knowledge of the Community Facilities District

threatened, in which any such action: (i) in any way questions the existence of the Community

Facilities District or the titles of the officers of the City to their respective offices; (ii) affects,

contests or seeks to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Bonds or the Special

Tax Bonds or the payment or collection of the Special Tax or any amounts pledged or to be pledged

to pay the principal of and interest on the Special Tax Bonds or the Bonds, or in any way contests or

afficis the validity of the Formation Documents or the District Documents or the consummation of
the transactions on the part of the Community Facilities District contemplated thereby; (iii) contests

the exemption of interest on the Bonds or the Special Tax Bonds from federal or State income

taxation, as applicable, or contests the powers of the City or the Community Facilities District which

may result in any material adverse change relating to the financial condition of the Community

Facilities District; or (iv) contests the completeness or accuracy of the Preliminary Official Statement

or any supplement or amendment thereto or asserts that the Preliminary Official Statement contained

any untrue statement of a materi al fact or omitted to state any material fact required to be stated

therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which

they were made, not misleading; and there is no basis for any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or

investigation of the nature described in clauses (i) through (iv) of this sentence.

N. Any certificate signed on behalf of the Community Facilities District by any officer

or employee of the City authorized to do so shall be deemed a representation by the Community

Faciliiies District to the Authority and the Underwriter on behalf of itself and the Community

Facilities District as to the statements made therein.

O. At or prior to the Closing, the Community Facilities District will have duly

authorized, executed and delivered the Continuing Disclosure Certificate in substantially the form

attached as Appendix D to the Official Statement. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official
Statement, the City has not failed to comply in all respects with any previous undertakings with
regard to the Rule to provide annual reports or notices of material events in the last five years'

P. The Community Facilities District will apply the proceeds of its Special Tax Bonds in

accordance with the District Indenture.

a. Between the date of the Purchase Agreement and the date of Closing, the Community

Facilities District will not offer or issue any bonds, notes or other obligations for borrowed money

not previously disclosed to the Underwriter.

B-4
Page 485

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Capitalizedterms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the

Bond Purchase Agreement by and between the Authority and the Underwriter.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DrsTRrcr No. 23 (FOLSOM RANCH)

Finance Director of the City of Folsom
By

B-5
Page 486

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



EXHIBIT C

FOLSOM RANCH FINANCING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3
SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2022

LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS OF
TOLL WEST INC., DIB/ATOLL BROTHERS WEST INC.

2022_)

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, California 95630

Piper Sandler & Co.
3626Fair Oaks Boulevard, Suite 100

Sacramento, California 9 5864

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is made to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community
Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds,
Series 2022 (the "Bonds") and to the Bond Purchase Agreement to be entered into in connection
therewith (the "Purchase Agreement"). This Letter of Representations of Toll West Inc., dlblaToll
Brothers West Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Letter of Representations") is delivered pursuant
to the Purchase Agreement. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein have the
meanings ascribed to them in the Purchase Agreement.

The undersigned certifies that he or she is familiar with the facts herein certified and is
authorized and qualified to certify the same as an authorized officer or representative of Toll West
Inc., dlbla Toll Brothers West Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Developer"), and the undersigned,
on behalf of the Developer further certifies as follows:

1. The Developer is a limited liability company validly existing and in
good standing under the laws of the State of California and is duly registered to transact intrastate
business in the State of California and is in good standing in the State of California and has all
requisite right, power and authority: (i) to execute and deliver this Letter of Representations; (ii)
executive and deliver the Developer Continuing Disclosure Certificate; and (iii) to undertake all of
the transactions on its part described in the Preliminary Official Statement.

c-l
Page 487

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



2. As set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement, certain property within
Improvement Area No. 3 (the "Improvement Area") of City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") is held in the name of the
Developer or its Affiliatesl (herein the "Property"). The undersigned, on behalf of the Developer,
makes the representations herein with respect to all such Property.

3. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement, to the Actual Knowledge
of the Undersigned,t (u) the Developer and its Affiliates are not in breach of or in default under any
applicable judgment or decree or any loan agreement, option agreement, development agreement,
indenture, fiscal agent agreement, bond or note (collectively, the "Material Agreements") to which
the Developer or its Affiliates are a party or otherwise subject, which breach or default could
reasonably be expected to materially and adversely affect the Developer's ability to complete the
development of the Property as described in the Preliminary Official Statement or to pay the Special
Tax on the Property (to the extent the responsibility of the Developer or its Affiliates) prior to
delinquency and (b) no event has occured and is continuing that with the passage of time or giving
of notice, or both, would constitute such a breach or default.

4. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, neither the Developer, nor any of its
Affiliates is in default on any obligation to repay borrowed money, which default is reasonably likely
to materially and adversely affect the Developer's ability to complete the development of the
Property as described in the Preliminary Official Statement or to pay the Special Tax on the Property
(to the extent the responsibility of the Developer or its Affiliates) prior to delinquency.

5. Except as set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement, no action, suit, proceeding,
inquiry or investigation at law or in equity, before or by any court, regulatory agency, public board or
body is pending against the Developer (with proper service of process or proper notice to the
Developer having been accomplished) or, to the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, is pending
against any current Affiliate (with proper service of process to such Affiliate having been
accomplished) or to the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned is threatened in writing against the
Developer or any such Affiliate which if successful, is reasonably likely to materially and adversely
affect the Developer's ability to complete the development of the Property as described in the
Preliminary Official Statement or to pay the Special Tax or ad valorem tax obligations on its
Property (to the extent the responsibility of the Developer or its Affiliates) prior to delinquency.

1 "Affili"t." means, with respect to a Person (i) any other Person directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
controlling, controlled by or under common control with such Person, and (ii) for whom information, including financial
information or operating dat4 concerning such Person referenced in clause (i) is material to potential investors in their
evaluation of the Improvement Area and investment decision regarding the Bonds (i.e., information relevant to the Developer's
development plans with respect to its Property and the payment of its Special Tax on the Property prior to delinquency, or such
Person's assets or funds that would materially affect the Developer's ability to develop its Property as described in the
Preliminary Official Statement or to pay its Special Tax on the Property prior to delinquency). "Person" means an individual, a
corporation, a partnership, a limited liability company, an association, a joint stock company, a trust, any unincorporated
organization or a government or political subdivision thereof. For purposes hereof the term "control" (including the terms
"controlling," "controlled by" or "under common control with") means the possession, direct or indirect, of the power to
direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by
contract or otherwise.

2 As used in this Letter of Representations, the phrase "Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned" shall mean the knowledge
of the undersigned as of the date hereof obtained from interviews with such current officers and responsible employees of the
Developer and its Affiliates as the undersigned has determined are likely, in the ordinary course oftheir respective duties, to have
knowledge ofthe matters set forth herein. The undersigned has not conducted any extraordinary inspection or inquiry otherthan
such inspections or inquiries as are prudent and customary in connection with the ordinary course of the Developer's current
business and operations.

c-2
Page 488

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



6. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned as of the date thereof, the Preliminary
Official Statement, solely with respect to information contained therein with respect to the
Developer, its Affiliates, ownership of the Property, the Developer's development plan, the
Developer's financing plan, the Developer's lenders, if any, and contractual arrangements of the
Developer or any Affiliates (including, if material to the Developer's development plan or the
Developer's financing plan, other loans of such Affiliates) as set forth under the caption
"PROPOSED PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT" is true and correct in all material respects and did not
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

7. The Developer covenants that, while the Bonds or any refunding obligations related
thereto are outstanding, the Developer and its Affiliates which it controls will not bring any action,
suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity, before any court, regulatory agency,
public board or body, that in any way seeks to challenge or overturn the formation of the Community
Facilities District or the Improvement Area, to challenge the adoption of Ordinance No. 1305 of the
City levying the Special Tax within the Improvement Area, to invalidate the Community Facilities
District, the Improvement Area or any of the Bonds or any refunding bonds related thereto, or to
invalidate the special tax liens imposed under Section3115.5 of the Streets and Highways Code
based on recordation of the amended notice of special tax lien relating thereto. The foregoing
covenant shall not prevent the Developer in any way from bringing any other action, suit or
proceeding including, without limitation, (a) an action or suit contending that the Special Tax has not
been levied in accordance with the methodologies contained in the Community Facilities District's
Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Taxes for the Improvement Area pursuant to which
the Special Tax is levied, or (b) an action or suit with respect to the application or use of the Special
Tax levied and collected.

8. Except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement, to the Actual Knowledge
of the Undersigned, the Developer is not aware that any other public debt secured by a tax or
assessment on the Properly exists or is in the process of being authorized or any assessment districts
or community facilities districts have been or are in the process of being formed that include any
portion of the Property.

9. The Developer has been developing or has been involved in the development of
numerous projects over an extended period of time. It is likely that the Developer has been
delinquent at one time or another in the payment of ad valorem property taxes, special assessments or
special taxes. However, except as disclosed in the Preliminary Official Statement, to the Actual
Knowledge of the Undersigned, neither the Developer nor any Affiliate is currently in default in, or
in the last five (5) years has ever defaulted to any material extent in the payment of any ad valorem
property tax, special assessment or special tax on property owned by the Developer or any Affiliate
within the boundaries of a community facilities district or an assessment district within California
that (a) caused a draw on a reserve fund relating to such assessment district or community facilities
district financing or (b) resulted in a foreclosure action being commenced against the Developer or
any such Affiliate.

10. The Developer intends to comply with the provision of the Mello-Roos Community
Facilities District Act of 1982, as amended, relating to the Notice of Special Tax described in
Government Code Section 5334I.5 in connection with the sale of the Property, or portions thereof.

c-3
Page 489

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



I 1. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, the Developer is able to pay its bills as

they become due and no legal proceedings are pending against the Developer (with proper service of
process to the Developer having been accomplished) or, to the Actual Knowledge of the

Undersigned, threatened in writing in which the Developer may be adjudicated as bankrupt or
discharged from any and all of its debts or obligations, or granted an extension of time to pay its
debts or obligations, or be allowed to reorganize or readjust its debts, or be subject to control or
supervision of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

12. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, Affiliates of the Developer are able to
pay their bills as they become due and no legal proceedings are pending against any Affiliates of the

Developer (with proper service of process to such Affiliate having been accomplished) or to the

Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, threatened in writing in which the Affiliates of the Developer

may be adjudicated as bankrupt or discharged from any or all of their debts or obligations, or granted

an extension of time to pay their debts or obligations, or be allowed to reorganize or readjust their
debts or obligations, or be subject to control or supervision of the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation.

13. If between the date hereof and the Closing Date any event relating to or affecting the

Developer, its Affiliates, ownership of the Property, the Developer's development plan, the

Developer's financing plan, the Developer's lenders, if any, and contractual arrangements of the

Developer or any Affiliates (including, if material to the Developer's development plan or the

Developer's financing plan, other loans of such Affiliates) shall occur of which the undersigned has

actual knowledge and which the undersigned believes would cause the information under the sections

of the Preliminary Official Statement indicated in Paragraph 6 hereof, to contain an untrue statement

of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the

light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, the undersigned shall notify
the City and the Underwriter and if in the opinion of counsel to the City or the Underwriter such

event requires the preparation and publication of a supplement or amendment to the Preliminary
Official Statement, the Developer shall reasonably cooperate with the City in the preparation of an

amendment or supplement to the Preliminary Official Statement in form and substance reasonably

satisfactory to counsel to the City and to the Underwriter.

14. For the period through 25 days after the "End of the Underwriting Period" as defined

in the Purchase Agreement, if any event relating to or affecting the Developer, its Affiliates,
ownership of the Property, the Developer's development plan, the Developer's financing plan, the

Developer's lenders, if any, and contractual arrangements of the Developer or any Affiliates
(including, if material to the Developer's development plan or the Developer's financing plan, other

loans of such Affiliates) shall occur as a result of which it is necessary, in the opinion of the

Underwriter or counsel to the City, to amend or supplement the Official Statement in order to make

the Official Statement not misleading in the light of the circumstances existing at the time it is
delivered to a purchaser, the Developer shall reasonably cooperate with the City and the Underwriter
in the preparation of an amendment or supplement to the Official Statement in form and substance

reasonably satisfactory to the Underwriter and Disclosure Counsel which will amend or supplement
the Official Statement so that it will not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state

a material fact necessary in order to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances
existing at the time the Official Statement is delivered to a purchaser, not misleading.

c-4
Page 490

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



15. The Developer agrees to deliver a Closing Certificate dated the date of issuance of the

Bonds at the time of issuance of the Bonds in substantially the form attached as Exhibit D to the

Purchase Agreement.

16. The Developer agrees to deliver the Developer Continuing Disclosure Certificate in
substantially the form attached as Appendix D to the Preliminary Official Statement.

17. On behalf of the Developer, I have reviewed the contents of this Letter of
Representations and have met with counsel to the Developer for the purpose of discussing the

meaning of its contents.

The undersigned has executed this Letter of Representations solely in his or her capacity as

an officer or authorized representative of Developer and he or she will have no personal liability
arising from or relating to this Letter of Representations.

TOLL WEST rNC., D{BIA TOLL BROTHERS
WEST INC., a Delaware corporation

By:
Its:

c-s
Page 491

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



EXHIBIT D

FOLSOM RANCH FINA}ICING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.23

(FOLSOM RANCH)
SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2022

cLosING CERTIFICATE OF TOLL WEST INC., D|B/A TOLL BROTHERS WEST rNC.

2022

-,
Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA,95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA,95630

Piper Sandler & Co.

3626 F air Oaks Boulevard
Sacramento, California 9 5864

Ladies and Gentlemen:

Reference is made to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community

Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds,

Series 2022 (the "Bonds") and to the Bond Purchase Agreement, dated 

-,2022 

(the "Purchase

Agreement"), entered into in connection therewith. This certificate is delivered by Toll West Inc., dlbla

toll Brothers West Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Developer") pursuant to the Purchase Agreement'

Capitalized terms used herein or in the Leffer of Representations (defined below) and not otherwise

defined have the meanings ascribed to them in the Purchase Agreement. A copy of a Leffer of
Representations (the "Letter of Representations"), dated , 2022, delivered by the Developer, is

attached hereto as Exhibit A.

The undersigned certifies that he or she is familiar with the facts herein certified and is authorized

and qualified to certifi' the same as an authorized officer or representative of the Developer, and the

undersigned, on behalf of the Developer, further certifies as follows:

1. The Developer has received the final Official Statement relating to the Bonds. Each

statement, representation and warranty made in the Letter of Representations is true and correct in all

material respicts on and as of the date hereof with the same effect as if made on the date hereof, except

that all refeiences therein to the Preliminary Official Statement shall be deemed to be references to the

final Official Statement.

D-1
Page 492

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



2. To the Actual Knowledge of the Undersigned, no event has occurred since the date of the

Preliminary Official Statement affecting the statements and information described in Paragraph 6 of the

Letter of Representations relating to the Developer, its Affiliates, ownership of the Property, the

Developer's development plan, the Developer's financing plan, the Developer's lenders, if any, and

contractual arrangements of the Developer or any Affiliates (including, if material to the Developer's
development plan or the Developer's financing plan, other loans of such Affiliates) which should be

disclosed in the Official Statement for the purposes for which it is to be used in order to make such

statements and information contained in the Official Statement not misleading in any material respect.

3. The Developer has duly and validly executed and delivered the Developer Continuing
Disclosure Certificate.

4. The undersigned has executed this Certificate solely in his or her capacity as an officer of
Developer and he or she will have no personal liability arising from or relating to this Certificate.

TOLL WEST rNC., D{B/A TOLL BROTHERS
WEST INC., a Delaware corporation

By:
Its:

D-2
Page 493

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



EXHIBIT E

SUPPLEMENTAL OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

2022

-,
Piper Sandler & Co., as Underwriter
Sacramento, California

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthoritY
City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Improvement Area No. 3
Tax Revenue Bonds. Sefies2022

(Supplemental OPinion)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This letter is addressed to you, as Undenvriter, pursuant to Section 4.F.7. of the Bond

Purchase Agreement, dated _) 2022 (the "Purchase Agreement"), between you and the Folsom

Ranch Financing Authority (the "Authority"), providing for the purchase of $- aggregate

principal u-ount of Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities

bitt iit No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022

(the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Trust Agreement, dated as of 

- 

1,2022

(the "Trust Agreemenf'), among the Authority, the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No.

23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "Community Facilities District") and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National

Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"). Capitalizedterms not otherwise defined herein shall have the

meanings ascribed thereto in the Trust Agreement or, if not defined in the Trust Agreement, in the

Purchase Agreement.

We have delivered our final legal opinion (the "Bond Opinion") as bond counsel to the

Authority concerning the validity of the Bonds and certain other matters, dated the date hereof and

addressed to the Authority. You may rely on such opinion as though the same were addressed to

you.

In connection with our role as bond counsel to the Authority, we have reviewed the Purchase

Agreement; the Trust Agreement; the Local Obligations Indenture; the Tax Certificate, dated the date

hereof (the "Tax Certificate"), executed and delivered by the Authority, the Community Facilities

District and the City of Folsom (the "City"); certain portions of the electronic version of the

prel iminary official statement of the Authority, dated -_t 2022 and posted oil 

-: 

2022, with
respect to the Bonds (the "Preliminary Official Statement") and of the electronic version of the

official statement of the Authority, dated 

-,2022 

and posted on 2022,with respect to

the Bonds (the "Official Statement"); opinions of counsel to the Authority, the Community Facilities

District and the Trustee; certificates of the Authority, the Community Facilities District, the Trustee,

Integra Realty Resources (the "Appraiser"), NBS (the "special Tax Consultant"), Toll West Inc.,

ab|mllBrothers West Inc. (the "Developer"), and others; and such other documents, opinions and

matters to the extent we deemed necessary to render the opinions and conclusions set forth herein.

E-1

Page 494

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



The opinions and conclusions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws,

regulations, rulings and court decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by such

authorities. Such opinions or conclusions may be affected by actions taken or omitted or events

occurring after the original delivery of the Bonds on the date hereof. We have not undertaken to

determine, or to inform any person, whether any such actions are taken or omitted or events do occur

or any other matters come to our attention after the original delivery of the Bonds on the date hereof.

We have assumed the genuineness of all documents and signatures provided to us and the due and

legal execution and delivery thereof by, and validity against, any parties other than the Authority.
We have assumed, without undertaking to veriff, the accuracy of the factual matters represented,

warranted or certified in the documents, and of the legal conclusions contained in the opinions,

referred to in the third paragraph hereof. We have fuither assumed compliance with all covenants

and agreements contained in such documents. In addition, we call attention to the fact that the rights

and obligations under the Bonds, the Trust Agreement, the Local Obligations Indenture, the Tax

Certificate and the Purchase Agreement and their enforceability may be subject to bankruptcy,

insolvency, reorganization, receivership, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other

laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights, to the application of equitable principles, to the exercise

of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and to the limitations on legal remedies against

governmental entities such as the Authority and the Community Facilities District in the State of
California. We express no opinion with respect to any indemnification, contribution, liquidated

damages, penalty (including any remedy deemed to constitute or to have the effect of a penalty),

right of set-off, arbitration, judicial reference, choice of law, choice of forum, choice of venue, non-

exclusivity of remedies, waiver or severability provisions contained in the foregoing documents, nor

do we express any opinions with respect to the state or quality of title to or interest in any assets

described in or as subject to the lien of the Trust Agreement or the Local Obligations Indenture or the

accuracy or sufficiency of the description contained therein of, or the remedies available to enforce

liens on, any such assets. We also express no opinion regarding plans, specifications, maps, financial

reports or other engineering or financial details of the proceedings, or upon the Rate and Method of
Apportionment for Improvement Area No. 3 of the Community Facilities District or the validity of
the Special Tax levied upon any individual parcel.

Based on and subject to the foregoing, and in reliance thereon, as of the date hereof, we are

of the following opinions and conclusions:

1. The Bonds are not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and the Trust Agreement is exempt from qualification pursuant to the Trust

Indenture Act of 1939, as amended.

2. The Purchase Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by, and constitutes a

valid and binding obligation of, the Authority.

3. The statements contained in the Official Statement under the captions "THE
BONDS," "SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS" (excluding therefrom

the information under the headings "-special Tax Analysis", "-Special Tax Calculation" and "-The
Teeter Plan"), and "TAX MATTERS," and in APPENDIX E-"PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION
OF BOND COUNSEL" and APPENDIX C-"SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS,"
excluding any material that may be treated as included under such captions by cross-reference or

reference to other documents or sources, insofar as such statements expressly summarize certain

provisions of the Trust Agreement, or set out the content of our Bond Opinion, are accurate in all

material respects.

E-2

Page 495

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



4. We are not passing upon and do not assume any responsibility for the accuracy,

completeness or fairness of any of the statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement or

(exclpt as explicitly stated in paragraph 3 above) in the Official Statement and make no

iepresentation ihat we have independently verified the accuracy, completeness or fairness of any

.uih ,tut"-ents. In our capacity as bond counsel to the Authority in connection with issuance of the

Bonds, we participated in conferences with your representatives, your counsel, representatives of the

Community Facilities District, the City, the Authority, their counsel, representatives of the Developer

and their clunsel, the Appraiser, the Special Tax Consultant and others, during which the contents of
the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement and related matters were discussed.

Based on oui participation in the above-mentioned conferences (which, with respect to the

Preliminary Official Statement, did not extend beyond the date of the Purchase Agreement, and with

respect to ihe Official Statement did not extend beyond its date), and in reliance thereon, on oral and

written statements and representations of the Authority, the Community Facilities District, and others

and on the records, documents, certificates, opinions and matters herein mentioned, subject to the

limitations on our role as bond counsel to the Authority, we advise you as a matter of fact and not

opinion that (a) no facts had come to the attention of the attorneys in our firm rendering legal

services with respect to the Preliminary Official Statement which caused us to believe as of the date

of the Purchase Agreement, based on the documents, drafts and facts in existence and reviewed as of
that date that the Preliminary Official Statement contained any untrue statement of a material fact or

omitted to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading (except any information marked as

preliminary or subject to change, any information permitted to be omitted by Securities and
^Exchange -Commisiion 

Rule l5c-12 or otherwise left blank and any other differences with the

informaiion in the Official Statement), and (b) no facts had come to the attention of the attomeys in

our firm rendering legal service with respect to the Official Statement which caused us to believe as

of the date of the bffr"iut Statement and as of the date hereof that the Official Statement contained or

contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state any material fact

necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were

made, not misleading; provided that, we expressly exclude from the scope of this paragraph and

express no opinion oi conclusion, with respect to both the Preliminary Official Statement and the

Official Statement, about any CUSIP numbers, financial, accounting, statistical or economic,

engineering or demographic data or forecasts, numbers, charts, tables, graphs, estimates, projections,

assumptions o. 
"*pi"5ions 

of opinion, any information about feasibility, valuation, appraisals,

absorpiion, real estate or environmental matters, any statements about compliance with prior

continuing disclosure undertakings, or any information about book-entry, DTC, Cede & Co., ratings,

rating agencies, underwriters, underwriting, and the information contained in Appendices A, B, D, F

and b included or refeled to therein or omitted therefrom. No responsibility is undertaken or

conclusion expressed with respect to any other disclosure document, materials or activity, or as to

any information from another document or source referred to by or incorporated by reference in the

Preliminary Official Statement or the Official Statement.

This letter is furnished by us as bond counsel to the Authority. No attorney-client

relationship has existed or exists between our firm and you in connection with the Bonds or by virtue

of this letter. We disclaim any obligation to update this letter. This letter is delivered to you as

Underwriter of the Bonds, is solely for your benefit as such Underwriter in connection with the

original delivery of the Bonds on the date hereof, and is not to be used, circulated, quoted or

otherwise referred to or relied upon for any other purpose or by any other person. This letter is not

intended to, and may not, be relied upon by owners of the Bonds or by any other party to whom it is
not specifically addressed.

E-3

Page 496

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Very truly yours,

ORzuCK, HERRINGTON & SUTCLIFFE lt-P

E-4
Page 497

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



EXHIBIT F

FOLSOM RANCH FINAIICING AUTHORITY
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) TMPROVEMENT AREA NO.3
SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2022

FORM OF ISSUE PRICE CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, on behalf of Piper Sandler & Co. (the "PSC"), hereby certifies as set forth
below with respect to the sale and issuance of the above-captioned bonds (the "Bonds").

1. Sale of the General Rule Maturities. As of the date of this certificate, for each
Maturity of the General Rule Maturities, the first price at which at least lUYo of such Maturity was
sold to the Public is the respective price listed in Schedule A.

2. Initial Offering Price of the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities.

(a) PSC offered the Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities to the Public for purchase at the
respective initial offering prices listed in Schedule A (the "Initial Offering Prices") on or before the
Sale Date. A copy of the pricing wire or equivalent communication for the Bonds is attached to this
certificate as Schedule B.

(b) As set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement, dated April2T,2022,by and between
PSC and the Issuer, PSC has agreed in writing that (i) for each Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-
Price Maturities, it would neither offer nor sell any of the Bonds of such Maturity to any person at a
price that is higher than the Initial Offering Price for such Maturity during the Holding Period for
such Maturity (the "hold-the-offering-price rule"); and (ii) any selling group agreement shall
contain the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and any retail distribution
agreement shall contain the agreement of each broker-dealer who is a par1ry to the retail distribution
agreement, to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule. Pursuant to such agreement, no
Underwriter (as defined below) has offered or sold any Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering-Price
Maturities at a price that is higher than the respective Initial Offering Price for that Maturity of the
Bonds during the Holding Period.

3. DeJined Terms

(a) General Rule Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds listed in Schedule A
hereto as the "General Rule Maturities."

(b) Hold+he-Offering-Price Maturities means those Maturities of the Bonds listed in
Schedule A hereto as the "Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities."

(c) Holding Period means, with respect to a Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity, the period
starting on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the close of the fifth business day after the
April2T ,2022 (he Sale Date), or (ii) the date on which the Underwriter has sold at least 10% of such

F-1

Page 498

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturity to the Public at prices that are no higher than the Initial Offering

Price for such Ho ld-the-Offering-Price Maturity.

(d) Issuer means the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority.

(e) Maturity means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. Bonds with different

maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but different stated interest rates, are treated as

separate maturities.

(0 Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership,

association, company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a related pu.ty to an Underwriter.

The term oorelated party" for purposes of this certificate generally means any two or more persons

who have greater than 50 percent common ownership, directly or indirectly.

(g) Sale Date means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the

sale of a Maturity of the Bonds. The Sale Date of the Bonds is Apri\27,2022.

(h) (Jnderwriter means: (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the

Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial

sale of the Bonds to the Public; and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly

or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of
the Bonds to the Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution

agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the Public).

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in

this certificatJrepresents PSC's interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and

148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder.

The undersigned understands thitt the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Issuer with
respect to certain of the representations set forth in the Tax Certificate and with respect to

compliance with the federal income tax rules affecting the Bonds, and by Onick Herrington &
Sutciiffe LLP, in connection with rendering its opinion that the interest on the Bonds is excluded

from gross income for federal income tax purposes, the preparation of the Internal Revenue Service

Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice that it may give to the Issuer from time to time

relating to the Bonds.

PIPER SANDLER & CO.

Name

Dated: May 11,2022

F-2
Page 499

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SCHEDULE A

(Attached)

F-3

Page 500

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



SCHEDULE B

PRICING WIRE

(Attached)

F-4

Page 501

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



EXHIBIT G

FOLSOM RANCH FINA}ICING AUTHORIT}
CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

(FOLSOM RANCH) IMPROVEMENT AREA NO. 3
SPECIAL TAX REVENUE BONDS

SERIES 2022

CERTIF'ICATE OF APPRAISER

Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
50 Natoma Street,
Folsom, CA,95630

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch)
50 Natoma Street,
Folsom, CA,95630

Piper Sandler & Co.
3626Fair Oaks Boulevard, Suite 200

Sacramento, California 9 5864

The undersigned hereby states and certifies:

1. That he is an authorized principal of Integra Realty Resources (the "Appraiser") and

as such is familiar with the facts herein certified and is authorized and qualified to certify the same.

2. That the Appraiser has prepared an appraisal report, dated 

-, 

2022 (the

"Appraisal Report"), on behalf of the City of Folsom Community Facilities DistrictNo. 23 (Folsom

nancfr; (the "Community Facilities District") and the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the

"Authority") in connection with the Preliminary Official Statement, dated 

-, 

2022 (the

"Preliminary Official Statement") and the Official Statement dated 

-, 

2022 ("Official
Statement"), for the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Senes 2022

(the "Bonds").

3. That the Appraiser hereby consents to the reproduction and use of the Appraisal

Report appended to the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement. The Appraiser

alsb conients to the references to the Appraiser and the Appraisal made in the Preliminary Official

Statement and the Official Statement.

4. In the opinion of the Appraiser the assumptions made in the Appraisal Report are

reasonable. Since the date of value of the Appraisal Report, the Appraiser is not aware of any facts

that would cause its opinion of value of the taxable property in Improvement Area No. 3 (the

'olmprovement Area") of the Community Facilities District to be lower than the value in the

Appraisal.

G-1 Page 502

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



5. Each of the parcels appraised by the Appraiser is encompassed within the

Improvement Area as set forth in the boundary map of the Community Facilities District.

6. That, as of the date of the Preliminary Official Statement, as of the date of the

Official Statement and as of the date hereof, the Appraisal Report appended to the Preliminary
Official Statement and the Official Statement, to the best of my knowledge and belief, and subject to

all of the Limiting Conditions and Major Assumptions set forth in the Appraisal Report, did not and

does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a mateial fact necessary in
order to make the statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they

were made, not misleading, and no events or occuffences have been ascertained by us or have come

to our attention that would substantially change the estimated values stated in the Appraisal Report.

However, we have not performed any procedures since the date of the Appraisal Report to obtain

knowledge of such events or occurrences nor are we obligated to do so in the future.

7. The Community Facilities District and the Underwriter, Piper Sandler & Co., are

entitled to rely on the Certificate.

Dated: _,2022 INTEGRA REALTY RESOURCES

By
Authorized Representative

G-2 Page 503

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 8

Page 504

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



DISTRICT CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

THIS DISTRICT CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE (this "Disclosure certificate"),

dated as of 2022, is executed and delivered by the City of Folsom Community Facilities

District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the "District") relative to the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority (the

"Authority") in connection with the issuance by the Authority of the Folsom Ranch Financing Authority

City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special

TaxRevenue Bonds, Series 2022(the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to a Trust Agreement

(the "Trust Agreement"), among the District, the Authority and U'S. Bank

Association (the "Trustee"). The District covenants and agrees as follows.
Trust Company, National

SECTION l. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. The Disclosure Certificate is

being executed and delivered by the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial

Owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with

S.E.C. Rule 1 5c2-12(bX5).

SECTION 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Trust

Agreement, which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless

otherwise defined in this Section, the followin g capitalized terms shall have the following

meanings:

"Annual Report" means any Annual Report provided by the District pursuant to, and as described

in, Sections 3 and4 hereof.

,,Annual Report Date" means the date in each year that is nine months after the end of the District's

fiscal year, which date, as of the date of this Disclosure Certificate, is April 1.

,'Dissemination Agent" shall mean NBS, or any successor Dissemination Agent desiguated in

writing by the District and which has filed with the District a wriffen acceptance of such designation.

.,EMMA System" means the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access system, or such other

electronic system designated by the MSRB.

"Financial Obligation" means, for purposes of the Listed Events set out in Section 5(a)(10) and

Section 5(bX7), a (i) debt obligation; (ii) derivative instrument entered into in connection with, or pledged

as security or a source of paymint for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or (iii) guarantee of (i) or (ii)'

The term ,,Financial Obligation" shall not include Municipal Securities (as defined in the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which afrnal official statement (as defined in the Rule) has been

provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

"Listed Events" means any of the events listed in subsection (a) of Section 5 hereof.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, or any successor thereto'

"Official Statement" means the Official Statement, dated 2022, rclating to the

Bonds.

,.Participating Underwriter" means the original underwriter of the Bonds required to comply with

the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds.

1.

Page 505

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



"Rule" means Rule l5c2-12(bX5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(a) The District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, provide to the MSRB through

the EMMA System, in an electronic format and accompanied by identifring information all as prescribed

by the MSRB, an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 hereof, not later

than the Annual Report Date, commencing with the report for the 2021-22 Fiscal Year. The Annual Report

may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may include

by reference other information as provided in Section 4 hereof; provided, however, that the audited financial

statements of the District may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report, and later

than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if not available by that date. If the District's
fiscal year changes, it shall, or shall instruct the Dissemination Agent to, give notice of such change in the

same manner as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of Section 5 hereof. The first Annual Report may

include the filing of or reference to the Official Statement.

(b) Not later than 15 business days prior to the date specified in subsection (a) of this Section

for the providing of the Annual Report to the MSRB, the District shall provide the Annual Report to the

Dissemination Agent.

(c) If the Dissemination Agent is other than the District, then not later than fifteen (15)

Business Days prior to said date, the District shall provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent.

If the District is unable to provide the Annual Report to the MSRB by the Annual Report Date, the District
shall send a notice to the MSRB in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A to the Disclosure Certificate.

(d) The Dissemination Agent shall:

(i) provide any Annual Report received by it to the MSRB, as provided herein; and

(ii) file a report with the District certiffing that the Annual Report has been provided

pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate and stating the date it was so provided.

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports. The District's Annual Report shall

contain or incorporate by reference the following:

(a) The District's audited financial statements, if any, prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board. If the District's audited financial statements, if any, are not

available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed pursuantto subsection (a) of Section 3 hereof,

the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial statements, and the audited financial statements, if any,

shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when they become available. If the District's
financial statement is included or consolidated with the financial statement for the City of Folsom (the

"City"),then the District shall file the City's audited financial statements as its own.

(b) The following information:

(i) The principal amount of Bonds and any bonds secured by Additional Local

Obligations (as defined in the Official Statement) Outstanding as of the December 31 next
preceding the Annual Report Date along with debt service schedules for the Bonds and any bonds

2
Page 506

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



secured by Additional Local Obligations (as defined in the Official Statement) Outstanding as of
such date;

(ii) The balance in each reserve account for the Local Obligations, and a statement of
the required bond reserve amount, as of the December 31 next preceding the Annual Report Date;

(iii) The total assessed value of all parcels within the Improvement Area on which the

Special Taxes are levied, as shown on the assessment roll of the Sacramento County Assessor last

equalized prior to the December 31 next preceding the Annual Report Date, and a statement of
asiessed value-to-lien ratios therefor based on special tax and assessment debt, either by individual

parcel or by categories (e.g., "below 3:1," "3:l to 4:1" etc.);

(iv) The Special Tax delinquency rate for the Improvement Area as of the December

31 next preceding the Annual Report Date; the number of parcels within the Improvement Area

delinquent in payment of special taxes as of the December 31 next preceding the Annual Report

Date; the amount of each delinquency; the length of time delinquent and the date on which

foreclosure was commenced, or similar information pertaining to delinquencies deemed

appropriate by the District; provided, however, that parcels with aggregate delinquencies of $1,000

oi-t"ri (excluding penalties and interest) may be grouped together and such information may be

provided by category;

(v) The status of foreclosure proceedings and a summary of the results of any

foreclosure sales in the Improvement Area as of the December 31 next preceding the Annual Report

Date;

(vi) The identity of any property owner, representing more than 5oh of the Special Tax

levy, delinquent in payment of special taxes as of the December 3l next preceding the Annual

Report Date;

(vii) All tentative and final maps approved and/or recorded within the Improvement

Area, describing the gross acres, the planned commercial acres and the number and type of planned

residential dwelling units;

(viii) The number of new building permits issued and a description of the purpose of
such permits (e.g., new single-family, new multi-family, new commercial, new industrial);

(ix) A land ownership summary listing the top ten Special Tax payers for the

Improvement Area, as shown on the assessment roll of the Sacramento County Assessor last

equalized prior to the December 3l next preceding the Annual Report Date; and

(x) For the current Fiscal Year, the amount of the Effective Tax Rate Evaluation

Maximum Facilities Special Tax, the Maximum Special Tax, the actual Facilities Special Tax

levied within the Improvement Area and the actual Special Tax levied within the Improvement

Area, with such amounts reported separately for Developed Property, Small Lot Final Map Property

and Large Lot Property; provided, however, that once all Taxable Property within the Improvement

Area is beveloped Property, the Maximum Special Tax and the actual Facilities Special Tax and

the actual Special Tax levied may each be shown on an aggregate basis in the Annual Report. For

the purposei of this subparagraph (x), all capitalizedterms used but not otherwise defined herein

shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Amended Rate and Method of Apportionment for

the Improvement Area.

3
Page 507

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



In addition to any of the information expressly required to be provided under this Section, as set

forth above, the District shall provide such further information, if any, as may be necessary to make the

specifically required statements, in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, not

misleading.

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents,

including official statements of debt issues of the District or related public entities, which have been

submitted to the MSRB through the EMMA System. The District shall clearly identifu each such other

document so included by reference.

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section, the District shall give notice, or cause notice to

be given, not less than ten Business Days after the occurrence of any of the following events with respect

to the Bonds:

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies.

(iD Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties.

(iiD Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties.

(iv) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform.

(v) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or
final determinations oftaxability, Notices of Proposed Issue IRS Form 5701 TEB) or other material

notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events

affecting the tax-exempt status of the security.

(vi) Defeasances

(vii) Tender offers

(viii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the obligated person.

Note: For the purposes of the event identified in subparagraph (ix), the event is

considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a
receiver, trustee or similar officer for an obligated person in a proceeding under

the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in
which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over

substantially all of the assets or business of the obligated person, or if such

jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governmental body and

officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a
court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of
reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority
having supervision orjurisdiction over substantially all ofthe assets or business of
the obligated person.

4

(ix) Rating changes.

Page 508

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



(x) Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms or other

similar events under the terms of a financial Obligation of the District, any of which reflect financial
difficulties.

(b) The District shall give notice, or cause notice to be given, not less than ten Business Days

after the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material:

(i) Modifications to rights of Bond holders.

(ii) Bond calls.

(iii) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds

(iv) Non-paymentrelateddefaults.

(v) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving an

obligated person or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the obligated person, other

than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an

action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than
pursuant to its terms.

(vi) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee.

(vii) Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the District, or agreement to covenants,

events of default, remedies, priority rights, or similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the District, any of
which affect Bondholders.

(c) Whenever the District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event described in

subsection (b) above, the District shall determine if such event would be material under applicable federal

securities laws.

(d) If the District learns of the occurrence of a Listed Event described in subsection (a) of this
Section, or determines that knowledge of a Listed Event described in subsection (b) of this Section would
be material under applicable federal securities laws, the District shall notifu the Dissemination Agent

thereof in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent to report the occurrence pursuant to subsection (e)

of this Section. If in response to a request under subsection (b) of this Section, the District determines that
the Listed Event would not be material under applicable Federal securities law, the District shall so notiff
the Dissemination Agent in writing and instruct the Dissemination Agent not to report the occurrence

pursuant to subsection (e) ofthis Section.

(e) If the Dissemination Agent has been instructed by the District to report the occurrence of
a Listed Event, the Dissemination Agent shall file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB through the

EMMA System. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in paragraph (vii) of
subsection (a) ofthis Section and paragraph (ii) ofsubsection (b) ofthis Section need not be given under

this subsection any earlier than the notice (ifany) ofthe underlying event is given to holders ofaffected
Bonds pursuant to the Trust Agreement.

SECTION 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The District's obligations
under this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior
redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the

5
Page 509

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



final maturity of the Bonds, the District shall give notice of such termination in the same

manner as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of Section 5 hereof'

SECTION 7. Dissemination Agent. The District may, from time to time, appoint

or engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this

Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without
appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination Agent shall not be

responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by the District
pursuant to the Disclosure Ceftificate.

SECTION 8. Amendmentl Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this

Disclosure Certificate, the District may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any

provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, provided that the following
conditions are satisfied:

(a) if the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of subsection (a) of Section 3 hereof,

Section 4 hereof or subsections (a) and (b) of Section 5 hereof, it may only be made in connection with a

change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the

identity, nature or status of an obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or type of business conducted;

(b) the undertakings herein, as proposed to be amended or waived, would, in the opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the

primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as

well as any change in circumstances; and

(c) the proposed amendment or waiver (i) is approved by Owners of the Bonds in the manner

provided in the Trust Agreement for amendments to the Trust Agreement with the consent of Owners, or

(ii) does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of Owners

or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

If the annual financial information or operating datato be provided in the Annual Report is amended

pursuant to the provisions hereof, the annual financial information containing the amended operating data
-or 

financial information shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the impact of
the change in the type of operating data or financial information being provided.

If an amendment is made to the undertaking specifuing the accounting principles to be followed in

preparing financial statements, the annual financial information for the year in which the change is made

shall present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis of the new

accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. The comparison

shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the impact of the

change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial statements or information, in order

to provide information to investors to enable them to evaluate the ability of the District to meet its

obligations. To the extent reasonably feasible, the comparison shall be quantitative. A notice of the change

in thi accounting principles shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under subsection (e) of
Section 5 hereof.

SECTION 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall

be deemed to prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the

means of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of
communication, or including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of
occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure

6
Page 510

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Certificate. If the District chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or
notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by
this Disclosure Certificate, the District shall have no obligation under this Disclosure

Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice

of occurrence of a Listed Event.

SECTION 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the District or the

Dissemination Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Certificate, any

Holder or Beneficial Owner of outstanding Bonds may take such actions as may be

necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court
order, to cause the District to comply with its obligations under the Disclosure Certificate.
A default under the Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an Event of Default under

the Trust Agreement, and the sole remedy under the Disclosure Certificate in the event of
any failure of the District to comply with the Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to

compel performance.

SECTION 11 T)rrfiac T*-'.-ifiac anrl I iahi l:+i^. of T\i..--;-^+;^a A aanr The

Dissemination Agent shall be entitled to the protections and limitations from liability
afforded to the Trustee under the Trust Agreement. The Dissemination Agent shall not be

responsible for the form or content of any Annual Report or notice of Listed Event. The

Dissemination Agent shall receive reasonable compensation for its services provided under

this Disclosure Certificate. The Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are

specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate, and the District agrees to indemnif'and
save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless

against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise

or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses

(including attorneys' fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding
liabilities due to the Dissemination Agent's negligence or willful misconduct. The

obligations of the District under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the

Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.

SECTION 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the

benefit of the District, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and Owners

and Beneficial Owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any

other person or entity.

SECTION 13. Counterparts. This Disclosure Certificate may be executed in
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute

but one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District has executed this Disclosure Certificate as of the date first
above written.

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCTT)

7

By:

Page 511

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



EXHIBIT A

NOTICE OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Folsom Ranch Financing AuthorityName of Issuer:

Name of Issue: Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax
Revenue Bonds, Series 2022

Date of Issuance: 2022

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch) (the "District") has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the above-named Bonds

as required by Section 3 of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, dated 2022, executed by
the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the above-referenced bonds. [The
District anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by

Dated:

CITY OF FOLSOM COMMUNITY
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23
(FOLSOM RANCTT)

By
Finance Director of the City of Folsom

8
Page 512

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 9

Page 513

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



City of Folsom
City of Folsom CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3

Special Tax Bonds, Sedes 2022

SB 450 Summary / Govemment Code 5852.1*

Estimated Pat Amount $8,940,000

.{. True Intetest'C'ost (TIC) of the Bonds 5.4Ea/o 
I

B, Sum of all fees and chatges paid to 3td parties $411,?50 
2

c. Bond Ptoceeds Net of Reserves, Capitalized lnterest and
3rd Party Fees and Chatges

Net proceeds

Less Reserve Fund

Less Sum of all fees and charges paid to 3rd parties

Less Capitalized Interest

D. Total Payrrent Amount

Total Principal and Interest to Maturity*x

Special Tax Admin. /Continuing Disclosure Fee

Fiscal Agent Fee

Arbitrage /Rebate Fee

C ounty C<illection Chatge

$7,741,228

8,899,301 1

(718,7e0) I

(411,750) 
1

Q7,$2)1

$19,833,850

19,092,850 
1

585,000 3

96,000 4

22,500 5

37,500 
6

*Summary leflecrs good faith estimates rc o{ 6/15/22 and all costs associated vdth the firrancingi subject to change

bzsed on interest rates, market conditions, and other factors
**Less Capitalized Interest

Sources:
t P..lirrrinrry Cash Flows from Piper Sandler * of 6/15/22
2 

Costs oflssuance
t NBS - estimated 30 years at $19,500 pet ye t
t 

US Brnk - 30 years at $3,200 per year

' NBS - estimated 30 years at $750 per ye r
o NBS - estimated 30 yeats at $1,250 per yeat

FIELDMAN iROLAPP
& .\5Q-1,\.I l:s

Page 514

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Folsom Ranch Financing Authority
City of Folsom CFD No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No.3

Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022

SB 450 Summary / Govemment Code 5852.1*

Estimated Pat Amount $8,940,000 
I

,{, True.Interest-Cost (fIG} of the Borrds 5.45el* 
I

B. Sum of all fees and charges paid to 3td paties s411,750 
2

c. Bond Proceeds Net of Reserves, Capitalized Interest and

3rd Party Fecs and Chatges

Net proceeds

Less Reserve Fund

Less Sum ofail fees and chargcs paid to 3rd parties

Less Capitalized Interest

D. Total Payment Amount

Total Principal and Interest to Maturity**

Special Tax Admin. /Continuing Disclosure Fee

Fiscal Agent Fee

A*biuage /Rebate Fee

County Collection Chatge

fi7,741,228

8,899,301 
1

(718,790) 
1

(411,7s0) 
1

(27,*2) 1

$19,79?,850

19,092,850 
1

585,000 
3

60,000 
4

22,500 
5

37,500 6

*Summary reflects good faith estimates as of 6/23/22 and all costs associated rvith the financing; subject to change

based oa interest rates, market conditions, and other factors
*-Less Capite li"ed Interest

Sources:
t Pr.liminzry Cash Flows ftom Piper Sandler as af 6/23/22
t Cort, of Issuance
t NBS - estimated 30 years at $19,500 per year
t 

US B"nl - 30 years at $2,000 per year

' NBS - estimated 30 years at $750 per year
o NBS - esrimated 30 years at $1,250 per year

F1ELDMAN:ROLAPP
& ,\S5(X'li]F.5

Page 515

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 516

07/12/2022 Item No.11.



Folsom Clty Council
Staff Re ort

MEETING DATE: 71t212022

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: General Municipal Election -November 8,2022

l. A. Resolution No. 10889 - A Resolution Authorizingthe
Submission of a Ballot Measure to the Qualified Voters
of the City to Add a Transactions and Use Tax at the Rate

of One-Half Percent (0.5%), Authorizing the Filing of
Written Arguments Regarding the City's Revenue
Measure, and Directing the City Attorney to Prepare an

Impartial Analysis for Said Measure; or

B. Resolution No. 10890 - A Resolution Authorizingthe
Submission of a Ballot Measure to the Qualified Voters
of the City to Add a Transactions and Use Tax at the Rate

of One Percent (l%), Authorizing the Filing of Written
Arguments Regarding the City's Revenue Measure, and

Directing the City Attorney to Prepare an Impartial
Analysis for Said Measure

2. A. Ordinance No. 1328 - An Ordinance of the People of
the City of Folsom Imposing a One-Half Percent (0.5%)
Transactions and Use Tax by Adding Chapter 3.140,
"Folsom Essential City Services Maintenance and

Investment Measure", to the Folsom Municipal Code to
be Administered by the California Department of Tax
and Fee Administration (Approve Submission to
Voters); or

B. Ordinance No. 1329 - An Ordinance of the People of
the City of Folsom Imposing a One Percent (1%)
Transactions and Use Tax by Adding Chapter 3.I40,
"Folsom Essential City Services Maintenance and

Investment Measure", to the Folsom Municipal Code to

1

Page 517

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



be Administered by the California Department of Tax

and Fee Administration (Approve Submission to
Voters).

FROM: City Attorney's Office

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

1. Staff recommends that the City Council pass and adopt either:

A. Resolution No. 10889 - A Resolution Authorizing the Submission of a
Ballot Measure to the Qualified Voters of the City to Add a Transactions

and Use Tax at the Rate of One-Half Percent (0.5%), Authorizing the

Filing of Written Arguments Regarding the City's Revenue Measure, and

Directing the City Attorney to Prepare an Impartial Analysis for Said

Measure; or

B. Resolution No. 10890 - A Resolution Authorizing the Submission of a

Ballot Measure to the Qualified Voters of the City to Add a Transactions

and use Tax at the Rate of one Percent (l%), Authorizing the Filing of
Written Arguments Regarding the City's Revenue Measure, and Directing
the City Attorney to Prepare an Impartial Analysis for Said Measure.

NOTE: To be effective, the Revenue Measure requires a2l3 super-majority vote (at least 4

of 5 affirmative votes of the City Council) for placement on the November 8, 2022 ballot.

2. Staff recommends that the City Council approve one of the following Ordinances for
submission to the voters of the City at the November 8, 2022 General Municipal Election:

A. Ordinance No. 1328 - An Ordinance of the People of the City of Folsom

Imposing a One-Half Percent (0.5%) Transactions and Use Tax by Adding

Chapter 3.l40, "Folsom Essential City Services Maintenance and

Investment Measure", to the Folsom Municipal Code to be Administered
by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration; or

B. Ordinance No. 1329 -An Ordinance of the People of the City of Folsom

Imposing a One Percent (1%) Transactions and Use Tax by Adding
Chapter 3.l40, "Folsom Essential City Services Maintenance and

Investment Measure", to the Folsom Municipal Code to be Administered
by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration.

2Page 518

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



BACKGROUND / ISSUE

A Statewide General Election is scheduled to be held in Sacramento County on November 8,

2022. A General Municipal Election for the City of folsom may be consolidated with the

Statewide General Election for the purpose of electing members of the City Council to fill
openings due to the expiration of the current term of three Councilmembers this December,

as well as submitting ballot measures to the voters as desired by the City Council.

While the election of three City Councilmembers will be by-district (i.e., only eligible voters

in Council Districts 1,3, and 5 will vote for a Councilmember in their respective Districts),

all eligible voters throughout the City will be able to vote to approve or reject the proposed

revenue measure.

POLICY / RULE

Revenue and Taxation Code Section 7285.9 authorizes all cities to levy, increase, or extend a

transactions and use tax for general pulposes, at arate of 0.125% or a multiple thereof, subject

to approval of two-thirds (213) of the City Council and a majority of qualified votets voting on

the issue.

Elections Code Section 9222 provides that the legislative body of a city may submit to the

voters a proposition for the repeal, amendment or enactment of any ordinance at a regular city

election, and if the proposition submitted receives a majority of the votes cast on it at the

election, the ordinance shall be repealed, amended or enacted accordingly.

ANALYSIS

At the November 8,2022 General Municipal Election, the qualified voters of the City will be

asked to elect three Councilmembers in Council Districts 1, 3, and 5 to fillthe seats following
the expiration of the current terms of three Councilmembers. The election will be by-district.

Additionally, the City Council may submit ballot measures to all voters of the City at said

election for consideration. Staff has presented a proposed ballot measure to enact a new sales

tax in the City in the amount of either Yz centor 1 cent, as deemed appropriate and selected by

the City Council.

A. Ballot Measure - City Revenue Measure (% Cent or 1 Cent Transactions and Use

Tax)

During the past several years, the State of California has reduced funding for infrastructure

improvements to local jurisdictions, including the City of Folsom. While many local
jurisdictions had to decrease or eliminate altogether certain levels, quality and frequency of
services to their residents, under City Council direction and prudent fiscal management,

Folsom has weathered through some of the toughest economic challenges in recent memory

without any measurable or significant impact on Folsom residents.

JPage 519

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



Nevertheless, since State funding has declined, and maintenance costs have grown, additional
funding is needed to address current and long-term needs. The City is pursuing dependable

and local sources of revenue in order to continue to fund and support ongoing and future

services, facilities and programs including, for example, capital improvement projects such

as construction of transportation and traffic improvements, parks, trails, and bike paths;

efforts to promote economic development and redevelopment to attractnew businesses and

employers to the City; augmentation of existing essential City services including but not
limited to fire, paramedic, police emergency response and crime prevention programs; and

expansion of the City's great tradition in parks and recreation, senior, library, school and

education, arts, cultural and historical progmms which our citizens enjoy and/or depend

upon. In order to address the widest range of core service needs, the City is contemplating
placing a potential general transaction and use tax on the November 8,2022 ballot.

California Revenue and Taxation Code section 7285.9 authorizes the City Council to levy
transactions and use (sales) tax via ordinance, provided that the ordinance establishing the
general tax is approved by a majorrty (50% + 1) vote of the qualified voters of the city.

Currently, the cumulative tax rate on retail sales in Folsom is 7 .75Yo of the purchase price.

The tax revenue is allocated among the State, Sacramento County, the City of Folsom, and

other public agencies. Folsom's share is 1.0% of the purchase price.

The City Council may submit a proposed revenue measure to the voters of the City to decide

whether or not to enact a new sales tax on tangible personal property sold at retail in the City,
at the rate of one-half cent for every dollar spent (%oh) or, alternatively, at the rate of one

cent for every dollar spent (1%). All revenue from the new local tax stays in the City
without sharing with other agencies. If passed, the proposed one-half cent revenue

measure would increase the cumulative tax rate in Folsom to 8.25Yo, and Folsom's share of
the purchase price would increase from 1.0% to l.5o/o. The proposed one cent revenue

measure, if passed, would increase the cumulative tax rate in Folsom to 8.75%o, and Folsom's
share of the purchase price would increase from 1 .0%oto 2.0%. Staff estimates that a one-

half cent Measure would initially generate approximately $11 million per year, while a one

cent Measure would initially generate approximately $22 million per year.

The proposed revenue measure proposes a "general" tax, from which the revenue would be

deposited in the Crty's general fund for the City to use for all governmental purposes. There

will be an annual audit on the proceeds and expenditure of the tax, as well as annual

accounting to the City Council prior to adoption of the City budget.

If passed by a simple majority vote of the voters voting on the proposed revenue measure, the

Folsom Municipal Code would be amended by the enactment of an ordinance imposing the

new tax. The proposed tax would be administered by the California Department of Tax and

Fee Administration, in the same manner that sales tax is currently administered, in order to
reduce the cost of collecting the tax and to minimize the burden of record-keeping upon
retailers subject to the tax.

Collection of the proposed tax would begin on April I,2023 and would continue until
repealed by voters of the City in a future election.

4 Page 520

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



A copy of the proposed text of the Revenue Measure can be found in Attachments 3 and 6 to
this Staff Report.

To be effective, the Revenue Measure requires a 2/3 super-majority vote (at least 4 of 5
affirmative votes of the City Council) for placement on the November 8r2022 ballot.

B. Written Ballot/Rebuttal Arguments

The proposed Resolution authorizes the filing of written arguments and rebuttals for the City
Council-sponsored ballot measures, as well as directing the City Attorney to prepare an
impartial analysis for each ballot measure.

Elections Code Secti on 9287 provides that, if more than onO argument for or against any clty
measure is submitted to the city election official within the presuibed time frame, the city
election official shall select one of the arguments for printing and distribution to the voters. In
selecting the argument, the election official shall give preference and priority to the arguments
as follows:

1. The legislative body, or member(s) of the legislative body authorizedby that body.

2. The individual voter, or bona fide association of citizens, or combination of voters and
associations, who are bona fide sponsors or proponents of the measure.

3. Bona fide associations of citizens.

4. Individual voters who are eligible to vote on the measure.

Accordingly, City Council has first priority to file and submit arguments for City Council-
sponsored ballot measures, and the proposed Resolution designates the Mayor and/or others
selected by the Mayor who are qualified to sign arguments under the Elections Code to file
written arguments regarding the ballot measure sponsored by the City Council. Pursuant to
the timeline set forth in Elections Code Sections 9286 and 9295, written ballot arguments for
or against a ballot measure must be filed between July 13,2022 and July 26,2022. The public
examination period for arguments would be July 27 , 2022 to Aug 5 , 2022.

Pursuant to Elections Code Section 9285, rebuttal arguments must be filed between July 27,
2022 and August 5,2022. The public examination period would be August 6,2022 to August
15,2022.

The City Council may direct the City Attorney to prepare an impartial analysis on the proposed
measures. The analysis would be due no later than July 26,2022. The public examination
period would be July 27,2022 to August 5,2022.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Sacramento County Registrar of Voters has estimated the election cost at approximately
$42,000 for the election of three City Council candidates. Adding an additional contest to the
ballot will cost approximately an additional $5,100, based on the County's fee schedule of

5 Page 521

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



$0.1035 per registered voter for "additional contests". Funds have been budgeted within the
FY 2022-23 budget to cover this expense.

ENVIRO AI, REVIE\M

The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to activities that will not
result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment
(CEQA Guidelines $15061(cX3)), or are otherwise not considered a project as defined by
Public Resources Code 921065 and CEQA Guidelines $15060(c)(3) and $15378. The
Council's approval of the attached Resolution and Ordinance meets the above criteria and is
not subject to CEQA. No environmental review is required.

ATTACHMENTS

1 . Resolution No. 10889 - A Resolution Authorizing the Submission of a Ballot Measure to
the Qualified Voters of the City to Add a Transactions and Use Tax at the Rate of One-

Half Percent(0.5Yo), Authorizing the Filing of Written Arguments Regarding the City's
Revenue Measure, and Directing the City Attorney to Prepare an Impartial Analysis for
Said Measure

2. Ordinance No. 1328 - An Ordinance of the People of the City of Folsom Imposing a One-

Half Percent(0.5%) Transactions and Use Tax by Adding Chapter 3.140, "Folsom
Essential City Services Maintenance and Investment Measure", to the Folsom Municipal
Code to be Administered by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration
(Approve Submission to Voters)

3. Ballot Measure Language, One-Half Percent (0.5%)

4. Resolution No.10890 - A Resolution Authorizing the Submission of a Ballot Measure to
the Qualified Voters of the City to Add a Transactions and Use Tax at the Rate of One

Percent (l%), Authorizing the Filing of Written Arguments Regarding the City's
Revenue Measure, and Directing the City Attorney to Prepare an Impartial Analysis for
Said Measure

5. Ordinance No. 1329 - An Ordinance of the People of the City of Folsom Imposing a One

Percent (1%) Transactions and Use Tax by Adding Chapter 3.140, ooFolsom Essential
City Services Maintenance and Investment Measure", to the Folsom Municipal Code to
be Administered by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration (Approve
Submission to Voters).

6. Ballot Measure Language, One Percent (1.0%)

Respectfully submitted,

6

Steven Wang, City Attorney

Page 522

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



Attachment 1.

Resolution No. 10889 - A Resolution Authorizingthe Submission of a Ballot
Measure to the Qualified Voters of the City to Add a Transactions and Use Tax at
the Rate of One-Half Percent (0.5%), Authorizing the Filing of Written Arguments
Regarding the Crty's Revenue Measure, and Directing the City Attorney to Prepare

an Impartial Analysis for Said Measure

Page 523

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. 10889

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A BALLOT MEASURE TO
THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF'THE CITY TO ADD A TRANSACTIONS AND USE

TAX AT THE RATE OF ONE-HALF PERCENT (0.5%)o AUTHORIZING THE FILING
OF WRITTEN ARGUMENTS REGARDING THE CITY'S REVENUE MEASURE, AND
DIRECTING THE CITY ATTORNEY TO PREPARE AN IMPARTIAL ANALYSIS FOR

SAID MEASURE

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Charter of the City of Folsom and the Folsom

Municipal Code, a General Municipal Election shall be held onNovember 8,2022 for the

election of three City Councilmembers; and,

WHEREAS, Revenue and Taxation Code Section 7285.9 authorizes all cities to levy,
increase, or extend atransactions and use tax for general purposes, atarate of0.l25Yo or a

multiple thereof, subject to approval of two-thirds (213) of the City Council and a majority of
qualified voters voting on the issue; and,

WHEREAS, an election regarding the increase of a transactions and use tax for general

pulposes must be consolidated with a regularly scheduled general election for the City Council,
except in cases of an emergency declared by a unanimous vote of the City Council; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to submit a ballot measure on a transactions and

use tax to the voters of the City of Folsom at a General Municipal Election to be held in the City
on November 8,2022.

NOW' THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
as follows:

SECTION 1. Pursuant to Article XI, $5 and Article XIII C, $2 of the California
Constitution, Elections Code Section 9222, Folsom Municipal Code Section 2.40.010 and

Revenue and Taxation Code Section 7285.9, a General Municipal Election is called and ordered

to be held in the City of Folsom, California, on Tuesday, November 8,2022 for the purpose of
submitting the following proposed Revenue Measure to the voters of the City:

Page 524

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



CITY OF'FOLSOM

MEASURE (a ,,

FOLSOM ESSENTIAL CITY SERVICES MAINTENANCE AND
INVESTMENT MEASURE

To maintain and enhance essential City of Folsom services/ facilities, such as:

maintaining 9-1-l emergency firefighter/ medical response times; enhancing and
maintaining parks/ trails; repairing potholes/ city streets; enhancing wildfire
prevention/ neighborhood fire protection; and maintaining neighborhood police
patrols; shall the City of Folsom measure be adopted establishing a one-half cent
sales tax, providing $11,000,000 annually, for general government use, until
ended by voters, requiring local control, citizen oversight and independent annual
audits, and all funds staying in Folsom?

SECTION 2. The complete text of the proposed measure to be submitted to the voters in
Section t hereof is attached hereto as Exhibit "A". The full text of the Ordinance will not be
printed in its entirety in the County Voter Information Guide. Relevant information will be

provided within the Impartial Analysis, and a full copy of the text is on file in the Office of the
City Clerk.

SECTION 3. The vote requirement for the measure, submitted to the voters in Section 1

hereof, to pass is a simple majority (50% + 1) of the votes cast.

SECTION 4. The City Council authorizes pursuant to Elections Code Section 9282(b)
the following:

The Mayor andlor Others Selected by the Mayor Who are Qualified to
Sign Arguments under the Elections Code

a

to file a written argument not exceeding 300 words regarding the City measure as specified in
Section 1, accompanied by the printed name(s) and signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, in
accordance with California Elections Code Section 9282. The arguments may be changed or
withdrawn until and including the date fixed by the City Clerk after which no arguments for or
against the City measure may be submitted to the City Clerk.

The arguments shall be filed with the City Clerk, signed, with the printed name(s) and

signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, or if submitted on behalf of an organization, the name

of the organization, and the printed name and signature of at least one of its principal officers
who is the author of the argument. The arguments shall be accompanied by the Filer Statement

Form to be filed by author(s) of argument.

Resolution No. 10889
Page 2 of 4 Page 525

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



SECTION 5. The City Council adopts Elections Code Section9285 to accept rebuttal
arguments. The rebuttal arguments shall be filed with the City Clerk, signed, with the printed
name(s) and signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, or if submitted on behalf of an
organization, the name of the organization, and the printed name and signature of at least one of
its principal officers who is the author of the argument. The arguments shall be accompanied by
the Filer Statement Form to be filed by author(s).

SECTION 6. The City Council directs the City Clerk to transmit a copy of the measure
to the City Attorney, unless the organization or salaries of the Office of the City Attorney are

affected. The City Attorney shall prepare an impartial analysis of said measure not exceeding
500 words showing the effect of the measure on the existing law and the operation of said
measure. If any measure affects the organization or salaries of the Office of the City Attorney,
the City Clerk shall prepare the impartial analysis. The analysis shall include a statement
indicating whether any measure was placed on the ballot by a petition signed by the requisite
number of voters or by the goveming body of the City. In the event the entire text of the
measure is not printed on the ballot, nor in the voter information portion of the sample ballot,
there shall be printed immediately below the impartial analysis, in no less than l0-point, the
following: "The above statement is an impartial analysis of the measure. If you desire a copy of
the measure, please call the election official's office at: 916-461-6035 or email
CitvClerkDept@folsom.ca.us and a copy will be provided at no cost to you." The impartial
analysis shall be frled by the date set by the City Clerk for the filing of primary arguments.

SECTION 7. The ballots to be used at the election shall be in form and content as

required by law.

SECTION 8. Said General Municipal Election hereby called shall be held and
conducted, and the votes there at received and canvassed, and the returned thereof made, and the
result thereof ascertained and determined in accordance with the general election laws of the
State of California, except as herein provided.

SECTION 9. All persons qualified to vote at municipal elections in the City of Folsom
shall be qualified to vote at said General Municipal Election.

SECTION 7. The City Clerk is authorized, instructed, and directed to coordinate with
the Clerk and Registrar of Voters of the County of Sacramento to procure and furnish any and all
official ballots, notices, printed matter, and all supplies, equipment and paraphernalia that may
be necessary in order to properly and lawfully conduct the election.

SECTION 1,0. Unless a longer period is provided by the County Elections Department,
the polls shall be open at seven o'clock a.m. of the day of the election and shall remain open
continuously from that time until eight o'clock p.m. of the same day when the polls shall be

closed, pursuant to California Elections Code 510242, except as provided in the California
Elections Code $14401.

SECTION 11. In all particulars not recited in this Resolution, the election shall be held
and conducted as provided by law for holding municipal elections.

Resolution No. 10889
Page 3 of4 Page 526

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



SECTION 12. Notice of the time and place of holding the election is given and the City
Clerk is authorized, instructed, and directed to give further or additional notice of the election, in
time, form, and manner as required by law.

SECTION 13. The full text of the revenue measure Ordinance will not be printed in its
entirety in the Sample Ballot. Relevant information will be provided within the Impartial
Analysis for each measure and a full copy of the text is on file in the Offrce of the City Clerk.

SECTION 14. The City Council authorizes the City Clerk to administer said election
and all reasonable and actual election expenses shall be paid by the City upon presentation of a
properly submitted bill.

SECTION 15. At the next regular meeting of this City Council occurring after the
retums of said General Municipal Election have been canvassed, and the certification of the
results thereof to this City Council, or at a special meeting called thereafter for such purpose, this
City Council shall cause to be spread upon its minutes a statement of the results of said General

Municipal Election as ascertained by said canvass.

SECTION 16. The City Clerk shall certifr to the passage and adoption of this
Resolution and enter it into the book of original Resolutions, and to take other appropriate
actions necessary to ensure the placement of said proposition before the voters of the City of
Folsom at said General Municipal Election.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of July,2022 by the following roll call
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

List of Exhibit:
Exhibit A - Folsom Essential City Services Maintenance and Investment Measure

Resolution No. 10889
Page 4 of 4 Page 527

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



Attachment 2.

Ordinance No. 1328 - An Ordinance of the People of the City of Folsom Imposing
a One-Half Percent (0.5%) Transactions and Use Tax by Adding Chapter 3.I40,
"Folsom Essential City Services Maintenance and Investment Measure", to the

Folsom Municipal Code to be Administered by the California Department of Tax
and Fee Administration (Approve Submission to Voters)

Page 528

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT A
TO

RESOLUTION NO. 10889

Folsom Essential City Services Maintenance and Investment Measure

Measure to be Submitted Directly to the Voters

ORDINANCE NO. 1328

AN ORDINANCE OF THE PEOPLE OF CITY OF FOLSOM IMPOSING A ONE.
HALF PERCENT (0.5%) TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX BY ADDING

CHAPTER 3.140, "FOLSOM ESSENTIAL CITY SERVICES MAINTENANCE
AND INVESTMENT MEASURE'" TO THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE TO
BE ADMINISTERED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TAX AND

FEE ADMINISTRATION

WHEREAS, many residents live in the City of Folsom because the City offers a

higher level of amenities, service, programs, and quality of life than in neighboring cities,

and creating and preserving local revenue sources will ensure that the City can maintain
and improve the quality of the amenities, services, and programs that residents desire and

expect; and

WHEREAS, many businesses operate and thrive in the City due to the City's
business-friendly environment, robust and year-round recreational activities and events,

high-quality public facilities and amenities, as well as proactive economic development

efforts, all leading to a higher level of shopping experience; and

WHEREAS, the City's unique geography, with its lakes, creeks, trails, bikeways
and scenic hillsides, combined with the age of its infrastructures such as roads, sidewalks,
public buildings and drainage systems, make it an expensive City to maintain.

WHEREAS, during each of the past several years, the State of California has

reduced funding for infrastructure improvements to local jurisdictions, including the City
of Folsom; and,

WHEREAS, the City needs dependable and local sources of revenue to fund and

to support locally-controlled, strategically enhanced spending on services, facilities and

programs including, for example, capital improvement projects such as construction of
transportation and traffic improvements, parks, trails, and bike paths; efforts to promote

economic development and redevelopment to attract new businesses and employers to the

City; augmentation of existing essential City services including but not limited to fire,
paramedic, police emergency response and crime prevention programs; and expansion of

1
Page 529

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



the City's great tradition in parks and recreation, senior, library, school and education,
arts, cultural and historical programs which our citizens enjoy and/or depend upon.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PEOPLE OF'' THE CITY OF FOLSOM AS
F'OLLOWS:

SECTION 1. ADDITION TO CODE

Chapter 3.140, ooFolsom Essential City Services Maintenance and Investment
Measure", is hereby added to the Folsom Municipal Code to read as follows:

Chapter 3.140

F'OLSOM ESSENTIAL CITY SERVICES MAINTENANCE
AND INVESTMENT MEASURE

(General Transactions (Sales) and Use Tax)

Sections:
3.140.010
3.140.020
3.140.030
3.140.040
3.140.050
3.r40.060
3.140.070
3.140.080
3.140.090
3.140.100
3.140.110
3.140.120
3.r40.130
3.140.140
3.140.150
3.140.160
3.140.170
3.140.180
3.140.190

Chapter Title.
Need for Chapter.
Operative Date.
Purpose.
Contract with State.
Transactions Tax Rate.
Place of Sale.

Use Tax Rate.
Adoption of Provisions of State Law.
Limitations on Adoption of State Law and Collection of Use Taxes.
Permit Not Required.
Exemptions and Exclusions.
Amendments.
Enj oining Collection Forbidden.
Citizens Oversight Committee
Accounting and Report.
Independent Audit.
Authority to Amend.
Termination Date.

3.140.010 Chapter Title.

This Chapter shall be known as the o'Folsom Essential City Services Maintenance
and Investment Measure" (the "Measure"). This Chapter shall be applicable in
the incorporated territory of the City.

2
Page 530

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



3.140.020 Need for Chapter.

The People of the City of Folsom declare that this Chapter, pursuant to the

Measure, is adopted as a general tax to provide funding for general governmental

pu{poses, which are funded by the City's General Fund.

3.140.030 Operative Date.

The general transactions and use tax imposed hereunder shall be operative the

first day of the first calendar quarter commencing more than 110 days after the

adoption of this Chapter ("Operative Date"). Based on a November 8,2022
election, the Operative Date for the general transactions and use tax imposed

hereunder shall be April 1, 2023, and the revenue from said tax can be spent for
unrestricted general revenue purposes.

3.140.040 Purpose.

Pursuant to the requirements of the California Department of Tax and Fee

Administration, this Chapter is adopted to achieve the following, among other

pu{poses, and directs that the provisions hereof be interpreted in order to
accomplish those purposes :

A. To impose a retail transactions and use tax in accordance with the

provisions of Part 1.6 (commencing with SectionT2ll) of Division 2 of the
Revenue and Taxation Code and Section 7285.9 of Part 1 .7 of Division 2, and

which authorizes the City to adopt this tax ordinance, which shall be operative if a
majority of the electors voting on the measure vote to approve the imposition of
the tax at an election called for that purpose.

B. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that incorporates
provisions identical to those of the Sales and Use Tax Law of the State of
California insofar as those provisions are not inconsistent with the requirements

and limitations contained in Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation
Code.

C. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that imposes a tax and

provides a measure therefore that can be administered and collected by the

California Department of Tax and Fee Administration in a manner that adapts

itself as fully as practicable to, and requires the least possible deviation from, the

existing statutory and administrative procedures followed by the California
Department of Tax and Fee Administration in administering and collecting the

California State Sales and Use Taxes.

J
Page 531

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



D. To adopt arctail transactions and use tax ordinance that can be

administered in a manner that will be, to the greatest degree possible, consistent
with the provisions of Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code,

minimize the cost of collecting the transactions and use taxes, and at the same

time, minimizethe burden of record keeping upon persons subject to taxation
under the provisions of this Chapter.

3.140.050 Contract with State.

Prior to the Operative Date of this Chapter, the City shall contract with the

California Department of Tax and Fee Administration to perform all functions
incident to the administration and operation of this transactions and use tax
imposed under this Chapter; provided, that if the City shall not have contracted
with the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration prior to the
Operative Date, it shall nevertheless so contract and in such a case the operative
date shall be the first day of the first calendar quarter following the execution of
such a contract.

3.140.060 Transactions Tax Rate.

For the privilege of selling tangible personal property at retail, a tax is hereby
imposed upon all retailers in the incorporated tenitory of the City at the rate of
one-half of one percent (0.50%) of the gross receipts of any retailer from the sale

of all tangible personal property sold at retail in said territory on and after the
Operative Date of this Chapter.

3.140.070 Place of Sale.

For the pu{poses of this Chapter, all retail sales are consummated at the place of
business of the retailer, unless the tangible personal property sold is delivered by
the retailer, or his or her agent, to an out-of-state destination or to a common
carrier for delivery to an out-of-state destination. The gross receipts from such

sales shall include delivery charges, when such charges are subject to the State

sales and use tax, regardless of the place to which delivery is made. In the event a

retailer has no permanent place of business in the State, or has more than one
place of business, the place or places at which the retail sales are consummated
shall be determined under rules and regulations to be prescribed and adopted by
the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration.

3.140.080 Use Tax Rate.

An excise tax is hereby imposed on the storage, use, or other consumption in the City of
tangible personal property purchased from any retailer on and after the Operative Date of
this Chapter for storage, use, or other consumption in the City at the rate of one-half of
one percent (0.50%) of the sales price of the property. The sales price shall include

4 Page 532

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



delivery charges when such charges are subject to the State sales or use tax regardless of
the place to which delivery is made.

3.140.090 Adoption of Provisions of State Law.

Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter and except insofar as they are

inconsistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and

Taxation Code, all of the provisions of Part 1 (commencing with Section 6001) of
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code are hereby adopted and made apart
of this Chapter as though fully set forth herein.

3.140.100
Taxes.

Limitations on Adoption of State Law and Collection of Use

In adopting the provisions of Part I of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation
Code:

A. Wherever the State of California is named or referred to as the taxing
agency, the name of this City shall be substituted therefor. However, the
substitution shall not be made when:

1. The word "State" is used as a part of the title of the State Controller, State

Treasurer, State Board of Control, California Department of Tax and Fee

Administration, State Treasury, or the Constitution of the State of California;

2. The result of that substitution would require action to be taken by or
against this City or any agency, officer, or employee thereof rather than by or
against the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration, in performing
the functions incident to the administration or operation of this Chapter.

3. In those sections, including, but not necessarily limited to sections

referring to the exterior boundaries of the State of Califomia, where the result of
the substitution would be to:

a. Provide an exemption from this use tax with respect to certain sales,

storage, use or other consumption of tangible personal property which would not
otherwise be exempt from this tax while such sales, storage, use or other
consumption remain subject to tax by the State under the provisions of Part 1 of
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, or;

b. Impose this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, use or other
consumption of tangible personal property which would not be subject to tax by
the State under the said provision of that code.

4. In Sections 670I,6702 (except in the last sentence thereof), 6711,6715,
6737,6797 or 6828 ofthe Revenue and Taxation Code.

5 Page 533

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



B. The word "cityu shall be substituted for the word ooState" in the phrase

'oretailer engaged in business in this State" in Section 6203 and in the definition of
that phrase in Section 6203 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. A o'retailer

engaged in business in the State" shall also include any retailer that, in the

preceding calendar year or the current calendar year, has total combined sales of
tangible personal property in this state or for delivery in the State by the retailer

and all persons related to the retailer that exceeds five hundred thousand dollars

($500,000). For purposes of this section, a person is related to another person if
both persons are related to each other pursuant to Section 267(b) of Title 26 of the

United States Code and the regulations thereunder.

3.f40.110 Permit Not Required.

If a seller's permit has been issued to a retailer under Section 6067 of the Revenue

and Taxation Cod., an additional transactor's permit shall not be required by this

Chapter.

3.140.120 Exemptions and Exclusions.

A. There shall be excluded from the measure of the transactions and the use

tax the amount of any sales tax or use tax imposed by the State of California or by

any city, city and county, or county pursuant to the Bradley-Burns Uniform Local

Sales and Use Tax Law or the amount of any State-administered transactions or

use tax.

B. There are exempted from the computation of the amount of the

transactions tax the gross receipts from:

1. Sales of tangible personal property, other than fuel or petroleum products,

to operators of aircraft to be used or consumed principally outside the county in
which the sale is made and directly and exclusively in the use of such aircraft as

common carriers of persons or property under the authority of the laws of this

State, the United States, or any foreign government.

2. Sales of property to be used outside the City which is shipped to a point

outside the City, pursuant to the contract of sale, by delivery to such point by the

retailer or his agent, or by delivery by the retailer to a carrier for shipment to a

consignee at such point. For the purposes of this patagtaph, delivery to a point
outside the City shall be satisfied:

a. With respect to vehicles (other than commercial vehicles) subject to

registration pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3

of the Vehicle Code, aircraft.licensed in compliance with Section 2l4l1of the

Public Utilities Code, and undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5

(commencing with Section 9340) of the Vehicle Code by registration to an out-of-

6
Page 534

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



City address and by a declaration under penalty of perjury, signed by the buyer,
stating that such address is, in fact, his or her principal place of residence; and

b. With respect to commercial vehicles, by registration to a place of
business out-of-City and declaration under penalty of perjury, signed by the

buyer, that the vehicle will be operated from that address.

3. The sale of tangible personal property if the seller is obligated to furnish
the property for a fixed price pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the

operative date of this Chapter.

4. A lease of tangible personal property which is a continuing sale of such
property, for any period of time for which the lessor is obligated to lease the
property for an amount fixed by the lease prior to the operative date of this
Chapter.

5. For the purposes of subparagraphs (3) and (4) of this Section, the sale or
lease of tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to
a contract or lease for any period of time for which arLy party to the contract or
lease has the unconditional right to terminate the contract or lease upon notice,
whether or not such right is exercised.

C. There are exempted from the use tax imposed by this Chapter, the storage,

use, or other consumption in this City of tangible personal property:

1. The gross receipts from the sale of which have been subject to a
transactions tax under any state-administered transactions and use tax ordinance.

2. Other than fuel or petroleum products purchased by operators of aircraft
and used or consumed by such operators directly and exclusively in the use of
such aircraft as common carriers of persons or property for hire or compensation
under a certificate of public convenience and necessity issued pursuant to the laws
of this State, the United States, or any foreign government. This exemption is in
addition to the exemptions provided in Sections 6366 and 6366.I of the Revenue

and Taxation Code of the State of California.

3. If the purchaser is obligated to purchase the property for a fixed price
pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this Chapter.

4. If the possession of, or the exercise of any right or power over, the
tangible personal property arises under a lease which is a continuing purchase of
such property for any period of time for which the lessee is obligated to lease the
property for an amount fixed by a lease prior to the operative date of this Chapter

5. For the purposes ofsubparagraphs (3) and (4) ofthis Section, storage, use,

or other consumption, or possession of, or exercise of any right or power over,

7 Page 535

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a
contract or lease for any period of time for which any party to the contract or lease

has the unconditional right to terminate the contract or lease upon notice, whether
or not such right is exercised.

6. Except as provided in subparagraph (7), a retailer engaged in business in
the City shall not be required to collect use tax from the purchaser of tangible
personal property, unless the retailer ships or delivers the property into the City or
participates within the City in making the sale of the property, including, but not
limited to, soliciting or receiving the order, either directly or indirectly, at a place

of business of the retailer in the City or through any representative, agent,

canvasser, solicitor, subsidiary, or person in the City under the authority of the
retailer.

7. "A retailer engaged in business in the City" shall also include any retailer
of any of the following: vehicles subject to registration pursuant to Chapter 1

(commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle Code, aircraft
licensed in compliance with Section 2l4ll of the Public Utilities Code, or
undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5 (commencing with Section
9340) of the Vehicle Code. That retailer shall be required to collect use tax from
any purchaser who registers or licenses the vehicle, vessel, or aircraft at an

address in the City.

D. Any person subject to use tax under this Chapter may credit against that
tax any transactions tax or reimbursement for transactions tax paid to a district
imposing, or retailer liable for a transactions tax pursuant to Part 1.6 of Division 2
of the Revenue and Taxation Code with respect to the sale to the person of the
property the storage, use or other consumption of which is subject to the use tax.

3.140.130 Amendments.

All amendments subsequent to the effective date of this Chapter to Part I of
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code relating to sales and use taxes and

which are not inconsistent with Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of the Revenue

and Taxation Code, and all amendments to Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of
the Revenue and Taxation Code, shall automatically become apatt of this
Chapter, provided however, that no such amendment shall operate so as to affect
the rate of tax imposed by this Chapter.

3.140.140 EnjoiningCollectionForbidden.

No injunction or writ of mandate or other legal or equitable process shall issue in
any suit, action or proceeding in any court against the State or the City, or against
any officer of the State or the City, to prevent or enjoin the collection under this
Chapter, or Part 1 .6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, of any tax
or any amount of tax required to be collected hereunder.

8
Page 536

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



3.140.150 CitizensOversightCommittee.

A Citizens Oversight Committee to review the revenues and the projected revenues for
the funds generated by this Chapter shall be established by the City Council within six
months of approval of this Ordinance by the voters.

3.140.160 Accounting and Report.

Prior to the adoption of the City budget each year, the City Manager and the
Finance Director shall present to the City Council an accounting of the tax
revenues received and expenditures made under this Chapter.

3.140.170 Independent Audit.

After the close of every fiscal year in which the tax imposed hereunder is levied,
the City shall cause an independent audit to be conducted as to the revenue
generated as a result of this Measure and to ensure the proper expenditure thereof
consistent with the purposes of this Chapter.

3.140.180 Authority to Amend.

A. In order to further the purposes and intent of this Chapter, the City Council
is authorized to amend this Chapter in the following areas without a further vote
of the People:

1. The suspension or reactivation of this Chapter if the revenue generated

under this Chapter is diverted by the State of Califomia for purposes other than
those specifically enumerated herein;

2. Any change required by the State of Califomia as a precondition to the
collection of the tax authorized hereunder.

B. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, any proposed change to the
taxrate imposed under this Chapter shall be submitted to the vote of the People.

3.140.190 Termination Date.

The authority to levy the tax imposed hereunder shall continue until ended by
voters.

SECTION 2 EFFECTM DATE. This Ordinance relates to the levying and

collecting of the City transactions and use tax shall be in full force and effect thirty (30)

days after the certification by the City Council of the election returns indicating passage

of the Ordinance by a majority of the voters casting votes in the election; however, the

9 Page 537

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



collection of the transaction and use tax shall be in accordance with Section 3.140.030 of
the Folsom Municipal Code as the Operative Date.

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, subdivision,
sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance, is for any reason held to be invalid
or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The People of
the City of Folsom hereby declare that they would have adopted this Ordinance, and

each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion thereof,
irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions,
sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereofbe declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 4. PUBLICATION. The City Clerk is directed to cause a copy of
this Ordinance to be published in full or in summary in the offrcial newspaper at least
once within twenty (20) days after its approval by the voters in a newspaper of general

circulation in the City.

The foregoing Ordinance was approved by the voters of the City of Folsom at a
General Municipal Election held on the 8th day of November 2022, by the following vote
tally:

YES

NOES:

OTHER:

APPROVED:

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

10 Page 538

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



Attachment 3.

Ballot Measure Language, One-Half Percent (0.5%)

Page 539

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



CITY OF FOLSOM

MEASURE'6 ,,

FOLSOM ESSENTIAL CITY SERVICES MAINTENANCE AND
INVESTMENT MEASURE

To maintain and enhance essential City of Folsom services/ facilities, such as:

maintaining 9-1-1 emergency firefighter/ medical response times; enhancing and

maintaining parks/ trails; repairing potholes/ city streets; enhancing wildfire
prevention/ neighborhood fire protection; and maintaining neighborhood police
patrols; shall the City of Folsom measure be adopted establishing a one-half cent

sales tax, providing $11,000,000 annually, for general government use, until
ended by voters, requiring local control, citizen oversight and independent annual

audits, and all funds staying in Folsom?

Page 540

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



Attachment 4.

Resolution No.10890 - A Resolution Authorizing the Submission of a Ballot
Measure to the Qualified Voters of the City to Add a Transactions and Use Tax at

the Rate of One Percent (l%), Authorizing the Filing of Written Arguments
Regarding the City's Revenue Measure, and Directing the City Attomey to Prepare

an Impartial Analysis for Said Measure

Page 541

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. 10890

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A BALLOT MEASURE TO
THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY TO ADD A TRANSACTIONS AND USE
TAX AT THE RATE OF ONE PERCENT (I%), AUTHORIZING THE F'ILING OF

WRITTEN ARGUMENTS REGARDING THE CITY'S REVENUE MEASURE, AND
DIRECTING THE CITY ATTORNEY TO PREPARE AN IMPARTIAL ANALYSIS FOR

SAID MEASURE

WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Charter of the City of Folsom and the Folsom

Municipal Code, a General Municipal Election shall be held onNovember 8,2022 for the

election of three City Councilmembers; and,

WHEREAS, Revenue and Taxation Code Section 7285.9 authorizes all cities to levy,
increase, or extend a transactions and use tax for general pulposes, at arate of 0.l25Yo or a

multiple thereof, subject to approval of two-thirds (213) of the City Council and a majority of
qualified voters voting on the issue; and,

WHEREAS, an election regarding the increase of a transactions and use tax for general

purposes must be consolidated with a regularly scheduled general election for the City Council,
except in cases of an emergency declared by a unanimous vote of the City Council; and,

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to submit a ballot measure on a transactions and

use tax to the voters of the City of Folsom at a General Municipal Election to be held in the City
on November 8,2022.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom
as follows:

SECTION 1. Pursuant to Article XI, $5 and Article XIII C, $2 of the California
Constitution, Elections Code Section 9222,Folsom Municipal Code Section 2.40.010 and

Revenue and Taxation Code Section 7285.9, a General Municipal Election is called and ordered

to be held in the City of Folsom, California, on Tuesday, November 8,2022 for the purpose of
submitting the following proposed Revenue Measure to the voters of the City:

Page 542

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



CITY OF F'OLSOM

MEASURE $ 
')

FOLSOM ESSENTIAL CITY SERVICES MAINTENANCE AI\[D
IIIVESTMENT MEASURE

To maintain and enhance essential City of Folsom services/ facilities, such as:

maintaining 9-1-1 emergency firefighter/ medical response times; enhancing and

maintaining parks/ trails; repairing potholes/ city streets; enhancing wildfire
prevention/ neighborhood fire protection; and maintaining neighborhood police
patrols; shall the City of Folsom measure be adopted establishing a one cent sales

tax, providing $22,000,000 annually, for general government use, until ended by
voters, requiring local control, citizen oversight and independent annual audits,

and all funds staying in Folsom?

SECTION 2. The complete text of the proposed measure to be submitted to the voters in
Section I hereof is attached hereto as Exhibit ooA". The full text of the Ordinance will not be
printed in its entirety in the County Voter Information Guide. Relevant information will be

provided within the Impartial Analysis, and a full copy of the text is on file in the Office of the

City Clerk.

SECTION 3. The vote requirement for the measure, submitted to the voters in Section I
hereof, to pass is a simple majority (50% + 1) of the votes cast.

SECTION 4. The City Council authorizes pursuant to Elections Code Section 9282(b)
the following:

The Mayor andlor Others Selected by the Mayor Who are Qualified to
Sign Arguments under the Elections Code

to file a written argument not exceeding 300 words regarding the City measure as specified in
Section 1, accompanied by the printed name(s) and signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, in
accordance with California Elections Code Section 9282. The arguments may be changed or
withdrawn until and including the date fixed by the City Clerk after which no arguments for or
against the City measure may be submitted to the City Clerk.

The arguments shall be filed with the City Clerk, signed, with the printed name(s) and

signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, or if submitted on behalf of an organi zafion, the name

of the organization, and the printed name and signature of at least one of its principal officers
who is the author of the argument. The arguments shall be accompanied by the Filer Statement

Form to be filed by author(s) of argument.

Resolution No. 10890
Page 2 of 4

a

Page 543

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



SECTION 5. The City Council adopts Elections Code Section 9285 to accept rebuttal
arguments. The rebuttal arguments shall be filed with the City Clerk, signed, with the printed
name(s) and signature(s) of the author(s) submitting it, or if submitted on behalf of an

organization, the name of the organization, and the printed name and signature of at least one of
its principal offrcers who is the author of the argument. The arguments shall be accompanied by
the Filer Statement Form to be filed by author(s) of argument.

SECTION 6. The City Council directs the City Clerk to transmit a copy of the measure

to the City Attomey, unless the organization or salaries of the Office of the City Attomey are

affected. The City Attorney shall prepare an impartial analysis of said measure not exceeding

500 words showing the effect of the measure on the existing law and the operation of said

measure. If any measure affects lhe organization or salaries of the Office of the City Attorney,
the City Clerk shall prepare the impartial analysis. The analysis shall include a statement

indicating whether any measure was placed on the ballot by a petition signed by the requisite
number of voters or by the governing body of the City. In the event the entire text of the
measure is not printed on the ballot, nor in the voter information portion of the sample ballot,
there shall be printed immediately below the impartial analysis, in no less than 10-point, the

following: 'oThe above statement is an impartial analysis of the measure. If you desire a copy of
the measure, please call the election official's office at: 916-461-6035 or email
CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us and a copy will be provided at no cost to you." The impartial
analysis shall be filed by the date set by the City Clerk for the filing of primary arguments.

SECTION 7. The ballots to be used at the election shall be in form and content as

required by law.

SECTION 8. Said General Municipal Election hereby called shall be held and

conducted, and the votes thereat received and canvassed, and the returned thereof made, and the
result thereof ascertained and determined in accordance with the general election laws of the

State of Califomia, except as herein provided.

SECTION 9. All persons qualified to vote at municipal elections in the City of Folsom
shall be qualified to vote at said General Municipal Election.

SECTION 7. The City Clerk is authorized, instructed, and directed to coordinate with
the Clerk and Registrar of Voters of the County of Sacramento to procure and furnish any and all
official ballots, notices, printed matter, and all supplies, equipment and paraphernalia that may
be necessary in order to properly and lawfully conduct the election.

SECTION 10. Unless a longer period is provided by the County Elections Department,
the polls shall be open at seven o'clock a.m. of the day of the election and shall remain open

continuously from that time until eight o'clock p.m. of the same day when the polls shall be

closed, pursuant to California Elections Code 510242, except as provided in the California
Elections Code $14401.

Resolution No. 10890
Page 3 of4 Page 544

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



SECTION 11. In all particulars not recited in this Resolution, the election shall be held
and conducted as provided by law for holding municipal elections.

SECTION 12. Notice of the time and place of holding the election is given and the City
Clerk is authorized, instructed, and directed to give further or additional notice of the election, in
time, form, and manner as required by law.

SECTION 13. The fulltext of the revenue measure Ordinance will not be printed in its
entirety in the Sample Ballot. Relevant information will be provided within the Impartial
Analysis for each measure and a full copy of the text is on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

SECTION 14. The City Council authorizes the City Clerk to administer said election
and all reasonable and actual election expenses shall be paid by the City upon presentation of a
properly submitted bill.

SECTION 15. At the next regular meeting of this City Council occurring after the

returns of said General Municipal Election have been canvassed, and the certification of the
results thereof to this City Council, or at a special meeting called thereafter for such purpose, this
City Council shall cause to be spread upon its minutes a statement of the results of said General

Municipal Election as ascertained by said canvass.

SECTION 16. The City Clerk shall certiff to the passage and adoption of this
Resolution and enter it into the book of original Resolutions, and to take other appropriate
actions necessary to ensure the placement of said proposition before the voters of the City of
Folsom at said General Municipal Election.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of July,2022 by the following ro11 call
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

List of Exhibit:
Exhibit A - Folsom Essential City Services Maintenance and Investment Measure

Resolution No. 10890

Page 4 of4

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Page 545

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



Attachment 5.

Ordinance No. 1329 - An Ordinance of the People of the City of Folsom Imposing
a One Percent (l%) Transactions and Use Tax by Adding Chapter 3.I40, "Folsom

Essential City Services Maintenance and Investment Measure", to the Folsom
Municipa'""0'l"ohi*$-Tf, 

*'fi lr',Ii:'rff [?#:1?"'ttrlT:i:orraxandFee

Page 546

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



EXHIBIT A
TO

RESOLUTION NO. 10890

Folsom Essential City Services Maintenance and Investment Measure

Measure to be Submitted Directly to the Voters

ORDINANCE NO. 1329

AN ORDINANCE OF'THE PEOPLE OF CITY OF F'OLSOM IMPOSING A ONE
PERCENT TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX BY ADDING CHAPTER 3.140,

"F'OLSOM ESSENTIAL CITY SERVICES MAINTENANCE AND
INVESTMENT MEASURE'" TO THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE TO BE

ADMINISTERED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TAX AND FEE
ADMINISTRATION

WHEREAS, many residents live in the City of Folsom because the City offers a

higher level of amenities, service, programs, and quality of life than in neighboring cities,

and creating and preserving local revenue sources will ensure that the City can maintain
and improve the quality of the amenities, services, and programs that residents desire and

expect; and

WHEREAS, many businesses operate and thrive in the City due to the City's
business-friendly environment, robust and year-round recreational activities and events,

high-quality public facilities and amenities, as well as proactive economic development
efforts, all leading to a higher level of shopping experience; and

WHEREAS, the City's unique geography, with its lakes, creeks, trails, bikeways
and scenic hillsides, combined with the age of its infrastructures such as roads, sidewalks,
public buildings and drainage systems, make it an expensive City to maintain.

WHEREAS, during each of the past several years, the State of California has

reduced funding for infrastructure improvements to local jurisdictions, including the City
of Folsom; and,

WHEREAS, the City needs dependable and local sources of revenue to fund and

to support locally-controlled, strategically enhanced spending on services, facilities and

programs including, for example, capital improvement projects such as construction of
transportation and traffic improvements, parks, trails, and bike paths; efforts to promote

economic development and redevelopment to attract new businesses and employers to the
City; augmentation of existing essential City services including but not limited to fire,
paramedic, police emergency response and crime prevention programs; and expansion of

I Page 547

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



the City's great tradition in parks and recreation, senior, library, school and education,
arts, cultural and historical programs which our citizens enjoy and/or depend upon.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PEOPLE OF'THE CITY OF'FOLSOM AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. ADDITION TO CODE

Chapter 3.140, "Folsom Essential City Services Maintenance and Investment
Measure", is hereby added to the Folsom Municipal Code to read as follows:

Chapter 3.140

FOLSOM ESSENTIAL CITY SERVICES MAINTENANCE
AND INVESTMENT MEASURS

(General Transactions (Sales) and Use Tax)

Sections:
3.140.010
3.t40.020
3.140.030
3.140.040
3.140.050
3.140.060
3.t40.070
3.140.080
3.140.090
3.140.100
3.140.110
3.140.120
3.140.130
3.t40.140
3.140.150
3.r40.160
3.r40.170
3.140.180
3.140.190

Chapter Title.
Need for Chapter.
Operative Date.
Purpose.
Contract with State.

Transactions Tax Rate.
Place of Sale.

Use Tax Rate.
Adoption of Provisions of State Law.
Limitations on Adoption of State Law and Collection of Use Taxes.
Permit Not Required.
Exemptions and Exclusions.
Amendments.
Enj oining Collection Forbidden.
Citizens Oversight Committee.
Accounting and Report.
Independent Audit.
Authority to Amend.
Termination Date.

3.140.010 Chapter Title.

This Chapter shall be known as the ooFolsom Essential City Services Maintenance
and Investment Measure" (the "Measure"). This Chapter shall be applicable in
the incorporated territory of the City.

2 Page 548

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



3.140.020 Need for Chapter.

The People of the City of Folsom declare that this Chapter, pursuant to the
Measure, is adopted as a general tax to provide funding for general governmental
pu{poses, which are funded by the City's General Fund.

3.L40.030 Operative Date.

The general transactions and use tax imposed hereunder shall be operative the
first day of the first calendar quarter commencing more than 110 days after the
adoption of this Chapter ("Operative Date"). Based on aNovember 8,2022
election, the Operative Date for the general transactions and use tax imposed
hereunder shall be April 1,2023, and the revenue from said tax can be spent for
unrestricted general revenue purposes.

3.140.040 Purpose.

Pursuant to the requirements of the California Department of Tax and Fee

Administration, this Chapter is adopted to achieve the following, among other
purposes, and directs that the provisions hereof be interpreted in order to
accomplish those purposes:

A. To impose aretailtransactions and use tax in accordance with the
provisions of Part 1.6 (commencing with SectionT2ll) of Division 2 of the
Revenue and Taxation Code and Section 7285.9 of Part 1.7 of Division 2, and

which authorizes the City to adopt this tax ordinance, which shall be operative if a
majority of the electors voting on the measure vote to approve the imposition of
the tax at an election called for that purpose.

B. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that incorporates
provisions identical to those of the Sales and Use Tax Law of the State of
California insofar as those provisions are not inconsistent with the requirements
and limitations contained in Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation
Code.

C. To adopt a retail transactions and use tax ordinance that imposes a tax and
provides a measure therefore that can be administered and collected by the
Califomia Department of Tax and Fee Administration in a manner that adapts

itself as fully as practicable to, and requires the least possible deviation from, the
existing statutory and administrative procedures followed by the California
Department of Tax and Fee Administration in administering and collecting the
Califomia State Sales and Use Taxes.

a
J

Page 549

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



D. To adopt aretail transactions and use tax ordinance that can be

administered in a manner that will be, to the greatest degree possible, consistent
with the provisions of Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code,

minimize the cost of collecting the transactions and use taxes, and at the same

time, minimize the burden of record keeping upon persons subject to taxation
under the provisions of this Chapter.

3.140.050 Contract with State.

Prior to the Operative Date of this Chapter, the City shall contract with the
California Department of Tax and Fee Administration to perform all functions
incident to the administration and operation of this transactions and use tax
imposed under this Chapter; provided, that if the City shall not have contracted
with the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration prior to the
Operative Date, it shall nevertheless so contract and in such a case the operative
date shall be the first day of the first calendar quarter following the execution of
such a contract.

3.140.060 Transactions Tax Rate.

For the privilege of selling tangible personal property at retail, a tax is hereby
imposed upon all retailers in the incorporated tenitory of the City atthe rate of
one percent ( I %) of the gross receipts of any retailer from the sale of all tangible
personal property sold at retail in said territory on and after the Operative Date of
this Chapter.

3.140.070 Place of Sale.

For the pulposes of this Chapter, all retail sales are consummated at the place of
business of the retailer, unless the tangible personal property sold is delivered by
the retailer, or his or her agent, to an out-of-state destination or to a common
carrier for delivery to an out-of-state destination. The gross receipts from such

sales shall include delivery charges, when such charges are subject to the State

sales and use tax, regardless of the place to which delivery is made. In the event a

retailer has no permanent place of business in the State, or has more than one

place of business, the place or places at which the retail sales are consummated
shall be determined under rules and regulations to be prescribed and adopted by
the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration.

3.140.080 Use Tax Rate.

An excise tax is hereby imposed on the storage, use, or other consumption in the City of
tangible personal property purchased from any retailer on and after the Operative Date of
this Chapter for storage, use, or other consumption in the City at the rate of one percent
(l%) of the sales price of the property. The sales price shall include delivery charges

4
Page 550

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



when such charges are subject to the State sales or use tax regardless of the place to

which delivery is made.

3.140.090 Adoption of Provisions of State Law.

Except as otherwise provided in this Chapter and except insofar as they are

inconsistent with the provisions of Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and

Taxation Code, all of the provisions of Part I (commencing with Section 6001) of
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code are hereby adopted and made apart
of this Chapter as though fully set forth herein.

3.140.100
Taxes.

Limitations on Adoption of State Law and Collection of Use

In adopting the provisions of Part I of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation
Code:

A. Wherever the State of California is named or referred to as the taxing
agency, the name of this City shall be substituted therefor. However, the
substitution shall not be made when:

1. The word "State" is used as a part of the title of the State Controller, State

Treasurer, State Board of Control, California Department of Tax and Fee

Administration, State Treasury, or the Constitution of the State of California;

2. The result of that substitution would require action to be taken by or
against this City or any agency, officer, or employee thereof rather than by or
against the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration, in performing
the functions incident to the administration or operation of this Chapter.

3. In those sections, including, but not necessarily limited to sections

referring to the exterior boundaries of the State of California, where the result of
the substitution would be to:

a. Provide an exemption from this use tax with respect to certain sales,

storage, use or other consumption of tangible personal property which would not
otherwise be exempt from this tax while such sales, storage, use or other
consumption remain subject to tax by the State under the provisions of Part 1 of
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, or;

b. Impose this tax with respect to certain sales, storage, use or other
consumption of tangible personal property which would not be subject to tax by
the State under the said provision of that code.

5
Page 551

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



4. In Sections 6701,6702 (except in the last sentence thereoQ, 6711,6715,
6737, 6797 or 6828 of the Revenue and Taxation Code.

B. The word "City" shall be substituted for the word "State" in the phrase

"retailer engaged in business in this State" in Section 6203 and in the definition of
that phrase in Section 6203 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. A'oretailer
engaged in business in the State" shall also include any retailer that, in the
preceding calendar year or the current calendar year, has total combined sales of
tangible personal property in this state or for delivery in the State by the retailer
and all persons related to the retailer that exceeds five hundred thousand dollars
($500,000). For purposes of this section, a person is related to another person if
both persons are related to each other pursuant to Section 267(b) of Title 26 of the
United States Code and the regulations thereunder.

3.140.110 Permit Not Required.

If a seller's permit has been issued to a retailer under Section 6067 of the Revenue

and Taxation Code, an additional transactor's permit shall not be required by this
Chapter.

3.140.120 ExemptionsandExclusions.

A. There shall be excluded from the measure of the transactions and the use

tax the amount of any sales tax or use tax imposed by the State of California or by
any city, city and county, or county pursuant to the Bradley-Bums Uniform Local
Sales and Use Tax Law or the amount of any State-administered transactions or
use tax.

B. There are exempted from the computation of the amount of the
transactions tax the gross receipts from:

1. Sales of tangible personal property, other than fuel or petroleum products,

to operators of aircraft to be used or consumed principally outside the county in
which the sale is made and directly and exclusively in the use of such aircraft as

common carriers of persons or property under the authority of the laws of this
State, the United States, or any foreign government.

2. Sales of property to be used outside the City which is shipped to a point
outside the City, pursuant to the contract of sale, by delivery to such point by the
retailer or his agent, or by delivery by the retailer to a carrier for shipment to a
consignee at such point. For the purposes of this paragraph, delivery to a point
outside the City shall be satisfied:

a. With respect to vehicles (other than commercial vehicles) subject to
registration pursuant to Chapter I (commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3

of the Vehicle Code, aircraft licensed in compliance with Section 2I4ll of the

6 Page 552

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



Public Utilities Code, and undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5
(commencing with Section 9840) of the Vehicle Code by registration to an out-of-
City address and by a declaration under penalty of perjury, signed by the buyer,
stating that such address is, in fact, his or her principal place of residence; and

b. With respect to commercial vehicles, by registration to a place of
business out-of-City and declaration under penalty of perjury, signed by the

buyer, that the vehicle will be operated from that address.

3. The sale of tangible personal property if the seller is obligated to furnish
the property for a fixed price pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the

operative date of this Chapter.

4. A lease of tangible personal property which is a continuing sale of such

property, for any period of time for which the lessor is obligated to lease the
property for an amount fixed by the lease prior to the operative date of this
Chapter.

5. For the purposes ofsubparagraphs (3) and (4) ofthis Section, the sale or
lease of tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to
a contract or lease for any period of time for which any party to the contract or
lease has the unconditional right to terminate the contract or lease upon notice,
whether or not such right is exercised.

C. There are exempted from the use tax imposed by this Chapter, the storage,

use, or other consumption in this City of tangible personal property:

1. The gross receipts from the sale of which have been subject to a
transactions tax under any state-administered transactions and use tax ordinance.

2. Other than fuel or petroleum products purchased by operators of aircraft
and used or consumed by such operators directly and exclusively in the use of
such aircraft as common carriers of persons or property for hire or compensation
under a certificate of public convenience and necessity issued pursuant to the laws

of this State, the United States, or any foreign government. This exemption is in
addition to the exemptions provided in Sections 6366 and 6366.1 of the Revenue

and Taxation Code of the State of California.

3. If the purchaser is obligated to purchase the property for a fixed price
pursuant to a contract entered into prior to the operative date of this Chapter.

4. If the possession of, or the exercise of any right or power over, the

tangible personal property arises under a lease which is a continuing purchase of
such property for any period of time for which the lessee is obligated to lease the
property for an amount fixed by a lease prior to the operative date of this Chapter

7 Page 553

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



5. For the purposes ofsubparagraphs (3) and (4) ofthis Section, storage, use,

or other consumption, or possession of, or exercise of any right or power over,
tangible personal property shall be deemed not to be obligated pursuant to a
contract or lease for any period of time for which any party to the contract or lease

has the unconditional right to terminate the contract or lease upon notice, whether
or not such right is exercised.

6. Except as provided in subparagraph (7), a retailer engaged in business in
the City shall not be required to collect use tax from the purchaser of tangible
personal property, unless the retailer ships or delivers the property into the City or
participates within the City in making the sale of the property, including, but not
limited to, soliciting or receiving the order, either directly or indirectly, at a place

of business of the retailer in the City or through any representative, agent,

canvasser, solicitor, subsidiary, or person in the City under the authority of the
retailer.

7. "A retailer engaged in business in the City" shall also include any retailer
of any of the following: vehicles subject to registration pursuant to Chapter 1

(commencing with Section 4000) of Division 3 of the Vehicle Code, aircraft
licensed in compliance with Section 2l4ll of the Public Utilities Code, or
undocumented vessels registered under Division 3.5 (commencing with Section
9840) of the Vehicle Code. That retailer shall be required to collect use tax from
any purchaser who registers or licenses the vehicle, vessel, or aircraft at an

address in the City.

D. Any person subject to use tax under this Chapter may credit against that
tax any transactions tax or reimbursement for transactions tax paid to a district
imposing, or retailer liable for a transactions tax pursuant to Part 1.6 of Division 2
of the Revenue and Taxation Code with respect to the sale to the person of the

property the storage, use or other consumption of which is subject to the use tax.

3.140.130 Amendments.

All amendments subsequent to the effective date of this Chapter to Part I of
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code relating to sales and use taxes and

which are not inconsistent with Part I .6 and Part 1 .7 of Division 2 of the Revenue

and Taxation Code, and all amendments to Part 1.6 and Part 1.7 of Division 2 of
the Revenue and Taxation Code, shall automatically become apart of this
Chapter, provided however, that no such amendment shall operate so as to affect
the rate of tax imposed by this Chapter.

3.140.140 EnjoiningCollectionForbidden.

No injunction or writ of mandate or other legal or equitable process shall issue in
any suit, action or proceeding in any court against the State or the City, or against

any officer of the State or the City, to prevent or enjoin the collection under this

8 Page 554

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



Chapter, or Part 1.6 of Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, of any tax
or any amount of tax required to be collected hereunder.

3.140.150 Citizens Oversight Committee.

A Citizens Oversight Committee to review the revenues and the projected revenues for
the funds generated by this Chapter shall be established by the City Council within six
months of approval of this Ordinance by the voters.

3.140.160 Accounting and Report.

Prior to the adoption of the City budget each year, the City Manager and the
Finance Director shall present to the City Council an accounting of the tax
revenues received and expenditures made under this Chapter.

3.140.170 Independent Audit.

After the close of every fiscal year in which the tax imposed hereunder is levied,
the City shall cause an independent audit to be conducted as to the revenue
generated as a result of this Measure and to ensure the proper expenditure thereof
consistent with the purposes of this Chapter.

3.140.180 Authority to Amend.

A. In order to further the purposes and intent of this Chapter, the City Council
is authorized to amend this Chapter in the following areas without a further vote
of the People:

1. The suspension or reactivation of this Chapter if the revenue generated

under this Chapter is diverted by the State of California for purposes other than
those specifically enumerated herein;

2. Any change required by the State of California as a precondition to the
collection of the tax authorized hereunder.

B. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, any proposed change to the
tax rate imposed under this Chapter shall be submitted to the vote of the People.

3.140.1.90 Termination Date.

The authority to levy the tax imposed hereunder shall continue until ended by
voters.

SECTION 2 EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance relates to the levying and

collecting of the City transactions and use tax shall be in full force and effect thirty (30)
days after the certification by the City Council of the election returns indicating passage

9
Page 555

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



of the Ordinance by a majority of the voters casting votes in the election; however, the
collection of the transaction and use tax shall be in accordance with Section 3.140.030 of
the Folsom Municipal Code as the Operative Date.

SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, subdivision,
sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance, is for any reason held to be invalid
or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The People of
the City of Folsom hereby declare that they would have adopted this Ordinance, and
each section, subsection, subdivision, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion thereof,
irrespective of the factthat any one or more sections, subsections, subdivisions,
sentences, clauses, phrases, or portions thereofbe declared invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 4. PUBLICATION. The City Clerk is directed to cause a copy of
this Ordinance to be published in full or in summary in the offrcial newspaper at least
once within twenty (20) days after its approval by the voters in a newspaper of general

circulation in the City.

The foregoing Ordinance was approved by the voters of the City of Folsom at a
General Municipal Election held on the 8th day of November 2022, by the following vote
tally:

YES

NOES

OTHER:

APPROVED:

Keni M. Howell, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

10 Page 556

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



Attachment 6

Ballot Measure Language, One Percent (1.0%)

Page 557

07/12/2022 Item No.12.



CITY OF'F'OLSOM

MEASURE ( ,,

FOLSOM ESSENTIAL CITY SERVICES MAINTENAIICE AND
INVESTMENT MEASI]RE

To maintain and enhance essential City of Folsom services/ facilities, such as:

maintaining 9-1-1 emergency firefighter/ medical response times; enhancing and

maintaining parks/ trails; repairing potholes/ city streets; enhancing wildfire
prevention/ neighborhood fire protection; and maintaining neighborhood police
patrols; shall the City of Folsom measure be adopted establishing a one cent sales

tax, providing $22,000,000 annually, for general government use, until ended by
voters, requiring local control, citizen oversight and independent annual audits,
and all funds staying in Folsom?

Page 558

07/12/2022 Item No.12.


	Top
	07/12/2022 Item No.1.	Presentation from HART of Folsom (Homeless Assistance Resource Team) Regarding the Winter Shelter
	07-12 STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION FROM HART RE WINTER SHELTER

	07/12/2022 Item No.2.	Approval of June 28, 2022 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	07-12 STAFF REPORT MINUTES OF JUNE 28, 2022

	07/12/2022 Item No.3.	Appointment of Representatives to the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (SCGA) Governing Board
	07-12 STAFF REPORT APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVES TO SCGA

	07/12/2022 Item No.4.	Appointment of At-Large Member to the Folsom Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee to Represent the Willow Springs District
	07-12 STAFF REPORT LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING APPOINTMENT WILLOW SPRINGS

	07/12/2022 Item No.5.	Resolution No. 10883 - A Resolution Electing the Population and Inflation Factors and Establishing the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Appropriations Limit
	07-12 STAFF REPORT RES 10883 POPULATION AND INFLATION FACTORS APPROPRIATIONS

	07/12/2022 Item No.6.	Resolution No. 10886 - A Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 10860 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with Cooper Oates Air Conditioning for the Folsom City Hall Boiler and HVAC Replacement Design-Build Project
	07-12 STAFF REPORT RES 10886 CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT CITY HALL HVAC

	07/12/2022 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 10888 - A Resolution Acknowledging Receipt of Completed Annual State Mandated Fire Inspections
	07-12 STAFF REPORT RES 10888 STATE MANDATED FIRE INPSECTIONS

	07/12/2022 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 10887 - A Resolution Approving the Final Engineer’s Report for the following Landscaping and Lighting Districts for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 American River Canyon North, American River Canyon North No. 2, American River Canyon North No. 3, Blue Ravine Oaks, Blue Ravine Oaks No. 2, Briggs Ranch, Broadstone, Broadstone No. 4, Broadstone Unit No. 3, Cobble Ridge, Cobble Hills Ridge II/Reflections II, Folsom Heights, Folsom Heights No. 2, Hannaford Cross, Lake Natoma Shores, Los Cerros, Natoma Station, Natoma Valley, Prairie Oaks Ranch, Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2, Prospect Ridge, Sierra Estates, Silverbrook, Steeplechase, The Residences at American River Canyon, The Residences at American River Canyon II, Willow Creek Estates East, Willow Creek Estates East No. 2, Willow Creek Estates South, and Willow Springs
	07-12 STAFF REPORT RES 10887 L AND L FINAL ENGINEER'S REPORT

	07/12/2022 Item No.9.	Approval of the April 12, 2022 Joint City Council and Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Meeting Minutes
	07-12 STAFF REPORT JOINT MINUTES OF 04-12-2022

	07/12/2022 Item No.10.	Approval of the May 24, 2022 Joint City Council / Redevelopment Successor Agency / Public Financing Authority / Folsom South of 50 Parking Authority / Folsom Ranch Financing Authority Meeting Minutes
	07-12 STAFF REPORT JOINT MINUTES OF 05-24-2022

	07/12/2022 Item No.11.	Folsom Ranch Financing Authority City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) Improvement Area No. 3 Special Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022
	07-12 STAFF REPORT RES 10884 RES 009-FRFA CFD 23 FOLSOM RANCH BONDS

	07/12/2022 Item No.12.	General Municipal Election – November 8, 2022
	07-12 STAFF REPORT RES 10889-10890 ORD 1328-1329 TAX BALLOT MEASURE

	Bottom

